
 

 

 

7 North Dixie Highway 

Lake Worth Beach, FL 33460 

561.586.1600 

  
AGENDA 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH 
UTILITY CITY COMMISSION MEETING 
CITY HALL COMMISSION CHAMBER 

TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 26, 2023 - 6:00 PM 

ROLL CALL: 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: led by Commissioner Sarah Malega 

AGENDA - Additions / Deletions / Reordering: 

PRESENTATIONS: (there is no public comment on Presentation items) 

A. Electric Utility Update by Ed Liberty, Electric Utility Director 

B. Water Utility Update by Sam Heady, Water Utility Director 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION OF NON-AGENDAED ITEMS AND CONSENT AGENDA: 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

A. August 29, 2023 

CONSENT AGENDA: (public comment allowed during Public Participation of Non-Agendaed 
items) 

A. Amendment No. 1 to Agreement 22FRP69 between the Florida Department of Environmental 
Protection and the City of Lake Worth Beach 

B. Fiscal Year 2024 Resilient Florida Grant Program Additional Funding Request for the Eden 
Place Sea Level Rise Mitigation Project 

C. Fiscal Year 2024 Resilient Florida Grant Program Application for the 9th Avenue South Pump 
Station Project 

D. Fiscal Year 2024 Resilient Florida Grant Program Application for the Parrot Cove Stormwater 
Resiliency Project 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS: 

A. Purchased Power Cost Adjustment Update (PCA) 

B. Resolution No. 31-2023 – Establishment of an Electric Utility Rate Stabilization Fund 

NEW BUSINESS: 

A. Resolution No. 43-2023 – Establishing the rates and charges for the Electric Utility for Fiscal 
Year 2024 

B. Resolution No. 44-2023 – Establish the rates and charges for the Water System for Fiscal 
Year 2023-2024 

C. Resolution No. 45-2023 – Establishing the rates, fees and changes for the City’s Sub-regional 
Sewer System 



D. Resolution No. 46-2023 – Establishing the rates and charges for the Local Sewer System 

E. Agreement with Encop, Inc. for the renovation of Men’s Room, the Employee Lounge, small 
Ladies’ Room, Supplies Room and for construction of the Linemen’s Ready Room at the 1900 
2nd Avenue North Building 

F. Ratification of Purchases from NuCAT Corporation under Work Orders #61 thru #73 

G. Transmission Operator Alliance Agreement   

H. Approval of contracts with L. E. Myers Co., Michels Power Inc., Wilco Electrical LLC., and 
Hooper Corporation to provide construction services for the Electric Utility System Hardening 
and Reliability Improvement Program 

I. Approval of contracts with NuCAT Corp., TeamWorknet, Inc and Powerserve Technologies, 
Inc for professional services to perform electrical equipment inspection, testing, repair and 
maintenance for the City’s Electric Utility   

J. Agreement with Bermex, Inc. for the reading of electric and water utility meters during 
emergency situations 

K. Waiver of Procurement Process and Agreement with Gresco Utility Supply, Inc., for the 
purchase and delivery of 27 kV Capacitor Banks 

L. Resolution No. 47-2023 - Designate Vaughn Hayduk as the City’s Board Member for the East 
Central Regional Water Reclamation Facility (ECR) as Sam Heady’s alternate member 
representing Lake Worth Beach 

M. Piggyback agreement with Tripp Electric, Inc. for pump, motor, and equipment services 

N. Third Amendment to Agreement with Allied Universal Corporation to purchase Sodium 
Hypochlorite (Bleach) for water treatment and odor control 

O. Piggyback Agreement with Miller Pipeline, LLC for the provision of Wastewater Collection 
System Rehabilitation Services 

P. Agreement for On-Call Large Pipeline Contractor Services with Amici Engineering 
Contractors, LLC 

Q. Purchase Order with PSI Technologies, Inc. for a Wilo Sewage Pump for the Regional Master 
Pump Station  

ADJOURNMENT: 

 
The City Commission has adopted Rules of Decorum for Citizen Participation (See Resolution No. 81-
2022). The Rules of Decorum are posted within the City Hall Chambers, City Hall Conference Room, posted 
online at:  https://lakeworthbeachfl.gov/government/virtual-meetings/, and available through the City Clerk’s 
office. Compliance with the Rules of Decorum is expected and appreciated. 

 
If a person decides to appeal any decision made by the board, agency or commission with respect to any 
matter considered at such meeting or hearing, he or she will need a record of the proceedings, and that, 
for such purpose, he or she may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which 
record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based. (F.S. 286.0105) 



 

MINUTES 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH 

UTILITY CITY COMMISSION MEETING 

CITY HALL COMMISSION CHAMBER 

TUESDAY, AUGUST 29, 2023 - 6:00 PM 

 

The meeting was called to order by Mayor Resch on the above date at 6:03 PM in the City 

Commission Chamber located at City Hall, 7 North Dixie Highway, Lake Worth Beach, 

Florida. 

 

ROLL CALL:  
 

Present were Mayor Betty Resch, Vice Mayor Christopher McVoy, Commissioners Sarah 

Malega, Kimberly Stokes and Commissioner Reinaldo Diaz. Also present were City Manager 

Carmen Davis, Assistant City Attorney Christy Goddeau and Deputy City Clerk Shayla Ellis. 

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: led by Commissioner Sarah Malega. 

 

AGENDA - Additions/Deletions/Reordering: 
 

There were no changes to the agenda. 

PRESENTATIONS: (there is no public comment on Presentation items) 

A. Water Utility Update by Sam Heady, Water Utility Director (0:27) 

 

B. Electric Utility Update by Ed Liberty, Electric Utility Director (38:14) 

 

C. Overview of Electric Utility Bond-Funded Projects Underway by Ashley Sirdar, Electric 

Utility Assistant Project Manager (46:18) 

 

D. Operational Benefits from SHRIP Projects Utilizing Bond Funds by Jason Bailey, 

Assistant Director - System Operations (51:46) 

 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION OF NON-AGENDAED ITEMS AND CONSENT 

AGENDA: (1:05:47) 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: (1:06:07) 

 

Action: Motion made by Commissioner Stokes and seconded by Commissioner Diaz to approve the 

following minutes:  

 

A. July 25, 2023 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor McVoy and Commissioners Malega, 

Stokes and Diaz.. NAYS: None. 

 



Pg. 2, Utility Meeting, August 29, 2023 

 

CONSENT AGENDA: (public comment allowed during Public Participation of Non-

Agendaed items) (1:06:14) 

 

Action: Motion made by Commissioner Malega and seconded by Commissioner Stokes to approve the 

Consent Agenda. 

 

A.  Utility Easement by and between Gator State Storage Lake Worth, LLC and the City of 

Lake Worth Beach 

B. Authorize Drinking Water State Revolving Fund Amendment 2 to Loan Agreement 

DW501750 for the 2-inch Watermain Replacement Phase 5 and 6 Project 

C. Authorize Ethernet cards and Stratix Switch purchase with Rexel for the City’s Water 

Utility Department 

D. The City of Lake Worth Beach and The Town of Lantana Interlocal Agreement   

 

Vote: Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor McVoy and Commissioners Malega, 

Stokes and Diaz.. NAYS: None 

 

NEW BUSINESS: (1:06:25) 

 

A. Resolution No. 31-2023 – Establishment of an Electric Utility Rate Stabilization Fund 

(1:06:26) 

 

Action: Motion made by Commissioner Malega and seconded by Commissioner Diaz to approve 

Resolution No. 31-2023 – Establishment of an Electric Utility Rate Stabilization Fund. Motion 

withdrawn. 

 

Action: Consensus to table this item until the next utility meeting to address the requested changes to 

outline the specific guidelines for fund balance ranges, the review of this fund on a quarterly 

basis with the PCA rate review and the addition of language to outline the specific intent of 

the fund and the requirements for fund usage. 

 

Action: Consensus to utilize the surplus PCA funds after the Establishment of the Rate Stabilization 

Fund to establish an Emergency Storm Fund. (1:39:17) 

 

The meeting recessed at 7:41 and reconvened at 7:53 PM.  

 

B. Agreement with Transportation Management Services Inc for the transportation of contract 

and/or mutual aid crews during emergency situations (1:48:35) 

 

Action: Motion made by Commissioner Malega and seconded by Vice Mayor McVoy to approve the 

Agreement with Transportation Management Services Inc for the transportation of contract 

and/or mutual aid crews during emergency situations. 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor McVoy and Commissioners Malega, 

Stokes and Diaz.. NAYS: None 

 

C. Resolution No. 32-2023 – 2020 Non-Ad Valorem Revenue Bond Reallocation (1:49:48) 

 



Pg. 3, Utility Meeting August 29, 2023 

 

Action: Motion made by Commissioner Diaz and seconded by Commissioner Stokes to approve 

Resolution No. 32-2023 – 2020 Non-Ad Valorem Revenue Bond Reallocation.  

. 

Vote: Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor McVoy and Commissioners Malega, 

Stokes and Diaz.. NAYS: None 

 

D. Resolution No. 33-2023 – FY 2023 Budget Amendment for Subregional Wastewater 

payment to Palm Beach County Water Utilities Department (1:50:41) 

 

Action: Motion made by Vice Mayor McVoy and seconded by Commissioner Malega to approve 

Resolution No. 33-2023 – FY 2023 Budget Amendment for Subregional Wastewater payment 

to Palm Beach County Water Utilities Department. 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor McVoy and Commissioners Malega, 

Stokes and Diaz.. NAYS: None 

 

E. Authorize water meter purchase with Badger Meter for the City’s Water Utility Department 

(1:51:50) 

 

Action: Motion made by Commissioner Stokes and seconded by Vice Mayor McVoy to approve the 

water meter purchase with Badger Meter for the City’s Water Utility Department. 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor McVoy and Commissioners Malega, 

Stokes and Diaz.. NAYS: None 

 

F. Authorize water meter encoders purchase with The Avanti Company for the City’s Water 

Utility Department (1:52:14) 

 

Action: Motion made by Vice Mayor McVoy and seconded by Commissioner Diaz to approve the 

water meter encoders purchase with The Avanti Company for the City’s Water Utility 

Department. 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor McVoy and Commissioners Malega, 

Stokes and Diaz.. NAYS: None 

 

G. Work Order No. 08 with Globaltech, Inc. for Reverse Osmosis Water Treatment Plant 

Membrane Replacement Project (1:52:27) 

 

Action: Motion made by Commissioner Diaz and seconded by Commissioner Malega to approve Work 

Order No. 08 with Globaltech, Inc. for Reverse Osmosis Water Treatment Plant Membrane 

Replacement Project. 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor McVoy and Commissioners Malega, 

Stokes and Diaz.. NAYS: None 

 

H. Work Order No. 09 with Globaltech, Inc. for Water Treatment Plant Hurricane Hardening 

Project (1:52:58) 

 



Pg. 4, Utility Meeting, August 29, 2023 

 

Action: Motion made by Commissioner Diaz and seconded by Vice Mayor McVoy to approve Work 

Order No. 09 with Globaltech, Inc. for Water Treatment Plant Hurricane Hardening Project. 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor McVoy and Commissioners Malega, 

Stokes and Diaz.. NAYS: None 

 

I. Work Order No. 10 with Globaltech, Inc. for Design-Build services for Radio System 

Upgrade Phase 2 – Lift Stations Project (1:53:19) 

 

Action: Motion made by Commissioner Malega and seconded by Commissioner Diaz to approve Work 

Order No. 10 with Globaltech, Inc. for Design-Build services for Radio System Upgrade Phase 

2 – Lift Stations Project. 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor McVoy and Commissioners Malega, 

Stokes and Diaz.. NAYS: None 

 

J. Task Order No. 02 with Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. for Nitrification Action Plan 

Phase 2 Project (1:53:37) 

 

Action: Motion made by Commissioner Diaz and seconded by Vice Mayor McVoy to approve Task 

Order No. 02 with Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. for Nitrification Action Plan Phase 2 

Project. 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor McVoy and Commissioners Malega, 

Stokes and Diaz.. NAYS: None 

 

K. Agreement with Close Construction Services for South Palm Park Stormwater Pump 

Station Project (1:54:29) 

 

Action: Motion made by Commissioner Diaz and seconded by Commissioner Malega to approve the 

Agreement with Close Construction Services for South Palm Park Stormwater Pump Station 

Project. 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor McVoy and Commissioners Malega, 

Stokes and Diaz.. NAYS: None 

 

L. Task Order No. 03 with Holtz Consulting Engineers, Inc. for South Palm Park Stormwater 

Pump Station Project (2:12:37) 

 

Action: Motion made by Commissioner Diaz and seconded by Vice Mayor McVoy to approve Task 

Order No. 03 with Holtz Consulting Engineers, Inc. for South Palm Park Stormwater Pump 

Station Project. 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor McVoy and Commissioners Malega, 

Stokes and Diaz.. NAYS: None 

 

ADJOURNMENT: (2:13:30) 

 



Pg. 5, Utility Meeting August 29, 2023 

 

Action:  Motion made by Commissioner Malega and seconded by Commissioner Stokes to adjourn the 

meeting at 8:18 PM. 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor McVoy and Commissioners Malega, 

Stokes and Diaz.. NAYS: None 
 

 
____________________________ 

Betty Resch, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 
 

______________________________ 

Melissa Ann Coyne, City Clerk 

 

Minutes Approved: September 26, 2023 

 

Item time stamps correspond to the meeting recording on YouTube.  



STAFF REPORT 
UTILITY MEETING 

 

AGENDA DATE: September 26, 2023 DEPARTMENT: Water Utilities 

TITLE: 

Amendment No. 1 to Agreement 22FRP69 between the Florida Department of Environmental Protection 
and the City of Lake Worth Beach 

 
SUMMARY: 

The First Amendment to the Agreement 22FPR69 between the Florida Department of Environmental 
Protection and the City provides for updates and revisions to the terms and conditions, and technical 
provisions of the original Agreement for the Lake Worth South Palm Park Sea Level Rise Mitigation 
project.   There is no fiscal impact resulting from this amendment. 

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

On July 5, 2022, the City Commission approved Resolution No. 40-2022 approving and authorizing the 
Vice Mayor to execute the Agreement 22FPR69 between the Florida Department of Environmental 
Protection (the “Department”) and the City for the Lake Worth Beach South Palm Park Sea Level Rise 
Mitigation project.  This Agreement set forth the terms and conditions for the use of $300,000 in funding 
assistance under the Resilient Florida Grant Program to implement mitigation measures to relieve the 
chronic flooding in the South Palm Park neighborhood.  The City is providing a local cost share of 
$300,000 for the project. 

Amendment No, 1 to the Project Agreement 22FPR69 contains updates, revisions and additions that the 
Department deemed necessary.  These revisions include the following: 

 Section 6 is revised to designate Ashley Larson as the Department’s Grant Manager; 

 Attachment 1, Standard Terms and Conditions is deleted in its entirety and replaced with 
Attachment 1-A, Revised Terms and Conditions 

 Attachment 2, Special Terms and Conditions is deleted in its entirety and replaced with 
Attachment 2-A, Revised Special Terms and Conditions; 

 Attachment 3, Grant Work Plan is deleted in its entirety and replaced with Attachment 3-A, 
Revised Grant Work Plan; 

 Attachment 5, Special Audit Requirements is deleted in its entirety and replaced with Attachment 
5-A, Revised Special Audit Requirements; 

 Attachment 6, Resilient Florida Program Specific Requirements is deleted in its entirety and 
replaced with Attachment 6-A, Revised Resilient Florida Specific Requirements; 

 Attachment 8, Contract Provisions SLFRF is deleted in its entirety and replaced with Attachment 
8-A, Revised Contract Provisions; 

 Exhibit A, Progress Report Form is deleted in its entirety and replaced with Exhibit A-1, Progress 
Report Form; and  

 Exhibit J, Common Carrier or Contracted Carrier Attestation Form (PURR 1808) is added to the 
Agreement.  (This form is not applicable to the City.) 

All other terms and conditions of the original Agreement remain valid and in effect. 



 

 

These revisions are essentially technical in nature and follow updates from the Office of the General 
Counsel..  Amendment No. 1 to the Agreement 22FPR69 has no fiscal impact on the project. 

 
MOTION: 

Move to approve/disapprove Amendment No. 1 to Agreement 22FPR69 between the Florida Department 
of Environmental Protection and the City. 

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Fiscal Impact Analysis – N/A 
Amendment No. 1 to Agreement 22FPR69 



DEP Agreement No. 22FRP69, Amendment No. 1, Page 1 of 3 

AMENDMENT NO. 1 
TO AGREEMENT NO. 22FRP69 

BETWEEN 
FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION 

AND 
CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH 

 
This Amendment to Agreement No. 22FRP69 (Agreement) is made by and between the Department of Environmental 
Protection (Department), an agency of the State of Florida, and City of Lake Worth Beach (Grantee), on the date last 
signed below.  
 
WHEREAS, the Department entered into the Agreement with the Grantee for Lake Worth Beach South Palm Park 
Sea Level Rise Mitigation (Project), effective July 29, 2022; and,  
 
WHEREAS, the DEPARTMENT has requested an update to Attachment 1, Attachment 2, Attachment 3, Attachment 
5, Attachment 6, Attachment 8, Exhibit A, and Exhibit F following updates from the Office of the General Counsel. 
 
WHEREAS, the Department has requested to add Exhibit J to the Agreement as set forth herein; and,  
 
WHEREAS, other changes to the Agreement are necessary. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, the Department and Grantee hereby agree as follows: 
 
1. Section 6. of the Standard Grant Agreement is hereby revised to the following: 
 

 Department’s Grant Manager 
 Name:     Ashley Larson 
 Address: Resilient Florida Program 
                2600 Blair Stone Road, MS235 
                Tallahassee, Florida 32399 
 Phone:    850-245-8675 
 Email:    ashley.m.larson@floridadep.gov 

 

2. Attachment 1, Standard Terms and Conditions, is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced with Attachment 
1-A, Revised Standard Terms and Conditions. All references in the Agreement to Attachment 1 shall 
hereinafter refer to Attachment 1-A, Revised Standard Terms and Conditions.  

3. Attachment 2, Special Terms and Conditions, is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced with Attachment 
2-A, Special Standard Terms and Conditions. All references in the Agreement to Attachment 2 shall 
hereinafter refer to Attachment 2-A, Revised Special Terms and Conditions. 

4. Attachment 3, Grant Work Plan, is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced with Attachment 3-A, Revised 
Grant Work Plan, as attached to this Amendment and hereby incorporated into the Agreement. All references 
in the Agreement to Attachment 3 shall hereinafter refer to Attachment 3-A, Revised Grant Work Plan. 

5. Attachment 5, Special Audit Requirements, is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced with Attachment 5-
A, Revised Special Audit Requirements, attached hereto and made a part of the Agreement. All references 
in the Agreement to Attachment 5, shall hereinafter refer to Attachment 5-A, Revised Special Audit 
Requirements. 

6. Attachment 6, Resilient Florida Program Specific Requirements is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced 
with Attachment 6-A, Revised Resilient Florida Program Specific Requirements, attached hereto and made 



DEP Agreement No. 22FRP69, Amendment No. 1, Page 2 of 3 

a part of the Agreement. All references in the Agreement to Attachment 6, shall hereinafter refer to 
Attachment 6-A, Revised Resilient Florida Program Specific Requirements. 

7. Attachment 8, Contract Provisions SLFRF is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced with Attachment 8-
A, Revised Contract Provisions SLFRF, attached hereto and made a part of the Agreement. All references in 
the Agreement to Attachment 8, shall hereinafter refer to Attachment 8-A, Revised Contract Provisions 
SLFRF. 

8. Exhibit A, Progress Report Form, is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced with Exhibit A-1, attached 
hereto and made a part of the Agreement. All references in the Agreement to Exhibit A shall hereinafter refer 
to Exhibit A-1. 

9. Exhibit F, Final Project Report, is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced with Exhibit F-1, attached hereto 
and made a part of the Agreement. All references in the Agreement to Exhibit F, shall hereinafter refer to 
Exhibit F-1. 

10. All other terms and conditions of the Agreement remain in effect.  If and to the extent that any inconsistency 
may appear between the Agreement and this Amendment, the provisions of this Amendment shall control. 

 
REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



DEP Agreement No. 22FRP69, Amendment No. 1, Page 3 of 3 

The parties agree to the terms and conditions of this Amendment and have duly authorized their respective 
representatives to sign it on the dates indicated below. 
 
CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH 

 
 
By:        
       Authorized Signature 
 
 
Betty Resch, Mayor 
Print Name and Title 
 
 
Date:       
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF 
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION 
 
 
By:        
       Secretary or Designee 
 
 
Alex Reed, Director 
Print Name and Title 
 
 
Date:       
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
List of attachments/exhibits included as part of this Amendment: 
 

Specify Type  Letter/ Number  Description 
Attachment  1-A  Revised Standard Terms and Conditions (13 pages) 
Attachment  2-A  Revised Special Terms and Conditions (3 pages) 
Attachment  3-A  Revised Grant Work Plan (2 pages) 
Attachment  5-A  Revised Special Audit Requirements (6 pages) 
Attachment  6-A  Revised Program Specific Requirement (2 pages) 
Attachment  8-A  Revised Contract Provisions SLFRF (6 pages) 

Exhibit  A-1  Revised Progress Report Form (1 page) 
Exhibit  F-1  Revised Final Progress Report (2 pages) 
Exhibit  J  PUR 1808 – Common Carrier Attestation (1 page) 

 



Attachment 1-A 
1 of 13 

Rev. 8/8/2023 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION 

REVISED STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
APPLICABLE TO GRANT AGREEMENTS 

ATTACHMENT 1-A 

1. Entire Agreement.
This Grant Agreement, including any Attachments and Exhibits referred to herein and/or attached hereto (Agreement),
constitutes the entire agreement between the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof and supersedes all prior
agreements, whether written or oral, with respect to such subject matter. Any terms and conditions included on
Grantee’s forms or invoices shall be null and void.
2. Grant Administration.
a. Order of Precedence. If there are conflicting provisions among the documents that make up the Agreement, the

order of precedence for interpretation of the Agreement is as follows:
i. Standard Grant Agreement

ii. Attachments other than Attachment 1, in numerical order as designated in the Standard Grant
Agreement

iii. Attachment 1, Standard Terms and Conditions
iv. The Exhibits in the order designated in the Standard Grant Agreement

b. All approvals, written or verbal, and other written communication among the parties, including all notices, shall
be obtained by or sent to the parties’ Grant Managers. All written communication shall be by electronic mail,
U.S. Mail, a courier delivery service, or delivered in person. Notices shall be considered delivered when reflected
by an electronic mail read receipt, a courier service delivery receipt, other mail service delivery receipt, or when
receipt is acknowledged by recipient. If the notice is delivered in multiple ways, the notice will be considered
delivered at the earliest delivery time.

c. If a different Grant Manager is designated by either party after execution of this Agreement, notice of the name
and contact information of the new Grant Manager will be submitted in writing to the other party and maintained
in the respective parties’ records. A change of Grant Manager does not require a formal amendment or change
order to the Agreement.

d. This Agreement may be amended, through a formal amendment or a change order, only by a written agreement
between both parties. A formal amendment to this Agreement is required for changes which cause any of the
following:
(1) an increase or decrease in the Agreement funding amount;
(2) a change in Grantee’s match requirements;
(3) a change in the expiration date of the Agreement; and/or
(4) changes to the cumulative amount of funding transfers between approved budget categories, as defined in
Attachment 3, Grant Work Plan, that exceeds or is expected to exceed twenty percent (20%) of the total budget
as last approved by Department.
A change order to this Agreement may be used when:
(1) task timelines within the current authorized Agreement period change;
(2) the cumulative transfer of funds between approved budget categories, as defined in Attachment 3, Grant Work
Plan, are less than twenty percent (20%) of the total budget as last approved by Department;
(3) changing the current funding source as stated in the Standard Grant Agreement; and/or
(4) fund transfers between budget categories for the purposes of meeting match requirements.
This Agreement may be amended to provide for additional services if additional funding is made available by the
Legislature.

e. All days in this Agreement are calendar days unless otherwise specified.
3. Agreement Duration.
The term of the Agreement shall begin and end on the dates indicated in the Standard Grant Agreement, unless
extended or terminated earlier in accordance with the applicable terms and conditions. The Grantee shall be eligible
for reimbursement for work performed on or after the date of execution through the expiration date of this Agreement,
unless otherwise specified in Attachment 2, Special Terms and Conditions. However, work performed prior to the
execution of this Agreement may be reimbursable or used for match purposes if permitted by the Special Terms and
Conditions.



Attachment 1-A 
2 of 13 

Rev. 8/8/2023 

 

4. Deliverables. 
The Grantee agrees to render the services or other units of deliverables as set forth in Attachment 3, Grant Work Plan. 
The services or other units of deliverables shall be delivered in accordance with the schedule and at the pricing outlined 
in the Grant Work Plan. Deliverables may be comprised of activities that must be completed prior to Department 
making payment on that deliverable. The Grantee agrees to perform in accordance with the terms and conditions set 
forth in this Agreement and all attachments and exhibits incorporated by the Standard Grant Agreement. 
5. Performance Measures. 
The Grantee warrants that: (1) the services will be performed by qualified personnel; (2) the services will be of the 
kind and quality described in the Grant Work Plan; (3) the services will be performed in a professional and 
workmanlike manner in accordance with industry standards and practices; (4) the services shall not and do not 
knowingly infringe upon the intellectual property rights, or any other proprietary rights, of any third party; and (5) its 
employees, subcontractors, and/or subgrantees shall comply with any security and safety requirements and processes, 
if provided by Department, for work done at the Project Location(s). The Department reserves the right to investigate 
or inspect at any time to determine whether the services or qualifications offered by Grantee meet the Agreement 
requirements. Notwithstanding any provisions herein to the contrary, written acceptance of a particular deliverable 
does not foreclose Department’s remedies in the event deficiencies in the deliverable cannot be readily measured at 
the time of delivery. 
6. Acceptance of Deliverables. 
a. Acceptance Process. All deliverables must be received and accepted in writing by Department’s Grant Manager 

before payment. The Grantee shall work diligently to correct all deficiencies in the deliverable that remain 
outstanding, within a reasonable time at Grantee’s expense. If Department’s Grant Manager does not accept the 
deliverables within 30 days of receipt, they will be deemed rejected. 

b. Rejection of Deliverables. The Department reserves the right to reject deliverables, as outlined in the Grant 
Work Plan, as incomplete, inadequate, or unacceptable due, in whole or in part, to Grantee’s lack of satisfactory 
performance under the terms of this Agreement. The Grantee’s efforts to correct the rejected deliverables will 
be at Grantee’s sole expense. Failure to fulfill the applicable technical requirements or complete all tasks or 
activities in accordance with the Grant Work Plan will result in rejection of the deliverable and the associated 
invoice. Payment for the rejected deliverable will not be issued unless the rejected deliverable is made 
acceptable to Department in accordance with the Agreement requirements. The Department, at its option, may 
allow additional time within which Grantee may remedy the objections noted by Department. The Grantee’s 
failure to make adequate or acceptable deliverables after a reasonable opportunity to do so shall constitute an 
event of default. 

7. Financial Consequences for Nonperformance. 
a. Withholding Payment. In addition to the specific consequences explained in the Grant Work Plan and/or 

Special Terms and Conditions, the State of Florida (State) reserves the right to withhold payment when the 
Grantee has failed to perform/comply with provisions of this Agreement. None of the financial consequences 
for nonperformance in this Agreement as more fully described in the Grant Work Plan shall be considered 
penalties. 

b. Invoice reduction 
If Grantee does not meet a deadline for any deliverable, the Department will reduce the invoice by 1% for each 
day the deadline is missed, unless an extension is approved in writing by the Department. 

c. Corrective Action Plan. If Grantee fails to correct all the deficiencies in a rejected deliverable within the specified 
timeframe, Department may, in its sole discretion, request that a proposed Corrective Action Plan (CAP) be 
submitted by Grantee to Department. The Department requests that Grantee specify the outstanding deficiencies 
in the CAP. All CAPs must be able to be implemented and performed in no more than sixty (60) calendar days. 

i. The Grantee shall submit a CAP within ten (10) days of the date of the written request from 
Department. The CAP shall be sent to the Department’s Grant Manager for review and approval. 
Within ten (10) days of receipt of a CAP, Department shall notify Grantee in writing whether the 
CAP proposed has been accepted. If the CAP is not accepted, Grantee shall have ten (10) days from 
receipt of Department letter rejecting the proposal to submit a revised proposed CAP. Failure to 
obtain Department approval of a CAP as specified above may result in Department’s termination of 
this Agreement for cause as authorized in this Agreement. 

ii. Upon Department’s notice of acceptance of a proposed CAP, Grantee shall have ten (10) days to 
commence implementation of the accepted plan. Acceptance of the proposed CAP by Department 
does not relieve Grantee of any of its obligations under the Agreement. In the event the CAP fails 
to correct or eliminate performance deficiencies by Grantee, Department shall retain the right to 



Attachment 1-A 
3 of 13 

Rev. 8/8/2023 

 

require additional or further remedial steps, or to terminate this Agreement for failure to perform. 
No actions approved by Department or steps taken by Grantee shall preclude Department from 
subsequently asserting any deficiencies in performance. The Grantee shall continue to implement 
the CAP until all deficiencies are corrected. Reports on the progress of the CAP will be made to 
Department as requested by Department’s Grant Manager. 

iii. Failure to respond to a Department request for a CAP or failure to correct a deficiency in the 
performance of the Agreement as specified by Department may result in termination of the 
Agreement. 

8. Payment. 
a. Payment Process. Subject to the terms and conditions established by the Agreement, the pricing per deliverable 

established by the Grant Work Plan, and the billing procedures established by Department, Department agrees 
to pay Grantee for services rendered in accordance with section 215.422, Florida Statutes (F.S.). 

b. Taxes. The Department is exempted from payment of State sales, use taxes and Federal excise taxes. The Grantee, 
however, shall not be exempted from paying any taxes that it is subject to, including State sales and use taxes, or 
for payment by Grantee to suppliers for taxes on materials used to fulfill its contractual obligations with 
Department. The Grantee shall not use Department's exemption number in securing such materials. The Grantee 
shall be responsible and liable for the payment of all its FICA/Social Security and other taxes resulting from this 
Agreement. 

c. Maximum Amount of Agreement. The maximum amount of compensation under this Agreement, without an 
amendment, is described in the Standard Grant Agreement. Any additional funds necessary for the completion of 
this Project are the responsibility of Grantee. 

d. Reimbursement for Costs. The Grantee shall be paid on a cost reimbursement basis for all eligible Project costs 
upon the completion, submittal, and approval of each deliverable identified in the Grant Work Plan. 
Reimbursement shall be requested on Exhibit C, Payment Request Summary Form. To be eligible for 
reimbursement, costs must be in compliance with laws, rules, and regulations applicable to expenditures of State 
funds, including, but not limited to, the Reference Guide for State Expenditures, which can be accessed at the 
following web address: https://www.myfloridacfo.com/docs-sf/accounting-and-auditing-libraries/state- 
agencies/reference-guide-for-state-expenditures.pdf. 

e. Invoice Detail. All charges for services rendered or for reimbursement of expenses authorized by Department 
pursuant to the Grant Work Plan shall be submitted to Department in sufficient detail for a proper pre-audit and 
post-audit to be performed. The Grantee shall only invoice Department for deliverables that are completed in 
accordance with the Grant Work Plan. 

f. State Funds Documentation. Pursuant to section 216.1366, F.S., if Contractor meets the definition of a non-profit 
organization under section 215.97(2)(m), F.S., Contractor must provide the Department with documentation that 
indicates the amount of state funds: 

i. Allocated to be used during the full term of the contract or agreement for remuneration to any 
member of the board of directors or an officer of Contractor. 

ii. Allocated under each payment by the public agency to be used for remuneration of any member of 
the board of directors or an officer of the Contractor. 

The documentation must indicate the amounts and recipients of the remuneration. Such information must be 
posted on the State’s the contract tracking system and maintained pursuant to section 215.985, F.S., and must be 
posted on the Contractor’s website, if Contractor maintains a website. 

g. Interim Payments. Interim payments may be made by Department, at its discretion, if the completion of 
deliverables to date have first been accepted in writing by Department's Grant Manager. 

h. Final Payment Request. A final payment request should be submitted to Department no later than sixty (60) days 
following the expiration date of the Agreement to ensure the availability of funds for payment. However, all 
work performed pursuant to the Grant Work Plan must be performed on or before the expiration date of the 
Agreement. 

i. Annual Appropriation Contingency. The State’s performance and obligation to pay under this Agreement is 
contingent upon an annual appropriation by the Legislature. This Agreement is not a commitment of future 
appropriations. Authorization for continuation and completion of work and any associated payments may be 
rescinded, with proper notice, at the discretion of Department if the Legislature reduces or eliminates 
appropriations. 

j. Interest Rates. All interest rates charged under the Agreement shall be calculated on the prevailing rate used by 
the State Board of Administration. To obtain the applicable interest rate, please refer to: 
https://www.myfloridacfo.com/division/aa/local-governments/judgement-interest-rates. 

https://www.myfloridacfo.com/docs-sf/accounting-and-auditing-libraries/state-agencies/reference-guide-for-state-expenditures.pdf
https://www.myfloridacfo.com/docs-sf/accounting-and-auditing-libraries/state-agencies/reference-guide-for-state-expenditures.pdf
https://www.myfloridacfo.com/division/aa/local-governments/judgement-interest-rates


Attachment 1-A 
4 of 13 

Rev. 8/8/2023 

 

k. Refund of Payments to the Department. Any balance of unobligated funds that have been advanced or paid must 
be refunded to Department. Any funds paid in excess of the amount to which Grantee or subgrantee is entitled 
under the terms of the Agreement must be refunded to Department. If this Agreement is funded with federal funds 
and the Department is required to refund the federal government, the Grantee shall refund the Department its 
share of those funds. 

9. Documentation Required for Cost Reimbursement Grant Agreements and Match. 
If Cost Reimbursement or Match is authorized in Attachment 2, Special Terms and Conditions, the following 
conditions apply. Supporting documentation must be provided to substantiate cost reimbursement or match 
requirements for the following budget categories: 
a. Salary/Wages. Grantee shall list personnel involved, position classification, direct salary rates, and hours spent 

on the Project in accordance with Attachment 3, Grant Work Plan in their documentation for reimbursement or 
match requirements. 

b. Overhead/Indirect/General and Administrative Costs. If Grantee is being reimbursed for or claiming match for 
multipliers, all multipliers used (i.e., fringe benefits, overhead, indirect, and/or general and administrative rates) 
shall be supported by audit. If Department determines that multipliers charged by Grantee exceeded the rates 
supported by audit, Grantee shall be required to reimburse such funds to Department within thirty (30) days of 
written notification. Interest shall be charged on the excessive rate. 

c. Contractual Costs (Subcontractors). Match or reimbursement requests for payments to subcontractors must be 
substantiated by copies of invoices with backup documentation identical to that required from Grantee. 
Subcontracts which involve payments for direct salaries shall clearly identify the personnel involved, salary rate 
per hour, and hours spent on the Project. All eligible multipliers used (i.e., fringe benefits, overhead, indirect, 
and/or general and administrative rates) shall be supported by audit. If Department determines that multipliers 
charged by any subcontractor exceeded the rates supported by audit, Grantee shall be required to reimburse such 
funds to Department within thirty (30) days of written notification. Interest shall be charged on the excessive 
rate. Nonconsumable and/or nonexpendable personal property or equipment costing $5,000 or more purchased 
for the Project under a subcontract is subject to the requirements set forth in chapters 273 and/or 274, F.S., and 
Chapter 69I-72, Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.) and/or Chapter 69I-73, F.A.C., as applicable. The Grantee 
shall be responsible for maintaining appropriate property records for any subcontracts that include the purchase 
of equipment as part of the delivery of services. The Grantee shall comply with this requirement and ensure its 
subcontracts issued under this Agreement, if any, impose this requirement, in writing, on its subcontractors. 

i. For fixed-price (vendor) subcontracts, the following provisions shall apply: The Grantee may 
award, on a competitive basis, fixed-price subcontracts to consultants/contractors in performing the 
work described in Attachment 3, Grant Work Plan. Invoices submitted to Department for fixed- 
price subcontracted activities shall be supported with a copy of the subcontractor’s invoice and a 
copy of the tabulation form for the competitive procurement process (e.g., Invitation to Bid, Request 
for Proposals, or other similar competitive procurement document) resulting in the fixed-price 
subcontract. The Grantee may request approval from Department to award a fixed-price subcontract 
resulting from procurement methods other than those identified above. In this instance, Grantee shall 
request the advance written approval from Department’s Grant Manager of the fixed price 
negotiated by Grantee. The letter of request shall be supported by a detailed budget and Scope of 
Services to be performed by the subcontractor. Upon receipt of Department Grant Manager’s 
approval of the fixed-price amount, Grantee may proceed in finalizing the fixed-price subcontract. 

ii. If the procurement is subject to the Consultant’s Competitive Negotiation Act under section 
287.055, F.S. or the Brooks Act, Grantee must provide documentation clearly evidencing it has 
complied with the statutory or federal requirements. 

d. Travel. All requests for match or reimbursement of travel expenses shall be in accordance with section 112.061, 
F.S. 

e. Direct Purchase Equipment. For the purposes of this Agreement, Equipment is defined as capital outlay costing 
$5,000 or more. Match or reimbursement for Grantee’s direct purchase of equipment is subject to specific 
approval of Department, and does not include any equipment purchased under the delivery of services to be 
completed by a subcontractor. Include copies of invoices or receipts to document purchases, and a properly 
completed Exhibit B, Property Reporting Form. 

f. Rental/Lease of Equipment. Match or reimbursement requests for rental/lease of equipment must include copies 
of invoices or receipts to document charges. 

g. Miscellaneous/Other Expenses. If miscellaneous or other expenses, such as materials, supplies, non-excluded 
phone expenses, reproduction, or mailing, are reimbursable or available for match or reimbursement under the 



Attachment 1-A 
5 of 13 

Rev. 8/8/2023 

 

terms of this Agreement, the documentation supporting these expenses must be itemized and include copies of 
receipts or invoices. Additionally, independent of Grantee’s contract obligations to its subcontractor, Department 
shall not reimburse any of the following types of charges: cell phone usage; attorney’s fees or court costs; civil 
or administrative penalties; or handling fees, such as set percent overages associated with purchasing supplies or 
equipment. 

h. Land Acquisition. Reimbursement for the costs associated with acquiring interest and/or rights to real property 
(including access rights through ingress/egress easements, leases, license agreements, or other site access 
agreements; and/or obtaining record title ownership of real property through purchase) must be supported by the 
following, as applicable: Copies of Property Appraisals, Environmental Site Assessments, Surveys and Legal 
Descriptions, Boundary Maps, Acreage Certification, Title Search Reports, Title Insurance, Closing 
Statements/Documents, Deeds, Leases, Easements, License Agreements, or other legal instrument documenting 
acquired property interest and/or rights. If land acquisition costs are used to meet match requirements, Grantee 
agrees that those funds shall not be used as match for any other Agreement supported by State or Federal funds. 

10. Status Reports. 
The Grantee shall submit status reports quarterly, unless otherwise specified in the Attachments, on Exhibit A, 
Progress Report Form, to Department’s Grant Manager describing the work performed during the reporting period, 
problems encountered, problem resolutions, scheduled updates, and proposed work for the next reporting period. 
Quarterly status reports are due no later than twenty (20) days following the completion of the quarterly reporting 
period. For the purposes of this reporting requirement, the quarterly reporting periods end on March 31, June 30, 
September 30 and December 31. The Department will review the required reports submitted by Grantee within thirty 
(30) days. 
11. Retainage. 
The following provisions apply if Department withholds retainage under this Agreement: 
a. The Department reserves the right to establish the amount and application of retainage on the work performed 

under this Agreement up to the maximum percentage described in Attachment 2, Special Terms and Conditions. 
Retainage may be withheld from each payment to Grantee pending satisfactory completion of work and approval 
of all deliverables. 

b. If Grantee fails to perform the requested work or fails to perform the work in a satisfactory manner, Grantee shall 
forfeit its right to payment of the retainage associated with the work. Failure to perform includes, but is not 
limited to, failure to submit the required deliverables or failure to provide adequate documentation that the work 
was actually performed. The Department shall provide written notification to Grantee of the failure to perform 
that shall result in retainage forfeiture. If the Grantee does not correct the failure to perform within the timeframe 
stated in Department’s notice, the retainage will be forfeited to Department. 

c. No retainage shall be released or paid for incomplete work while this Agreement is suspended. 
d. Except as otherwise provided above, Grantee shall be paid the retainage associated with the work, provided 

Grantee has completed the work and submits an invoice for retainage held in accordance with the invoicing 
procedures under this Agreement. 

12. Insurance. 
a. Insurance Requirements for Sub-Grantees and/or Subcontractors. The Grantee shall require its sub-grantees 

and/or subcontractors, if any, to maintain insurance coverage of such types and with such terms and limits as 
described in this Agreement. The Grantee shall require all its sub-grantees and/or subcontractors, if any, to 
make compliance with the insurance requirements of this Agreement a condition of all contracts that are related 
to this Agreement. Sub-grantees and/or subcontractors must provide proof of insurance upon request. 

b. Deductibles. The Department shall be exempt from, and in no way liable for, any sums of money representing a 
deductible in any insurance policy. The payment of such deductible shall be the sole responsibility of the 
Grantee providing such insurance. 

c. Proof of Insurance. Upon execution of this Agreement, Grantee shall provide Department documentation 
demonstrating the existence and amount for each type of applicable insurance coverage prior to performance of 
any work under this Agreement. Upon receipt of written request from Department, Grantee shall furnish 
Department with proof of applicable insurance coverage by standard form certificates of insurance, a self- 
insured authorization, or other certification of self-insurance. 

d. Duty to Maintain Coverage. In the event that any applicable coverage is cancelled by the insurer for any 
reason, or if Grantee cannot get adequate coverage, Grantee shall immediately notify Department of such 
cancellation and shall obtain adequate replacement coverage conforming to the requirements herein and provide 
proof of such replacement coverage within ten (10) days after the cancellation of coverage. 



Attachment 1-A 
6 of 13 

Rev. 8/8/2023 

 

e. Insurance Trust. If the Grantee’s insurance is provided through an insurance trust, the Grantee shall instead add 
the Department of Environmental Protection, its employees, and officers as an additional covered party 
everywhere the Agreement requires them to be added as an additional insured. 

13. Termination. 
a. Termination for Convenience. When it is in the State’s best interest, Department may, at its sole discretion, 

terminate the Agreement in whole or in part by giving 30 days’ written notice to Grantee. The Department shall 
notify Grantee of the termination for convenience with instructions as to the effective date of termination or the 
specific stage of work at which the Agreement is to be terminated. The Grantee must submit all invoices for 
work to be paid under this Agreement within thirty (30) days of the effective date of termination. The 
Department shall not pay any invoices received after thirty (30) days of the effective date of termination. 

b. Termination for Cause. The Department may terminate this Agreement if any of the events of default described 
in the Events of Default provisions below occur or in the event that Grantee fails to fulfill any of its other 
obligations under this Agreement. If, after termination, it is determined that Grantee was not in default, or that 
the default was excusable, the rights and obligations of the parties shall be the same as if the termination had 
been issued for the convenience of Department. The rights and remedies of Department in this clause are in 
addition to any other rights and remedies provided by law or under this Agreement. 

c. Grantee Obligations upon Notice of Termination. After receipt of a notice of termination or partial termination 
unless as otherwise directed by Department, Grantee shall not furnish any service or deliverable on the date, and 
to the extent specified, in the notice. However, Grantee shall continue work on any portion of the Agreement 
not terminated. If the Agreement is terminated before performance is completed, Grantee shall be paid only for 
that work satisfactorily performed for which costs can be substantiated. The Grantee shall not be entitled to 
recover any cancellation charges or lost profits. 

d. Continuation of Prepaid Services. If Department has paid for any services prior to the expiration, cancellation, 
or termination of the Agreement, Grantee shall continue to provide Department with those services for which it 
has already been paid or, at Department’s discretion, Grantee shall provide a refund for services that have been 
paid for but not rendered. 

e. Transition of Services Upon Termination, Expiration, or Cancellation of the Agreement. If services provided 
under the Agreement are being transitioned to another provider(s), Grantee shall assist in the smooth transition 
of Agreement services to the subsequent provider(s). This requirement is at a minimum an affirmative 
obligation to cooperate with the new provider(s), however additional requirements may be outlined in the Grant 
Work Plan. The Grantee shall not perform any services after Agreement expiration or termination, except as 
necessary to complete the transition or continued portion of the Agreement, if any. 

14. Notice of Default. 
If Grantee defaults in the performance of any covenant or obligation contained in the Agreement, including, any of 
the events of default, Department shall provide notice to Grantee and an opportunity to cure that is reasonable under 
the circumstances. This notice shall state the nature of the failure to perform and provide a time certain for correcting 
the failure. The notice will also provide that, should the Grantee fail to perform within the time provided, Grantee will 
be found in default, and Department may terminate the Agreement effective as of the date of receipt of the default 
notice. 
15. Events of Default. 
Provided such failure is not the fault of Department or outside the reasonable control of Grantee, the following non- 
exclusive list of events, acts, or omissions, shall constitute events of default: 
a. The commitment of any material breach of this Agreement by Grantee, including failure to timely deliver a 

material deliverable, failure to perform the minimal level of services required for a deliverable, discontinuance of 
the performance of the work, failure to resume work that has been discontinued within a reasonable time after 
notice to do so, or abandonment of the Agreement; 

b. The commitment of any material misrepresentation or omission in any materials, or discovery by the Department 
of such, made by the Grantee in this Agreement or in its application for funding; 

c. Failure to submit any of the reports required by this Agreement or having submitted any report with incorrect, 
incomplete, or insufficient information; 

d. Failure to honor any term of the Agreement; 
e. Failure to abide by any statutory, regulatory, or licensing requirement, including an entry of an order revoking 

the certificate of authority granted to the Grantee by a state or other licensing authority; 
f. Failure to pay any and all entities, individuals, and furnishing labor or materials, or failure to make payment to 

any other entities as required by this Agreement; 



Attachment 1-A 
7 of 13 

Rev. 8/8/2023 

 

g. Employment of an unauthorized alien in the performance of the work, in violation of Section 274 (A) of the 
Immigration and Nationality Act; 

h. Failure to maintain the insurance required by this Agreement; 
i. One or more of the following circumstances, uncorrected for more than thirty (30) days unless, within the 

specified 30-day period, Grantee (including its receiver or trustee in bankruptcy) provides to Department adequate 
assurances, reasonably acceptable to Department, of its continuing ability and willingness to fulfill its obligations 
under the Agreement: 

i. Entry of an order for relief under Title 11 of the United States Code; 
ii. The making by Grantee of a general assignment for the benefit of creditors; 

iii. The appointment of a general receiver or trustee in bankruptcy of Grantee’s business or property; 
and/or 

iv. An action by Grantee under any state insolvency or similar law for the purpose of its bankruptcy, 
reorganization, or liquidation. 

16. Suspension of Work. 
The Department may, in its sole discretion, suspend any or all activities under the Agreement, at any time, when it is 
in the best interest of the State to do so. The Department shall provide Grantee written notice outlining the particulars 
of suspension. Examples of reasons for suspension include, but are not limited to, budgetary constraints, declaration 
of emergency, or other such circumstances. After receiving a suspension notice, Grantee shall comply with the notice. 
Within 90 days, or any longer period agreed to by the parties, Department shall either: (1) issue a notice authorizing 
resumption of work, at which time activity shall resume; or (2) terminate the Agreement. If the Agreement is 
terminated after 30 days of suspension, the notice of suspension shall be deemed to satisfy the thirty (30) days’ notice 
required for a notice of termination for convenience. Suspension of work shall not entitle Grantee to any additional 
compensation. 
17. Force Majeure. 
The Grantee shall not be responsible for delay resulting from its failure to perform if neither the fault nor the negligence 
of Grantee or its employees or agents contributed to the delay and the delay is due directly to acts of God, wars, acts 
of public enemies, strikes, fires, floods, or other similar cause wholly beyond Grantee’s control, or for any of the 
foregoing that affect subcontractors or suppliers if no alternate source of supply is available to Grantee. In case of 
any delay Grantee believes is excusable, Grantee shall notify Department in writing of the delay or potential delay 
and describe the cause of the delay either (1) within ten days after the cause that creates or will create the delay first 
arose, if Grantee could reasonably foresee that a delay could occur as a result; or (2) if delay is not reasonably 
foreseeable, within five days after the date Grantee first had reason to believe that a delay could result. THE 
FOREGOING SHALL CONSTITUTE THE GRANTEE’S SOLE REMEDY OR EXCUSE WITH RESPECT 
TO DELAY. Providing notice in strict accordance with this paragraph is a condition precedent to such remedy. No 
claim for damages, other than for an extension of time, shall be asserted against Department. The Grantee shall not be 
entitled to an increase in the Agreement price or payment of any kind from Department for direct, indirect, 
consequential, impact or other costs, expenses or damages, including but not limited to costs of acceleration or 
inefficiency, arising because of delay, disruption, interference, or hindrance from any cause whatsoever. If 
performance is suspended or delayed, in whole or in part, due to any of the causes described in this paragraph, after 
the causes have ceased to exist Grantee shall perform at no increased cost, unless Department determines, in its sole 
discretion, that the delay will significantly impair the value of the Agreement to Department, in which case Department 
may: (1) accept allocated performance or deliveries from Grantee, provided that Grantee grants preferential treatment 
to Department with respect to products subjected to allocation; (2) contract with other sources (without recourse to 
and by Grantee for the related costs and expenses) to replace all or part of the products or services that are the subject 
of the delay, which purchases may be deducted from the Agreement quantity; or (3) terminate Agreement in whole or 
in part. 
18. Indemnification. 
a. The Grantee shall be fully liable for the actions of its agents, employees, partners, or subcontractors and shall 

fully indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Department and its officers, agents, and employees, from suits, 
actions, damages, and costs of every name and description arising from or relating to: 

i. personal injury and damage to real or personal tangible property alleged to be caused in whole or in 
part by Grantee, its agents, employees, partners, or subcontractors; provided, however, that Grantee 
shall not indemnify for that portion of any loss or damages proximately caused by the negligent act 
or omission of Department; 

ii. the Grantee’s breach of this Agreement or the negligent acts or omissions of Grantee. 



Attachment 1-A 
8 of 13 

Rev. 8/8/2023 

 

b. The Grantee’s obligations under the preceding paragraph with respect to any legal action are contingent upon 
Department giving Grantee: (1) written notice of any action or threatened action; (2) the opportunity to take over 
and settle or defend any such action at Grantee’s sole expense; and (3) assistance in defending the action at 
Grantee’s sole expense. The Grantee shall not be liable for any cost, expense, or compromise incurred or made 
by Department in any legal action without Grantee’s prior written consent, which shall not be unreasonably 
withheld. 

c. Notwithstanding sections a. and b. above, the following is the sole indemnification provision that applies to 
Grantees that are governmental entities: Each party hereto agrees that it shall be solely responsible for the 
negligent or wrongful acts of its employees and agents. However, nothing contained herein shall constitute a 
waiver by either party of its sovereign immunity or the provisions of section 768.28, F.S. Further, nothing herein 
shall be construed as consent by a state agency or subdivision of the State to be sued by third parties in any matter 
arising out of any contract or this Agreement. 

d. No provision in this Agreement shall require Department to hold harmless or indemnify Grantee, insure or assume 
liability for Grantee’s negligence, waive Department’s sovereign immunity under the laws of Florida, or 
otherwise impose liability on Department for which it would not otherwise be responsible. Any provision, 
implication or suggestion to the contrary is null and void. 

19. Limitation of Liability. 
The Department’s liability for any claim arising from this Agreement is limited to compensatory damages in an amount 
no greater than the sum of the unpaid balance of compensation due for goods or services rendered pursuant to and in 
compliance with the terms of the Agreement. Such liability is further limited to a cap of $100,000. 
20. Remedies. 
Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to make Grantee liable for force majeure events. Nothing in this 
Agreement, including financial consequences for nonperformance, shall limit Department’s right to pursue its 
remedies for other types of damages under the Agreement, at law or in equity. The Department may, in addition to 
other remedies available to it, at law or in equity and upon notice to Grantee, retain such monies from amounts due 
Grantee as may be necessary to satisfy any claim for damages, penalties, costs and the like asserted by or against it. 
21. Waiver. 
The delay or failure by Department to exercise or enforce any of its rights under this Agreement shall not constitute 
or be deemed a waiver of Department’s right thereafter to enforce those rights, nor shall any single or partial exercise 
of any such right preclude any other or further exercise thereof or the exercise of any other right. 
22. Statutory Notices Relating to Unauthorized Employment and Subcontracts. 
a. The Department shall consider the employment by any Grantee of unauthorized aliens a violation of Section 

274A(e) of the Immigration and Nationality Act. If Grantee/subcontractor knowingly employs unauthorized 
aliens, such violation shall be cause for unilateral cancellation of this Agreement. The Grantee shall be responsible 
for including this provision in all subcontracts with private organizations issued as a result of this Agreement. 

b. Pursuant to sections 287.133, 287.134, and 287.137 F.S., the following restrictions apply to persons placed on 
the convicted vendor list, discriminatory vendor list, or the antitrust violator vendor list: 

i. Public Entity Crime. A person or affiliate who has been placed on the convicted vendor list 
following a conviction for a public entity crime may not submit a bid, proposal, or reply on a contract 
to provide any goods or services to a public entity; may not submit a bid, proposal, or reply on a 
contract with a public entity for the construction or repair of a public building or public work; may 
not submit bids, proposals, or replies on leases of real property to a public entity; may not be awarded 
or perform work as a Grantee, supplier, subcontractor, or consultant under a contract with any public 
entity; and may not transact business with any public entity in excess of the threshold amount 
provided in section 287.017, F.S., for CATEGORY TWO for a period of 36 months following the 
date of being placed on the convicted vendor list. 

ii. Discriminatory Vendors. An entity or affiliate who has been placed on the discriminatory vendor 
list may not submit a bid, proposal, or reply on a contract to provide any goods or services to a 
public entity; may not submit a bid, proposal, or reply on a contract with a public entity for the 
construction or repair of a public building or public work; may not submit bids, proposals, or replies 
on leases of real property to a public entity; may not be awarded or perform work as a contractor, 
supplier, subcontractor, or consultant under a contract with any public entity; and may not transact 
business with any public entity. 

iii. Antitrust Violator Vendors. A person or an affiliate who has been placed on the antitrust violator 
vendor list following a conviction or being held civilly liable for an antitrust violation may not 
submit a bid, proposal, or reply on any contract to provide any good or services to a public entity; 



Attachment 1-A 
9 of 13 

Rev. 8/8/2023 

 

may not submit a bid, proposal, or reply on any contract with a public entity for the construction or 
repair of a public building or public work; may not submit a bid, proposal, or reply on leases of real 
property to a public entity; may not be awarded or perform work as a Grantee, supplier, 
subcontractor, or consultant under a contract with a public entity; and may not transact new business 
with a public entity. 

iv. Notification. The Grantee shall notify Department if it or any of its suppliers, subcontractors, or 
consultants have been placed on the convicted vendor list, the discriminatory vendor list, or antitrust 
violator vendor list during the life of the Agreement. The Florida Department of Management 
Services is responsible for maintaining the discriminatory vendor list and the antitrust violator 
vendor list and posts the list on its website. Questions regarding the discriminatory vendor list or 
antitrust violator vendor list may be directed to the Florida Department of Management Services, 
Office of Supplier Diversity, at (850) 487-0915. 

23. Compliance with Federal, State and Local Laws. 
a. The Grantee and all its agents shall comply with all federal, state and local regulations, including, but not limited 

to, nondiscrimination, wages, social security, workers’ compensation, licenses, and registration requirements. 
The Grantee shall include this provision in all subcontracts issued as a result of this Agreement. 

b. No person, on the grounds of race, creed, color, religion, national origin, age, gender, or disability, shall be 
excluded from participation in; be denied the proceeds or benefits of; or be otherwise subjected to discrimination 
in performance of this Agreement. 

c. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Florida. 
d. Any dispute concerning performance of the Agreement shall be processed as described herein. Jurisdiction for 

any damages arising under the terms of the Agreement will be in the courts of the State, and venue will be in the 
Second Judicial Circuit, in and for Leon County. Except as otherwise provided by law, the parties agree to be 
responsible for their own attorney fees incurred in connection with disputes arising under the terms of this 
Agreement. 

24. Build America, Buy America Act (BABA) - Infrastructure Projects with Federal Funding. 
This provision does not apply to Agreements that are wholly funded by Coronavirus State and Local 
Fiscal Recovery Funds under the American Rescue Plan Act. Also, this provision does not apply where 
there is a valid waiver in place. However, the provision may apply to funds expended before the waiver 
or after expiration of the waiver. 
If applicable, Recipients or Subrecipients of an award of Federal financial assistance from a program for 
infrastructure are required to comply with the Build America, Buy America Act (BABA), including the 
following provisions: 

a. All iron and steel used in the project are produced in the United States--this means all manufacturing processes, 
from the initial melting stage through the application of coatings, occurred in the United States; 

b. All manufactured products used in the project are produced in the United States-this means the manufactured 
product was manufactured in the United States; and the cost of the components of the manufactured product 
that are mined, produced, or manufactured in the United States is greater than 55 percent of the total cost of all 
components of the manufactured product, unless another standard for determining the minimum amount of 
domestic content of the manufactured product has been established under applicable law or regulation; and 

c. All construction materials are manufactured in the United States-this means that all manufacturing processes for 
the construction material occurred in the United States. 
The Buy America preference only applies to articles, materials, and supplies that are consumed in, incorporated 
into, or affixed to an infrastructure project. As such, it does not apply to tools, equipment, and supplies, such as 
temporary scaffolding, brought to the construction site and removed at or before the completion of the 
infrastructure project. Nor does a Buy America preference apply to equipment and furnishings, such as movable 
chairs, desks, and portable computer equipment, that are used at or within the finished infrastructure project but 
are not an integral part of the structure or permanently affixed to the infrastructure project. 

25. Investing in America 
Grantees of an award for construction projects in whole or in part by the Bipartisan Infrastructure Law or the 
Inflation Reduction Act, including the following provision: 

a. Signage Requirements 
a. Investing in America Emblem: The recipient will ensure that a sign is placed at construction 
sites supported in whole or in part by this award displaying the official Investing in America 
emblem and must identify the project as a “project funded by President Biden’s Bipartisan 



Attachment 1-A 
10 of 13 

Rev. 8/8/2023 

 

Infrastructure Law” or “project funded by President Biden’s Inflation Reduction Act” as 
applicable. The sign must be placed at construction sites in an easily visible location that can be 
directly linked to the work taking place and must be maintained in good condition throughout the 
construction period. 
The recipient will ensure compliance with the guidelines and design specifications provided by 
EPA for using the official Investing in America emblem available at: 
https://www.epa.gov/invest/investing-america-signage. 
b. Procuring Signs: Consistent with section 6002 of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. 6962, and 2 CFR 200.323, 
recipients are encouraged to use recycled or recovered materials when procuring signs. Signage 
costs are considered an allowable cost under this assistance agreement provided that the costs 
associated with signage are reasonable. Additionally, to increase public awareness of projects 
serving communities where English is not the predominant language, recipients are encouraged to 
translate the language on signs (excluding the official Investing in America emblem or EPA logo 
or seal) into the appropriate non-English language(s). The costs of such translation are allowable, 
provided the costs are reasonable. 

26. Scrutinized Companies. 
a. Grantee certifies that it is not on the Scrutinized Companies that Boycott Israel List or engaged in a 

boycott of Israel. Pursuant to section 287.135, F.S., the Department may immediately terminate this 
Agreement at its sole option if the Grantee is found to have submitted a false certification; or if the 
Grantee is placed on the Scrutinized Companies that Boycott Israel List or is engaged in the boycott 
of Israel during the term of the Agreement. 

b. If this Agreement is for more than one million dollars, the Grantee certifies that it is also not on the 
Scrutinized Companies with Activities in Sudan, Scrutinized Companies with Activities in the Iran 
Petroleum Energy Sector List, or engaged with business operations in Cuba or Syria as identified in 
section 287.135, F.S. Pursuant to section 287.135, F.S., the Department may immediately terminate 
this Agreement at its sole option if the Grantee is found to have submitted a false certification; or if 
the Grantee is placed on the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in Sudan List, or Scrutinized 
Companies with Activities in the Iran Petroleum Energy Sector List, or engaged with business 
operations in Cuba or Syria during the term of the Agreement. 

c. As provided in subsection 287.135(8), F.S., if federal law ceases to authorize these contracting 
prohibitions, then they shall become inoperative. 

27. Lobbying and Integrity. 
The Grantee agrees that no funds received by it under this Agreement will be expended for the purpose of lobbying 
the Legislature or a State agency pursuant to section 216.347, F.S., except that pursuant to the requirements of section 
287.058(6), F.S., during the term of any executed agreement between Grantee and the State, Grantee may lobby the 
executive or legislative branch concerning the scope of services, performance, term, or compensation regarding that 
agreement. The Grantee shall comply with sections 11.062 and 216.347, F.S. 
28. Record Keeping. 
The Grantee shall maintain books, records and documents directly pertinent to performance under this Agreement in 
accordance with United States generally accepted accounting principles (US GAAP) consistently applied. The 
Department, the State, or their authorized representatives shall have access to such records for audit purposes during 
the term of this Agreement and for five (5) years following the completion date or termination of the Agreement. In 
the event that any work is subcontracted, Grantee shall similarly require each subcontractor to maintain and allow 
access to such records for audit purposes. Upon request of Department’s Inspector General, or other authorized 
State official, Grantee shall provide any type of information the Inspector General deems relevant to Grantee’s 
integrity or responsibility. Such information may include, but shall not be limited to, Grantee’s business or financial 
records, documents, or files of any type or form that refer to or relate to Agreement. The Grantee shall retain such 
records for the longer of: (1) three years after the expiration of the Agreement; or (2) the period required by the 
General Records Schedules maintained by the Florida Department of State (available at: 
http://dos.myflorida.com/library-archives/records-management/general-records-schedules/). 
29. Audits. 
a. Inspector General. The Grantee understands its duty, pursuant to section 20.055(5), F.S., to cooperate with the 

inspector general in any investigation, audit, inspection, review, or hearing. The Grantee will comply with this 
duty and ensure that its sub-grantees and/or subcontractors issued under this Agreement, if any, impose this 
requirement, in writing, on its sub-grantees and/or subcontractors, respectively. 

https://www.epa.gov/invest/investing-america-signage
http://dos.myflorida.com/library-archives/records-management/general-records-schedules/


Attachment 1-A 
11 of 13 

Rev. 8/8/2023 

 

b. Physical Access and Inspection. Department personnel shall be given access to and may observe and inspect 
work being performed under this Agreement, with reasonable notice and during normal business hours, including 
by any of the following methods: 

i. Grantee shall provide access to any location or facility on which Grantee is performing work, or 
storing or staging equipment, materials or documents; 

ii. Grantee shall permit inspection of any facility, equipment, practices, or operations required in 
performance of any work pursuant to this Agreement; and, 

iii. Grantee shall allow and facilitate sampling and monitoring of any substances, soils, materials or 
parameters at any location reasonable or necessary to assure compliance with any work or legal 
requirements pursuant to this Agreement. 

c. Special Audit Requirements. The Grantee shall comply with the applicable provisions contained in Attachment 
5, Special Audit Requirements. Each amendment that authorizes a funding increase or decrease shall include an 
updated copy of Exhibit 1, to Attachment 5. If Department fails to provide an updated copy of Exhibit 1 to include 
in each amendment that authorizes a funding increase or decrease, Grantee shall request one from the 
Department’s Grants Manager. The Grantee shall consider the type of financial assistance (federal and/or state) 
identified in Attachment 5, Exhibit 1 and determine whether the terms of Federal and/or Florida Single Audit Act 
Requirements may further apply to lower tier transactions that may be a result of this Agreement. For federal 
financial assistance, Grantee shall utilize the guidance provided under 2 CFR §200.331 for determining whether 
the relationship represents that of a subrecipient or vendor. For State financial assistance, Grantee shall utilize the 
form entitled “Checklist for Nonstate Organizations Recipient/Subrecipient vs Vendor Determination” (form 
number DFS-A2-NS) that can be found under the “Links/Forms” section appearing at the following website: 
https:\\apps.fldfs.com\fsaa. 

d. Proof of Transactions. In addition to documentation provided to support cost reimbursement as described herein, 
Department may periodically request additional proof of a transaction to evaluate the appropriateness of costs to 
the Agreement pursuant to State guidelines (including cost allocation guidelines) and federal, if applicable. 
Allowable costs and uniform administrative requirements for federal programs can be found under 2 CFR 
200. The Department may also request a cost allocation plan in support of its multipliers (overhead, indirect, 
general administrative costs, and fringe benefits). The Grantee must provide the additional proof within thirty 
(30) days of such request. 

e. No Commingling of Funds. The accounting systems for all Grantees must ensure that these funds are not 
commingled with funds from other agencies. Funds from each agency must be accounted for separately. Grantees 
are prohibited from commingling funds on either a program-by-program or a project-by-project basis. Funds 
specifically budgeted and/or received for one project may not be used to support another project. Where a 
Grantee's, or subrecipient's, accounting system cannot comply with this requirement, Grantee, or subrecipient, 
shall establish a system to provide adequate fund accountability for each project it has been awarded. 

i. If Department finds that these funds have been commingled, Department shall have the right to 
demand a refund, either in whole or in part, of the funds provided to Grantee under this Agreement 
for non-compliance with the material terms of this Agreement. The Grantee, upon such written 
notification from Department shall refund, and shall forthwith pay to Department, the amount of 
money demanded by Department. Interest on any refund shall be calculated based on the prevailing 
rate used by the State Board of Administration. Interest shall be calculated from the date(s) the 
original payment(s) are received from Department by Grantee to the date repayment is made by 
Grantee to Department. 

ii. In the event that the Grantee recovers costs, incurred under this Agreement and reimbursed by 
Department, from another source(s), Grantee shall reimburse Department for all recovered funds 
originally provided under this Agreement and interest shall be charged for those recovered costs as 
calculated on from the date(s) the payment(s) are recovered by Grantee to the date repayment is 
made to Department. 

iii. Notwithstanding the requirements of this section, the above restrictions on commingling funds do 
not apply to agreements where payments are made purely on a cost reimbursement basis. 

30. Conflict of Interest. 
The Grantee covenants that it presently has no interest and shall not acquire any interest which would conflict in any 
manner or degree with the performance of services required. 
31. Independent Contractor. 
The Grantee is an independent contractor and is not an employee or agent of Department. 
32. Subcontracting. 

https://apps.fldfs.com/fsaa


Attachment 1-A 
12 of 13 

Rev. 8/8/2023 

 

a. Unless otherwise specified in the Special Terms and Conditions, all services contracted for are to be performed 
solely by Grantee. 

b. The Department may, for cause, require the replacement of any Grantee employee, subcontractor, or agent. For 
cause, includes, but is not limited to, technical or training qualifications, quality of work, change in security status, 
or non-compliance with an applicable Department policy or other requirement. 

c. The Department may, for cause, deny access to Department’s secure information or any facility by any Grantee 
employee, subcontractor, or agent. 

d. The Department’s actions under paragraphs b. or c. shall not relieve Grantee of its obligation to perform all work 
in compliance with the Agreement. The Grantee shall be responsible for the payment of all monies due under any 
subcontract. The Department shall not be liable to any subcontractor for any expenses or liabilities incurred under 
any subcontract and Grantee shall be solely liable to the subcontractor for all expenses and liabilities incurred 
under any subcontract. 

e. The Department will not deny Grantee’s employees, subcontractors, or agents access to meetings within the 
Department’s facilities, unless the basis of Department’s denial is safety or security considerations. 

f. The Department supports diversity in its procurement program and requests that all subcontracting opportunities 
afforded by this Agreement embrace diversity enthusiastically. The award of subcontracts should reflect the full 
diversity of the citizens of the State. A list of minority-owned firms that could be offered subcontracting 
opportunities may be obtained by contacting the Office of Supplier Diversity at (850) 487-0915. 

g. The Grantee shall not be liable for any excess costs for a failure to perform, if the failure to perform is caused by 
the default of a subcontractor at any tier, and if the cause of the default is completely beyond the control of both 
Grantee and the subcontractor(s), and without the fault or negligence of either, unless the subcontracted products 
or services were obtainable from other sources in sufficient time for Grantee to meet the required delivery 
schedule. 

33. Guarantee of Parent Company. 
If Grantee is a subsidiary of another corporation or other business entity, Grantee asserts that its parent company will 
guarantee all of the obligations of Grantee for purposes of fulfilling the obligations of Agreement. In the event Grantee 
is sold during the period the Agreement is in effect, Grantee agrees that it will be a requirement of sale that the new 
parent company guarantee all of the obligations of Grantee. 
34. Survival. 
The respective obligations of the parties, which by their nature would continue beyond the termination or expiration 
of this Agreement, including without limitation, the obligations regarding confidentiality, proprietary interests, and 
public records, shall survive termination, cancellation, or expiration of this Agreement. 
35. Third Parties. 
The Department shall not be deemed to assume any liability for the acts, failures to act or negligence of Grantee, its 
agents, servants, and employees, nor shall Grantee disclaim its own negligence to Department or any third party. This 
Agreement does not and is not intended to confer any rights or remedies upon any person other than the parties. If 
Department consents to a subcontract, Grantee will specifically disclose that this Agreement does not create any third- 
party rights. Further, no third parties shall rely upon any of the rights and obligations created under this Agreement. 
36. Severability. 
If a court of competent jurisdiction deems any term or condition herein void or unenforceable, the other provisions 
are severable to that void provision, and shall remain in full force and effect. 
37. Grantee’s Employees, Subcontractors and Agents. 
All Grantee employees, subcontractors, or agents performing work under the Agreement shall be properly trained 
technicians who meet or exceed any specified training qualifications. Upon request, Grantee shall furnish a copy of 
technical certification or other proof of qualification. All employees, subcontractors, or agents performing work under 
Agreement must comply with all security and administrative requirements of Department and shall comply with all 
controlling laws and regulations relevant to the services they are providing under the Agreement. 
38. Assignment. 
The Grantee shall not sell, assign, or transfer any of its rights, duties, or obligations under the Agreement, or under 
any purchase order issued pursuant to the Agreement, without the prior written consent of Department. In the event 
of any assignment, Grantee remains secondarily liable for performance of the Agreement, unless Department expressly 
waives such secondary liability. The Department may assign the Agreement with prior written notice to Grantee of its 
intent to do so. 
39. Compensation Report. 
If this Agreement is a sole-source, public-private agreement or if the Grantee, through this agreement with the State, 
annually receive 50% or more of their budget from the State or from a combination of State and Federal funds, the 



Attachment 1-A 
13 of 13 

Rev. 8/8/2023 

 

Grantee shall provide an annual report, including the most recent IRS Form 990, detailing the total compensation for 
the entities' executive leadership teams. Total compensation shall include salary, bonuses, cashed-in leave, cash 
equivalents, severance pay, retirement benefits, deferred compensation, real-property gifts, and any other payout. 
The Grantee must also inform the Department of any changes in total executive compensation between the annual 
reports. All compensation reports must indicate what percent of compensation comes directly from the State or 
Federal allocations to the Grantee. 
40. Execution in Counterparts and Authority to Sign. 
This Agreement, any amendments, and/or change orders related to the Agreement, may be executed in counterparts, 
each of which shall be an original and all of which shall constitute the same instrument. In accordance with the 
Electronic Signature Act of 1996, electronic signatures, including facsimile transmissions, may be used and shall have 
the same force and effect as a written signature. Each person signing this Agreement warrants that he or she is duly 
authorized to do so and to bind the respective party to the Agreement. 



Attachment 2-A 
1 of 3 

Rev. 8/8/2023 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION 

Revised Special Terms and Conditions 
AGREEMENT NO. 22FRP69 

 
ATTACHMENT 2-A 

 
These Special Terms and Conditions shall be read together with general terms outlined in the Standard Terms and 
Conditions, Attachment 1. Where in conflict, these more specific terms shall apply.  
 
1. Scope of Work.  
The Project funded under this Agreement is Lake Worth Beach South Palm Park Sea Level Rise Mitigation. The 
Project is defined in more detail in Attachment 3, Grant Work Plan.  
 
2. Duration. 
a. Reimbursement Period. The reimbursement period for this Agreement is the same as the term of the Agreement. 
b. Extensions. There are extensions available for this Project. 
c. Service Periods. Additional service periods may be added in accordance with 2.a above and are contingent upon 

proper and satisfactory technical and administrative performance by the Grantee and the availability of funding. 
 
3. Payment Provisions. 
a. Compensation. This is a cost reimbursement Agreement. The Grantee shall be compensated under this 

Agreement as described in Attachment 3. 
b. Invoicing. Invoicing will occur as indicated in Attachment 3. 
c. Advance Pay. Advance Pay is not authorized under this Agreement. 
 
4. Cost Eligible for Reimbursement or Matching Requirements.  
Reimbursement for costs or availability for costs to meet matching requirements shall be limited to the following 
budget categories, as defined in the Reference Guide for State Expenditures, as indicated: 
 

Reimbursement Match Category 
☐ ☐ Salaries/Wages 

  Overhead/Indirect/General and Administrative Costs: 
☐ ☐ a. Fringe Benefits, N/A. 
☐ ☐ b. Indirect Costs, N/A.  
☒ ☒ Contractual (Subcontractors) 
☐ ☐ Travel, in accordance with Section 112, F.S. 
☐ ☐ Equipment 
☐ ☐ Rental/Lease of Equipment   
☐ ☐ Miscellaneous/Other Expenses 
☐ ☐ Land Acquisition 

 
 
5. Equipment Purchase. 
No Equipment purchases shall be funded under this Agreement. 
 
6. Land Acquisition. 
There will be no Land Acquisitions funded under this Agreement. 

7. Match Requirements 
The Agreement requires at least a 50% match on the part of the Grantee.  Therefore, the Grantee is responsible for 
providing $300,000 through cash or third party in-kind towards the project funded under this Agreement.   

The Grantee may claim allowable project expenditures made Choose an item or after for purposes of meeting its 
match requirement as identified above. 



Attachment 2-A 
2 of 3 

Rev. 8/8/2023 

Each payment request submitted shall document all matching funds and/or match efforts (i.e., in-kind services) 
provided during the period covered by each request. The final payment will not be processed until the match 
requirement has been met. 

8. Insurance Requirements 
Required Coverage.  At all times during the Agreement the Grantee, at its sole expense, shall maintain insurance 
coverage of such types and with such terms and limits described below.  The limits of coverage under each policy 
maintained by the Grantee shall not be interpreted as limiting the Grantee’s liability and obligations under the 
Agreement.  All insurance policies shall be through insurers licensed and authorized to issue policies in Florida, or 
alternatively, Grantee may provide coverage through a self-insurance program established and operating under the 
laws of Florida. Additional insurance requirements for this Agreement may be required elsewhere in this 
Agreement, however the minimum insurance requirements applicable to this Agreement are: 

a. Commercial General Liability Insurance. 
The Grantee shall provide adequate commercial general liability insurance coverage and hold such liability 
insurance at all times during the Agreement.  The Department, its employees, and officers shall be named 
as an additional insured on any general liability policies.  The minimum limits shall be $250,000 for each 
occurrence and $500,000 policy aggregate. 

b. Commercial Automobile Insurance. 
If the Grantee’s duties include the use of a commercial vehicle, the Grantee shall maintain automobile 
liability, bodily injury, and property damage coverage.  Insuring clauses for both bodily injury and property 
damage shall provide coverage on an occurrence basis. The Department, its employees, and officers shall 
be named as an additional insured on any automobile insurance policy.  The minimum limits shall be as 
follows: 

$200,000/300,000 Automobile Liability for Company-Owned Vehicles, if applicable 
$200,000/300,000 Hired and Non-owned Automobile Liability Coverage 

c. Workers’ Compensation and Employer’s Liability Coverage. 
The Grantee shall provide workers’ compensation, in accordance with Chapter 440, F.S. and employer 
liability coverage with minimum limits of $100,000 per accident, $100,000 per person, and $500,000 
policy aggregate.  Such policies shall cover all employees engaged in any work under the Grant. 

d. Other Insurance. None. 
 
9. Quality Assurance Requirements.  
There are no special Quality Assurance requirements under this Agreement. 
 
10. Retainage. 
Retainage is permitted under this Agreement.  Retainage may be up to a maximum of 5% of the total amount of the 
Agreement. 
 
11. Subcontracting.  
The Grantee may subcontract work under this Agreement without the prior written consent of the Department’s 
Grant Manager except for certain fixed-price subcontracts pursuant to this Agreement, which require prior approval. 
The Grantee shall submit a copy of the executed subcontract to the Department prior to submitting any invoices for 
subcontracted work.  Regardless of any subcontract, the Grantee is ultimately responsible for all work to be 
performed under this Agreement. 
 
12. State-owned Land. 
The work will not be performed on State-owned land. 
 
13. Office of Policy and Budget Reporting. 
There are no special Office of Policy and Budget reporting requirements for this Agreement. 

 
14. Common Carrier.  

a. Applicable to contracts with a common carrier – firm/person/corporation that as a regular business 
transports people or commodities from place to place.  If applicable, Contractor must also fill out and 
return PUR 1808 before contract execution. If Contractor is a common carrier pursuant to section 



Attachment 2-A 
3 of 3 

Rev. 8/8/2023 

908.111(1)(a), Florida Statutes, the Department will terminate this contract immediately if Contractor is 
found to be in violation of the law or the attestation in PUR 1808. 

 
b. Applicable to solicitations for a common carrier – Before contract execution, the winning Contractor(s) 

must fill out and return PUR 1808, and attest that it is not willfully providing any service in furtherance of 
transporting a person into this state knowing that the person unlawfully present in the United States 
according to the terms of the federal Immigration and Nationality Act, 8 U.S.C. ss. 1101 et seq.  The 
Department will terminate a contract immediately if Contractor is found to be in violation of the law or the 
attestation in PUR 1808. 

 
15. Additional Terms. 
Documentary Evidence Requirement for Subcontractor(s).   If any work associated with this Agreement is 
completed by a subcontractor(s), the Grantee shall require that such subcontractor(s) submit documentary evidence 
(e.g., workshop agendas; meeting recordings) to Grantee demonstrating that the subcontractor(s) has fully performed 
its Project obligation(s). The Grantee shall forward copies of all such documentary evidence to the Department with 
the Grantee’s relevant deliverable(s), using the approved Project Timeline set forth in Attachment 3 to this 
Agreement (Grant Work Plan). 

 



DEP Agreement No.: 22FRP69 
Page 1 of 2 

Rev. 2.11.22 

 

 

 
 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION 

REVISED GRANT WORK PLAN 
AGREEMENT NO. 22FRP69 

ATTACHMENT 3-A 

PROJECT TITLE: Lake Worth Beach South Palm Park Sea Level Rise Mitigation 
 

PROJECT LOCATION: The Project is located in the City of Lake Worth Beach within Palm Beach 
County, Florida. 

 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: 
The City of Lake Worth Beach (Grantee) will implement the Lake Worth Beach South Palm Park Sea Level 
Rise Mitigation (Project) which will address the chronic flood conditions at the southern end of the South 
Palm Park neighborhood along 18th Avenue South in Lake Worth Beach, which is getting worse with sea 
level rise. The existing stormwater outfall is out of date and ineffective, therefore during high and king tide 
events, collected stormwater is not properly discharged into Lake Worth Lagoon. In order to make the 
stormwater system more resilient to sea level rise and higher tides, the stormwater collection system will be 
improved to include the installation of a stormwater pump station and a new outfall pipe with a tidal check 
valve. 

 
TASKS AND DELIVERABLES: 

 
Task 1: - Construction 

 

Description: The Grantee will construct a stormwater collection pump station and replace an existing 
outfall pipe with a new outfall pipe equipped with a tidal check valve, in accordance with the construction 
contract documents. Project costs associated with the Construction task include work approved through 
construction bids and/or construction-phase engineering and monitoring services contracts. Eligible 
activities may include mobilization, demobilization, construction observation or inspection services, 
physical and environmental surveys, and mitigation projects. Project Management activities may include 
field engineering services, site meetings with construction contractor(s) and design professionals, and 
overall project coordination and supervision. Construction shall be conducted in accordance with all local, 
state, and federal permits. 

 
Deliverables: The Grantee will submit: 

• 1.1: List of permit type, number, and issuing entity for all local, state, and federal permits required 
for the Project; 

• 1.2: A copy of the final design and record (as-built) drawings; 
• 1.3: A Certificate of Completion signed by a Florida-registered Professional Engineer; 
• 1.4: Coordinate final site visit with Department and submit the Closeout Site Visit Form received 

from assigned Field Agent; and 
• 1.5: Quarterly Project management reports signed by a Florida-registered Professional Engineer, 

to include: 
• A summary of project and site inspection(s); 
• Meeting minutes to all attended meetings; and 
• Field notes  



DEP Agreement No.: 22FRP69 
Page 2 of 2 

Rev. 2.11.22 

 

 

PERFORMANCE MEASURES: The Grantee will submit all deliverables for each task to the 
Department’s Grant Manager on or before the Task Due Date listed in the Project Timeline. The 
Department’s Grant Manager will review the deliverable(s) to verify that they meet the specifications in 
the Grant Work Plan and the task description, to include any work being performed by any subcontractor(s), 
and will provide written acceptance or denial of the deliverable(s) to the Grantee within thirty (30) calendar 
days. Tasks may include multiple deliverables to be completed. The Department will accept partial and full 
deliverables. Incomplete deliverables will not be accepted. A “partial deliverable” is defined as a 
deliverable consisting of one (1) or more (but not all) subcomponents listed in the deliverable list for a 
single task, where such subcomponent(s) are delivered to the Department at one hundred percent (100%) 
completion. A “full deliverable” is defined as a deliverable comprising all subcomponents listed in the 
deliverable list for a single task, all delivered to the Department at one hundred percent (100%) completion. 
An “incomplete deliverable” is defined as a deliverable for which one hundred percent (100%) completion 
has not been achieved for any of the subcomponents listed in the deliverable list for a single task. A task is 
considered one hundred percent (100%) complete upon the Department’s receipt and approval of all 
deliverable(s) listed within the task and the Department’s approval provided by the Deliverable Acceptance 
Letter. 
 
CONSEQUENCES FOR NON-PERFORMANCE: For each task deliverable not received by the 
Department at one hundred percent (100%) completion and by the specified due date listed in the 
Agreement’s most recent Project Timeline, the Department will reduce the relevant Task Funding 
Amount(s) paid to Grantee in proportion to the percentage of the deliverable(s) not fully completed and/or 
submitted to the Department in a timely manner. 
 
PAYMENT REQUEST SCHEDULE: Following the Grantee’s full or partial completion of a task’s 
deliverable(s) and acceptance by the Department’s Grant Manager, the Grantee may submit a payment 
request for cost reimbursement using the Exhibit C, Payment Request Summary Form. All payment 
requests must be accompanied by the Deliverable Acceptance Letter; the Exhibit A, Progress Report Form, 
detailing all progress made in the invoice period; and supporting fiscal documentation including match, if 
applicable. Interim payments will not be accepted. Upon the Department’s receipt of the aforementioned 
documents and supporting fiscal documentation, the Department’s Grant Manager will have ten (10) 
working days to review and approve or deny the payment request. 
 
PROJECT TIMELINE AND BUDGET DETAIL: The tasks must be completed by, and all deliverables 
received by, the corresponding task due date listed in the table below. Cost-reimbursable grant funding 
must not exceed the budget amounts indicated below. Requests for any change(s) must be submitted prior 
to the current task due date listed in the Project Timeline. Requests are to be sent via email to the 
Department’s Grant Manager, with the details of the request and the reason for the request made clear. 
 

Task 
No. Task Title Budget 

Category 
DEP 

Amount 
Local 

Amount 
Total 

Amount 
Task Start 

Date 
Task Due 

Date 

1 Construction Contractual 
Services $300,000 $300,000 $600,000 Upon 

Execution 6/30/2026 

Total: $300,000 $300,000 $600,000  

 



 
Attachment 5-A 

1 of 6 
BGS-DEP 55-215  revised 11/8/2022 

STATE OF FLORIDA  
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION 

Revised Special Audit Requirements 
(State and Federal Financial Assistance) 

 
Attachment 5-A 

 
The administration of resources awarded by the Department of Environmental Protection (which may be referred to 
as the "Department", "DEP", "FDEP" or "Grantor", or other name in the agreement) to the recipient (which may be 
referred to as the "Recipient", "Grantee" or other name in the agreement) may be subject to audits and/or monitoring 
by the Department of Environmental Protection, as described in this attachment. 
 
MONITORING 
 
In addition to reviews of audits conducted in accordance with 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F-Audit Requirements, and 
Section 215.97, F.S., as revised (see “AUDITS” below), monitoring procedures may include, but not be limited to, 
on-site visits by DEP Department staff, limited scope audits as defined by 2 CFR 200.425, or other procedures. By 
entering into this Agreement, the recipient agrees to comply and cooperate with any monitoring procedures/processes 
deemed appropriate by the Department of Environmental Protection.  In the event the Department of Environmental 
Protection determines that a limited scope audit of the recipient is appropriate, the recipient agrees to comply with any 
additional instructions provided by the Department to the recipient regarding such audit. The recipient further agrees 
to comply and cooperate with any inspections, reviews, investigations, or audits deemed necessary by the Chief 
Financial Officer (CFO) or Auditor General. 
 
AUDITS 
 
PART I: FEDERALLY FUNDED 
 
This part is applicable if the recipient is a State or local government or a non-profit organization as defined in 2 CFR 
§200.330 
 
1. A recipient that expends $750,000 or more in Federal awards in its fiscal year, must have a single or program-

specific audit conducted in accordance with the provisions of 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F. EXHIBIT 1 to this 
Attachment indicates Federal funds awarded through the Department of Environmental Protection by this 
Agreement. In determining the federal awards expended in its fiscal year, the recipient shall consider all 
sources of federal awards, including federal resources received from the Department of Environmental 
Protection.  The determination of amounts of federal awards expended should be in accordance with the 
guidelines established in 2 CFR 200.502-503. An audit of the recipient conducted by the Auditor General in 
accordance with the provisions of 2 CFR Part 200.514 will meet the requirements of this part. 

 
2. For the audit requirements addressed in Part I, paragraph 1, the recipient shall fulfill the requirements relative 

to auditee responsibilities as provided in 2 CFR 200.508-512. 
 
3. A recipient that expends less than $750,000 in federal awards in its fiscal year is not required to have an audit 

conducted in accordance with the provisions of 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F-Audit Requirements. If the 
recipient expends less than $750,000 in federal awards in its fiscal year and elects to have an audit conducted 
in accordance with the provisions of 2 CFR 200, Subpart F-Audit Requirements, the cost of the audit must 
be paid from non-federal resources (i.e., the cost of such an audit must be paid from recipient resources 
obtained from other federal entities. 

 
4. The recipient may access information regarding the Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) via the 

internet at https://sam.gov/content/assistance-listings. 
 
 
 

https://sam.gov/content/assistance-listings


 
Attachment 5-A 

2 of 6 
BGS-DEP 55-215  revised 11/8/2022 

PART II: STATE FUNDED 
 
This part is applicable if the recipient is a nonstate entity as defined by Section 215.97(2), Florida Statutes. 
 
1. In the event that the recipient expends a total amount of state financial assistance equal to or in excess of 

$750,000 in any fiscal year of such recipient (for fiscal years ending June 30, 2017, and thereafter), the 
recipient must have a State single or project-specific audit for such fiscal year in accordance with Section 
215.97, F.S.; Rule Chapter 69I-5, F.A.C., State Financial Assistance; and Chapters 10.550 (local 
governmental entities) or 10.650 (nonprofit and for-profit organizations), Rules of the Auditor General.  
EXHIBIT 1 to this form lists the state financial assistance awarded through the Department of Environmental 
Protection by this agreement.  In determining the state financial assistance expended in its fiscal year, the 
recipient shall consider all sources of state financial assistance, including state financial assistance received 
from the Department of Environmental Protection, other state agencies, and other nonstate entities.  State 
financial assistance does not include federal direct or pass-through awards and resources received by a 
nonstate entity for Federal program matching requirements. 

 
2. In connection with the audit requirements addressed in Part II, paragraph 1; the recipient shall ensure that the 

audit complies with the requirements of Section 215.97(8), Florida Statutes. This includes submission of a 
financial reporting package as defined by Section 215.97(2), Florida Statutes, and Chapters 10.550 (local 
governmental entities) or 10.650 (nonprofit and for-profit organizations), Rules of the Auditor General. 

 
3. If the recipient expends less than $750,000 in state financial assistance in its fiscal year (for fiscal year ending 

June 30, 2017, and thereafter), an audit conducted in accordance with the provisions of Section 215.97, 
Florida Statutes, is not required.  In the event that the recipient expends less than $750,000 in state financial 
assistance in its fiscal year, and elects to have an audit conducted in accordance with the provisions of Section 
215.97, Florida Statutes, the cost of the audit must be paid from the non-state entity’s resources (i.e., the cost 
of such an audit must be paid from the recipient’s resources obtained from other than State entities). 

 
4. For information regarding the Florida Catalog of State Financial Assistance (CSFA), a recipient should access 

the Florida Single Audit Act website located at https://apps.fldfs.com/fsaa for assistance.   In addition to the 
above websites, the following websites may be accessed for information:  Legislature's Website at 
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Welcome/index.cfm, State of Florida’s website at http://www.myflorida.com/, 
Department of Financial Services’ Website at http://www.fldfs.com/and the Auditor General's Website at 
http://www.myflorida.com/audgen/.   

 
 
PART III: OTHER AUDIT REQUIREMENTS 
 
(NOTE: This part would be used to specify any additional audit requirements imposed by the State awarding entity 
that are solely a matter of that State awarding entity’s policy (i.e., the audit is not required by Federal or State laws 
and is not in conflict with other Federal or State audit requirements).  Pursuant to Section 215.97(8), Florida Statutes, 
State agencies may conduct or arrange for audits of State financial assistance that are in addition to audits conducted 
in accordance with Section 215.97, Florida Statutes.  In such an event, the State awarding agency must arrange for 
funding the full cost of such additional audits.) 
 
PART IV: REPORT SUBMISSION 
 
1. Copies of reporting packages for audits conducted in accordance with 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F-Audit 

Requirements, and required by PART I of this form shall be submitted, when required by 2 CFR 200.512, by 
or on behalf of the recipient directly to the Federal Audit Clearinghouse (FAC) as provided in 2 CFR 200.36 
and 200.512  

 
A. The Federal Audit Clearinghouse designated in 2 CFR §200.501(a) (the number of copies required by  

2 CFR §200.501(a) should be submitted to the Federal Audit Clearinghouse), at the following address: 
 

https://apps.fldfs.com/fsaa
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Welcome/index.cfm
http://www.myflorida.com/
http://www.fldfs.com/
http://www.myflorida.com/audgen


 
Attachment 5-A 

3 of 6 
BGS-DEP 55-215  revised 11/8/2022 

 
 By Mail: 

Federal Audit Clearinghouse 
Bureau of the Census 
1201 East 10th Street 
Jeffersonville, IN  47132 

 
 Submissions of the Single Audit reporting package for fiscal periods ending on or after January 1, 

2008, must be submitted using the Federal Clearinghouse’s Internet Data Entry System which can 
be found at http://harvester.census.gov/facweb/ 

 
2. Copies of financial reporting packages required by PART II of this Attachment shall be submitted by or on 

behalf of the recipient directly to each of the following: 
 

A. The Department of Environmental Protection at one of the following addresses: 
 

By Mail: 
Audit Director 
Florida Department of Environmental Protection 
Office of Inspector General, MS 40 
3900 Commonwealth Boulevard 
Tallahassee, Florida  32399-3000 

      
Electronically: 
FDEPSingleAudit@dep.state.fl.us   

 
B. The Auditor General’s Office at the following address: 

 
Auditor General  
Local Government Audits/342 
Claude Pepper Building, Room 401 
111 West Madison Street 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1450 
 
The Auditor General’s website (http://flauditor.gov/) provides instructions for filing an 
electronic copy of a financial reporting package. 

 
3. Copies of reports or management letters required by PART III of this Attachment shall be submitted by or 

on behalf of the recipient directly to the Department of Environmental Protection at one of the following 
addresses: 

By Mail: 
Audit Director 
Florida Department of Environmental Protection 
Office of Inspector General, MS 40 
3900 Commonwealth Boulevard 
Tallahassee, Florida  32399-3000 

      
Electronically: 
FDEPSingleAudit@dep.state.fl.us   

 
4. Any reports, management letters, or other information required to be submitted to the Department of 

Environmental Protection pursuant to this Agreement shall be submitted timely in accordance with 2 CFR 
200.512, section 215.97, F.S., and Chapters 10.550 (local governmental entities) or 10.650 (nonprofit and 
for-profit organizations), Rules of the Auditor General, as applicable. 

 

http://harvester.census.gov/facweb/
mailto:FDEPSingleAudit@dep.state.fl.us
http://flauditor.gov/
mailto:FDEPSingleAudit@dep.state.fl.us


 
Attachment 5-A 

4 of 6 
BGS-DEP 55-215  revised 11/8/2022 

5. Recipients, when submitting financial reporting packages to the Department of Environmental Protection for 
audits done in accordance with 2 CFR 200, Subpart F-Audit Requirements, or Chapters 10.550 (local 
governmental entities) and 10.650 (non and for-profit organizations), Rules of the Auditor General, should 
indicate the date and the reporting package was delivered to the recipient correspondence accompanying the 
reporting package.  

 
 
PART V: RECORD RETENTION 
 
The recipient shall retain sufficient records demonstrating its compliance with the terms of the award and this 
Agreement for a period of five (5) years from the date the audit report is issued, and shall allow the Department of 
Environmental Protection, or its designee, Chief Financial Officer, or Auditor General access to such records upon 
request. The recipient shall ensure that audit working papers are made available to the Department of Environmental 
Protection, or its designee, Chief Financial Officer, or Auditor General upon request for a period of three (3) years 
from the date the audit report is issued, unless extended in writing by the Department of Environmental Protection. 
 

 
 



Attachment 5-A, Exhibit 1 
5 of 6 

BGS-DEP 55-215 
Revised 7/2019 

EXHIBIT – 1 
 
 
FUNDS AWARDED TO THE RECIPIENT PURSUANT TO THIS AGREEMENT CONSIST OF THE FOLLOWING: 
 
 
 
Note: If the resources awarded to the recipient represent more than one federal program, provide the same information shown below for each federal program 
and show total federal resources awarded 

Federal Resources Awarded to the Recipient Pursuant to this Agreement Consist of the Following: 
Federal 

Program 
A 

 
 

Federal Agency 

 
CFDA 

Number 

 
 

CFDA Title 

 
 

Funding Amount 

State 
Appropriation 

Category 
Original 

Agreement 
U.S. Department of 

Treasury 21.027 SLFRP0125 $300,000.00 152-D22 

      
      

Federal 
Program 

B 

 
 

Federal Agency 

 
CFDA 

Number 

 
 

CFDA Title 

 
 

Funding Amount 

State 
Appropriation 

Category 
    $  
      
      

 
 
Note: Of the resources awarded to the recipient represent more than one federal program, list applicable compliance requirements for each federal program in 
the same manner as shown below: 

Federal 
Program 

A 

 
First Compliance requirement: i.e.: (what services of purposes resources must be used for) 
 

 

 Second Compliance requirement: i.e.:(eligibility requirement for recipients of the resources)  
 Etc.  
 Etc.  

Federal 
Program 

         B 

 
First Compliance requirement: i.e.: (what services of purposes resources must be used for) 

 
 

 Second Compliance requirement: i.e.: (eligibility requirement for recipients of the resources)  
 Etc.  
 Etc.  

 
 



Attachment 5-A, Exhibit 1 
6 of 6 

BGS-DEP 55-215 
Revised 7/2019 

Note: If the resources awarded to the recipient for matching represent more than one federal program, provide the same information shown below for each 
federal program and show total state resources awarded for matching. 

State Resources Awarded to the Recipient Pursuant to this Agreement Consist of the Following Matching Resources for Federal Programs: 
Federal 

Program  
A 

 
 

Federal Agency 

 
 

CFDA 

 
 

CFDA Title 

 
 

Funding Amount 

State 
Appropriation 

Category 
      
      

Federal 
Program  

B 

 
 

Federal Agency 

 
 

CFDA 

 
 

CFDA Title 

 
 

Funding Amount 

State 
Appropriation 

Category 
      
      

 
Note: If the resources awarded to the recipient represent more than one state project, provide the same information shown below for each state project and show 
total state financial assistance awarded that is subject to section 215.97, F.S. 

State Resources Awarded to the Recipient Pursuant to this Agreement Consist of the Following Resources Subject to Section 215.97, F.S.: 
State 

Program 
A 

 
 

State Awarding Agency  

 
State 

Fiscal Year1 

 
CSFA 

Number 

CSFA Title 
or 

Funding Source Description 

 
 

Funding Amount 

State 
Appropriation 

Category 
       
       

State 
Program 

B 

 
 

State Awarding Agency 

 
State 

Fiscal Year2 

 
CSFA 

Number 

CSFA Title 
or 

Funding Source Description 

 
 

Funding Amount 

State 
Appropriation 

Category 
       
       

 
Total Award $300,000.00  

Note: List applicable compliance requirement in the same manner as illustrated above for federal resources. For matching resources provided by the Department 
for DEP for federal programs, the requirements might be similar to the requirements for the applicable federal programs. Also, to the extent that different 
requirements pertain to different amount for the non-federal resources, there may be more than one grouping (i.e. 1, 2, 3, etc.) listed under this category. 
 
For each program identified above, the recipient shall comply with the program requirements described in the Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) 
[https://sam.gov/content/assistance-listings] and/or the Florida Catalog of State Financial Assistance (CSFA) [https://apps.fldfs.com/fsaa/searchCatalog.aspx], and 
State Projects Compliance Supplement (Part Four: State Projects Compliance Supplement [https://apps.fldfs.com/fsaa/state_project_compliance.aspx]. The 
services/purposes for which the funds are to be used are included in the Agreement’s Grant Work Plan.  Any match required by the Recipient is clearly indicated 
in the Agreement. 

 
1 Subject to change by Change Order. 
2 Subject to change by Change Order. 

https://sam.gov/content/assistance-listings
https://apps.fldfs.com/fsaa/searchCatalog.aspx
https://clicktime.symantec.com/3GfWgb5rmCjDizn22mxQhQo7Vc?u=https%3A%2F%2Fapps.fldfs.com%2Ffsaa%2Fstate_project_compliance.aspx


Rev. 2.9.23    
Attachment 6-A 

Page 1 of 2 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION 

REVISED PROGRAM-SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS 
RESILIENT FLORIDA PROGRAM 

ATTACHMENT 6-A 

1. Sea Level Impact Projection Study Requirement. If the project is within the designated area, pursuant to
Section 161.551, F.S. and Chapter 62S-7, Florida Administrative Code, the Grantee is responsible for
performing a Sea Level Impact Projection (SLIP) study and submitting the resulting report to the Department. 
The SLIP study report must be received by the Department, approved by the Department, and be published
on the Department’s website for at least thirty (30) days before construction can commence. This rule went
into effect July 1, 2021, and applies to certain state-funded construction projects located in the coastal
building zone as defined in the rule.

2. Permits. The Grantee acknowledges that receipt of this grant does not imply nor guarantee that a federal,
state, or local permit will be issued for a particular activity. The Grantee agrees to ensure that all necessary
permits are obtained prior to implementation of any grant-funded activity that may fall under applicable
federal, state, or local laws. Further, the Grantee shall abide by all terms and conditions of each applicable
permit for any grant-funded activity. Upon request, the Grantee must provide a copy of all acquired and
approved permits for the project.

3. Attachment 3, Grant Work Plan, Performance Measures. All deliverables and reports submitted to the
Department should be submitted electronically and must be compliant with the Americans with Disabilities
Act, also known as “508 Compliant,” in all formats provided.

4. Copyright, Patent and Trademark. The Department reserves a royalty-free, nonexclusive, and irrevocable
license to reproduce, publish or otherwise use, and to authorize others to use, for state government purposes:

a. The copyright in any work developed under this Agreement; and
b. Any rights or copyright to which the Grantee or subcontractor purchases ownership with grant support.

5. Grant funds may not be used to support ongoing efforts to comply with legal requirements, including permit
conditions, mitigation, and settlement agreements.

6. Funding Source. With the exception of audiovisuals not intended for presentation to the general public that
are produced either as research instruments or for documenting experimentation or findings (unless otherwise
required under the special terms of this Agreement), Grantee agrees to include the Department’s logo (which
can be found on the Department’s website at: https://floridadep.gov or by contacting the Grant Manager for
a copy) on all publications, printed reports, maps, audiovisuals (including videos, slides, and websites), and
similar materials, as well as the following language:

“This work was funded in part through a grant agreement from the Florida Department of Environmental
Protection’s Office of Resilience and Coastal Protection Resilient Florida Program. The views, statements,
findings, conclusions, and recommendations expressed herein are those of the author(s) and do not
necessarily reflect the views of the State of Florida or any of its subagencies.”

The next printed line must identify the month and year of the publication.

7. Final Project Report. The Grantee must submit Exhibit F, Final Project Report Form, prior to requesting final
payment. The Final Project Report may be submitted in lieu of the final quarterly status report, only in
instances where the next quarterly report falls after the project’s completion date.

https://floridadep.gov/


Rev. 2.9.23    
Attachment 6-A 

Page 2 of 2 

8. Project Photos. The Grantee must submit Exhibit G, Photo Release Form, with the first submission of
deliverables and reports (Exhibit A and F) that include photos.

9. Contractual Services. For all grant agreements that include Contractual Services as an expenditure category,
the Grantee must submit Exhibit H, Contractual Services Certification, and all required supporting
documentation for all contractors conducting work under the grant agreement, prior to requesting payment
that includes contractual services.

10. Vulnerability Assessments. For all Planning grant agreements (Resilient Florida Grant Program and Regional 
Resilience Entities), the Grantee must submit Exhibit I, Vulnerability Assessment Compliance Checklist
Certification, with the final grant deliverable(s).

11. Geographic Information System (GIS) files and associated metadata. All GIS files and associated metadata
must adhere to the Resilient Florida Program’s GIS Data Standards (found on the Resilient Florida Program
website: https://floridadep.gov/rcp/resilient-florida-program/documents/resilient-florida-program-gis-data-
standards), and raw data sources shall be defined within the associated metadata.

12. State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds. For all grant agreements funded with the Coronavirus State and Local 
Fiscal Recovery Funds (SLFRF) under the American Rescue Plan Act, the Grantee must submit the SLFRF
Reporting Requirements Form upon execution of the grant agreement.

https://floridadep.gov/rcp/resilient-florida-program/documents/resilient-florida-program-gis-data-standards
https://floridadep.gov/rcp/resilient-florida-program/documents/resilient-florida-program-gis-data-standards


Attachment 8-A 
1 of 6 

Rev. 11/15/2022 

ATTACHMENT 8-A 
Revised Contract Provisions for Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds 

(SLFRF) Agreements 

The Department, as a Non-Federal Entity as defined by 2 CFR §200.69, shall comply with the following 
provisions, where applicable. For purposes of this Grant Agreement between the Department and the Grantee, 
the term “Recipient” shall mean “Grantee.” 
Further, the Department, as a pass-through entity, also requires the Grantee to pass on these requirements to all 
lower tier subrecipients/contractors, and to comply with the provisions of the award, the SLFRF implementing 
regulation, including applicable provisions of the OMB Uniform Guidance (2 CFR Part 200), and all associated 
terms and conditions. Therefore, Grantees must include these requirements in all related  subcontracts and/or sub-
awards. Grantees can include these requirements by incorporating this Attachment in the related subcontract 
and/or sub-awards, however for all such subcontracts and sub-awards, the Grantee shall assume the role of the 
Non-Federal Entity and the subrecipients shall assume the role of the Recipient. 

2 CFR PART 200 APPENDIX 2 REQUIREMENTS 
1. Administrative, Contractual, and Legal Remedies

The following provision is required if the Agreement is for more than $150,000. In addition to any of the remedies 
described elsewhere in the Agreement, if the Recipient materially fails to comply with the terms and conditions 
of this Contract, including any Federal or State statutes, rules, or regulations, applicable to this   Contract, the Non-
Federal Entity may take one or more of the following actions. 

A. Temporarily withhold payments pending correction of the deficiency by the Recipient.
B. Disallow (that is, deny both use of funds and any applicable matching credit for) all or part of  the

cost of the activity or action not in compliance.
C. Wholly or partly suspend or terminate this Contract.
D. Take other remedies that may be legally available.

The remedies identified above, do not preclude the Recipient from being subject to debarment and suspension  under 
Presidential Executive Orders 12549 and 12689. The Non-Federal entity shall have the right to demand a refund, 
either in whole or part, of the funds provided to the Recipient for noncompliance with the terms of this Agreement. 

2. Termination for Cause and Convenience
Termination for Cause and Convenience are addressed elsewhere in the Agreement. 

3. Equal Opportunity Clause
The following provision applies if the agreement meets the definition of “federally assisted construction contract” 
as defined by 41 CFR Part 60-1.3: 
During the performance of this Agreement, the Recipient agrees as follows: 

A. The Recipient will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of
race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, or national origin. The Recipient will
take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during
employment without regard to their race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, or
national origin. Such action shall include, but not be limited to the following:
i. Employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising;

layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training,
including apprenticeship. The Recipient agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to
employees and applicants for employment, notices to be provided setting forth the provisions
of this nondiscrimination clause.

B. The Recipient will, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of the
Recipient, state that all qualified applicants will receive consideration for employment without regard 
to race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, or national origin.

C. The Recipient will   not   discharge   or   in    any    other    manner    discriminate    against any
employee or applicant for employment because such employee or applicant has inquired about,
discussed, or disclosed the compensation of the employee or applicant or another employee or
applicant. This provision   shall   not apply   to   instances   in   which an employee who has access
to the compensation information of other employees or applicants as a part of such employee's

https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=22edf9acbb0b836eba994727b86adedf&term_occur=9&term_src=Title%3A41%3ASubtitle%3AB%3AChapter%3A60%3APart%3A60-1%3ASubpart%3AA%3A60-1.4
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=11ed7b108f4f698848db076411872c73&term_occur=20&term_src=Title%3A41%3ASubtitle%3AB%3AChapter%3A60%3APart%3A60-1%3ASubpart%3AA%3A60-1.4
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=0f7d242f378d28d188cc19f2db0b1d04&term_occur=14&term_src=Title%3A41%3ASubtitle%3AB%3AChapter%3A60%3APart%3A60-1%3ASubpart%3AA%3A60-1.4
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=1341967f12aae2ba4918fc144e8e337a&term_occur=13&term_src=Title%3A41%3ASubtitle%3AB%3AChapter%3A60%3APart%3A60-1%3ASubpart%3AA%3A60-1.4
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=11ed7b108f4f698848db076411872c73&term_occur=21&term_src=Title%3A41%3ASubtitle%3AB%3AChapter%3A60%3APart%3A60-1%3ASubpart%3AA%3A60-1.4
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=1341967f12aae2ba4918fc144e8e337a&term_occur=14&term_src=Title%3A41%3ASubtitle%3AB%3AChapter%3A60%3APart%3A60-1%3ASubpart%3AA%3A60-1.4
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=0f7d242f378d28d188cc19f2db0b1d04&term_occur=15&term_src=Title%3A41%3ASubtitle%3AB%3AChapter%3A60%3APart%3A60-1%3ASubpart%3AA%3A60-1.4
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=c90b141e5ca9ade70830972dd155de53&term_occur=2&term_src=Title%3A41%3ASubtitle%3AB%3AChapter%3A60%3APart%3A60-1%3ASubpart%3AA%3A60-1.4
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=9e151c776428125f672d5a88186d9d6c&term_occur=4&term_src=Title%3A41%3ASubtitle%3AB%3AChapter%3A60%3APart%3A60-1%3ASubpart%3AA%3A60-1.4
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=11ed7b108f4f698848db076411872c73&term_occur=22&term_src=Title%3A41%3ASubtitle%3AB%3AChapter%3A60%3APart%3A60-1%3ASubpart%3AA%3A60-1.4
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=0f7d242f378d28d188cc19f2db0b1d04&term_occur=16&term_src=Title%3A41%3ASubtitle%3AB%3AChapter%3A60%3APart%3A60-1%3ASubpart%3AA%3A60-1.4
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=1341967f12aae2ba4918fc144e8e337a&term_occur=15&term_src=Title%3A41%3ASubtitle%3AB%3AChapter%3A60%3APart%3A60-1%3ASubpart%3AA%3A60-1.4
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=11ed7b108f4f698848db076411872c73&term_occur=23&term_src=Title%3A41%3ASubtitle%3AB%3AChapter%3A60%3APart%3A60-1%3ASubpart%3AA%3A60-1.4
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=0f7d242f378d28d188cc19f2db0b1d04&term_occur=17&term_src=Title%3A41%3ASubtitle%3AB%3AChapter%3A60%3APart%3A60-1%3ASubpart%3AA%3A60-1.4
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=11ed7b108f4f698848db076411872c73&term_occur=24&term_src=Title%3A41%3ASubtitle%3AB%3AChapter%3A60%3APart%3A60-1%3ASubpart%3AA%3A60-1.4
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=1341967f12aae2ba4918fc144e8e337a&term_occur=16&term_src=Title%3A41%3ASubtitle%3AB%3AChapter%3A60%3APart%3A60-1%3ASubpart%3AA%3A60-1.4
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=11ed7b108f4f698848db076411872c73&term_occur=25&term_src=Title%3A41%3ASubtitle%3AB%3AChapter%3A60%3APart%3A60-1%3ASubpart%3AA%3A60-1.4
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=0f7d242f378d28d188cc19f2db0b1d04&term_occur=18&term_src=Title%3A41%3ASubtitle%3AB%3AChapter%3A60%3APart%3A60-1%3ASubpart%3AA%3A60-1.4
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=1341967f12aae2ba4918fc144e8e337a&term_occur=17&term_src=Title%3A41%3ASubtitle%3AB%3AChapter%3A60%3APart%3A60-1%3ASubpart%3AA%3A60-1.4
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=0f7d242f378d28d188cc19f2db0b1d04&term_occur=19&term_src=Title%3A41%3ASubtitle%3AB%3AChapter%3A60%3APart%3A60-1%3ASubpart%3AA%3A60-1.4
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=1341967f12aae2ba4918fc144e8e337a&term_occur=18&term_src=Title%3A41%3ASubtitle%3AB%3AChapter%3A60%3APart%3A60-1%3ASubpart%3AA%3A60-1.4
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=9e151c776428125f672d5a88186d9d6c&term_occur=5&term_src=Title%3A41%3ASubtitle%3AB%3AChapter%3A60%3APart%3A60-1%3ASubpart%3AA%3A60-1.4
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=0f7d242f378d28d188cc19f2db0b1d04&term_occur=20&term_src=Title%3A41%3ASubtitle%3AB%3AChapter%3A60%3APart%3A60-1%3ASubpart%3AA%3A60-1.4
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=0f7d242f378d28d188cc19f2db0b1d04&term_occur=21&term_src=Title%3A41%3ASubtitle%3AB%3AChapter%3A60%3APart%3A60-1%3ASubpart%3AA%3A60-1.4
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=1341967f12aae2ba4918fc144e8e337a&term_occur=20&term_src=Title%3A41%3ASubtitle%3AB%3AChapter%3A60%3APart%3A60-1%3ASubpart%3AA%3A60-1.4
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=0f7d242f378d28d188cc19f2db0b1d04&term_occur=22&term_src=Title%3A41%3ASubtitle%3AB%3AChapter%3A60%3APart%3A60-1%3ASubpart%3AA%3A60-1.4
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=032c994483f5d63a2bfcb34d7038870c&term_occur=2&term_src=Title%3A41%3ASubtitle%3AB%3AChapter%3A60%3APart%3A60-1%3ASubpart%3AA%3A60-1.4
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=0f7d242f378d28d188cc19f2db0b1d04&term_occur=24&term_src=Title%3A41%3ASubtitle%3AB%3AChapter%3A60%3APart%3A60-1%3ASubpart%3AA%3A60-1.4
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=1341967f12aae2ba4918fc144e8e337a&term_occur=21&term_src=Title%3A41%3ASubtitle%3AB%3AChapter%3A60%3APart%3A60-1%3ASubpart%3AA%3A60-1.4
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=0f7d242f378d28d188cc19f2db0b1d04&term_occur=23&term_src=Title%3A41%3ASubtitle%3AB%3AChapter%3A60%3APart%3A60-1%3ASubpart%3AA%3A60-1.4


Attachment 8 
2 of 6 

Rev. 11/15/2022 

essential job functions discloses the compensation of such other employees or applicants to 
individuals who do not otherwise have access to such information, unless such disclosure is in 
response to a formal complaint or charge, in furtherance of an investigation, proceeding, hearing, or 
action, including an investigation conducted by the employer, or is consistent with the Recipient's 
legal duty to furnish information. 

D. The Recipient will send to each labor union or representative of workers with which he has a
collective bargaining agreement or other Agreement or understanding, a notice to be provided
advising the said labor union or workers' representatives of the Recipient's commitments under this
section,   and   shall   post   copies   of   the   notice   in   conspicuous   places   available to employees
and applicants for employment.

E. The Recipient will comply with all provisions of Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, and
of the rules, regulations, and relevant orders of the Secretary of Labor.

F. The Recipient will furnish all information and reports required by Executive Order 11246 of
September 24, 1965, and by rules, regulations, and orders of the Secretary of Labor, or pursuant
thereto, and will permit access to his books, records, and accounts by the administering agency and
the Secretary of Labor for purposes of investigation to ascertain compliance with such rules,
regulations, and orders.

G. In the event of the Recipient's noncompliance with the nondiscrimination clauses of this Agreement
or with any of the said rules, regulations, or orders, this Agreement may be canceled, terminated, or
suspended in whole or in part and the Recipient may be declared ineligible for further Government
contracts or federally assisted construction contracts in accordance with procedures authorized in
Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, and such other sanctions may be imposed and
remedies invoked as provided in Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, or by rule,
regulation, or order of the Secretary of Labor, or as otherwise provided by law.

H. The Recipient will include the portion of the sentence immediately preceding paragraph (1) and the
provisions of paragraphs (1) through (8) in every subcontract or purchase order unless exempted by
rules, regulations, or orders of the Secretary of Labor issued pursuant to section 204 of Executive
Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, so that such provisions will be binding upon each subcontractor
or vendor. The Recipient will take such action with respect to any subcontractor purchase order as
the administering agency may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions, including sanctions for
noncompliance.

4. Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act
Where applicable, if the Agreement is in excess of $100,000 and involves the employment of mechanics or 
laborers, the Recipient must comply with 40 U.S.C. 3702 and 3704, as supplemented by Department of Labor 
regulations (29 CFR Part 5). Under 40 U.S.C. 3702 of the Act, each Recipient must be required to compute the 
wages of every mechanic and laborer on the basis of a standard work week of 40 hours. Work in excess of the 
standard work week is permissible provided that the worker is compensated at a rate of not less than one and a 
half times the basic rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of 40 hours in the work week. The requirements of 
40 U.S.C. 3704 are applicable to construction work and provide that no laborer or mechanic  must be required to 
work in surroundings or under working conditions which are unsanitary, hazardous, or dangerous. These 
requirements do not apply to the purchases of supplies or materials or articles ordinarily available on the open 
market, or contracts for transportation or transmission of intelligence. 

5. Rights to Inventions Made Under Agreement
If the Federal award meets the definition of “funding agreement” under 37 CFR §401.2 (a) and the Non- Federal 
Entity or subrecipient wishes to enter into a contract with a small business firm or nonprofit organization 
regarding the substitution of parties, assignment or performance of experimental, developmental, or research 
work under that “funding agreement,” the Non-Federal Entity or subrecipient must comply with the requirements 
of 37 CFR Part 401, “Rights to Inventions Made by Nonprofit  Organizations and Small Business Firms Under 
Government Grants, Contracts and Cooperative Agreements,” and any implementing regulations issued by the 
awarding agency. 

6. Clean air Act (42 U.S. C. 7401-7671q.), the Federal Water Pollution Control Act (33 U.S.C. 1251-
1387), and EPA Regulations

If the Agreement is in excess of $100,000, the Recipient shall comply with all applicable standards, orders or 
regulations issued pursuant to the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 7401-7671q) and the Federal Water Pollution    Control 

-A

https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=e5c9c9cc685d320604ebfce6cc586427&term_occur=2&term_src=Title%3A41%3ASubtitle%3AB%3AChapter%3A60%3APart%3A60-1%3ASubpart%3AA%3A60-1.4
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=9e151c776428125f672d5a88186d9d6c&term_occur=6&term_src=Title%3A41%3ASubtitle%3AB%3AChapter%3A60%3APart%3A60-1%3ASubpart%3AA%3A60-1.4
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=0f7d242f378d28d188cc19f2db0b1d04&term_occur=25&term_src=Title%3A41%3ASubtitle%3AB%3AChapter%3A60%3APart%3A60-1%3ASubpart%3AA%3A60-1.4
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=1341967f12aae2ba4918fc144e8e337a&term_occur=22&term_src=Title%3A41%3ASubtitle%3AB%3AChapter%3A60%3APart%3A60-1%3ASubpart%3AA%3A60-1.4
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=11ed7b108f4f698848db076411872c73&term_occur=26&term_src=Title%3A41%3ASubtitle%3AB%3AChapter%3A60%3APart%3A60-1%3ASubpart%3AA%3A60-1.4
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=11ed7b108f4f698848db076411872c73&term_occur=27&term_src=Title%3A41%3ASubtitle%3AB%3AChapter%3A60%3APart%3A60-1%3ASubpart%3AA%3A60-1.4
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=22edf9acbb0b836eba994727b86adedf&term_occur=10&term_src=Title%3A41%3ASubtitle%3AB%3AChapter%3A60%3APart%3A60-1%3ASubpart%3AA%3A60-1.4
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=11ed7b108f4f698848db076411872c73&term_occur=28&term_src=Title%3A41%3ASubtitle%3AB%3AChapter%3A60%3APart%3A60-1%3ASubpart%3AA%3A60-1.4
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=0f7d242f378d28d188cc19f2db0b1d04&term_occur=26&term_src=Title%3A41%3ASubtitle%3AB%3AChapter%3A60%3APart%3A60-1%3ASubpart%3AA%3A60-1.4
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=0f7d242f378d28d188cc19f2db0b1d04&term_occur=26&term_src=Title%3A41%3ASubtitle%3AB%3AChapter%3A60%3APart%3A60-1%3ASubpart%3AA%3A60-1.4
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=1341967f12aae2ba4918fc144e8e337a&term_occur=23&term_src=Title%3A41%3ASubtitle%3AB%3AChapter%3A60%3APart%3A60-1%3ASubpart%3AA%3A60-1.4
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=11ed7b108f4f698848db076411872c73&term_occur=29&term_src=Title%3A41%3ASubtitle%3AB%3AChapter%3A60%3APart%3A60-1%3ASubpart%3AA%3A60-1.4
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=9dcb89354548ed33e9b955efe87d855b&term_occur=8&term_src=Title%3A41%3ASubtitle%3AB%3AChapter%3A60%3APart%3A60-1%3ASubpart%3AA%3A60-1.4
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=11ed7b108f4f698848db076411872c73&term_occur=30&term_src=Title%3A41%3ASubtitle%3AB%3AChapter%3A60%3APart%3A60-1%3ASubpart%3AA%3A60-1.4
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=9dcb89354548ed33e9b955efe87d855b&term_occur=9&term_src=Title%3A41%3ASubtitle%3AB%3AChapter%3A60%3APart%3A60-1%3ASubpart%3AA%3A60-1.4
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=00765a738c1b32d1d70c41aaac882962&term_occur=2&term_src=Title%3A41%3ASubtitle%3AB%3AChapter%3A60%3APart%3A60-1%3ASubpart%3AA%3A60-1.4
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=9dcb89354548ed33e9b955efe87d855b&term_occur=10&term_src=Title%3A41%3ASubtitle%3AB%3AChapter%3A60%3APart%3A60-1%3ASubpart%3AA%3A60-1.4
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=11ed7b108f4f698848db076411872c73&term_occur=31&term_src=Title%3A41%3ASubtitle%3AB%3AChapter%3A60%3APart%3A60-1%3ASubpart%3AA%3A60-1.4
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=22edf9acbb0b836eba994727b86adedf&term_occur=11&term_src=Title%3A41%3ASubtitle%3AB%3AChapter%3A60%3APart%3A60-1%3ASubpart%3AA%3A60-1.4
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=22edf9acbb0b836eba994727b86adedf&term_occur=12&term_src=Title%3A41%3ASubtitle%3AB%3AChapter%3A60%3APart%3A60-1%3ASubpart%3AA%3A60-1.4
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=11ed7b108f4f698848db076411872c73&term_occur=32&term_src=Title%3A41%3ASubtitle%3AB%3AChapter%3A60%3APart%3A60-1%3ASubpart%3AA%3A60-1.4
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=e0852900dad232a42a9a724a7de3ee83&term_occur=3&term_src=Title%3A41%3ASubtitle%3AB%3AChapter%3A60%3APart%3A60-1%3ASubpart%3AA%3A60-1.4
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=e0852900dad232a42a9a724a7de3ee83&term_occur=3&term_src=Title%3A41%3ASubtitle%3AB%3AChapter%3A60%3APart%3A60-1%3ASubpart%3AA%3A60-1.4
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=22edf9acbb0b836eba994727b86adedf&term_occur=13&term_src=Title%3A41%3ASubtitle%3AB%3AChapter%3A60%3APart%3A60-1%3ASubpart%3AA%3A60-1.4
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=9dcb89354548ed33e9b955efe87d855b&term_occur=11&term_src=Title%3A41%3ASubtitle%3AB%3AChapter%3A60%3APart%3A60-1%3ASubpart%3AA%3A60-1.4
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=11ed7b108f4f698848db076411872c73&term_occur=33&term_src=Title%3A41%3ASubtitle%3AB%3AChapter%3A60%3APart%3A60-1%3ASubpart%3AA%3A60-1.4
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=6dd5c2510a508e33605338268aca7ce2&term_occur=3&term_src=Title%3A41%3ASubtitle%3AB%3AChapter%3A60%3APart%3A60-1%3ASubpart%3AA%3A60-1.4
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=9dcb89354548ed33e9b955efe87d855b&term_occur=12&term_src=Title%3A41%3ASubtitle%3AB%3AChapter%3A60%3APart%3A60-1%3ASubpart%3AA%3A60-1.4
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=e42790bd92ec52275192b3d7f3fe48d4&term_occur=3&term_src=Title%3A41%3ASubtitle%3AB%3AChapter%3A60%3APart%3A60-1%3ASubpart%3AA%3A60-1.4
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=e42790bd92ec52275192b3d7f3fe48d4&term_occur=3&term_src=Title%3A41%3ASubtitle%3AB%3AChapter%3A60%3APart%3A60-1%3ASubpart%3AA%3A60-1.4
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=11ed7b108f4f698848db076411872c73&term_occur=34&term_src=Title%3A41%3ASubtitle%3AB%3AChapter%3A60%3APart%3A60-1%3ASubpart%3AA%3A60-1.4
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=6dd5c2510a508e33605338268aca7ce2&term_occur=4&term_src=Title%3A41%3ASubtitle%3AB%3AChapter%3A60%3APart%3A60-1%3ASubpart%3AA%3A60-1.4
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=00765a738c1b32d1d70c41aaac882962&term_occur=3&term_src=Title%3A41%3ASubtitle%3AB%3AChapter%3A60%3APart%3A60-1%3ASubpart%3AA%3A60-1.4


3 of 6 
Rev. 11/15/2022 

Act as amended (33 U.S.C. 1251-1387), and by the EPA (40 CFR Part 15). Violations must be reported to the 
Federal Awarding Agency and the Regional Office of the Environmental Protection Agency  (EPA). 

i. The Grantee shall include these requirements for the Clean Air Act and the Federal Water Pollution
Act in each subcontract exceeding $100,000 financed in whole or in part with SLFRF funds.

7. Debarment and Suspension (Executive Orders 12549 and 12689)
The Recipient certifies that it is not listed on the governmentwide exclusions in the System for Award 
Management (SAM), in accordance with the OMB guidelines at 2 CFR 180 and 2 CF 1200 that implement 
Executive Orders 12549 (3 CFR part 1986 Comp., p. 189) and 12689 (3 CFR part 1989 Comp., p. 235), 
“Debarment and Suspension.” 

8. Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment (31 U.S.C. 1352)
The Recipient certifies that it will not and has not used Federal appropriated funds to pay any person or 
organization for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a member of 
Congress, officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in connection with obtaining 
any Federal contract, grant or any other award covered by 31 U.S.C. 1352. If applicable, the Recipient shall 
disclose any lobbying with non-Federal funds that takes place in connection with obtaining any Federal award, 
using form SF-LLL, available at: 
 https://apply07.grants.gov/apply/forms/sample/SFLLL_1_2_P-V1.2.pdf. 

i. Grantees who apply or bid for an award of $100,000 or more shall file the required certification.
Each tier certifies to the tier above that it will not and has not used federal appropriated funds to pay
any person or organization for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any
agency, a member of Congress, officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a member of
Congress in connection with obtaining any federal contract, grant, or any other award covered by
31 U.S.C. § 1352. Each tier shall also disclose any lobbying with non-federal funds that takes place
in connection with obtaining any federal award. Such disclosures are forwarded from tier to tier, up
to the recipient.

9. Procurement of Recovered Materials
The Recipient must comply with Section 6002 of the Solid Waste Disposal Act, as amended by the Resource 
Conservation and Recovery Act as described in 2 CFR part 200.322. 

10. Prohibition on Certain Telecommunications and Video Surveillance Services or Equipment
The Recipients and subrecipients are prohibited from obligating or expending loan or grant funds to procure or 
obtain; extend or renew a contract to procure or obtain; or enter into a contract (or extend or renew a contract) to 
procure or obtain equipment, services, or systems that uses covered telecommunications  equipment or services 
as a substantial or essential component of any system, or as critical technology as part of any system. See Section 
889 of Public Law 115-232 (National Defense Authorization Act 2019). Also, see 2 CFR 200.216 and 200.471. 

11. Domestic Preferences for Procurement
The Recipients and subrecipients must, to the greatest extent practical, give preference to the purchase, 
acquisition, or use of goods, products, or materials produced in the United States in accordance with 2 CFR 
200.322.  

ADMINISTRATIVE 
1. General Federal Regulations

Recipients shall comply with the regulations listed in 2 CFR 200, 48 CFR 31, and 40 U.S.C. 1101 et seq. 
2. Rights to Patents and Inventions Made Under a Contract or Agreement

Rights to inventions made under this assistance agreement are subject to federal patent and licensing regulations, 
which are codified at Title 37 CFR Part 401 and Title 35 U.S.C. 200 through 212. 

3. Compliance with the Trafficking Victims Protection Act of 2000 (2 CFR Part 175)
Recipients, their employees, subrecipients under this award, and subrecipients' employees may not: 

A. Engage in severe forms of trafficking in persons during the period of time that the award is in effect;
B. Procure a commercial sex act during the period of time that the award is in effect; or
C. Use forced labor in the performance of the award or subawards under the award.

4. Whistleblower Protection
Recipients shall comply with U.S.C. §4712, Enhancement of Recipient and Subrecipient Employee 
Whistleblower Protection. This requirement applies to all awards issued after July 1, 2013 and effective 
December 14, 2016 has been permanently extended (Public Law (P.L.) 114-261). 

Attachment 8-A 

https://apply07.grants.gov/apply/forms/sample/SFLLL_1_2_P-V1.2.pdf


4 of 6 
Rev. 11/15/2022 

A. This award, related subawards, and related contracts over the simplified acquisition threshold and all
employees working on this award, related subawards, and related contracts over the simplified
acquisition threshold are subject to the whistleblower rights and remedies in the pilot program on award
recipient employee whistleblower protections established at 41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the
National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (P.L. 112-239).

B. Recipients, their subrecipients, and their contractors awarded contracts over the simplified acquisition
threshold related to this award, shall inform their employees in writing, in the predominant language of
the workforce, of the employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712.

C. The Recipient shall insert this clause, including this paragraph C, in all subawards and in contracts over
the simplified acquisition threshold related to this award; best efforts should be made to include this
clause, including this paragraph C in any subawards and contracts awarded prior to the effective date of
this provision.

5. Notification of Termination (2 CFR § 200.340)
In accordance with 2 CFR § 200.340, in the event that the Agreement is terminated prior to the end of the period 
of performance due to the Recipient’s or subcontractor’s material failure to comply with Federal statutes, 
regulations or the terms and conditions of this Agreement or the Federal award, the termination shall  be reported to 
the Office of Management and Budget (OMB)-designated integrity and performance system, accessible through 
System for Award Management (SAM) currently the Federal Awardee Performance and  Integrity Information 
System (FAPIIS). The Non-Federal Entity will notify the Recipient of the termination  and the Federal 
requirement to report the termination in FAPIIS. See 2 CFR § 200.340 for the requirements of the notice and the 
Recipient’s rights upon termination and following termination.  

6. Additional Lobbying Requirements
A. The Recipient certifies that no funds provided under this Agreement have been used or will be used to

engage in the lobbying of the Federal Government or in litigation against the United States unless
authorized under existing law.

B. The Lobbying Disclosure Act of 1995, as amended (2 U.S.C. §1601 et seq.), prohibits any organization
described in Section 501(c)(4) of the Internal Revenue Code, from receiving federal funds through an
award, grant (and/or subgrant) or loan unless such organization warrants that it does not, and will not
engage in lobbying activities prohibited by the Act as a special condition of such an award, grant (and/or
subgrant), or loan. This restriction does not apply to loans made pursuant to approved revolving loan
programs or to contracts awarded using proper procurement procedures.

C. Pursuant to 2 CFR §200.450 and 2 CFR §200.454(e), the Recipient is hereby prohibited from using funds 
provided by this Agreement for membership dues to any entity or organization engaged in lobbying
activities.

7. Increasing Seat Belt Use in the United States
Pursuant to Executive Order 13043, 62 FR 19217 (Apr. 18, 1997), Grantee is encouraged to adopt and 
enforce on-the-job seat belt policies and programs for its employees when operating company-owned, 
rented or personally owned vehicles. 

8. Reducing Text Messaging While Driving
Pursuant to Executive Order 13513, 74 FR 51225 (Oct. 6, 2009), Grantee is encouraged to adopt and enforce 
policies that ban text messaging while driving and establish workplace safety policies to decrease   accidents 
caused by distracted drivers. 

9. Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisitions Act of 1970
Where applicable, 42 U.S.C. §§ 4601-4655 and implementing regulations apply to this Agreement. 
COMPLIANCE WITH ASSURANCES 

1. Assurances
Recipients shall comply with all applicable assurances made by the Department or the Recipient to the Federal 
Government during the Grant application process. 
FEDERAL REPORTING REQUIREMENTS 

1. FFATA
Grant Recipients awarded a new Federal grant greater than or equal to $30,000 awarded on or after October 1, 
2015, are subject to the FFATA the Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (“FFATA”) of 2006. 
The FFATA legislation requires that information on federal awards (federal financial assistance and 
expenditures) be made available to the public via a single, searchable website, which is www.USASpending.gov. 

Attachment 8-A 

http://www.usaspending.gov/


5 of 6 
Rev. 11/15/2022 

The Grantee agrees to provide the information necessary, within one (1) month of  execution, for the Department 
to comply with this requirement. 

DEPARTMENT OF TREASURY-SPECIFIC 
1. Civil Rights Compliance

Recipients of Federal financial assistance from the Treasury are required to meet legal requirements relating to 
nondiscrimination and nondiscriminatory use of Federal funds.  Those requirements include ensuring that entities 
receiving Federal financial assistance from the Treasury do not deny benefits or services or otherwise discriminate 
on the basis of race, color, national origin, (including limited English proficiency), disability, age, or sex (including 
sexual orientation and gender identity), in accordance with the following: Title VI of Civil Rights Acts of 1973 
(Section 504), Public Law 93-112, as amended by Public Law 93-516, 29 U.S.C. 794; Title IX of the Education 
Amendments of 1972 (Title IX), 20 U.S.C. 1681 et seq., and the Department’s implementing regulations, 31 CFR 
28;  Age Discrimination Act of 1975, Public Law 94-135, 42 U.S.C. 6101 et seq., and the Department of Treasury 
implementing regulations at 31 CFR part 23.   

The Department of Treasury will request information on recipients’ compliance with Title VI of the Civil Rights 
Act of 1964, as applicable, on an annual basis. This information may include a narrative descripting the recipient’s 
compliance with Title VI, along with other questions and assurances. 

SLFRF-SPECIFIC 
1. Period of Performance

All funds from SLFRF must be obligated by December 31, 2024 and expended by December 31, 2026. 
2. Equipment and Real Property Management

Any purchase of equipment or real property with SLFRF funds must be consistent with the Uniform Guidance 
at 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart D. Equipment and real property acquired under this program must be  used for the 
originally authorized purpose. Consistent with 2 CFR 200.311 and 2 CFR 200.313, any equipment or real 
property acquired using SLFRF funds shall vest in the non-Federal entity. Any acquisition and maintenance of 
equipment or real property must also be in compliance with relevant laws and regulations. 

SLFRF INFRASTRUCTURE PROJECTS 
For all infrastructure projects, the Grantee shall provide the following project information on a quarterly basis 
to the Department:  

i. Projected/actual construction start date (month/year)
ii. Projected/actual initiation of operation date (month/year)
iii. Location details

SLFRF INFRASTRUCTURE PROJECTS OVER $10 MILLION 
For infrastructure projects over $10 million, the following provisions apply: 

1. Wage Certification
Grantees may provide a certification that all laborers and mechanics employed by Grantee in the performance 
of such project are paid wages at the rates not less than those prevailing, as determined by the 
U.S. Secretary of Labor in accordance with the Davis-Bacon Act, for the corresponding classes of laborers  and 
mechanics employed projected of a character similar to the contract work in the civil subdivision of Florida in 
which the work is to be performed. If the Grantee does not provide such certification, the Grantee must provide 
a project employment and local impact report detailing: 

i. The number of employees of contractors and sub-contractors working on the project;
ii. The number of employees on the project hired directly and hired through a third party;
iii. The wages and benefits of workers on the project by classification; and
iv. Whether those wages are at rates less than those prevailing.

Grantee must maintain sufficient records to substantiate this information upon request. 
2. Project Labor Agreements

Grantees may provide a certification that the project includes a project labor agreement, meaning a pre-hire 
collective bargaining agreement consistent with the section 8(f) of the National Labor Relations Act (29 
U.S.C. 158(f)). If the Grantee does not provide such certification, the Grantee must provide a project 

Attachment 8-A 



Attachment 8-A 
6 of 6 

Rev. 11/15/2022 

workforce continuity plan, detailing: 
i. How the Grantee will ensure the project has ready access to a sufficient supply of

appropriately  skilled and unskilled labor to ensure high-quality construction throughout the
life of the project;

ii. How the Grantee will minimize risks of labor disputes and disruptions that would
jeopardize  timeliness and cost-effectiveness of the project;

iii. How the Grantee will provide a safe and healthy workplace that avoids delays and costs
associated with workplace illnesses, injuries, and fatalities;

iv. Whether workers on the project will receive wages and benefits that will secure and
appropriately  skilled workforce in the context of the local or regional labor market; and

v. Whether the project has completed a labor agreement.
3. Other Reporting Requirements

Grantees must report whether the project prioritizes local hires and whether the project has Community 
Benefit Agreement, with a description of any such agreement, if applicable. 

SLFRF WATER & SEWER PROJECTS 
For water and sewer projects, Grantees shall provide the following information to the Department once the project 
starts, as appliable: 

i. National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) Permit Number, for projects aligned
with the Clean Water State Revolving Fund 

ii. Public Water System (PWS) ID number, for projects aligned with the Drinking Water State
Revolving Fund. 



Exhibit A-1, Page 1 of 1 
Rev. 1/13/2023 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION 

RESILIENT FLORIDA GRANT PROGRAM 
EXHIBIT A-1 

REVISED PROGRESS REPORT FORM 

The current Exhibit A, Progress Report Form for the Resilient Florida Program grant agreements can be 
found on the Department’s website at the link below. Each payment request must be submitted on the 
current form. The Department will notify grantees of any substantial changes to Exhibit A that occur during 
the grant agreement period. 

https://floridadep.gov/Resilient-Florida-Program/Grants 

https://floridadep.gov/Resilient-Florida-Program/Grants


Exhibit F-1, DEP Agreement # 22FRP69 
Page 1  

6/30/2023 

EXHIBIT F-1 

DEP AGREEMENT NO. 22FRP69 

 

LAKE WORTH BEACH SOUTH PALM PARK SEA LEVEL RISE MITIGATION 

 

City of Lake Worth Beach 

 

Revised Final Project Report 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Insert Month & Year 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This report is funded in part through a grant agreement from the Florida Department of Environmental Protection. 
The views, statements, findings, conclusions, and recommendations expressed herein are those of the author(s) and 
do not necessarily reflect the views of the State of Florida or any of its subagencies.  

 

 



Exhibit F-1, DEP Agreement # 22FRP69 
Page 2  

6/30/2023 

Part I. Executive Summary 

 

Part II. Methodology 

 

Part III. Outcome 

Include the following: 1) evaluation of project’s ability to meet goals and expected performance measures and provide 
explanation for why goals were not met, if applicable; 2) identify successful outcomes, areas for improvement, and 
quantifiable metrics (including the assigned metric in Exhibit A, if applicable) as a result of the project; and 3) final 
project photos, if an implementation construction project. 

 

Part IV. Further Recommendations 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Instructions for completing Exhibit F Final Project Report Form: 

DEP AGREEMENT NO.: This is the number on your grant agreement. 

GRANTEE NAME: Enter the name of the grantee’s agency. 

PROJECT TITLE: Enter the title shown on the first page of the grant agreement. 

MONTH & YEAR: Enter month and year of publication 

The final Project Report must contain the following sections: Executive Summary, Methodology, Outcome, and 
Further Recommendations. The Final Project Report must comply with the publication requirements in the grant 
agreement. Please limit the final project report to no more than five (5) pages. One electronic copy shall be submitted 
to the Department’s Grant Manager for approval. Final payment will be held until receipt and approval of the Final 
Project Report.  

Questions regarding completion of the Final Project Report should be directed to the Department’s Grant Manager, 
identified in paragraph 18 of this agreement.  



______________________________________________________________________________ 
PUR 1808 (08/22) Page 1 of 1 60A-1.020, F.A.C. 

COMMON CARRIER OR CONTRACTED CARRIER ATTESTATION 
FORM 

(PUR 1808) 
 

Exhibit J  
 
This form must be completed by a Common Carrier or contracted carrier and submitted to the 
Governmental Entity with which a Contract being is executed, amended, or renewed. Capitalized 
terms used herein have the definitions ascribed in section 908.111, F.S. 
 
 

                                                              is not willfully providing and will not willfully provide 
any service during the Contract term in furtherance of transporting a person into this state 
knowing that the person is an Unauthorized Alien, except to facilitate the detention, removal, or 
departure of the person from this state or the United States. 
 
Under penalties of perjury, I declare that I have read the foregoing statement and that the facts 
stated in it are true. 
 
Printed Name:                                                               
 
Title:                                                               
 
Signature:                                                               Date:                                
 

 



STAFF REPORT 
UTILITY MEETING 

 

AGENDA DATE: September 26, 2023 DEPARTMENT: Water Utilities 

TITLE: 

Resilient Florida Grant Program Additional Funding Request for the Eden Place Sea Level Rise 
Mitigation Project 

 
SUMMARY: 

On July 27, 2022, the City entered into an Agreement with the Florida Department of Environmental 
Protection that sets forth the terms and conditions for the use of $300,000 in funding assistance under 
the Resilient Florida Grant Program for mitigation measures to relieve the chronic flooding problems that 
adversely impact the Eden Park neighborhood.  In the preliminary stages of the project it has been 
determined that more substantial shoreline protection will be necessary around the new outfall to address 
erosion issues and provide requisite safety measures.  Accordingly, the City has applied for additional 
funding under the Fiscal Year 2024 Resilient Florida Grant Program in the amount of $491,375 for this 
purpose.   

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

On July 27, 2022, the City entered into Agreement 22FRP70 with the Florida Department of 
Environmental Protection that sets for the terms and conditions for the use of $300,000 in funding 
assistance under the Resilient Florida Grant Program for undertaking mitigation measures to relieve the 
chronic flooding conditions in the Eden Park neighborhood. 

The eastern terminus of 16th Avenue North currently lacks a stormwater outfall and adequate storage to 
alleviate local flooding. In the preliminary stages of the project, it has been determined that more 
substantial shoreline protection will be needed around the new outfall to address erosion issues due to 
high tides, and safety measures will be needed (e.g., rails or ramp).  Further, the permitting and design 
phases will be more involved than originally contemplated, as the project location is immediately north 
of the Lake Worth Beach Golf Course, which may be subject to additional permit restrictions.  Additional 
analyses will need to be conducted by the project engineer to ensure that the proposed improvements 
will provide resiliency in times of heavy rainfall and high tides.   

The City has accordingly requested an additional $491,375 in funding under the Fiscal Year 2024 
Resilient Florida grant program.  A local cost share of $491,375 will be required to this grant funding. 
The source of the local cost-share funding will be the Stormwater Enterprise Fund.  

According to the Stantec Financial Sustainability Analysis of the Stormwater Enterprise Fund, there are 
enough reserves in the fund balance to meet the requirements if Lake Worth Beach were to receive this 
grant opportunity. 

 
MOTION: 

Move to approve/disapprove the City’s request for $491,375 in funding assistance under the FY 2024 
Resilient Florida grant funding for the Eden Place Sea Level Rise Mitigation project.  

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Fiscal Impact Analysis – N/A 
FY 2024 Resilient Florida Grant Program Funding Request 



 

Project Cost Estimate 
 



Additional funding is for current work scope only. Expanded work scopes or additional phases of your 

project will require a new application. 

 

Application for Additional Funding 
 

1. Grant Information 

 Grant Name: 22FRP70 Lake Worth Beach Eden Place Sea Level Rise Mitigation 

 

2. Project Information 

a. What are the additional funds you are requesting?  $491,375.00 

 

 

b. Provide justification for additional funds. 

The Eden Place Sea Level Rise Mitigation project was originally estimated to have a total project 

cost of $600,000.  This project is intended to address chronic flooding at the eastern terminus of 

16th Avenue North, which currently lacks a stormwater outfall and adequate storage to alleviate 

local flooding. In the preliminary stages of the project, it has been determined that more 

substantial shoreline protection will be needed around the new outfall to address erosion issues 

due to high tides, and safety measures will be needed (e.g., rails or ramp).  Further, the permitting 

and design phases will be more involved than originally contemplated, as the project location is 

immediately north of the Lake Worth Beach Golf Course, which may be subject to additional 

permit restrictions.  Additional analyses will need to be conducted by the project engineer to 

ensure that the proposed improvements will provide resiliency in times of heavy rainfall and high 

tides.   

 

c. How much additional match has been secured? $491,375.00 

 

 



Date: August 30, 2023

Phase 1 - Preliminary Study
Item No. Item Description Design and Permitting

1
Project Management 

2
Construction 

3
Total

1 H&H Study $30,000.00 - - $30,000.00

2 Geotechnical Services $9,000.00 - - $9,000.00

3 Surveyor Services $8,750.00 - - $8,750.00

Total Estimate Per Category $47,750.00 - - $47,750.00

Phase 2 - Seawall and Drainage Improvements
Item No. Item Description Design and Permitting

1
Project Management 

2
Construction 

3
Total

1 Proposed Seawall $35,000.00 $50,000.00 $630,000.00 $715,000.00

2
Road ROW and Site Civil - Include Drainage, 

Earthwork, and Miscellanious Site Civil $60,000.00 $50,000.00 $685,000.00 $795,000.00

3 Permitting Services $25,000.00 - - $25,000.00

Total Estimate Per Category $120,000.00 $100,000.00 $1,315,000.00 $1,535,000.00

Project Totals
Design and Permitting

1
Project Management 

2
Construction 

3
Total

$167,750.00 $100,000.00 $1,315,000.00 $1,582,750.00

16th Avenue N/Bella Vista Avenue 

Notes:

1. The design and permitting category includes professional services for the engineering and design of each item. 

2. The project management category includes field engineering services, construction observations, site meetings with the contractor, and overall project 

coordination and supervision.

3. The construction category includes the complete construction of each item in accordance with the construction contract documents and all state or federal 

permits.

Total Estimate Per Task (Phase 1 + Phase 2)



STAFF REPORT 
UTILITY MEETING 

 

 

AGENDA DATE: September 26, 2023 DEPARTMENT: Water Utilities 

TITLE: 

Fiscal Year 2024 Resilient Florida Grant Program Application for the 9th Avenue South Pump Station 
Project 

 
SUMMARY: 

The City has applied for $150,000 in grant funding from the Fiscal Year 2024 Resilient Florida Program 
for the design and permitting required for the installation of a new pump station in the 9th Avenue South 
easement at South Palm Way.  The project will serve to address the chronic flooding in the area by 
improving the stormwater collection system. A local cost share of $150,000 will be required if the grant 
funding is approved. 

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 
At present, the South Palm Park Neighborhood is adversely affected by significant flooding resulting 
from stormwater that collects from heavy rainfall and surge of water from the king tides that overflow 
from the Lake Worth Lagoon into the surrounding residential neighborhood.  The existing stormwater 
drainage system is largely ineffective as the existing outfall that empties into the Lake Worth Lagoon 
has exceeded its useful life and has been subsequently compromised to a severely deteriorated 
condition. 
 
The project will serve to relieve the chronic flooding in the area by improving the stormwater collection 
system through the installation of a new stormwater pump station and outfall pipe and check valve.  
The stormwater pump station will serve to collect stormwater and discharge it a short distance away by 
pumping the water through the new outfall pipe into the Lake Worth Lagoon. The installation of the tidal 
check valve will assist in the prevention of flood water resulting from high tides and ongoing sea level 
rise from penetrating into the stormwater system and adversely impacting the service area. 

The City is requesting $150,000 in grant funding through the FY 2024 Resilient Florida program.to 
procure the services of a qualified consultant for the design and permitting of the 9th Avenue South Pump 
Station project. The City will be required to provide a local cost share of $150,000 if the grant funding is 
approved. The source of the local cost share will be the Stormwater Enterprise Fund. 

According to the Stantec Financial Sustainability Analysis of the Stormwater Enterprise Fund, there are 
enough reserves in the fund balance to meet the requirements if Lake Worth Beach were to receive this 
grant opportunity. 

 
MOTION: 

Move to approve/disapprove submission of the City’s application for $150,000 in Fiscal Year 2024 
Resilient Florida grant funding for the design and permitting of the 9th Avenue Pump Station project. 

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Fiscal Impact Analysis – N/A 
FY 2024 Resilient Florida Application 



��������	
����� �	�
� �	�� �		 ����
����
�
����������	
��������
����
�
�������������������������������� �!�"����!��!#$%&'(�)&*&+)�&,*-./01�/)�0%&�*2*/3*43'�5+,/01�&6'�'2*3+*&/%0�7',/%5�*8&',�&6'�7%,&*3�-3%)'5�%0�9'7&':4',�;<�/8�=%+�6*2'�*0=�>+')&/%0)�*4%+&�&6'�)&*&+)�%8�=%+,�*773/-*&/%0�73'*)'�-%0?')/3/'0-'@A%,/5*5'7B1%2BCDE�FGHIJ�KLLMNOHJNPIQR773/-*&/%0�S=7' R773/-*0&�$*:' T,%U'-&�$*:' R773/-*&/%0�$4, 9&*&+)�VWXYWZ�[\]�	̂_ỲŶWa��̀\]YXb�c�dW[e �Yaf�\[�gbĥ�i\]aj�k̂blj maj�
n̂WV̂�a\]opbâ]��Voq�ae 	
��rsrrt VuoYaâXvŶp��wY_aYWZ�
qq̀YlbaY\WKLLMNOHJNPI CxQNMNxIJ�yMPGNzH�{�|I}GHQJG~OJ~Gx�FGHIJQ���KLLMNOHIJ�|I}PG�HJNPI
���EGP�xOJ�|I}PG�HJNPI�D�PPQx�J�x��IJNJ��DHJx�PG��D�PPQx�J�x�LGP�xOJ�J�Lx��P~�HGx�Q~��NJJNI��


qq̀YlbWa�
ll\VWa�Yaf�\[�gbĥ�i\]aj�k̂blj
qq̀YlbWa��]bWa��bWbẐ]�̂]]f��̂ `̀f
qq̀YlbWa�
Vaj\]Y�̂X�YZŴ^�b]ô W��bnY_
qq̀YlbWa��Y_lb̀�
ẐWa�bWWYlh��ẐWXbjbf\
�\VWaf���VWYlYqb̀Yaf��\]�
Vaj\]Y�̂X�q̂lYb̀��Y_a]Yla�
XX]̂__YWZ�	Y_h_�\[��̀\\XYWZ�\]�̂b�ĝn̂ �̀	Y_̂�dX̂WaY�̂X�YW�b�vV̀Ŵ]buỲYaf�
__̂__ô Wa
nbỲbù̂gYnYWZ�j\]̂ỲŴ�bWX��]\_Y\W��\Wa]\̀�baV]b̀�f_âo_�	̂_a\]baY\W�]bW_q\]abaY\W�bWX��nblVbaY\Wib_âpbâ]�dW[]b_a]VlaV]̂�]YWhYWZ�ibâ]�dW[]b_a]VlaV]̂

�j\_̂Wa\]opbâ]�dW[]b_a]VlaV]̂�\b_ab̀��̀\\X��\Wa]\̀���]̂f�
� â]Yl�
__YZŴX�Voû]�\[�qVoq_�̀Y[a�_abaY\W_�]̂q̀bl̂X�bWX�\]�bXX̂X� â]Yl�vb̀V̂s�rr� â]Yl�vb̀V̂��WYa_�\Ŵ���]̂�VY]̂X��]\�̂la��Yà̂maj�
n̂WV̂�a\]opbâ]��Voq�abaY\WgY_a�aĵ��Yaf�Ŷ_����\pW�_��vỲ̀bẐ�_�



��������	��
������
��
�����
���
�������
���������
��������
����

������������������
�
��� !�"#�$%& &

'%( �)$*+,�- %.,/012345�631�7148591:'%+�+;& <=>=?@ABC'$DE�+;& FB?>?C?GB<H, �#*$I .+��!�$D�J+,�KL D; �M$;+,>�H, �.*$!!�!+*  +��!�M$;+,�N%�O�)%P�%+�+, �J+,�KL � %! O D+>M+%+ �'%D&!�$*�M+%+ �N%*(!�"+���Q &R$KL%��%S� K�%.,;%-%( *-%P-*%&T$*&-* L%*&
U,$! DN%�O�- %.,

M#$D!$*�U�+PVU$;D+PFFR$D FFWX#�%�D�+, �& O$D!+*%+ &�D  &Y!Z�%D&�,$[�+, �#*$I .+�[����%&&* !!�+,$! �D  &!>WX#�%�D�,$[�+, �#*$#$! &�#*$I .+�\+!��D+$�+, �N*$I .+�HP# !�.,$! D�%S$L >�]����������������̂ �_������

]
��̂��̀ ��a &;.+�$D��D�.,*$D�.�b$$&�DE�T*$O� X. !!�L �*%�DT%���%D&�[%+ *�!;*E !�T*$O�(�DE�+�& !�%D&�! %�� L ��*�! >�a &;.+�$D�$T�#*$# *+P�&%O%E �+$�+, �!;**$;D&�DE�D �E,S$*,$$&�T*$O�b$$&�DE�%D&�+, ��D.�& D. �$T�O$!c;�+$ !�%D&�$+, *�# !+!�T*$O�!+%D&�DE�[%+ *�SP��O#*$L &�&�!.,%*E �$T�!+$*O[%+ *>H, �N*$I .+�[����%&&* !!�b$$&�DE��D�+, �M$;+,�N%�O�N%*(�D �E,S$*,$$&�%�$DE�GB+,�KL D; �SP��O#*$L�DE�+, �!+$*O[%+ *�.$�� .+�$D�!P!+ O�SP��D!+%���DE�%�!+$*O[%+ *�#;O#�!+%+�$D�%D&�%�D [�$;+T%���#�# �%D&�+�&%��., .(�L%�L >d����e�_������
�������
����d������_������
�������
����d������_������
�������
����d����f�_������
�������
������������
��������
����g �̀��
̂���h�������
����

N*$I .+�M;OO%*PH, �N*$I .+�[����%&&* !!�b$$&�DE�%D&��O#*$L�DE�+, �!+$*O[%+ *�.$�� .+�$D�!P!+ O�+,*$;E,�+, ��D!+%��%+�$D�$T�%�!+$*O[%+ *�#;O#�!+%+�$D�%D&�%�D [�$;+T%���#�# �%D&�+�&%��., .(�L%�L >N*$I .+�i !.*�#+�$DH, �!+$*O[%+ *�#;O#�!+%+�$D�[����$# *%+ �+$� ��O�D%+ �b$$&��D;D&%+�$D�+,%+�,%!�S .$O �O$* �* .;**�DE�&;*�DE��D+ D! �*%�D!+$*O!� !# .�%��P�+,$! �$..;**�DE�&;*�DE�! %!$D%��,�E,�+�& !>��H, �#;O#�!+%+�$D�.$�� .+!�+, �b$$&�[%+ *!�%D&�&�!.,%*E ��+�%�!,$*+�&�!+%D. �%[%P�SP�#;O#�DE�+, �[%+ *�+,*$;E,�+$�%D�$;+T%����D�+, ��D+*%.$%!+%��[%+ *[%P>�H, �$;+T%���., .(�L%�L �$D�+, � X�!+�DE�$;+T%���[����[$*(�D.$DI;D.+�$D[�+,+, #;O#!+%+�$D!., .(L%�L !+$#* L D++�&%�[%+ *!T*$Ob$$&�DES%.(+,*$;E,+, $;+T%���D+$+, D �E,S$*,$$&H, !# .�\.,%Q%*&!O�+�E%+ &[���S  ��O�D%+�DE



��������	
����
�������������
���������
���������������
�������������������

������ ���!����

"#$% &'(%�)*+)!�,��!+-../01* � 2!�3! ������*++*40�0
��
� �	��1 5��6��+7��8�7����
��9�3� ��+:�2 �,���*,/��������������;�����
�
�������������<�7����
����;� ���;�
/��������������;���7�=
�����
=��8 ���;���7�=
�����
=��8
/��������������;���
�����
��4����

 ���;��
�����
��4����

����
�
�������������<�7����
����;��
�����
�

&#>?�"@$A%B &CDE% FGB?�H%BIGB$%J�K' &#>?�L%>MBC(DCGN OG#E &C$%�&G�PG$(2 	
��=�������
������=������
Q ��������������8 	
��=�������
����������
��7Q 	
��=����
�����������������
��Q  �8
���6��7�����;������������<
����RD�E%#>D�GN%�D#>?�C>�B%S@CB%J�DG�>@A$CD�DT%�#((ECM#DCGNUHE%#>%�>%E%MD�VPB%#D%�"%W�HBGX%MD�&#>?Y�DG�>#Z%�DT%�B%MGBJU�[NM%�#�D#>?�C>�MB%#D%J\�CD�WCEE�A%�#JJ%J�DG�DT%�D#AE%�#AGZ%U�&G�#JJ�#JJCDCGN#E�D#>?>\�@(J#D%�DT%�J%D#CE>�A%EGW�#NJ�>%E%MD�VPB%#D%"%W�HBGX%MD�&#>?]U&G�%JCD�#�D#>?�#ID%B�MB%#DCGN\�'G@�$@>D�J%E%D%�DT%�%NDB'�#NJ�MB%#D%�#�N%W�D#>?�DG�B%(E#M%�CD�WCDT�DT%�MGBB%MD�J%D#CE>U�&G�J%E%D%\�>%E%MD�DT%�#BBGW�GN�DT%�D#AE%�N%̂D�DG�DT%�#>>GMC#D%J�D#>?\�#NJ>%E%MD�]J%E%D%]U�&T%N�%ND%B�DT%�MGBB%MD�D#>?�CNIGB$#DCGN�A%EGW�#NJ�>%E%MD�VPB%#D%�"%W�&#>?YU
&#>?�"@$A%B K@J_%D�̀̂ (%N>%�R$G@ND2 a2b��������6��7�����;�<7�=
�����
=��8������������<
����cdedfg�hijdkgd�ldm�nooepfkgpqr�sktu�vwxydgz�gq�tk{d�g|d�drgj}~��dodkg��qj�dkf|�gktu�wrgpe�fq�oedgdx~�����wegpoed��wxydg�fkgdyqjpdt�kjd�rddxdx��qj�k�tpryed�gktu�tw��pg��wegpoed�drgjpdt�wrgpe�g|d��wxydg��qj�g|kg�gktu�pt�fq�oedgdx~

&#>?�"@$A%B HG>CDCGN�&CDE% �#̂C$@$��G@B> �#̂C$@$��G@B>�&C$%��NCD������������������������������������������������������������������ ��¡�����������¢��������£�����£����¤��¥����¥�£���¦���¡�§�������̈©�����������������������ª¥���£����������������������������«¥£�����������������������¢���̈���
����
����;��
�����
��6����������������
�4����





STAFF REPORT 
UTILITY MEETING 

 

AGENDA DATE: September 26, 2023 DEPARTMENT: Water Utilities 

TITLE: 

Fiscal Year 2024 Resilient Florida Grant Program Application for the Parrot Cove Stormwater Resiliency 
Project 

 
SUMMARY: 

The City has applied for $250,000 in grant funding from the Fiscal Year 2024 Resilient Florida Program 
to provide improvements to the existing stormwater system infrastructure and for mitigation measures to 
relieve coastal flooding issues caused by high tides along the City’s golf course and the Parrot Cove 
neighborhood.  The City will be required to provide a local cost share of $250,000 if the grant funding 
request is approved. 

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 
 
The project to address the worsening flood conditions and erosion of land along the City's golf course 
and Parrot Cove Neighborhood and the Lake Worth Lagoon, where stormwater outfalls currently exist. 
The 9th, 8th, 6th and 4th Avenues North stormwater outfalls are direct discharge connections to the 
Lake Worth Lagoon.  The four existing pipes provide drainage for a portion of the golf course, as well 
as the neighborhood immediately to the west.  This area has been subject to worsening flood 
conditions due to the compound effects of heavy rainfall, storm surges, king tides, and the rising sea 
level. Sinkholes are being created by joint separation in stormwater pipes that allow sand and soil to 
cave the main pipes and erode stormwater outfalls.  
 
The proposed stormwater upgrades to this area include repairs to the existing outfalls and the 
installation of backflow prevention devices on the four existing outfalls to the Lagoon in order to prevent 
further erosion of land on the golf course and alleviate water backing up in the stormwater system from 
sea level rise. The current lack of controls on the stormwater pipes leaves the upstream residential and 
commercial properties vulnerable to tidal flooding, which is expected to be a greater concern as sea 
levels rise. Though relatively small in scope, this project offers benefits upstream and downstream of 
the stormwater infrastructure, helping to address existing flooding and water quality issues. 
 
The City has been awarded grant funding in the amount of $450,000 through the FY 2022 FL 
Legislative grants that does not require a match to fund a portion of these improvements. The City is 
requesting $250,000 in grant funding from the Resilient Florida program for the balance of these 
improvements.  The City will be required to provide a local cost share of $250,000 if the grant funding 
request is approved.  The source of the local cost share will be the Stormwater Enterprise Fund. 
 
According to the Stantec Financial Sustainability Analysis of the Stormwater Enterprise Fund, there are 
enough reserves in the fund balance to meet the requirements if Lake Worth Beach were to receive 
this grant opportunity. 

 

MOTION: 

Move to approve/disapprove submission of the City’s application for $250,000 in grant funding from the 
Fiscal Year 2024 Resilient Florida program for the Parrot Cove Stormwater Resiliency project. 



 

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Fiscal Impact Analysis – N/A 
FY 2024 Resilient Florida Grant Program Application 



9/7/23, 8:46 AM RCP Existing Applications

https://fdep.my.site.com/grants/s/rcp-existing-applications 1/4

HOME (/GRANTS/S/) FRDAP ORCP HRR CONTACT MANAGEMENT (/GRANTS/S/CONTACT-MANAGEMENT)

GRANT APPLICATIONS AVAILABLE FOR REVIEW

Note: status tracking is not available during the evaluation period after the portal closed on September 1, if you have any questions about the status of your application please con

Resilience@floridadep.gov.

RCP Grant Applications

Application Type Applicant Name Project Name Application Nbr Status

Funding for Resilient Florida – Infr… City of Lake Worth Beach Parrot Cove Stormwater Improve… RAN-01017 Submitted

View Existing Application

Application

Resilient Florida – Infrastructure Grants

1. Applicant Information

2. Project Information

*

Choose the Entity Category:

Choose the project type you are submitting:

Applicant Account

City of Lake Worth Beach

Applicant Grant Manager

Jerry Kelly

Applicant Authorized Signee

Carmen Davis

Applicant Fiscal Agent

Yannick Ngendahayo

County, Municipality, or Authorized Special District Addressing Risks of Flooding or Sea Level Rise Identified in a Vulnerability Assessment

Available

Emergency Facilities

Land Acquisition and Conservation

Living Shoreline and Erosion Control

Natural Systems Restoration

Transportation and Evacuation

Chosen

Stormwater Infrastructure

Coastal Flood Control (Grey)

Metric Assigned

Number of tidal valves/outfalls replaced and/or added

Metric Value

4.00

Metric Value Units

None

* (required) Project Title

Parrot Cove Stormwater Improvements

List the City(ies)/ Town(s)/Village(s)

javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
https://fdep.my.site.com/grants/s/
https://fdep.my.site.com/grants/s/contact-management
javascript:void(0);


9/7/23, 8:46 AM RCP Existing Applications

https://fdep.my.site.com/grants/s/rcp-existing-applications 2/4

Project Location (narrative)

Area Served

2A. General Information

3. Project Work Plan

City of Lake Worth Beach

Project Geo Location

Latitude

26.626039

Longitude

-80.046812

The Project will be located in the City of Lake Worth Beach within the City-owned Lake Worth Beach Golf Club golf course. Tidal valves will be installed on four existing outfall pipes along the Intracoastal 
Waterway-facing coast of the golf course.

State Lands or State Parks Utilized

No

Available

Alachua

Baker

Bay

Bradford

Brevard

Chosen

Palm Beach

Sponsor City/County

--None--

Explain the demonstrated need(s) and how the project will address those needs.

Explain how the proposed project fits into the Project Types chosen above.

2B. Project Scoring Criteria

Background

The project serves to address the worsening flood conditions along and at the eastern end of 9th, 8th, 6th and 4th Avenues North along the City's golf course and Parrot Cove Neighborhood in Lake 
Worth Beach. Sinkholes are being created by joint separation in stormwater pipes that allow sand and soil to cave the main pipes and erode stormwater outfalls. This project will upgrade the system 
for efficient operation and preparation for sea level rise and king tides, along with preventing water from the Intracoastal Waterway from backing up through the outfalls.

The project will be an improvement to existing stormwater infrastructure and will mitigate coastal flooding issues caused by high tides.

Tier 1 Criteria Information

Tier 2 Criteria Information

Tier 3 Criteria Information

Tier 4 Criteria Information

Additional Information

Multiagency Information

Project Summary

This is a stormwater infrastructure project that will address known flooding and erosion issues along the Intracoastal Waterway in Lake Worth Beach. The main task is to install outfall check valves on 
large existing outfalls that discharge directly to the Intracoastal Waterway.

Project Description



9/7/23, 8:46 AM RCP Existing Applications

https://fdep.my.site.com/grants/s/rcp-existing-applications 3/4

Files Uploaded

Name Type

_08-23-005_Parrot_Cove-SET-17X11 PDF

FY24 CIP Summary EXCEL_X

LW_SW-EXEC-SUMMARY_2021-04-20_GR comments PDF

Application Tasks

Complete information about the Tasks

Tasks

Application Tasks Budget Category

Tasks Budget Category

Application Tasks Personnel Grantee

Task Personnel Grantee

Complete information about the Task Personnel

The 9th, 8th, 6th and 4th Avenues North stormwater outfalls are direct discharge connections to the Lake Worth Lagoon, a 20-mile portion of the Intracoastal Waterway in southeast Florida. The 
Lagoon is a brackish estuary that is an important nursery habitat for many marine plant and animal species. The existing pipes are located along the Lake Worth Golf Club, which is maintained by the 
City as a 1.3-mile long living shoreline. The area has been subject to worsening flood conditions due to the compound effects of heavy rainfall, storm surges, king tides, and the rising sea level. Four 
existing pipes provide drainage for a portion of the golf course, as well as the neighborhood immediately to the west. 
The proposed stormwater upgrades to this area include the installation of backflow prevention devices on the four existing outfalls to the Lagoon. The current lack of controls on the stormwater pipes 
leaves the upstream residential and commercial properties vulnerable to tidal flooding, which is expected to be a greater concern as sea levels rise.  Though relatively small in scope, this project offers 
benefits upstream and downstream of the stormwater infrastructure, helping to address existing flooding and water quality issues.

Task Number Title Work Performed By Task Description Goal Time To 

1 Construction Contractor only Contractor will construct the s… Improve flooding resilience fo… 1 year

Input task information below.

At least one task is required to submit the application.

Please select “Create New Project Task” to save the record. Once a task is created, it will be added to the table above. To add additional tasks, update the details below and select “Create

New Project Task".

To edit a task after creation, you must delete the entry and create a new task to replace it with the correct details. To delete, select the arrow on the table next to the associated task, and

select "delete". Then enter the correct task information below and select “Create New Task”.

Task Number Budget Expense Amount

1 $1,000,000.00

Input task budget category information below.

Select “Create New Application Task Budget” to save the entry. Repeat for each task until completed. If multiple budget categories are needed for a single task,
submit multiple entries until the budget for that task is completed.

Task Number Position Title Maximum Hours Maximum Hours Time U

NOTE: This section is only necessary if the GRANTEE is performing work on the project

as indicated previously under “Task Category.” This section is NOT required if a

contractor is the only budget category on the project.

Enter the Task Personnel Information for the Grantee

javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);


9/7/23, 8:46 AM RCP Existing Applications

https://fdep.my.site.com/grants/s/rcp-existing-applications 4/4

Florida Department of Environmental Protection

3900 Commonwealth Blvd.

Tallahassee, FL 32399-3000



STAFF REPORT 
UTILITY MEETING 

 

AGENDA DATE: September 26, 2023 DEPARTMENT: Electric Utility  

TITLE: 

Purchased Power Cost Adjustment Update (PCA) 

 
SUMMARY: 

Monthly update for the Purchased Power Cost Adjustment in Electric Utility Rates  

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

The City’s electric utility provides electricity to its customers using a variety of electric production 
resources. Among them are the City’s entitlements in various Florida Municipal Power Agency (FMPA) 
St. Lucie and Stanton 1 Projects, the City’s own solar farm atop City’s closed landfill, the City’s power 
plant, and a contract with Orlando Utilities Commission for supplemental energy and capacity (the “OUC 
Agreement”).  

As determined during the electric utility rate making process certain electric utility expenses largely 
related to the purchase of electric capacity, debt service, operations and maintenance, general fund 
transfer, and City shared internal service costs are recovered via the Base Energy Charge on customers’ 
bills and are not included in the Purchased Power Cost Adjustment (PCA). 

Expenses largely related to the purchase of electric energy from the aforementioned electric production 
resources, as well as the electric energy and capacity purchases under the OUC Agreement, and electric 
transmission costs, are recovered or returned via the Purchased Power Cost Adjustment (PCA) on 
customers’ bills. As per City Resolution 92-2021 the PCA “shall be established for a projected 3-month 
period for energy sales during that period…”. 

In order to establish the PCA, City’s Electric Utility Staff provides a recommendation to the City 
Commission of the PCA for the upcoming 3-month period.  

In determining the PCA options for December 1, Staff has calculated actual incurred purchased power 
costs beginning with December ’21 (when the PCA resolution was adopted by the Commission) through 
July ’23 together with a forecast of purchased power costs for the upcoming 3-month period (September 
’23 – November ’23).   

In performing its analysis Staff then calculates a True-Up amount representing the over or under recovery 
of purchased power costs from the prior period (Dec ’21 – July ’23), which are then credited or debited 
to the following period accordingly.  

Monthly PCA Review: 

Due to the impact of natural gas costs on wholesale power costs. Staff has developed three cases or 
options for evaluation by the City Commission. 

Option 1 would allow for a transfer of $3,500,000 to the Rate Stabilization Fund as well as a reduction of 
$4.28 on the PCA for the 1,000 kWh/month residential customer.   

Option 2 would allow for a transfer of $2,500,000 to the Rate Stabilization Fund as well as a reduction of 
$11.93 on the PCA for the 1,000 kWh/month residential customer. 

 



Option 3 would allow for a transfer of $500,000 to the Rate Stabilization Fund as well as a reduction of 
$27.24 on the PCA for the 1,000 kWh/month residential customer.   

Funding the Rate Stabilization Fund would serve to minimize the impact to customers during periods of 
increase due to rising natural gas fuel costs by withdrawing from the Rate Stabilization Fund to offset 
PCA costs.  

Staff develops its estimates of future purchased power costs using widely published and publicly 
available values for natural gas futures contracts for the applicable months.  City does not actually 
purchase natural gas futures contracts, it merely used published prices as a forecasting tool. 

Section 3 of City’s Resolution 92-2021 defines the Purchased Power Cost Adjustment (PCA) and formula 
for calculation as follows: 

 

PCA = (A + B+ C) / D  

Where:  

A = The projected purchased power costs for the projected 3-month period comprised of 

costs such as the FMPA Stanton 1 variable costs, the FMPA Municipal Solar Project 

power costs, supplemental purchased power capacity; energy and directly related costs, 

Lake Worth Beach electric utility power plant generating fuel; and transmission costs: 

B = A true-up amount representing the over or under recovery of purchased power 

costs from the prior period 

C = The amount transferred to or from the Rate Stabilization Fund for the projected 

period 

D = The projected total retail sales in MWh for the projected 3-month period 

 

Option 1: 

Accordingly, the PCA elements effective December 1, 2023 under Option 1 are as follows: 

A = $3,914,976 

B = -$3,606,725 

C = $3,500,000 

D = 130,638 MWh 

PCA = $29.15 per MWh 

 

Option 1 PCA; Residential First 1,000 kWh per month = $0.02705 per kWh 

Option 1 PCA; Residential Additional kWh above 1,000 kWh per month = $0.03705 per kWh 

Option 1 PCA; Average; Commercial and Demand = $0.02915 per kWh 

 

Option 2: 

Alternatively, the PCA elements effective December 1, 2023 under Option 2 are as follows: 

A = $3,914,976 



 

B = -$3,606,725 

C = $2,500,000 

D = 130,638 MWh 

PCA = $21.50 per MWh 

 

Option 2 PCA; Residential First 1,000 kWh per month = $0.01940 per kWh 

Option 2 PCA; Residential Additional kWh above 1,000 kWh per month = $0.02940 per kWh 

Option 2 PCA; Average; Commercial and Demand = $0.02150 per kWh 

 

Option 3: 

Lastly, the PCA elements effective December 1, 2023 under Option 3 are as follows: 

A = $3,914,976 

B = -$3,606,725 

C = $500,000 

D = 130,638 MWh 

PCA = $6.19 per MWh 

 

Option 3 PCA; Residential First 1,000 kWh per month = $0.00409 per kWh 

Option 3 PCA; Residential Additional kWh above 1,000 kWh per month = $0.01409 per kWh 

Option 3 PCA; Average; Commercial and Demand = $0.00619 per kWh 

 

If approved, the PCA for all customer rate classes will change effective December 1, 2023. 

 
MOTION: 

Move to approve/disapprove PCA as presented under Option 1; Option 2; or Option 3 effective December 
1, 2023. 

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Fiscal Impact Analysis- N/A 
Resolution 92-2021 
PCA Option 1 
PCA Option 2 
PCA Option 3 
PCA revenues vs. expenses 
PCA update – 12/21 – 7/23 



AMENDED
92-2021

RESOLUTION NO. 92-2021 OF THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, 
FLORIDA, PROVIDING FOR RATES, FEES AND CHARGES, AND 
REGULATIONS FOR ALL ELECTRICITY SOLD BY THE CITY OF LAKE 
WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA FOR USE OF ELECTRIC LIGHT AND 
POWER SYSTEM; REPEALING ALL RESOLUTIONS IN CONFLICT 
HEREWITH; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE 

WHEREAS, the City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida, is authorized and required to fix 
uniform and adequate rates for its service; and 

WHEREAS, the rates set forth herein are just and equitable and serve a valid public 
purpose. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF LAKE 
WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA as follows: 

Section 1. Definitions: For the purpose of this resolution, the following terms, phrases, 
words, and their derivations shall have the meaning given herein. When not inconsistent 
with the context, words used in the present tense include the future, words in the plural in 
the present tense include the future, words in the plural include the singular, and words 
in the singular include the plural. 

A. "Shall" is always mandatory and not merely directory.

B. "Net Metering Accounts" are those customer accounts with the City's Electric Utility
where the customer has applied to the City's Electric Utility; installed a Customer
Owned Renewable Generation System (as defined in the Net Metering Program
Rules and Regulations); executed a City Interconnection Agreement; has been
approved by the Electric Utility for interconnection with the City's electric system;
and, remains in compliance with the City's Net Metering Program. All rates
applicable to Net Metering Accounts are governed by Resolution No. 45-2019 (as
may be amended from time to time).

C. "Purchased Power Cost Adjustment (PCA)" The cost of electricity is affected by
the price of fuel and the purchase price of power supply. The PCA is an adjustment
charge caused by an increased or decreased in the cost to purchase or supply
power to customers. It is shown on the customer's bill as a credit or a surcharge
to the price per kilowatt-hour. The customer's utility bill may have a credit, as the
cost of power supply decreases, or it may have a surcharge when the costs
increase.

Section 2. The following schedules shall be the rates charged and the regulations 
imposed by the City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida, on all electric power sold by the City 
of Lake Worth Beach, Florida for lighting, heating and power purposes, to wit: 



Pg. 2, Reso. 92-2021 
 

A. Regular Residential Electric (Schedule R-S)  
 

1. Designation: Regular Residential Electric 
2. Applicable: For domestic electric purposes in private residences and 

individually metered apartments. Residential rates shall apply for electric 
energy used in commonly-owned facilities in condominiums and cooperative 
apartment buildings, subject to the following criteria:  
a. 100% of the energy is used exclusively for the co-owner’s benefit. 
b. None of the energy is used in any endeavor which sells or rents a 

commodity or provides service for a fee. 
c. Each point of delivery will be separately metered and billed.  
d. A responsible legal entity is established as the customer to whom the City 

of Lake Worth Beach can render its bills for said service.  
e. A cooperative or condominium requesting residential rates shall apply for 

the rate and establish the above criteria.  
3. Limitations: Auxiliary and stand-by generation or resale of the electric energy 

not permitted hereunder. Recognized rooming houses, tourist homes and 
dwellings accommodating more than four paying guests supplied through a 
single meter will not be served under this schedule.  

4. Service: Single phase, 60 cycles at available standard voltage. Three phase 
service may be furnished but only under special arrangements and at the option 
of the City of Lake Worth Beach.  

5. Monthly Rates: 
a. Customer Charge: A fixed charge based on the cost of preparing and 

delivering a bill, which will be applied to each electric account receiving a 
bill. $10.55 per month. 

b. Energy Charge per kWh 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6. The rates listed above include all administrative charges from the City of Lake 
Worth Beach. 

7. Purchased Power Cost Adjustment Charge: 
A. Purchased Power Cost Adjustment Charge will be applied as set forth in 

Section 3 below.  
8. Outside City Limits Surcharge: A surcharge for electric use outside the City of 

Lake Worth Beach, Florida, municipal limits shall be charged as set forth in 
Section 4 below. 

9. Minimum Bill: The minimum bill for electric use shall be charged at $35.00 per 
month. 

  

 First 1,000 
KWH’s 

Excess 

Base Energy $0.06900 $0.08900 
Power Cost Adjustment $0.03490 $0.04490 
Capacity N/A  N/A 
Total $0.1039 $0.1339 



P9.3, Reso.92-2021

B. Regular Commercial Service (Schedule C-S)
1. Designation: Regular Commercial Electric.
2. Applicable: For commercial, industrial, and governmental use within the

territory served by the Electric Distribution System of the City of Lake Worth
Beach, as available and at the option of the City.

3. Limitations: For consumers who own renewable energy facilities (such as wind,

solar power or home fuel cells), resale of the electric energy is not permitted

hereunder.
4. Service: Single or three phase, 60 cycles and at any available standard

voltage, at the option of the City of Lake Worth Beach.
5. Monthly Rates:

a. Customer Charge: A fixed charge based on the cost of preparing and

delivering a bill which will be applied to each electric account receiving a

bill. $17.00 per month.
b. Energy Charge per kWh.

Base Energy

Power Cost Adjustment

Capacity

Total

All kWhs

$0.08700

$0.03700

N/A

$0.12400

6. The rates listed above includes all administrative charges from the City of l-ake

Worth Beach.
7. Purchased Power Cost Adjustment Charge:

A. Purchased Power Cost Adjustment Charge will be applied as set forth in '

Section 3 below.
8. Outside City Limits Surcharge: A surcharge for electric use outside the City of

Lake Worth Beach, Florida, municipal limits shall be charged as set forth in
Section 4 below.

g. Minimum Bill: The minimum bill for electric use shall be $50.00 per month for
single phase service and $100.00 per month for poly phase service.

C. Demand Commercial Service (Schedule CD-S)
1. Designation: Demand Commercial Electric
2. Applicable: For customers who qualifies for service under Schedule C-S above

and has a peak demand of 25 kW or greater for three (3) consecutive months:
3. Limitations: Auxiliary or stand-by service or resale not permitted hereunder.
4. Service: Single or three phase, 60 cycles and at any available standard voltage,

at the option of the City of Lake Worth Beach.
5. Monthly Rates:

a. Customer Charge: A fixed charge based on the cost of preparing and

delivering a bill, which will be applied to each electric account receiving a

bill. $130.00 per month
b. Energy Charge per KWH



P9.4, Reso.92-2021

All kWhs Demand - KW
Base Energv $0.05200 $12.00
Power Cost Adiustment $0.03700
Capacity Charge N/A
Total $0.08900 $12.00

6. The rates listed above include all administrative charges from the City of Lake
Worth Beach.

7. Billing Demand: The maximum 15 minute measured demand in the month,
subject to power factor adjustment.

8. Power Factor Adjustment: When demand is measured with a kW meter and
customer's powerfactor in any month is below 95% the measured demand may
be adjusted to 95% power factor.

9. Purchased Power Cost Adjustment Charge:
A. Purchased Power Cost Adjustment Charge will be applied as set forth in

Section 3 below.
10. Outside City Limits Surcharge: A surcharge for electric use outside the City of

Lake Worth Beach, Florida, municipal limits shall be charged as set forth in
Section 4 below.

11. Minimum Bill: The minimum bill for electric use shall be $250.00 per month.

D. Regular Time of Use Commbrcial Service (Schedule CT-S)
1. Designation: Time of Us-e Commercial Service
2. Applicable: For commercial;, industrial, and governmental use within the territory

served by the Electric Distribution System of the City of Lake Worth Beach, as
available and at the option of the City.

3. Limitations: For consumers who own renewable energy facilities (such as wind,
solar power or home fuel cells), resale of the electric energy is not permitted
hereunder.

4. Service: Single or three phase, 60 cycles and at any available standard voltage, at
' the option of the City- 0f Lake Worth Beach.

5. Monthly Rates:

a bill which will be applied to each electric account receiving a bill. $30.00 per
month.

b. Energy Charge:
i. Off Peak $0,0840 per kWh
ii. On Peak $0.2600 per kWh
iii. Determination of Off-Peak Period: October - May: The off-peak period is

defined as the hours between 1:00 p.m. and 6:00 a.m., Monday through
Friday and all day Saturday and Sunday. ln addition, the following
holidays will also be considered off-peak: New Year's Day, Memorial Day-,
Thanksgiving Day, and Christmas Day. June - September: The off-peak
period is defined as the hours between 7:00 p.m. and 2:00 p.m., Monday
through Friday and all day Saturday and Sunday. ln addition, the following
holidays will also be considered off-peak: lndependence Day and Labor
Day. All other hours are considered on peak hours.



Pg.5, Reso.92-2021

6. Term of Contract: One year and thereafter until terminated at the option of either
party by the giving of not less than thirty (30) days advance written notice of the
effective date of termination.

7. Purchased Power Cost Adjustment Charge: A Purchased Power Cost Adjustment
Charge will be applied as set forth in Section 3 below.

8. Outside City Limits Surcharge: A surcharge for electric use outside the City of Lake
Worth Beach, Florida, municipal limits shall be charged as set forth in Section 4
below.

L Minimum Bill: The minimum billfor electric use shall be $50.00 per month for single
phase service and $100.00 per month for poly phase service.

E. Time of Use Demand Commercial Service (Schedule CDT-S)
1. Designation: Time of Use Demand Commercial Service
2. Applicable: For commercial, industrial, and governmental use within the territory

served by the Electric Distribution System of the City of Lake Worth Beach, as
available and at the option of the City.

3. Limitations: For consumers who own renewable energy facilities (such as wind,
solar power or home fuel cells), resale of the electric energy is not permitted
hereunder.

4. Service: Single or three phase,60 cycles and at any available standard 416
voltage, at the option of the City of Lake Worth Beach.

5. Monthly Rates:
a. Customer Charge: A fixed charge based on the cost of preparing and delivering

a billwhich will be applied to each Electric account receiving a bill. $140.00 per
month.

b. Energy Charge:
i. Off Peak $0.0620 per kWh: ii. On Peak $0.2400 per kWh :

iii. Demand Charge: $7.00 per kW.
iv. Billing Demand: The maximum 15 minute measured demand in the

month, subject to power factor adjustment.
v. Power Factor Adjustment: When demand is measured with a kW 438

meter and customer's power factor in any month is below 95% the
measured demand may be adjusted to 95% power factor.

vi. Determination of Off-Peak Period: October - May: The off-peak period is
defined as the hours between 1:00 p.m. and 6:00 o.ffi.,,Monday through
Friday and all day Saturday and Sunday. ln addition, the following
holidays will also be considered off-peak: New Year's Day, Memorial Day,
Thanksgiving Day, and Christmas Day.

vii. June - September: The off-peak period is defined as the hours between
7:00 p.m. and 2:00 p.m., Monday through Friday and all day Saturday and
Sunday. ln addition, the following holidays will also be considered off-
peak: Independence Day and Labor Day. All other hours are considered
on peak hours.

6. Term of Contract: One year and thereafter until terminated at the option of either
party by the giving of not less than thirty (30) days advance written notice of the
effective date of termination.

7. Purchased Power Cost Adjustment Charge: A Purchased Power Cost Adjustment
Charge will be applied as set forth in Section 3 below.



Pg.6, Reso.92-2021

8. Outside City Limits Surcharge: A surcharge for electric use outside the City of Lake
Worth Beach, Florida, municipal limits shall be charged as set forth in Section 4
below.

L Minimum Bill: The minimum bill for electric use shall be $140.00 per month.

F. Electric Vehicle Charging Level ll (Schedule EV2-S)

1. Designation: Electric Vehicle Charging Level ll
2. Applicable: For City owned public electric vehicle Level ll charging stations.

a. None of the energy is used in any endeavor which sells or rents a
commodity or provides service for a fee.

b. Each point of delivery will be separately metered and billed.
c. Limitations: Auxiliar:y and stand-by generation or resale of the electric

energy not permitted hereunder.

3. Energy Charge per kWh

AII KWH'S
Base Energy $0.05148
Power Cost Adjustment $0.03578
Capacity $0.01020
Total $0.09746

4 The rates listed,aboye include all administrative charges from the City of Lake
Worth Beach. l

5. Purchased Power Cost Adjustment Charge:
A. Purchased,Power Cost Adjustment Charge will be applied as set forth in

Section 3'below. : .

6. Outside City Lirnits Surcharge: A surcharge for electric use outside the City of
Lake Worth Beach, Florida, municipal limits shall be charged as set forth in

Section 4 below.

1. Designation: Private Area Lighting
2t Applicable: For,year-1_o-5r4d,outdoor security lighting of yards, driveways, walkways,

parking lots, parks, and other ar'eas, under the following conditions:

,?, Lights t9 9." served 
. lereunder shall -a: l lo.cations that are easily and

economicalli accessible to the City of Lake Worth Beach equipment and
personnel for construction and maintenance.

b. briginal location of lighting fixtures shall be by mutual agreement and shall not
be located so as to create a public nuisance.

c. Any relocation requested by customer after installation shall be made at
customer's expense, All new lighting units provided under this Schedule shall
be the high pressure sodium vapor (conservation lighting) type.

3. Limitations:
a. Auxiliary and stand-by generation or resale of the electric energy not permitted

hereunder.
b. The City of Lake Worth Beach, while exercising ieasonable diligence at all

times to furnish service hereunder, does not guarantee continuous lighting and
will not be liable for damages for any interruption, deficiency or failure of service
and reserves the right to interrupt service at any time for necessary repairs to
lines or equipment.



Pg.7, Reso.92-2021

4. Service: Service includes lamp renewals, energy from approximately dusk each
day until approximately dawn the following day and maintenance of facilities. The
City of Lake Worth Beach will replace all burned out lamps and will maintain its
facilities during regular daytime working hours as soon as practicable following
notification by the customer that such work is necessary. The City of Lake Worth
Beach shall be permitted to enter the customer's premises at all reasonable times
for the purpose of inspecting, maintaining, installing and removing any or all of its
equipment and facilities. Single phase, 60 cycles at available standard voltage.
Three phase service may be furnished but only under special arrangements and
at the option of the City of Lake Worth Beach.

5. Term of Service: Not less than one (1) year.
6. Monthly Rates: A fixed monthly charge based on the number of units installed shall

be charged based on the following schedule.
a. Standard Lighting:

Description Unit Cost per Month

175 Watt (7,000 Lumen) Mercury -Vapor Street Light Unit on
Existing Pole

$12.21

400 Watt (20,500 Lumen) Mercury-Vapor Street Light Unit on
Existinq Pole

$1 9.1 5

1,000 Watt (55,000 Lumen) Mercury-Vapor Street Light Unit on
Existing Pole

$37.68

100 Watt (9,500 Lumen) High Pressure Sodium Vapor Street,,
Light Unit on Existing Pole

$e.e3

250 Watt (27,500 Lumen) High Pressure Sodium Vapor Street
Light Unit on Existing Pole

$14.26

360 Watt High Pressure Sodium Vapor Street Light Unit on
Existinq Pole
400 Watt (50,000 Lumen) High Pressure Sodium Vapor Street
Light Unit on existing pole

$1 7.1 5

48 Watt LED Street Lisht Unit on Existins Pole $9.00
70 Watt LED Street Lisht Unit on Existins Pole $e.70
80 Watt LED Street Lisht Unit on Existins Pole $e 70
101 Watt LED Street Lisht Unit on Existins Pole $16.30
1 10 Watt LED Street Lisht lJnit on Existins Pole $16.30
133 Watt LED Street Light Unit on Existins Pole $16.30
150 Watt LED Street Lisht Unit on Existins Pole $16.30
Wood Pole and span of Overhead Conductors or Pole used
onlv for Liqht

$10.00

Concrete Pole and Span of Overhead Conductors or Pole used
onlv for Liqht

$15.00

Underground Conductors up to 150 feet $1.33,
Underqround Conductors from 150 feet to 300 feet $2 68

7. Purchased Power Cost Adjustment Charge: A Purchased Power Cost Adjustment
Charge will be applied as set forth in Section 3 below.

8. Outside City Limits Surcharge: A surcharge for electric use outside the City of Lake
Worth Beach, Florida, municipal limits shall be charged as set forth in Section 4
below.



Pg. 8, Reso.92-2021

H. Street Lighting (Schedule L-S)
1. Designation: Street Lighting
2. Applicable: For lighting of public right-of ways.
3. Limitations:

a. Auxiliary and stand-by generation or resale of the electric energy not permitted
hereunder.

b. The City of Lake Worth Beach, while exercising reasonable diligence at all
times to furnish service hereunder, does not guarantee continuous lighting and
will not be liable for damages for any interruption, deficiency or failure of service
and reserves the right to interrupt service at any time for necessary repairs to
lines or equipment.

c. Should the City of Lake Worth Beach be required by the customer to replace
the street light(s) with a light (or lights) of another type or rating, then the
customer may be required to pay the estimated labor, vehicle use and other
direct costs involved in replacing the fixtures.

4. Service: Service includes lamp renewals, energy from approximately dusk each
day until dawn the following day and maintenance of City of Lake Worth Beach
owned street lighting systems.

5. Term of Service: For not less than ten (10) years for City of Lake Worth Beach
facilities or customer will be required to pay depreciated cost of installed facilities
plus cost of removal.

6. Monthly Rates:
a. A fixed monthly charge based on the number of units installed shall be charged

based on the following schedule.
b. Conservation Lighting:

Description Unit Cost oer Month

100 Watt (9,500 Lumen) High Pressure Sodium Vapor Street
Light Unit on Existing Pole $7.85
150 Watt (27,500 Lumen) High Pressure Sodium Vapor Street
Lisht Unit on Existing Pole

$e.33

250 Watt (27,500 Lumen) High Pressure Sodium Vapor Street
Liqht Unit on Existing Pole

$12.26

360 Watt High Pressure Sodium Vapor Street Light Unit on
Existing Pole $15.19
400 Watt (50,000 Lumen) High Pressure Sodium Vapor Street
Liqht Unit on existing pole $17.09
48 Watt LED Street Light Unit on Existing Pole $9.00
70 Watt LED Street Light Unit on Existing Pole $9.70
80 Watt LED Street Light Unit on Existing Pole $9.70
101 Watt LED Street Light Unit on Existing Pole $16.30
1 10 Watt LED Street Light Unit on Existing Pole $16.30
133 Watt LED Street Light Unit on Ex isting Pole $16.30
150 Watt LED Street Lig ht Unit on Existing Pole $16.30



P9.9, Reso.92-2021

c. Appurtenances:

Description Unit Cost per Month
Wood Pole and span of Overhead Conductors $10.00 or Pole used only for Light
Concrete Pole and Span of Overhead Conductors $15.00 or Pole used only for Light
Underground Conductors up to 150 feet $1.33
Underground Conductors from 150 feet to 300 feet $2.68

7. Purchased Power Cost Adjustment Charge:
A. Purchased Power Cost Adjustment Charge will be applied as set forth in

Section 3 below.
8. Outside City Limits Surcharge:

A. Surcharge for electric use outside the City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida,
municipal limits shall be charged as set forth in Section 4 below.

Section 3 Purchased Power Cost Adiustment (PCA)I A Purchased Power Cost
Adjustment Charge (PCA) shall be established for a projected 3 month period for
energy sales during that period as follows:

PCA=(A+B+C)/D
where

A = The projected purchased power costs for the projected 3 month period compr:ised of
costs such as the FMPA Stanton 1 variable costs, the,FMPA Municipal Solar Project
power costs, supplemental purchased power capacity; energy and directly related costs,
Lake Worth Beach electric utility power generating fuel; and transmission costs :

B = A true-up amount representing the over or under recovery of purchased power
costs from the prior period

C = The amount transferred to or from the Rate Stabilization,Fund for the projected
period

D = The projected total retail sales in MWh for the projected 3 month period

The purchased power cost adjustment charge will be reconciied quarterly and trued'up
between estirnated costs and billing units and actual,costs and billing units.

Section 4. Svrcharqe For Service Outside The Municipal Limits: With respect to any
residents, pr:emises and/or,users outside the corporate limits of the City of Lake Worth
Beach, Florida, where such residents, premises and/or users now or hereafter have or
use electrical utility service with the electrical system of the City of Lake Worth Beach,
they shall be charged a rate for the electricity they use equal to the charge established
for service to the residents, premises and/or users within the City of Lake Worth Beach,
Florida, plus any applicable taxes or fees that are required in the Code of Ordinances or
Resolutions of the specific jurisdiction in which those accounts reside. Such taxes and
fees are collected by the City of Lake Worth Beach and remitted directly to the appropriate
County or Municipal entity.



Pg. 10, Reso. 92-2021 

Section 5. Nothing in this resolution shall prohibit the City of Lake Worth Beach from 
entering into an agreement to provide electricity and electric utility services to or within 
any unit of government or governmental subdivision with terms and conditions other than 
contained herein. 

Section 6. All resolutions or parts of resolutions in conflict herewith are expressly 
repealed. 

Section 7. If any provision of this resolution or the application thereof to any person or 
circumstance is held invalid, the invalidity shall not affect other provisions or applications 
of the resolution, which can be given effect without the invalid provision or application, 
and to this end the provisions of this resolution are declared severable. 

Section 8. This resolution shall be in effect for billings issued on or after January 1, 
2022. 

The passage of this resolution was moved by Commissioner McVoy, seconded 
by Commissioner Malega and upon being put to a vote, the vote was as follows: 

Mayor Betty Resch A YE 
Vice Mayor Herman Robinson A YE 
Commissioner Sarah Malega AYE 
Commissioner Christopher McVoy A YE 
Commissioner Kimberly Stokes A YE 

The Mayor thereupon declared this resolution duly passed and enacted on the 
14th day of December 2021. 

ATTEST: 

�✓ MelissannCoyne, City Clerk 

LAKE WORTH BEACH CITY COM ISSION 



CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA

POWER COST ADJUSTMENT CALCULATION

1 Projected Period Sept 2023 - Nov 2023

2 Prior Period True-Up Dec 2021 - July 2023

PCA = (A + B + C) / D

3 A = Projected Power Costs for the 3 months Sept 2023 - Nov 2023 $3,914,976

 (FMPA Stanton 1 variable costs, the FMPA Municipal Solar Project power costs,

 supplemental purchased power capacity, energy and directly related costs,

 Lake Worth Beach electric utility power generating fuel, and transmission costs)

B = True up amount for prior period Dec 2021 - July 2023

4    Actual Power Costs $33,114,027

5    Actual PCA Revenues $36,720,752

6    Difference -$3,606,725

7    B = True Up amount = Line 6 -$3,606,725

8    Remaining Costs to be Recovered $0

9 A + B = $308,251

10 C = Amount transferred to or from the Rate Stabilization Fund $3,500,000 Commission approved $500K for RSF (5/2/23) & $3M transfer option to RSF

11 D = Projected retail sales in MWh for the 3 months Sept 2023 - Nov 2023 130,638

12 PCA = (A + B + C) / D = $29.15  per MWh

13 $0.02915  per kWh

14 $29.15   per 1,000 kWh

15 Current PCA (Average - Commercial, Demand) $0.03343   per kWh

16 Current PCA (First 1,000 kWh Residential) $0.03133   per kWh

17 Current PCA (Additional kWh Residential) $0.04133   per kWh

18 Current PCA (Average - Commercial, Demand) $33.43   per 1,000 kWh

19 Change in PCA -$0.00428   per kWh

20 Monthly Change in Bill for 1,000 kWh Residential Customer -$4.28

and other customers per 1,000 kWh

21 Proposed PCA (Average - Commercial, Demand) $0.02915   per kWh

22 Proposed PCA (First 1,000 kWh Residential) $0.02705   per kWh

23 Proposed PCA (Additional kWh Residential) $0.03705   per kWh

Option 1

OUC bill, Stanton Energy only, Transmission & Power Plant Gas

PCA Revenues ACTUAL 

Derived from Sept - Nov '22 actual sales plus 2% added for growth

Based on anticipated Purchased Power, Gas futures; planned 

outages and transmission projections. 



CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA

POWER COST ADJUSTMENT CALCULATION

1 Projected Period Sept 2023 - Nov 2023

2 Prior Period True-Up Dec 2021 - July 2023

PCA = (A + B + C) / D

3 A = Projected Power Costs for the 3 months Sept 2023 - Nov 2023 $3,914,976

 (FMPA Stanton 1 variable costs, the FMPA Municipal Solar Project power costs,

 supplemental purchased power capacity, energy and directly related costs,

 Lake Worth Beach electric utility power generating fuel, and transmission costs)

B = True up amount for prior period Dec 2021 - July 2023

4    Actual Power Costs $33,114,027

5    Actual PCA Revenues $36,720,752

6    Difference -$3,606,725

7    B = True Up amount = Line 6 -$3,606,725

8    Remaining Costs to be Recovered $0

9 A + B = $308,251

10 C = Amount transferred to or from the Rate Stabilization Fund $2,500,000 Commission approved $500K for RSF (5/2/23) & $2MM transfer option 

11 D = Projected retail sales in MWh for the 3 months Sept 2023 - Nov 2023 130,638

12 PCA = (A + B + C) / D = $21.50  per MWh

13 $0.02150  per kWh

14 $21.50   per 1,000 kWh

15 Current PCA (Average - Commercial, Demand) $0.03343   per kWh

16 Current PCA (First 1,000 kWh Residential) $0.03133   per kWh

17 Current PCA (Additional kWh Residential) $0.04133   per kWh

18 Current PCA (Average - Commercial, Demand) $33.43   per 1,000 kWh

19 Change in PCA -$0.01193   per kWh

20 Monthly Change in Bill for 1,000 kWh Residential Customer -$11.93

and other customers per 1,000 kWh

21 Proposed PCA (Average - Commercial, Demand) $0.02150   per kWh

22 Proposed PCA (First 1,000 kWh Residential) $0.01940   per kWh

23 Proposed PCA (Additional kWh Residential) $0.02940   per kWh

Option 2 

OUC bill, Stanton Energy only, Transmission & Power Plant Gas

PCA Revenues ACTUAL 

Derived from Sept - Nov '22 actual sales plus 2% added for growth

Based on anticipated Purchased Power, Gas futures; planned 

outages and transmission projections. 



CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA

POWER COST ADJUSTMENT CALCULATION

1 Projected Period Sept 2023 - Nov 2023

2 Prior Period True-Up Dec 2021 - July 2023

PCA = (A + B + C) / D

3 A = Projected Power Costs for the 3 months Sept 2023 - Nov 2023 $3,914,976

 (FMPA Stanton 1 variable costs, the FMPA Municipal Solar Project power costs,

 supplemental purchased power capacity, energy and directly related costs,

 Lake Worth Beach electric utility power generating fuel, and transmission costs)

B = True up amount for prior period Dec 2021 - July 2023

4    Actual Power Costs $33,114,027

5    Actual PCA Revenues $36,720,752

6    Difference -$3,606,725

7    B = True Up amount = Line 6 -$3,606,725

8    Remaining Costs to be Recovered $0

9 A + B = $308,251

10 C = Amount transferred to or from the Rate Stabilization Fund $500,000 Commission approved $500K for RSF (5/2/23) No additional transfers 

11 D = Projected retail sales in MWh for the 3 months Sept 2023 - Nov 2023 130,638

12 PCA = (A + B + C) / D = $6.19  per MWh

13 $0.00619  per kWh

14 $6.19   per 1,000 kWh

15 Current PCA (Average - Commercial, Demand) $0.03343   per kWh

16 Current PCA (First 1,000 kWh Residential) $0.03133   per kWh

17 Current PCA (Additional kWh Residential) $0.04133   per kWh

18 Current PCA (Average - Commercial, Demand) $33.43   per 1,000 kWh

19 Change in PCA -$0.02724   per kWh

20 Monthly Change in Bill for 1,000 kWh Residential Customer -$27.24

and other customers per 1,000 kWh

21 Proposed PCA (Average - Commercial, Demand) $0.00619   per kWh

22 Proposed PCA (First 1,000 kWh Residential) $0.00409   per kWh

23 Proposed PCA (Additional kWh Residential) $0.01409   per kWh

Option 3 

OUC bill, Stanton Energy only, Transmission & Power Plant Gas

PCA Revenues ACTUAL 

Derived from Sept - Nov '22 actual sales plus 2% added for growth

Based on anticipated Purchased Power, Gas futures; planned 

outages and transmission projections. 



Month
PCA Monthly 

Revenues

PCA Monthly 

Expenditures
Difference PCA Cumulative 

Revenue

PCA Cumulative 

Expenses

Dec-21 $1,103,969 $942,601 $161,368 $1,103,969 $942,601

Jan-22 $1,194,586 $1,023,131 $171,455 $2,298,555 $1,965,732

Feb-22 $1,025,360 $926,824 $98,536 $3,323,915 $2,892,556

Mar-22 $1,119,913 $1,273,434 ($153,521) $4,443,828 $4,165,990

Apr-22 $1,347,197 $1,591,498 ($244,301) $5,791,025 $5,757,488

May-22 $1,266,715 $2,310,587 ($1,043,872) $7,057,740 $8,068,075

Jun-22 $1,758,533 $2,583,598 ($825,065) $8,816,273 $10,651,673

Jul-22 $1,959,972 $3,743,037 ($1,783,065) $10,776,245 $14,394,710

Aug-22 $2,229,001 $3,782,608 ($1,553,607) $13,005,246 $18,177,318

Sep-22 $3,044,528 $3,315,729 ($271,201) $16,049,774 $21,493,047

Oct-22 $2,754,939 $1,656,627 $1,098,312 $18,804,713 $23,149,674

Nov-22 $2,305,698 $1,313,150 $992,548 $21,110,411 $24,462,824

Dec-22 $2,267,120 $948,626 $1,318,494 $23,377,531 $25,411,450

Jan-23 $2,123,484 $786,317 $1,337,167 $25,501,015 $26,197,767

Feb-23 $1,864,011 $886,202 $977,809 $27,365,026 $27,083,969

Mar-23 $2,074,694 $1,047,496 $1,027,198 $29,439,720 $28,131,465

Apr-23 $2,295,461 $908,816 $1,386,645 $31,735,181 $29,040,281

May-23 $2,064,788 $1,146,676 $918,112 $33,799,969 $30,186,957

Jun-23 $1,398,725 $1,109,974 $288,751 $35,198,694 $31,296,931

Jul-23 $1,522,057 $1,817,096 ($295,039) $36,720,751 $33,114,027

TOTALS $36,720,751 $33,114,027 $3,606,724

PCA Table & Graphs

$0

$1,000,000

$2,000,000

$3,000,000

$4,000,000

Monthly PCA Expenses (red) and Revenues (blue) Dec '21 - July '23

PCA Monthly Revenues PCA Monthly Expenditures

$0

$5,000,000

$10,000,000

$15,000,000

$20,000,000

$25,000,000

$30,000,000

$35,000,000

$40,000,000

Cumulative PCA Expenses (red) and Revenues (blue), Dec '21 - July '23

PCA Cumulative Revenue PCA Cumulative Expenses



Actual Invoices

Month PCA Revenues OUC Stanton Energy FPL Transmission Power Plant Gas Total PCA Expenditures Difference Forecasted Actual

Dec-21 $1,103,969 $624,137 $150,600 $161,877 $5,987 $942,601 $161,368

Jan-22 $1,194,586 $597,332 $185,672 $157,785 $82,342 $1,023,131 $171,455

Feb-22 $1,025,360 $629,349 $114,305 $193,045 -$9,875 $926,824 $98,536

Mar-22 $1,119,913 $757,376 $319,272 $207,018 -$10,232 $1,273,434 -$153,521

Apr-22 $1,347,197 $1,100,745 $275,769 $234,601 -$19,617 $1,591,498 -$244,301

May-22 $1,266,715 $1,821,194 $244,121 $245,204 $68 $2,310,587 -$1,043,872

Jun-22 $1,758,533 $2,052,485 $231,784 $220,612 $78,717 $2,583,598 -$825,065

Jul-22 $1,959,972 $3,186,177 $225,766 $268,782 $62,312 $3,743,037 -$1,783,065

Aug-22 $2,229,001 $3,246,599 $210,589 $309,347 $16,073 $3,782,608 -$1,553,607

Sep-22 $3,044,528 $2,793,956 $223,199 $281,616 $16,958 $3,315,729 -$271,201

Oct-22 $2,754,939 $1,143,371 $261,212 $252,044 $0 $1,656,627 $1,098,312

Nov-22 $2,305,698 $767,327 $288,673 $242,922 $14,228 $1,313,150 $992,548

Dec-22 $2,267,120 $594,138 $254,194 $155,730 -$55,436 $948,626 $1,318,494

Jan-23 $2,123,484 $535,886 $106,848 $143,583 $0 $786,317 $1,337,167

Feb-23 $1,864,011 $617,271 $58,539 $210,392 $0 $886,202 $977,809

Mar-23 $2,074,694 $800,769 $15,895 $219,482 $11,350 $1,047,496 $1,027,198

Apr-23 $2,295,461 $518,884 $162,861 $226,621 $450 $908,816 $1,386,645 $2.73 $2.50

May-23 $2,064,788 $775,620 $133,640 $237,416 $0 $1,146,676 $918,112 $2.93 $2.47

Jun-23 $1,398,726 $921,208 $170,925 $17,841 $0 $1,109,974 $288,752 $3.30 $2.72

Jul-23 $1,522,057 $1,312,766 $244,592 $259,738 $0 $1,817,096 -$295,039 $3.33 $3.72

Aug-23 $3.22

Sep-23 $3.07

TOTALS $36,720,752 $24,796,590 $3,878,456 $4,245,656 $193,325 $33,114,027 $3,606,725 $3.10

$500,000

$3,106,725

Commission Approved creation of stabalization fund with PCA Option 2 at May 2 2023 meeting ------------------------------------>

Total over/under collection after transfer of $500,000 to stabilization fund ->

Average Delivered NG Price 



STAFF REPORT 
UTILITY MEETING 

 

 
  

AGENDA DATE: September 26, 2023 DEPARTMENT: Electric Utility 

TITLE: 

Resolution No. 31-2023 – Establishment of an Electric Utility Rate Stabilization Fund 

 
SUMMARY: 

Resolution No. 31-2023 establishes a new Special Revenue Fund titled “Electric Utility Rate Stabilization 
Fund” for the purpose of maintaining rate competitiveness and rate stability by mitigating cost increases 
that would otherwise be passed along to the customers of the Electric Utility.  

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

As a result of sudden increases in the costs of natural gas in 2022-2023 and other factors impacting the 
power costs, the City of Lake Worth Beach desires to establish an “Electric Utility Rate Stabilization 
Fund” to maintain rates competitive with other utilities, mitigate against potential increased costs of 
purchased power, and provide rate stability for the customers of the Electric Utility.  

To provide the necessary funding, the Electric Utility Fund will transfer $3,500,000 of excess Power Cost 
Adjustment (PCA) revenues accumulated as of August 2023 and appropriate each year from the electric 
fund an amount of not less than 10% of the expected annual PCA expense or an amount not greater 
than 25% of the expected annual PCA expense to The Fund. 

The City Commission shall have the sole authority to direct the deposit or withdrawal of funds from The 
Fund. The Fund shall be administered by the Electric Utility and Financial Services Department. 

 
MOTION: 

Move to approve/disapprove Resolution No. 31-2023 to establish a new Special Revenue Fund titled 
“Electric Utility Rate Stabilization Fund” which will be funded by excess PCA revenues accumulated as 
of August 2023.  

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Fiscal Impact Analysis 
Resolution No. 31-2023 



FISCAL IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Five Year Summary of Fiscal Impact: 

 
Fiscal Years 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 
Inflows 
 Current Appropriation 0 0 0 0 0 
 Program Income 0 0 0 0 0 
 Grants 0 0 0 0 0 
 In Kind 0 0 0 0 0 
 
Outflows 
 Current Appropriation 0 0 0 0 0  
 Operating  $3,500,000 0 0 0 0 
 Capital 0 0 0 0 0 

 
Net Fiscal Impact $3,500,000 0 0 0 0 

 
No. of Addn’l Full-Time 
Employee Positions 0 0 0 0 0 
 

   

Budget Transfer Impact 

  Revenue Source Expenditure 

Department   Rate Stabilization Fund  Electric Fund 

Division  N/A  Non-Departmental 

GL Description  Transfers In Transfers Out 

GL Account Number  TBD (New GL Account)  TBD (New GL Account) 

Project Number  N/A N/A 

Requested Funds  $3,500,000  $3,500,000 

   

 



31-2023 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 31-2023 OF THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH 
BEACH, FLORIDA, ESTABLISHING A RATE STABILIZATION 
FUND TO STABILIZE ELECTRIC UTILITY RATES FROM 
SUDDEN FLUCTUATIONS; AUTHORIZING THE TRANSFER 
OF EXCESS POWER COST ADJUSTMENT REVENUES TO 
THE RATE STABILIZATION FUND; SETTING GENERAL 
GUIDELINES FOR THE RATE STABILIZATION FUND; AND, 
PROVIDING FOR REPEAL OF CONFLICTS AND AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE 

WHEREAS, the Electric Utility of the City of Lake Worth Beach desires to maintain 

rates competitive with other utilities, mitigate against potential increased costs of 

purchased power, and provide rate stability for the customers of the Electric Utility; and 

 
WHEREAS, due to sudden increases in the costs of natural gas in 2022-2023 and 

other factors impacting the City’s power costs, the City is in need of a fund to assist in 

stabilizing the rates paid by the Electric Utility customers, which fund can assist in 

reducing the impact of sudden changes in the City’s power costs; and 

 

WHEREAS, consistent with the desires of the Electric Utility Department, the 

Financial Services Department, and the City Commission, the City seeks to establish an 

Electric Utility Rate Stabilization Fund; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Commission finds establishing a Rate Stabilization Funds 

serves a valid public purpose.  

 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF 
LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, that: 
 
Section 1.  The City hereby establishes a Rate Stabilization Fund (“The Fund”) for the 
purpose of maintaining rate competitiveness and rate stability by mitigating cost increases 
due to fluctuations in power costs or other emergencies that would otherwise be passed 
along to the customers of the Electric Utility.  
 
Section 2.  The City Commission authorizes the transfer of $3,500,000 from the Electric 
Utility’s excess Power Cost Adjustment (PCA) revenues as of August 2023 into The Fund.  
 
Section 3.  The City Commission shall have the sole authority to direct the deposit or 
withdrawal of funds from The Fund. The Fund shall be administered by the Electric Utility 
and Financial Services Department. The general guidelines for The Fund are as follows: 
 

1. The Fund shall not be used for any purpose except for mitigating cost increases 
due to fluctuations in power costs or other electric utility emergencies that 
would otherwise be passed along to the customers in the form of a sudden 
electric utility rate increase.  
 



Pg. 2, Reso. 31-2023 

2. Subject to the ultimate approval of the City Commission, the Electric Utility and 
Financial Services Department will propose to appropriate each year from the 
electric fund an amount of not less than 10% of the expected annual PCA expense 
or an amount not greater than 25% of the expected annual PCA expense to The 
Fund.  

 
3. If during a fiscal year, The Fund falls to an amount less than 10% of the annual 

PCA expense, the City Commission shall consider increasing the electric utility 
rates to increase the amount in The Fund. If during a fiscal year, The Fund 
increases to an amount of more than 25% of the annual PCA expense, the City 
Commission shall consider reducing electric utility rates to decrease the amount in 
The Fund. 

 
4. On at least a quarterly basis, the Electric Utility in conjunction with the Financial 

Services Department shall provide a status of The Fund to the City Commission 
and a recommendation regarding any proposed changes to The Fund. 

 
Section 4. All resolutions or parts of resolutions are hereby amended to the extent that 
they are in conflict with this Resolution.  
 
Section 5. This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon passage. 
 

The passage of this resolution was moved by Commissioner _________, seconded 
by Commissioner _____________, and upon being put to a vote, the vote was as follows: 
 

Mayor Betty Resch 
Vice Mayor Christopher McVoy 
Commissioner Sarah Malega 
Commissioner Kimberly Stokes 
Commissioner Reinaldo Diaz 

 
The Mayor thereupon declared this resolution duly passed and adopted on the ___ 

day of __________ 2023. 
 

LAKE WORTH BEACH CITY COMMISSION 
 
 

By: __________________________ 
Betty Resch, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Melissa Ann Coyne, MMC, City Clerk 



STAFF REPORT 
UTILITY MEETING 

 

  

AGENDA DATE: September 26, 2023 DEPARTMENT: Electric Utility 

TITLE: 

Resolution No. 43-2023 – Establishing the rates and charges for the Electric Utility for Fiscal Year 2024 

 
SUMMARY: 

Resolution 43-2023 proposes a 5% Increase in Base Energy Charges, Demand Charges, Minimum Bill, 
and Customer Service Charges  

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

Base Energy Charges, Demand Charges, and Customer Service Charges have remained unchanged 
since January 2021. During City’s budget process it was determined that an increase in the electric 
utility’s Base Revenues were required to help increase the utility’s Working Capital Fund (also referred 
to as “Reserves”) so as to grow Reserves gradually over a period of multiple years to an amount equal 
to six months of operating and maintenance expenses. Base Revenues include items such as Base 
Energy Charges, Demand Charges, Minimum Bill, and Customer Service Charges.   

If approved, the impact to the electric bill for a residential customer using 1,000 kilowatt-hour of electricity 
per month will be an increase by $3.98 per month. 

Not included in the proposed increase is the Power Cost Adjustment (“PCA”) which is adjusted 
periodically to reflect costs of power purchases by the electric utility on behalf of its customers.  There 
are no proposed changes to the PCA at this time. 

 
MOTION: 

Move to approve/disapprove Resolution No. 43-2023 – Establishing the rates and charges for the Electric 
Utility for Fiscal Year 2024. 

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Fiscal Impact Analysis 
Resolution 43-2023 
Electric Utility Rate Schedule Effective June 1, 2023 
Proposed Electric Utility Rate Schedule Effective October 1, 2023 
Comparison of Existing to Proposed Rates 
 



FISCAL IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Five Year Summary of Fiscal Impact: 
 

Fiscal Years 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 
Inflows 
 Current Appropriation 0 0 0 0 0 
 Program Income 0 0 0 0 0 
 Grants 0 0 0 0 0 
 In Kind 0 0 0 0 0 
 

Outflows 
 Current Appropriation 0 0 0 0 0  
 Operating  0 0 0 0 0 
 Capital 0 0 0 0 0 
 

Net Fiscal Impact 0 0 0 0 0 
 

No. of Addn’l Full-Time 
Employee Positions 0 0 0 0 0 
 

 



43-2023 
 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 43-2023 OF THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, 
FLORIDA, PROVIDING FOR RATES, FEES AND CHARGES, AND 
REGULATIONS FOR ALL ELECTRICITY SOLD BY THE CITY OF LAKE 
WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA FOR USE OF ELECTRIC LIGHT AND POWER 
SYSTEM; REPEALING ALL RESOLUTIONS IN CONFLICT HEREWITH; 
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE 
 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida, is authorized and required to fix uniform and 
adequate rates for its service; and 
 
WHEREAS, the rates set forth herein are just and equitable and serve a valid public purpose. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF LAKE 
WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA as follows:  
 
Section 1.   Definitions:  For the purpose of this resolution, the following terms, phrases, 
words, and their derivations shall have the meaning given herein. When not inconsistent with the 
context, words used in the present tense include the future, words in the plural in the present 
tense include the future, words in the plural include the singular, and words in the singular include 
the plural. 
 

A. "Shall" is always mandatory and not merely directory. 
 

B. “Net Metering Accounts” are those customer accounts with the City’s Electric Utility 
where the customer has applied to the City’s Electric Utility; installed a Customer-
Owned Renewable Generation System (as defined in the Net Metering Program Rules 
and Regulations); executed a City Interconnection Agreement; has been approved by 
the Electric Utility for interconnection with the City’s electric system; and, remains in 
compliance with the City’s Net Metering Program. All rates applicable to Net Metering 
Accounts are governed by Resolution No. 45-2019 (as may be amended from time to 
time). 
 

C. “Purchased Power Cost Adjustment (PCA)” The cost of electricity is affected by the 
price of fuel and the purchase price of power supply. The PCA is an adjustment charge 
caused by an increased or decreased in the cost to purchase or supply power to 
customers. It is shown on the customer’s bill as a credit or a surcharge to the price per 
kilowatt-hour. The customer’s utility bill may have a credit, as the cost of power supply 
decreases, or it may have a surcharge when the costs increase.  

 
Section 2. The following schedules shall be the rates charged and the regulations imposed 
by the City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida, on all electric power sold by the City of Lake Worth 
Beach, Florida for lighting, heating and power purposes, to wit: 
 



Pg. 2, Reso. 43-2023 
 

A. Regular Residential Electric (Schedule R-S)  
 

1. Designation: Regular Residential Electric 
2. Applicable: For domestic electric purposes in private residences and individually 

metered apartments. Residential rates shall apply for electric energy used in 
commonly-owned facilities in condominiums and cooperative apartment 
buildings, subject to the following criteria:  
a. 100% of the energy is used exclusively for the co-owner’s benefit. 
b. None of the energy is used in any endeavor which sells or rents a commodity 

or provides service for a fee. 
c. Each point of delivery will be separately metered and billed.  
d. A responsible legal entity is established as the customer to whom the City of 

Lake Worth Beach can render its bills for said service.  
e. A cooperative or condominium requesting residential rates shall apply for the 

rate and establish the above criteria.  
3. Limitations: Auxiliary and stand-by generation or resale of the electric energy not 

permitted hereunder. Recognized rooming houses, tourist homes and dwellings 
accommodating more than four paying guests supplied through a single meter 
will not be served under this schedule.  

4. Service: Single phase, 60 cycles at available standard voltage. Three phase 
service may be furnished but only under special arrangements and at the option 
of the City of Lake Worth Beach.  

5. Monthly Rates: 
a. Customer Charge: A fixed charge based on the cost of preparing and 

delivering a bill, which will be applied to each electric account receiving a bill. 
 

Effective Date  10/1/2022 10/01/23 

Charge: $10.55 $11.08 

 
b. Energy Charge per kWh 

 

  
6. The rates listed above include all administrative charges from the City of Lake Worth 

Beach. 
7. Purchased Power Cost Adjustment Charge: 

A. Purchased Power Cost Adjustment Charge will be applied as set forth in Section 
3 below.  

Effective Date: 10/1/2022 10/01/23 

 First 
1,000 

KWH’s 

Excess First 
1,000 

KWH’s 

Excess 

Base Energy $0.06900 0.08900 $0.07245 $0.09345 

Power Cost 
Adjustment 

0.06092 0.07092 $0.03133 $0.04133 

Capacity N/A  N/A N/A N/A 

Total 0.12992 0.15992 $0.10378 $0.13478 



Pg. 3, Reso. 43-2023 
 

8. Outside City Limits Surcharge: A surcharge for electric use outside the City of Lake 
Worth Beach, Florida, municipal limits shall be charged as set forth in Section 4 
below. 

9. Minimum Bill: The minimum bill for electric use shall be charged at $37.00 per 
month. 

 
B. Regular Commercial Service (Schedule C-S)  

1. Designation: Regular Commercial Electric. 
2. Applicable: For commercial, industrial, and governmental use within the territory served 

by the Electric Distribution System of the City of Lake Worth Beach, as available and 
at the option of the City. 

3. Limitations: For consumers who own renewable energy facilities (such as wind, solar 
power or home fuel cells), resale of the electric energy is not permitted hereunder. 

4.  Service: Single or three phase, 60 cycles and at any available standard voltage, at the 
option of the City of Lake Worth Beach.  

5. Monthly Rates:  
a. Customer Charge: A fixed charge based on the cost of preparing and delivering a 

bill which will be applied to each electric account receiving a bill.  
 

Effective Date  10/1/2022 10/01/23 

Charge: $17.00 $17.85 

 
b. Energy Charge per kWh. 

 

Effective Date: 10/1/2022 10/1/2023 

  All kWhs All kWhs 

Base Energy $0.08700 $0.09135 

Power Cost 
Adjustment 

$0.06302 $0.03343 

Capacity N/A N/A 

Total $0.15002 $0.12478 

 
6. The rates listed above includes all administrative charges from the City of Lake Worth 

Beach. 
7.  Purchased Power Cost Adjustment Charge: 
A.  Purchased Power Cost Adjustment Charge will be applied as set forth in Section 3 

below.  
8. Outside City Limits Surcharge: A surcharge for electric use outside the City of Lake 

Worth Beach, Florida, municipal limits shall be charged as set forth in Section 4 below. 
9. Minimum Bill: The minimum bill for electric use shall be $53.00 per month for single 

phase service and $105.00 per month for poly phase service. 
 

C. Demand Commercial Service (Schedule CD-S) 
1. Designation: Demand Commercial Electric  
2. Applicable: For customers who qualifies for service under Schedule C-S above and 

has a peak demand of 25 kW or greater for three (3) consecutive months:  
3. Limitations: Auxiliary or stand-by service or resale not permitted hereunder.  



Pg. 4, Reso. 43-2023 
 

4. Service: Single or three phase, 60 cycles and at any available standard voltage, at the 
option of the City of Lake Worth Beach.  

5. Monthly Rates:  
a. Customer Charge: A fixed charge based on the cost of preparing and delivering a 

bill, which will be applied to each electric account receiving a bill. 
 

 

Effective Date  10/1/2022 10/01/23 

Charge: $130.00 $136.50 

 
b. Energy Charge per KWH 

 

Effective Date: 10/1/2022 10/1/2023 

 All kWhs Demand 
- KW 

All kWhs Demand 
- KW 

Base Energy $0.05200 $12.00 $0.05460 $12.60 

Power Cost Adjustment $0.06302  $0.03343  

Capacity Charge N/A  N/A  

Total $0.11502 $12.00 $0.08803 $12.60 

 
 

6. The rates listed above include all administrative charges from the City of Lake Worth 
Beach. 

7. Billing Demand: The maximum 15 minute measured demand in the month, subject 
to power factor adjustment.  

8. Power Factor Adjustment: When demand is measured with a kW meter and 
customer's power factor in any month is below 95% the measured demand may be 
adjusted to 95% power factor.  

9. Purchased Power Cost Adjustment Charge:  
A. Purchased Power Cost Adjustment Charge will be applied as set forth in Section 3 

below.  
10. Outside City Limits Surcharge: A surcharge for electric use outside the City of Lake 

Worth Beach, Florida, municipal limits shall be charged as set forth in Section 4 
below. 

11. Minimum Bill: The minimum bill for electric use shall be $263.00 per month. 
 

D. Regular Time of Use Commercial Service (Schedule CT-S)  
1. Designation: Time of Use Commercial Service 
2. Applicable: For commercial, industrial, and governmental use within the territory 

served by the Electric Distribution System of the City of Lake Worth Beach, as 
available and at the option of the City.  

3. Limitations: For consumers who own renewable energy facilities (such as wind, 
solar power or home fuel cells), resale of the electric energy is not permitted 
hereunder.  

4. Service: Single or three phase, 60 cycles and at any available standard voltage, at 
the option of the City of Lake Worth Beach.  



Pg. 5, Reso. 43-2023 
 

5. Monthly Rates:  
a. Customer Charge: A fixed charge based on the cost of preparing and delivering 

a bill which will be applied to each electric account receiving a bill.  
 

Effective Date  10/1/2022 10/01/23 

Charge: $30.00 $31.50 

 
b. Energy Charge:  

 

Effective Date: 10/1/2022 10/1/2023 

 Per kWh Per kWh 

Off Peak $0.840 $0.08820 

On Peak  $0.2600 $0.27300 

 
i. Determination of Off-Peak Period: October – May: The off-peak period is defined 

as the hours between 1:00 p.m. and 6:00 a.m., Monday through Friday and all day 
Saturday and Sunday. In addition, the following holidays will also be considered off-
peak: New Year's Day, Memorial Day, Thanksgiving Day, and Christmas Day. June 
– September: The off-peak period is defined as the hours between 7:00 p.m. and 
2:00 p.m., Monday through Friday and all day Saturday and Sunday. In addition, 
the following holidays will also be considered off-peak: Independence Day and 
Labor Day. All other hours are considered on peak hours. 

6. Term of Contract:  One year and thereafter until terminated at the option of either party 
by the giving of not less than thirty (30) days advance written notice of the effective 
date of termination.  

7. Purchased Power Cost Adjustment Charge: A Purchased Power Cost Adjustment 
Charge will be applied as set forth in Section 3 below. 

8. Outside City Limits Surcharge: A surcharge for electric use outside the City of Lake 
Worth Beach, Florida, municipal limits shall be charged as set forth in Section 4 below.  

9. Minimum Bill: The minimum bill for electric use shall be $53.00 per month for single 
phase service and $105.00 per month for poly phase service. 

 
E. Time of Use Demand Commercial Service (Schedule CDT-S) 

1. Designation: Time of Use Demand Commercial Service  
2. Applicable: For commercial, industrial, and governmental use within the territory served 

by the Electric Distribution System of the City of Lake Worth Beach, as available and 
at the option of the City. 

3. Limitations: For consumers who own renewable energy facilities (such as wind, solar 
power or home fuel cells), resale of the electric energy is not permitted hereunder.  

4. Service: Single or three phase, 60 cycles and at any available standard 416 voltage, 
at the option of the City of Lake Worth Beach. 

5. Monthly Rates: 
a. Customer Charge: A fixed charge based on the cost of preparing and delivering a 

bill which will be applied to each Electric account receiving a bill $147.00 per month. 
 

Effective Date  10/1/2022 10/01/23 



Pg. 6, Reso. 43-2023 
 

Charge: $140.00 $147.00 

 
b.  Energy Charge: 

 

Effective Date: 10/1/2022 10/1/2023 

 Per kWh Per kWh 

Off Peak $0.0620 $0.06510 

On Peak  $0.2400 $0.25200 

Demand Charge $7.00 per kW $7.35 per kW 

 
i. Billing Demand: The maximum 15 minute measured demand in the month, 

subject to power factor adjustment.  
ii. Power Factor Adjustment: When demand is measured with a kW 438 meter and 

customer's power factor in any month is below 95% the measured demand may 
be adjusted to 95% power factor.  

iii. Determination of Off-Peak Period: October – May: The off-peak period is defined 
as the hours between 1:00 p.m. and 6:00 a.m., Monday through Friday and all 
day Saturday and Sunday. In addition, the following holidays will also be 
considered off-peak: New Year's Day, Memorial Day, Thanksgiving Day, and 
Christmas Day. 

iv. June – September: The off-peak period is defined as the hours between 7:00 
p.m. and 2:00 p.m., Monday through Friday and all day Saturday and Sunday. In 
addition, the following holidays will also be considered off-peak: Independence 
Day and Labor Day. All other hours are considered on peak hours.  

6. Term of Contract:  One year and thereafter until terminated at the option of either 
party by the giving of not less than thirty (30) days advance written notice of the 
effective date of termination.  

7. Purchased Power Cost Adjustment Charge: A Purchased Power Cost Adjustment 
Charge will be applied as set forth in Section 3 below.  

8. Outside City Limits Surcharge: A surcharge for electric use outside the City of Lake 
Worth Beach, Florida, municipal limits shall be charged as set forth in Section 4 
below. 

9. Minimum Bill: The minimum bill for electric use shall be $147.00 per month. 
 

F. Electric Vehicle Charging Level II (Schedule EV2-S)  
 

1. Designation: Electric Vehicle Charging Level II 
2. Applicable: For City owned public electric vehicle Level II charging stations. 

a. None of the energy is used in any endeavor which sells or rents a commodity or 
provides service for a fee. 
b. Each point of delivery will be separately metered and billed.  
c. Limitations: Auxiliary and stand-by generation or resale of the electric energy 
not permitted hereunder. 

3. Energy Charge per kWh 
 

Effective Date: 10/1/2022 10/1/2023 

 All KWH’s All KWH’s 

Base Energy $0.05148 $0.07245 



Pg. 7, Reso. 43-2023 
 

Power Cost Adjustment $0.06180 $0.03133 

Capacity $0.01020 N/A 

Total $0.12348 $0.10378 
 

4.  The rates listed above include all administrative charges from the City of Lake 
Worth Beach. 

5. Purchased Power Cost Adjustment Charge: 
A. Purchased Power Cost Adjustment Charge will be applied as set forth in Section 

3 below. 
6. Outside City Limits Surcharge: A surcharge for electric use outside the City of Lake 

Worth Beach, Florida, municipal limits shall be charged as set forth in Section 4 
below. 

 
G. Private Area Lighting (Schedule L-P) 

1. Designation: Private Area Lighting  
2. Applicable: For year-round outdoor security lighting of yards, driveways, walkways, 

parking lots, parks, and other areas, under the following conditions: 
a. Lights to be served hereunder shall be at locations that are easily and economically 

accessible to the City of Lake Worth Beach equipment and personnel for 
construction and maintenance. 

b. Original location of lighting fixtures shall be by mutual agreement and shall not be 
located so as to create a public nuisance.  

c. Any relocation requested by customer after installation shall be made at customer's 
expense. All new lighting units provided under this Schedule shall be the high 
pressure sodium vapor (conservation lighting) type. 

3. Limitations:  
a. Auxiliary and stand-by generation or resale of the electric energy not permitted 

hereunder.  
b. The City of Lake Worth Beach, while exercising reasonable diligence at all times to 

furnish service hereunder, does not guarantee continuous lighting and will not be 
liable for damages for any interruption, deficiency or failure of service and reserves 
the right to interrupt service at any time for necessary repairs to lines or equipment. 

4. Service: Service includes lamp renewals, energy from approximately dusk each day until 
approximately dawn the following day and maintenance of facilities. The City of Lake 
Worth Beach will replace all burned out lamps and will maintain its facilities during regular 
daytime working hours as soon as practicable following notification by the customer that 
such work is necessary. The City of Lake Worth Beach shall be permitted to enter the 
customer's premises at all reasonable times for the purpose of inspecting, maintaining, 
installing and removing any or all of its equipment and facilities. Single phase, 60 cycles 
at available standard voltage. Three phase service may be furnished but only under 
special arrangements and at the option of the City of Lake Worth Beach. 

5. Term of Service: Not less than one (1) year.  
6. Monthly Rates: A fixed monthly charge based on the number of units installed shall be 

charged based on the following schedule.  
a. Standard Lighting:  

 
Description Unit Cost per Month  
 



Pg. 8, Reso. 43-2023 
 

Effective Date: 10/1/2022 10/1/2023 

175 Watt (7,000 Lumen) Mercury –Vapor Street Light 
Unit on Existing Pole 

$12.21 $12.82 

400 Watt (20,500 Lumen) Mercury-Vapor Street Light 
Unit on Existing Pole  

$19.15  $20.11  

1,000 Watt (55,000 Lumen) Mercury-Vapor Street 
Light Unit on Existing Pole  

$37.68 $39.56 
 

100 Watt (9,500 Lumen) High Pressure Sodium Vapor 
Street Light Unit on Existing Pole 

$9.93 $10.43 

250 Watt (27,500 Lumen) High Pressure Sodium 
Vapor Street Light Unit on Existing Pole  

$14.26 $14.97  

360 Watt High Pressure Sodium Vapor Street Light 
Unit on Existing Pole  

$17.05 $17.90  

400 Watt (50,000 Lumen) High Pressure Sodium 
Vapor Street Light Unit on existing pole  

$17.15 $18.01 
 

48 Watt LED Street Light Unit on Existing Pole $9.00 $9.45 

70 Watt LED Street Light Unit on Existing Pole $9.70 $10.19 

80 Watt LED Street Light Unit on Existing Pole $9.70 $10.19 

101 Watt LED Street Light Unit on Existing Pole $16.30 $17.12 

110 Watt LED Street Light Unit on Existing Pole $16.30 $17.12 

133 Watt LED Street Light Unit on Existing Pole $16.30 $17.12 

150 Watt LED Street Light Unit on Existing Pole $16.30 $17.12 

Wood Pole and span of Overhead Conductors or Pole 
used only for Light 

$10.00 $10.50 

Concrete Pole and Span of Overhead Conductors or 
Pole used only for Light  

$15.00 $15.75  

Underground Conductors up to 150 feet  $1.33 $1.40  

Underground Conductors from 150 feet to 300 feet  $2.68 $2.81  

 
7. Purchased Power Cost Adjustment Charge: A Purchased Power Cost Adjustment 

Charge will be applied as set forth in Section 3 below.  
8. Outside City Limits Surcharge: A surcharge for electric use outside the City of Lake 

Worth Beach, Florida, municipal limits shall be charged as set forth in Section 4 below. 
  

H. Street Lighting (Schedule L-S)  
1. Designation: Street Lighting 
2. Applicable: For lighting of public right-of ways.  
3. Limitations: 

a. Auxiliary and stand-by generation or resale of the electric energy not permitted 
hereunder.  

b. The City of Lake Worth Beach, while exercising reasonable diligence at all times to 
furnish service hereunder, does not guarantee continuous lighting and will not be 
liable for damages for any interruption, deficiency or failure of service and reserves 
the right to interrupt service at any time for necessary repairs to lines or equipment.  

c. Should the City of Lake Worth Beach be required by the customer to replace the 
street light(s) with a light (or lights) of another type or rating, then the customer may 



Pg. 9, Reso. 43-2023 
 

be required to pay the estimated labor, vehicle use and other direct costs involved 
in replacing the fixtures. 

4. Service: Service includes lamp renewals, energy from approximately dusk each day 
until dawn the following day and maintenance of City of Lake Worth Beach owned 
street lighting systems.  

5. Term of Service: For not less than ten (10) years for City of Lake Worth Beach facilities 
or customer will be required to pay depreciated cost of installed facilities plus cost of 
removal.  

6. Monthly Rates:  
a. A fixed monthly charge based on the number of units installed shall be charged 

based on the following schedule.  
b. Conservation Lighting:  

 
Description Unit Cost per Month 
 

Effective Date: 10/1/2022 10/1/2023 

100 Watt (9,500 Lumen) High Pressure Sodium Vapor 
Street Light Unit on Existing Pole 

$7.85  
$8.24 

150 Watt (27,500 Lumen) High Pressure Sodium 
Vapor Street Light Unit on Existing Pole  

$9.33 $9.80 

250 Watt (27,500 Lumen) High Pressure Sodium 
Vapor Street Light Unit on Existing Pole  

$12.26 $12.87 

360 Watt High Pressure Sodium Vapor Street Light 
Unit on Existing Pole  

$15.19  
$15.95 

400 Watt (50,000 Lumen) High Pressure Sodium 
Vapor Street Light Unit on existing pole 

$17.09  
$17.94 

48 Watt LED Street Light Unit on Existing Pole $9.00 $9.45 

70 Watt LED Street Light Unit on Existing Pole $9.70 $10.19 

80 Watt LED Street Light Unit on Existing Pole $9.70 $10.19 

101 Watt LED Street Light Unit on Existing Pole $16.30 $17.12 

110 Watt LED Street Light Unit on Existing Pole $16.30 $17.12 

133 Watt LED Street Light Unit on Existing Pole $16.30 $17.12 

150 Watt LED Street Light Unit on Existing Pole $16.30 $17.12 

 
c. Appurtenances:  

 
Description Unit Cost per Month  
Wood Pole and span of Overhead Conductors $10.50 or Pole used only for Light  
Concrete Pole and Span of Overhead Conductors $15.75 or Pole used only for Light  
Underground Conductors up to 150 feet $1.40  
Underground Conductors from 150 feet to 300 feet $2.81 
 

7. Purchased Power Cost Adjustment Charge: 
A. Purchased Power Cost Adjustment Charge will be applied as set forth in Section 3 

below.  
8. Outside City Limits Surcharge:  



Pg. 10, Reso. 43-2023 
 

A. Surcharge for electric use outside the City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida, municipal 
limits shall be charged as set forth in Section 4 below.  

 
Section 3.  Purchased Power Cost Adjustment (PCA):   A Purchased Power Cost 
Adjustment Charge (PCA) shall be established for a projected 3 month period for energy 
sales during that period as follows: 
 
 PCA = (A + B + C) / D 
where: 
 
A = The projected purchased power costs for the projected 3 month period comprised of 
costs such as the FMPA Stanton 1 variable costs, the FMPA Municipal Solar Project power 
costs, supplemental purchased power capacity, energy and directly related costs, Lake 
Worth Beach electric utility power generating fuel, and transmission costs 
 
B = A true-up amount representing the over or under recovery of purchased power costs 
from the prior period 
 
C = The amount transferred to or from the Rate Stabilization Fund for the projected period 
 
D = The projected total retail sales in MWh for the projected 3 month period 
 
The purchased power cost adjustment charge will be reconciled quarterly and trued up 
between estimated costs and billing units and actual costs and billing units. 
 
Section 4.  Surcharge For Service Outside The Municipal Limits:  With respect to any 
residents, premises and/or users outside the corporate limits of the City of Lake Worth Beach, 
Florida, where such residents, premises and/or users now or hereafter have or use electrical 
utility service with the electrical system of the City of Lake Worth Beach, they shall be charged 
a rate for the electricity they use equal to the charge established for service to the residents, 
premises and/or users within the City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida, plus any applicable taxes 
or fees that are required in the Code of Ordinances or Resolutions of the specific jurisdiction 
in which those accounts reside. Such taxes and fees are collected by the City of Lake Worth 
Beach and remitted directly to the appropriate County or Municipal entity.  
 
Section 5.  Nothing in this resolution shall prohibit the City of Lake Worth Beach from 
entering into an agreement to provide electricity and electric utility services to or within any 
unit of government or governmental subdivision with terms and conditions other than 
contained herein.  
 
Section 6.  All resolutions or parts of resolutions in conflict herewith are expressly repealed.  
 
Section 7.  If any provision of this resolution or the application thereof to any person or 
circumstance is held invalid, the invalidity shall not affect other provisions or applications of 
the resolution, which can be given effect without the invalid provision or application, and to 
this end the provisions of this resolution are declared severable.  
 



Pg. 11, Reso. 43-2023 
 

Section 8.  This resolution shall be in effect for billings issued on or after October 1, 2023.  
 

The passage of this resolution was moved by Commissioner McVoy, seconded by 
Commissioner Malega and upon being put to a vote, the vote was as follows: 
 

 
Mayor Betty Resch  
Vice Mayor Christopher McVoy  
Commissioner Sarah Malega  
Commissioner Kimberly Stokes  
Commissioner Reinaldo Diaz  
 
The Mayor thereupon declared this resolution duly passed and enacted on the 26th day 

of September 2023. 
 

LAKE WORTH BEACH CITY COMMISSION 
 
 

By: _________________________ 
Betty Resch, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Melissa Ann Coyne, MMC, City Clerk 



 

Electric Rates Effective June 1, 2023 

 

Residential Service 

Customer Charge  $10.55 /month 
Energy Charges:    First 1,000 kWh     Additional KWh 
Base Energy Charge   $0.06900 / kWh     $0.08900 / kWh 
Power Cost Adjustment   $0.03133 / kWh     $0.04133 / KWh 
Total Energy Charges        $0.10033 / kWh     $0.13033 / kWh 
Minimum Bill:     $35.00 
 

Commercial Service 

Customer Charge $17.00 /month 
Energy Charges:   
Base Energy Charge  $0.08700 / kWh  
Power Cost Adjustment   $0.03343 / kWh  
Total Energy Charges        $0.12043 / kWh  
Minimum Bill Single Phase Service: $50.00 
Minimum Bill Poly Phase Service:  $100.00 
 

Commercial Demand Service 

Customer Charge $130.00 /month 
Demand Charge      $12.00 /kW 
Energy Charges:  
Base Energy Charge   $0.05200 / kWh      
Power Cost Adjustment   $0.03343 / kWh      
Total Energy Charges        $0.08543 / kWh      
Minimum Bill:     $250.00 
 

Time of Use Commercial Service 

Customer Charge $30.00 /month 
Energy Charges:  
Off-Peak Energy Charge  $0.08400 / kWh 
On-Peak Energy Charge  $0.26000 / kWh      
Power Cost Adjustment  $0.03343 / kWh      
Minimum Bill Single Phase Service: $50.00 
Minimum Bill Poly Phase Service:  $100.00 
 

Time of Use Commercial Demand Service 

Customer Charge $140.00 /month 
Demand Charge  $7.00 /kW 
Energy Charges:   
Off-Peak Energy Charge  $0.06200 / kWh 
On-Peak Energy Charge  $0.24000 / kWh      
Power Cost Adjustment  $0.03343 / kWh      
Minimum Bill:    $140.00 

Electric Vehicle Charging Level II 

Energy Charges:   
Base Energy Charge  $0.06168 / kWh 
Power Cost Adjustment  $0.03133 / kWh  
Total Energy Charges       $0.09301 / kWh      
     
 

PURCHASE POWER COST ADJUSTMENT (PCA) 
Purchased Power Cost Adjustment (PCA): A Purchased Power Cost Adjustment Charge (PCA) shall be established 
for a projected 3 month period for energy sales during that period as follows: 

PCA = (A + B + C) / D, where: 
A = The projected purchased power costs for the projected 3 month period comprised of costs such as the FMPA 
Stanton 1 variable costs, the FMPA Municipal Solar Project power costs, supplemental purchased power capacity, 
energy and directly related costs, Lake Worth Beach electric utility power generating fuel, and transmission costs 
B = A true-up amount representing the over or under recovery of purchased power costs from the prior period 
C = The amount transferred to or from the Rate Stabilization Fund for the projected period 
D = The projected total retail sales in MWh for the projected 3 month period 
The purchased power cost adjustment charge will be reconciled quarterly and trued up between estimated costs and 
billing units and actual costs and billing units. 



 

Private Area Lighting  

175 W Mercury Vapor  $12.21 /month 
400 W Mercury Vapor  $19.15 /month 
1,000 W Mercury Vapor  $37.68 /month 
100 W Sodium Vapor  $9.93 /month 
250 W Sodium Vapor  $14.26 /month 
360 W Sodium Vapor  $17.05 /month 
400 W Sodium Vapor  $17.15 /month 
48 W LED   $9.00 /month 
70 W LED   $9.70 /month 
80 W LED   $9.70 /month 
101 W LED   $16.30 /month 
110 W LED   $16.30 /month 
133 W LED   $16.30 /month 
150 W LED   $16.30 /month 
Wood Pole and Span  $10.00 /month 
Concrete Pole and Span  $15.00 /month 
Underground Conductors: 
 Up to 150 ft  $1.33 /ft/month 
 150-300 ft  $2.68 /ft/month  

Street Lighting  

100 W Sodium Vapor  $7.85 /month 
150 W Sodium Vapor  $9.33 /month 
250 W Sodium Vapor  $12.26 /month 
360 W Sodium Vapor  $15.19 /month 
400 W Sodium Vapor  $17.09 /month 
48 W LED   $9.00 /month 
70 W LED   $9.70 /month 
80 W LED   $9.70 /month 
101 W LED   $16.30 /month 
110 W LED   $16.30 /month 
133 W LED   $16.30 /month 
150 W LED   $16.30 /month 
Wood Pole and Span  $10.00 /month 
Concrete Pole and Span  $15.00 /month 
Underground Conductors: 
 Up to 150 ft  $1.33 /ft/month 
 150-300 ft  $2.68 /ft/month  
 
 

 

The lighting rates shown above do not include the Power Cost Adjustment of $0.03133 per kWh. 



 

Electric Rates Effective October 1, 2023 

 

Residential Service 

Customer Charge  $11.08 /month 
Energy Charges:    First 1,000 kWh     Additional KWh 
Base Energy Charge   $0.07245 / kWh     $0.09345 / kWh 
Power Cost Adjustment   $0.03133 / kWh     $0.04133 / KWh 
Total Energy Charges        $0.10378 / kWh     $0.13478 / kWh 
Minimum Bill:     $37.00 
 

Commercial Service 

Customer Charge $17.85 /month 
Energy Charges:   
Base Energy Charge  $0.09135 / kWh  
Power Cost Adjustment   $0.03343 / kWh  
Total Energy Charges        $0.12478 / kWh  
Minimum Bill Single Phase Service: $53.00 
Minimum Bill Poly Phase Service:  $105.00 
 

Commercial Demand Service 

Customer Charge $136.50 /month 
Demand Charge      $12.60 /kW 
Energy Charges:  
Base Energy Charge   $0.05460 / kWh      
Power Cost Adjustment   $0.03343 / kWh      
Total Energy Charges        $0.08803 / kWh      
Minimum Bill:     $263.00 
 

Time of Use Commercial Service 

Customer Charge $31.50 /month 
Energy Charges:  
Off-Peak Energy Charge  $0.08820 / kWh 
On-Peak Energy Charge  $0.27300 / kWh      
Power Cost Adjustment  $0.03343 / kWh      
Minimum Bill Single Phase Service: $53.00 
Minimum Bill Poly Phase Service:  $105.00 
 

Time of Use Commercial Demand Service 

Customer Charge $147.00 /month 
Demand Charge  $7.35 /kW 
Energy Charges:   
Off-Peak Energy Charge  $0.06510 / kWh 
On-Peak Energy Charge  $0.25200 / kWh      
Power Cost Adjustment  $0.03343 / kWh      
Minimum Bill:    $147.00 

Electric Vehicle Charging Level II 

Energy Charges:   
Base Energy Charge  $0.07245 / kWh 
Power Cost Adjustment  $0.03133 / kWh  
Total Energy Charges       $0.10378 / kWh      
     
 

PURCHASE POWER COST ADJUSTMENT (PCA) 
Purchased Power Cost Adjustment (PCA): A Purchased Power Cost Adjustment Charge (PCA) shall be established 
for a projected 3 month period for energy sales during that period as follows: 

PCA = (A + B + C) / D, where: 
A = The projected purchased power costs for the projected 3 month period comprised of costs such as the FMPA 
Stanton 1 variable costs, the FMPA Municipal Solar Project power costs, supplemental purchased power capacity, 
energy and directly related costs, Lake Worth Beach electric utility power generating fuel, and transmission costs 
B = A true-up amount representing the over or under recovery of purchased power costs from the prior period 
C = The amount transferred to or from the Rate Stabilization Fund for the projected period 
D = The projected total retail sales in MWh for the projected 3 month period 
The purchased power cost adjustment charge will be reconciled quarterly and trued up between estimated costs and 
billing units and actual costs and billing units. 



 

Private Area Lighting  

175 W Mercury Vapor  $12.82 /month 
400 W Mercury Vapor  $20.11 /month 
1,000 W Mercury Vapor  $39.56 /month 
100 W Sodium Vapor  $10.43 /month 
250 W Sodium Vapor  $14.97 /month 
360 W Sodium Vapor  $17.90 /month 
400 W Sodium Vapor  $18.01 /month 
48 W LED   $9.45 /month 
70 W LED   $10.19 /month 
80 W LED   $10.19 /month 
101 W LED   $17.12 /month 
110 W LED   $17.12 /month 
133 W LED   $17.12 /month 
150 W LED   $17.12 /month 
Wood Pole and Span  $10.50 /month 
Concrete Pole and Span  $15.75 /month 
Underground Conductors: 
 Up to 150 ft  $1.40 /ft/month 
 150-300 ft  $2.81 /ft/month  

Street Lighting  

100 W Sodium Vapor  $8.24 /month 
150 W Sodium Vapor  $9.80 /month 
250 W Sodium Vapor  $12.87 /month 
360 W Sodium Vapor  $15.95 /month 
400 W Sodium Vapor  $17.94 /month 
48 W LED   $9.45 /month 
70 W LED   $10.19 /month 
80 W LED   $10.19 /month 
101 W LED   $17.12 /month 
110 W LED   $17.12 /month 
133 W LED   $17.12 /month 
150 W LED   $17.12 /month 
Wood Pole and Span  $10.50 /month 
Concrete Pole and Span  $15.75 /month 
Underground Conductors: 
 Up to 150 ft  $1.40 /ft/month 
 150-300 ft  $2.81 /ft/month  
 
 

 

The lighting rates shown above do not include the Power Cost Adjustment of $0.03133 per kWh. 









STAFF REPORT 
UTILITY MEETING 

 

 

AGENDA DATE: September 26,2023  DEPARTMENT: Water Utilities 

TITLE: 

Resolution No. 44-2023 – Establish the rates and charges for the Water System for Fiscal Year 2023-
2024 

 
SUMMARY: 

Resolution 44-2023 establishes the rates and charges for the City’s Water System for Fiscal Year 2023-
2024, which includes a rate increase of 3.25%. 

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

The City of Lake Worth Beach contracts with Stantec on an ongoing basis to provide a yearly Revenue 
Sufficiency Analysis. This analysis provides a multi-year projection of the sufficiency of revenues for 
the Water Utility to meet current and projected financial requirements and determine the level of 
revenue increases necessary in each year to provide adequate revenues to fund all identified cost 
requirements.  

The results of the current FY 2023-2024 rate sufficiency analysis have shown that there is a need for a 
rate increase of a 3.25% from the previous fiscal year.  

Continued conservation efforts including water conservation education materials and the City's block 
rate structure will assure that the City remains a leader in water conservation efforts. 

Pursuant to section 180.136, Florida Statutes, the City notified its customers of the proposed increase 
in the water rates through the City’s billing process. 

 
MOTION: 

Move to approve/disapprove Resolution No. 44-2023 establishing the rates and charges for the City 
Water Utility for Fiscal Year 2023-2024. 

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Fiscal Impact Analysis N/A 
Resolution No. 44-2023 



44-2023 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 44-2023 OF THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, 
FLORIDA, PROVIDING FOR WATER SYSTEMS RATES AND CHARGES 
FOR FISCAL YEAR 2024; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; 
PROVIDING FOR THE REPEAL OF ALL RESOLUTIONS OR PARTS OF 
RESOLUTIONS IN CONFLICT HEREWITH; AND PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida, is authorized and required to 

fix uniform and adequate rates for its services; and 
 

WHEREAS, an evaluation of the level of Water system rates establishes a need to 
revise the rates and charges as set forth herein in order to meet the several objectives 
identified by the evaluation; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Commission finds the rates and charges for the City’s Water System 
for Fiscal Year 2023 as set forth herein are fair and equitable and serve a valid public 
purpose. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION TO THE 
CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, that: 
 
Section 1: For the purpose of this resolution, the following terms, phrases, words, and 
their derivations shall have the meaning given herein.  When not inconsistent with the 
context, words used in the present tense include the future, words in the plural in the 
present tense include the future, words in the plural include the singular, and words in the 
singular include the plural. 
 
 “Shall” is always mandatory and not merely directory. 
 
 “Phase I water shortage”, “Phase II water shortage”, “Phase III water shortage”, 
and “Phase IV water shortage”, shall refer to the phases of water shortage that may be 
declared by the South Florida Water Management District pursuant to the Florida 
Administrative Code Chapter 40E-21. 
 
 “ERU” shall stand for “Equivalent Residential Unit” and shall mean the average 
amount of potable water used by a residential facility in terms of the reserved capacity 
needed to serve that facility.  One (1) ERU is, by definition, equal to one (1) single-family 
residence.  Each residential unit in a multi-family complex or mobile home park unit is 
equivalent to 66% of one ERU, or as calculated in accordance with Chapter 18, Article 
VI, Code of Ordinances of the City of Lake Worth Beach. 
 
Section 2: The following schedules shall be the rate charged by the City of Lake Worth 
Beach for all water sold by the City of Lake Worth Beach for all purposes, to wit: 



Pg. 2, Reso. 44-2023 

GENERAL SERVICE – SCHEDULE NO. 1 
  

Designation: General Service 
Applicable: For commercial, industrial, and governmental use within the territory 

served by the Water Distribution System of the City of Lake Worth 
Beach, as available and at the option of the City. 

 
Monthly Rates:  Customer Charge, effective as of the dates listed: 
 

Effective Date: 10/01/2022 10/01/2023 
Charge: $5.31 $5.48 

 
A fixed charge based on the cost of preparing and delivering a bill, which 
will be applied to each water account receiving a bill. 

 
Base Facility Charge, effective as of the dates listed: 
 

Effective Date: 10/01/2022 10/01/2023 
5/8” x 3/4” Meter $15.83 $16.35 
1” Meter $39.61 $40.90 
1-1/2” Meter $79.19 $81.77 
2” Meter $126.73 $130.85 
3” Meter $253.47 $261.71 
4” Meter $396.02 $408.89 
6” Meter $792.06 $817.80 
8” Meter $1,230.06 $1,270.04 

 
For meter sizes larger than those shown in the table, the Director shall 
determine the charge on a case-by-case basis. 

 
A fixed charge designed to recover a portion of the fixed costs of the water 
system shall be applied to each meter based upon the size of the meter. 

 
Volume Charge: Rates for each hundred gallons of metered water 
consumption effective as of the dates listed: 
 

Effective Date: 10/01/2022 10/01/2023 
Block 1 $.341 $.352 
Block 2 $.525 $.542 
Block 3 $.711 $.734 
Block 4 $1.244 $1.284 
Block 5 $1.561 $1.612 

 
The amount of water consumption in each block subject to the rates in the 
table above is based upon meter size and is as follows (in hundreds of 
gallons): 

 



Pg. 3, Reso. 44-2023 

 Block 1 Block 2 Block 3 Block 4 Block 5 
Meter 
Size 

Min Max Min Max Min Max Min Max Min Max 

5/8” x 3/4” 1 40 41 80 81 120 121 200 201 ∞ 
1” 1  100 101 200 201 300 301 500 501 ∞ 
1-1/2” 1  200 201 400 401 600 601 1,000 1001 ∞ 
2” 1  320 321 640 641 960 961 1,600 1601 ∞ 
3” 1  640 640 1,280 1281 1,920 1921 3,200 3201 ∞ 
4” 1 1,000 1001 2,000 2001 3,000 3001 5,000 5001 ∞ 
6” 1 2,000 2001 4,000 4001 6,000 6001 10,000 10001 ∞ 
8” 1 4,000 4001 6,000 6001 8,000 8001 12,000 12001 ∞ 

 
Meter Deposit: Reference City of Lake Worth Resolution No. 59-2019 or latest 

revision thereof. 
 
RESIDENTIAL – SCHEDULE NO. 2 
 

Designation: Residential 
 
Applicable: For individually metered single-family customers, master-metered 

single-family residential units, individually metered multi-family 
customers, master-metered multi-family residential units, cottages, 
apartments, trailers or mobile home parks use within the territory 
served by the Water Distribution System of the City of Lake Worth 
Beach, as available and at the option of the City. 

 
Monthly Rates:  Customer Charge, effective as of the dates listed: 

 
Effective Date: 10/01/2022 10/01/2023 

Charge: $5.31 $5.48 
 

A fixed charge based on the cost of preparing and delivering a bill, which 
will be applied to each water account receiving a bill. 

 
Base Facility Charge, effective as of the dates listed:  
 

Effective 
Date 

10/01/2022 10/01/2023 ERU 

Charge: $15.83 $16.35 Per ERU 
Charge: $10.45 $10.79 Per multi-family 

residential unit or 
mobile home unit 
(66% of 1 ERU) 

 
A fixed charge designed to recover a portion of the fixed costs of the water 
system shall be applied to each ERU served, as defined above. 

 



Pg. 4, Reso. 44-2023 

Volume Charge:  Rates for each hundred gallons of metered water consumption 
effective as of the dates listed: 
 

Effective 
Date: 

10/01/2022 10/01/2023 

Block 1 $.341 $.352 
Block 2 $.525 $.542 
Block 3 $.711 $.734 
Block 4 $1.244 $1.284 
Block 5 $1.561 $1.612 

 
The amount of water consumption in each block subject to the rates in the 
table above is for each meter served per month, as defined above, and is 
as follows (in hundreds of gallons): 

 
Water Use Per 

Meter Per Month 
Single-Unit Accounts Multi-Unit Accounts 

Blocks Minimum Maximum Minimum Maximum 
Block 1 1 40 1 20 
Block 2 41 80 21 40 
Block 3 81 120 41 60 
Block 4 121 200 61 100 
Block 5 201 ∞ 101 ∞ 

 
Meter Deposit:  Reference City of Lake Worth Resolution No. 59-2019 or 
latest revision thereof. 

 
UNMETERED FIRE LINE – SCHEDULE NO. 3 
 

Designation: Fire Service 
 
Applicable: All buildings requiring this service. 

 
Monthly Rate:  Rates effective as of the dates listed: 

 
Effective Date: 10/01/2022 10/01/2023 
2” Connection $30.35 $31.33 
4” Connection $78.39 $80.94 
6” Connection $156.89 $161.99 
8” Connection $254.71 $262.98 
10” Connection $391.74 $404.47 
12” Connection $666.10 $687.74 

 
TEMPORARY HYDRANT METER:  Charge effective as of dates listed: 

 
 10/01/2023 
 
Meter Deposit: $525.00 
Activation Fee: $35.00 



Pg. 5, Reso. 44-2023 

Application Fee: $17.00 
Fee to move a hydrant meter: $30.00 
Minimum charge per month: $261.71 

 
IRRIGATION SERVICE – SCHEDULE NO. 4 
 

Designation: Irrigation Service 
 
Applicable: For any customer with an independent meter for irrigation use within 

the territory served by the Water Distribution System of the City of 
Lake Worth Beach, as available and at the option of the City. 

 
Monthly Rates:  Customer Charge, effective as of the dates listed: 

 
Effective Date: 10/01/2022 10/01/2023 

Charge: $5.31 $5.48 
 
A fixed charge based on the cost of preparing and delivering a bill, which 
will be applied to each water account receiving a bill. 

 
Base Facility Charge, effective as of the dates listed: 

 
Effective Date: 10/01/2022 10/01/2023 
5/8” x 3/4” Meter $15.83 $16.35 
1” Meter $39.61 $40.90 
1-1/2” Meter $79.19 $81.77 
2” Meter $126.73 $130.85 
3” Meter $253.47 $261.71 
4” Meter $396.02 $408.89 
6” Meter $792.06 $817.80 

 
A fixed charge designed to recover a portion of the fixed costs of the water 
system shall be applied to each meter based upon the size of the meter. 

 
Volume Charge:  Rates for each hundred gallons of meter water consumption 
effective as of the dates listed: 

 
Effective Date: 10/01/2022 10/01/2023 
Block 1 $.711 $.734 
Block 2 $1.244 $1.284 
Block 3 $1.561 $1.612 

  
The amount of water consumption in each block subject to the rates in the 
table above is based upon meter size and is as follows (in hundreds of 
gallons): 

 
 Block 1 Block 2 Block 3 
Meter Size Min Max Min Max Min Max 
5/8” x 3/4” 1  100 101 200 201 ∞ 



Pg. 6, Reso. 44-2023 

    
1” 1  250 251  500 501 ∞ 
1-1/2” 1  500 501  1,000 1,001 ∞ 
2” 1  800 801  1,600 1,601 ∞ 
3” 1  1,600 1,601  3,200 3,201 ∞ 
4” 1  2,500 2,501  5,000 5,001 ∞ 
6” 1  5,000 5,001  10,000 10,001 ∞ 

 
Meter Deposit:  Reference City of Lake Worth Resolution No. 59-2019 or 
latest revision thereof. 

 
Section 3: It is the City’s intention to maintain Phase I (3 days per week) water 
restrictions within the City’s service area.  However, in the event that a Phase II or IV 
mandatory water restriction is declared by the South Florida Water Management District 
or other authority having jurisdiction upon the City to reduce water production, the Volume 
Charge listed in Section 2 above will be adjusted upwards by fifteen percent (15%).  The 
application of the water restriction surcharge is to maintain net revenue margins of the 
utility system, which may be eroded due to reduced sales resulting from the imposed 
water restrictions, to meet debt service covenants on any outstanding indebtedness 
allocable to utility system and to promote water conservation.  The water consumption 
rates will be adjusted and will be applicable to all water use above the first consumption 
block usage range as referenced in Section 1 – General Service – Schedule No. 1 for the 
commercial, industrial and governmental use and Section 2 – Residential – Schedule No. 
2 for individually metered single-family and multiple-family residential, as well as master 
metered multiple-family residential use. 
 
The water restriction surcharge will not be applied to the base facility charge, unmetered 
fire line charge or the wastewater rates for service.  The water restriction surcharge shall 
be applied by the City beginning with the first billing cycle following the declared 
mandatory Phase IV water restrictions as imposed by the South Florida Water 
Management District or other authority having jurisdiction. 
 
The mandatory water restriction surcharge shall be discontinued by the City beginning at 
the first billing cycle following the removal or lifting of the Phase IV water restrictions by 
the South Florida Water Management District or other authority having jurisdiction. 
 
Section 4: Average Billing Calculation:  The average billing process will establish a 
monthly bill, which will be based on the average water bill for the preceding 12 calendar 
months.  If the residence or apartment has been occupied for the last 12 months and the 
customer can qualify as an existing customer, the previous tenant or owner’s bill may be 
used to estimate the average monthly billing. 
 
The average billing calculation will be reviewed and adjustments made to correct for 
changes in rates, usage, or other factors to be implemented on the bills issued during 
June and December of each year. 
 
Section 5: With respect to any premises or users situated outside the corporate limits 
of the City of Lake Worth Beach, which premises or users now or hereafter have active 
connections with the water system of the City, there shall be charged a rate equal to the 



Pg. 7, Reso. 44-2023 

charges established for service to residents of the City, plus a surcharge equal to twenty-
five percent (25%) of such charge as outlined in the Policies & Procedures Manual.  The 
foregoing surcharge shall not apply to users with whom the City has now or shall hereafter 
contract for services at charges established in such contracts unless the contract provides 
for surcharges. 
 
Section 6: If any provision of this resolution, or the application thereof any person or 
circumstance is held invalid, the invalidity shall not affect other provisions or applications 
of the resolution, which can be given effect without the invalid provision or applications, 
and to this end, the provisions of this resolution are declared severable. 
 
Section 7: All resolutions or parts of resolutions in conflict herewith are hereby 
repealed. 
 
Section 8: This resolution shall be in effect for billings issued on or after the 1st day of 
October 2023. 
 
 The passage of this resolution was moved by Commissioner ________, seconded 
by Commissioner _________, and upon being put to a vote, the vote was as follows: 
 

Mayor Betty Resch  
Vice Mayor Christopher McVoy  
Commissioner Sarah Malega  
Commissioner Kimberly Stokes 
Commissioner Reinaldo Diaz 

 
 The Mayor thereupon declared this resolution duly passed and adopted this _____ 
day of September 2023. 
 

LAKE WORTH BEACH CITY COMMISSION 
 
 
By: _______________________ 

 Betty Resch, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Melissa Ann Coyne, MMC, City Clerk 



STAFF REPORT 
UTILITY MEETING 

 

 

AGENDA DATE: September 26,2023 DEPARTMENT: Water Utilities 

TITLE: 

Resolution No. 45-2023 – Establishing the rates, fees and changes for the City’s Sub-regional Sewer 
System 

 
SUMMARY: 

Resolution 45-2023 establishes the rates Sub-regional sewer utility based on the recommendations of 
the sub-regional board for Fiscal Year 2024. 

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

The Lake Worth Beach Sub-Regional System is made up of wastewater collection systems that connect 
to the Lake Worth Beach system and include the City of Lake Worth Beach and seven other entities 
(Town of Lantana, City of Atlantis, Town of Manalapan, Town of South Palm Beach, Village of Palm 
Springs, Town of Lake Clarke Shores and Palm Beach State College). 

The Sub-regional system transports the other entities’ wastewater through the City’s Sub-regional 
System to the East Central Regional Water Reclamation Facility (ECR). The Lake Worth Beach Sub-
Regional System includes several major gravity interceptors, a master pump station (MPS) located in 
Bryant Park, a 36-inch forcemain, a repump station (RPS) located north of 2nd Avenue North, a pump 
station at Palm Beach State College and a second section of 36-inch forcemain that transfers flow to the 
Palm Beach County portion of the regional system and eventually to the ECR. 

The operating agreement approved on March 5, 2013 contained a rate calculation methodology for use 
during the term of the agreement. The proposed rates were calculated in accordance with this method. 

The City held a meeting with the Sub-regional Customer Member Board to discuss these proposed rates 
as required under the new agreements. All members attended and the Board is recommending approval 
of the rates. 

 
MOTION: 

Move to approve/disapprove Resolution No. 45-2023 establishing the Fiscal Year 2024 rates and 
charges for the City’s Sub-regional Sewer System. 

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Fiscal Impact Analysis N/A 
Resolution 45-2023 



45-2023 
 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 45-2023 OF THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, 
FLORIDA, PROVIDING FOR RATES, FEES AND CHARGES FOR USE 
OF THE REGIONAL SEWAGE DISPOSAL SYSTEM OF THE CITY OF 
LAKE WORTH BEACH; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING 
FOR THE REPEAL OF CONFLICTING RESOLUTIONS OR 
CONFLICTING PARTS OF RESOLUTIONS; AND PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE 

 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida, is authorized and required to 
fix uniform and adequate rates for its service; and 
 

WHEREAS, an evaluation of the level of regional sewer system rates establishes 
a need to revise the rates and charges as set forth herein in order to meet the several 
objectives identified by the evaluation. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE 
CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, that: 
 
Section 1. The following schedules, except as otherwise provided, shall be the rates, 
fees and charges for the use of and for the services and facilities furnished or to be 
furnished by the regional sewage disposal system, to be paid by those entities who use 
the regional sewage disposal system. 
 

1. East Central Regional Water Reclamation Facility Renewal & Replacement 
Payment 

 
A fixed charge to each customer based on the contribution requirements billed 
to the City of Lake Worth Beach regional sewer system for the East Central 
Regional Water Reclamation Facility in each fiscal year multiplied against the 
percentage of total capacity of the regional sewer system reserved by each 
customer.  For FY 2024 the charge is: 

 

ECR R&R Per Entity Reserved 
Capacity 

Annual Charge 

Lake Worth Beach 43.927% $805,353.31 

Palm Springs 28.200% $517,016.54 

Lantana 14.073% $258,014.05 

Atlantis 4.217% $77,321.31 

PBSC 0.939% $17,217.94 

Manalapan 1.322% $24,232.66 

South Palm Beach 2.974% $54,523.48 

Lake Clarke Shores 4.348% $79,712.71 

Total: 100.00% $1,833,392.00 

 
2. East Central Regional Water Reclamation Facility Debt Payment  

 



Pg. 2, Reso.  45-2023 

 

A fixed charge to each customer based on the indebtedness requirements 
billed to the City of Lake Worth Beach regional sewer system for the East 
Central Regional Water Reclamation Facility in each fiscal year multiplied 
against the percentage of total capacity of the regional sewer system reserved 
by each customer.  Note that debt service is included in the ECR Operations 
and Maintenance charges. 

 
3. Lake Worth Regional Sewer System Renewal & Replacement Charge 

 
A fixed charge to each customer to recover the cost of scheduled system 
renewal and replacements and reserve requirements of the City of Lake Worth 
regional sewer system based on the renewal and replacement cost and reserve 
requirements of the regional sewer system in each fiscal year multiplied against 
the percentage of total capacity of the regional sewer system reserved by each 
customer.  For FY 2024 the charge is: 
 

Lake Worth Beach Sub-
regional R&R per Entity 

Reserved 
Capacity 

Annual Charge 

Lake Worth Beach  43.927% $169,338.42 

Palm Springs 28.200% $108,711.00 

Lantana 14.073% $54,251.58 

Atlantis 4.217% $16,258.04 

PBSC 0.939% $3,620.35 

Manalapan 1.322% $5,095.30 

South Palm Beach 2.974% $11,464.43 

Lake Clarke Shores 4.348% $16,760.87 

Total: 100.000% $385,500.00 

 
4. Palm Beach County Force Main Capital Reserve Charge 

 
A fixed charge to each customer to recover the cost of the sub-regional sewer 
system share of planned Palm Beach County capital projects. The capital 
amount to be reserved annually will be multiplied against the percentage of 
total capacity reserved by each customer.  For FY 2024, the charge is: 
 

PBC Sub-regional R&R 
Per Entity 

Reserved 
Capacity 

Annual Charge 

Lake Worth Beach 43.927% $ 307,488.70 

Palm Springs 28.200% $ 197,400.00 

Lantana 14.073% $ 98,511.30 

Atlantis 4.217% $ 29,521.74 

PBSC 0.939% $ 6,573.91 

Manalapan 0.322% $ 9,252.17 

South Palm Beach 0.974% $ 20,817.39 

Lake Clarke Shores 4.348% $ 30,434.78 

Total: 100.000% $ 700,000.00 

 
 



Pg. 3, Reso. 45-2023 
 

5. Operations & Maintenance Charge 
 

A volume charge will be applied to each thousand gallons of metered volume 
to recover the annual operating and maintenance costs directly related to the 
transmission, treatment, and disposal of sewage utilizing the City of Lake Worth 
Beach regional sewer system. 

 
Operations & Maintenance Charge effective as of the dates listed: 

 
All Customers Excluding Village of Palm Springs 
 

Effective Date: 10/1/2022 10/1/2023 

Charge: $2.863 $3.194 

 
Village of Palm Springs 
 

Effective Date: 10/1/2022 10/1/2023 

Charge: $2.548 $2.859 

 
Section 2. Should any section or provision of this resolution or any portion thereof, any 
paragraph, sentence or word be declared by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, 
such decision shall not affect the validity of the remainder hereof as a whole or any part 
thereof other than the part declared to be invalid. 
 
Section 3. If any provision of this resolution, or the application thereof any person or 
circumstance is held invalid, the invalidity shall not affect other provisions or applications 
of the resolution, which can be given effect without the invalid provision or applications, 
and to this end, the provisions of this resolution are declared severable. 
 
Section 4. All resolutions or parts of resolutions in conflict herewith are hereby 
repealed. 
 
Section 5. This resolution shall be in effect for billings issued on or after October 1, 
2023. 
 

The passage of this resolution was moved by Commissioner ___, seconded by 
Commissioner _____, and upon being put to a vote, the vote was as follows: 

 
Mayor Betty Resch  
Vice Mayor Christopher McVoy  
Commissioner Sarah Malega  
Commissioner Kimberly Stokes  
Commissioner Reinaldo Diaz  
 
The Mayor thereupon declared this resolution duly passed and adopted this _____ 

day of September 2023. 

  



Pg. 4, Reso.  45-2023 

 
LAKE WORTH BEACH CITY COMMISSION 
 
 
By: _________________________ 

Betty Resch, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Melissa Ann Coyne, City Clerk 



STAFF REPORT 
UTILITY MEETING 

 

 

AGENDA DATE: September 26, 2023 DEPARTMENT: Water Utilities 

TITLE: 

Resolution No. 46-2023 – Establishing the rates and charges for the Local Sewer System 

 
SUMMARY: 

Resolution 46-2023 establishes the rates and charges for the City’s Local Sewer System for Fiscal Year 
2024 which includes a 10% rate increase. 

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

The City of Lake Worth Beach contracts with Stantec on an ongoing basis to provide a yearly Revenue 
Sufficiency Analysis. This analysis provides a multi-year projection of the sufficiency of revenues for the 
Local Sewer Utility to meet current and projected financial requirements and determine the level of 
revenue increases necessary in each year to provide adequate revenues to fund all identified cost 
requirements. 

The results of the current Fiscal Year 2024 rate sufficiency analysis have shown that a 10% rate increase 
is needed from the previous fiscal year. 

Future costs for the local sewer utility are related to costs to maintain the system and continue Infiltration 
& Inflow improvements, as well as contributions towards the subregional sewer system, which has a 
steep increase due to East Central Regional Water Reclamation Facility (ECRWRF) R&R projects. 
These projects are needed to maintain the reliability and environmental requirements of the sewer 
system. 

Pursuant to section 180.136, Florida Statutes, the City notified all utility customers of the proposed 10% 
rate increase through the City’s utility billing process.  

 
MOTION: 

Move to approve/disapprove Resolution No. 46-2023 establishing the Fiscal Year 2024 rates and 
charges for the City’s Local Sewer System. 

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Fiscal Impact Analysis N/A 
Resolution 46-2023 



46-2023 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 46-2023 OF THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, 
FLORIDA, PROVIDING FOR RATES, FEES AND CHARGES FOR USE 
OF SEWAGE DISPOSAL SYSTEM OF THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH 
BEACH; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR THE 
REPEAL OF CONFLICTING RESOLUTIONS OR PARTS OF 
RESOLUTIONS; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida, is authorized and required to 

fix uniform and adequate rates for its service; and 
 

WHEREAS, an evaluation of the level of sewer system rates establishes a need 
to revise the rates and charges as set forth herein in order to meet the several objectives 
identified by the evaluation; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Commission finds that the rates established herein are fair 

and equitable and serve a valid public purpose. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, that: 
 
Section 1. The following schedules, except as otherwise provided, shall be the rates, 
fees and charges for the use of and for the services and facilities furnished or to be 
furnished by the sewage disposal system, to be paid by the owner, tenant or occupant of 
each lot or parcel of land which may be connected with or may use the sewage disposal 
system by or through any part of the sewer system of the City of Lake Worth Beach.  
These charges are those necessary to cover operation, maintenance and replacement 
costs. 

Accounts, which are served and metered by the Lake Worth Beach Utilities Water 
System. 
 
1. Customer Charge effective as of the dates listed: 

 

Effective Date: 10/1/2022 10/1/2023 

Charge: $5.86 $6.45 

 
A fixed charge based on the cost of preparing and delivering a bill, which 
will be applied to each sewer account receiving a bill. 

 
Base Facility Charge: 

 
Residential Accounts: 

 
A fixed charge designed to recover a portion of the fixed costs of the sewer 
system will be applied to each Equivalent Residential Unit (ERU), which is 
defined as follows: 
 
“ERU” shall stand for “Equivalent Residential Unit” and shall mean the 



Pg. 2, Reso. 46-2023 

average amount of wastewater discharged by a residential facility in terms  
 
of the reserved capacity needed to serve that facility.  One ERU is, by 
definition, equal to one single family residence. Each residential unit in a 
multi-family complex or mobile home park unit is equivalent to 66% of one 
ERU or as calculated in accordance with Chapter 18, Article IV, Code of 
Ordinances of the City of Lake Worth Beach. 
 

 Base Facility Charge effective as of the dates listed: 
 

Effective 
Date: 

10/1/2022 10/1/2023  

Charge: $12.24 $13.46 per ERU 

 
Charge: 

$8.08 $8.89 

per multi-family 
residential unit or 
mobile home unit 
(66% of 1 ERU) 

 
 
Commercial and Industrial Use Accounts: 
 

A fixed charge designed to recover a portion of the fixed costs of the 
sewer system will be applied to each water meter based upon the 
size of the meter: 

 
Base Facility Charge effective as of the dates listed: 

 

Effective Date: 10/1/2022 10/1/2023 

5/8 X 3/4” Meter $12.24 $13.46 

1” Meter $30.59 $33.65 

1-1/2” Meter $61.19 $67.30 

2” Meter $97.91 $107.70 

3” Meter $195.80 $215.38 

4” Meter $305.92 $336.51 

6” Meter $611.86 $673.04 

8” Meter $911.14 $1002.26 

 
For meter sizes larger than those shown in the table, the Director 
shall determine the charge on a case by case basis. 

 
2. Volume Charge effective as of the dates listed: 

 

Effective Date: 10/1/2022 10/1/2023 

Charge: $0.548 $0.602 

 
A volume charge based on those costs related directly to the transmission, 
treatment and disposal of sewage generated. 

 



Pg. 3, Reso. 46-2023 

Residential use: 
 

A residential use is defined as a use consisting of a minimum of one dwelling unit  
but shall not include transient facilities. 

 
A volume charge will be applied to each hundred gallons of water consumed up to 
a maximum of twelve thousand (12,000) gallons per ERU for individually metered, 
single or multi-unit residential accounts or six thousand (6,000) gallons per ERU 
for master-metered, multi-unit residential accounts. 

 
Commercial use: 
 

A commercial use shall include all non-residential uses, including but not limited to 
motels, hotels, nursing homes, restaurants, commercial businesses and 
institutions. 
 
A volume charge will be applied to each hundred gallons of water consumed. 

 
Industrial Use Class: 

 
An industrial use shall be defined as a commercial use that is able to demonstrate 
that over fifty percent (50%) of its water usage is not returned to the City sewer 
system. 
 
A volume charge would be applied to each hundred gallons of water consumed up 
to a maximum flow as approved by the Water Utilities Director.  This limitation for 
this charge is established to provide for the use of water for industrial and other 
uses that do not generate sewage. 

 
Accounts, which are not served by the Lake Worth Beach Water Utilities System. 
 

1.  Customer Charge effective as of dates listed: 
 

Effective Date: 10/1/2022 10/1/2023 

Charge: $5.86 $6.45 

 
A fixed charge based on the cost of preparing and delivering a bill, which 
will be applied to each sewer account receiving a bill. 

 
2.  Base Facility Charge effective as of dates listed: 

 

Effective Date: 10/1/2022 10/1/2023  

Charge: $12.24 $13.46 Per ESU 

 
Charge: 

$8.08 $8.89 

Per mutli-family 
or mobile home 
(66% of 1 ESU) 

 
A fixed charge designed to recover a portion of the fixed costs of the sewer 
system will be applied to each Equivalent Service Unit (ESU), which is 



Pg. 4, Reso. 46-2023 

defined as follows: 
 

A single-family residence:  Each residential unit in a multi-family 
complex such as duplexes, triplexes, apartment buildings and 
condominiums. Each separate living unit in a mobile home or trailer 
park complex.  Each washing machine in a commercial laundry.  
Each multiple of four (4) sewer fixtures or fraction thereof, in a 
commercial or institutional establishment such as an office, store, 
hotel, motel, combination store/apartment, office/apartment, nursing 
home, etc. 

 
3.  Fixture Charge effective as of dates listed: 

 

Effective Date: 10/1/2022 10/1/2023 

Charge: $12.24 $13.46 

 
A fixture charge applied to each sewer plumbing fixture defined as toilet, 
sink, washing machine, shower, bathtub, floor drain, drinking fountain and 
other fixtures as defined in the Florida Building Code for non-residential 
uses. Four plumbing fixtures shall be assumed for all single family 
residential and each residential unit in a multi-family complex and separate 
living unit in a mobile home or trailer park. 

 
Collection of Sewer Service Charge: 
 
The sewer service charges shall become effective as to each lot or parcel 
of land which may be connected with the sewage disposal system by or 
through any part of the sewer system of the City of Lake Worth Beach, upon 
the placing of the sewage disposal system in operation and the construction 
of all connections thereto from the sanitary sewer serving such lot or parcel. 
 
In cases where water is furnished by the Lake Worth Beach Utilities System, 
the amount of the sewer service charges shall be included in the bills for 
water rendered by the City of Lake Worth Beach.  In all cases where water 
is furnished by any plant or system other than the Lake Worth Beach Utilities 
System, bills shall be rendered for the amount of such sewer service 
charges in the same manner as bills are rendered for water.  If the amount 
of such sewer service charges shall not be paid by the due date shown on 
the bill, the City of Lake Worth Beach may discontinue furnishing water to 
such premises, and shall disconnect the same from the Lake Worth Beach 
Utilities System, and shall proceed forthwith to recover the amount of such 
sewer service charges in such lawful manner as it may deem advisable. 
The City of Lake Worth Beach may enter into contracts with the County of 
Palm Beach, City of West Palm Beach, or any municipality, public utility, 
special authority or government unit in Palm Beach County for the treatment 
and disposal of sewage collected outside the territorial limits of the City of 
Lake Worth Beach and pumped and delivered to some part of the sewer 
system of the City of Lake Worth Beach; provided, however, that 
notwithstanding any of the other provisions of this resolution, the charges 



Pg. 5, Reso. 46-2023 

to be paid for the treatment and disposal of such sewage shall not be less 
than an amount which is fair and equitable taking into account the cost to 
the City of Lake Worth Beach of such treatment and disposal and the 
principal and interest requirements of the bonds issued pursuant to Lake 
Worth Utilities Authority Resolution No. U-18-75.  That certain State Bond 
Loan Agreement between the Lake Worth Utilities Authority and the 
Department of Environmental Regulation of the State of Florida is dated 
January 6, 1976.  User charges will be reviewed periodically to assure 
adequate revenue to cover operation, maintenance and replacement costs 
and a proportional distribution of costs among users.  Users will receive 
annually, a notification of the current rate structure. 

 
Section 2. With respect to any premises or users situated outside the corporate limits 
of the City of Lake Worth Beach, which premises or users now or hereafter have active 
connections to the sewage disposal system of the City, there shall be charged a rate 
equal to the charge established for service to residents of the City, plus a surcharge equal 
to twenty-five percent (25%) of such charge as outlined in the Policies & Procedures 
Manual. 
 
The foregoing surcharge shall apply to users with whom the City has now or shall 
hereafter contract for services at charges established in such contracts unless the 
contract does not allow for a surcharge. 
 
Section 3. Average Billing Calculation.  The average billing process will establish a 
monthly bill which will be based on the average sewer bill for the preceding twelve (12) 
calendar months.  If the residence or apartment has been occupied for the last twelve 

(12) months and the customer can qualify as an existing customer, the previous tenant’s 

or owner’s bill may be used to estimate the average monthly billing. 
 
The average billing calculation will be reviewed and adjustments made to correct for 
changes in rates, or usage or other factors to be implemented on the bills issued during 
June and December of each year. 
 
Section 4. Should any section or provision of this resolution or any portion thereof, any 
paragraph, sentence or word be declared by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, 
such decision shall not affect the validity of the remainder hereof as a whole or any part 
thereof other than the part declared to be invalid. 
 
Section 5. All resolutions or parts of resolutions in conflict herewith are hereby 
repealed. 
 
Section 6. This resolution shall be in effect for billings issued on or after October 1, 
2023. 
 

The passage of this resolution was moved by Commissioner _____, seconded by 
Commissioner _____, and upon being put to a vote, the vote was as follows: 

 
Mayor Betty Resch  
Vice Mayor Christopher McVoy  



Pg. 6, Reso. 46-2023 

Commissioner Sarah Malega  
Commissioner Reinaldo Diaz  
Commissioner Kimberly Stokes  
 
The Mayor thereupon declared this resolution duly passed and adopted this 

______ day of September, 2023. 
 

LAKE WORTH BEACH CITY COMISSION 
 
 

By: ______________________________ 
Betty Resch, Mayor 
 

ATTEST: 

 

___________________________________ 

Melissa Ann Coyne, City Clerk 



STAFF REPORT 
UTILITY MEETING 

 

 

AGENDA DATE: September 26, 2023 DEPARTMENT: Electric Utility 

TITLE: 

Agreement with Encop, Inc. for the renovation of Men’s Room, the Employee Lounge, small Ladies’ 
Room, Supplies Room and for construction of the Linemen’s Ready Room at the 1900 2nd Avenue North 
Building 
 
SUMMARY: 

The Agreement authorizes Encop, Inc., to provide construction services for the Renovation of the 1900 
Building Phase 2 at a cost not to exceed $242,467.30. 
 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

The City issued an Invitation for Bid (IFB 23-117) seeking bids from qualified companies to provide 
construction services for the Renovation of the 1900 Building Phase 2 at the City’s 1900 Building. Encop 
Inc. was one of four contractors to provide bids and is recommended to provide the construction services. 

The Electric Utility, its warehouse facility with outside yard for materials and service vehicles and the 
Department of Community Sustainability occupy the 1900 Building. Linemen occupy portions of the 
facility 24/7/365.  

Phase 1 Renovation work took place in FY2020. Work included converting warehouse space into offices, 
a complete renovation of the Women’s bathroom and a buildout of the Engineering office area.  

The Phase 2 scope of work includes converting warehouse space into a Linemen’s Ready Room where 
linemen have access to dedicated computers for completing reports and attend on-line training, a 
conference room for meetings and proximity to the Employees Lounge. The Employees Lounge will be 
updated with new appliances, cabinetry, flooring and ceiling tiles and is intended to be used by all 
employees in the 1900 building.  

Additionally, the Phase 2 renovations include a nursing station for mothers with newborn children as well 
as updating a smaller Women’s Room. The 1900 Building’s Men’s Room will be totally renovated. Work 
includes all mechanical, electrical, plumbing work for the associated areas and temporary bathroom 
facilities while the Men’s Room is unavailable. 

Encop Inc. will be providing all labor, materials and equipment. The City will provide furniture, computers, 
video monitors, fire sprinkler work and low voltage IT cabling. The agreement includes contingency and 
credits price in the final price of $242,467.30. 

 
MOTION: 

Move to approve/disapprove the Agreement with Encop Inc., to provide construction services for the 
renovation of the 1900 Building Phase 2 at a cost not to exceed $242,467.30. 

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Fiscal Impact Analysis 
Contract 
Bid Tab 
 



 

 

FISCAL IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Five Year Summary of Fiscal Impact: 
 

Fiscal Years 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 
Inflows 
 Current Appropriation 0 0 0 0 0 
 Program Income 0 0 0 0 0 
 Grants 0 0 0 0 0 
 In Kind 0 0 0 0 0 
 

Outflows 
 Current Appropriation 0 0 0 0 0  
 Operating  0 0 0 0 0 
 Capital 0 $242,467.30 0 0 0 
 

Net Fiscal Impact 0 0 0 0 0 
 

No. of Addn’l Full-Time 
Employee Positions 0 0 0 0 0 
 

Contract Award - Existing Appropriation 

  Expenditure 

Department  Electric Utility  

Division   

GL Description Improve Other than Build / Infrastructure  

GL Account Number 421-6010-531-62.00 

Project Number EL2204  

Requested Funds $225,084.18 

 

Contract Award - Existing Appropriation 

  Expenditure 

Department  Capital Project Fund/ Community Sustainability 

Division Building 

GL Description Improve Other than Build  

GL Account Number 301-2020-589.63-00 

Project Number GV2302 

Requested Funds $17,383.12 

 

 









































Bid Price : $430,735.59 $418,769.00 $246,712.50 $436,376.42

Preference Amount: $15,000.00 $15,000.00

Total for Evaluation: $430,735.59 $403,769.00 $246,712.50 $421,376.42

submitted submitted submitted submitted
submitted submitted submitted submitted
submitted submitted submitted submitted
submitted submitted submitted submitted
submitted submitted submitted submitted
submitted not provided submitted submitted
submitted submitted submitted submitted
submitted submitted submitted submitted
submitted submitted submitted submitted
submitted submitted submitted submitted
submitted submitted submitted submitted
submitted submitted submitted submitted

n/a small business preference applied n/a small business preference applied 
submitted submitted submitted submitted

Did not provide unit price 
breakdown completion time not provided Did not provide unit price on one 

item

Bid Bond

Comments:

Substitution Sheet (B5)
Schedule of Unit Prices (B4)

Bid (B3)
Bidder’s Minimum Qualifications (B2)

Bid Package Cover Sheet (B1)

Contractor Verification Form (B7)
Reference List (B8)

Non-Collusion Affidavit (B9)
Drug Free Certification (B10)

Campaing Contribution Statement (B11)

IFB#23-117 City of Lake Worth Beach 1900 Building Improvements Phase 2

City of Lake Worth Beach 
Compliance Checklist & Bid Tab

ENCOP, Inc. Florida Palm Construction, Inc.

Scrutinized Companies Certification (B12)
Veteran Owned Enterprise, and Small Business Preference 

Form (B13)

Schedule of Subcontractors (B6)

IBIS Building Corporation All-Site Construction, Inc.



BID PRICE:
Unit Price Total Price Unit Price Total Price Unit Price Total Price Unit Price Total Price

Storage Cubbies with extension INC INC $215.00 LF $215.00 LF $2,522.00 $2,522.00 $7,000.00 $7,000.00
Kitchen cabinetry INC INC $256.00 LF $256.00 LF $7,653.00 $7,653.00 $15,000.00 $15,000.00
Kitchen cabinets counter top INC INC $31.00 LF $31.00 LF $7,707.60 $7,707.60 $4,000.00 $4,000.00
Farmhouse style sink INC INC $466.00 EA $466.00 EA $1,155.47 $1,155.47 $1,000.00 $1,000.00
Employee kitchen flooring INC INC $5.88 LF $5.88 LF $15.00 $15.00 $1,500.00 $1,500.00
GE or equal Range-glass top INC INC $2,100.00 $2,100.00 $2,562.86 $2,562.86
GE or equal microwave INC INC $715.00 $2,145.00 $1,031.78 $3,095.33 $500.00 $1,500.00
Commercial single door Refrigerator INC INC $2,845.00 $5,690.00 $3,000.00 $6,000.00 $3,000.00 $6,000.00
Commercial single door Freezer INC INC $1,787.00 $1,787.00 $3,000.00 $3,000.00 $3,000.00 $3,000.00
Quartz countertop INC INC $115.00 $115.00 $9,043.50 $9,043.50 $4,000.00 $4,000.00
Toilet partitions and millwork INC INC $897.40 $3,589.00 $2,069.50 $8,278.00 $2,500.00 $10,000.00
Workstations and millwork INC INC $1,580.00 $6,320.00 $2,503.80 $10,015.20 $3,000.00 $12,000.00
ADA access lavatory & valve INC INC $886.00 $1,772.00 $1,870.07 $3,640.14 $600.00 $1,200.00
Paper Towel Dispensers INC INC $119.00 $357.00 $162.64 $487.92 $100.00 $300.00
Waste receptacles INC INC $143.00 $429.00 $642.00 $1,928.00 $200.00 $600.00
New Mirrors - Small Ladies room + Warehouse bath INC INC $136.00 $272.00 $256.80 $513.60 $200.00 $400.00

Comments: 

$430,735.59 $418,769.00 $246,712.50 $436,376.42

City of Lake Worth Beach 
Bid Tabulation

Unit Price Description
All-Site Construction, Inc. ENCOP, Inc. Florida Palm Construction, Inc.

IFB#23-117 CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH 1900 BUILDING IMPROVEMENTS PHASE 2

IBIS Building Construction



STAFF REPORT 
UTILITY MEETING 

 

AGENDA DATE:  September 26, 2023 DEPARTMENT:  Electric Utility 

TITLE: 

Ratification of Purchases from NuCAT Corporation under Work Orders #61 thru #73 

 
SUMMARY: 

This agenda item is seeking City Commission ratification of Work Orders numbered #61 to #73 for work 
which Electric Utility department personnel authorized but did not obtain formal purchasing authorization. 
The cumulative value of the work orders for ratification is $412,672. 

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

In 2022 and 2023, the Electric Utility Department authorized a City contracted vendor to proceed with 
work aimed at tackling urgent challenges without adhering to all of the City’s purchasing requirements. 
The work encompassed a range of activities, the majority of which is categorized as Operations and 
Maintenance (O&M) work. The work included testing underground cabling, transformer build-out, 
transformer repairs, repair of breakers, transformer testing and replacement, as well as circuit breaker 
maintenance. Each segment of the work (13 separate activities) qualified for the City Manager’s 
purchasing approval as a work order of less than $50,000 and funds were available for the work; 
however, the proper purchasing approvals were not obtained prior to the work commencing and being 
completed. 

Among the total of thirteen (13) work activities, eight (8) were O&M activities necessitated by emergent 
circumstances stemming from either existing failures or immediate threats of potential disruptions leading 
to substantial outages. These situations required rapid response and resolution to prevent further 
complications. Additionally, three (3) work activities were categorized as capital projects. WO #61 was 
driven by time-sensitive considerations linked to project schedules. WO #62 and WO #63 were driven 
by transformer manufacturer warranty obligations. These projects were carefully planned to align with 
specific timelines, ensuring the optimization of resources and warranties. Furthermore, WO #65 and WO 
#68, were intricately timed due to seasonal system demand load constraints, aligning with the progress 
of preceding emergent tasks. While not technically adhering to the purchasing requirements, this 
strategic sequencing of work helped in maximizing operational efficiency and minimizing any operational 
disruptions to the Electric Utility customers. 

The vendor utilized for the work, NuCAT Corporation, is a specialized electric utility contractor, which 
has a long-standing and competitively selected contract with the City and has extensive experience with 
this type of work.  

When the lack of proper purchasing procedures was discovered, it was self-reported by the Electric Utility 
staff, who initiated and managed the work, to the Financial Services Department. The matter was then 
promptly addressed by the Electric Utility including preparing Exception to Procurement forms for each 
work order, appropriate disciplinary action, development of a corrective action plan detailing the required 
procedures, and all City staff involved received mandatory purchasing training by the Procurement 
Division. The matter has further been reported to the Palm Beach County Office of Inspector General. 
The Procurement Division will continue to provide mandatory training to all City staff to ensure all current 
and new personnel are educated and aware of the required purchasing procedures for all City purchases. 

Due to the total amount of the purchases from NuCAT, the City is requesting City Commission approval 
in an effort to provide further transparency and acknowledgement of the matter.  



 
  

 

MOTION: 

Move to approve/disapprove ratification of the purchases from NuCAT Corporation under Work Orders 
61 thru 73 for a total aggregate cost of $412,672. 

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Fiscal Impact Analysis 
NuCAT WO#61 - 7th Ave Substation Equipment Testing 
NuCAT WO#62 - Assemble and Test Tx WT05887 
NuCAT WO#63 - Assemble and Test Tx WT05888 
NuCAT WO#64 - Supply (3) 50DHP350 Circuit Breakers 
NuCAT WO#65 - TD 70 LTC Repair 
NuCAT WO#66 - Inspect and Test 26B1W05 
NuCAT WO#67 - Inspect and Test 26B5001, 5002 and 5003 
NuCAT WO#68 - Repair Transformer TD-12 
NuCAT WO#69 - Install New Interrupters Spare Circuit Breaker 
NuCAT WO#70 - Repair and test Circuit Breaker 26BE09 
NuCAT WO#71 - Test GT2 Transformer 
NuCAT WO#72 - Replace TD-12 
NuCAT WO#73 - LTC TD06 
 
All Work Orders are together as one attachment and the Exception to Procurement forms are together 
as a separate attachment. 



FISCAL IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Five Year Summary of Fiscal Impact: 
 

Fiscal Years 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 
Inflows 
 Current Appropriation 0 0 0 0 0 
 Program Income 0 0 0 0 0 
 Grants 0 0 0 0 0 
 In Kind 0 0 0 0 0 
 

Outflows 
 Current Appropriation $130,567 0 0 0 0  
 Operating  $282,105 0 0 0 0 
 Capital 0 0 0 0 0 
 

Net Fiscal Impact $282,105 0 0 0 0 
 

No. of Addn’l Full-Time 
Employee Positions 0 0 0 0 0 
 

Budget Transfer Impact 

  Revenue Source Expenditure 

Department  Electric Electric 

Division System Operations Transmission & Distribution 

GL Description Contractual Services Repair/Maint Services/Substation Equipment 

GL Account Number 401-6033-531-34.50 401-6034-531-46.71 

Project Number   

Requested Funds -$282,105 +$282,105 

 
 
  

Contract Award - Existing Appropriation 

  Expenditure 

Department  Electric  

Division Transmission & Distribution 

GL Description 
Repair/Maint Services/Substation Equipment and Improve Other than Build / 
Infrastructure   

GL Account Number 401-6034-531-46-71  &  421-6034-531-63-15  

Project Number Numerous  

Requested Funds $412,672 (Sum of $130,567 + $282,105) 

 

 



Page 1 of 4  

 
Electrical Equipment Inspection, Testing, Repair and Maintenance Services 

WORK ORDER NO.   61      

THIS WORK ORDER f o r  S E R V I C E S  ( “ W o r k  O r d e r ”  h e r e a f t e r )  
i s  made on                                          2023, between the City of Lake Worth Beach, a 
Florida municipal corporation located at 7 North Dixie Highway, Lake Worth, Florida 33460 
("City") and NuCAT Corporation, a Florida corporation ("Contractor"). 

 
1.0 Project Description: 

 
The City desires the Contractor to provide those services and work as identified herein related to 
the City’s Electric Utility System generally describe as: Test new cables and equipment at the 7th 
Ave Substation. Project completed 04/27/2022. (the “Project”). The Project is more specifically 
described in the scope and fee proposal prepared by NuCAT Corp., dated May 10, 2023, and 
which are incorporated herein by reference.  

 
2.0 Scope 

 
Under this Work Order, the Contractor will provide the City of Lake Worth Beach with 
services for the Project as specified in the C o n t a c t o r ’ s  proposal attached hereto 
and incorporated herein as Exhibit "1". 

 
3.0 Schedule and Liquidated Damages 

 
Substantial completion of all services and work under this Work Order shall be within 60 
calendar days from the Effective Date of this Work Order. Final completion of all services and 
work (and all punch-list items (if any)) under this Work Order shall be within 90 calendar days 
from the Effective Date of this Work Order. The Effective Date of this Work Order is the date 
following the parties' execution of this Work Order and the City's delivery of a Notice to Proceed 
to the Contractor via e-mail, facsimile or other form of delivery as documented by the City. 
Substantial completion occurs when the services and work has progressed to the point where, in 
the opinion of the City, the work is sufficiently complete in accordance with the Contract 
Documents and this Work Order, so that the Project can be utilized for the purposes for which it 
is intended. Final completion occurs when all services and work (including punch-list items) has 
been completed and the project becomes fully operational and accepted by the City. 

 
Liquidated Damages. The City and Contractor recognize that time is of the essence under 
this Work Order and the Contract Documents, and that the City will suffer financial loss if 
the services and work described in this Work Order and the Contract Documents are not 
completed within the times specified in this Work Order. The City and Contractor 
recognize, agree and acknowledge that it would be impractical and extremely difficult to 
ascertain and fix the actual damages that the City would suffer in the event Contractor 
neglects, refuses, or otherwise fails to complete the services and work within the time 
specified. Accordingly, instead of requiring any such proof, the City and Contractor agree 
that as liquidated damages for delay (but not as a penalty) Contractor shall pay the City 
100 dollars ($100 .00) for each day that expires after the time specified in this Work Order. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 2 of 4  

 
4.0 Compensation 

 
This Work Order is issued for a lump sum, not to exceed amount of $33,821.00. The attached 
proposal identifies all costs and expenses included in the lump sum, not to exceed amount.  
 
The following Direct Purchases are to be made under this Work Order by the City: 
________________________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________________. 
 

5.0 Project Manager 
 

The Project Manager for the Contractor is David Bernier_, phone: 954-553-5566    _; email:  
davidbernier@nucatcorp.com ; and, the Project Manager for the City is  David Martyniuk, phone: 561-
586-1629  ; email: _ _Dmartyniuk@lakeworthbeachfl.gov   .  
 

6.0 Progress Meetings 
 

The Contractor shall schedule periodic progress review meetings with the City Project Manager as 
necessary but every 30 days as a minimum. 
 

7.0  Contractor’s Representations 
 
In order to induce the City to enter into this Work Order, the Contractor makes the following 
representations:  
7.1  Contractor has familiarized itself with the nature and extent of the Contract Documents 
including this Work Order, work, site, locality, and all local conditions and laws and regulations that 
in any manner may affect cost, progress, performance or furnishing of the work.  
 
7.2  Contractor has obtained at his/her own expense and carefully studied, or assumes 
responsibility for obtaining and carefully studying, soil investigations, explorations, and test reports 
which pertain to the subsurface conditions at or contiguous to the site or otherwise may affect the 
cost, progress, performance or furnishing of the work as Contractor considers necessary for the 
performance or furnishing of the work at the stated work order price within the Work Order stated 
time and in accordance with the other terms and conditions of the Contract Documents, including 
specifically the provisions of the RFP; and no additional examinations, investigations, explorations, 
tests, reports, studies or similar information or data are or is deemed necessary by Contractor for 
such purposes.  
 
7 .3  Contractor has reviewed and checked all information and data shown or indicated on the 
Contract Documents with respect to existing Underground Facilities at or contiguous to the site and 
assumes responsibility for the accurate location of said Underground Facilities. No additional 
examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, reports, studies or similar information or data in 
respect of said Underground Facilities are or is deemed necessary by the Contractor in order to 
perform and furnish the work under this Work Order price, within the Work Order time and in 
accordance with the other terms and conditions of the Contract Documents. 
 
 
7.4 Contractor has correlated the results of all such observations, examinations, investigations, 
explorations, tests, reports and studies with the terms and conditions of the Contract Documents. 
 
7.5 Contractor has given the City's Contract Administrator written notice of all conflicts, errors or 
discrepancies that he or she has discovered in the Contract Documents and the written resolution 
thereof by City or its designee is acceptable to the Contractor. 
 

mailto:_%20_Dmartyniuk@lakeworthbeachfl.gov


Page 3 of 4  

 
8.0 Warranty 

 
Warranty. The Contractor warrants and guarantees to the City that all services and work provided 
under this Work Order will be in accordance with this Work Order and the other Contract 
Documents. The Contractor warrants that (a) all materials and parts supplied under this Work Order 
shall be free from defects for one (1) year from the final completion of all work (unless a longer 
manufacturer warranty applies); (b) all services and work performed under this Work Order will be 
free from defects for one ( 1) year from the final completion of all work and the project shall be fully 
operational without unreasonable downtime or failures; and (c) that the services and work will 
conform to the requirements of the Contract Documents. If, at any time prior to the expiration of the 
one (I) year warranty period, the City discovers any failure or breach of the Contractor's warranties 
or the Contractor discovers any failure or breach of the Contractor's warranties, the Contractor will, 
upon written notice from City or of its own accord, at the Contractor's sole cost and expense, 
promptly correct such failure or breach (which corrective action must include, without limitation, any 
necessary removal, disassembly, reinstallation, repair, replacement, reassembly, retesting, and/or 
re-inspection of any part or portion of the work and any other property damaged or affected by such 
failure, breach, or corrective action). The Contractor will remedy any such failure or breach so, to the 
extent possible, to avoid unnecessary disruptions to the operations of City or its systems. In the 
event the Contractor fails to initiate and diligently pursue corrective action within five (5) days of the 
Contractor's receipt of the City's notice or the Contractor's discovery of the same, the City may 
undertake such corrective action at the Contractor's expense. 
 
 

 
9.0 Authorization 

 
This Work Order is pursuant to the Electrical Equipment Inspection, Testing, Repair and 
Maintenance Services Contract for between the City of Lake Worth Beach and the Contractor, 
dated May 15, 2018 ("Contract" hereafter). If there are any conflicts between the terms and 
conditions of this Work Order and the Contract, the terms and conditions of the Contract shall 
prevail. 
 
 

REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 
 

  





Exhibit 1 
Contract for Electrical Equipment Inspection, Testing, Repair and 

Maintenance Services 
Task Order No. 061 

 
 
 

Services to be provided by: 

Services provided to (City): 

 
NuCAT Corporation 

 

City of Lake Worth Beach

Proposal Date: May 10, 2023 

 
Proposal Terms 

A. Project Description: 
 

Test new equipment and cables at the 7th Ave Substation. 
 

B. Scope of Services: 
 
NuCat Corp. Will perform electrical testing of the new equipment and cables installed at the 7th Ave Substation. 
 
 

C. Equipment: 
 
HVA60 W/TD 

 
 

D. Fees and Rates: 
 

1. . NuCat Corp. will complete the following work on a time and material basis, we anticipate the total cost to be 
$33,821.00 

 



Test New Equipment and Cables at The 7th Ave Substation 
for The 

City of Lake Worth 
Estimate of Fees 

 

 

7th Ave Substation Equipment Testing
Technicians Engineer
Men Hrs ST Rate Hrs OT Rate Total Men Hrs ST Rate Hrs OT Rate Total

3 53 $95.00 8 $142.50 $18,525.00 1 52 $125.00 8 $187.50 $8,000.00
$95.00 0 $142.50 $0.00 0 0 $125.00 0 $187.50 $0.00

Total $18,525.00 Total $8,000
Labor Total $26,525.00

Material
Description Price EA QTY Total Mrk up Total
HVA60 W/TD $3,510.00 1 $3,510.00 1.2 $4,212.00
Shipping $695.00 1 $695.00 1.2 $834.00
FR3 oil $1,875.00 1 $1,875.00 1.2 $2,250.00

0 $0.00 1.2 $0.00  
0 $0.00 1.2 $0.00
0 $0.00 1.2 $0.00
0 $0.00 1.2 $0.00
0 $0.00 1.2 $0.00
0 $0.00 1.2 $0.00

$0.00 1.2 $0.00
0

Mtl Total $7,296.00

Grand Total $33,821



NuCAT CORPORATION 
657 RAMBLING DRIVE CIRCLE 

WELLINGTON, FL 33414 
PH: (561) 333-4021    

  

 

 

May 10, 2023  
 
City of Lake Worth 
1900 2nd Avenue North 
Lake Worth, FL    33461 
Attention:  David Martyniuk 
 
Ref No.: NC05102305 
Subject: Contract for Electrical Equipment Inspection, Testing, Repair And 
     Maintenance Services. Work Order # 061 
 
Dear David: 
 
Pursuant to your request, NuCat Corporation is pleased to provide you with this proposal to test 
the new electrical equipment and cables installed at the 7th Ave Substation. 
 

SCOPE OF WORK: 
  
NuCat Corp. will provide all the materials, equipment, qualified manpower, and technical 
supervision to perform the testing at the 7th Ave Substation. 
 
 
 
 

PRICING:  
Total Price $33,821.00 

 
 
 
 

Sincerely, 
David A Bernier 
David A Bernier 



Page 1 of 4  

 
Electrical Equipment Inspection, Testing, Repair and Maintenance Services 

WORK ORDER NO.   62     

THIS WORK ORDER f o r  S E R V I C E S  ( “ W o r k  O r d e r ”  h e r e a f t e r )  
i s  made on            2023, between the City of Lake Worth Beach, a Florida municipal 
corporation located at 7 North Dixie Highway, Lake Worth, Florida 33460 ("City") and NuCAT 
Corporation, a Florida corporation ("Contractor"). 

 
1.0 Project Description: 

 
The City desires the Contractor to provide those services and work as identified herein related to 
the City’s Electric Utility System generally describe as: Assemble and Test Transformer 
WT05887. Project completed 02/01/2023. (the “Project”). The Project is more specifically 
described in the scope and fee proposal prepared by NuCAT Corp., dated May 09, 2023, and 
which are incorporated herein by reference.  

 
2.0 Scope 

 
Under this Work Order, the Contractor will provide the City of Lake Worth Beach with 
services for the Project as specified in the C o n t a c t o r ’ s  proposal attached hereto 
and incorporated herein as Exhibit "1". 

 
3.0 Schedule and Liquidated Damages 

 
Substantial completion of all services and work under this Work Order shall be within 60 
calendar days from the Effective Date of this Work Order. Final completion of all services and 
work (and all punch-list items (if any)) under this Work Order shall be within 90 calendar days 
from the Effective Date of this Work Order. The Effective Date of this Work Order is the date 
following the parties' execution of this Work Order and the City's delivery of a Notice to Proceed 
to the Contractor via e-mail, facsimile or other form of delivery as documented by the City. 
Substantial completion occurs when the services and work has progressed to the point where, in 
the opinion of the City, the work is sufficiently complete in accordance with the Contract 
Documents and this Work Order, so that the Project can be utilized for the purposes for which it 
is intended. Final completion occurs when all services and work (including punch-list items) has 
been completed and the project becomes fully operational and accepted by the City. 

 
Liquidated Damages. The City and Contractor recognize that time is of the essence under 
this Work Order and the Contract Documents, and that the City will suffer financial loss if 
the services and work described in this Work Order and the Contract Documents are not 
completed within the times specified in this Work Order. The City and Contractor 
recognize, agree and acknowledge that it would be impractical and extremely difficult to 
ascertain and fix the actual damages that the City would suffer in the event Contractor 
neglects, refuses, or otherwise fails to complete the services and work within the time 
specified. Accordingly, instead of requiring any such proof, the City and Contractor agree 
that as liquidated damages for delay (but not as a penalty) Contractor shall pay the City 
100 dollars ($100 .00) for each day that expires after the time specified in this Work Order. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 2 of 4  

 
4.0 Compensation 

 
This Work Order is issued for a lump sum, not to exceed amount of $48,373.00. The attached 
proposal identifies all costs and expenses included in the lump sum, not to exceed amount.  
 
The following Direct Purchases are to be made under this Work Order by the City: 
________________________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________________. 
 

5.0 Project Manager 
 

The Project Manager for the Contractor is David Bernier_, phone: 954-553-5566    _; email:  
davidbernier@nucatcorp.com ; and, the Project Manager for the City is  David Martyniuk, phone: 561-
586-1629  ; email: _ _Dmartyniuk@lakeworthbeachfl.gov   .  
 

6.0 Progress Meetings 
 

The Contractor shall schedule periodic progress review meetings with the City Project Manager as 
necessary but every 30 days as a minimum. 
 

7.0  Contractor’s Representations 
 
In order to induce the City to enter into this Work Order, the Contractor makes the following 
representations:  
7.1  Contractor has familiarized itself with the nature and extent of the Contract Documents 
including this Work Order, work, site, locality, and all local conditions and laws and regulations that 
in any manner may affect cost, progress, performance or furnishing of the work.  
 
7.2  Contractor has obtained at his/her own expense and carefully studied, or assumes 
responsibility for obtaining and carefully studying, soil investigations, explorations, and test reports 
which pertain to the subsurface conditions at or contiguous to the site or otherwise may affect the 
cost, progress, performance or furnishing of the work as Contractor considers necessary for the 
performance or furnishing of the work at the stated work order price within the Work Order stated 
time and in accordance with the other terms and conditions of the Contract Documents, including 
specifically the provisions of the RFP; and no additional examinations, investigations, explorations, 
tests, reports, studies or similar information or data are or is deemed necessary by Contractor for 
such purposes.  
 
7 .3  Contractor has reviewed and checked all information and data shown or indicated on the 
Contract Documents with respect to existing Underground Facilities at or contiguous to the site and 
assumes responsibility for the accurate location of said Underground Facilities. No additional 
examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, reports, studies or similar information or data in 
respect of said Underground Facilities are or is deemed necessary by the Contractor in order to 
perform and furnish the work under this Work Order price, within the Work Order time and in 
accordance with the other terms and conditions of the Contract Documents. 
 
 
7.4 Contractor has correlated the results of all such observations, examinations, investigations, 
explorations, tests, reports and studies with the terms and conditions of the Contract Documents. 
 
7.5 Contractor has given the City's Contract Administrator written notice of all conflicts, errors or 
discrepancies that he or she has discovered in the Contract Documents and the written resolution 
thereof by City or its designee is acceptable to the Contractor. 
 

mailto:_%20_Dmartyniuk@lakeworthbeachfl.gov


Page 3 of 4  

 
8.0 Warranty 

 
Warranty. The Contractor warrants and guarantees to the City that all services and work provided 
under this Work Order will be in accordance with this Work Order and the other Contract 
Documents. The Contractor warrants that (a) all materials and parts supplied under this Work Order 
shall be free from defects for one (1) year from the final completion of all work (unless a longer 
manufacturer warranty applies); (b) all services and work performed under this Work Order will be 
free from defects for one ( 1) year from the final completion of all work and the project shall be fully 
operational without unreasonable downtime or failures; and (c) that the services and work will 
conform to the requirements of the Contract Documents. If, at any time prior to the expiration of the 
one (I) year warranty period, the City discovers any failure or breach of the Contractor's warranties 
or the Contractor discovers any failure or breach of the Contractor's warranties, the Contractor will, 
upon written notice from City or of its own accord, at the Contractor's sole cost and expense, 
promptly correct such failure or breach (which corrective action must include, without limitation, any 
necessary removal, disassembly, reinstallation, repair, replacement, reassembly, retesting, and/or 
re-inspection of any part or portion of the work and any other property damaged or affected by such 
failure, breach, or corrective action). The Contractor will remedy any such failure or breach so, to the 
extent possible, to avoid unnecessary disruptions to the operations of City or its systems. In the 
event the Contractor fails to initiate and diligently pursue corrective action within five (5) days of the 
Contractor's receipt of the City's notice or the Contractor's discovery of the same, the City may 
undertake such corrective action at the Contractor's expense. 
 
 

 
9.0 Authorization 

 
This Work Order is pursuant to the Electrical Equipment Inspection, Testing, Repair and 
Maintenance Services Contract for between the City of Lake Worth Beach and the Contractor, 
dated May 15, 2018 ("Contract" hereafter). If there are any conflicts between the terms and 
conditions of this Work Order and the Contract, the terms and conditions of the Contract shall 
prevail. 
 
 

REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 
 

  





Exhibit 1 
Contract for Electrical Equipment Inspection, Testing, Repair and 

Maintenance Services 
Task Order No. 062 

 
 
 

Services to be provided by: 

Services provided to (City): 

 
NuCAT Corporation 

 

City of Lake Worth Beach

Proposal Date: May 08, 2023 

 
Proposal Terms 

A. Project Description: 
 

Assemble and Test Transformer WT05887 
 

B. Scope of Services: 
 
NuCat Corp. Will Assemble and Test Transformer WT05887 
. 
 
 

C. Equipment: 
 
 

D. Fees and Rates: 
 

1. . NuCat Corp. will complete the following work on a time and material basis, we anticipate the total cost to be 
$48,373.00. 

 



Assemble and Test Transformer WT05887 
for The 

City of Lake Worth 
Estimate of Fees 

 

 

ASSEMBLE AND TEST CANAL SUBSTATION TRANSFORMER WT05887
Technicians Engineer
Men Hrs ST Rate Hrs OT Rate Total Men Hrs ST Rate Hrs OT Rate Total

3 63 $95.00 9 $142.50 $21,802.50 1 63 $125.00 8 $187.50 $9,375.00
0 0 $95.00 0 $142.50 $0.00 0 0 $125.00 0 $187.50 $0.00

Total $21,802.50 Total $9,375
Labor Total $31,177.50

Material

Part number Description Outline drawing QTY Price EA Total Mrk up Total
$0.00 1.2 $0.00

Fuel 1 $600.00 $600.00 1.2 $720.00
Generator 1 $3,000.00 $3,000.00 1.2 $3,600.00
Dry air 1 $500.00 $500.00 1.2 $600.00  
Doble M4000 1 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 1.2 $1,200.00
Misc 1 $215.00 $215.00 1 $215.00
Vacuum Oil Processer 36 $150.00 $5,400.00 1.2 $6,480.00
Filter Press 1 $150.00 $150.00 1.2 $180.00
SFRA & Winding Res. test set 1 2500 $2,500.00 1.2 $3,000.00
Fence Repair 1 1000 $1,000.00 1.2 $1,200.00

$0.00 1.2 $0.00
0 $0.00 $14,365.00

Mtl Total $17,195.00

Grand Total $48,373



NuCAT CORPORATION 
657 RAMBLING DRIVE CIRCLE 

WELLINGTON, FL 33414 
PH: (954) 553-5566    

  

 

 

May 08, 2023 
 
City of Lake Worth 
1900 2nd Avenue North 
Lake Worth, FL    33461 
Attention:  David Martyniuk 
 
Ref No.: NC05082301 
Subject: Contract for Electrical Equipment Inspection, Testing, Repair And 
     Maintenance Services. Work Order # 062 
 
Dear David: 
 
Per your request, NuCAT Corporation is pleased to provide you with this proposal to assemble, 
vacuum fill and test the new Canal Substation transformer WT05887. 
 
 
SCOPE OF WORK: 
 
NuCat Corp. will provide the equipment, qualified manpower and technical supervision to 
assemble, vacuum fill and test the transformer per the following specification. 
 
Receiving inspection and testing 
 
Scope includes: 
 
Record or download impact recorder. 
Perform dew point testing and document findings. 
 
Complete inventory. This inventory shall be a complete, firsthand count and check of all 
materials and items that were delivered as compared to the items listed as delivered on the 
shipping manifest. 



NuCAT CORPORATION  

 

If the shipping manifest is not on-site, NuCat Corp. shall obtain one directly from the 
manufacturer. NuCat Corp. shall also verify that an instruction book and factory test report was 
delivered with the transformer. Any missing items or items with shipping damage shall be 
promptly reported to the manufacturer for replacement. 
Dress out of Transformer. 
 
Scope includes. 
 
Furnish cranes, tools, equipment, and power as required. 
Installation of ground connection to transformer tank. 
Turrets, bushings and CT installation and internal connections. 
Radiator, conservator tank, valve, and piping installation. 
Desiccant breather shall be filled with dry desiccant. 
Control and auxiliary cabinet installation and wiring terminations. 
CT, relay, fans, pumps and ancillary equipment installation and wiring to control cabinets. Load 
Tap Changer (LTC) assembly and connection (if equipped). 
Verification of acceptable Dew Point test results then Vacuum process and fill with oil. 
Oil will be provided by the transformer manufacturer. NuCat Corp. shall co-ordinate 
Deliveries directly with the manufacturer and shall verify that sufficient quantities are delivered 
and that the oil meets requirements. 
Touch-up painting after assembly is complete. 
 
 
Vacuum processing and oil filling 
 
Scope includes: 
 
Furnish processing equipment, tools, and power (as required). 
Pressure test and dew point test and repair as required. 
Apply and hold vacuum per manufactures spec. 
Perform oil dielectric tests on all tankers, drums or other containers before oil is placed in 
transformer. 
Fill the transformer with oil using a complete processing rig equipped with and using vacuum 
degasification, filters, and heaters during filling. 
Complete final oil filling and possible trapped air purge per manufacturer’s procedures in their 
instruction book. 
Check for and repair any leaks, as required. 



NuCAT CORPORATION 
657 RAMBLING DRIVE CIRCLE 

WELLINGTON, FL 33414 
PH: (954) 553-5566    

  

 

 

Take complete final oil sample for testing by lab. Oil drawn from the filled transformer shall test 
to not greater than the Percent Saturation moisture limits for the appropriate voltage class. 
 
 
Transformer testing 
 
Scope includes: 
 
Perform insulation-resistance tests, winding-to-winding and windings-to-ground utilizing a 
megohmeter. The test duration shall be for 10 minutes with resistance tabulated at 30 seconds, 1 
minute and 10 minutes. Calculate polarization Index. 
Perform a turns-ration test between windings at all tap positions.  
Perform insulation power-factor tests on all windings and bushings. Overall dielectric-dielectric-
loss and power factor (CH, CL, CHL0 shall be determined. Test voltage shall be limited to the 
line-to-ground voltage rating of the transformer winding. 
Perform Excitation test on each winding. 
Verify proper core grounding if accessible. 
Perform SFRA test. 
Perform tests on the protection sensors as recommended by the manufacturer. 
A comprehensive test report will be provided upon completion of the testing. 

 
 
 

Pricing:  $ 48,373.00 
(Forty-Eight Thousand, Three Hundred and Seventy-Three Dollars) 

 
 

 
If you have any questions, or require additional information, please contact me at your 
convenience (954-553-5566). 
 
 
Sincerely, 
David A Bernier 
David A Bernier 



Page 1 of 4  

 
Electrical Equipment Inspection, Testing, Repair and Maintenance Services 

WORK ORDER NO.   63     

THIS WORK ORDER f o r  S E R V I C E S  ( “ W o r k  O r d e r ”  h e r e a f t e r )  
i s  made on            2023, between the City of Lake Worth Beach, a Florida municipal 
corporation located at 7 North Dixie Highway, Lake Worth, Florida 33460 ("City") and NuCAT 
Corporation, a Florida corporation ("Contractor"). 

 
1.0 Project Description: 

 
The City desires the Contractor to provide those services and work as identified herein related to 
the City’s Electric Utility System generally describe as: Assemble and Test Transformer 
WT05888. Project completed 02/01/2023. (the “Project”). The Project is more specifically 
described in the scope and fee proposal prepared by NuCAT Corp., dated May 10, 2023, and 
which are incorporated herein by reference.  

 
2.0 Scope 

 
Under this Work Order, the Contractor will provide the City of Lake Worth Beach with 
services for the Project as specified in the C o n t a c t o r ’ s  proposal attached hereto 
and incorporated herein as Exhibit "1". 

 
3.0 Schedule and Liquidated Damages 

 
Substantial completion of all services and work under this Work Order shall be within 60 
calendar days from the Effective Date of this Work Order. Final completion of all services and 
work (and all punch-list items (if any)) under this Work Order shall be within 90 calendar days 
from the Effective Date of this Work Order. The Effective Date of this Work Order is the date 
following the parties' execution of this Work Order and the City's delivery of a Notice to Proceed 
to the Contractor via e-mail, facsimile or other form of delivery as documented by the City. 
Substantial completion occurs when the services and work has progressed to the point where, in 
the opinion of the City, the work is sufficiently complete in accordance with the Contract 
Documents and this Work Order, so that the Project can be utilized for the purposes for which it 
is intended. Final completion occurs when all services and work (including punch-list items) has 
been completed and the project becomes fully operational and accepted by the City. 

 
Liquidated Damages. The City and Contractor recognize that time is of the essence under 
this Work Order and the Contract Documents, and that the City will suffer financial loss if 
the services and work described in this Work Order and the Contract Documents are not 
completed within the times specified in this Work Order. The City and Contractor 
recognize, agree and acknowledge that it would be impractical and extremely difficult to 
ascertain and fix the actual damages that the City would suffer in the event Contractor 
neglects, refuses, or otherwise fails to complete the services and work within the time 
specified. Accordingly, instead of requiring any such proof, the City and Contractor agree 
that as liquidated damages for delay (but not as a penalty) Contractor shall pay the City 
100 dollars ($100 .00) for each day that expires after the time specified in this Work Order. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 2 of 4  

 
4.0 Compensation 

 
This Work Order is issued for a lump sum, not to exceed amount of $48,373.00. The attached 
proposal identifies all costs and expenses included in the lump sum, not to exceed amount.  
 
The following Direct Purchases are to be made under this Work Order by the City: 
________________________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________________. 
 

5.0 Project Manager 
 

The Project Manager for the Contractor is David Bernier_, phone: 954-553-5566    _; email:  
davidbernier@nucatcorp.com ; and, the Project Manager for the City is  David Martyniuk, phone: 561-
586-1629  ; email: _ _Dmartyniuk@lakeworthbeachfl.gov   .  
 

6.0 Progress Meetings 
 

The Contractor shall schedule periodic progress review meetings with the City Project Manager as 
necessary but every 30 days as a minimum. 
 

7.0  Contractor’s Representations 
 
In order to induce the City to enter into this Work Order, the Contractor makes the following 
representations:  
7.1  Contractor has familiarized itself with the nature and extent of the Contract Documents 
including this Work Order, work, site, locality, and all local conditions and laws and regulations that 
in any manner may affect cost, progress, performance or furnishing of the work.  
 
7.2  Contractor has obtained at his/her own expense and carefully studied, or assumes 
responsibility for obtaining and carefully studying, soil investigations, explorations, and test reports 
which pertain to the subsurface conditions at or contiguous to the site or otherwise may affect the 
cost, progress, performance or furnishing of the work as Contractor considers necessary for the 
performance or furnishing of the work at the stated work order price within the Work Order stated 
time and in accordance with the other terms and conditions of the Contract Documents, including 
specifically the provisions of the RFP; and no additional examinations, investigations, explorations, 
tests, reports, studies or similar information or data are or is deemed necessary by Contractor for 
such purposes.  
 
7 .3  Contractor has reviewed and checked all information and data shown or indicated on the 
Contract Documents with respect to existing Underground Facilities at or contiguous to the site and 
assumes responsibility for the accurate location of said Underground Facilities. No additional 
examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, reports, studies or similar information or data in 
respect of said Underground Facilities are or is deemed necessary by the Contractor in order to 
perform and furnish the work under this Work Order price, within the Work Order time and in 
accordance with the other terms and conditions of the Contract Documents. 
 
 
7.4 Contractor has correlated the results of all such observations, examinations, investigations, 
explorations, tests, reports and studies with the terms and conditions of the Contract Documents. 
 
7.5 Contractor has given the City's Contract Administrator written notice of all conflicts, errors or 
discrepancies that he or she has discovered in the Contract Documents and the written resolution 
thereof by City or its designee is acceptable to the Contractor. 
 

mailto:_%20_Dmartyniuk@lakeworthbeachfl.gov


Page 3 of 4  

 
8.0 Warranty 

 
Warranty. The Contractor warrants and guarantees to the City that all services and work provided 
under this Work Order will be in accordance with this Work Order and the other Contract 
Documents. The Contractor warrants that (a) all materials and parts supplied under this Work Order 
shall be free from defects for one (1) year from the final completion of all work (unless a longer 
manufacturer warranty applies); (b) all services and work performed under this Work Order will be 
free from defects for one ( 1) year from the final completion of all work and the project shall be fully 
operational without unreasonable downtime or failures; and (c) that the services and work will 
conform to the requirements of the Contract Documents. If, at any time prior to the expiration of the 
one (I) year warranty period, the City discovers any failure or breach of the Contractor's warranties 
or the Contractor discovers any failure or breach of the Contractor's warranties, the Contractor will, 
upon written notice from City or of its own accord, at the Contractor's sole cost and expense, 
promptly correct such failure or breach (which corrective action must include, without limitation, any 
necessary removal, disassembly, reinstallation, repair, replacement, reassembly, retesting, and/or 
re-inspection of any part or portion of the work and any other property damaged or affected by such 
failure, breach, or corrective action). The Contractor will remedy any such failure or breach so, to the 
extent possible, to avoid unnecessary disruptions to the operations of City or its systems. In the 
event the Contractor fails to initiate and diligently pursue corrective action within five (5) days of the 
Contractor's receipt of the City's notice or the Contractor's discovery of the same, the City may 
undertake such corrective action at the Contractor's expense. 
 
 

 
9.0 Authorization 

 
This Work Order is pursuant to the Electrical Equipment Inspection, Testing, Repair and 
Maintenance Services Contract for between the City of Lake Worth Beach and the Contractor, 
dated May 15, 2018 ("Contract" hereafter). If there are any conflicts between the terms and 
conditions of this Work Order and the Contract, the terms and conditions of the Contract shall 
prevail. 
 
 

REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 
 

  





Exhibit 1 
Contract for Electrical Equipment Inspection, Testing, Repair and 

Maintenance Services 
Task Order No. 063 

 
 
 

Services to be provided by: 

Services provided to (City): 

 
NuCAT Corporation 

 

City of Lake Worth Beach

Proposal Date: May 09, 2023 

 
Proposal Terms 

A. Project Description: 
 

Assemble and Test Transformer WT05888 
 

B. Scope of Services: 
 
NuCat Corp. Will Assemble and Test Transformer WT05888 
. 
 
 

C. Equipment: 
 
 

D. Fees and Rates: 
 

1. . NuCat Corp. will complete the following work on a time and material basis, we anticipate the total cost to be 
$48,373.00. 

 



Assemble and Test Transformer WT05888 
for The 

City of Lake Worth 
Estimate of Fees 

 

 

ASSEMBLE AND TEST CANAL SUBSTATION TRANSFORMER WT05888
Technicians Engineer
Men Hrs ST Rate Hrs OT Rate Total Men Hrs ST Rate Hrs OT Rate Total

3 63 $95.00 9 $142.50 $21,802.50 1 63 $125.00 8 $187.50 $9,375.00
0 0 $95.00 0 $142.50 $0.00 0 0 $125.00 0 $187.50 $0.00

Total $21,802.50 Total $9,375
Labor Total $31,177.50

Material

Part number Description Outline drawing QTY Price EA Total Mrk up Total
$0.00 1.2 $0.00

Fuel 1 $600.00 $600.00 1.2 $720.00
Generator 1 $3,000.00 $3,000.00 1.2 $3,600.00
Dry air 1 $500.00 $500.00 1.2 $600.00  
Doble M4000 1 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 1.2 $1,200.00
Misc 1 $215.00 $215.00 1 $215.00
Vacuum Oil Processer 36 $150.00 $5,400.00 1.2 $6,480.00
Filter Press 1 $150.00 $150.00 1.2 $180.00
SFRA & Winding Res. test set 1 2500 $2,500.00 1.2 $3,000.00
Fence Repair 1 1000 $1,000.00 1.2 $1,200.00

$0.00 1.2 $0.00
0 $0.00 $14,365.00

Mtl Total $17,195.00

Grand Total $48,373



NuCAT CORPORATION 
657 RAMBLING DRIVE CIRCLE 

WELLINGTON, FL 33414 
PH: (954) 553-5566    

  

 

 

May 09, 2023 
 
City of Lake Worth 
1900 2nd Avenue North 
Lake Worth, FL    33461 
Attention:  David Martyniuk 
 
Ref No.: NC05092301 
Subject: Contract for Electrical Equipment Inspection, Testing, Repair And 
     Maintenance Services. Work Order # 063 
 
Dear David: 
 
Per your request, NuCAT Corporation is pleased to provide you with this proposal to assemble, 
vacuum fill and test the new Canal Substation transformer WT05888. 
 
 
SCOPE OF WORK: 
 
NuCat Corp. will provide the equipment, qualified manpower and technical supervision to 
assemble, vacuum fill and test the transformer per the following specification. 
 
Receiving inspection and testing 
 
Scope includes: 
 
Record or download impact recorder. 
Perform dew point testing and document findings. 
 
Complete inventory. This inventory shall be a complete, firsthand count and check of all 
materials and items that were delivered as compared to the items listed as delivered on the 
shipping manifest. 



NuCAT CORPORATION  

 

If the shipping manifest is not on-site, NuCat Corp. shall obtain one directly from the 
manufacturer. NuCat Corp. shall also verify that an instruction book and factory test report was 
delivered with the transformer. Any missing items or items with shipping damage shall be 
promptly reported to the manufacturer for replacement. 
Dress out of Transformer. 
 
Scope includes. 
 
Furnish cranes, tools, equipment, and power as required. 
Installation of ground connection to transformer tank. 
Turrets, bushings and CT installation and internal connections. 
Radiator, conservator tank, valve, and piping installation. 
Desiccant breather shall be filled with dry desiccant. 
Control and auxiliary cabinet installation and wiring terminations. 
CT, relay, fans, pumps and ancillary equipment installation and wiring to control cabinets. Load 
Tap Changer (LTC) assembly and connection (if equipped). 
Verification of acceptable Dew Point test results then Vacuum process and fill with oil. 
Oil will be provided by the transformer manufacturer. NuCat Corp. shall co-ordinate 
Deliveries directly with the manufacturer and shall verify that sufficient quantities are delivered 
and that the oil meets requirements. 
Touch-up painting after assembly is complete. 
 
 
Vacuum processing and oil filling 
 
Scope includes: 
 
Furnish processing equipment, tools, and power (as required). 
Pressure test and dew point test and repair as required. 
Apply and hold vacuum per manufactures spec. 
Perform oil dielectric tests on all tankers, drums or other containers before oil is placed in 
transformer. 
Fill the transformer with oil using a complete processing rig equipped with and using vacuum 
degasification, filters, and heaters during filling. 
Complete final oil filling and possible trapped air purge per manufacturer’s procedures in their 
instruction book. 
Check for and repair any leaks, as required. 



NuCAT CORPORATION 
657 RAMBLING DRIVE CIRCLE 

WELLINGTON, FL 33414 
PH: (954) 553-5566    

  

 

 

Take complete final oil sample for testing by lab. Oil drawn from the filled transformer shall test 
to not greater than the Percent Saturation moisture limits for the appropriate voltage class. 
 
 
Transformer testing 
 
Scope includes: 
 
Perform insulation-resistance tests, winding-to-winding and windings-to-ground utilizing a 
megohmeter. The test duration shall be for 10 minutes with resistance tabulated at 30 seconds, 1 
minute and 10 minutes. Calculate polarization Index. 
Perform a turns-ration test between windings at all tap positions.  
Perform insulation power-factor tests on all windings and bushings. Overall dielectric-dielectric-
loss and power factor (CH, CL, CHL0 shall be determined. Test voltage shall be limited to the 
line-to-ground voltage rating of the transformer winding. 
Perform Excitation test on each winding. 
Verify proper core grounding if accessible. 
Perform SFRA test. 
Perform tests on the protection sensors as recommended by the manufacturer. 
A comprehensive test report will be provided upon completion of the testing. 

 
 
 

Pricing:  $ 48,373.00 
(Forty-Eight Thousand, Three Hundred and Seventy-Three Dollars) 

 
 

 
If you have any questions, or require additional information, please contact me at your 
convenience (954-553-5566). 
 
 
Sincerely, 
David A Bernier 
David A Bernier 



Page 1 of 4  

 
Electrical Equipment Inspection, Testing, Repair and Maintenance Services 

WORK ORDER NO.   64     

THIS WORK ORDER f o r  S E R V I C E S  ( “ W o r k  O r d e r ”  h e r e a f t e r )  
i s  made on            2023, between the City of Lake Worth Beach, a Florida municipal 
corporation located at 7 North Dixie Highway, Lake Worth, Florida 33460 ("City") and NuCAT 
Corporation, a Florida corporation ("Contractor"). 

 
1.0 Project Description: 

 
The City desires the Contractor to provide those services and work as identified herein related to 
the City’s Electric Utility System generally describe as: Supply, Test and Install Three 50DHP350 
Circuit Breakers. Project completed 12/05/2022. (the “Project”). The Project is more specifically 
described in the scope and fee proposal prepared by NuCAT Corp., dated May 10, 2023, and 
which are incorporated herein by reference.  

 
2.0 Scope 

 
Under this Work Order, the Contractor will provide the City of Lake Worth Beach with 
services for the Project as specified in the C o n t a c t o r ’ s  proposal attached hereto 
and incorporated herein as Exhibit "1". 

 
3.0 Schedule and Liquidated Damages 

 
Substantial completion of all services and work under this Work Order shall be within 60 
calendar days from the Effective Date of this Work Order. Final completion of all services and 
work (and all punch-list items (if any)) under this Work Order shall be within 90 calendar days 
from the Effective Date of this Work Order. The Effective Date of this Work Order is the date 
following the parties' execution of this Work Order and the City's delivery of a Notice to Proceed 
to the Contractor via e-mail, facsimile or other form of delivery as documented by the City. 
Substantial completion occurs when the services and work has progressed to the point where, in 
the opinion of the City, the work is sufficiently complete in accordance with the Contract 
Documents and this Work Order, so that the Project can be utilized for the purposes for which it 
is intended. Final completion occurs when all services and work (including punch-list items) has 
been completed and the project becomes fully operational and accepted by the City. 

 
Liquidated Damages. The City and Contractor recognize that time is of the essence under 
this Work Order and the Contract Documents, and that the City will suffer financial loss if 
the services and work described in this Work Order and the Contract Documents are not 
completed within the times specified in this Work Order. The City and Contractor 
recognize, agree and acknowledge that it would be impractical and extremely difficult to 
ascertain and fix the actual damages that the City would suffer in the event Contractor 
neglects, refuses, or otherwise fails to complete the services and work within the time 
specified. Accordingly, instead of requiring any such proof, the City and Contractor agree 
that as liquidated damages for delay (but not as a penalty) Contractor shall pay the City 
100 dollars ($100 .00) for each day that expires after the time specified in this Work Order. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 2 of 4  

 
4.0 Compensation 

 
This Work Order is issued for a lump sum, not to exceed amount of $49,954.00. The attached 
proposal identifies all costs and expenses included in the lump sum, not to exceed amount.  
 
The following Direct Purchases are to be made under this Work Order by the City: 
________________________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________________. 
 

5.0 Project Manager 
 

The Project Manager for the Contractor is David Bernier_, phone: 954-553-5566    _; email:  
davidbernier@nucatcorp.com ; and, the Project Manager for the City is  David Martyniuk, phone: 561-
586-1629  ; email: _ _Dmartyniuk@lakeworthbeachfl.gov   .  
 

6.0 Progress Meetings 
 

The Contractor shall schedule periodic progress review meetings with the City Project Manager as 
necessary but every 30 days as a minimum. 
 

7.0  Contractor’s Representations 
 
In order to induce the City to enter into this Work Order, the Contractor makes the following 
representations:  
7.1  Contractor has familiarized itself with the nature and extent of the Contract Documents 
including this Work Order, work, site, locality, and all local conditions and laws and regulations that 
in any manner may affect cost, progress, performance or furnishing of the work.  
 
7.2  Contractor has obtained at his/her own expense and carefully studied, or assumes 
responsibility for obtaining and carefully studying, soil investigations, explorations, and test reports 
which pertain to the subsurface conditions at or contiguous to the site or otherwise may affect the 
cost, progress, performance or furnishing of the work as Contractor considers necessary for the 
performance or furnishing of the work at the stated work order price within the Work Order stated 
time and in accordance with the other terms and conditions of the Contract Documents, including 
specifically the provisions of the RFP; and no additional examinations, investigations, explorations, 
tests, reports, studies or similar information or data are or is deemed necessary by Contractor for 
such purposes.  
 
7 .3  Contractor has reviewed and checked all information and data shown or indicated on the 
Contract Documents with respect to existing Underground Facilities at or contiguous to the site and 
assumes responsibility for the accurate location of said Underground Facilities. No additional 
examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, reports, studies or similar information or data in 
respect of said Underground Facilities are or is deemed necessary by the Contractor in order to 
perform and furnish the work under this Work Order price, within the Work Order time and in 
accordance with the other terms and conditions of the Contract Documents. 
 
 
7.4 Contractor has correlated the results of all such observations, examinations, investigations, 
explorations, tests, reports and studies with the terms and conditions of the Contract Documents. 
 
7.5 Contractor has given the City's Contract Administrator written notice of all conflicts, errors or 
discrepancies that he or she has discovered in the Contract Documents and the written resolution 
thereof by City or its designee is acceptable to the Contractor. 
 

mailto:_%20_Dmartyniuk@lakeworthbeachfl.gov


Page 3 of 4  

 
8.0 Warranty 

 
Warranty. The Contractor warrants and guarantees to the City that all services and work provided 
under this Work Order will be in accordance with this Work Order and the other Contract 
Documents. The Contractor warrants that (a) all materials and parts supplied under this Work Order 
shall be free from defects for one (1) year from the final completion of all work (unless a longer 
manufacturer warranty applies); (b) all services and work performed under this Work Order will be 
free from defects for one ( 1) year from the final completion of all work and the project shall be fully 
operational without unreasonable downtime or failures; and (c) that the services and work will 
conform to the requirements of the Contract Documents. If, at any time prior to the expiration of the 
one (I) year warranty period, the City discovers any failure or breach of the Contractor's warranties 
or the Contractor discovers any failure or breach of the Contractor's warranties, the Contractor will, 
upon written notice from City or of its own accord, at the Contractor's sole cost and expense, 
promptly correct such failure or breach (which corrective action must include, without limitation, any 
necessary removal, disassembly, reinstallation, repair, replacement, reassembly, retesting, and/or 
re-inspection of any part or portion of the work and any other property damaged or affected by such 
failure, breach, or corrective action). The Contractor will remedy any such failure or breach so, to the 
extent possible, to avoid unnecessary disruptions to the operations of City or its systems. In the 
event the Contractor fails to initiate and diligently pursue corrective action within five (5) days of the 
Contractor's receipt of the City's notice or the Contractor's discovery of the same, the City may 
undertake such corrective action at the Contractor's expense. 
 
 

 
9.0 Authorization 

 
This Work Order is pursuant to the Electrical Equipment Inspection, Testing, Repair and 
Maintenance Services Contract for between the City of Lake Worth Beach and the Contractor, 
dated May 15, 2018 ("Contract" hereafter). If there are any conflicts between the terms and 
conditions of this Work Order and the Contract, the terms and conditions of the Contract shall 
prevail. 
 
 

REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 
 

  





Exhibit 1 
Contract for Electrical Equipment Inspection, Testing, Repair and 

Maintenance Services 
Task Order No. 064 

 
 
 

Services to be provided by: 

Services provided to (City): 

 
NuCAT Corporation 

 

City of Lake Worth Beach

Proposal Date: May 09, 2023 

 
Proposal Terms 

A. Project Description: 
 

Supply, Test and Install Three 50DHP350 Circuit Breakers 
 

B. Scope of Services: 
 
NuCat Corp. Will Supply, Test and Install Three 50DHP350 Circuit Breakers 
 
. 
 
 

C. Equipment: 
 
 

D. Fees and Rates: 
 

1. . NuCat Corp. will complete the following work on a time and material basis, we anticipate the total cost to be 
$49,954.00. 

 



Supply, Test and Install Three 50DHP350 Circuit Breakers 
for The 

City of Lake Worth 
Estimate of Fees 

 

 

Supply Test and Install Three 50DHP350 Circuit Breakers
Technicians Engineer
Men Hrs ST Rate Hrs OT Rate Total Men Hrs ST Rate Hrs OT Rate Total

2 28 $95.00 0 $142.50 $5,320.00 1 17 $125.00 0 $187.50 $2,125.00
0 0 $95.00 0 $142.50 $0.00 0 $125.00 0 $187.50 $0.00

Total $5,320.00 Total $2,125
Labor Total $7,445.00

Material

Part number Description Outline drawing QTY Price EA Total Mrk up Total
$0.00 1.2 $0.00

50DHP350 3 $10,900.00 $32,700.00 1.2 $39,240.00
Frieght 6 $454.00 $2,724.00 1.2 $3,268.80

0 $0.00 $0.00 1.2 $0.00  
0 $0.00 $0.00 1.2 $0.00

Misc 0 $0.00 $0.00 1 $0.00
0 $0.00 $0.00 1.2 $0.00
0 $0.00 $0.00 1.2 $0.00
0 0 $0.00 1.2 $0.00
0 0 $0.00 1.2 $0.00
0 $0.00 1.2 $0.00
0 $0.00 $35,424.00

Mtl Total $42,508.80

Grand Total $49,954



NuCAT CORPORATION 
657 RAMBLING DRIVE CIRCLE 

WELLINGTON, FL 33414 
PH: (954) 553-5566    

  

 

 

May 09, 2023 
 
City of Lake Worth 
1900 2nd Avenue North 
Lake Worth, FL    33461 
Attention:  David Martyniuk 
 
Ref No.: NC05092302 
Subject: Contract for Electrical Equipment Inspection, Testing, Repair And 
     Maintenance Services. Work Order # 064 
 
Dear David: 
 
Per your request, NuCAT Corporation is pleased to provide you with this proposal to supply, test 
and install three 50DHP350 circuit breakers. 
. 
 
 
SCOPE OF WORK: 
 
NuCat Corp. will provide all the materials, equipment, qualified manpower, and technical 
supervision to complete the following work on the circuit breakers. 
 
Supply refurbished circuit breakers. 
Perform physical inspection. 
Perform electrical testing. 

Hipot 
Ductor 

 
 

 
 



NuCAT CORPORATION  

 

Pricing:  $ 49,954.00 
(Forty-Nine Thousand, Nine Hundred and Fifty-Four Dollars) 

 
 

 
If you have any questions, or require additional information, please contact me at your 
convenience (954-553-5566). 
 
 
Sincerely, 
David A Bernier 
David A Bernier 



Page 1 of 4  

 
Electrical Equipment Inspection, Testing, Repair and Maintenance Services 

WORK ORDER NO.   65     

THIS WORK ORDER f o r  S E R V I C E S  ( “ W o r k  O r d e r ”  h e r e a f t e r )  
i s  made on            2023, between the City of Lake Worth Beach, a Florida municipal 
corporation located at 7 North Dixie Highway, Lake Worth, Florida 33460 ("City") and NuCAT 
Corporation, a Florida corporation ("Contractor"). 

 
1.0 Project Description: 

 
The City desires the Contractor to provide those services and work as identified herein related to 
the City’s Electric Utility System generally describe as: Repair the LTC of Transformer TD-70. 
Project completed 04/04/2022. (the “Project”). The Project is more specifically described in the 
scope and fee proposal prepared by NuCAT Corp., dated May 10, 2023, and which are 
incorporated herein by reference.  

 
2.0 Scope 

 
Under this Work Order, the Contractor will provide the City of Lake Worth Beach with 
services for the Project as specified in the C o n t a c t o r ’ s  proposal attached hereto 
and incorporated herein as Exhibit "1". 

 
3.0 Schedule and Liquidated Damages 

 
Substantial completion of all services and work under this Work Order shall be within 60 
calendar days from the Effective Date of this Work Order. Final completion of all services and 
work (and all punch-list items (if any)) under this Work Order shall be within 90 calendar days 
from the Effective Date of this Work Order. The Effective Date of this Work Order is the date 
following the parties' execution of this Work Order and the City's delivery of a Notice to Proceed 
to the Contractor via e-mail, facsimile or other form of delivery as documented by the City. 
Substantial completion occurs when the services and work has progressed to the point where, in 
the opinion of the City, the work is sufficiently complete in accordance with the Contract 
Documents and this Work Order, so that the Project can be utilized for the purposes for which it 
is intended. Final completion occurs when all services and work (including punch-list items) has 
been completed and the project becomes fully operational and accepted by the City. 

 
Liquidated Damages. The City and Contractor recognize that time is of the essence under 
this Work Order and the Contract Documents, and that the City will suffer financial loss if 
the services and work described in this Work Order and the Contract Documents are not 
completed within the times specified in this Work Order. The City and Contractor 
recognize, agree and acknowledge that it would be impractical and extremely difficult to 
ascertain and fix the actual damages that the City would suffer in the event Contractor 
neglects, refuses, or otherwise fails to complete the services and work within the time 
specified. Accordingly, instead of requiring any such proof, the City and Contractor agree 
that as liquidated damages for delay (but not as a penalty) Contractor shall pay the City 
100 dollars ($100 .00) for each day that expires after the time specified in this Work Order. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 2 of 4  

 
4.0 Compensation 

 
This Work Order is issued for a lump sum, not to exceed amount of $37,638.00. The attached 
proposal identifies all costs and expenses included in the lump sum, not to exceed amount.  
 
The following Direct Purchases are to be made under this Work Order by the City: 
________________________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________________. 
 

5.0 Project Manager 
 

The Project Manager for the Contractor is David Bernier_, phone: 954-553-5566    _; email:  
davidbernier@nucatcorp.com ; and, the Project Manager for the City is  David Martyniuk, phone: 561-
586-1629  ; email: _ _Dmartyniuk@lakeworthbeachfl.gov   .  
 

6.0 Progress Meetings 
 

The Contractor shall schedule periodic progress review meetings with the City Project Manager as 
necessary but every 30 days as a minimum. 
 

7.0  Contractor’s Representations 
 
In order to induce the City to enter into this Work Order, the Contractor makes the following 
representations:  
7.1  Contractor has familiarized itself with the nature and extent of the Contract Documents 
including this Work Order, work, site, locality, and all local conditions and laws and regulations that 
in any manner may affect cost, progress, performance or furnishing of the work.  
 
7.2  Contractor has obtained at his/her own expense and carefully studied, or assumes 
responsibility for obtaining and carefully studying, soil investigations, explorations, and test reports 
which pertain to the subsurface conditions at or contiguous to the site or otherwise may affect the 
cost, progress, performance or furnishing of the work as Contractor considers necessary for the 
performance or furnishing of the work at the stated work order price within the Work Order stated 
time and in accordance with the other terms and conditions of the Contract Documents, including 
specifically the provisions of the RFP; and no additional examinations, investigations, explorations, 
tests, reports, studies or similar information or data are or is deemed necessary by Contractor for 
such purposes.  
 
7 .3  Contractor has reviewed and checked all information and data shown or indicated on the 
Contract Documents with respect to existing Underground Facilities at or contiguous to the site and 
assumes responsibility for the accurate location of said Underground Facilities. No additional 
examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, reports, studies or similar information or data in 
respect of said Underground Facilities are or is deemed necessary by the Contractor in order to 
perform and furnish the work under this Work Order price, within the Work Order time and in 
accordance with the other terms and conditions of the Contract Documents. 
 
 
7.4 Contractor has correlated the results of all such observations, examinations, investigations, 
explorations, tests, reports and studies with the terms and conditions of the Contract Documents. 
 
7.5 Contractor has given the City's Contract Administrator written notice of all conflicts, errors or 
discrepancies that he or she has discovered in the Contract Documents and the written resolution 
thereof by City or its designee is acceptable to the Contractor. 
 

mailto:_%20_Dmartyniuk@lakeworthbeachfl.gov


Page 3 of 4  

 
8.0 Warranty 

 
Warranty. The Contractor warrants and guarantees to the City that all services and work provided 
under this Work Order will be in accordance with this Work Order and the other Contract 
Documents. The Contractor warrants that (a) all materials and parts supplied under this Work Order 
shall be free from defects for one (1) year from the final completion of all work (unless a longer 
manufacturer warranty applies); (b) all services and work performed under this Work Order will be 
free from defects for one ( 1) year from the final completion of all work and the project shall be fully 
operational without unreasonable downtime or failures; and (c) that the services and work will 
conform to the requirements of the Contract Documents. If, at any time prior to the expiration of the 
one (I) year warranty period, the City discovers any failure or breach of the Contractor's warranties 
or the Contractor discovers any failure or breach of the Contractor's warranties, the Contractor will, 
upon written notice from City or of its own accord, at the Contractor's sole cost and expense, 
promptly correct such failure or breach (which corrective action must include, without limitation, any 
necessary removal, disassembly, reinstallation, repair, replacement, reassembly, retesting, and/or 
re-inspection of any part or portion of the work and any other property damaged or affected by such 
failure, breach, or corrective action). The Contractor will remedy any such failure or breach so, to the 
extent possible, to avoid unnecessary disruptions to the operations of City or its systems. In the 
event the Contractor fails to initiate and diligently pursue corrective action within five (5) days of the 
Contractor's receipt of the City's notice or the Contractor's discovery of the same, the City may 
undertake such corrective action at the Contractor's expense. 
 
 

 
9.0 Authorization 

 
This Work Order is pursuant to the Electrical Equipment Inspection, Testing, Repair and 
Maintenance Services Contract for between the City of Lake Worth Beach and the Contractor, 
dated May 15, 2018 ("Contract" hereafter). If there are any conflicts between the terms and 
conditions of this Work Order and the Contract, the terms and conditions of the Contract shall 
prevail. 
 
 

REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 
 

  





Exhibit 1 
Contract for Electrical Equipment Inspection, Testing, Repair and 

Maintenance Services 
Task Order No. 065 

 
 
 

Services to be provided by: 

Services provided to (City): 

 
NuCAT Corporation 

 

City of Lake Worth Beach

Proposal Date: May 10, 2023 

 
Proposal Terms 

A. Project Description: 
 

TD-70 LTC Repair 
 

B. Scope of Services: 
 
NuCat Corp. Will repair the LTC of Transformer TD-70. 
 
 

C. Equipment: 
 
Doble M4000 
Proccessor 
Filter Press 

 
 

D. Fees and Rates: 
 

1. . NuCat Corp. will complete the following work on a time and material basis, we anticipate the total cost to be 
$37,638.00 

 



Transformer TD-70 LTC Repair 
for The 

City of Lake Worth 
Estimate of Fees 

 

 

Transformer TD-70 LTC Repair
Technicians Engineer
Men Hrs ST Rate Hrs OT Rate Total Men Hrs ST Rate Hrs OT Rate Total

3 26 $95.00 16 $142.50 $14,250.00 1 25 $125.00 10 $187.50 $5,000.00
0 $95.00 0 $142.50 $0.00 0 0 $125.00 0 $187.50 $0.00

Total $14,250.00 Total $5,000
Labor Total $19,250.00

Material
Description Price EA QTY Total Mrk up Total
Doble $1,000.00 2 $2,000.00 1.2 $2,400.00
Fuel $200.00 1 $200.00 1.2 $240.00
generator $2,400.33 1 $2,400.33 1.2 $2,880.40
Dry air $100.00 13 $1,300.00 1.2 $1,560.00
Oil  $999.00 6 $5,994.00 1.2 $7,192.80
Bearing $229.00 1 $229.00 1.2 $274.80  
gasket $250.00 2 $500.00 1.2 $600.00
Misc $200.00 1 $200.00 1.2 $240.00

$0.00 1.2 $0.00
$0.00 1.2 $0.00

processor $2,500.00 1 $2,500.00 1.2 $3,000.00
$0.00 1.2 $0.00
$0.00 1.2 $0.00

Mtl Total $18,388.00

Grand Total $37,638



NuCAT CORPORATION 
657 RAMBLING DRIVE CIRCLE 

WELLINGTON, FL 33414 
PH: (561) 333-4021    

  

 

 

May 10, 2023  
 
City of Lake Worth 
1900 2nd Avenue North 
Lake Worth, FL    33461 
Attention:  David Martyniuk 
 
Ref No.: NC05102303 
Subject: Contract for Electrical Equipment Inspection, Testing, Repair And 
     Maintenance Services. Work Order # 065 
 
Dear David: 
 
Per your request, NuCAT Corporation is pleased to provide you with this proposal to repair the 
LTC for transformer TD-70. 
 
SCOPE OF WORK: 
  
NuCat Corp. will supply all the materials, equipment, qualified manpower, and technical 
supervision to complete the following work on transformer TD-70. 
 
Repair the LTC of TD-70 Transformer. 
Fill LTC with new Mineral oil. 
Hot Oil Process the transformer. 

PRICING:  
Total Price $37,638.00 

 
 

Sincerely, 
David A Bernier 
David A Bernier 



Page 1 of 4  

 
Electrical Equipment Inspection, Testing, Repair and Maintenance Services 

WORK ORDER NO.   66      

THIS WORK ORDER f o r  S E R V I C E S  ( “ W o r k  O r d e r ”  h e r e a f t e r )  
i s  made on                                          2023, between the City of Lake Worth Beach, a 
Florida municipal corporation located at 7 North Dixie Highway, Lake Worth, Florida 33460 
("City") and NuCAT Corporation, a Florida corporation ("Contractor"). 

 
1.0 Project Description: 

 
The City desires the Contractor to provide those services and work as identified herein related to 
the City’s Electric Utility System generally describe as: Inspect, Repair and test circuit Breaker 
26B1W05. Project completed 03/02/2022. (the “Project”). The Project is more specifically 
described in the scope and fee proposal prepared by NuCAT Corp., dated May 11, 2023, and 
which are incorporated herein by reference.  

 
2.0 Scope 

 
Under this Work Order, the Contractor will provide the City of Lake Worth Beach with 
services for the Project as specified in the C o n t a c t o r ’ s  proposal attached hereto 
and incorporated herein as Exhibit "1". 

 
3.0 Schedule and Liquidated Damages 

 
Substantial completion of all services and work under this Work Order shall be within 60 
calendar days from the Effective Date of this Work Order. Final completion of all services and 
work (and all punch-list items (if any)) under this Work Order shall be within 90 calendar days 
from the Effective Date of this Work Order. The Effective Date of this Work Order is the date 
following the parties' execution of this Work Order and the City's delivery of a Notice to Proceed 
to the Contractor via e-mail, facsimile or other form of delivery as documented by the City. 
Substantial completion occurs when the services and work has progressed to the point where, in 
the opinion of the City, the work is sufficiently complete in accordance with the Contract 
Documents and this Work Order, so that the Project can be utilized for the purposes for which it 
is intended. Final completion occurs when all services and work (including punch-list items) has 
been completed and the project becomes fully operational and accepted by the City. 

 
Liquidated Damages. The City and Contractor recognize that time is of the essence under 
this Work Order and the Contract Documents, and that the City will suffer financial loss if 
the services and work described in this Work Order and the Contract Documents are not 
completed within the times specified in this Work Order. The City and Contractor 
recognize, agree and acknowledge that it would be impractical and extremely difficult to 
ascertain and fix the actual damages that the City would suffer in the event Contractor 
neglects, refuses, or otherwise fails to complete the services and work within the time 
specified. Accordingly, instead of requiring any such proof, the City and Contractor agree 
that as liquidated damages for delay (but not as a penalty) Contractor shall pay the City 
100 dollars ($100 .00) for each day that expires after the time specified in this Work Order. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 2 of 4  

 
4.0 Compensation 

 
This Work Order is issued for a lump sum, not to exceed amount of $10,300.00. The attached 
proposal identifies all costs and expenses included in the lump sum, not to exceed amount.  
 
The following Direct Purchases are to be made under this Work Order by the City: 
________________________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________________. 
 

5.0 Project Manager 
 

The Project Manager for the Contractor is David Bernier_, phone: 954-553-5566    _; email:  
davidbernier@nucatcorp.com ; and, the Project Manager for the City is  David Martyniuk, phone: 561-
586-1629  ; email: _ _Dmartyniuk@lakeworthbeachfl.gov   .  
 

6.0 Progress Meetings 
 

The Contractor shall schedule periodic progress review meetings with the City Project Manager as 
necessary but every 30 days as a minimum. 
 

7.0  Contractor’s Representations 
 
In order to induce the City to enter into this Work Order, the Contractor makes the following 
representations:  
7.1  Contractor has familiarized itself with the nature and extent of the Contract Documents 
including this Work Order, work, site, locality, and all local conditions and laws and regulations that 
in any manner may affect cost, progress, performance or furnishing of the work.  
 
7.2  Contractor has obtained at his/her own expense and carefully studied, or assumes 
responsibility for obtaining and carefully studying, soil investigations, explorations, and test reports 
which pertain to the subsurface conditions at or contiguous to the site or otherwise may affect the 
cost, progress, performance or furnishing of the work as Contractor considers necessary for the 
performance or furnishing of the work at the stated work order price within the Work Order stated 
time and in accordance with the other terms and conditions of the Contract Documents, including 
specifically the provisions of the RFP; and no additional examinations, investigations, explorations, 
tests, reports, studies or similar information or data are or is deemed necessary by Contractor for 
such purposes.  
 
7 .3  Contractor has reviewed and checked all information and data shown or indicated on the 
Contract Documents with respect to existing Underground Facilities at or contiguous to the site and 
assumes responsibility for the accurate location of said Underground Facilities. No additional 
examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, reports, studies or similar information or data in 
respect of said Underground Facilities are or is deemed necessary by the Contractor in order to 
perform and furnish the work under this Work Order price, within the Work Order time and in 
accordance with the other terms and conditions of the Contract Documents. 
 
 
7.4 Contractor has correlated the results of all such observations, examinations, investigations, 
explorations, tests, reports and studies with the terms and conditions of the Contract Documents. 
 
7.5 Contractor has given the City's Contract Administrator written notice of all conflicts, errors or 
discrepancies that he or she has discovered in the Contract Documents and the written resolution 
thereof by City or its designee is acceptable to the Contractor. 
 

mailto:_%20_Dmartyniuk@lakeworthbeachfl.gov


Page 3 of 4  

 
8.0 Warranty 

 
Warranty. The Contractor warrants and guarantees to the City that all services and work provided 
under this Work Order will be in accordance with this Work Order and the other Contract 
Documents. The Contractor warrants that (a) all materials and parts supplied under this Work Order 
shall be free from defects for one (1) year from the final completion of all work (unless a longer 
manufacturer warranty applies); (b) all services and work performed under this Work Order will be 
free from defects for one ( 1) year from the final completion of all work and the project shall be fully 
operational without unreasonable downtime or failures; and (c) that the services and work will 
conform to the requirements of the Contract Documents. If, at any time prior to the expiration of the 
one (I) year warranty period, the City discovers any failure or breach of the Contractor's warranties 
or the Contractor discovers any failure or breach of the Contractor's warranties, the Contractor will, 
upon written notice from City or of its own accord, at the Contractor's sole cost and expense, 
promptly correct such failure or breach (which corrective action must include, without limitation, any 
necessary removal, disassembly, reinstallation, repair, replacement, reassembly, retesting, and/or 
re-inspection of any part or portion of the work and any other property damaged or affected by such 
failure, breach, or corrective action). The Contractor will remedy any such failure or breach so, to the 
extent possible, to avoid unnecessary disruptions to the operations of City or its systems. In the 
event the Contractor fails to initiate and diligently pursue corrective action within five (5) days of the 
Contractor's receipt of the City's notice or the Contractor's discovery of the same, the City may 
undertake such corrective action at the Contractor's expense. 
 
 

 
9.0 Authorization 

 
This Work Order is pursuant to the Electrical Equipment Inspection, Testing, Repair and 
Maintenance Services Contract for between the City of Lake Worth Beach and the Contractor, 
dated May 15, 2018 ("Contract" hereafter). If there are any conflicts between the terms and 
conditions of this Work Order and the Contract, the terms and conditions of the Contract shall 
prevail. 
 
 

REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 
 

  





Exhibit 1 
Contract for Electrical Equipment Inspection, Testing, Repair and 

Maintenance Services 
Task Order No. 066 

 
 
 

Services to be provided by: 

Services provided to (City): 

 
NuCAT Corporation 

 

City of Lake Worth Beach

Proposal Date: May 11, 2023 

 
Proposal Terms 

A. Project Description: 
 

Inspect, Repair and Test Circuit Breaker 26B1W05 
 

B. Scope of Services: 
 
NuCat Corp. Will inspect repair and perform testing of Circuit Breaker 26B1W05. 
 
 

C. Equipment: 
 
Doble M4000 
Doble TDR 9100 

 
 

D. Fees and Rates: 
 

1. . NuCat Corp. will complete the following work on a time and material basis, we anticipate the total cost to be 
$10,300.00 

 



Inspect Repair and Test Circuit Breaker 26B1W05 
for The 

City of Lake Worth 
Estimate of Fees 

 

 

Inspect, Repair and Test Circuit Breaker 26B1W05
Technicians Engineer
Men Hrs ST Rate Hrs OT Rate Total Men Hrs ST Rate Hrs OT Rate Total

1 20 $95.00 0 $142.50 $1,900.00 1 20 $125.00 4 $187.50 $3,250.00
1 16 $95.00 4 $142.50 $2,090.00 0 0 $125.00 0 $187.50 $0.00

Total $3,990.00 Total $3,250
Labor Total $7,240.00

Material
Description Price EA QTY Total Mrk up Total
Doble M4000 $1,000.00 2 $2,000.00 1.2 $2,400.00
Doble TDR 9100 $550.00 1 $550.00 1.2 $660.00

0 $0.00 1.2 $0.00
0 $0.00 1.2 $0.00  
0 $0.00 1.2 $0.00
0 $0.00 1.2 $0.00
0 $0.00 1.2 $0.00
0 $0.00 1.2 $0.00
0 $0.00 1.2 $0.00

$0.00 1.2 $0.00
0

Mtl Total $3,060.00

Grand Total $10,300



NuCAT CORPORATION 
657 RAMBLING DRIVE CIRCLE 

WELLINGTON, FL 33414 
PH: (561) 333-4021    

  

 

 

May 11, 2023 
 
City of Lake Worth 
1900 2nd Avenue North 
Lake Worth, FL    33461 
Attention:  David Martyniuk 
 
Ref No.: NC05112301 
Subject: Contract for Electrical Equipment Inspection, Testing, Repair And 
     Maintenance Services. Work Order # 066 
 
Dear David: 
 
Pursuant to your request, NuCat Corporation is pleased to provide you with this proposal to 
inspect repair and test Circuit Breaker 26B1W05. 
 

SCOPE OF WORK: 
  
NuCat Corp. will provide all the materials, equipment, qualified manpower, and technical 
supervision to complete the following work on the circuit breaker. 
 
Perform physical inspection. 
Replace pole assemblies. 
Perform electrical testing. 

Power Factor 
Hipot 
Timing 

 
PRICING:  

Total Price $10,300.00 
 

Sincerely, 
David A Bernier 
David A Bernier 



Page 1 of 4  

 
Electrical Equipment Inspection, Testing, Repair and Maintenance Services 

WORK ORDER NO.   67      

THIS WORK ORDER f o r  S E R V I C E S  ( “ W o r k  O r d e r ”  h e r e a f t e r )  
i s  made on                                          2023, between the City of Lake Worth Beach, a 
Florida municipal corporation located at 7 North Dixie Highway, Lake Worth, Florida 33460 
("City") and NuCAT Corporation, a Florida corporation ("Contractor"). 

 
1.0 Project Description: 

 
The City desires the Contractor to provide those services and work as identified herein related to 
the City’s Electric Utility System generally describe as: Inspect and Test Circuit Breakers 
26B5001, 5002 and 5003. Project completed 03/17/2022. (the “Project”). The Project is more 
specifically described in the scope and fee proposal prepared by NuCAT Corp., dated May 11, 
2023, and which are incorporated herein by reference.  

 
2.0 Scope 

 
Under this Work Order, the Contractor will provide the City of Lake Worth Beach with 
services for the Project as specified in the C o n t a c t o r ’ s  proposal attached hereto 
and incorporated herein as Exhibit "1". 

 
3.0 Schedule and Liquidated Damages 

 
Substantial completion of all services and work under this Work Order shall be within 60 
calendar days from the Effective Date of this Work Order. Final completion of all services and 
work (and all punch-list items (if any)) under this Work Order shall be within 90 calendar days 
from the Effective Date of this Work Order. The Effective Date of this Work Order is the date 
following the parties' execution of this Work Order and the City's delivery of a Notice to Proceed 
to the Contractor via e-mail, facsimile or other form of delivery as documented by the City. 
Substantial completion occurs when the services and work has progressed to the point where, in 
the opinion of the City, the work is sufficiently complete in accordance with the Contract 
Documents and this Work Order, so that the Project can be utilized for the purposes for which it 
is intended. Final completion occurs when all services and work (including punch-list items) has 
been completed and the project becomes fully operational and accepted by the City. 

 
Liquidated Damages. The City and Contractor recognize that time is of the essence under 
this Work Order and the Contract Documents, and that the City will suffer financial loss if 
the services and work described in this Work Order and the Contract Documents are not 
completed within the times specified in this Work Order. The City and Contractor 
recognize, agree and acknowledge that it would be impractical and extremely difficult to 
ascertain and fix the actual damages that the City would suffer in the event Contractor 
neglects, refuses, or otherwise fails to complete the services and work within the time 
specified. Accordingly, instead of requiring any such proof, the City and Contractor agree 
that as liquidated damages for delay (but not as a penalty) Contractor shall pay the City 
100 dollars ($100 .00) for each day that expires after the time specified in this Work Order. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 2 of 4  

 
4.0 Compensation 

 
This Work Order is issued for a lump sum, not to exceed amount of $16,140.00. The attached 
proposal identifies all costs and expenses included in the lump sum, not to exceed amount.  
 
The following Direct Purchases are to be made under this Work Order by the City: 
________________________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________________. 
 

5.0 Project Manager 
 

The Project Manager for the Contractor is David Bernier_, phone: 954-553-5566    _; email:  
davidbernier@nucatcorp.com ; and, the Project Manager for the City is  David Martyniuk, phone: 561-
586-1629  ; email: _ _Dmartyniuk@lakeworthbeachfl.gov   .  
 

6.0 Progress Meetings 
 

The Contractor shall schedule periodic progress review meetings with the City Project Manager as 
necessary but every 30 days as a minimum. 
 

7.0  Contractor’s Representations 
 
In order to induce the City to enter into this Work Order, the Contractor makes the following 
representations:  
7.1  Contractor has familiarized itself with the nature and extent of the Contract Documents 
including this Work Order, work, site, locality, and all local conditions and laws and regulations that 
in any manner may affect cost, progress, performance or furnishing of the work.  
 
7.2  Contractor has obtained at his/her own expense and carefully studied, or assumes 
responsibility for obtaining and carefully studying, soil investigations, explorations, and test reports 
which pertain to the subsurface conditions at or contiguous to the site or otherwise may affect the 
cost, progress, performance or furnishing of the work as Contractor considers necessary for the 
performance or furnishing of the work at the stated work order price within the Work Order stated 
time and in accordance with the other terms and conditions of the Contract Documents, including 
specifically the provisions of the RFP; and no additional examinations, investigations, explorations, 
tests, reports, studies or similar information or data are or is deemed necessary by Contractor for 
such purposes.  
 
7 .3  Contractor has reviewed and checked all information and data shown or indicated on the 
Contract Documents with respect to existing Underground Facilities at or contiguous to the site and 
assumes responsibility for the accurate location of said Underground Facilities. No additional 
examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, reports, studies or similar information or data in 
respect of said Underground Facilities are or is deemed necessary by the Contractor in order to 
perform and furnish the work under this Work Order price, within the Work Order time and in 
accordance with the other terms and conditions of the Contract Documents. 
 
 
7.4 Contractor has correlated the results of all such observations, examinations, investigations, 
explorations, tests, reports and studies with the terms and conditions of the Contract Documents. 
 
7.5 Contractor has given the City's Contract Administrator written notice of all conflicts, errors or 
discrepancies that he or she has discovered in the Contract Documents and the written resolution 
thereof by City or its designee is acceptable to the Contractor. 
 

mailto:_%20_Dmartyniuk@lakeworthbeachfl.gov


Page 3 of 4  

 
8.0 Warranty 

 
Warranty. The Contractor warrants and guarantees to the City that all services and work provided 
under this Work Order will be in accordance with this Work Order and the other Contract 
Documents. The Contractor warrants that (a) all materials and parts supplied under this Work Order 
shall be free from defects for one (1) year from the final completion of all work (unless a longer 
manufacturer warranty applies); (b) all services and work performed under this Work Order will be 
free from defects for one ( 1) year from the final completion of all work and the project shall be fully 
operational without unreasonable downtime or failures; and (c) that the services and work will 
conform to the requirements of the Contract Documents. If, at any time prior to the expiration of the 
one (I) year warranty period, the City discovers any failure or breach of the Contractor's warranties 
or the Contractor discovers any failure or breach of the Contractor's warranties, the Contractor will, 
upon written notice from City or of its own accord, at the Contractor's sole cost and expense, 
promptly correct such failure or breach (which corrective action must include, without limitation, any 
necessary removal, disassembly, reinstallation, repair, replacement, reassembly, retesting, and/or 
re-inspection of any part or portion of the work and any other property damaged or affected by such 
failure, breach, or corrective action). The Contractor will remedy any such failure or breach so, to the 
extent possible, to avoid unnecessary disruptions to the operations of City or its systems. In the 
event the Contractor fails to initiate and diligently pursue corrective action within five (5) days of the 
Contractor's receipt of the City's notice or the Contractor's discovery of the same, the City may 
undertake such corrective action at the Contractor's expense. 
 
 

 
9.0 Authorization 

 
This Work Order is pursuant to the Electrical Equipment Inspection, Testing, Repair and 
Maintenance Services Contract for between the City of Lake Worth Beach and the Contractor, 
dated May 15, 2018 ("Contract" hereafter). If there are any conflicts between the terms and 
conditions of this Work Order and the Contract, the terms and conditions of the Contract shall 
prevail. 
 
 

REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 
 

  





Exhibit 1 
Contract for Electrical Equipment Inspection, Testing, Repair and 

Maintenance Services 
Task Order No. 067 

 
 
 

Services to be provided by: 

Services provided to (City): 

 
NuCAT Corporation 

 

City of Lake Worth Beach

Proposal Date: May 11, 2023 

 
Proposal Terms 

A. Project Description: 
 

Inspect and Test Circuit Breakers 26B5001, 5002 and 5003 
 

B. Scope of Services: 
 
NuCat Corp. Will inspect and perform testing of Circuit Breakers 26B5001, 5002 and 5003. 
 
 

C. Equipment: 
 
Doble M4000 
Doble TDR 9100 

 
 

D. Fees and Rates: 
 

1. . NuCat Corp. will complete the following work on a time and material basis, we anticipate the total cost to be 
$16,140.00 

 



Inspect and Test Circuit Breakers 26B5001, 5002 and 5003 
for The 

City of Lake Worth 
Estimate of Fees 

 
 
 

 

Inspect and Test Circuit Breaker 26B5001,5002 and 5003
Technicians Engineer
Men Hrs ST Rate Hrs OT Rate Total Men Hrs ST Rate Hrs OT Rate Total

1 48 $95.00 0 $142.50 $4,560.00 1 48 $125.00 $187.50 $6,000.00
$95.00 $142.50 $0.00 0 0 $125.00 0 $187.50 $0.00

Total $4,560.00 Total $6,000
Labor Total $10,560.00

Material
Description Price EA QTY Total Mrk up Total
Doble M4000 $1,000.00 3 $3,000.00 1.2 $3,600.00
Doble TDR 9100 $550.00 3 $1,650.00 1.2 $1,980.00

0 $0.00 1.2 $0.00
0 $0.00 1.2 $0.00  
0 $0.00 1.2 $0.00
0 $0.00 1.2 $0.00
0 $0.00 1.2 $0.00
0 $0.00 1.2 $0.00
0 $0.00 1.2 $0.00

$0.00 1.2 $0.00
0

Mtl Total $5,580.00

Grand Total $16,140



NuCAT CORPORATION 
657 RAMBLING DRIVE CIRCLE 

WELLINGTON, FL 33414 
PH: (561) 333-4021    

  

 

 

May 11, 2023 
 
City of Lake Worth 
1900 2nd Avenue North 
Lake Worth, FL    33461 
Attention:  David Martyniuk 
 
Ref No.: NC05112302 
Subject: Contract for Electrical Equipment Inspection, Testing, Repair And 
     Maintenance Services. Work Order # 067 
 
Dear David: 
 
Pursuant to your request, NuCat Corporation is pleased to provide you with this proposal to 
inspect and test Circuit Breakers 26B5001, 5002 and 5003. 
 

SCOPE OF WORK: 
  
NuCat Corp. will provide all the materials, equipment, qualified manpower, and technical 
supervision to complete the following work on the circuit breaker. 
 
Perform physical inspection. 
Perform electrical testing. 

Power Factor 
Hipot 
Timing 
Ductor 

 
PRICING:  

Total Price $16,140.00 
 

Sincerely, 
David A Bernier 
David A Bernier 



Page 1 of 4  

 
Electrical Equipment Inspection, Testing, Repair and Maintenance Services 

WORK ORDER NO.   68      

THIS WORK ORDER f o r  S E R V I C E S  ( “ W o r k  O r d e r ”  h e r e a f t e r )  
i s  made on                                          2023, between the City of Lake Worth Beach, a 
Florida municipal corporation located at 7 North Dixie Highway, Lake Worth, Florida 33460 
("City") and NuCAT Corporation, a Florida corporation ("Contractor"). 

 
1.0 Project Description: 

 
The City desires the Contractor to provide those services and work as identified herein related to 
the City’s Electric Utility System generally describe as: Repair Transformer TD-12. Project 
completed 05/05/2023. (the “Project”). The Project is more specifically described in the scope 
and fee proposal prepared by NuCAT Corp., dated May 12, 2023, and which are incorporated 
herein by reference.  

 
2.0 Scope 

 
Under this Work Order, the Contractor will provide the City of Lake Worth Beach with 
services for the Project as specified in the C o n t a c t o r ’ s  proposal attached hereto 
and incorporated herein as Exhibit "1". 

 
3.0 Schedule and Liquidated Damages 

 
Substantial completion of all services and work under this Work Order shall be within 60 
calendar days from the Effective Date of this Work Order. Final completion of all services and 
work (and all punch-list items (if any)) under this Work Order shall be within 90 calendar days 
from the Effective Date of this Work Order. The Effective Date of this Work Order is the date 
following the parties' execution of this Work Order and the City's delivery of a Notice to Proceed 
to the Contractor via e-mail, facsimile or other form of delivery as documented by the City. 
Substantial completion occurs when the services and work has progressed to the point where, in 
the opinion of the City, the work is sufficiently complete in accordance with the Contract 
Documents and this Work Order, so that the Project can be utilized for the purposes for which it 
is intended. Final completion occurs when all services and work (including punch-list items) has 
been completed and the project becomes fully operational and accepted by the City. 

 
Liquidated Damages. The City and Contractor recognize that time is of the essence under 
this Work Order and the Contract Documents, and that the City will suffer financial loss if 
the services and work described in this Work Order and the Contract Documents are not 
completed within the times specified in this Work Order. The City and Contractor 
recognize, agree and acknowledge that it would be impractical and extremely difficult to 
ascertain and fix the actual damages that the City would suffer in the event Contractor 
neglects, refuses, or otherwise fails to complete the services and work within the time 
specified. Accordingly, instead of requiring any such proof, the City and Contractor agree 
that as liquidated damages for delay (but not as a penalty) Contractor shall pay the City 
100 dollars ($100 .00) for each day that expires after the time specified in this Work Order. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 2 of 4  

 
4.0 Compensation 

 
This Work Order is issued for a lump sum, not to exceed amount of $49,997.00. The attached 
proposal identifies all costs and expenses included in the lump sum, not to exceed amount.  
 
The following Direct Purchases are to be made under this Work Order by the City: 
________________________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________________. 
 

5.0 Project Manager 
 

The Project Manager for the Contractor is David Bernier_, phone: 954-553-5566    _; email:  
davidbernier@nucatcorp.com ; and, the Project Manager for the City is  David Martyniuk, phone: 561-
586-1629  ; email: _ _Dmartyniuk@lakeworthbeachfl.gov   .  
 

6.0 Progress Meetings 
 

The Contractor shall schedule periodic progress review meetings with the City Project Manager as 
necessary but every 30 days as a minimum. 
 

7.0  Contractor’s Representations 
 
In order to induce the City to enter into this Work Order, the Contractor makes the following 
representations:  
7.1  Contractor has familiarized itself with the nature and extent of the Contract Documents 
including this Work Order, work, site, locality, and all local conditions and laws and regulations that 
in any manner may affect cost, progress, performance or furnishing of the work.  
 
7.2  Contractor has obtained at his/her own expense and carefully studied, or assumes 
responsibility for obtaining and carefully studying, soil investigations, explorations, and test reports 
which pertain to the subsurface conditions at or contiguous to the site or otherwise may affect the 
cost, progress, performance or furnishing of the work as Contractor considers necessary for the 
performance or furnishing of the work at the stated work order price within the Work Order stated 
time and in accordance with the other terms and conditions of the Contract Documents, including 
specifically the provisions of the RFP; and no additional examinations, investigations, explorations, 
tests, reports, studies or similar information or data are or is deemed necessary by Contractor for 
such purposes.  
 
7 .3  Contractor has reviewed and checked all information and data shown or indicated on the 
Contract Documents with respect to existing Underground Facilities at or contiguous to the site and 
assumes responsibility for the accurate location of said Underground Facilities. No additional 
examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, reports, studies or similar information or data in 
respect of said Underground Facilities are or is deemed necessary by the Contractor in order to 
perform and furnish the work under this Work Order price, within the Work Order time and in 
accordance with the other terms and conditions of the Contract Documents. 
 
 
7.4 Contractor has correlated the results of all such observations, examinations, investigations, 
explorations, tests, reports and studies with the terms and conditions of the Contract Documents. 
 
7.5 Contractor has given the City's Contract Administrator written notice of all conflicts, errors or 
discrepancies that he or she has discovered in the Contract Documents and the written resolution 
thereof by City or its designee is acceptable to the Contractor. 
 

mailto:_%20_Dmartyniuk@lakeworthbeachfl.gov


Page 3 of 4  

 
8.0 Warranty 

 
Warranty. The Contractor warrants and guarantees to the City that all services and work provided 
under this Work Order will be in accordance with this Work Order and the other Contract 
Documents. The Contractor warrants that (a) all materials and parts supplied under this Work Order 
shall be free from defects for one (1) year from the final completion of all work (unless a longer 
manufacturer warranty applies); (b) all services and work performed under this Work Order will be 
free from defects for one ( 1) year from the final completion of all work and the project shall be fully 
operational without unreasonable downtime or failures; and (c) that the services and work will 
conform to the requirements of the Contract Documents. If, at any time prior to the expiration of the 
one (I) year warranty period, the City discovers any failure or breach of the Contractor's warranties 
or the Contractor discovers any failure or breach of the Contractor's warranties, the Contractor will, 
upon written notice from City or of its own accord, at the Contractor's sole cost and expense, 
promptly correct such failure or breach (which corrective action must include, without limitation, any 
necessary removal, disassembly, reinstallation, repair, replacement, reassembly, retesting, and/or 
re-inspection of any part or portion of the work and any other property damaged or affected by such 
failure, breach, or corrective action). The Contractor will remedy any such failure or breach so, to the 
extent possible, to avoid unnecessary disruptions to the operations of City or its systems. In the 
event the Contractor fails to initiate and diligently pursue corrective action within five (5) days of the 
Contractor's receipt of the City's notice or the Contractor's discovery of the same, the City may 
undertake such corrective action at the Contractor's expense. 
 
 

 
9.0 Authorization 

 
This Work Order is pursuant to the Electrical Equipment Inspection, Testing, Repair and 
Maintenance Services Contract for between the City of Lake Worth Beach and the Contractor, 
dated May 15, 2018 ("Contract" hereafter). If there are any conflicts between the terms and 
conditions of this Work Order and the Contract, the terms and conditions of the Contract shall 
prevail. 
 
 

REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 
 

  





Exhibit 1 
Contract for Electrical Equipment Inspection, Testing, Repair and 

Maintenance Services 
Task Order No. 068 

 
 
 

Services to be provided by: 

Services provided to (City): 

 
NuCAT Corporation 

 

City of Lake Worth Beach

Proposal Date: May 12, 2023 

 
Proposal Terms 

A. Project Description: 
 

Repair Transformer TD-12 
 

B. Scope of Services: 
 
NuCat Corp. Will rebuild the LTC and repair Transformer TD-12 
. 
 
 

C. Equipment: 
 
Proccessor 
Doble M4000 
Filter Press 

 
 

D. Fees and Rates: 
 

1.  NuCat Corp. will complete the following work on a time and material basis, we anticipate the total cost to be 
$49,997.00 

 



Repair Transformer TD-12 
for The 

City of Lake Worth 
Estimate of Fees 

 

 

Repair Transformer TD12
Technicians Engineer
Men Hrs ST Rate Hrs OT Rate Total Men Hrs ST Rate Hrs OT Rate Total

2 65 $95.00 8 $142.50 $14,630.00 1 65 $125.00 8 $187.50 $9,625.00
0 $95.00 0 $142.50 $0.00 0 0 $125.00 0 $187.50 $0.00

Total $14,630.00 Total $9,625
Labor Total $24,255.00

Material
Description Price EA QTY Total Mrk up Total
Doble M4000 $1,000.00 1 $1,000.00 1.2 $1,200.00
Filter press $150.00 1 $150.00 1.2 $180.00
LV Bushing Adaptors $423.00 1 $423.00 1.2 $507.60
Shipping $189.00 1 $189.00 1.2 $226.80
LTC TLS Switch Kit $12,332.88 1 $12,332.88 1.2 $14,799.46
Processor $2,500.00 1 $2,500.00 1.2 $3,000.00  
Generator $1,800.00 1 $1,800.00 1.2 $2,160.00
Gaskets $230.00 1 $230.00 1.2 $276.00
Misc $0.00 1 $0.00 1.2 $0.00
LTC indicator $2,827.00 1 $2,827.00 1.2 $3,392.40

0 $0.00 1.2 $0.00
0 $0.00 1.2 $0.00

$0.00 1.2 $0.00
Mtl Total $25,742.26

Grand Total $49,997



NuCAT CORPORATION 
657 RAMBLING DRIVE CIRCLE 

WELLINGTON, FL 33414 
PH: (561) 333-4021    

  

 

 

May 12, 2023 
 
City of Lake Worth 
1900 2nd Avenue North 
Lake Worth, FL    33461 
Attention:  David Martyniuk 
 
Ref No.: NC05122302 
Subject: Contract for Electrical Equipment Inspection, Testing, Repair And 
     Maintenance Services. Work Order # 068 
 
Dear David: 
 
Per your request, NuCAT Corporation is pleased to provide you with this proposal to repair 
transformer TD-12. 
 
SCOPE OF WORK: 
  
NuCat Corp. will supply all the materials, equipment, qualified manpower, and technical 
supervision to complete the following work on transformer TD-12. 
 
Replace all LV bushings. 
Rebuild LTC. 
Process Transformer. 
Perform electrical testing. 

Turns Ratio 
Insulation Resistance 
Power Factor 

PRICING:  
Total Price $49,997.00 

 
Sincerely, 
David A Bernier 
David A Bernier 



Page 1 of 4  

 
Electrical Equipment Inspection, Testing, Repair and Maintenance Services 

WORK ORDER NO.   69      

THIS WORK ORDER f o r  S E R V I C E S  ( “ W o r k  O r d e r ”  h e r e a f t e r )  
i s  made on                                          2023, between the City of Lake Worth Beach, a 
Florida municipal corporation located at 7 North Dixie Highway, Lake Worth, Florida 33460 
("City") and NuCAT Corporation, a Florida corporation ("Contractor"). 

 
1.0 Project Description: 

 
The City desires the Contractor to provide those services and work as identified herein related to 
the City’s Electric Utility System generally describe as: Install New Interrupters and Test the 
Spare Circuit Breaker. Project completed 01/24/2022. (the “Project”). The Project is more 
specifically described in the scope and fee proposal prepared by NuCAT Corp., dated May 11, 
2023, and which are incorporated herein by reference.  

 
2.0 Scope 

 
Under this Work Order, the Contractor will provide the City of Lake Worth Beach with 
services for the Project as specified in the C o n t a c t o r ’ s  proposal attached hereto 
and incorporated herein as Exhibit "1". 

 
3.0 Schedule and Liquidated Damages 

 
Substantial completion of all services and work under this Work Order shall be within 60 
calendar days from the Effective Date of this Work Order. Final completion of all services and 
work (and all punch-list items (if any)) under this Work Order shall be within 90 calendar days 
from the Effective Date of this Work Order. The Effective Date of this Work Order is the date 
following the parties' execution of this Work Order and the City's delivery of a Notice to Proceed 
to the Contractor via e-mail, facsimile or other form of delivery as documented by the City. 
Substantial completion occurs when the services and work has progressed to the point where, in 
the opinion of the City, the work is sufficiently complete in accordance with the Contract 
Documents and this Work Order, so that the Project can be utilized for the purposes for which it 
is intended. Final completion occurs when all services and work (including punch-list items) has 
been completed and the project becomes fully operational and accepted by the City. 

 
Liquidated Damages. The City and Contractor recognize that time is of the essence under 
this Work Order and the Contract Documents, and that the City will suffer financial loss if 
the services and work described in this Work Order and the Contract Documents are not 
completed within the times specified in this Work Order. The City and Contractor 
recognize, agree and acknowledge that it would be impractical and extremely difficult to 
ascertain and fix the actual damages that the City would suffer in the event Contractor 
neglects, refuses, or otherwise fails to complete the services and work within the time 
specified. Accordingly, instead of requiring any such proof, the City and Contractor agree 
that as liquidated damages for delay (but not as a penalty) Contractor shall pay the City 
100 dollars ($100 .00) for each day that expires after the time specified in this Work Order. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 2 of 4  

 
4.0 Compensation 

 
This Work Order is issued for a lump sum, not to exceed amount of $10,300.00. The attached 
proposal identifies all costs and expenses included in the lump sum, not to exceed amount.  
 
The following Direct Purchases are to be made under this Work Order by the City: 
________________________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________________. 
 

5.0 Project Manager 
 

The Project Manager for the Contractor is David Bernier_, phone: 954-553-5566    _; email:  
davidbernier@nucatcorp.com ; and, the Project Manager for the City is  David Martyniuk, phone: 561-
586-1629  ; email: _ _Dmartyniuk@lakeworthbeachfl.gov   .  
 

6.0 Progress Meetings 
 

The Contractor shall schedule periodic progress review meetings with the City Project Manager as 
necessary but every 30 days as a minimum. 
 

7.0  Contractor’s Representations 
 
In order to induce the City to enter into this Work Order, the Contractor makes the following 
representations:  
7.1  Contractor has familiarized itself with the nature and extent of the Contract Documents 
including this Work Order, work, site, locality, and all local conditions and laws and regulations that 
in any manner may affect cost, progress, performance or furnishing of the work.  
 
7.2  Contractor has obtained at his/her own expense and carefully studied, or assumes 
responsibility for obtaining and carefully studying, soil investigations, explorations, and test reports 
which pertain to the subsurface conditions at or contiguous to the site or otherwise may affect the 
cost, progress, performance or furnishing of the work as Contractor considers necessary for the 
performance or furnishing of the work at the stated work order price within the Work Order stated 
time and in accordance with the other terms and conditions of the Contract Documents, including 
specifically the provisions of the RFP; and no additional examinations, investigations, explorations, 
tests, reports, studies or similar information or data are or is deemed necessary by Contractor for 
such purposes.  
 
7 .3  Contractor has reviewed and checked all information and data shown or indicated on the 
Contract Documents with respect to existing Underground Facilities at or contiguous to the site and 
assumes responsibility for the accurate location of said Underground Facilities. No additional 
examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, reports, studies or similar information or data in 
respect of said Underground Facilities are or is deemed necessary by the Contractor in order to 
perform and furnish the work under this Work Order price, within the Work Order time and in 
accordance with the other terms and conditions of the Contract Documents. 
 
 
7.4 Contractor has correlated the results of all such observations, examinations, investigations, 
explorations, tests, reports and studies with the terms and conditions of the Contract Documents. 
 
7.5 Contractor has given the City's Contract Administrator written notice of all conflicts, errors or 
discrepancies that he or she has discovered in the Contract Documents and the written resolution 
thereof by City or its designee is acceptable to the Contractor. 
 

mailto:_%20_Dmartyniuk@lakeworthbeachfl.gov


Page 3 of 4  

 
8.0 Warranty 

 
Warranty. The Contractor warrants and guarantees to the City that all services and work provided 
under this Work Order will be in accordance with this Work Order and the other Contract 
Documents. The Contractor warrants that (a) all materials and parts supplied under this Work Order 
shall be free from defects for one (1) year from the final completion of all work (unless a longer 
manufacturer warranty applies); (b) all services and work performed under this Work Order will be 
free from defects for one ( 1) year from the final completion of all work and the project shall be fully 
operational without unreasonable downtime or failures; and (c) that the services and work will 
conform to the requirements of the Contract Documents. If, at any time prior to the expiration of the 
one (I) year warranty period, the City discovers any failure or breach of the Contractor's warranties 
or the Contractor discovers any failure or breach of the Contractor's warranties, the Contractor will, 
upon written notice from City or of its own accord, at the Contractor's sole cost and expense, 
promptly correct such failure or breach (which corrective action must include, without limitation, any 
necessary removal, disassembly, reinstallation, repair, replacement, reassembly, retesting, and/or 
re-inspection of any part or portion of the work and any other property damaged or affected by such 
failure, breach, or corrective action). The Contractor will remedy any such failure or breach so, to the 
extent possible, to avoid unnecessary disruptions to the operations of City or its systems. In the 
event the Contractor fails to initiate and diligently pursue corrective action within five (5) days of the 
Contractor's receipt of the City's notice or the Contractor's discovery of the same, the City may 
undertake such corrective action at the Contractor's expense. 
 
 

 
9.0 Authorization 

 
This Work Order is pursuant to the Electrical Equipment Inspection, Testing, Repair and 
Maintenance Services Contract for between the City of Lake Worth Beach and the Contractor, 
dated May 15, 2018 ("Contract" hereafter). If there are any conflicts between the terms and 
conditions of this Work Order and the Contract, the terms and conditions of the Contract shall 
prevail. 
 
 

REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 
 

  





Exhibit 1 
Contract for Electrical Equipment Inspection, Testing, Repair and 

Maintenance Services 
Task Order No. 069 

 
 
 

Services to be provided by: 

Services provided to (City): 

 
NuCAT Corporation 

 

City of Lake Worth Beach

Proposal Date: May 14, 2023 

 
Proposal Terms 

A. Project Description: 
 

Install New Interrupters and Test Spare Circuit Breaker 
 

B. Scope of Services: 
 
NuCat Corp. Will Install New Interrupters and Test the Spare Circuit Breaker 
. 
 
 

C. Equipment: 
 
Doble M4000 
Doble TDR 9100 

 
 

D. Fees and Rates: 
 

1. . NuCat Corp. will complete the following work on a time and material basis, we anticipate the total cost to be 
$10,300.00 

 



Install New Interrupters and Test Spare Circuit Breaker  
for The 

City of Lake Worth 
Estimate of Fees 

 

 

Install New Interrupters and Test Spare Circuit Breaker
Technicians Engineer
Men Hrs ST Rate Hrs OT Rate Total Men Hrs ST Rate Hrs OT Rate Total

1 20 $95.00 0 $142.50 $1,900.00 1 20 $125.00 4 $187.50 $3,250.00
1 16 $95.00 4 $142.50 $2,090.00 0 0 $125.00 0 $187.50 $0.00

Total $3,990.00 Total $3,250
Labor Total $7,240.00

Material
Description Price EA QTY Total Mrk up Total
Doble M4000 $1,000.00 2 $2,000.00 1.2 $2,400.00
Doble TDR 9100 $550.00 1 $550.00 1.2 $660.00

0 $0.00 1.2 $0.00
0 $0.00 1.2 $0.00  
0 $0.00 1.2 $0.00
0 $0.00 1.2 $0.00
0 $0.00 1.2 $0.00
0 $0.00 1.2 $0.00
0 $0.00 1.2 $0.00

$0.00 1.2 $0.00
0

Mtl Total $3,060.00

Grand Total $10,300



NuCAT CORPORATION 
657 RAMBLING DRIVE CIRCLE 

WELLINGTON, FL 33414 
PH: (561) 333-4021    

  

 

 

May 14, 2023 
 
City of Lake Worth 
1900 2nd Avenue North 
Lake Worth, FL    33461 
Attention:  David Martyniuk 
 
Ref No.: NC05142301 
Subject: Contract for Electrical Equipment Inspection, Testing, Repair And 
     Maintenance Services. Work Order # 069 
 
Dear David: 
 
Pursuant to your request, NuCat Corporation is pleased to provide you with this proposal to 
Install New Interrupters and Test the Spare Circuit Breaker. 
 

SCOPE OF WORK: 
  
NuCat Corp. will provide all the materials, equipment, qualified manpower, and technical 
supervision to complete the following work on the circuit breaker. 
 
Perform physical inspection. 
Replace pole assemblies. 
Perform electrical testing. 

Power Factor 
Hipot 
Timing 

 
PRICING:  

Total Price $10,300.00 
 

Sincerely, 
David A Bernier 
David A Bernier 



Page 1 of 4  

 
Electrical Equipment Inspection, Testing, Repair and Maintenance Services 

WORK ORDER NO.   70      

THIS WORK ORDER f o r  S E R V I C E S  ( “ W o r k  O r d e r ”  h e r e a f t e r )  
i s  made on                                          2023, between the City of Lake Worth Beach, a 
Florida municipal corporation located at 7 North Dixie Highway, Lake Worth, Florida 33460 
("City") and NuCAT Corporation, a Florida corporation ("Contractor"). 

 
1.0 Project Description: 

 
The City desires the Contractor to provide those services and work as identified herein related to 
the City’s Electric Utility System generally describe as: Repair and Test Circuit Breaker 26BE09. 
Project completed 02/28/2022. (the “Project”). The Project is more specifically described in the 
scope and fee proposal prepared by NuCAT Corp., dated May 14, 2023, and which are 
incorporated herein by reference.  

 
2.0 Scope 

 
Under this Work Order, the Contractor will provide the City of Lake Worth Beach with 
services for the Project as specified in the C o n t a c t o r ’ s  proposal attached hereto 
and incorporated herein as Exhibit "1". 

 
3.0 Schedule and Liquidated Damages 

 
Substantial completion of all services and work under this Work Order shall be within 60 
calendar days from the Effective Date of this Work Order. Final completion of all services and 
work (and all punch-list items (if any)) under this Work Order shall be within 90 calendar days 
from the Effective Date of this Work Order. The Effective Date of this Work Order is the date 
following the parties' execution of this Work Order and the City's delivery of a Notice to Proceed 
to the Contractor via e-mail, facsimile or other form of delivery as documented by the City. 
Substantial completion occurs when the services and work has progressed to the point where, in 
the opinion of the City, the work is sufficiently complete in accordance with the Contract 
Documents and this Work Order, so that the Project can be utilized for the purposes for which it 
is intended. Final completion occurs when all services and work (including punch-list items) has 
been completed and the project becomes fully operational and accepted by the City. 

 
Liquidated Damages. The City and Contractor recognize that time is of the essence under 
this Work Order and the Contract Documents, and that the City will suffer financial loss if 
the services and work described in this Work Order and the Contract Documents are not 
completed within the times specified in this Work Order. The City and Contractor 
recognize, agree and acknowledge that it would be impractical and extremely difficult to 
ascertain and fix the actual damages that the City would suffer in the event Contractor 
neglects, refuses, or otherwise fails to complete the services and work within the time 
specified. Accordingly, instead of requiring any such proof, the City and Contractor agree 
that as liquidated damages for delay (but not as a penalty) Contractor shall pay the City 
100 dollars ($100 .00) for each day that expires after the time specified in this Work Order. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 2 of 4  

 
4.0 Compensation 

 
This Work Order is issued for a lump sum, not to exceed amount of $8,100.00. The attached 
proposal identifies all costs and expenses included in the lump sum, not to exceed amount.  
 
The following Direct Purchases are to be made under this Work Order by the City: 
________________________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________________. 
 

5.0 Project Manager 
 

The Project Manager for the Contractor is David Bernier_, phone: 954-553-5566    _; email:  
davidbernier@nucatcorp.com ; and, the Project Manager for the City is  David Martyniuk, phone: 561-
586-1629  ; email: _ _Dmartyniuk@lakeworthbeachfl.gov   .  
 

6.0 Progress Meetings 
 

The Contractor shall schedule periodic progress review meetings with the City Project Manager as 
necessary but every 30 days as a minimum. 
 

7.0  Contractor’s Representations 
 
In order to induce the City to enter into this Work Order, the Contractor makes the following 
representations:  
7.1  Contractor has familiarized itself with the nature and extent of the Contract Documents 
including this Work Order, work, site, locality, and all local conditions and laws and regulations that 
in any manner may affect cost, progress, performance or furnishing of the work.  
 
7.2  Contractor has obtained at his/her own expense and carefully studied, or assumes 
responsibility for obtaining and carefully studying, soil investigations, explorations, and test reports 
which pertain to the subsurface conditions at or contiguous to the site or otherwise may affect the 
cost, progress, performance or furnishing of the work as Contractor considers necessary for the 
performance or furnishing of the work at the stated work order price within the Work Order stated 
time and in accordance with the other terms and conditions of the Contract Documents, including 
specifically the provisions of the RFP; and no additional examinations, investigations, explorations, 
tests, reports, studies or similar information or data are or is deemed necessary by Contractor for 
such purposes.  
 
7 .3  Contractor has reviewed and checked all information and data shown or indicated on the 
Contract Documents with respect to existing Underground Facilities at or contiguous to the site and 
assumes responsibility for the accurate location of said Underground Facilities. No additional 
examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, reports, studies or similar information or data in 
respect of said Underground Facilities are or is deemed necessary by the Contractor in order to 
perform and furnish the work under this Work Order price, within the Work Order time and in 
accordance with the other terms and conditions of the Contract Documents. 
 
 
7.4 Contractor has correlated the results of all such observations, examinations, investigations, 
explorations, tests, reports and studies with the terms and conditions of the Contract Documents. 
 
7.5 Contractor has given the City's Contract Administrator written notice of all conflicts, errors or 
discrepancies that he or she has discovered in the Contract Documents and the written resolution 
thereof by City or its designee is acceptable to the Contractor. 
 

mailto:_%20_Dmartyniuk@lakeworthbeachfl.gov


Page 3 of 4  

 
8.0 Warranty 

 
Warranty. The Contractor warrants and guarantees to the City that all services and work provided 
under this Work Order will be in accordance with this Work Order and the other Contract 
Documents. The Contractor warrants that (a) all materials and parts supplied under this Work Order 
shall be free from defects for one (1) year from the final completion of all work (unless a longer 
manufacturer warranty applies); (b) all services and work performed under this Work Order will be 
free from defects for one ( 1) year from the final completion of all work and the project shall be fully 
operational without unreasonable downtime or failures; and (c) that the services and work will 
conform to the requirements of the Contract Documents. If, at any time prior to the expiration of the 
one (I) year warranty period, the City discovers any failure or breach of the Contractor's warranties 
or the Contractor discovers any failure or breach of the Contractor's warranties, the Contractor will, 
upon written notice from City or of its own accord, at the Contractor's sole cost and expense, 
promptly correct such failure or breach (which corrective action must include, without limitation, any 
necessary removal, disassembly, reinstallation, repair, replacement, reassembly, retesting, and/or 
re-inspection of any part or portion of the work and any other property damaged or affected by such 
failure, breach, or corrective action). The Contractor will remedy any such failure or breach so, to the 
extent possible, to avoid unnecessary disruptions to the operations of City or its systems. In the 
event the Contractor fails to initiate and diligently pursue corrective action within five (5) days of the 
Contractor's receipt of the City's notice or the Contractor's discovery of the same, the City may 
undertake such corrective action at the Contractor's expense. 
 
 

 
9.0 Authorization 

 
This Work Order is pursuant to the Electrical Equipment Inspection, Testing, Repair and 
Maintenance Services Contract for between the City of Lake Worth Beach and the Contractor, 
dated May 15, 2018 ("Contract" hereafter). If there are any conflicts between the terms and 
conditions of this Work Order and the Contract, the terms and conditions of the Contract shall 
prevail. 
 
 

REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 
 

  





Exhibit 1 
Contract for Electrical Equipment Inspection, Testing, Repair and 

Maintenance Services 
Task Order No. 070 

 
 
 

Services to be provided by: 

Services provided to (City): 

 
NuCAT Corporation 

 

City of Lake Worth Beach

Proposal Date: May 14, 2023 

 
Proposal Terms 

A. Project Description: 
 

Repair and Test Circuit Breaker 26BE09 
 

B. Scope of Services: 
 
NuCat Corp. Will Repair and Test the Circuit Breaker 26BE09 
. 
 
 

C. Equipment: 
 
Doble M4000 
Doble TDR 9100 

 
 

D. Fees and Rates: 
 

1. . NuCat Corp. will complete the following work on a time and material basis, we anticipate the total cost to be 
$8,100.00 

 



Repair and Test Circuit Breaker 26BE09 
for The 

City of Lake Worth 
Estimate of Fees 

 

 

Repair and Test Circuit Breaker 26BE09
Technicians Engineer
Men Hrs ST Rate Hrs OT Rate Total Men Hrs ST Rate Hrs OT Rate Total

1 16 $95.00 0 $142.50 $1,520.00 1 16 $125.00 0 $187.50 $2,000.00
1 16 $95.00 0 $142.50 $1,520.00 0 0 $125.00 0 $187.50 $0.00

Total $3,040.00 Total $2,000
Labor Total $5,040.00

Material
Description Price EA QTY Total Mrk up Total
Doble M4000 $1,000.00 2 $2,000.00 1.2 $2,400.00
Doble TDR 9100 $550.00 1 $550.00 1.2 $660.00

0 $0.00 1.2 $0.00
0 $0.00 1.2 $0.00  
0 $0.00 1.2 $0.00
0 $0.00 1.2 $0.00
0 $0.00 1.2 $0.00
0 $0.00 1.2 $0.00
0 $0.00 1.2 $0.00

$0.00 1.2 $0.00
0

Mtl Total $3,060.00

Grand Total $8,100



NuCAT CORPORATION 
657 RAMBLING DRIVE CIRCLE 

WELLINGTON, FL 33414 
PH: (561) 333-4021    

  

 

 

May 14, 2023 
 
City of Lake Worth 
1900 2nd Avenue North 
Lake Worth, FL    33461 
Attention:  David Martyniuk 
 
Ref No.: NC05142301 
Subject: Contract for Electrical Equipment Inspection, Testing, Repair And 
     Maintenance Services. Work Order # 070 
 
Dear David: 
 
Pursuant to your request, NuCat Corporation is pleased to provide you with this proposal to 
Repair and Test Circuit Breaker 26BE09 
. 
 

SCOPE OF WORK: 
  
NuCat Corp. will provide all the materials, equipment, qualified manpower, and technical 
supervision to complete the following work on the circuit breaker. 
 
Replace Motherboard and Capacitors. 
Perform electrical testing. 

Power Factor 
Hipot 
Timing 

 
PRICING:  

Total Price $8,100.00 
 

Sincerely, 
David A Bernier 
David A Bernier 



Page 1 of 4  

 
Electrical Equipment Inspection, Testing, Repair and Maintenance Services 

WORK ORDER NO.   71     

THIS WORK ORDER f o r  S E R V I C E S  ( “ W o r k  O r d e r ”  h e r e a f t e r )  
i s  made on            2023, between the City of Lake Worth Beach, a Florida municipal 
corporation located at 7 North Dixie Highway, Lake Worth, Florida 33460 ("City") and NuCAT 
Corporation, a Florida corporation ("Contractor"). 

 
1.0 Project Description: 

 
The City desires the Contractor to provide those services and work as identified herein related to 
the City’s Electric Utility System generally describe as: Test Transformer GT2. Project completed 
03/03/2022. (the “Project”). The Project is more specifically described in the scope and fee 
proposal prepared by NuCAT Corp., dated May 14, 2023, and which are incorporated herein by 
reference.  

 
2.0 Scope 

 
Under this Work Order, the Contractor will provide the City of Lake Worth Beach with 
services for the Project as specified in the C o n t a c t o r ’ s  proposal attached hereto 
and incorporated herein as Exhibit "1". 

 
3.0 Schedule and Liquidated Damages 

 
Substantial completion of all services and work under this Work Order shall be within 60 
calendar days from the Effective Date of this Work Order. Final completion of all services and 
work (and all punch-list items (if any)) under this Work Order shall be within 90 calendar days 
from the Effective Date of this Work Order. The Effective Date of this Work Order is the date 
following the parties' execution of this Work Order and the City's delivery of a Notice to Proceed 
to the Contractor via e-mail, facsimile or other form of delivery as documented by the City. 
Substantial completion occurs when the services and work has progressed to the point where, in 
the opinion of the City, the work is sufficiently complete in accordance with the Contract 
Documents and this Work Order, so that the Project can be utilized for the purposes for which it 
is intended. Final completion occurs when all services and work (including punch-list items) has 
been completed and the project becomes fully operational and accepted by the City. 

 
Liquidated Damages. The City and Contractor recognize that time is of the essence under 
this Work Order and the Contract Documents, and that the City will suffer financial loss if 
the services and work described in this Work Order and the Contract Documents are not 
completed within the times specified in this Work Order. The City and Contractor 
recognize, agree and acknowledge that it would be impractical and extremely difficult to 
ascertain and fix the actual damages that the City would suffer in the event Contractor 
neglects, refuses, or otherwise fails to complete the services and work within the time 
specified. Accordingly, instead of requiring any such proof, the City and Contractor agree 
that as liquidated damages for delay (but not as a penalty) Contractor shall pay the City 
100 dollars ($100 .00) for each day that expires after the time specified in this Work Order. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 2 of 4  

 
4.0 Compensation 

 
This Work Order is issued for a lump sum, not to exceed amount of $4,665.00. The attached 
proposal identifies all costs and expenses included in the lump sum, not to exceed amount.  
 
The following Direct Purchases are to be made under this Work Order by the City: 
________________________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________________. 
 

5.0 Project Manager 
 

The Project Manager for the Contractor is David Bernier_, phone: 954-553-5566    _; email:  
davidbernier@nucatcorp.com ; and, the Project Manager for the City is  David Martyniuk, phone: 561-
586-1629  ; email: _ _Dmartyniuk@lakeworthbeachfl.gov   .  
 

6.0 Progress Meetings 
 

The Contractor shall schedule periodic progress review meetings with the City Project Manager as 
necessary but every 30 days as a minimum. 
 

7.0  Contractor’s Representations 
 
In order to induce the City to enter into this Work Order, the Contractor makes the following 
representations:  
7.1  Contractor has familiarized itself with the nature and extent of the Contract Documents 
including this Work Order, work, site, locality, and all local conditions and laws and regulations that 
in any manner may affect cost, progress, performance or furnishing of the work.  
 
7.2  Contractor has obtained at his/her own expense and carefully studied, or assumes 
responsibility for obtaining and carefully studying, soil investigations, explorations, and test reports 
which pertain to the subsurface conditions at or contiguous to the site or otherwise may affect the 
cost, progress, performance or furnishing of the work as Contractor considers necessary for the 
performance or furnishing of the work at the stated work order price within the Work Order stated 
time and in accordance with the other terms and conditions of the Contract Documents, including 
specifically the provisions of the RFP; and no additional examinations, investigations, explorations, 
tests, reports, studies or similar information or data are or is deemed necessary by Contractor for 
such purposes.  
 
7 .3  Contractor has reviewed and checked all information and data shown or indicated on the 
Contract Documents with respect to existing Underground Facilities at or contiguous to the site and 
assumes responsibility for the accurate location of said Underground Facilities. No additional 
examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, reports, studies or similar information or data in 
respect of said Underground Facilities are or is deemed necessary by the Contractor in order to 
perform and furnish the work under this Work Order price, within the Work Order time and in 
accordance with the other terms and conditions of the Contract Documents. 
 
 
7.4 Contractor has correlated the results of all such observations, examinations, investigations, 
explorations, tests, reports and studies with the terms and conditions of the Contract Documents. 
 
7.5 Contractor has given the City's Contract Administrator written notice of all conflicts, errors or 
discrepancies that he or she has discovered in the Contract Documents and the written resolution 
thereof by City or its designee is acceptable to the Contractor. 
 

mailto:_%20_Dmartyniuk@lakeworthbeachfl.gov


Page 3 of 4  

 
8.0 Warranty 

 
Warranty. The Contractor warrants and guarantees to the City that all services and work provided 
under this Work Order will be in accordance with this Work Order and the other Contract 
Documents. The Contractor warrants that (a) all materials and parts supplied under this Work Order 
shall be free from defects for one (1) year from the final completion of all work (unless a longer 
manufacturer warranty applies); (b) all services and work performed under this Work Order will be 
free from defects for one ( 1) year from the final completion of all work and the project shall be fully 
operational without unreasonable downtime or failures; and (c) that the services and work will 
conform to the requirements of the Contract Documents. If, at any time prior to the expiration of the 
one (I) year warranty period, the City discovers any failure or breach of the Contractor's warranties 
or the Contractor discovers any failure or breach of the Contractor's warranties, the Contractor will, 
upon written notice from City or of its own accord, at the Contractor's sole cost and expense, 
promptly correct such failure or breach (which corrective action must include, without limitation, any 
necessary removal, disassembly, reinstallation, repair, replacement, reassembly, retesting, and/or 
re-inspection of any part or portion of the work and any other property damaged or affected by such 
failure, breach, or corrective action). The Contractor will remedy any such failure or breach so, to the 
extent possible, to avoid unnecessary disruptions to the operations of City or its systems. In the 
event the Contractor fails to initiate and diligently pursue corrective action within five (5) days of the 
Contractor's receipt of the City's notice or the Contractor's discovery of the same, the City may 
undertake such corrective action at the Contractor's expense. 
 
 

 
9.0 Authorization 

 
This Work Order is pursuant to the Electrical Equipment Inspection, Testing, Repair and 
Maintenance Services Contract for between the City of Lake Worth Beach and the Contractor, 
dated May 15, 2018 ("Contract" hereafter). If there are any conflicts between the terms and 
conditions of this Work Order and the Contract, the terms and conditions of the Contract shall 
prevail. 
 
 

REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 
 

  





Exhibit 1 
Contract for Electrical Equipment Inspection, Testing, Repair and 

Maintenance Services 
Task Order No. 071 

 
 
 

Services to be provided by: 

Services provided to (City): 

 
NuCAT Corporation 

 

City of Lake Worth Beach

Proposal Date: May 14, 2023 

 
Proposal Terms 

A. Project Description: 
 

Test Transformer GT2 
 

B. Scope of Services: 
 
NuCat Corp. Will Test Transformer GT2 
. 
 
 

C. Equipment: 
 
 

D. Fees and Rates: 
 

1. . NuCat Corp. will complete the following work on a time and material basis, we anticipate the total cost to be 
$4,665.00. 

 



Test Transformer GT2 
for The 

City of Lake Worth 
Estimate of Fees 

 

 

Test GT2 Transformer
Technicians Engineer
Men Hrs ST Rate Hrs OT Rate Total Men Hrs ST Rate Hrs OT Rate Total

2 8 $95.00 2 $142.50 $2,090.00 1 8 $125.00 2 $187.50 $1,375.00
0 0 $95.00 0 $142.50 $0.00 0 0 $125.00 0 $187.50 $0.00

Total $2,090.00 Total $1,375
Labor Total $3,465.00

Material

Part number Description Outline drawing QTY Price EA Total Mrk up Total
0 $0.00 1.2 $0.00
0 $0.00 $0.00 1.2 $0.00
0 $0.00 $0.00 1.2 $0.00
0 $0.00 $0.00 1.2 $0.00  

Doble M4000 1 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 1.2 $1,200.00
Misc 0 $0.00 $0.00 1.2 $0.00

0 $0.00 $0.00 1.2 $0.00
0 $0.00 $0.00 1.2 $0.00
0 0 $0.00 1.2 $0.00
0 0 $0.00 1.2 $0.00

$0.00 1.2 $0.00
0 $0.00 $1,000.00

Mtl Total $1,200.00

Grand Total $4,665



NuCAT CORPORATION 
657 RAMBLING DRIVE CIRCLE 

WELLINGTON, FL 33414 
PH: (954) 553-5566    

  

 

 

May 14, 2023 
 
City of Lake Worth 
1900 2nd Avenue North 
Lake Worth, FL    33461 
Attention:  David Martyniuk 
 
Ref No.: NC05142303 
Subject: Contract for Electrical Equipment Inspection, Testing, Repair And 
     Maintenance Services. Work Order # 071 
 
Dear David: 
 
Per your request, NuCAT Corporation is pleased to provide you with this proposal to test 
transformer GT2. 
 
 
SCOPE OF WORK: 
 
NuCat Corp. will provide the equipment, qualified manpower and technical supervision to test 
the transformer. 
 

 
Pricing:  $ 4,665.00 

 
 
If you have any questions, or require additional information, please contact me at your 
convenience (954-553-5566). 
 
 
Sincerely, 
David A Bernier 
David A Bernier 



Page 1 of 4  

 
Electrical Equipment Inspection, Testing, Repair and Maintenance Services 

WORK ORDER NO.   72      

THIS WORK ORDER f o r  S E R V I C E S  ( “ W o r k  O r d e r ”  h e r e a f t e r )  
i s  made on                                          2022, between the City of Lake Worth Beach, a 
Florida municipal corporation located at 7 North Dixie Highway, Lake Worth, Florida 33460 
("City") and NuCAT Corporation, a Florida corporation ("Contractor"). 

 
1.0 Project Description: 

 
The City desires the Contractor to provide those services and work as identified herein related to 
the City’s Electric Utility System generally describe as: Inspection, Testing and replacement of 
Transformer TD-12. Project complete date 11/18/2022.  (the “Project”). The Project is more 
specifically described in the scope and fee proposal prepared by NuCAT Corp., dated May 12, 
2023, and which are incorporated herein by reference.  

 
2.0 Scope 

 
Under this Work Order, the Contractor will provide the City of Lake Worth Beach with 
services for the Project as specified in the C o n t a c t o r ’ s  proposal attached hereto 
and incorporated herein as Exhibit "1". 

 
3.0 Schedule and Liquidated Damages 

 
Substantial completion of all services and work under this Work Order shall be within 60 
calendar days from the Effective Date of this Work Order. Final completion of all services and 
work (and all punch-list items (if any)) under this Work Order shall be within 90 calendar days 
from the Effective Date of this Work Order. The Effective Date of this Work Order is the date 
following the parties' execution of this Work Order and the City's delivery of a Notice to Proceed 
to the Contractor via e-mail, facsimile or other form of delivery as documented by the City. 
Substantial completion occurs when the services and work has progressed to the point where, in 
the opinion of the City, the work is sufficiently complete in accordance with the Contract 
Documents and this Work Order, so that the Project can be utilized for the purposes for which it 
is intended. Final completion occurs when all services and work (including punch-list items) has 
been completed and the project becomes fully operational and accepted by the City. 

 
Liquidated Damages. The City and Contractor recognize that time is of the essence under 
this Work Order and the Contract Documents, and that the City will suffer financial loss if 
the services and work described in this Work Order and the Contract Documents are not 
completed within the times specified in this Work Order. The City and Contractor 
recognize, agree and acknowledge that it would be impractical and extremely difficult to 
ascertain and fix the actual damages that the City would suffer in the event Contractor 
neglects, refuses, or otherwise fails to complete the services and work within the time 
specified. Accordingly, instead of requiring any such proof, the City and Contractor agree 
that as liquidated damages for delay (but not as a penalty) Contractor shall pay the City 
100 dollars ($100 .00) for each day that expires after the time specified in this Work Order. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 2 of 4  

 
4.0 Compensation 

 
This Work Order is issued for a lump sum, not to exceed amount of $49,260.00. The attached 
proposal identifies all costs and expenses included in the lump sum, not to exceed amount.  
 
The following Direct Purchases are to be made under this Work Order by the City: 
________________________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________________. 
 

5.0 Project Manager 
 

The Project Manager for the Contractor is David Bernier_, phone: 954-553-5566    _; email:  
davidbernier@nucatcorp.com ; and, the Project Manager for the City is  David Martyniuk, phone: 561-
586-1629  ; email: _ _Dmartyniuk@lakeworthbeachfl.gov   .  
 

6.0 Progress Meetings 
 

The Contractor shall schedule periodic progress review meetings with the City Project Manager as 
necessary but every 30 days as a minimum. 
 

7.0  Contractor’s Representations 
 
In order to induce the City to enter into this Work Order, the Contractor makes the following 
representations:  
7.1  Contractor has familiarized itself with the nature and extent of the Contract Documents 
including this Work Order, work, site, locality, and all local conditions and laws and regulations that 
in any manner may affect cost, progress, performance or furnishing of the work.  
 
7.2  Contractor has obtained at his/her own expense and carefully studied, or assumes 
responsibility for obtaining and carefully studying, soil investigations, explorations, and test reports 
which pertain to the subsurface conditions at or contiguous to the site or otherwise may affect the 
cost, progress, performance or furnishing of the work as Contractor considers necessary for the 
performance or furnishing of the work at the stated work order price within the Work Order stated 
time and in accordance with the other terms and conditions of the Contract Documents, including 
specifically the provisions of the RFP; and no additional examinations, investigations, explorations, 
tests, reports, studies or similar information or data are or is deemed necessary by Contractor for 
such purposes.  
 
7 .3  Contractor has reviewed and checked all information and data shown or indicated on the 
Contract Documents with respect to existing Underground Facilities at or contiguous to the site and 
assumes responsibility for the accurate location of said Underground Facilities. No additional 
examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, reports, studies or similar information or data in 
respect of said Underground Facilities are or is deemed necessary by the Contractor in order to 
perform and furnish the work under this Work Order price, within the Work Order time and in 
accordance with the other terms and conditions of the Contract Documents. 
 
 
7.4 Contractor has correlated the results of all such observations, examinations, investigations, 
explorations, tests, reports and studies with the terms and conditions of the Contract Documents. 
 
7.5 Contractor has given the City's Contract Administrator written notice of all conflicts, errors or 
discrepancies that he or she has discovered in the Contract Documents and the written resolution 
thereof by City or its designee is acceptable to the Contractor. 
 

mailto:_%20_Dmartyniuk@lakeworthbeachfl.gov


Page 3 of 4  

 
8.0 Warranty 

 
Warranty. The Contractor warrants and guarantees to the City that all services and work provided 
under this Work Order will be in accordance with this Work Order and the other Contract 
Documents. The Contractor warrants that (a) all materials and parts supplied under this Work Order 
shall be free from defects for one (1) year from the final completion of all work (unless a longer 
manufacturer warranty applies); (b) all services and work performed under this Work Order will be 
free from defects for one ( 1) year from the final completion of all work and the project shall be fully 
operational without unreasonable downtime or failures; and (c) that the services and work will 
conform to the requirements of the Contract Documents. If, at any time prior to the expiration of the 
one (I) year warranty period, the City discovers any failure or breach of the Contractor's warranties 
or the Contractor discovers any failure or breach of the Contractor's warranties, the Contractor will, 
upon written notice from City or of its own accord, at the Contractor's sole cost and expense, 
promptly correct such failure or breach (which corrective action must include, without limitation, any 
necessary removal, disassembly, reinstallation, repair, replacement, reassembly, retesting, and/or 
re-inspection of any part or portion of the work and any other property damaged or affected by such 
failure, breach, or corrective action). The Contractor will remedy any such failure or breach so, to the 
extent possible, to avoid unnecessary disruptions to the operations of City or its systems. In the 
event the Contractor fails to initiate and diligently pursue corrective action within five (5) days of the 
Contractor's receipt of the City's notice or the Contractor's discovery of the same, the City may 
undertake such corrective action at the Contractor's expense. 
 
 

 
9.0 Authorization 

 
This Work Order is pursuant to the Electrical Equipment Inspection, Testing, Repair and 
Maintenance Services Contract for between the City of Lake Worth Beach and the Contractor, 
dated May 15, 2018 ("Contract" hereafter). If there are any conflicts between the terms and 
conditions of this Work Order and the Contract, the terms and conditions of the Contract shall 
prevail. 
 
 

REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 
 

  





Exhibit 1 
Contract for Electrical Equipment Inspection, Testing, Repair and 

Maintenance Services 
Task Order No. 072 

 
 
 

Services to be provided by: 

Services provided to (City): 

 
NuCAT Corporation 

 

City of Lake Worth Beach

Proposal Date: May 12, 2023 

 
Proposal Terms 

A. Project Description: 
 

Inspect, Test and Replace Transformer TD-12 
 

B. Scope of Services: 
 
NuCat Corp. Will Inspect, Test and Replace Transformer TD-12 
. 
 
 

C. Equipment: 
 
Doble M4000 
Filter Press 

 
 

D. Fees and Rates: 
 

1.  NuCat Corp. will complete the following work on a time and material basis, we anticipate the total cost to be 
$49,260.00 

 



Inspect, Test and Replace Transformer TD-12 
for The 

City of Lake Worth 
Estimate of Fees 

 

 

Inspect, Test and Replace Transformer TD12
Technicians Engineer
Men Hrs ST Rate Hrs OT Rate Total Men Hrs ST Rate Hrs OT Rate Total

2 140 $95.00 8 $142.50 $28,880.00 1 140 $125.00 8 $187.50 $19,000.00
0 0 $95.00 0 $142.50 $0.00 0 0 $125.00 0 $187.50 $0.00

Total $28,880.00 Total $19,000
Labor Total $47,880.00

Material
Description Price EA QTY Total Mrk up Total
Doble M4000 $1,000.00 1 $1,000.00 1.2 $1,200.00
Filter press $150.00 1 $150.00 1.2 $180.00

0 $0.00 1.2 $0.00
0 $0.00 1.2 $0.00
0 $0.00 1.2 $0.00
0 $0.00 1.2 $0.00  
0 $0.00 1.2 $0.00
0 $0.00 1.2 $0.00
0 $0.00 1.2 $0.00
0 $0.00 1.2 $0.00
0 $0.00 1.2 $0.00
0 $0.00 1.2 $0.00

$0.00 1.2 $0.00
Mtl Total $1,380.00

Grand Total $49,260



NuCAT CORPORATION 
657 RAMBLING DRIVE CIRCLE 

WELLINGTON, FL 33414 
PH: (561) 333-4021    

  

 

 

May 12, 2023 
 
City of Lake Worth 
1900 2nd Avenue North 
Lake Worth, FL    33461 
Attention:  David Martyniuk 
 
Ref No.: NC05122301 
Subject: Contract for Electrical Equipment Inspection, Testing, Repair And 
     Maintenance Services. Work Order # 072 
 
Dear David: 
 
Per your request, NuCAT Corporation is pleased to provide you with this proposal to inspect, 
test and replace transformer TD-12. 
 
SCOPE OF WORK: 
  
NuCat Corp. will supply all the materials, equipment, qualified manpower, and technical 
supervision to complete the following work on transformer TD-12. 
 
Drain the LTC and perform internal inspection. 
Perform electrical testing. 

Turns Ratio 
Insulation Resistance 
Power Factor 

Replace existing transformer with Spare. 
PRICING:  

Total Price $49,260.00 
 
 

Sincerely, 
David A Bernier 
David A Bernier 



Page 1 of 4  

 
Electrical Equipment Inspection, Testing, Repair and Maintenance Services 

WORK ORDER NO.   73      

THIS WORK ORDER f o r  S E R V I C E S  ( “ W o r k  O r d e r ”  h e r e a f t e r )  
i s  made on                                          2022, between the City of Lake Worth Beach, a 
Florida municipal corporation located at 7 North Dixie Highway, Lake Worth, Florida 33460 
("City") and NuCAT Corporation, a Florida corporation ("Contractor"). 

 
1.0 Project Description: 

 
The City desires the Contractor to provide those services and work as identified herein related to 
the City’s Electric Utility System generally describe as: Inspection and repair LTC for transformer 
TD-06. Project completed 05/22/2022. (the “Project”). The Project is more specifically described 
in the scope and fee proposal prepared by NuCAT Corp., dated May 10, 2023, and which are 
incorporated herein by reference.  

 
2.0 Scope 

 
Under this Work Order, the Contractor will provide the City of Lake Worth Beach with 
services for the Project as specified in the C o n t a c t o r ’ s  proposal attached hereto 
and incorporated herein as Exhibit "1". 

 
3.0 Schedule and Liquidated Damages 

 
Substantial completion of all services and work under this Work Order shall be within 60 
calendar days from the Effective Date of this Work Order. Final completion of all services and 
work (and all punch-list items (if any)) under this Work Order shall be within 90 calendar days 
from the Effective Date of this Work Order. The Effective Date of this Work Order is the date 
following the parties' execution of this Work Order and the City's delivery of a Notice to Proceed 
to the Contractor via e-mail, facsimile or other form of delivery as documented by the City. 
Substantial completion occurs when the services and work has progressed to the point where, in 
the opinion of the City, the work is sufficiently complete in accordance with the Contract 
Documents and this Work Order, so that the Project can be utilized for the purposes for which it 
is intended. Final completion occurs when all services and work (including punch-list items) has 
been completed and the project becomes fully operational and accepted by the City. 

 
Liquidated Damages. The City and Contractor recognize that time is of the essence under 
this Work Order and the Contract Documents, and that the City will suffer financial loss if 
the services and work described in this Work Order and the Contract Documents are not 
completed within the times specified in this Work Order. The City and Contractor 
recognize, agree and acknowledge that it would be impractical and extremely difficult to 
ascertain and fix the actual damages that the City would suffer in the event Contractor 
neglects, refuses, or otherwise fails to complete the services and work within the time 
specified. Accordingly, instead of requiring any such proof, the City and Contractor agree 
that as liquidated damages for delay (but not as a penalty) Contractor shall pay the City 
100 dollars ($100 .00) for each day that expires after the time specified in this Work Order. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 2 of 4  

 
4.0 Compensation 

 
This Work Order is issued for a lump sum, not to exceed amount of $45,751.00. The attached 
proposal identifies all costs and expenses included in the lump sum, not to exceed amount.  
 
The following Direct Purchases are to be made under this Work Order by the City: 
________________________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________________. 
 

5.0 Project Manager 
 

The Project Manager for the Contractor is David Bernier_, phone: 954-553-5566    _; email:  
davidbernier@nucatcorp.com ; and, the Project Manager for the City is  David Martyniuk, phone: 561-
586-1629  ; email: _ _Dmartyniuk@lakeworthbeachfl.gov   .  
 

6.0 Progress Meetings 
 

The Contractor shall schedule periodic progress review meetings with the City Project Manager as 
necessary but every 30 days as a minimum. 
 

7.0  Contractor’s Representations 
 
In order to induce the City to enter into this Work Order, the Contractor makes the following 
representations:  
7.1  Contractor has familiarized itself with the nature and extent of the Contract Documents 
including this Work Order, work, site, locality, and all local conditions and laws and regulations that 
in any manner may affect cost, progress, performance or furnishing of the work.  
 
7.2  Contractor has obtained at his/her own expense and carefully studied, or assumes 
responsibility for obtaining and carefully studying, soil investigations, explorations, and test reports 
which pertain to the subsurface conditions at or contiguous to the site or otherwise may affect the 
cost, progress, performance or furnishing of the work as Contractor considers necessary for the 
performance or furnishing of the work at the stated work order price within the Work Order stated 
time and in accordance with the other terms and conditions of the Contract Documents, including 
specifically the provisions of the RFP; and no additional examinations, investigations, explorations, 
tests, reports, studies or similar information or data are or is deemed necessary by Contractor for 
such purposes.  
 
7 .3  Contractor has reviewed and checked all information and data shown or indicated on the 
Contract Documents with respect to existing Underground Facilities at or contiguous to the site and 
assumes responsibility for the accurate location of said Underground Facilities. No additional 
examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, reports, studies or similar information or data in 
respect of said Underground Facilities are or is deemed necessary by the Contractor in order to 
perform and furnish the work under this Work Order price, within the Work Order time and in 
accordance with the other terms and conditions of the Contract Documents. 
 
 
7.4 Contractor has correlated the results of all such observations, examinations, investigations, 
explorations, tests, reports and studies with the terms and conditions of the Contract Documents. 
 
7.5 Contractor has given the City's Contract Administrator written notice of all conflicts, errors or 
discrepancies that he or she has discovered in the Contract Documents and the written resolution 
thereof by City or its designee is acceptable to the Contractor. 
 

mailto:_%20_Dmartyniuk@lakeworthbeachfl.gov


Page 3 of 4  

 
8.0 Warranty 

 
Warranty. The Contractor warrants and guarantees to the City that all services and work provided 
under this Work Order will be in accordance with this Work Order and the other Contract 
Documents. The Contractor warrants that (a) all materials and parts supplied under this Work Order 
shall be free from defects for one (1) year from the final completion of all work (unless a longer 
manufacturer warranty applies); (b) all services and work performed under this Work Order will be 
free from defects for one ( 1) year from the final completion of all work and the project shall be fully 
operational without unreasonable downtime or failures; and (c) that the services and work will 
conform to the requirements of the Contract Documents. If, at any time prior to the expiration of the 
one (I) year warranty period, the City discovers any failure or breach of the Contractor's warranties 
or the Contractor discovers any failure or breach of the Contractor's warranties, the Contractor will, 
upon written notice from City or of its own accord, at the Contractor's sole cost and expense, 
promptly correct such failure or breach (which corrective action must include, without limitation, any 
necessary removal, disassembly, reinstallation, repair, replacement, reassembly, retesting, and/or 
re-inspection of any part or portion of the work and any other property damaged or affected by such 
failure, breach, or corrective action). The Contractor will remedy any such failure or breach so, to the 
extent possible, to avoid unnecessary disruptions to the operations of City or its systems. In the 
event the Contractor fails to initiate and diligently pursue corrective action within five (5) days of the 
Contractor's receipt of the City's notice or the Contractor's discovery of the same, the City may 
undertake such corrective action at the Contractor's expense. 
 
 

 
9.0 Authorization 

 
This Work Order is pursuant to the Electrical Equipment Inspection, Testing, Repair and 
Maintenance Services Contract for between the City of Lake Worth Beach and the Contractor, 
dated May 15, 2018 ("Contract" hereafter). If there are any conflicts between the terms and 
conditions of this Work Order and the Contract, the terms and conditions of the Contract shall 
prevail. 
 
 

REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 
 

  





Exhibit 1 
Contract for Electrical Equipment Inspection, Testing, Repair and 

Maintenance Services 
Task Order No. 073 

 
 
 

Services to be provided by: 

Services provided to (City): 

 
NuCAT Corporation 

 

City of Lake Worth Beach

Proposal Date: May 10, 2023 

 
Proposal Terms 

A. Project Description: 
 

Inspect and Repair LTC TD06 
 

B. Scope of Services: 
 
NuCat Corp. Will Inspect, repair and perform testing of Transformer TD06. 
 
 

C. Equipment: 
 
Doble M4000 
Filter Press 

 
 

D. Fees and Rates: 
 

1.  NuCat Corp. will complete the following work on a time and material basis, we anticipate the total cost to be 
$45,751.00 

 



Inspect and Repair LTC Transformer TD06 
for The 

City of Lake Worth 
Estimate of Fees 

 

 

Inspect and  Repair Transformer LTC TD06
Technicians Engineer
Men Hrs ST Rate Hrs OT Rate Total Men Hrs ST Rate Hrs OT Rate Total

3 42 $95.00 0 $142.50 $11,970.00 1 40 $125.00 0 $187.50 $5,000.00
0 $95.00 0 $142.50 $0.00 0 0 $125.00 0 $187.50 $0.00

Total $11,970.00 Total $5,000
Labor Total $16,970.00

Material
Description Price EA QTY Total Mrk up Total
Doble M4000 $1,000.00 1 $1,000.00 1.2 $1,200.00
Filter press $150.00 2 $300.00 1.2 $360.00
Tx oil 55 usg drum $935.50 4 $3,742.00 1.2 $4,490.40
door gasket $200.00 1 $200.00 1.2 $240.00
Arcing contacts $134.57 12 $1,614.84 1.2 $1,937.81
Expedited oil Sample $400.00 1 $400.00 1.2 $480.00  
Diverters price diff $1,610.38 6 $9,662.28 1.2 $11,594.74
Shipping $667.00 1 $667.00 1.2 $800.40
Oil Procc $2,500.00 1 $2,500.00 1.2 $3,000.00
Gaskets $200.00 1 $200.00 1.2 $240.00
Rev SW Sta Contacts $1,404.00 1 $1,404.00 1.2 $1,684.80
LTC oil increase $113.00 3 $339.00 1.2 $406.80
Generator $1,755.00 1 $1,755.00 1.2 $2,106.00
Fuel $200.00 1 $200.00 1.2 $240.00

0 $0.00 1.2 $0.00
$0.00 1.2 $0.00

Mtl Total $28,780.94

Grand Total $45,751



NuCAT CORPORATION 
657 RAMBLING DRIVE CIRCLE 

WELLINGTON, FL 33414 
PH: (561) 333-4021    

  

 

 

May 10, 2023 
 
City of Lake Worth 
1900 2nd Avenue North 
Lake Worth, FL    33461 
Attention:  David Martyniuk 
 
Ref No.: NC05102304 
Subject: Contract for Electrical Equipment Inspection, Testing, Repair And 
     Maintenance Services. Work Order # 073 
 
Dear David: 
 
Per your request, NuCAT Corporation is pleased to provide you with this proposal to inspect and 
repair LTC of transformer TD06. 
 
SCOPE OF WORK: 
  
NuCat Corp. will supply all the materials, equipment, qualified manpower, and technical 
supervision to complete the following work on transformer TD06. 
 
Replace the LTC oil with new. 
Perform thorough inspection and replace LTC parts, as necessary. 
Process Transformer oil 
Perform electrical testing. 

Turns Ratio 
Insulation Resistance 
Power Factor 

PRICING:  
Total Price $45,751.00 

 
Sincerely, 
David A Bernier 
David A Bernier 



EXCEPTION TO PROCUREMENT PROCEDURE 

Vendor Infraction Deacrtotlon Amount Date of Infraction Ernployee 

Nucal W0#61 - 7Ih Ave N UG Cable Testing -Capital Work Tesling or lhe new underground feeder cables for \he new subslation, 33,821.00 April 2022 David Marlyniuk 

Total $33,821.00 

JUSTIFICATION 

City of Lake Worth Procurement Policy was not followed due to: 

Nucat was brought in to do independent connrmatlan of new installations on underground cabling_ In order lo maintain project schedule, Nucat was nolified and asked For a quote wilh short nolice_ Since we have used Nucal Exclusively for the last decade or moro 

and were currently under a competitively bid maintenance contract, we utilized their services, Due to Nucal's high volume al emergent work with the city over the months preceding and during this task, I was unable to receive a quote for the work and execute the WO 

lo mainlain schedule prior to work being completed Later learned, lhe owner and administrator of this small business dealt with personal issues slowing down Iha paperwork reciepl far emergent work completed. 

APPROVAL 

I authorize creation of the purchase order and payment on the above llem(s). 

Department Oireclor Name Deparlmenl Direclor Signalure Dais 

Cily Manager Signalurel Designee Date 



EXCEPTION TO PROCUREMENT PROCEDURE 

Vendor Infraction Deacr1ntloa Amount Date of Infraction Emnlovae 

Nucal WO#62 -Assemble and Test Tx WT05887 Build out of new power lransrormers for Canal Unil WT05887 48,373.00 November 2022 David Marlyniuk 

Total $48,373.00 

JUSTIFICATION 

City of Lake Worth Procurement Polley was not followed due to: 

Two large S0MVA Power trans Formers were purchased unde, an approved piggyback conlract for lhe Canal Substation Project Orfginallv. the task to build-out lhe transformers was going to be done by the subslalion contractor. Due to unforeseen permitling delays 

lo the project, the concrete foundations these transformers were supposed to be installed on were not going to be complete before the transformers were ready for delivery. Through internal discussions with staH we decided lhal on-sile storage would benefit the cily mosl. 

Due to lhe manufacturer limilalions on the guarantee of lhe shipping seals for the nilrogen blanket. the transformers needed to be buill-oul in full with oil fill and lesling lo ensure no warranty gaps. Since no substation contraclor was under cantracl yet, Nucat was 

to do this task inside the manufacturers timeline for lhe seal and nitrogen issue and to maintain warranty. Nucal was already on CLWB property handling other emergenl issues and was able lo squeeze in to lhe timeline needed. A price was asked for but Nucal had 

personal issues with administrative staff slowing down the paperwork deliverables to lhe city. 

APPR0VAL 

I authorize creation of the purchase order and payment on the above ilem(s). 

Department Director Name Department Director Signature Date 

Cily Manager Signature/ Designee Date 



EXCEPTION TO PROCUREMENT PROCEDURE 

Vendor Infraction Dascrlotlon Amount Date of.Infraction Emolovee 

Nucal WO#63 - Assemble and Tesl Tx WT0588B Build out of new power lronsrormers for Canal Unit WT05BBB 48,373.00 November 2022 David Martyniuk 

Total $46,373.00 

JUSTIFICATleN 

City of Lake Worth Procurement Polley was not followed due to: 

Two large S0MVA Power transformers were purchased under an approved piggyback contract for the Canal Substation Project. Originally, the task to build-out the transformers was going to be done by the substation contractor. Due to unforeseen permitting delays 

to the projecl, the concrete foundations these transformers were supposed to be installed on were not going lo be complete before the lransrormers were ready for delivery. Through internal discussions with starr we decided that on-sile storage would benefit lhe cily most, 

Due to the manuracturer limitalions on the guarantee or the shfpprng seals for the nitrogen blankel, lhe transformers needed to be built-out in full wilh oil fill and testing lo ensure no warranty gaps. Since no substation contractor was under contract yet. Nucat was 

to do this lask inside the manuracturers limeline for the seal and nilrogen issue and lo maintain warranty. Nucat was already on CLWB property handling other emergent issues and was able to squeeze in to the timeline needed.A price was asked for bul Nucat had 

personal issues with administrative slarf slowing down the paperwork deliverables to the city, 

APPROVAL 

�authorize creation of the purchase order and payment on the above item(s). 

Department Director Name Department Director Signature Dale 

City Manager Signature/ Designee Dale 



WO#64



wo#65



EXCEPTION TO PROCUREMENT PROCEDURE 

Vendor Infraction DeacrloUon Amount Date of Infraction Emolovee 

Nucal WO#066 Inspect and Test 26B 1 W0S To Inspect and Test 26B1W0S for vaccum pole issues. 10,300.00 Feb 2022 David Marlyniuk 

Total $10,300.00 

JUSTIFICATION 

City of Lake Worth Procurement Policy was not followed duo to: 

The W0S breaker was tested and failed as one of the original ABB RMAG breakers lesled after the 2 failures that prompted system wide breaker testing. Since this breaker was the first breaker repaired, it was installed wilh new componenls that according to the manuracturer 

needed a gasket removed that was for shipping only. This Work Order was to remove lhat component and retest lhe liming of the breaker Due lo loading of this reeder, the switching opportunities are extremely limited so it was unknown if we would be able lo complete 

this work prior to summer and inside FY22 so no pre-emptive word order was completed. E0Q breaker in the same substation had a failure or a circuit board WO#70 lhat forced swilching ta allow for W05 to be compleled GT2 transformer lesting was thrown in as well. 

Due lo lhe short notice of adding on the W05 lo scope of lhe E09 emergent outage, Nucal compleled the work and floated the labor costs until the requsted WO could be completed. 

The compound of emergent work for CLWB and life events on lhe small company's side proceeded to delay paperwork deliverables lo lhe city for a proper work order to be compleled wilhin the normal contract, 

APPROV.AL 

I authorize creation of the purchase order and payment on the above ilem(s). 

Department Director Name Department Direclor Signalure Date 

City Manager Signature/ Oesignee Date 



EXCEPTION TO PROCUREMENT PROCEDURE 

Vendor Infraction Description Amount Date of Infraction Employee 

Nucat WOtl-067 Inspect and Test 26B5001, 5002 and 5003 To complete full breaker testing of Lhe breakers at East Swilch Station 16,140.00 3/15/22 • 3/17/22 David Martyniuk 

Total $16,140.00 

JUSTIFICATION 

City of Lake Worth Procuremenl Polley was not followed due to: 

Easl Switch Bre�ker inspect and test were a part or lhe syslem-wide lesling due to the two(2) failed ABB RMAG breakers. However, the feasibility of switching based on load wilh all the other work in the system kept us from compleling ii unlil the rlghl moment 

Nucal was asked for a quote for lhe WO al lhe same time of notice of when the substation would be isolated for painting and when Nucal could starl lheir testing so we could begin processing. Compounding emergent work in CLWB before, during, and arter this work 

delayed Nucat's response lo provide a quote. The compound or emergent work for CLWB and life events on the small company's side proceeded to delay paperwork deliverables lo the city for a proper work order to be completed within the normal contracL 

APPROVAL 

I authorize creation of the purchase order and payment on the above item(s). 

Department Director Name Department Director Signature Date 

Cily Manager Signalure/ Designee Dale 



WO#68



EXCEPTION TO PROCUREMENT PROCEDURE 

Vendor Infraction Descrlotlon Amount Date of Infraction Emolovee 

Nucat NuCAT WO#069 lns1all New lnterruplers Spare Circull Breaker To rebuild spare breaker thal was used lo remedy failed lesled breakers. 10,300.00 Feb 2022 David Martyniuk 

Total $10,300.00 

JUSTIFICATION 

City of Lake Worth Procurement Policy was not followed due to: 

Once lasting began lo identify lhe cause for the ABB RMAG breaker explosions and working with the manufaclurer, ii was determined that the internal interrupters (vacuum bollle contacts) needed replacement due to visible start-of failure marks. The manufacturer 

could not supply the parls needed to repair for a longer time then CLWB had for maintenance lime before loading issues and other project switching requiremenls prevent completion_ Since the replacement of the breaker takes more time, money, and complexity, 

engineering elected lo allow removal of the vacuum interrupters from lhe spare breakers we already owned, Near the end of ths tesling and replacemsnt project throughout 2021 and in lo 2022, the spare breaker was not put back together and our spares had come down 

to minimal since the 7th Ave N substation construction utilized them for its design. A QU0le was asked for from Nucat but not received and Nucat's schedule was full so it was completed the same week as their presence for WO#66, WO#-70, and WO#-71. 

The compound of emergent work for CLWB and life events on the small company's side proceeded to delay paperwork deliverables to the clly for a proper work order to be completed wilhln the normal conlracl. 

APPR8VAL 

I authorize creation of the purchase order and payment on the above llem(s). 

Deparlmenl Director Name Department Director Signature Dale 

Cily Manager Slgnalure/ Designee Date 



EXCEPTION TO PROCUREMENT PROCEDURE 

Vendor lnlnctlon Deacrlutlon Amount Date ol lnfrac11on O:mn[ovee 

Nucat NuCAT WO#070 Repair and test Circuit Breaker 26BE09 To switch out failed Circuit Board on E09 and complete liming lesls. 6,100.00 2126/22 David Marlyniuk 

Total $6,100.00 

JUSTIFICA110N 

City of Lake Worth Procurement Policy was not followed due to: 

E09 Breaker, Prior to lhe repair date on this Work Order, locked out on a faull lhal should have allowed lhe breaker lo recl□se but it did not reclose causing a large outage Upon investigation internally by Engineering il was determined that lhe breaker liming 

wasn't normal but that slight adjustments to the seltings allowed the breaker lo function as normal with reclosing, The adjuslments to lhe relay however are not a solution and so the breaker configuration was considered to be in an alternate configuration. 

To return the breaker to normal service testing of the breaker needed to occur sooner lhan laler. Nucat was asked ror a quote but the switching and outage time lined up for lhe GT2 transrormer (WO/t71) work pushing Nucal on properly sooner than a WO was received. 

The compound or emergent work for CLWB and life events on the small company's side proceeded to delay papeiwork deliverables to the cily for a proper work order lo be completed wilhin the normal contract. 

APPROVAL 

I authorize creation of the purchase order and payment on the above item(s). 

Department Director Name Department Director Signature Dale 

City Manager Signature/ Designee Dale 



EXCEPTION TO PROCUREMENT PROCEDURE 

Vendor Infraction Descrlotlon Amount Date of Infraction Emolovee 

Nucat NuCAT WO#71 Test GT2 Transformer To test GT2 on sudden pressure issues 4,665.00 2/2B/22 David Marlyniuk 

Tolal $4,665.00 

JUSTIFICATION 

City of Lake Worth Procurement Polley was not followed due to: 

Sudden Pressure is one of the most severe problems you can have with a transformer as it indicates internal issues which are cosUy and can be catastrophic Upon indication of a possible issue, Nucal was called out quickly lo test the transformer. Upon testing it was 

discovered lhal the relay was not properly wired and it was fixed, This Work Order is lo cover lhat work but the quote was never senl arter lhe emergency lesling. Since Nucat was already on site and E09 (WO#70) and W0S (WO#66) needed lo be compleled, Nuca1 knocked 

II all oul in one day on 2/28/22. 

The compound of emergent work for CLWB and life events on the small company's side proceeded to delay paperwork deliverables to the cily for a proper work order to be completed within lhe normed contract. 

APPROVAL 

I authorize creation of the purchase order and payment on the above item(s). 

Department Director Name Department Director Signature Dale 

City Manager Signalure/ Designee Date 



EXCEPTION TO PROCUREMENT PROCEDURE 

Vendor Infraction Descrlntlon Amount Date al Infraction Emnlovee 

Nucal NuCAT W0#72 Replace TD-12 Upon TD12 failure Nuca\ was called lo lesl railure and Lhen tesl ils replacement 49,260,00 11111/22- 11/21122 David Marlyniuk 

Tolal $49,260.00 

JUSTIFICATION 

City of Lake Worth Procurement Polley was not followed due to: 

Emergency WO lhat never made ii lo an official work order even afler request of Nucal from CLWB. This was compounded while Nucal was on site already for lhe lwo(2) transformers delivered and needing build•oul lo mainlain warranty (W0#62 and W0#63). 

Nucat helped identify lhe severity of the failure, limeline for repair and recommendation for replacement. Upon replacement lo get 12th Ave S back in service, Nucat also needed lo lest before service. 

The compound of emergent work far CLWB and life evenls on the small company's side proceeded lo delay paperwork deliverables lo the cily for a proper work order to be completed wilhin the normal contract. 

APPROVAL 

I authorize creation of the purchase order and payment on lhe above ltem(s). 

Departmenl Director Name Department Director Signature Dale 

City Manager Signature/Des1gnee Dale 



EXCEPTION TO PROCUREMENT PROCEDURE 

Vend.or Infraction Das•rlntlon Amount Date of Infraction EmDlovea 

Nucal NuCAT WO#73 LTC TD06 To test and repair TO06 arter lhe parts were received. 45,751.00 5/16/22 - 5/23/22 David Martyniuk 

Total $45,751.00 

JUSTIFICATION 

City of Lake Worth Procurement Policy was not followed due to: 

This Work Order is to complele lhe repair for TD06 lhal was identified during Work orders in FY22 based on lhe Oil testing in December of 2021. Pricing could not be provided until parts delivery dates were nnalized and rental equipment was identified and quoted .. Work 

Order Quotation was requested once lhal information was received but CLWB never received H from Nucal. The series of urgent or emergency work from Feb• April and Nucat's normal work outside CLWB was a likely cause of not receiving Work Orders. 

The compound of emergenl work for CLWB and life events on the small company's side proceeded lo delay paperwork deliverables to the cHy for a proper work order lo be compleled within the normal contract. 

APPROVAL 

I authorize creation of the purchase order and payment on the above llem(s). 

Department Director Name Department Direclor Signature Dale 

Cily Manager Signature/ Designee Dale 



STAFF REPORT 
UTILITY MEETING 

 

AGENDA DATE: September 26, 2023 DEPARTMENT: Electric Utility 

TITLE: 

Transmission Operator Alliance Agreement   

 
SUMMARY: 

Request for approval for the City of Lake Worth Beach to join the Transmission Operator Alliance 
operated by Orlando Utilities Commission (OUC) on behalf of Alliance parties. 

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

The City of Lake Worth Beach Electric (CLWB) Electric Utility is currently planning for regulatory 
compliance activities that will be required in order to place the second interconnection with the Florida 
Power and Light (FP&L) transmission system into service. The Construction Agreement for this second 
interconnection project was approved by City Commission on September 20, 2022 and is planned to be 
placed in service mid-2024. This second transmission interconnection (aka “Tie Line”) to be located at 
City’s Canal Substation will supplement its current single transmission interconnection and will enhance 
the reliability of its electric system. 

In order to place this second interconnection in service, the City of Lake Worth Beach Electric Utility will 
be legally required to register as a Transmission Operator (TOP) with the North American Electric 
Reliability Corporation (NERC) through the Southeast Reliability Corporation (SERC) and comply with a 
myriad of NERC mandated standards. 

Currently, the City is required to comply with twenty-six (26) NERC reliability standards containing three 
hundred thirteen (313) requirements. We are currently compliant with all required standards 

Following registration as a TOP, the City will be required to comply with ninety-four (94) additional 
standards containing over one thousand (1,000) requirements 

Compliance with these requirements will require the City to significantly increase staffing levels of its 
Electric System Operations and Compliance teams, maintain proficiency in critical compliance 
requirements activities (such as training and maintenance of certified staff), and maintain an active 
backup control room.  In short, maintaining such a rigorous compliance program and adequate staffing 
levels would represent a significant operating cost and ongoing challenge compared to the economies 
of scale made possible by the collaborative Alliance effort.  

The Alliance (aka “CTOP”) is a joint effort currently supported by three municipal utilities (Alliance Parties) 
which are Orlando Utilities Commission (OUC), Kissimmee Utility Authority (KUA), and Beaches Energy 
Services (Beaches Energy). The Alliance operating functions are conducted by OUC with oversight and 
governance by the Alliance Parties.  Expenses to operate the Alliance are shared equally amongst the 
existing three Transmission Operator Alliance Parties, which would be expanded to four Parties with the 
inclusion of Lake Worth Beach in the Alliance.  Should the city join the Alliance it will be entitled to 
representation in the Executive Committee and Operating Committee of the Alliance. 

Cost and Liability Sharing 

The Alliance voted to waive the initial one-time, non-refundable fee of $585,000 per participant for the 
City of Lake Worth Beach to join the Alliance.  



 

City’s share of operating expenses (25% of the annual operating cost of the Alliance) is estimated at 
$50,000 monthly or $600,000 annually. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Five Year Summary of Fiscal Impact: 
 

Fiscal Years 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 
Inflows 
 Current Appropriation 0 0 0 0 0 
 Program Income 0 0 0 0 0 
 Grants 0 0 0 0 0 
 In Kind 0 0 0 0 0 
 

Outflows 
 Current Appropriation $600,000 $600,000 $600,000 $600,000 $600,000 
 Operating  0 0 0 0 0 
 Capital 0 0 0 0 0 
 

Net Fiscal Impact 0 0 0 0 0 
 

No. of Addn’l Full-Time 
Employee Positions 0 0 0 0 0 
 

New Appropriation Fiscal Impact: 

 Expenditure 

Department  Electric Utility 

Division System Operations 

GL Description Contractual Services/Other Contractual Servc 

GL Account Number 401-6033-531.34-50 

Project Number N/A 

Requested Funds $600,000 

   

 

The Alliance has estimated that CLWB will be responsible for approximately $200,000 in the up-front 
cost of integration into the Alliance. The breakdown of that cost is as follows: 

• $100,000 for Alliance engineers to model the City of Lake Worth Beach grid in the CTOP Energy 
Management System (EMS) system. 

• $100,000 for building the communication network between OUC (Agent for the performance of 
TOP Control Center functions) and CLWB including modeling, hardware, dedicated RTU Design, 
MPLS Connection to the City of Lake Worth Beach, AT&T Circuits 

MOTION: 

Move to approve/disapprove for the City of Lake Worth Beach signing the Transmission Operator 
Alliance Agreement and becoming a member of the Alliance. 

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Fiscal Impact Analysis 
Agreement  



1 

 

 

AMENDED AND RESTATED 

TRANSMISSION OPERATOR ALLIANCE AGREEMENT 

 

AMONG 

 

ORLANDO UTILITIES COMMISSION, KISSIMMEE UTILITY AUTHORITY, 

THE CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH, D/B/A, BEACHES ENERGY SERVICES 

AND CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH 

 

 

THIS AMENDED AND RESTATED TRANSMISSION OPERATOR ALLIANCE 

AGREEMENT (“Alliance Agreement”) is made as of  the ____ day of ____________________, 

2023 (the “Effective Date”) by and between ORLANDO UTILITIES COMMISSION 

(“OUC”), KISSIMMEE UTILITY AUTHORITY (“KUA”), and THE CITY OF 

JACKSONVILLE BEACH, D/B/A,  BEACHES ENERGY SERVICES (“BEACHES 

ENERGY”) (collectively referred  to as the “Original Parties”) and CITY OF LAKE WORTH 

BEACH (“CLWB”),  (the Original Parties and CLWB shall be collectively referred to herein as 

the “Parties” and separately as a “Party”).  

RECITALS 

 

 WHEREAS, each of the Parties is a NERC registered Transmission Operator (“TOP”) 

responsible for the reliability of its local Transmission system; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Original Parties formed a joint Bulk Electric System Transmission 

Operator alliance (the “Alliance”) to reduce their respective liabilities related to CIP compliance 

and achieve greater efficiencies and cost savings through economies of scale realized from creating 

a single centralized TOP Control Center (primary and back-up) and share in the cost of operating 

one centralized TOP; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Original Parties entered into that certain Transmission Operation 

Alliance Agreement dated January 22, 2015 (the “Original Agreement”), under which OUC was 

designated and authorized to act as the NERC certified system operator for the Alliance, to govern 

the operation of the Alliance; and    

 

WHEREAS, CLWB desires to become a member of the Alliance and the Original Parties 

agree to allow CLWB to become a member of the Alliance, on the terms and conditions set forth 

herein; and  

 

 

 

WHEREAS, the Parties desire to amend and restate the Original Agreement in its entirety 

to reflect admission of CLWB into the Alliance, as set forth in this Alliance Agreement. 

 

 NOW THEREFORE, the Parties agree as follows:   

 



2 

 

1. RECITALS.  The foregoing recitals are true and correct and are incorporated herein by 

this reference. 

2. DEFINITIONS.  The Parties agree that in construing this Alliance Agreement, capitalized 

words, phrases and terms used in this Alliance Agreement unless the context requires otherwise 

shall have the meaning set forth in Schedule A to this Alliance Agreement, which is incorporated 

herein by this reference.  

3. TERM AND TERMINATION.  This Alliance Agreement shall commence on the 

Effective Date and shall continue in perpetuity; provided, however, that any Party at any time may 

withdraw from the Alliance, and thereby terminate its participation in this Alliance Agreement, 

upon giving written notice of its intent to withdraw to all Parties no later than three years prior to 

the notified termination date.   

4.   ORGANIZATION AND GOVERNANCE. 

(a) Establishment of Committees.  As a means of securing effective cooperation, 

exchange of information and orderly management of the Alliance, the Parties agree that oversight 

and governance of the Alliance will be provided by an Executive Committee and an Operating 

Committee shall be established for oversight of operational matters as set forth below: 

(i) Executive Committee.  Each Party, by written notice signed by an officer 

duly authorized to commit such Party, shall designate a representative to serve on the Executive 

Committee and an alternate authorized to act in the absence of the designated representative.  The 

names, addresses and contact information of the individuals comprising the Executive Committee 

are set forth in Exhibit 1, which is attached hereto and incorporated herein. 

(1) Function of the Executive Committee. The Executive Committee 

shall implement this Alliance and shall be responsible for determining policy with respect to all 

matters within the scope of this Alliance.  The Executive Committee will further serve to resolve 

any disputes between the parties arising under the Alliance prior to going into litigation.  Each 

member of the Executive Committee shall be entitled to one vote. All decisions by the Executive 

Committee shall be by a super majority consent (greater than 2/3 or 67% of those members 

present).  

(2) Executive Committee Meetings.  At least ten (10) days written 

notice of any meetings of the Executive Committee shall be given by the chairman to each member 

and alternate member of the Executive Committee.  The notice shall state the time and place of the 

meeting and shall include an agenda of the items to be considered.  Except by unanimous consent 

of those present, no action shall be taken on any item other than those included on the agenda. The 

roles of committee officers and the parliamentary procedure used to conduct meetings shall be as 

generally described in Robert’s Rules of Order. 

(3) The Executive Committee, at least annually at an appropriate 

location, shall review the operations of the Alliance and make a good faith effort to resolve any 

inequities for any of the Parties which have arisen from the operation of the Alliance, or as a result 

of the terms of the definitive agreement or any other agreement(s) between the Parties.  The 



3 

 

Executive Committee shall meet at least annually and at such times as the chairman may determine 

or as requested by two or more of the Executive Committee members. 

(4) A representative from OUC shall serve as the inaugural chairman of 

the Executive Committee for an initial term to be decided by the Executive Committee.  The 

Executive Committee shall select from among its members a vice chairman who will serve for the 

initial term. Thereafter, the Executive Committee shall select from among its members a chairman 

and vice chairman who will serve a term of two years.  Commencing thereafter, and every two 

years thereafter, the vice chairman shall become the chairman and a new vice chairman shall be 

selected by the Executive Committee. If the chairman or vice chairman position becomes vacant, 

the Executive Committee shall select from among its members a chairman or vice chairman who 

shall serve the remainder of the term for the vacant position.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, 

should the chairman position becomes vacant and a vice chairman was selected, then said vice 

chairman shall become the new chairman and a new vice chairman shall be selected by the 

Executive Committee. 

(ii) Appointment of Members to Operating Committee.  Each member of the 

Executive Committee shall appoint by written notice to the other members, a representative and 

alternate(s) to serve on the Operating Committee.  The names, addresses and contact information 

of the individuals comprising the Operating Committee are set forth in Exhibit 2, which is attached 

hereto and incorporated herein. 

(1) Function of the Operating Committee.  The Operating Committee 

shall be responsible for oversight of operational matters with respect to the Alliance and shall 

develop an Alliance Handbook (“Handbook”) containing governing practices, procedures, 

policies, methodologies and other governing document for the Alliance and shall submit the same 

to the Executive Committee for approval.  These practices shall be consistent with applicable 

NERC Reliability Standards where applicable. The Operating Committee shall also be responsible 

for ensuring the performance of all tasks and functions associated with compliance with the NERC 

Reliability Standards requirements. In order to fulfill the assigned responsibilities, the Operating 

Committee chairman shall have the authority to establish such subcommittees, working groups 

and task forces as he or she deems necessary.  The Executive Committee may delegate authority 

to the Operating Committee to amend certain portions of the Handbook; decisions on such 

amendments shall be by the same voting requirements of the Executive Committee. All other 

decisions of the Operating Committee shall be by a majority vote of those members present. In the 

event of a tie-vote during Operating Committee meetings and a necessity to proceed with a timely 

decision due to safety, operational, compliance or economic considerations, the chairman of the 

Operating Committee shall communicate to the Executive Committee the details around any vote 

that requires a tie-breaking vote.  Subsequently, the Executive Committee shall convene and cast 

the tie-breaking vote. 

(2) Operating Committee Meetings.  Except as provided in Section 

(4)(a)(ii)(3) below, at least ten (10) days written notice of any meetings of the Operating 

Committee shall be given by the chairman to each member of the Operating Committee.  The 

notice shall state the time and place of the meeting and shall include an agenda of the items to be 

considered.  Except by unanimous consent of those present, no action shall be taken on any item 



4 

 

other than those included on the agenda. The roles of committee officers and the parliamentary 

procedure used to conduct meetings shall be as generally described in Robert’s Rules of Order. 

(3) The Operating Committee, at least annually, shall review the 

operations of the Alliance and make a good faith effort to resolve any inequities for any of the 

Parties which have arisen from the operation of the Alliance, or as a result of the terms of the 

definitive agreement or any other agreement(s) between the Parties.  The Operating Committee 

shall meet in person at least annually and at such times as the chairman may determine or as 

requested by two or more of the Operating Committee members. Notwithstanding anything to the 

contrary herein, the chairman may call for meetings or conference calls, with or without notice, on 

an as needed basis when operational circumstances or compliance related events dictate.  

(4) A representative from OUC shall serve as the inaugural chairman of 

the Operating Committee for an initial term to be decided by the Operating Committee.  The 

Operating Committee shall select from among its members a vice chairman who will serve for the 

initial term. Thereafter, the Operating Committee shall select from among its members a chairman 

and vice chairman who will serve a term of two years.  Commencing thereafter, and every two 

years subsequently, the vice chairman shall become the chairman and a new vice chairman shall 

be selected by the Operating Committee.  

(b) Authorization of Committee Action and Conduct of Meetings. The Parties 

recognize that certain actions or recommendations of the Executive and Operating Committees 

may require further authorization of their respective governing boards consistent with existing 

charter and other procedures applicable to each. The Parties further acknowledge that the 

Executive and Operating Committees need to be familiar with and be prepared to comply with 

all applicable notice, recordkeeping and other requirements set forth in Florida’s open meetings 

law, as set forth in Florida Statutes, Chapter 286, to the extent meetings of either committee are 

subject to the law. 

5. ROLES, RESPONSIBILITIES AND AUTHORITY OF THE PARTIES.  The roles, 

responsibilities and authority of the Parties in conducting the business of the Alliance are set forth 

in the following:  

(a) TOP Alliance Handbook.  After execution of this Agreement, the Parties will 

develop a TOP Alliance Handbook (“Handbook”) containing the governing policies, procedures, 

methodologies and similar governing documents for the business of the Alliance. The TOP 

Alliance Handbook will be approved by the Executive Committee and is hereby incorporated 

into this agreement by reference. Amendments to the Handbook may be made by the Executive 

Committee, which may delegate authority to amend certain portions of the Handbook to the 

Operating Committee.  

(b) Responsibility Assignment.  OUC shall act as Agent for the performance of TOP 

Control Center based functions and as such OUC shall be the NERC certified System Operator 

for the Parties’ Bulk Electric System with respect to Transmission Operations Control Center 

functions. The Parties agree to enter into a NERC Coordinated Functional Registration 

Agreement (“Registration Agreement”) with OUC as necessary for the performance of and 

compliance with all NERC Reliability Standards and requirements within said standards with 



5 

 

respect to the matters contemplated herein, and is attached hereto and incorporated herein as 

Exhibit 1. The responsibility for performing and demonstrating compliance to each individual 

NERC requirement applicable to TOPs will be set forth within Appendix 1 of the Registration 

Agreement (“Responsibility Assignment”). Any requirements not assigned to OUC according to 

the Responsibility Assignment will remain the responsibility of the individual entities. The 

Registration Agreement will be submitted to FRCC for approval; however non-approval does 

not release any member from performance of said requirements as assigned in the Registration 

Agreement.  Amendments to the Registration Agreement shall be considered upon changes in 

regulation, such as when FERC approves a NERC standard, and best efforts by all Parties shall 

be made to incorporate any necessary changes to comply with the new or revised regulation 

before the effective date of that regulation. OUC shall be responsible for maintaining the 

Responsibility Assignment and bringing to the attention of the Executive Committee required 

modifications.  Any necessary amendments to the Registration Agreement shall be made by the 

Executive Committee.  

Parties agree to provide OUC, as needed, with sufficient data and information to demonstrate full 

compliance with requirements assigned to OUC as identified within Appendix 1 of the Registration 

Agreement but not specifically required to be performed within a Control Center. 

In addition, the Parties agree to: 

(a) Authorize OUC to arrange for new interchange agreements if needed. 

(b) Provide OUC with studies to be used to plan for reliable operations. 

(c) Ensure the TOP System Operator participates in the Parties system planning process. 

(d)  Notify OUC of any of the following: 

(i)   Intent to implement an Under Voltage Load Shed system  

(ii)  Any changes in protection systems configurations or settings 

(iii) Any relay or equipment failures 

(iv)  Any significant changes in load 

(e)  Implement and abide by the following which may be modified from time to time and 

or hereby incorporated by reference: 

(i)   OUC GMD Operating Procedure  

(ii)  OUC Event Reporting Operating Plan  

(iii) OUC SOL Identification Methodology  

 

(c) Other OUC Responsibilities.  OUC will further be responsible for: 



6 

 

a. Maintaining OUC Control Center Facility to the current version of the NERC 

CIP Standards  

b. Maintaining NERC Certified Personnel. 

c. Ensuring the Control Center Operators follow OUC operational procedures and 

processes. 

d. Obtaining TOP Control Center Certification. 

e. Fulfilling applicable obligations of the Reliability Coordinator (e.g., the FRCC 

Handbook), including those not contained within the NERC standards. 

(d) No Preference.   OUC will perform its responsibilities associated with this 

Alliance Agreement without any preferential treatment to any member of the Alliance.   

6. COST AND LIABILITY SHARING 

(a) Initial Cost.  The Original Parties have made a one-time, non-refundable fee for 

the initial investment, set-up for each Party and upgrading of the Control Center. The initial cost 

was set at $585,000 per participant based on the number of original Alliance members.  Should 

additional participants (“New Members”) enter into the Alliance, they shall be responsible for 

all modeling (SCADA, EMS, etc.) and other up-front costs associated with integration into the 

Alliance and such other charges as determined by the Executive Committee.  

(b) Annual Operating Costs.   Each Party agrees to share in the actual cost of 

operating the Control Center(s) including costs associated with system operators, EMS support, 

software, hardware, and compliance labor.   

 

(c) Sharing of Penalties, Sanctions or Fines.  

(i) Unless overridden by unanimous vote of the Executive Committee, any 

penalties, sanctions, fines or costs associated therewith assessed by FERC, NERC, or FRCC upon 

OUC for OUC’s responsibilities as established in Appendix 1 of the Registration Agreement for 

actual or alleged violations of a Reliability Standard, except as caused by gross negligence, shall 

be allocated equally amongst the Parties. This equal allocation shall not apply to penalties, 

sanctions, fines or costs (“liability”) assessed against any Party for any requirement not set forth 

in Appendix 1 of the Registration Agreement.  Such liability would remain that Party’s 

responsibility alone.    

(ii) Any penalties, sanctions, fines or costs associated therewith assessed by 

FERC, NERC, or FRCC upon a Party other than OUC for that Party’s responsibilities as 

established in Appendix 1 of the Registration Agreement for actual or alleged violations of a 

Reliability Standard shall be borne by that Party.  

(d) Annual Budgeting Process. 



7 

 

(i) Budgeted Expenditures.   Annually, by April 30th, OUC will present an 

operating budget and capital plan to the Executive Committee.  The purpose shall 

be to inform the Alliance members as to their expected share of the expenses so 

they can properly adjust their own budgets for the upcoming fiscal year.  The 

operating component of the budget will be comprised primarily of System 

Operator, Compliance staff, and EMS labor charges and will be considered non-

discretionary.  Approval by the Executive Committee shall be requested and such 

approval shall not be unreasonably withheld. The capital plan will be a forecast of 

the capital expenditures that OUC deems necessary for the upcoming year.  

Approval by the Executive Committee shall be requested and such approval shall 

not be unreasonably withheld. OUC shall not be obligated to and shall have sole 

discretion whether to fund any portion of the budget that is not approved by the 

Executive Committee.   

(ii)  Budget Amendments.  In the course of any business, situations arise where 

expenditures may be required that were unexpected at the time the budget was 

formulated.  For such cases, where expenditures are forecast to exceed the 

originally presented budgets, OUC shall develop a budget amendment and seek 

approval by the Executive Committee (“Budget Amendment”).  

(iii)  Actual vs. Budget Reporting.   At a frequency determined by the Executive 

Committee, but, initially quarterly, OUC shall report on actual expenditures as 

compared to budget.  

(e) Payment.  OUC shall invoice the Alliance members monthly and such monthly 

invoice shall include: (i) a portion of the Initial Costs as set forth in paragraph 6(a) of this 

Alliance Agreement, if any and if payment for those costs are to be scheduled over a mutually 

agreed number of months; and (ii) actual Operating Costs as set forth in paragraph 6(b) of this 

Alliance Agreement. Each Party agrees to pay OUC all amounts due within 30 days of receipt 

of the monthly invoice.  In the event of any dispute as to any portion of any bill, the Party shall 

nevertheless pay the full amount of the disputed charges when due and shall, within 45 days 

from the date of the disputed bill, give written notice of the dispute to the Executive Committee 

for settlement within 60 days.  Such notice shall identify the disputed bill, state the amount in 

dispute and set forth a full statement on the ground on which the dispute is based.  No adjustment 

shall be considered or made for disputed charges unless required notice is given. 

(f) Audit Rights.   Any Party or its designee shall have the right, at its sole expense 

and during normal working hours, to examine any and all records to the extent reasonably 

necessary to verify the accuracy of any statement, charge or computation made pursuant to this 

Alliance Agreement and/or the operation of the Alliance.  If any such examination reveals any 

inaccuracy in any statement, the necessary adjustments in such statement and the payments 

thereof will be made promptly and shall bear interest calculated at the interest rate of one percent 

(1%) per month, compounded monthly from the date the overpayment or underpayment was 

made until paid.  The aforesaid audit rights are limited to 24 months after the issuance of any 

particular invoice. 

7. ADMISSION OF NEW MEMBERS 



8 

 

(a)  New members may be admitted to the Alliance from time to time, subject to approval of 

the Executive Committee and compliance with the provisions of Section 6 (a) and following 

compliance with the provisions of Section 6 (b). 

(b)   In order for a New Member to be admitted to the Alliance, such entity shall have 

executed and delivered to the Parties a written undertaking substantially in the form of the 

Joinder Agreement, which is attached hereto as Exhibit 4 and incorporated herein. 

8. DISPUTES RESOLUTION.    The Parties shall first negotiate in good faith to attempt to 

resolve any dispute, controversy or claim arising out of, under, or relating to the Alliance (a 

“Dispute”).  In the event the Parties are unsuccessful in resolving a Dispute through such 

negotiations, the Parties must elevate the Dispute to the Executive Committee.  If the Executive 

Committee cannot reach consensus in accordance with its parliamentary procedures, either Party 

may proceed immediately to litigation concerning the Dispute. 

(a) Good-Faith Negotiations.  The process of “good-faith negotiations” requires that 

each Party set out in writing to the other its reason(s) for adopting a specific conclusion or for 

selecting a particular course of action, together with the sequence of subordinate facts leading to 

the conclusion or course of action.  The Parties shall attempt to mutually agree to a resolution of 

the Dispute.  A Party shall not be required as part of these negotiations to provide any information 

which is confidential or proprietary in nature unless it is satisfied in its discretion that the other 

Party will maintain the confidentiality of and will not misuse such information or any 

information subject to attorney-client or other privilege under applicable law regarding discovery 

and production of documents. 

(b) The negotiation process shall include at least one meeting to discuss any Dispute 

(with no obligation to have more than two meetings).  Each Party must be represented at such 

meeting(s) by a person who has the authority to resolve the Dispute or has the authority to 

recommend settlement to the Party’s general manager or governing board.  Unless otherwise 

mutually agreed, the first meeting shall take place within ten days after either Party has received 

notice from the other of the desire to commence formal negotiations concerning the Dispute.  

Unless otherwise mutually agreed, the second meeting shall take place no more than ten days 

later.  In the event a Party refuses to attend a negotiation meeting, either Party may proceed 

immediately to the Executive Committee concerning the Dispute. 

9. INDEMNIFICATION.  To the extent permitted by law and without waiving sovereign 

immunity or the limits of liability contained in Florida Statute 768.28, each Party shall indemnify 

the other Parties and each of the other Party’s respective commissioners, directors, officers, 

managers, employees, agents, representatives, successors and assigns (the “Indemnified Parties”) 

from and against any and all claims brought by third parties for personal injury, death or property 

damage, including attorneys’ fees, which arise out of the Party’s willful misconduct, gross 

negligence, or willful violation of state, federal or local law in the performance of work, services 

or operations pursuant to the Transmission Operator Alliance Agreement.  This Section 9 does not 

apply to any penalties, sanctions, fines, or costs referenced in Section 6. 

10. NOTICES.  Any notices which may be permitted or required hereunder shall be in writing, 

shall be delivered both electronically via e-mail and physically by overnight courier or hand 



9 

 

delivery, and shall be deemed to have been duly given (i) one day after depositing with a nationally 

recognized overnight courier service, or (ii) on the day of hand delivery (provided such delivery 

occurs prior to 5:00 pm, Eastern Standard Time, as applicable), to the address listed below or to 

such other address as a Party may from time to time designate by written notice in accordance with 

this paragraph: 

   To OUC:  Vice President, Transmission 

     100 West Anderson Street 

     Orlando, Florida 32802 

 

  With a copy to: Office of General Counsel 

     100 West Anderson Street 

     Orlando, Florida 32802 

          

  To KUA:   Vice President of Operations 

     1701 W. Carroll St. 

     Kissimmee, FL 34741 

 

  With copy to:  General Counsel 

     1701 W. Carroll St. 

     Kissimmee, FL 34741 

   

  To Beaches Energy:  Mike Staffopoulos 

     City Manager 

     CityManager’s Office@jaxbchfl.net 

     11 3rd St. N 

     Jacksonville Beach, FL 32250 

        

  With copy to:   Allen Putnam 

     Electric Director 

     aputnam@ beachesenergy.com 

     Beaches Energy Services 

     1460 Shetter Avenue 

     Jacksonville Beach, FL 32250 

 

  With copy to:  Kevin Stewart 

System Operations Supervisor 

kstewart@ beachesenergy.com 

Beaches Energy Services 

1460 Shetter Avenue 

Jacksonville Beach, FL 32250 

  With copy to:  Don Cuevas 

Engineering Supervisor 

dcuevas@ beachesenergy.com 

Beaches Energy Services 

1460 Shetter Avenue 



10 

 

Jacksonville Beach, FL 32250 

  With copy to:  Carolyn Woodard 

Regulatory Compliance Officer 

Electrical Engineer 

cwoodard@beachesenergy.com 

Beaches Energy Services 

1460 Shetter Avenue 

Jacksonville Beach, FL 32250 

   To CLWB: 

Carmen Davis 

City Manager 

7 North Dixie Highway 

Lake Worth Beach, FL 33460 

cdavis@LakeWorthBeachfl.gov 

With copy to:      

Edward Liberty 

Director of Electric Utilities  

1900 2nd Avenue North  

Lake Worth Beach, FL 33461 

eliberty@LakeWorthBeachfl.gov 

With copy to:  

Jason Bailey 

Assistant Director – System Operations 

1900 2nd Avenue North 

Lake Worth Beach, FL 33461 

jbailey@LakeWorthBeachfl.gov 

With copy to: 

Alyssa Kirk 

NERC Compliance Manager 

1900 2nd Avenue North 

Lake Worth Beach, FL 33461 

akirk@LakeWorthBeachfl.gov 

 

 

11. NO JOINT VENTURE.  The Parties intend by this Alliance Agreement to establish the 

basis upon which they will cooperate together, but on an independent basis.  This Alliance 

Agreement does not constitute or create a joint venture, partnership, or any other similar 

arrangement between the Parties.  Each of the Parties are independent and except as expressly 

provided herein, none of them are an agent of, nor has the authority to bind the others for any 

purpose.  No Party shall bind any other, or represent that it has the authority to do so. 

12. NO CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary 

elsewhere in the Alliance Agreement, in no event shall any Party be liable to any other Party for 

indirect, incidental, special or consequential damages, including, but not limited to, loss of 

mailto:slancaster@beachesenergy.com
mailto:cdavis@LakeWorthBeachfl.gov
mailto:eliberty@LakeWorthBeachfl.gov
mailto:jbailey@LakeWorthBeachfl.gov
mailto:akirk@LakeWorthBeachfl.gov


11 

 

revenue, loss of profit, cost of capital, or loss of opportunity regardless of whether such liability 

arises out of contract, tort (including negligence), strict liability, or otherwise. 

13. NO THIRD-PARTY BENEFICIARIES.  This Alliance Agreement shall inure to the 

benefit of and be binding upon each of the Parties and their respective successors and upon their 

assigns pursuant to the provisions of Section 15 hereof.  Nothing in this Alliance Agreement, 

express or implied, is intended to confer upon any other person, organization or entity any rights 

or remedies hereunder. 

14. AMENDMENTS AND WAIVERS.  Each Party may request changes to this Alliance 

Agreement.  Any changes, modifications, revisions or amendments to this Alliance Agreement 

which are mutually agreeable upon and between the Parties to this Alliance Agreement shall be 

incorporated by written instrument and effective when executed and signed by all Parties to this 

Alliance Agreement.  

15. NO ASSIGNMENT.  No Party may assign or otherwise transfer to or permit any third-

parties to exercise any rights granted hereunder unless approved by all Parties. 

16. CHANGES IN LAW.  The understandings contained herein are premised upon and 

assume a continuation of present laws and regulations and the administration interpretation and 

application thereof in substantially the same manner as on the Effective Date of this Agreement.  

Should any applicable law or regulation, or the administration or interpretation thereof by NERC 

or any governmental entity, change in any manner, and any such change increases the cost to OUC 

for providing the centralized  TOP Control Centers, (including the imposition of any new tax, fee 

or surcharge other than federal, state or local taxes based on net income), then OUC shall be 

entitled to calculate the impact thereof and recover such added expenses without profit, on an 

equitable pro rata basis, from all of the Parties in accordance with the budgeting process described 

in Section 6(d) of this Alliance Agreement. 

17. MISCELLANEOUS.   

(a) Entire Agreement.  This Alliance Agreement contains the entire understanding of 

the Parties with respect to the matters set forth herein and no other agreement, oral or written, 

not set forth herein, nor any course of dealings of the Parties, shall be deemed to alter or affect 

the terms and conditions set forth herein.   

(b) Applicable Law.  This Alliance Agreement shall be construed in accordance with 

the laws of the State of Florida. 

(c) Headings.  The section headings in this Alliance Agreement are for convenience 

only, shall in no way define or limit the scope or content of this Alliance Agreement, and shall 

not be considered in any construction or interpretation of this Alliance Agreement or any part 

hereof.   

(d) Construction.  Where the sense of this Alliance Agreement requires, any 

reference to a term in the singular shall be deemed to include the plural of said term, and any 

reference to a term in the plural shall be deemed to include the singular of said term.   



12 

 

(e) Counterparts.  This Alliance Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of 

which shall constitute an original, but all taken together shall constitute one and the same 

Alliance Agreement 

(f) Representation. The Party’s City Manager or General Manager, will have the 

authority to execute and amend any exhibits to this agreement and is designated as the official 

with the full power to represent the party in all dealings related to this agreement. 

    IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties to this Alliance Agreement through their duly 

authorized representatives have executed and delivered this Alliance Agreement to evidence their 

respective agreement to its terms and conditions of this Alliance Agreement.   

 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

By: ____________________________ 

 

Title:  ____________________________ 

 

 

ORLANDO UTILITIES COMMISSION 

 

 

_______________________________ 

Clint Bullock 

General Manager & CEO 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Approved As To Form And Legality 

 

 

____________________________ 

Attorney 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



13 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

By: ______________________________ 

 

Title:  ____________________________ 

               

KISSIMMEE UTILITY AUTHORITY 

 

 

_______________________________ 

Brian Horton 

President & General Manager 

 

       

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Approved As To Form And Legality 

 

 

____________________________ 

Attorney 

 

 

 

 

 

 



14 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

By: ____________________________ 

 

 

Title:  __________________________ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Approved As To Form And Legality 

 

 

____________________________ 

Attorney 

 

 

 

 

 

 

BEACHES ENERGY SERVICES 

 

 

_______________________________ 

Mike Staffopoulos 

City Manager  

 

 

 

       

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



15 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

By:  

________________________________ 

Melissa Ann Coyne, MMC, City Clerk 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGAL 

SUFFICIENCY: 

By: 

_______________________________ 

Glen J. Torcivia, City Attorney 

 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA 

 

 

By: 

_______________________________ 

Betty Resch, Mayor 

 

 

APPPROVED FOR FINANCIAL SUFFICIENCY: 

 

By: 

________________________________________ 

Yannick Ngendahayo, Financial Services Director 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



16 

 

SCHEDULE A 

DEFINITIONS 

Agent: OUC acting as the agent of Alliance members, for the sole and limited purpose of 

performing the TOP Agent Functions as enumerated herein. 

TOP Control Center Functions: Those NERC requirements applicable to a TOP registered entity, 

and performed by a Certified System Operator within a Control Center. 

Bulk Electric System or “BES” (becomes effective on 7/1/14): Unless modified by the lists shown 

below, all Transmission Elements operated at 100 kV or higher and Real Power and Reactive 

Power resources connected at 100 kV or higher. This does not include facilities used in the local 

distribution of electric energy.  

Inclusions:  

 I1 - Transformers with the primary terminal and at least one secondary terminal 

operated at 100 kV or higher unless excluded under Exclusion E1 or E3.  

 I2 - Generating resource(s) with gross individual nameplate rating greater than 20 

MVA or gross plant/facility aggregate nameplate rating greater than 75 MVA 

including the generator terminals through the high-side of the step-up 

transformer(s) connected at a voltage of 100 kV or above.  

 I3 - Blackstart Resources identified in the Transmission Operator’s restoration plan.  

 I4 - Dispersed power producing resources with aggregate capacity greater than 75 

MVA (gross aggregate nameplate rating) utilizing a system designed primarily for 

aggregating capacity, connected at a common point at a voltage of 100 kV or above.  

 I5 –Static or dynamic devices (excluding generators) dedicated to supplying or 

absorbing Reactive Power that are connected at100 kV or higher, or through a 

dedicated transformer with a high-side voltage of 100 kV or higher, or through a 

transformer that is designated in Inclusion I1.  

Exclusions: 

 E1 - Radial systems: A group of contiguous transmission Elements that emanates 

from a single point of connection of 100 kV or higher and: 

a) Only serves Load. Or,  

 

b) Only includes generation resources, not identified in Inclusion I3, with an 

aggregate capacity less than or equal to 75 MVA (gross nameplate rating). Or,  

 



17 

 

c) Where the radial system serves Load and includes generation resources, not 

identified in Inclusion I3, with an aggregate capacity of non-retail generation less 

than or equal to 75 MVA (gross nameplate rating).  

 

Note – A normally open switching device between radial systems, as depicted on 

prints or one-line diagrams for example, does not affect this exclusion. 

 E2 - A generating unit or multiple generating units on the customer’s side of the 

retail meter that serve all or part of the retail Load with electric energy if: (i) the net 

capacity provided to the BES does not exceed 75 MVA, and (ii) standby, back-up, 

and maintenance power services are provided to the generating unit or multiple 

generating units or to the retail Load by a Balancing Authority, or provided 

pursuant to a binding obligation with a Generator Owner or Generator Operator, or 

under terms approved by the applicable regulatory authority.  

 E3 - Local networks (LN): A group of contiguous transmission Elements operated 

at or above 100 kV but less than 300 kV that distribute power to Load rather than 

transfer bulk power across the interconnected system. LN’s emanate from multiple 

points of connection at 100 kV or higher to improve the level of service to retail 

customer Load and not to accommodate bulk power transfer across the 

interconnected system. The LN is characterized by all of the following:  

a) Limits on connected generation: The LN and its underlying Elements do not 

include generation resources identified in Inclusion I3 and do not have an 

aggregate capacity of non-retail generation greater than 75 MVA (gross 

nameplate rating);  

 

b) Power flows only into the LN and the LN does not transfer energy originating 

outside the LN for delivery through the LN; and  

 

c) Not part of a Flowgate or transfer path: The LN does not contain a monitored 

Facility of a permanent Flowgate in the Eastern Interconnection, a major 

transfer path within the Western Interconnection, or a comparable monitored 

Facility in the ERCOT or Quebec Interconnections, and is not a monitored 

Facility included in an Interconnection Reliability Operating Limit (IROL). 

 

 E4 – Reactive Power devices owned and operated by the retail customer solely for 

its own use. Note - Elements may be included or excluded on a case-by-case basis 

through the Rules of Procedure exception process. 

Control Center:  One or more facilities hosting operating personnel that monitor and control the 

Bulk Electric System (BES) in real-time to perform the reliability tasks, including their associated 

data centers, of: 1) a Reliability Coordinator, 2) a Balancing Authority, 3) a Transmission Operator 

for transmission Facilities at two or more locations, or 4) a Generator Operator for generation 

Facilities at two or more locations. 



18 

 

Coordinated Functional Registration:  refers to where two or more registered entities agree to a 

division of compliance responsibility among them for a particular function. A written agreement 

between the co-registrants identifies each entity’s responsibility for one or more NERC Reliability 

Standards for that function, and may specify each entity’s responsibility for one or more 

requirements within a standard(s). 

Critical Infrastructure Protection Standards:  refers to the standards and requirements promulgated 

by NERC covering the security of electronic perimeters and the protection of critical cyber assets 

as well as personnel and training, security management and disaster recovery planning. 

EMS:  Energy Management System. 

FERC:  The Federal Energy Regulatory Commission, or its successor. 

FRCC:  The Florida Reliability Coordinating Council, Inc., or its successor. 

Joinder Agreement: means the joinder agreement in form and substance attached hereto as Exhibit 

4. 

NERC:  The North American Electric Reliability Corporation, or its successor. 

Operations Date:  shall mean the date on which a Party transfers monitoring and control of their 

BES TOP assets to OUC. 

Reliability Standards:  A requirement, approved by the United States Federal Energy Regulatory 

Commission under Section 215 of the Federal Power Act, or approved or recognized by an 

applicable governmental authority in other jurisdictions, to provide for reliable operation of the 

bulk-power system [Bulk-Power System]. The term includes requirements for the operation of 

existing bulk-power system [Bulk-Power System] facilities, including cyber security protection, 

and the design of planned additions or modifications to such facilities to the extent necessary to 

provide for reliable operation [Reliable Operation] of the bulk-power system [Bulk-Power 

System], but the term does not include any requirement to enlarge such facilities or to construct 

new transmission capacity or generation capacity. 

Transmission:  An interconnected group of lines and associated equipment for the movement or 

transfer of electric energy between points of supply and points at which it is transformed for 

delivery to customers or is delivered to other electric systems. 

Transmission Operator or “TOP”:  The entity responsible for the reliability of its “local” 

transmission system, and that operates or directs the operations of the transmission facilities. 

Transmission Operator Area:  The collection of Transmission assets over which the Transmission 

Operator is responsible for operating. 

  



19 

 

 

Exhibit 1 

(Executive Committee) 

 

Executive Committee 

 

OUC 

 

Primary: 

 

Name:   _________________________________ 

Title:     _________________________________ 

Address:  _________________________________ 

     _________________________________ 

Telephone:  _________________________________ 

Email:             _________________________________   

 

Back-up: 

 

Name:   _________________________________ 

Title:     _________________________________ 

Address:  _________________________________ 

     _________________________________ 

Telephone:  _________________________________ 

Email:             _________________________________   

 

 

KUA 

 

Primary: 

 

Name:   _________________________________ 

Title:     _________________________________ 

Address:  _________________________________ 

     _________________________________ 

Telephone:  _________________________________ 

Email:             _________________________________   

 

Back-up: 

 

Name:   _________________________________ 

Title:     _________________________________ 

Address:  _________________________________ 

     _________________________________ 

Telephone:  _________________________________ 

Email:             _________________________________   



20 

 

 

 

THE BEACHES 

 

Primary: 

 

Name:   _________________________________ 

Title:     _________________________________ 

Address:  _________________________________ 

     _________________________________ 

Telephone:  _________________________________ 

Email:             _________________________________   

 

Back-up: 

 

Name:   _________________________________ 

Title:     _________________________________ 

Address:  _________________________________ 

     _________________________________ 

Telephone:  _________________________________ 

Email:             _________________________________   

 

 

CLWB 

 

Primary: 

 

Name:   _________________________________ 

Title:     _________________________________ 

Address:  _________________________________ 

     _________________________________ 

Telephone:  _________________________________ 

Email:             _________________________________   

 

Back-up: 

 

Name:   _________________________________ 

Title:     _________________________________ 

Address:  _________________________________ 

     _________________________________ 

Telephone:  _________________________________ 

Email:             _________________________________   

 

 

 

 



21 

 

 

Exhibit 2 

(Operating Committee) 

 

OUC 

 

Primary: 

 

Name:   _________________________________ 

Title:     _________________________________ 

Address:  _________________________________ 

     _________________________________ 

Telephone:  _________________________________ 

Email:             _________________________________   

 

Back-up: 

 

Name:   _________________________________ 

Title:     _________________________________ 

Address:  _________________________________ 

     _________________________________ 

Telephone:  _________________________________ 

Email:             _________________________________   

 

 

KUA 

 

Primary: 

 

Name:   _________________________________ 

Title:     _________________________________ 

Address:  _________________________________ 

     _________________________________ 

Telephone:  _________________________________ 

Email:             _________________________________   

 

Back-up: 

 

Name:   _________________________________ 

Title:     _________________________________ 

Address:  _________________________________ 

     _________________________________ 

Telephone:  _________________________________ 

Email:             _________________________________   

 

 



22 

 

 

BEACHES ENERGY SERVICES 

 

Primary: 

 

Name:   _________________________________ 

Title:     _________________________________ 

Address:  _________________________________ 

     _________________________________ 

Telephone:  _________________________________ 

Email:             _________________________________   

 

Back-up: 

 

Name:   _________________________________ 

Title:     _________________________________ 

Address:  _________________________________ 

     _________________________________ 

Telephone:  _________________________________ 

Email:             _________________________________   

 

 

CLWB 

 

Primary: 

 

Name:   _________________________________ 

Title:     _________________________________ 

Address:  _________________________________ 

     _________________________________ 

Telephone:  _________________________________ 

Email:             _________________________________   

 

Back-up: 

 

Name:   _________________________________ 

Title:     _________________________________ 

Address:  _________________________________ 

     _________________________________ 

Telephone:  _________________________________ 

Email:             _________________________________ 

 

 

 

 

 



23 

 

 

EXHIBIT 3 

(Registration Agreement) 

  



24 

 

 

Exhibit 4 

(Joinder Agreement) 

 

JOINDER AGREEMENT 

THIS JOINDER AGREEMENT (“Joinder Agreement”), dated as of _______________, 

2023 (the “Effective Date”) is made and executed in connection with the Amended and Restated 

Transmission Operator Alliance Agreement dated January ___, 2023, as amended from time to 

time (“Alliance Agreement”), among ORLANDO UTILITIES COMMISSION (“OUC”), 

KISSIMMEE UTILITY AUTHORITY (“KUA”), THE CITY OF JACKSONVILLE 

BEACH, D/B/A, BEACHES ENERGY SERVICES (“BEACHES ENERGY”) and CITY OF 

LAKE WORTH BEACH (“CLWB”).  

1. Effective Date. This Joinder Agreement shall be effective as of the Effective Date and 

shall be a part of and incorporated into the Alliance Agreement 

2. Definitions.  Capitalized terms used herein without definition shall have the meanings 

ascribed thereto in the Alliance Agreement. 

3. Joinder.  Pursuant to and in accordance with Section 7(b) of the Alliance Agreement, 

the undersigned hereby acknowledges that it has received and reviewed a complete 

copy of the Alliance Agreement and agrees that upon execution of this Joinder, such 

entity shall become a party to the Alliance Agreement and shall be fully bound by, and 

subject to, all of the covenants, terms, and conditions of the Alliance Agreement as 

though an original party thereto and shall be deemed, and is hereby admitted as, a 

member of the Alliance for all purposes thereof and entitled to all the rights incidental 

thereto. 

4. Control Center Cutover. The Parties have developed a TOP Control Center Cutover 

schedule for the New Member.  The Control Center Cutover schedule is attached hereto 

as Exhibit A and hereby incorporated into this agreement.  The New Member shall 

submit to FRCC notice of moving its primary and back-up Control Center(s) to OUC.   

5. Costs.  Pursuant to and in accordance with Section 6(a) of the Alliance Agreement, the 

New Member acknowledges that it shall be responsible for all modeling (SCADA, 

EMS, etc.) and all costs associated with integration into the Alliance and such other 

charges as determined by the Executive Committee. 

6. No Amendment.  This Joinder Agreement does not and shall not be deemed to amend, 

change or modify the Alliance Agreement. 

 

 

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS] 



25 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the party hereto has executed this Joinder Agreement as of this ____ 

day of ___________________________, 2023. 

 
 

 
 

 
NEW MEMBER 

 
By: ______________________________ 

Name: ___________________________ 

Title: ____________________________ 

 

 



STAFF REPORT 
UTILITY MEETING 

 

 
  

AGENDA DATE: September 26, 2023 DEPARTMENT: Electric Utility 

TITLE: 

Approval of contracts with L. E. Myers Co., Michels Power Inc., Wilco Electrical LLC., and Hooper 
Corporation to provide construction services for the Electric Utility System Hardening and Reliability 
Improvement Program 

 
SUMMARY: 

The Contracts have been negotiated with L. E. Myers Co., Michels Power Inc., Wilco Electrical LLC., and 
Hooper Corporation to build and construct numerous hardening and reliability improvements to the 
electrical distribution systems, where needed, based on engineering studies performed by in house and 
outside engineers.  

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

The City issued an Invitation for Bid (IFB#23-116) for qualified contractors to be available, based on a 
schedule of unit prices included with each contract, to build and construct numerous hardening and 
reliability improvements to its 26kV Sub transmission, 26kV distribution and 4kV distribution systems, 
while systematically converting the 4kV distribution to a higher voltage, where needed, based on 
engineering studies performed by in house and outside engineers. The result will greatly enhance the 
hardening and reliability of the City’s electrical distribution and sub transmission systems. Construction 
services under this agreement will be ordered on as needed basis by issuing individual Work Orders 
approved in accordance with the City’s procurement Code and policy.  The Agreement is for the duration 
of three years with two one-year options to extend, upon the mutual agreement of both parties, with each 
contractor, for construction services. 

 
MOTION: 

Move to approve/disapprove the construction services agreements with L. E. Myers Co., Michels Power 
Inc., Wilco Electrical LLC., and Hooper Corporation for the Electric Utility System Hardening and 
Reliability Improvement Program Project. 

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Fiscal Impact Analysis 
L. E. Myers Co. Agreement 
Michels Power Inc. Agreement 
Wilco Electrical, LLC. Agreement 
Hooper Corporation Agreement 
Bid tab 



FISCAL IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Five Year Summary of Fiscal Impact: 
 

Fiscal Years 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 
Inflows 
 Current Appropriation 0 0 0 0 0 
 Program Income 0 0 0 0 0 
 Grants 0 0 0 0 0 
 In Kind 0 0 0 0 0 
 

Outflows 
 Current Appropriation 0 0 0 0 0 
 Operating  0 0 0 0 0 
 Capital 0 0 0 0 0 
 

Net Fiscal Impact 0 0 0 0 0 
 

No. of Addn’l Full-Time 
Employee Positions 0 0 0 0 0 
 

Contract Award - Existing Appropriation 

  Expenditure 

Department  Electric Utility  

Division Transmission and Distribution  

GL Description Improve Other than Build / Infrastructure  

GL Account Number 421-6020-531-63.15  

Project Number BOND 

Requested Funds BOND 

 

 



Page 1 of 35 

 

SYSTEM HARDENING AND RELIABILITY IMPROVEMENTS CONTRACT 

IFB # 23-116 

 

THIS CONTRACT for Electric Utility System Hardening and Reliability Improvements (“Contract”) is 

entered on ___________________, by and between the City of Lake Worth Beach, a Florida municipal 

corporation (“City”) and The L. E. Myers Co., a foreign for profit corporation authorized to do business in the 

State of Florida (“Contractor”) with its principal office located at 24925 SR-46, Sorrento, FL   32776 .  

 

WHEREAS, the City issued Invitation for Bids # 23-116 for the construction of numerous hardening 

and reliability improvements to its electric utility transmission and distribution system (“IFB”); and  

 

WHEREAS, the Contractor submitted its bid in response to the IFB; and  

 

WHEREAS, the City desires to award the IFB to the Contractor on a non-exclusive basis for the 

construction of certain system hardening and reliability improvements and related services; and  

 

WHEREAS, this Contract may be funded, in whole or in part, by the Federal agencies and work 

performed pursuant to this Contract or Work Order funded, in whole or in part, by Federal agencies will comply 

with all applicable Federal laws, Federal regulations, executive orders, policies, procedures, directives and 

special clauses as provided for in Exhibit “D”; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City finds awarding the IFB to the Contractor as described herein serves a valid public 

purpose. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, the City hereby engages the services of the Contractor, and in consideration of the mutual 

promises herein contained, the sufficient of which is hereby acknowledged by both parties, the parties agree as 

follows: 

 

Article 1.   GENERAL INFORMATION. 

 

1.1   Scope of Services/Work.  The Contractor shall provide the services and work requested by the City and 

required under a City approved work order as described herein. The general nature of the services and work to 

be provided by the Contractor under this Contract are the construction of hardening and reliability improvements 

to the City’s electric utility transmission and distribution system. 

 

1.2   Contract Documents.  The Contract Documents are incorporated herein by reference as if set forth in 

this Contract and comprise the entire agreement between the City and Contractor. The Contract Documents 

consist of this Contract, the IFB (including, but not limited to, the documents issued with the IFB as the scope 

and specifications, the drawings, addenda, attachments and exhibits); and, any duly executed and issued work 

orders, change orders and Contract amendments relating thereto. If, during the performance of the work, the 

Contractor finds an ambiguity, error or discrepancy in the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall so notify 

the City, in writing, within five (5) business days and before proceeding shall obtain a written interpretation or 

clarification. Failure to obtain a written interpretation or clarification will be deemed a waiver of the ambiguity, 

error or discrepancy by the Contractor. The City will not be responsible for any oral instructions, clarifications, 

or other communications except those provided in writing in response to Contractor's request for clarification of 

an ambiguity, discrepancy or error. 

 

In resolving conflicts in any of the Contract Documents, the order of precedence shall be as follows: 

 

First Priority:  Fully executed Change Orders or Contract amendments 

Second Priority:  This Contract 



Page 2 of 35 

 

Third Priority:  Fully executed Work Orders 

Fourth Priority:  IFB 

 

1.3   Contract Administrator.  Whenever the term Contract Administrator is used herein, it is intended to 

mean the City Manager or designee, City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida. In the administration of this 

Contract, all parties may rely upon instructions or determinations made by the Contract Administrator except 

that all requests and/or determinations that result in an increase in change in time of completion and/or an 

increase in the contract price shall require a formal change order or contract amendment executed by the City 

Manager or the City Commission (depending on the authority set forth in the City’s Procurement Code). 

 

1.4   Work Orders.  This Contract does not guarantee that the City will utilize the Contractor in any 

capacity or for any services hereunder. When the City identifies a need for the Contractor’s services, the City 

will request a proposal from the Contractor to provide the services requested. The City will provide the 

Contractor with plans and/or specifications in order for the Contractor to develop its proposal. The Contractor’s 

proposal shall be submitted in the format of the sample work order, attached hereto and incorporated herein as 

Exhibit “A” along with a copy of the Contractor’s proposal and shall be based on the Hourly Billing Rates 

attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit “B”. Upon receipt of the Contractor’s proposed work order 

and proposal, the City shall decide in its sole discretion whether to award the work order to the Contractor. 

Depending on the lump sum amount of each work order, the work order may be awarded by the City Manager 

(if within City Manager’s purchasing authority (currently not to exceed $50,000)) or the City Commission. If 

the work order is approved by the City, the Contractor shall commence the identified services upon the City’s 

approval of the work order for the services and issuance of a notice to proceed. The City reserves the right to 

reject any and all proposals submitted by the Contractor. A City-approved work order shall include (by 

reference) the plans and/or specifications provided by the City to the Contractor. 

 

1.5 Purchase Orders. The City’s ordering mechanism for individual projects involving urgently required 

work and/or repairs in the amount of $15,000 or less under this Agreement will be by a City issued Purchase 

Order(s); however, the terms and conditions stated in a City Purchase Order(s) shall not apply; the terms and 

conditions set forth in this Agreement shall apply. CONTRACTOR shall not provide services under this 

Agreement without a City Purchase Order specifically for the stated services. CONTRACTOR shall provide 

the amount of requested services and price listed in each Purchase Order and not exceed amounts expressed on 

any Purchase Order. CONTRACTOR shall be liable for any excess services or costs not specifically stated in 

the Purchase Order(s). The City’s Fiscal Year ends on September 30th of each calendar year. The City cannot 

authorize the purchase of services beyond September 30th of each calendar year, prior to the annual budget 

being approved by the City Commission. Additionally, the City must have budgeted appropriate funds for the 

goods and services in any subsequent Fiscal Year. If the budget is approved for said goods and services, the 

City will issue a new Purchase Order(s) each Fiscal Year for required and approved services. Services provided 

pursuant to a City issued Purchase Order(s) under this Agreement shall not exceed $ 50,000 per year without 

additional City Commission approval. 

 

1.5   Term.  The term of this Contract shall be for three (3) years, with an option for two additional twelve 

(12) month renewals upon the mutual agreement of both parties.  The renewal term(s) may be approved by the 

City Manager on behalf of the CITY. Notwithstanding the foregoing, this Contract may be terminated as set 

forth in the Contract Documents.  

 

1.6   Hourly Billing Rates.  The Hourly Billing Rates set forth as Exhibit “B” shall remain fixed for the 

first three (3) years of this Contract. If due to applicable price escalations and/or reductions which impact the 

Contractor’s Hourly Billing Rates, the City and Contractor may execute a written amendment to this Contract 

to establish new Hourly Billing Rates for the renewal term(s). The City Manager may approve changes in the 

Hourly Billing Rates based on the recommendation of the City’s Electric Utility Director or designee. 

 



Page 3 of 35 

 

Article 2.   CONTRACT TIME. 

 

2.1 All services and work to be provided under a City-approved work order shall be provided in a timely 

manner as time is of the essence under this Contract.   

2.2 The Contractor shall not be considered in default by reason of a delay in timely performance if such 

delay and failure arises out of causes reasonably beyond the control of the Contractor or its subcontractors (if 

authorized) and without the Contractor’s or subcontractor’s fault or negligence. Upon the Contractor’s request, 

the City shall consider the facts and extent of any such delay and failure to timely perform the work for reason 

beyond the control of the Contractor and, if the Contractor’s delay and failure to timely perform was without it 

or its subcontractors’ fault or negligence, as reasonably determined by the City, the time of completion shall be 

extended for any reasonable time that the City may reasonably decide; subject to the City’s rights to change, 

terminate, or stop any or all of the work at any time. If the Contractor is delayed at any time in the progress of 

the work by any act or neglect of the City or its employees, by an approved written change in the scope from the 

original Contract Documents, or by any other contractor employed by the City, or by changes ordered by the 

City or in an unusual delay in transportation, unavoidable casualties, or any causes beyond the Contractor’s 

reasonable control, or by delay authorized by the City pending negotiation or by any cause which the City shall 

reasonably decide justifies the delay, then the time of completion shall be extended for any reasonable time the 

City may reasonably decide. The Contractor must provide the City with written notice of any delay claims and 

no extension of time shall be made for any delay occurring more than five (5) days before a claim therefore is 

made in writing to the City. In the case of continuing cause of delay, only one (1) claim is necessary. With the 

exception of an approved written change in the scope from the original Contract Documents, the Contractor’s 

sole remedy for a delay in completion of the work for any reason will be an extension of time to complete the 

work and Contractor specifically waives any right to seek any monetary damages or losses for a delay in 

completion of the work, including, but not limited to, waiving any right to seek monetary amounts for lost profits, 

additional overhead, salaries, lost productivity, efficiency losses, or any other alleged monetary losses which 

may be allegedly suffered by Contractor due to a delay in completion of the work. Provided, however, and 

subject to sovereign immunity under section 768.28, Florida Statutes, that this provision shall not preclude 

recovery or damages by the Contractor for hindrances or delays due solely to fraud, bad faith or active 

interference on the part of the City. Otherwise, the Contractor shall be entitled only to extensions of the Contract 

Times as the sole and exclusive remedy for such resulting delay, in accordance with and to the extent specifically 

provided above. 

Article 3.     PAYMENT PROCEDURES 

 

3.1 Generally.  The Contractor shall submit invoices on a monthly basis detailing all work accomplished in 

the prior month and all materials installed and used in the work pursuant to City approved work order. 

Contractor’s invoices shall be submitted to: 

 

  City of Lake Worth Beach 

  Attn:  Finance Department 

  7 N. Dixie Highway 

  Lake Worth Beach, FL  33460 

 

The City’s Contract Administrator or designee will review each invoice submitted by the Contractor. If 

approved, the City will make payment in accordance with the Contract Documents. If not approved, the City 

will notify the Contractor within twenty (20) business days of the City’s receipt and identify the action necessary 

to correct the invoice or a deficiency. 

 

 

3.2 Payment to the Contractor shall be made pursuant Florida’s Prompt Payment Act (for construction 



Page 4 of 35 

 

services), section 218.735, Florida Statutes, except as provided herein.  Specifically, the City will withhold five 

percent (5%) of each payment from a work order to the Contractor as retainage until fifty percent (95%) of the 

work order price is paid to the Contractor. Upon written request from the Contractor, the Contract Administrator 

may agree in writing with the Contractor to release a portion of the retainage upon payment of ninety-five percent 

(95%) of the work order price being paid to the Contractor (not to exceed fifty percent (50%) of the total 

retainage amount).   

 

3.3 Upon substantial completion, the Contractor and City shall establish a punch-list of items that must be 

completed by the Contractor prior to the Contractor submitting its final payment request. 

 

3.4 Final Payment.  Upon final completion and acceptance of the work in accordance with the Contract 

Documents (including all punch-list items) and final inspection by the appropriate agency with jurisdiction over 

the project (if other than the City), the Contractor shall submit a “final invoice” to the City. In order for both 

parties to close their books and records, the Contractor will clearly state “FINAL” on the Contractor’s final 

invoice. This certifies that all work under the applicable work order has been properly completed and all charges 

have been invoiced to the City.  Since this account will thereupon be closed, any and other further charges if not 

properly included in this final invoice are waived by the Contractor.  If the Contractor’s Final Invoice is approved 

as set forth above, the City shall pay the remainder of the work order price including any amount held as 

retainage.   

 

3.5 Notwithstanding the foregoing, the City shall not be required to pay or release any amount of retainage 

that is subject of a good faith dispute, the subject of a claim brought pursuant to section 255.05, Florida Statutes, 

or otherwise the subject of a claim or demand by the City. 

 

3.6 Final payment shall not become due until the Contractor and all of its subcontractors submit to the City 

releases and waivers of liens, and data establishing payment or satisfaction of obligations, such as receipts, 

claims, security interests or encumbrances arising out of the Contract Documents or otherwise related to the 

Program. 

 

3.7 Acceptance of final payment by the Contractor or a subcontractor shall constitute a waiver of 

claims by that payee except those previously made in writing and identified by that payee as unsettled at 

the time of final invoice. 

 

Article 4.   SUBCONTRACTS 

 

The Contractor represents that it has, or will secure at its own expense, all necessary personnel required to 

perform the services under this Contract. Such personnel shall not be employees of or have any contractual 

relationship with the City. All of the services required hereunder shall be performed by the Contractor or under 

its supervision, and all personnel engaged in performing the services shall be fully qualified and, if required, 

authorized or permitted under state and local law to perform such services. The Contractor shall furnish 

services in a manner consistent with industry standards and to a level of professional skill generally acceptable 

in the industry with regard to services of this kind. The Contractor shall comply with all applicable laws in the 

provision of services under this Contract. The Contractor agrees that it is fully responsible to the City for the 

acts and omissions of subcontractors and of persons either directly or indirectly employed by the Contractor. 

Nothing contained herein shall create any contractual relationship between any subcontractor and the City. All 

of the Contractor’s personnel (and all subcontractors) while on City premises, will comply with all City 

requirements governing conduct, safety, and security. The City reserves the right to request replacement of any 

of subcontractor or subcontractor’s personnel furnished by the Contractor upon written notice by City to 

Contractor of the cause for such replacement. All work performed by a subcontractor will be at cost to the City 

without any mark-up by the Contractor. All subcontractors must provide the same level and type of insurance 

as required of the Contractor under this Contract prior to commencing any services. The Contractor shall 



Page 5 of 35 

 

submit the subcontractors’ proof of insurance upon receipt of a notice to proceed. 

  

Article 5.   INDEMNITY AND INSURANCE. 

 

The Contractor agrees to assume liability for and indemnify, hold harmless, and defend the City, its 

commissioners, mayor, officers, employees, agents, and attorneys of, from, and against all liability and expense, 

including reasonable attorney’s fees, in connection with any and all claims, demands, damages, actions, causes 

of action, and suits in equity of whatever kind or nature, including claims for personal injury, property damage, 

equitable relief, or loss of use, to the extent caused by the negligence, recklessness, or intentionally wrongful 

conduct of the Contractor, its agents, officers, Contractors, subcontractors, employees, or anyone else utilized 

by the Contractor in the performance of this Contract. The Contractor’s liability hereunder shall include all 

attorney’s fees and costs incurred by the City in the enforcement of this indemnification provision. This includes 

claims made by the employees of the Contractor against the City and the Contractor hereby waives its 

entitlement, if any, to immunity under Section 440.11, Florida Statutes.  The obligations contained in this 

provision shall survive termination of this Contract and shall not be limited by the amount of any insurance 

required to be obtained or maintained under this Contract.  

 

Subject to the limitations set forth in this Section, Contractor shall assume control of the defense of any claim 

asserted by a third party against the City and, in connection with such defense, shall appoint lead counsel, in 

each case at the Contractor’s expense.  The City shall have the right, at its option, to participate in the defense 

of any third party claim, without relieving Contractor of any of its obligations hereunder. If the Contractor 

assumes control of the defense of any third party claim in accordance with this paragraph, the Contractor shall 

obtain the prior written consent of the City before entering into any settlement of such claim. Notwithstanding 

anything to the contrary in this Section, the Contractor shall not assume or maintain control of the defense of 

any third party claim, but shall pay the fees of counsel retained by the City and all expenses, including experts’ 

fees, if (i) an adverse determination with respect to the third party claim would, in the good faith judgment of 

the City, be detrimental in any material respect to the City’s reputation; (ii) the third party claim seeks an 

injunction or equitable relief against the City; or (iii) the Contractor has failed or is failing to prosecute or defend 

vigorously the third party claim.  Each party shall cooperate, and cause its agents to cooperate, in the defense or 

prosecution of any third party claim and shall furnish or cause to be furnished such records and information, and 

attend such conferences, discovery proceedings, hearings, trials, or appeals, as may be reasonably requested in 

connection therewith.   

 

It is the specific intent of the parties hereto that the foregoing indemnification complies with Section 725.06, 

Florida Statutes, as amended. The Contractor expressly agrees that it will not claim, and waives any claim, that 

this indemnification violates Section 725.06, Florida Statutes. Nothing contained in the foregoing 

indemnification or any other provision in the Contract Documents shall be construed as a waiver of any 

immunity or limitation of liability the City may have under the doctrine of sovereign immunity or Section 

768.28, Florida Statutes. 

 

INSURANCE:  Prior to commencing any work, the Contractor shall provide proof of insurance coverage as 

required in the IFB. All such insurance policies may not be modified or terminated without the express written 

authorization of the City. Failure to comply with the foregoing requirements shall not relieve the Contractor of 

its liability and obligations under this Contract. Each party will promptly notify the other of any complaint, 

claim, suit or cause of action threatened or commenced against it which arises out of or relates, in any manner, 

to the Contract Documents and/or performance of the work.  Each party agrees to cooperate with the other in 

any investigation either may conduct, the defense of any claim or suit in which either party is named, and shall 

do nothing to impair or invalidate any applicable insurance coverage.  

 

 



Page 6 of 35 

 

Article 6.       REIMBURSEMENT OF ENGINEER EXPENSES. 

 

Should the completion of a work order be delayed beyond the specified or adjusted time limit, Contractor shall 

reimburse the City for all expenses of engineering and inspection incurred by the City during the period between 

said specified or adjusted time and the actual date of final completion.  All such expenses for engineering and 

inspection incurred by the City will be charged to Contractor and be deducted from payments due Contractor as 

provided by this Contract. Said expenses shall be further defined as engineer charges associated with the 

construction contract administration, including resident project representative costs. All such expenses shall be 

separate from and in addition to any Liquidated Damages as provided for in an applicable Work Order. 

 

Article 7.       PUBLIC CONSTRUCTION BOND. 

 

If the City approves a work order which exceeds $200,000 in total construction cost, the Contractor must provide 

the City with a public construction bond in accordance with section 255.05, Florida Statutes. Said bond must be 

recorded in the Official Records in and for Palm Beach County and a copy of the recorded bond must be provided 

to the City prior to the Contractor providing any services under the work order. The City reserves the right to 

request a bond for any work order which is less than $200,000. The cost of the bond shall be a direct pass through 

cost to the City without any mark-up by the Contractor. 

 

The public construction bond shall be on forms attached hereto as Exhibit “C” or substantially similar as 

approved by the City. The bond shall be in an amount not less than the total Work Order price and shall 

incorporate by reference the terms of the Contract Documents in their entirety.  

 

To be acceptable to the City, a Surety Company shall comply with the following provisions: 

 

The Surety Company shall have a currently valid Certificate of Authority, issued by the State of Florida 

Department of Insurance, authorizing it to write surety bonds in the State of Florida. 

 

(a) The Surety Company shall have a currently valid Certificate of Authority issued by the United States 

Department of Treasury under Sections 9304 to 9308 of Title 31 of the United States Code. 

 

(b) The Surety Company shall be in full compliance with the provisions of the Florida Insurance Code. 

 

(c) The Surety Company shall have at least twice the minimum surplus and capital required by the Florida 

Insurance Code at the time the Contractor submits its Work Order for City approval. 

 

(d) The Surety Company shall have at least the ratings of A-/Class V in the latest issue of Best’s Key 

Rating Guide. 

 

(e) The Surety Company shall not expose itself to any loss on any one risk in an amount exceeding ten 

(10) percent of its surplus to policyholders, provided: 

 

1. Any risk or portion of any risk being reinsured shall be deducted in determining 

the limitation of the risk as prescribed in this section. These minimum 

requirements shall apply to the reinsuring carrier providing authorization or 

approval by the State of Florida, Department of Insurance to do business in this 

state have been met. 

 

2. In the case of the surety insurance company, in addition to the deduction for reinsurance, 

the amount assumed by any co-surety, the value of any security deposited, pledged or 



Page 7 of 35 

 

held subject to the consent of the surety and for the protection of the surety shall be 

deducted. 

 

Article 8.       TERMINATION. 

 

8.1 TERMINATION BY CITY:  The City may terminate any work order, the Contract and/or the Contract 

Documents if the Contractor is in default as follows: 

 

(a) refuses or fails to supply enough properly skilled workers or proper materials to timely and 

competently complete the work; 

(b) fails to make payment to subcontractors for materials or labor in accordance with the respective 

agreements between the Contractor and the subcontractors; 

(c) disregards or takes action contrary to any laws, ordinances, or rules, regulations or orders of a 

public authority having jurisdiction;  

(d) takes action, short of declaring bankruptcy, evidencing insolvency;  

 (e) fails to prosecute the services or work in a timely manner and reasonably be unable to reach 

 substantial completion and/or final completion within the timeframe(s) required;  

 (f) fails or refuses to provide and/or maintain insurance or proof of insurance as required by the 

 Contract Documents; or, 

(g) otherwise is in breach of a provision of the Contract Documents. 

 

When any of the above reasons exist, the City, may without prejudice to any other rights or remedies of the City 

and after giving the Contractor and the Contractor’s surety (if applicable), written notice and five (5) days to 

cure, terminate the work order, Contract and/or Contract Documents and may: 

 

(a) take possession of the site and of all materials, equipment, tools, and construction equipment 

and machinery thereon owned by or paid for by the City; and, 

(b) finish the work by whatever reasonable method the City may deem expedient.  

 

The Contractor and its surety (if any) shall be liable for any damage to the City, including additional attorney 

and engineering/architectural fees, resulting from the Contractor’s termination under this provision by the City, 

including but not limited to, and any increased costs incurred by the City in completing the work. 

 

When the City terminates the Contract for one of the reasons stated above, the Contractor shall not be entitled 

to receive further payment, if any, until the work is finished. 

 

Should it be determined by a mediator or a court of competent jurisdiction that the City wrongfully terminated 

the Contract, then the Contractor agrees to treat such termination as a termination for convenience. 

 

8.2 TERMINATION BY THE CITY FOR CONVENIENCE 

 

The City may, at any time, terminate the Contract and Contract Documents for the City’s convenience and 

without cause. Upon receipt of written notice from the City of such termination for the City’s convenience, the 

Contractor shall: 

 

 (a) cease operations as directed by the City in the notice; 

 (b) take actions necessary, or that the City may direct, for the protection and preservation 

of the work; and 

 (c) except for work directed to be performed prior to the effective date of termination stated 

in the notice, terminate all existing subcontracts and purchase orders and enter into no 

further subcontracts and purchase orders. 



Page 8 of 35 

 

 

In case of such termination for the City’s convenience, the Contractor shall be entitled to receive payment for 

work executed, and costs incurred by reason of such termination including termination payments to 

subcontractors and demobilization costs.   

 

Article 9. TAXES AND DIRECT PURCHASES. 

 

9.1       TAXES:  The City is exempt from payment of Florida State Sales and Use Tax. The Contractor is not 

authorized to use the City’s Tax Exemption Number unless approved in writing. 

 

9.2 DIRECT PURCHASES:  For certain projects, the City may seek to make direct purchases of equipment 

or materials to be used by the Contractor. Pursuant to Section 212.08(6), Florida Statutes, and the Fla. Admin. 

Code Ann. R. 12A-1.094 and 12A-1.038, the Parties agree to the following procedure regarding the City’s direct-

purchase from vendors of certain equipment and materials to be used in specific projects: 
 

9.2.1 The City reserves the right, at the City’s option, to direct purchase equipment and materials 

involved in a specific project, including subcontracts, if any so as to save the sales tax which would 

otherwise have been due with regard to the same. The Contractor and its subcontractors shall comply 

with the City’s direct purchase procedures, including but not limited to those listed below. 
 

9.2.2 As specifically set forth in a City issued work order, within 30 days (or other time as 

specified in the work order), the Contractor will present a list of direct purchase equipment for the 

City’s consideration which will include the recommended vendors’ name; the price quotes from all 

vendors provided to the Contractor; and, any terms and conditions the Contractor has negotiated with 

the recommended vendors. The City will then inform the Contractor as to which equipment it will 

direct purchase. In the event the City fails to exercise its option to direct purchase equipment and 

identify which equipment is to be purchased by the City within thirty (30) calendar days of receipt of 

the list from the Contractor, the City shall waive its right to direct purchase any and all equipment to 

be used in completion of the work under the applicable work order. 
 

9.2.3 The Contractor is responsible for selecting each direct purchase vendor, subject to City 

approval. The Contractor is responsible for specifications, equipment receipt, inspecting shipments, 

and assuring that the equipment is in accordance with the work order and the Contractor’s 

specifications. The Contractor is also responsible for providing the City with enough advance notice 

of when the direct purchase equipment will need to be ordered and delivered. In absence of the 

Contractor’s receipt of a written notice of City’s disapproval of a vendor within thirty (30) calendar 

days of City’s receipt of the vendor/material list referenced in 9.2.2, the City shall be deemed to have 

waived any and all objections thereto. 
 

9.2.4 The Contractor shall retain all responsibility for installing all equipment relating to the work 

and for maintaining the construction schedule so long as the City timely orders and pays for the correct 

direct purchase equipment. The City’s direct purchase mechanism to effectuate tax savings in no way 

effects the obligation of the Contractor to meet all of the terms and conditions and all provisions and 

technical specifications of the Contract Documents. The Contractor shall be responsible for insuring 

all equipment once the equipment is in its care, custody and control, regardless of whether directly 

purchased by City. 
 

9.2.5 The City will issue a direct purchase order to the vendor of the direct purchase equipment at 

the price proposed in the Contractor’s or its subcontractor’s bid, less sales tax. The City will promptly 

send a copy of the issued purchaser order to the Contractor. 
 

9.2.6 It will be the Contractor’s primary responsibility to properly expedite and follow up on direct 



Page 9 of 35 

 

purchase orders, thereby assuring delivery of the equipment as ordered and at the time and place needed 

by the Contractor to complete the work in accordance with the work order and construction schedule. 

To the extent required by the Contractor, the City shall cooperate with all requests of the Contractor 

related to the expedition of and follow up on direct purchase orders. 
 

9.2.7 The Contractor shall take delivery, unload, and install the equipment purchased on the direct 

purchase order in accordance with the work order and the Contract Documents with the vendor to 

repair, replace, and make good any defect without cost to the City, until such time as the work has been 

completed and accepted by City in accordance with the Contract Documents. The City, with assistance 

from the Contractor, will be responsible for undertaking and completing any returns of direct purchase 

equipment as requested by the Contractor and working with the vendor to effectuate any credits or 

warranties for the returned equipment (if applicable). Any returns not replaced shall be credited to City 

and acknowledged by a supplement to the direct purchase order and, if applicable, amendment to the 

Contract Sum. The Contractor shall not be responsible for warranting the direct purchase equipment to 

the City; however, the Contractor shall be responsible for facilitating the vendor’s warranty of the 

direct purchase equipment and the Contractor shall be responsible for warranting the work to install 

and/or incorporate the equipment. The Contractor shall maintain records of all direct purchases 

received and incorporated into the work and provide the City with a monthly accounting until all direct 

purchase items that are received and accepted for inclusion in the specific project. 
 

9.2.8 When delivery of a direct purchase order is complete, or a payment is to be made on a partial 

shipment, the Contractor will timely submit to City the documentation supporting the equipment 

received. Invoices for direct purchase orders will be sent by the direct purchase vendor directly to 

City’s Finance Department, with all such invoices addressed to and in the name of the City. The City’s 

Finance Department will forward invoices to the City’s Contract Administrator. The City’s Contract 

Administrator will forward the invoices to the Contractor to verify delivery and sign the invoice and 

associated documentation supporting the amount of the payment. The City will make timely payment 

to all vendors in compliance with each vendor’s payment procedures. The City will take title to all 

equipment ordered through direct purchase upon or at the time of purchase. The Contractor will assist 

City in assuring prompt payment by supplying the vendor’s FEI numbers, addresses, phone numbers, 

etc. All payments will be made in accordance with the Florida Prompt Payment Act. 

 

Article 10. CONTRACTOR'S REPRESENTATIONS AND AGREEMENTS. 

 

In order to induce the City to enter into this Contract, the Contractor makes the following representations: 

 

10.1 Contractor has or will familiarize itself with the nature and extent of the Contract Documents, work, 

site, locality, and all local conditions and laws and regulations that in any manner may affect cost, progress, 

performance or furnishing of the work prior to commencing the work under an applicable Work Order. All work 

shall be performed consistent with all applicable laws and regulations. 

 

10.2 Contractor agrees to be solely responsible for compliance with all applicable environmental regulations, 

for any liability arising from non-compliance with the regulations and to reimburse the City for any loss incurred 

in connection therewith. This compliance provision specifically includes the Contractor’s compliance with all 

applicable standards, orders or regulations including, without limitation, those issued pursuant to the Clean Air 

Act (42 U.S.C. 7401-7671q) and the Federal Water Pollution Control Act as amended (33 U.S.C. 1251-1387). 

 

10.3 Contractor agrees to utilize the U.S. Department of Homeland Security’s E-Verify System to verify the 

employment eligibility of all new employees hired by the Contractor during the term of this Contract. 

 



Page 10 of 35 

 

10.4 The Contractor represents and warrants that it has and will continue to maintain all licenses and 

approvals required to conduct its business and provide the work required under the Contract Documents.  Proof 

of such licenses and approvals shall be submitted to the City upon request. 

 

Article 11. INFRINGEMENT INDEMNITY.    

 

11.1 The Contractor will defend or settle at its expense a claim or suit brought by a third party against the 

City arising out of a claim asserting that the services, work, repair, materials or other deliverables 

(“deliverables” hereafter) provided by the Contractor under the Contract Documents (if any) infringes any U.S. 

copyright or any U.S. patent or misappropriates a trade secret. The Contractor will indemnify and hold 

harmless the City against and from damages, costs, and attorneys’ fees, if any and at all levels of trial and 

appeal or mediation or arbitration, finally awarded in such suit or the amount of the settlement thereof; 

provided that (i) the Contractor is promptly notified in writing of such claim or suit, (ii) the Contractor will 

have the sole control of the defense and settlement thereof, and (iii) City furnishes the Contractor, on 

reasonable request, information available to City for such defense. The City will not admit any such claim 

without prior consent of the Contractor. 

a. In the event of a claim of infringement, the Contractor shall, at its option: 

1. procure for City the right to continue using the deliverables provided under the 

Contract Documents; or 

2. replace or modify the deliverables so that the same becomes non-infringing but 

substantially equivalent in functionality and performance. 

3. If neither of the above actions is reasonably feasible, the Contractor will refund to 

City the fee actually paid by City under the Contract Documents (as amortized on a straight-

line basis over the time in which the City was able to use the deliverables. 

b. The Contractor will have no obligation under this section for infringement if and to the extent 

that such claim arises from: 

1. modification of the deliverables other than by the Contractor or by its 

recommendation; or 

2. combination of the deliverables with products other than those supplied by the 

Contractor;  

and, 

3. the alleged infringement or misappropriation relates to such modification or 

combination. 

c. The Contractor will also not have any indemnification obligation with respect to a claim: (i) 

if it has provided City with reasonable changes that would have avoided the problem and the reasonable 

changes are not fully implemented by City within a reasonable time or (ii) arising out use of the deliverables 

not in accordance with the Contract Documents. 

d. The Contractor’s obligation to indemnify, defend and hold harmless shall remain in effect and 

shall be binding upon the Contractor whether such injury or damage shall accrue, or may be discovered, before 

or after termination or expiration of the Contract Documents. 

 

Article 12. MISCELLANEOUS. 

 



Page 11 of 35 

 

12.1 The City and Contractor each binds itself, its partners, its successors, assigns and legal representatives 

to the other party hereto, its partners, successors, assigns and legal representatives in respect of all covenants, 

agreements and obligations contained in the Contract Documents. 

 

12.2 Additional work and/or changes to a work order’s price and/or time, is subject to the City’s prior written 

approval. Only the City Manager and City Commission (based on the procurement code) have the authority to 

approve such additional work and changes.  

 

12.3 The headings contained in this Contract are inserted for convenience of reference only and shall not be 

a part or control or affect the meaning hereof.  

 

12.4 This Contract may be executed in two or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed to be an 

original, but all of which shall be deemed to be an original, but each of which together shall constitute one and 

the same instrument. 

 

12.5 This Contract (together with the other Contract Documents) supersedes any and all prior negotiations 

and oral or written agreements heretofore made relating to the subject matter hereof and, except for written 

agreements, if any, executed and delivered simultaneously with or subsequent to the date of this Contract, 

constitutes the entire agreement of the parties relating to the subject matter hereof. This Contract may not be 

altered or amended except by a writing signed by the parties hereto. No waiver of any of the terms or conditions 

of this Contract shall be effective unless in writing and executed by the party to be changed therewith. No waiver 

of any condition or of the breach of any term, covenant, representation, warranty or other provision hereof shall 

be deemed to be construed as a further or continuing waiver of any such condition or breach or a waiver of any 

other condition or of any breach of any other term, covenant, representation, warranty or other provision 

contained in this Contract. 

 

12.6   This Contract shall be binding upon, and shall inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their 

respective successors and assigns. 

 

12.7    This Contract shall be governed by and construed and interpreted in accordance with the laws of the 

State of Florida. Each of the parties hereto (a) irrevocably submit itself to the exclusive jurisdiction of the 

Fifteenth Judicial Circuit Court in and for Palm Beach County, Florida for state actions and jurisdiction of the 

United States District Court for the Southern District of Florida, Palm Beach Division, for the purposes of any 

suit, action or other proceeding arising out of, or relating to, this Contract; (b) waives and agrees not to assert 

against any party hereto, by way of motion, as a defense of otherwise, in any suit, action or other proceeding, 

any claim that it is not personally subject to the jurisdiction of the above-named courts for any reason 

whatsoever; and (c) to the extent permitted by applicable law, any claim that such suit, action or proceeding by 

any part hereto is brought in an inconvenient forum or that the venue of such suit, action or proceeding is 

improper or that this Contract or the subject matter hereof may not be enforced in or by such courts. 

 

12.8   This Contract shall create no rights or claims whatsoever in any third party. 

 

12.9   If any one or more of the provisions of the Contract shall be held to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable in 

any respect, the validity, legality and enforceability of the remaining provisions hereof shall not in any way be 

affected or impaired thereby.    

 

12.10   The effective date of this Contract is the date the Contract is approved by the City Commission. 

 

12.11 Public Records:  The Contractor shall comply with Florida’s Public Records Act, Chapter 119, 

 Florida Statutes, and, if determined to be acting on behalf of the City as provided under section 

 119.011(2), Florida Statutes, specifically agrees to: 



Page 12 of 35 

 

 

(a) Keep and maintain public records required by the City to perform the service. 

 

(b) Upon request from the City’s custodian of public records or designee, provide the City with a 

copy of the requested records or allow the records to be inspected or copied within a reasonable time at 

a cost that does not exceed the cost provided in Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, or as otherwise provided 

by law. 

 

(c) Ensure that public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records 

disclosure requirements are not disclosed except as authorized by law for the duration of this Contract 

and following completion of this Contract if the Contractor does not transfer the records to the City. 

 

(d) Upon completion of this Contract, transfer, at no cost, to the City all public records in possession 

of the Contractor or keep and maintain public records required by the City to perform the service. If the 

Contractor transfers all public records to the City upon completion of the Contract, the Contractor shall 

destroy any duplicate public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records 

disclosure requirements. If the Contractor keeps and maintains public records upon completion of the 

Contract, the Contractor shall meet all applicable requirements for retaining public records. All records 

stored electronically must be provided to the City, upon request from the City’s custodian of public 

records or designee, in a format that is compatible with the information technology systems of the City.  

 

IF THE CONTRACTOR HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE APPLICATION 

OF CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA STATUTES, TO THE CONTRACTOR’S DUTY 

TO PROVIDE PUBLIC RECORDS RELATING TO THIS CONTRACT, 

CONTACT THE CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC RECORDS OR DESIGNEE AT: 

ATTENTION CITY CLERK, (561) 586-1660 OR 

CITYCLERK@LAKEWORTHBEACHFL.GOV OR 7 NORTH DIXIE 

HIGHWAY, LAKE WORTH BEACH, FL  33460. 
 

12.12 This Contract shall not be construed more strongly against either party regardless of who was more 

responsible for its preparation. 

 

12.13 In accordance with Palm Beach County ordinance number 2011-009, the Contractor acknowledges that 

this Contract may be subject to investigation and/or audit by the Palm Beach County Inspector General.  The 

Contractor has reviewed Palm Beach County ordinance number 2011-009 and is aware of its rights and/or 

obligations under such ordinance. 

 

12.14 If any legal action or other proceeding is brought for the enforcement of this Contract or the Contract 

Documents, or because of an alleged dispute, breach, default or misrepresentation in connection with any 

provisions of this Contract or the Contract Documents, each party shall be responsible for their own attorney’s 

fees at all levels.  EACH PARTY ALSO AGREES AND VOLUNTARILY WAIVES ANY RIGHT TO A JURY 

TRIAL ARISING OUT OF ALLEGED DISPUTE, BREACH, DEFAULT, MISREPRESENTATION OR ANY 

OTHER CLAIM IN CONNECTION WITH OR ARISING FROM ANY PROVISION OF THIS CONTRACT 

OR THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 

 

12.15 Each of the parties agrees to perform its obligations under the Contract Documents in conformance with 

all laws, regulations and administrative instructions that relate to the parties’ performance of the work and under 

the Contract Documents. 

mailto:CITYCLERK@LAKEWORTHBEACHFL.


Page 13 of 35 

 

 

12.16 All documents, including but not limited to drawings, specifications, plans, reports, other items and data 

or programs stored in hard-copy, electronically or otherwise (collectively referred to as “Documents” hereafter), 

prepared by the Contractor or its subcontractors under this Contract shall be considered a “Work for Hire” and 

the exclusive property of the City. To the extent such Documents may not be deemed a “Work for Hire” under 

applicable law, Contractor and Contractor’s Subcontractors will assign to the City all right, title and interest in 

and to Contractor and/or Contractor’s Subcontractors’ copyright(s) for such Documents. Contractor shall 

execute and deliver to City such instruments of transfer and take such other action that City may reasonable 

request, including, without limitation, executing and filing, at City’s expense, copyright applications, 

assignments and other documents required for the protection of City’s right to such Documents.  The Contractor 

shall retain copies of the Documents for a period of three (3) years from the date of completion of the Program. 

The City grants to the Contractor and Contractor’s subcontractors the right and/or limited license to use a portion 

of the Documents prepared by the Contractor or the Contractor’s subcontractors in future projects of the 

Contractor or Contractor’s subcontractors with said right and/or limited license to use a portion at Contractor’s 

or Contractor’s subcontractor’s own risk and without any liability to City. Any modifications made by the City 

to any of the Contractor’s Documents, or any use, partial use or reuse of the Documents without written 

authorization or adaptation by the Contractor will be at the City’s sole risk and without liability to the Contractor.    

 

12.17 Any provision of this Contract which is of a continuing nature or imposes an obligation which extends 

beyond the term of this Contract shall survive its expiration or earlier termination.  

 

12.18 Any notice required to be given under the Contract Documents shall be sent by certified mail (return 

receipt requested) or by nationally recognized overnight courier as follows to the City: 

 

 City of Lake Worth Beach 

 Attn:  City Manager 

 7 N. Dixie Highway 

 Lake Worth Beach, FL  33460 

 

 and to the Contractor as follows: 

  

 The L.E. Myers, CO 

 24925 SR-46 

 Sorrento, FL   32776 

 Attn: Raymond Richards, Sr. Ops. Manager 

    

 Either party may amend this provision by written notice to the other party. 

 

12.19 The Contractor represents that it presently has no interest and shall acquire no interest, either direct or 

indirect, which would conflict in any manner with the performance of services required hereunder, as provided 

for in Section 112.311, Florida Statutes. The Contractor further represents that no person having any such 

conflicting interest shall be employed for said performance. The Contractor shall promptly notify the City’s 

representative, in writing, of all potential conflicts of interest for any prospective business association, interest 

or other circumstance which may influence or appear to influence the Contractor’s judgment or quality of 

services being provided hereunder. Such written notification shall identify the prospective business association, 

interest or circumstance, the nature of work that the Contractor may undertake and request an opinion of the City 

as to whether the association, interest or circumstance would, in the opinion of the City, constitute a conflict of 

interest if entered into by the Contractor. The City agrees to notify the Contractor of its opinion within thirty 

(30) days of receipt of notification by the Contractor. If, in the opinion of the City, the prospective business 

association, interest or circumstance would not constitute a conflict of interest by the Contractor, the City shall 



Page 14 of 35 

 

so state in the notification and the Contractor shall, at its option, enter into said association, interest or 

circumstance and it shall be deemed not in conflict of interest with respect to services provided to the City by 

the Contractor under the terms of this Contract. 

 

12.20  The Contractor warrants and represents that all of its employees are treated equally during employment 

without regard to race, color, religion, disability, sex, age, national origin, ancestry, political affiliation, marital 

status, handicap, or sexual orientation. Further, Contractor shall not discriminate or permit discrimination against 

any employee or an applicant for employment on the basis of race, color, sex, religion, political affiliation, 

natural origin, ancestry, marital status, sexual orientation or handicap.   

 

12.21  This Contract is not intended to be and shall not be construed as an exclusive agreement, and the City 

may employ additional or other contractors to perform services contemplated by this Contract without liability 

to the City. 

 

12.22 PUBLIC ENTITY CRIMES. The Contractor acknowledges and agrees that a person or affiliate who has 

been placed on the convicted vendor list following a conviction for a public entity crime may not submit a bid, 

proposal, or reply on a contract to provide any goods or services to a public entity; may not submit a bid, 

proposal, or reply on a contract with a public entity for the construction or repair of a public building or public 

work; may not submit bids, proposals, or replies on leases of real property to a public entity; may not be awarded 

or perform work as a contractor, supplier or sub-contractor under a contract with any public entity; and may not 

transact business with any public entity in excess of the threshold amount provided in Section 287.017, Florida 

Statutes, for CATEGORY TWO for a period of 36 months following the date of being placed on the convicted 

vendor list. The Contractor will promptly advise the City if it becomes aware of any violation of this statute. 

 

12.21 PURSUANT TO SECTION 558.005, FLORIDA STATUTES, ANY CLAIMS FOR 

CONSTRUCTION DEFECTS ARE NOT SUBJECT TO THE NOTICE AND CURE PROVISIONS OF 

CHAPTER 558, FLORIDA STATUTES.  

 

12.22 The Contract shall be responsible for initiating, maintaining and supervising all safety precautions and 

programs in connection with the performance of all services and work. This includes being responsible for all 

precautions for safety of, and reasonable protection to prevent damage, injury or loss to employees performing 

the services and work and other persons who may be affected thereby; the work, materials and equipment 

incorporated therein; and other property, equipment or materials at the site or adjacent thereto including, 

without limitation, trees, shrubs, lawns, sidewalks, pavements, roadways or structures and utilities not 

designated for removal, relocation or replacement in the course of the work. The Contractor shall comply with 

and give all notices required by applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, rules and regulations bearing on safety 

of persons or property, or their protection from damage, injury or loss. The Contractor shall implement, erect 

and maintain reasonable safeguards for safety and protection, including posting danger signs and other 

warnings against hazards reasonably related to the work or which could arise therefrom. The Contractor shall 

promptly remedy damage and loss (other than covered by applicable insurance) caused in whole or in part by 

the Contractor or anyone directly or indirectly employed by or utilized by the Contractor in the performance 

of the work, which is not attributable to the City’s negligence. 

 

12.23 The Contractor agrees that, in all matters relating to this Contract, it will be acting as an independent 

contractor with exclusive control of the manner and means of performing the work, its obligations and tasks in 

accordance with the requirements of this Contract and the Contract Documents. The Contractor has no 

authority to act or make any agreements or representations on behalf of the City. This Contract is not intended, 

and shall not be construed to create, between the City and the Contractor, the relationship of principal and 

agent, joint-venturers, co-partners or any other such relationship, the existence of which is hereby expressly 

denied. No employee or agent of Contractor shall be, or shall be deemed to be, an employee or agent of City. 

 



Page 15 of 35 

 

Article 13. SCRUTINIZED COMPANIES 

 

13.1 CONTRACTOR certifies that it and its subcontractors are not on the Scrutinized Companies that 

Boycott Israel List and are not engaged in the boycott of Israel.  Pursuant to section 287.135, Florida Statutes, 

the CITY may immediately terminate this Agreement at its sole option if the CONTRACTOR or any of its 

subcontractors are found to have submitted a false certification; or if the CONTRACTOR or any of its 

subcontractors, are placed on the Scrutinized Companies that Boycott Israel List or is engaged in the boycott of 

Israel during the term of this Agreement. 

13.2 If this Agreement is for one million dollars or more, the CONTRACTOR certifies that it and its 

subcontractors are also not on the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in Sudan List, Scrutinized Companies 

with Activities in the Iran Petroleum Energy Sector List, or engaged in business operations in Cuba or Syria as 

identified in Section 287.135, Florida Statutes.  Pursuant to Section 287.135, the CITY may immediately 

terminate this Agreement at its sole option if the CONTRACTOR, or any of its subcontractors are found to have 

submitted a false certification; or if the CONTRACTOR or any of its subcontractors are placed on the Scrutinized 

Companies with Activities in Sudan List, or Scrutinized Companies with Activities in the Iran Petroleum Energy 

Sector List, or are or have been engaged with business operations in Cuba or Syria during the term of this 

Agreement. 

13.3 The CONTRACTOR agrees to observe the above requirements for applicable subcontracts entered into 

for the performance of work under this Agreement. 

13.4 The CONTRACTOR agrees that the certifications in this section shall be effective and relied upon by 

the CITY for the term of this Agreement, including any and all renewals. 

13.5 The CONTRACTOR agrees that if it or any of its subcontractors’ status changes in regards to any 

certification herein, the CONTRACTOR shall immediately notify the CITY of the same. 

13.6 As provided in Subsection 287.135(8), Florida Statutes, if federal law ceases to authorize the above-

stated contracting prohibitions then they shall become inoperative. 

 

Article 14. E-VERIFY 

 

Pursuant to Section 448.095(2), Florida Statutes, the CONTRACTOR shall: 

14.1. Register with and use the E-Verify system to verify the work authorization status of all newly hired 

employees and require all subcontractors (providing services or receiving funding under this Agreement) to 

register with and use the E-Verify system to verify the work authorization status of all the subcontractors’ newly 

hired employees; 

14.2. Secure an affidavit from all subcontractors (providing services or receiving funding under this 

Agreement) stating that the subcontractor does not employ, Agreement with, or subcontract with an 

“unauthorized alien” as defined in Section 448.095(1)(k), Florida Statutes; 

14.3. Maintain copies of all subcontractor affidavits for the duration of this Agreement and provide the same 

to the CITY upon request; 

14.4 Comply fully, and ensure all of its subcontractors comply fully, with Section 448.095, Florida Statutes; 

14.5. Be aware that a violation of Section 448.09, Florida Statutes (Unauthorized aliens; employment 

prohibited) shall be grounds for termination of this Agreement; and, 

14.6. Be aware that if the CITY terminates this Agreement under Section 448.095(2)(c), Florida Statutes, 

CONTRACTOR may not be awarded a Agreement for at least 1 year after the date on which the Agreement is 

terminated and will be liable for any additional costs incurred by the CITY as a result of the termination of the 

Agreement.   

 

Remainder of this page intentionally left blank 

Signature page follows  



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City and Contractor have caused this Contract for System Hardening 
and Reliability Improvements to be executed the day and year shown below. 

ATTEST: 

By:---------
Melissa Ann Coyne, City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND 
LEGAL SUFFICIENCY: 

By:---------
Glen J. Torcivia, City Attorney 

CONTRACTOR: 

[Corporate Seal] 

STATE oF FltXido ) 
COUNTY OF ---=L()"""'-'Qecc.=-_____ ) 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA 

By:----------
Betty Resch, Mayor 

APPROVED FOR FINANCIAL 
SUFFICIENCY 

By:---------------
Yannick Ngendahayo, Financial Services Director 

THE L.E. MYERS, CO. 

By:���

Print Name: �-;'\,,-"Q ,?/"C(',r/7,££>,1 

Title: ..>�. c!/?/ /J1&v'�R

THE FOREGOING instrument was acknowledged before me by means of• �sical presence or • 
online notari�ation on this \Ot"'t day of ��+ 2023, by I?otfYIOv-d Ricm�& as the
Sr. D�t.xatiOVJS YY'qr [title] of The LE. Myers, Co., a foreign for profit Corporation, who is

/personally known to me or who has produced ��,./ IZ.r1;f.4,,_/r as identification, and who did 
take an oath that he or she is duly authorized to execute the foregoing instrument and bind the CONTRACTOR 
to the same. 

Notary Seal: 

Page 16 of35 



Page 17 of 35 

 

 

EXHIBIT “A” 

SAMPLE WORK ORDER 

 

CONTRACT FOR SYSTEM HARDENING AND RELIABILITY IMPROVEMENTS 

WORK ORDER NO._____ 

 

THIS WORK ORDER for System Hardening and Reliability Improvements (“Work Order” hereafter) 

is made on the ____ ___________________________, between the City of Lake Worth Beach, a Florida 

municipal corporation located at 7 North Dixie Highway, Lake Worth Beach, Florida 33460 (“City” hereafter) 

and  The L.E. Myers, Co., a foreign profit corporation authorized to do business in State of Florida 

(“Contractor” hereafter). 

 

1.0 Project Description: 

 

The City desires the Contractor to provide all goods, services, materials and equipment as identified 

herein related to the System Hardening and Reliability Improvements project generally described as:  

__________________________________________________________ (the “Project”). The Project is 

more specifically described in the plans prepared by ______________________, dated ____________, 

and which are incorporated herein by reference.  

 

2.0 Scope 

 

Under this Work Order, the Contractor will provide the City of Lake Worth Beach with construction 

services for the Project as specified in the Contractor’s proposal attached hereto and incorporated 

herein as Exhibit “1”.    

 

3.0 Schedule and Liquidated Damages 

 

Substantial completion of all services and work under this Work Order shall be within ____   calendar 

days from the Effective Date of this Work Order. Final completion of all services and work (and all 

punch-list items (if any)) under this Work Order shall be within ____ calendar days from the Effective 

Date of this Work Order. The Effective Date of this Work Order is the date following the parties’ 

execution of this Work Order and the City’s delivery of a Notice to Proceed to the Contractor via e-mail, 

facsimile or other form of delivery as documented by the City. Substantial completion occurs when the 

services and work has progressed to the point where, in the opinion of the City, the work is sufficiently 

complete in accordance with the Contract Documents and this Work Order, so that the Project can be 

utilized for the purposes for which it is intended. Final completion occurs when all services and work 

(including punch-list items) has been completed and the project becomes fully operational and accepted 

by the City. 

 

Liquidated Damages. The City and Contractor recognize that time is of the essence under this 

Work Order and the Contract Documents, and that the City will suffer financial loss if the services 

and work described in this Work Order and the Contract Documents are not completed within 

the times specified in this Work Order. The City and Contractor recognize, agree and 

acknowledge that it would be impractical and extremely difficult to ascertain and fix the actual 

damages that the City would suffer in the event Contractor neglects, refuses, or otherwise fails to 

complete the services and work within the time specified. Accordingly, instead of requiring any 

such proof, the City and Contractor agree that as liquidated damages for delay (but not as a 

penalty) Contractor shall pay the City________ hundred dollars ($_________.00) for each day 

that expires after the time specified in this Work Order.   



Page 18 of 35 

 

 

 

4.0 Compensation and Direct Purchases 

 

This Work Order is issued for a lump sum, not to exceed amount of $______________________ 

(_____________________). The attached proposal identifies all costs and expenses included in the 

lump sum, not to exceed amount. 

 

The following Direct Purchases are to be made under this Work Order by the City: ________________ 

__________________________________________________________________________________

_________________________________________________________________________________. 

 

5.0 Project Manager 

 

The Project Manager for the Contractor is __________________________, 

phone:___________________; email: ____________________; and, the Project Manager for the City 

is ______________________________, phone:_________________________________; 

email:_______________________. 

 

6.0 Progress Meetings 

 

The Contractor shall schedule periodic progress review meetings with the City Project Manager as 

necessary but every 30 days as a minimum. 

 

7.0 Contractor’s Representations 

 

In order to induce the City to enter into this Work Order, the Contractor makes the following 

representations: 

 

7.1 Contractor has familiarized itself with the nature and extent of the Contract Documents 

including this Work Order, work, site, locality, and all local conditions and laws and regulations that in 

any manner may affect cost, progress, performance or furnishing of the work. 

 

7.2 Contractor has obtained at his/her own expense and carefully studied, or assumes responsibility 

for obtaining and carefully studying, soil investigations, explorations, and test reports which pertain to 

the subsurface conditions at or contiguous to the site or otherwise may affect the cost, progress, 

performance or furnishing of the work as Contractor considers necessary for the performance or 

furnishing of the work at the stated work order price within the Work Order stated time and in 

accordance with the other terms and conditions of the Contract Documents, including specifically the 

provisions of the IFB; and no additional examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, reports, studies 

or similar information or data are or is deemed necessary by Contractor for such purposes. 

 

7.3 Contractor has reviewed and checked all information and data shown or indicated on the 

Contract Documents with respect to existing Underground Facilities at or contiguous to the site and 

assumes responsibility for the accurate location of said Underground Facilities. No additional 

examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, reports, studies or similar information or data in respect 

of said Underground Facilities are or is deemed necessary by the Contractor in order to perform and 

furnish the work under this Work Order price, within the Work Order time and in accordance with the 

other terms and conditions of the Contract Documents. 

 

7.4 Contractor has correlated the results of all such observations, examinations, investigations, 



Page 19 of 35 

 

explorations, tests, reports and studies with the terms and conditions of the Contract Documents. 

 

7.5 Contractor has given the City’s Contract Administrator written notice of all conflicts, errors or 

discrepancies that he or she has discovered in the Contract Documents and the written resolution thereof 

by City or its designee is acceptable to the Contractor. 

 

8.0 Warranty.  The Contractor warrants and guarantees to the City that all services and work provided 

under this Work Order will be in accordance with this Work Order and the other Contract Documents. 

The Contractor warrants that (a) all materials and parts supplied under this Work Order shall be free 

from defects for one (1) year from the final completion of all work (unless a longer manufacturer 

warranty applies); (b) all services and work performed under this Work Order will be free from defects 

for one (1) year from the final completion of all work and the project shall be fully operational without 

unreasonable downtime or failures; and (c) that the services and work will conform to the requirements 

of the Contract Documents. If, at any time prior to the expiration of the one (1) year warranty period, 

the City discovers any failure or breach of the Contractor’s warranties or the Contractor discovers any 

failure or breach of the Contractor’s warranties, the Contractor will, upon written notice from City or of 

its own accord, at the Contractor’s sole cost and expense, promptly correct such failure or breach (which 

corrective action must include, without limitation, any necessary removal, disassembly, reinstallation, 

repair, replacement, reassembly, retesting, and/or re-inspection of any part or portion of the work and 

any other property damaged or affected by such failure, breach, or corrective action). The Contractor 

will remedy any such failure or breach so, to the extent possible, to avoid unnecessary disruptions to the 

operations of City or its systems. In the event the Contractor fails to initiate and diligently pursue 

corrective action within five (5) days of the Contractor’s receipt of the City’s notice or the Contractor’s 

discovery of the same, the City may undertake such corrective action at the Contractor’s expense.  

 

9.0 Authorization 

 

This Work Order is issued pursuant to the System Hardening and Reliability Improvements Contract for 

between the City of Lake Worth Beach and the Contractor, dated _____________, (“Contract” 

hereafter). If there are any conflicts between the terms and conditions of this Work Order and the 

Contract, the terms and conditions of the Contract shall prevail.  

 

  

 

REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS 

 

 

 

 

  



Page 20 of 35 

 

 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have made and executed this Work Order as of the day 

and year set forth above.   

 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA 

 

ATTEST:                                                                       

             

                                              

By: __________________________                By: ____DO NOT SIGN – SAMPLE ONLY____________ 

      Melissa Ann Coyne, City Clerk                                Betty Resch, Mayor 

 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND                          APPROVED FOR FINANCIAL         

LEGAL SUFFICIENCY:                                        SUFFICIENCY 

 

 

By: __________________________                By: _______________________________________ 

      Glen J. Torcivia, City Attorney                            Yannick Ngendahayo, Financial Services Director 

 

 

 

CONTRACTOR:  The L.E. MYERS, CO 

 

      By: __DO NOT SIGN – SAMPLE ONLY ___ 

 

[Corporate Seal]    Print Name: ___________________________ 

 

      Title: _________________________________ 

 

 

STATE OF _______________________) 

COUNTY OF _____________________) 

 

THE FOREGOING instrument was acknowledged before me by means of • physical presence or • 

online notarization on this ____ day of ______________ 2023, by ________________________, as the 

________________________ [title] of The L.E. Myers, Co.,  a foreign profit Corporation, who is personally 

known to me or who has produced _________________________ as identification, and who did take an oath 

that he or she is duly authorized to execute the foregoing instrument and bind the CONTRACTOR to the same.   

 

 

 

____________________________________ 

Notary Public Signature 

Notary Seal:     

 

    

 

 

  



Page 21 of 35 

 

EXHIBIT “B” 

HOURLY BILLING RATES 

 

 

 
  



Page 22 of 35 

 

 

 

 



Page 23 of 35 

 

 

 



Page 24 of 35 

 

 

  



Page 25 of 35 

 

 

EXHIBIT “C” 

PUBLIC CONSTRUCTION BOND FORMS 

 

Record and Return to: 

 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH  

PAYMENT AND PERFORMANCE BOND 

(Pursuant to sec. 255.05, Fla. Stat.) 

 

Surety Bond No. __________  

   

Any singular reference to Contractor, Surety, Owner or other party shall be considered plural where applicable. 

 

CONTRACTOR:     SURETY: 

Name:       Name: 

Principal Business Address:    Principal Business Address 

 

Telephone Number:     Telephone Number: 

 

OWNER: 

City of Lake Worth Beach 

7 North Dixie Highway 

Lake Worth Beach, FL  33460 

(561) 586-1600 

 

CONTRACT:  System Hardening and Reliability Improvement Program 

Contract Work Order No: 

Date: 

Amount: 

Description (Name and Location):  

General Description of Work: 

 

BOND 

Date (not earlier than Work Order Date): 

Amount: 

Modifications to this Bond Form: 

 

This Bond is issued in favor of the City of Lake Worth Beach/Owner conditioned on the full and faithful 

performance of the Contract. 

1. Contractor has entered into Project No. ___________________ with the City for the project titled 

“_____________________________” (the “Contract”), with conditions and provisions as are further described 

in the aforementioned Contract, which Contract, including all of its attachments, exhibits and incorporated 

documents (hereinafter, collectively, the “Contract Documents”) is by reference made a part hereof for the 

purposes of explaining this bond. 

2. Principal and Surety are bound to the Owner in the sum of the Contract Amount set forth above for 

payment of which we bind ourselves, our heirs, personal representatives, successors, and assigns, jointly and 

severally. 

3. THE CONDITION OF THIS BOND is that if Principal: 

 a. Performs the Work required of and in accordance with the Contract Documents at the times and in 

the manner prescribed in the Contract Documents, which are made a part of this bond by reference; and 



Page 26 of 35 

 

 b. In accordance with sec. 255.05 and sec. 337.18, Florida Statutes, promptly makes payment s to 

all persons, defined in sec. 713.01, Florida Statutes, who furnish labor, services or materials for prosecution of 

the work set forth in the Contract Documents described above; and 

 c. Pays Owner all losses, damages (including liquidated damages), expenses, costs, and 

professional fees, including but not limited to attorneys’ fees, including appellate proceedings, that Owner 

sustains because of a default by Principal under the Contract Documents; and 

 d. Performs the warranty and guarantee of all work and materials furnished under the Contract 

Documents for the time specified in the Contract Documents, then this bond is void; otherwise it remains in full 

force. 

4.      Section 255.05, Fla. Stat., as amended, together with all notice and time provisions contained therein, 

is incorporated herein by reference. 

5. Any action instituted by a claimant under this bond for payment must be in accordance with the notice 

and time limitation provisions in secs. 255.05(2) and (10), Fla. Stat., and those of sec. 337.18, Fla. Stat. 

6.        Any changes in or under the Contract Documents and compliance or noncompliance with any 

formalities connected with the Contract Documents or the changes does not affect Surety's obligation under this 

bond, and Surety waives notice of such changes. 

7. Principal and Surety expressly acknowledge that any and all provisions relating to consequential, delay 

and liquidated damages contained in the contract are expressly covered by and made a part of this Performance, 

Labor and Material Payment Bond.  Principal and Surety acknowledge that any such provisions lie within their 

obligations and within the policy coverages and limitations of this instrument. 

8. Any action brought under this instrument shall be brought in the state court of competent jurisdiction in 

Palm Beach County, Florida, and not elsewhere. 

Surety and Contractor, intending to be legally bound hereby, subject to the terms included herein and as required 

under Florida Statutes, do each cause this Performance and Payment Bond to be duly executed on its behalf by 

its authorized officer, agent, or representative. 

 

Signed and sealed this _______ day of ______________________________, 20__. 

 

 

_________________________________  __________________________________ 

Witness      Principal 

 

       __________________________________ 

       Title 

(Corporate Seal) 

 

_________________________________  __________________________________ 

Witness      Surety 

 

       __________________________________ 

       Attorney-in-Fact 

       (Attach Power of Attorney) 

 

__________________________________ 

       Print Name 

 

       (Corporate Seal) 

 

  



Page 27 of 35 

 

EXHIBIT “D” 

 

Federal Contract Provisions 

 

The Contractor hereby agrees that the following terms, at a minimum, will be incorporated into any subsequent 

contract resulting from this IFB, which is funded in whole or in part with any federal or other funding where the 

following terms are applicable: 

 

Equal Employment Opportunity. During the performance of the resulting contract, the Contractor agrees as 

follows: 

 

(1) The Contractor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 

color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, or national origin. The Contractor will take affirmative 

action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during employment without regard 

to their race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, or national origin. Such action shall include, 

but not be limited to the following: 

Employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; 

rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship. The Contractor 

agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for employment, notices to be 

provided setting forth the provisions of this nondiscrimination clause.   

(2) The Contractor will, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of the 

Contractor, state that all qualified applicants will receive consideration for employment without regard to race, 

color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, or national origin. 

(3) The Contractor will not discharge or in any other manner discriminate against any employee or applicant 

for employment because such employee or applicant has inquired about, discussed, or disclosed the 

compensation of the employee or applicant or another employee or applicant. This provision shall not apply to 

instances in which an employee who has access to the compensation information of other employees or 

applicants as a part of such employee's essential job functions discloses the compensation of such other 

employees or applicants to individuals who do not otherwise have access to such information, unless such 

disclosure is in response to a formal complaint or charge, in furtherance of an investigation, proceeding, hearing, 

or action, including an investigation conducted by the employer, or is consistent with the Contractor's legal duty 

to furnish information. 

(4) The Contractor will send to each labor union or representative of workers with which he has a collective 

bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding, a notice to be provided advising the said labor union 

or workers' representatives of the Contractor's commitments under this section, and shall post copies of the notice 

in conspicuous places available to employees and applicants for employment. 

(5) The Contractor will comply with all provisions of Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, and 

of the rules, regulations, and relevant orders of the Secretary of Labor. 

 (6) The Contractor will furnish all information and reports required by Executive Order 11246 of September 

24, 1965, and by rules, regulations, and orders of the Secretary of Labor, or pursuant thereto, and will permit 

access to his books, records, and accounts by the administering agency and the Secretary of Labor for purposes 

of investigation to ascertain compliance with such rules, regulations, and orders. 

(7) In the event of the Contractor's noncompliance with the nondiscrimination clauses of this contract or 

with any of the said rules, regulations, or orders, this contract may be canceled, terminated, or suspended in 

whole or in part and the Contractor may be declared ineligible for further Government contracts or federally 

assisted construction contracts in accordance with procedures authorized in Executive Order 11246 of September 

24, 1965, and such other sanctions may be imposed and remedies invoked as provided in Executive Order 11246 

of September 24, 1965, or by rule, regulation, or order of the Secretary of Labor, or as otherwise provided by 

law. 

(8) The Contractor will include the portion of the sentence immediately preceding paragraph (1) and the 

provisions of paragraphs (1) through (8) in every subcontract or purchase order unless exempted by rules, 



Page 28 of 35 

 

regulations, or orders of the Secretary of Labor issued pursuant to section 204 of Executive Order 11246 of 

September 24, 1965, so that such provisions will be binding upon each subcontractor or vendor. The Contractor 

will take such action with respect to any subcontract or purchase order as the administering agency may direct 

as a means of enforcing such provisions, including sanctions for noncompliance:  Provided, however, that in the 

event a Contractor becomes involved in, or is threatened with, litigation with a subcontractor or vendor as a 

result of such direction by the administering agency, the Contractor may request the United States to enter into 

such litigation to protect the interests of the United States.  

The applicant further agrees that it will be bound by the above equal opportunity clause with respect to its own 

employment practices when it participates in federally assisted construction work: Provided, That if the applicant 

so participating is a State or local government, the above equal opportunity clause is not applicable to any 

agency, instrumentality or subdivision of such government which does not participate in work on or under the 

contract.  The applicant agrees that it will assist and cooperate actively with the administering agency and the 

Secretary of Labor in obtaining the compliance of contractors and subcontractors with the equal opportunity 

clause and the rules, regulations, and relevant orders of the Secretary of Labor, that it will furnish the 

administering agency and the Secretary of Labor such information as they may require for the supervision of 

such compliance, and that it will otherwise assist the administering agency in the discharge of the agency's 

primary responsibility for securing compliance.   

The applicant further agrees that it will refrain from entering into any contract or contract modification subject 

to Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, with a Contractor debarred from, or who has not demonstrated 

eligibility for, Government contracts and federally assisted construction contracts pursuant to the Executive 

Order and will carry out such sanctions and penalties for violation of the equal opportunity clause as may be 

imposed upon contractors and subcontractors by the administering agency or the Secretary of Labor pursuant to 

Part II, Subpart D of the Executive Order. In addition, the applicant agrees that if it fails or refuses to comply 

with these undertakings, the administering agency may take any or all of the following actions: Cancel, 

terminate, or suspend in whole or in part this grant (contract, loan, insurance, guarantee); refrain from extending 

any further assistance to the applicant under the program with respect to which the failure or refund occurred 

until satisfactory assurance of future compliance has been received from such applicant; and refer the case to the 

Department of Justice for appropriate legal proceedings. 

 

Compliance with the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act. 

(1) Overtime requirements. No Contractor or subcontractor contracting for any part of the contract work 

which may require or involve the employment of laborers or mechanics shall require or permit any such laborer 

or mechanic in any workweek in which he or she is employed on such work to work in excess of forty hours in 

such workweek unless such laborer or mechanic receives compensation at a rate not less than one and one-half 

times the basic rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of forty hours in such workweek. 

(2) Violation; liability for unpaid wages; liquidated damages. In the event of any violation of the clause set 

forth in paragraph (1) of this section the Contractor and any subcontractor responsible therefor shall be liable 

for the unpaid wages. In addition, such Contractor and subcontractor shall be liable to the United States (in the 

case of work done under contract for the District of Columbia or a territory, to such District or to such territory), 

for liquidated damages. Such liquidated damages shall be computed with respect to each individual laborer or 

mechanic, including watchmen and guards, employed in violation of the clause set forth in paragraph (1) of this 

section, in the sum of $27 for each calendar day on which such individual was required or permitted to work in 

excess of the standard workweek of forty hours without payment of the overtime wages required by the clause 

set forth in paragraph (1) of this section.   

(3) Withholding for unpaid wages and liquidated damages. DOJ, the State of Florida, or the CITY  shall 

upon its own action or upon written request of an authorized representative of the Department of Labor withhold 

or cause to be withheld, from any moneys payable on account of work performed by the Contractor or 

subcontractor under any such contract or any other Federal contract with the same prime contractor, or any other 

federally-assisted contract subject to the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act, which is held by the 

same prime contractor, such sums as may be determined to be necessary to satisfy any liabilities of such 



Page 29 of 35 

 

Contractor or subcontractor for unpaid wages and liquidated damages as provided in the clause set forth in 

paragraph (2) of this section. 

(4) Subcontracts. The Contractor or subcontractor shall insert in any subcontracts the clauses set forth in 

paragraph (1) through (4) of this section and also a clause requiring the subcontractors to include these clauses 

in any lower tier subcontracts. The prime Contractor shall be responsible for compliance by any subcontractor 

or lower tier subcontractor with the clauses set forth in paragraphs (1) through (4) of this section. 

 

Rights to Inventions Made Under a Contract or Agreement 

If the Federal award meets the definition of “funding agreement” under 37 CFR § 401.2(a) and the recipient or 

subrecipient wishes to enter into a contract with a small business firm or nonprofit organization regarding the 

substitution of parties, assignment or performance of experimental, developmental, or research work under that 

“funding agreement,” the recipient or subrecipient must comply with the requirements of 37 CFR Part 401, 

“Rights to Inventions Made by Nonprofit Organizations and Small Business Firms Under Government Grants, 

Contracts and Cooperative Agreements,” and any implementing regulations issued by the awarding agency. 

 

Clean Air Act 

(1) The Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable standards, orders or regulations issued pursuant to the 

Clean Air Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 7401 et seq. 

(2) The Contractor agrees to report each violation to the City, and understands and agrees that the City will, in 

turn, report each violation as required to assure notification to the Federal Emergency Management Agency, and 

the appropriate Environmental Protection Agency Regional Office.  

(3) The Contractor agrees to include these requirements in each subcontract exceeding $150,000 financed in 

whole or in part with Federal assistance provided by DOJ. 

 

Federal Water Pollution Control Act  

(1) The Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable standards, orders, or regulations issued pursuant to the 

Federal Water Pollution Control Act, as amended, 33 U.S.C. 1251 et seq. 

(2) The Contractor agrees to report each violation to the CITY and understands and agrees that the CITY will, 

in turn, report each violation as required to assure notification to the Federal Emergency Management Agency, 

and the appropriate Environmental Protection Agency Regional Office. 

(3) The Contractor agrees to include these requirements in each subcontract exceeding $150,000 financed in 

whole or in part with Federal assistance provided by DOJ. 

 

Suspension and Debarment.  

(1) This contract is a covered transaction for purposes of 2 C.F.R. pt. 180 and 2 C.F.R. pt. 3000. As such, the 

Contractor is required to verify that none of the Contractor’s principals (defined at 2 C.F.R. § 180.995) or its 

affiliates (defined at 2 C.F.R. § 180.905) are excluded (defined at 2 C.F.R. § 180.940) or disqualified (defined 

at 2 C.F.R. § 180.935). 

(2) The Contractor must comply with 2 C.F.R. pt. 180, subpart C and 2 C.F.R. pt. 3000, subpart C, and must 

include a requirement to comply with these regulations in any lower tier covered transaction it enters into. 

(3) This certification, as laid out in Exhibit I, is a material representation of fact relied upon by the City. If it is 

later determined that the Contractor did not comply with 2 C.F.R. pt. 180, subpart C and 2 C.F.R. pt. 3000, 

subpart C, in addition to remedies available to the State of Florida or the City, the Federal Government may 

pursue available remedies, including but not limited to suspension and/or debarment. 

(4) The bidder or proposer agrees to comply with the requirements of 2 C.F.R. pt. 180, subpart C and 2 C.F.R. 

pt. 3000, subpart C while this offer is valid and throughout the period of any contract that may arise from this 

offer. The bidder or proposer further agrees to include a provision requiring such compliance in its lower tier 

covered transactions. 

 

 

 



Page 30 of 35 

 

Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment. 

 Contractors who apply or bid for an award of $100,000 or more shall file the required certification as laid out 

in Exhibit J. Each tier certifies to the tier above that it will not and has not used Federal appropriated funds to 

pay any person or organization for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, 

a Member of Congress, officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection 

with obtaining any Federal contract, grant, or any other award covered by 31 U.S.C. § 1352. Each tier shall also 

disclose any lobbying with non-Federal funds that takes place in connection with obtaining any Federal award. 

Such disclosures are forwarded from tier to tier up to the recipient who in turn will forward the certification(s) 

to the awarding agency. 

 

Procurement of Recovered materials.  

(i) In the performance of this contract, the Contractor shall make maximum use of products containing 

recovered materials that are EPA-designated items unless the product cannot be acquired— 

• Competitively within a timeframe providing for compliance with the contract performance schedule; 

• Meeting contract performance requirements; or 

• At a reasonable price. 

(ii)  Information about this requirement, along with the list of EPA-designated items, is available at EPA’s 

Comprehensive Procurement Guidelines web site, https://www.epa.gov/smm/comprehensive- procurement-

guideline-cpg-program. 

(iii) The Contractor also agrees to comply with all other applicable requirements of Section 6002 of the Solid 

Waste Disposal Act.” 

 

Access to Records.  

(1) The Contractor agrees to provide the State of Florida, the CITY, the DOJ Administrator, the Comptroller 

General of the United States, or any of their authorized representatives access to any books, documents, papers, 

and records of the Contractor which are directly pertinent to this contract for the purposes of making audits, 

examinations, excerpts, and transcriptions.  

(2) The Contractor agrees to permit any of the foregoing parties to reproduce by any means whatsoever or to 

copy excerpts and transcriptions as reasonably needed. 

(3) The Contractor agrees to provide the Federal Administrator or his authorized representatives access to 

construction or other work sites pertaining to the work being completed under the contract. 

(4) In compliance with the Disaster Recovery Act of 2018, the City and the Contractor acknowledge and agree 

that no language in this contract is intended to prohibit audits or internal reviews by the DOJ Administrator or 

the Comptroller General of the United States. 

 

DHS Seal, Logo, and Flags.  

The Contractor shall not use the DHS seal(s), logos, crests, or reproductions of flags or likenesses of DHS agency 

officials without specific DOJ pre-approval. 

 

Compliance with Federal Law, Regulations, and Executive Orders.  

By signing this agreement, the Contractor acknowledges that federal financial assistance may be used to fund 

all or a portion of the contract. The Contractor will comply with all applicable Federal law, regulations, executive 

orders, federal policies, procedures, and directives.  

 

No Obligation by Federal Government.  

The Federal Government is not a party to this contract and is not subject to any obligations or liabilities to the 

non-Federal entity, Contractor, or any other party pertaining to any matter resulting from the contract. 

 

Program Fraud and False or Fraudulent Statements or Related Acts. The Contractor acknowledges that 31 

U.S.C. Chap. 38 (Administrative Remedies for False Claims and Statements) applies to the Contractor’s actions 

pertaining to this contract. 



Page 31 of 35 

 

 

Affirmative Steps.  Required Affirmative Steps  

If the Contractor intends to subcontract any portion of the work covered by this Contract, the Contractor must 

take all necessary affirmative steps to assure that small and minority businesses, women’s business enterprises 

and labor surplus area firms are solicited and used when possible.  Affirmative steps must include: 

(1) Placing qualified small and minority businesses and women's business enterprises on solicitation lists; 

(2) Assuring that small and minority businesses, and women's business enterprises are solicited whenever 

they are potential sources; 

(3) Dividing total requirements, when economically feasible, into smaller tasks or quantities to permit 

maximum participation by small and minority businesses, and women's business enterprises; 

(4) Establishing delivery schedules, where the requirement permits, which encourage participation by small 

and minority businesses, and women's business enterprises; and 

(5) Using the services and assistance, as appropriate, of such organizations as the Small Business 

Administration and the Minority Business Development Agency of the Department of Commerce. 

 

Domestic preferences for procurements. 

(1) As appropriate and to the extent consistent with law, the Contractor should purchase, acquire, or use of goods, 

products, or materials produced in the United States (including but not limited to iron, aluminum, steel, cement, 

and other manufactured products).  

(2) For purposes of this section:  

(a) “Produced in the United States” means, for iron and steel products, that all manufacturing processes, from 

the initial melting stage through the application of coatings, occurred in the United States.  

(b) “Manufactured products” means items and construction materials composed in whole or in part of non-

ferrous metals such as aluminum; plastics and polymer-based products such as polyvinyl chloride pipe; 

aggregates such as concrete; glass, including optical fiber; and lumber. 

 

Prohibition on certain telecommunications and video surveillance services or equipment. 

(1) The Contractor is prohibited from obligating or expending loan or grant funds to:  

(a) Procure or obtain;  

(b) Extend or renew a contract to procure or obtain; or  

(c) Enter into a contract (or extend or renew a contract) to procure or obtain equipment, services, or systems that 

uses covered telecommunications equipment or services as a substantial or essential component of any system, 

or as critical technology as part of any system. As described in Public Law 115-232, section 889, covered 

telecommunications equipment is telecommunications equipment produced by Huawei Technologies Company 

or ZTE Corporation (or any subsidiary or affiliate of such entities).  

(i) For the purpose of public safety, security of government facilities, physical security surveillance of critical 

infrastructure, and other national security purposes, video surveillance and telecommunications equipment 

produced by Hytera Communications Corporation, Hangzhou Hikvision Digital Technology Company, or 

Dahua Technology Company (or any subsidiary or affiliate of such entities).  

(ii) Telecommunications or video surveillance services provided by such entities or using such equipment.  

(iii) Telecommunications or video surveillance equipment or services produced or provided by an entity that the 

Secretary of Defense, in consultation with the Director of the National Intelligence or the Director of the Federal 

Bureau of Investigation, reasonably believes to be an entity owned or controlled by, or otherwise connected to, 

the government of a covered foreign country.  

(2) In implementing the prohibition under Public Law 115-232, section 889, subsection (f), paragraph (1), the 

City shall prioritize available funding and technical support to assist affected businesses, institutions and 

organizations as is reasonably necessary for those affected entities to transition from covered communications 

equipment and services, to procure replacement equipment and services, and to ensure that communications 

service to users and customers is sustained. 

 

 



Page 32 of 35 

 

Compliance with the Davis-Bacon Act. 

a. All transactions regarding this contract shall be done in compliance with the Davis-Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. 

3141-3144, and 3146-3148) and the requirements of 29C.F.R. pt. 5 as may be applicable. The contractor shall 

comply with 40 U.S.C. 3141-3144, and 3146-3148 and the requirements of 29 C.F.R. pt. 5 as applicable. 

b. Contractors are required to pay wages to laborers and mechanics at a rate not less than the prevailing wages 

specified in a wage determination made by the Secretary of Labor. 

c. Additionally, contractors are required to pay wages not less than once a week. 

 

 

 

 

Current Davis Bacon wage determination for Heavy Construction shall be attached to each Work Order if 

Federal Funds are utilized.   

  



Page 33 of 35 

 

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY 

MATTERS - LOWER-TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS 

 

This document is a covered transaction for purposes of the debarment and suspension regulations implementing 

Executive Order 12549, Debarment and Suspension (1986) and Executive Order 12689, Debarment and 

Suspension (1989) at 2 C.F.R. Part 3000 (Non- procurement Debarment and Suspension).  As such, Contractor 

is required to confirm that none of the Contractor, its principals (defined at 2 C.F.R. § 180.995), or its affiliates 

(defined at 2 C.F.R. § 180.905) are excluded (defined at 2 C.F.R. § 180.940) or disqualified (defined at 2 C.F.R. 

§ 180.935).  

 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION 

 

1) By signing this Certification, the Contractor, also sometimes referred to herein as a prospective primary 

participant, is providing the certification set out below.  

 

2) The inability of a Contractor to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in 

denial of participation in the covered transaction.  The prospective participant shall submit an explanation of 

why it cannot provide the certification set out below.  The certification or explanation will be considered in 

connection with the City’s determination whether to enter into this transaction.  However, failure of the 

prospective primary participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from 

participation in this transaction. 

 

3) The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when 

the City determined to enter into this transaction.  If it is later determined that the prospective primary participant 

knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies available to the City, the City may 

terminate this transaction for cause or default. 

 

4) The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the City if at any time the 

prospective primary participant learns that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become 

erroneous by reason of changed circumstances. 

 

5) The terms covered transaction, debarred, suspended, ineligible, lower tier covered transaction, 

participant, person, primary covered transaction, principal, proposal and voluntarily excluded, as used in this 

certification, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and Coverage sections of the rules implementing 

Executive Order 12549. 

 

6) The prospective primary participant agrees by signing the Addendum that it shall not knowingly enter 

into any lower tier covered transactions with a person who is proposed for debarment under 48 CFR part 9, 

subpart 9.4, debarred, suspended, declared ineligible or voluntarily excluded from participation in this covered 

transaction.  If it is later determined that the prospective primary participant knowingly entered into such a 

transaction, in addition to other remedies available to the City, the City may terminate this transaction for cause 

or default. 

 

7) The prospective primary participant further agrees by signing this Addendum that it will include the 

clause titled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion - Lower 

Tier Covered Transaction,” as available through the United States Department of Homeland Security,  

 

 

 

 

 



Page 34 of 35 

 

  



Page 35 of 35 

 

  
Certification for Contracts, Grants, Loans, and Cooperative Agreements 

 

 



Page 1 of 36 

 

SYSTEM HARDENING AND RELIABILITY IMPROVEMENTS CONTRACT 

IFB # 23-116 

 

THIS CONTRACT for Electric Utility System Hardening and Reliability Improvements (“Contract”) is 

entered on ___________________, by and between the City of Lake Worth Beach, a Florida municipal 

corporation (“City”) and Michels Power, Inc. , a foreign for profit corporation authorized to do business in the 

State of Florida (“Contractor”) with its principal office located at 1775 E. Shady Lane, Neenah, WI  54956 .  

 

WHEREAS, the City issued Invitation for Bids # 23-116 for the construction of numerous hardening 

and reliability improvements to its electric utility transmission and distribution system (“IFB”); and  

 

WHEREAS, the Contractor submitted its bid in response to the IFB; and  

 

WHEREAS, the City desires to award the IFB to the Contractor on a non-exclusive basis for the 

construction of certain system hardening and reliability improvements and related services; and  

 

WHEREAS, this Contract may be funded, in whole or in part, by the Federal agencies and work 

performed pursuant to this Contract or Work Order funded, in whole or in part, by Federal agencies will comply 

with all applicable Federal laws, Federal regulations, executive orders, policies, procedures, directives and 

special clauses as provided for in Exhibit “D”; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City finds awarding the IFB to the Contractor as described herein serves a valid public 

purpose. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, the City hereby engages the services of the Contractor, and in consideration of the mutual 

promises herein contained, the sufficient of which is hereby acknowledged by both parties, the parties agree as 

follows: 

 

Article 1.   GENERAL INFORMATION. 

 

1.1   Scope of Services/Work.  The Contractor shall provide the services and work requested by the City and 

required under a City approved work order as described herein. The general nature of the services and work to 

be provided by the Contractor under this Contract are the construction of hardening and reliability improvements 

to the City’s electric utility transmission and distribution system. 

 

1.2   Contract Documents.  The Contract Documents are incorporated herein by reference as if set forth in 

this Contract and comprise the entire agreement between the City and Contractor. The Contract Documents 

consist of this Contract, the IFB (including, but not limited to, the documents issued with the IFB as the scope 

and specifications, the drawings, addenda, attachments and exhibits); and, any duly executed and issued work 

orders, change orders and Contract amendments relating thereto. If, during the performance of the work, the 

Contractor finds an ambiguity, error or discrepancy in the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall so notify 

the City, in writing, within five (5) business days and before proceeding shall obtain a written interpretation or 

clarification. Failure to obtain a written interpretation or clarification will be deemed a waiver of the ambiguity, 

error or discrepancy by the Contractor. The City will not be responsible for any oral instructions, clarifications, 

or other communications except those provided in writing in response to Contractor's request for clarification of 

an ambiguity, discrepancy or error. 

 

In resolving conflicts in any of the Contract Documents, the order of precedence shall be as follows: 

 

First Priority:  Fully executed Change Orders or Contract amendments 

Second Priority:  This Contract 



Page 2 of 36 

 

Third Priority:  Fully executed Work Orders 

Fourth Priority:  IFB 

 

1.3   Contract Administrator.  Whenever the term Contract Administrator is used herein, it is intended to 

mean the City Manager or designee, City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida. In the administration of this 

Contract, all parties may rely upon instructions or determinations made by the Contract Administrator except 

that all requests and/or determinations that result in an increase in change in time of completion and/or an 

increase in the contract price shall require a formal change order or contract amendment executed by the City 

Manager or the City Commission (depending on the authority set forth in the City’s Procurement Code). 

 

1.4   Work Orders.  This Contract does not guarantee that the City will utilize the Contractor in any 

capacity or for any services hereunder. When the City identifies a need for the Contractor’s services, the City 

will request a proposal from the Contractor to provide the services requested. The City will provide the 

Contractor with plans and/or specifications in order for the Contractor to develop its proposal. The Contractor’s 

proposal shall be submitted in the format of the sample work order, attached hereto and incorporated herein as 

Exhibit “A” along with a copy of the Contractor’s proposal and shall be based on the Hourly Billing Rates 

attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit “B”. Upon receipt of the Contractor’s proposed work order 

and proposal, the City shall decide in its sole discretion whether to award the work order to the Contractor. 

Depending on the lump sum amount of each work order, the work order may be awarded by the City Manager 

(if within City Manager’s purchasing authority (currently not to exceed $50,000)) or the City Commission. If 

the work order is approved by the City, the Contractor shall commence the identified services upon the City’s 

approval of the work order for the services and issuance of a notice to proceed. The City reserves the right to 

reject any and all proposals submitted by the Contractor. A City-approved work order shall include (by 

reference) the plans and/or specifications provided by the City to the Contractor. 

 

1.5 Purchase Orders. The City’s ordering mechanism for individual projects involving urgently required 

work and/or repairs in the amount of $15,000 or less under this Agreement will be by a City issued Purchase 

Order(s); however, the terms and conditions stated in a City Purchase Order(s) shall not apply; the terms and 

conditions set forth in this Agreement shall apply. CONTRACTOR shall not provide services under this 

Agreement without a City Purchase Order specifically for the stated services. CONTRACTOR shall provide 

the amount of requested services and price listed in each Purchase Order and not exceed amounts expressed on 

any Purchase Order. CONTRACTOR shall be liable for any excess services or costs not specifically stated in 

the Purchase Order(s). The City’s Fiscal Year ends on September 30th of each calendar year. The City cannot 

authorize the purchase of services beyond September 30th of each calendar year, prior to the annual budget 

being approved by the City Commission. Additionally, the City must have budgeted appropriate funds for the 

goods and services in any subsequent Fiscal Year. If the budget is approved for said goods and services, the 

City will issue a new Purchase Order(s) each Fiscal Year for required and approved services. Services provided 

pursuant to a City issued Purchase Order(s) under this Agreement shall not exceed $ 50,000 per year without 

additional City Commission approval. 

 

1.5   Term.  The term of this Contract shall be for three (3) years, with an option for two additional twelve 

(12) month renewals upon the mutual agreement of both parties.  The renewal term(s) may be approved by the 

City Manager on behalf of the CITY. Notwithstanding the foregoing, this Contract may be terminated as set 

forth in the Contract Documents.  

 

1.6   Hourly Billing Rates.  The Hourly Billing Rates set forth as Exhibit “B” shall remain fixed for the 

first three (3) years of this Contract. If due to applicable price escalations and/or reductions which impact the 

Contractor’s Hourly Billing Rates, the City and Contractor may execute a written amendment to this Contract 

to establish new Hourly Billing Rates for the renewal term(s). The City Manager may approve changes in the 

Hourly Billing Rates based on the recommendation of the City’s Electric Utility Director or designee. 

 



Page 3 of 36 

 

Article 2.   CONTRACT TIME. 

 

2.1 All services and work to be provided under a City-approved work order shall be provided in a timely 

manner as time is of the essence under this Contract.   

2.2 The Contractor shall not be considered in default by reason of a delay in timely performance if such 

delay and failure arises out of causes reasonably beyond the control of the Contractor or its subcontractors (if 

authorized) and without the Contractor’s or subcontractor’s fault or negligence. Upon the Contractor’s request, 

the City shall consider the facts and extent of any such delay and failure to timely perform the work for reason 

beyond the control of the Contractor and, if the Contractor’s delay and failure to timely perform was without it 

or its subcontractors’ fault or negligence, as reasonably determined by the City, the time of completion shall be 

extended for any reasonable time that the City may reasonably decide; subject to the City’s rights to change, 

terminate, or stop any or all of the work at any time. If the Contractor is delayed at any time in the progress of 

the work by any act or neglect of the City or its employees, by an approved written change in the scope from the 

original Contract Documents, or by any other contractor employed by the City, or by changes ordered by the 

City or in an unusual delay in transportation, unavoidable casualties, or any causes beyond the Contractor’s 

reasonable control, or by delay authorized by the City pending negotiation or by any cause which the City shall 

reasonably decide justifies the delay, then the time of completion shall be extended for any reasonable time the 

City may reasonably decide. The Contractor must provide the City with written notice of any delay claims and 

no extension of time shall be made for any delay occurring more than five (5) days before a claim therefore is 

made in writing to the City. In the case of continuing cause of delay, only one (1) claim is necessary. With the 

exception of an approved written change in the scope from the original Contract Documents, the Contractor’s 

sole remedy for a delay in completion of the work for any reason will be an extension of time to complete the 

work and Contractor specifically waives any right to seek any monetary damages or losses for a delay in 

completion of the work, including, but not limited to, waiving any right to seek monetary amounts for lost profits, 

additional overhead, salaries, lost productivity, efficiency losses, or any other alleged monetary losses which 

may be allegedly suffered by Contractor due to a delay in completion of the work. Provided, however, and 

subject to sovereign immunity under section 768.28, Florida Statutes, that this provision shall not preclude 

recovery or damages by the Contractor for hindrances or delays due solely to fraud, bad faith or active 

interference on the part of the City. Otherwise, the Contractor shall be entitled only to extensions of the Contract 

Times as the sole and exclusive remedy for such resulting delay, in accordance with and to the extent specifically 

provided above. 

Article 3.     PAYMENT PROCEDURES 

 

3.1 Generally.  The Contractor shall submit invoices on a monthly basis detailing all work accomplished in 

the prior month and all materials installed and used in the work pursuant to City approved work order. 

Contractor’s invoices shall be submitted to: 

 

  City of Lake Worth Beach 

  Attn:  Finance Department 

  7 N. Dixie Highway 

  Lake Worth Beach, FL  33460 

 

The City’s Contract Administrator or designee will review each invoice submitted by the Contractor. If 

approved, the City will make payment in accordance with the Contract Documents. If not approved, the City 

will notify the Contractor within twenty (20) business days of the City’s receipt and identify the action necessary 

to correct the invoice or a deficiency. 

 

3.2 Payment to the Contractor shall be made pursuant Florida’s Prompt Payment Act (for construction 

services), section 218.735, Florida Statutes, except as provided herein.  Specifically, the City will withhold five 



Page 4 of 36 

 

percent (5%) of each payment from a work order to the Contractor as retainage until fifty percent (95%) of the 

work order price is paid to the Contractor. Upon written request from the Contractor, the Contract Administrator 

may agree in writing with the Contractor to release a portion of the retainage upon payment of ninety-five percent 

(95%) of the work order price being paid to the Contractor (not to exceed fifty percent (50%) of the total 

retainage amount).   

 

3.3 Upon substantial completion, the Contractor and City shall establish a punch-list of items that must be 

completed by the Contractor prior to the Contractor submitting its final payment request. 

 

3.4 Final Payment.  Upon final completion and acceptance of the work in accordance with the Contract 

Documents (including all punch-list items) and final inspection by the appropriate agency with jurisdiction over 

the project (if other than the City), the Contractor shall submit a “final invoice” to the City. In order for both 

parties to close their books and records, the Contractor will clearly state “FINAL” on the Contractor’s final 

invoice. This certifies that all work under the applicable work order has been properly completed and all charges 

have been invoiced to the City.  Since this account will thereupon be closed, any and other further charges if not 

properly included in this final invoice are waived by the Contractor.  If the Contractor’s Final Invoice is approved 

as set forth above, the City shall pay the remainder of the work order price including any amount held as 

retainage.   

 

3.5 Notwithstanding the foregoing, the City shall not be required to pay or release any amount of retainage 

that is subject of a good faith dispute, the subject of a claim brought pursuant to section 255.05, Florida Statutes, 

or otherwise the subject of a claim or demand by the City. 

 

3.6 Final payment shall not become due until the Contractor and all of its subcontractors submit to the City 

releases and waivers of liens, and data establishing payment or satisfaction of obligations, such as receipts, 

claims, security interests or encumbrances arising out of the Contract Documents or otherwise related to the 

Program. 

 

3.7 Acceptance of final payment by the Contractor or a subcontractor shall constitute a waiver of 

claims by that payee except those previously made in writing and identified by that payee as unsettled at 

the time of final invoice. 

 

Article 4.   SUBCONTRACTS 

 

The Contractor represents that it has, or will secure at its own expense, all necessary personnel required to 

perform the services under this Contract. Such personnel shall not be employees of or have any contractual 

relationship with the City. All of the services required hereunder shall be performed by the Contractor or under 

its supervision, and all personnel engaged in performing the services shall be fully qualified and, if required, 

authorized or permitted under state and local law to perform such services. The Contractor shall furnish 

services in a manner consistent with industry standards and to a level of professional skill generally acceptable 

in the industry with regard to services of this kind. The Contractor shall comply with all applicable laws in the 

provision of services under this Contract. The Contractor agrees that it is fully responsible to the City for the 

acts and omissions of subcontractors and of persons either directly or indirectly employed by the Contractor. 

Nothing contained herein shall create any contractual relationship between any subcontractor and the City. All 

of the Contractor’s personnel (and all subcontractors) while on City premises, will comply with all City 

requirements governing conduct, safety, and security. The City reserves the right to request replacement of any 

of subcontractor or subcontractor’s personnel furnished by the Contractor upon written notice by City to 

Contractor of the cause for such replacement. All work performed by a subcontractor will be at cost to the City 

without any mark-up by the Contractor. All subcontractors must provide the same level and type of insurance 

as required of the Contractor under this Contract prior to commencing any services. The Contractor shall 

submit the subcontractors’ proof of insurance upon receipt of a notice to proceed. 



Page 5 of 36 

 

  

Article 5.   INDEMNITY AND INSURANCE. 

 

The Contractor agrees to assume liability for and indemnify, hold harmless, and defend the City, its 

commissioners, mayor, officers, employees, agents, and attorneys of, from, and against all liability and expense, 

including reasonable attorney’s fees, in connection with any and all claims, demands, damages, actions, causes 

of action, and suits in equity of whatever kind or nature, including claims for personal injury, property damage, 

equitable relief, or loss of use, to the extent caused by the negligence, recklessness, or intentionally wrongful 

conduct of the Contractor, its agents, officers, Contractors, subcontractors, employees, or anyone else utilized 

by the Contractor in the performance of this Contract. The Contractor’s liability hereunder shall include all 

attorney’s fees and costs incurred by the City in the enforcement of this indemnification provision. This includes 

claims made by the employees of the Contractor against the City and the Contractor hereby waives its 

entitlement, if any, to immunity under Section 440.11, Florida Statutes.  The obligations contained in this 

provision shall survive termination of this Contract and shall not be limited by the amount of any insurance 

required to be obtained or maintained under this Contract.  

 

Subject to the limitations set forth in this Section, Contractor shall assume control of the defense of any claim 

asserted by a third party against the City and, in connection with such defense, shall appoint lead counsel, in 

each case at the Contractor’s expense.  The City shall have the right, at its option, to participate in the defense 

of any third party claim, without relieving Contractor of any of its obligations hereunder. If the Contractor 

assumes control of the defense of any third party claim in accordance with this paragraph, the Contractor shall 

obtain the prior written consent of the City before entering into any settlement of such claim. Notwithstanding 

anything to the contrary in this Section, the Contractor shall not assume or maintain control of the defense of 

any third party claim, but shall pay the fees of counsel retained by the City and all expenses, including experts’ 

fees, if (i) an adverse determination with respect to the third party claim would, in the good faith judgment of 

the City, be detrimental in any material respect to the City’s reputation; (ii) the third party claim seeks an 

injunction or equitable relief against the City; or (iii) the Contractor has failed or is failing to prosecute or defend 

vigorously the third party claim.  Each party shall cooperate, and cause its agents to cooperate, in the defense or 

prosecution of any third party claim and shall furnish or cause to be furnished such records and information, and 

attend such conferences, discovery proceedings, hearings, trials, or appeals, as may be reasonably requested in 

connection therewith.   

 

It is the specific intent of the parties hereto that the foregoing indemnification complies with Section 725.06, 

Florida Statutes, as amended. The Contractor expressly agrees that it will not claim, and waives any claim, that 

this indemnification violates Section 725.06, Florida Statutes. Nothing contained in the foregoing 

indemnification or any other provision in the Contract Documents shall be construed as a waiver of any 

immunity or limitation of liability the City may have under the doctrine of sovereign immunity or Section 

768.28, Florida Statutes. 

 

INSURANCE:  Prior to commencing any work, the Contractor shall provide proof of insurance coverage as 

required in the IFB. All such insurance policies may not be modified or terminated without the express written 

authorization of the City. Failure to comply with the foregoing requirements shall not relieve the Contractor of 

its liability and obligations under this Contract. Each party will promptly notify the other of any complaint, 

claim, suit or cause of action threatened or commenced against it which arises out of or relates, in any manner, 

to the Contract Documents and/or performance of the work.  Each party agrees to cooperate with the other in 

any investigation either may conduct, the defense of any claim or suit in which either party is named, and shall 

do nothing to impair or invalidate any applicable insurance coverage.  

 

Article 6.       REIMBURSEMENT OF ENGINEER EXPENSES. 

 

Should the completion of a work order be delayed beyond the specified or adjusted time limit, Contractor shall 



Page 6 of 36 

 

reimburse the City for all expenses of engineering and inspection incurred by the City during the period between 

said specified or adjusted time and the actual date of final completion.  All such expenses for engineering and 

inspection incurred by the City will be charged to Contractor and be deducted from payments due Contractor as 

provided by this Contract. Said expenses shall be further defined as engineer charges associated with the 

construction contract administration, including resident project representative costs. All such expenses shall be 

separate from and in addition to any Liquidated Damages as provided for in an applicable Work Order. 

 

Article 7.       PUBLIC CONSTRUCTION BOND. 

 

If the City approves a work order which exceeds $200,000 in total construction cost, the Contractor must provide 

the City with a public construction bond in accordance with section 255.05, Florida Statutes. Said bond must be 

recorded in the Official Records in and for Palm Beach County and a copy of the recorded bond must be provided 

to the City prior to the Contractor providing any services under the work order. The City reserves the right to 

request a bond for any work order which is less than $200,000. The cost of the bond shall be a direct pass through 

cost to the City without any mark-up by the Contractor. 

 

The public construction bond shall be on forms attached hereto as Exhibit “C” or substantially similar as 

approved by the City. The bond shall be in an amount not less than the total Work Order price and shall 

incorporate by reference the terms of the Contract Documents in their entirety.  

 

To be acceptable to the City, a Surety Company shall comply with the following provisions: 

 

The Surety Company shall have a currently valid Certificate of Authority, issued by the State of Florida 

Department of Insurance, authorizing it to write surety bonds in the State of Florida. 

 

(a) The Surety Company shall have a currently valid Certificate of Authority issued by the United States 

Department of Treasury under Sections 9304 to 9308 of Title 31 of the United States Code. 

 

(b) The Surety Company shall be in full compliance with the provisions of the Florida Insurance Code. 

 

(c) The Surety Company shall have at least twice the minimum surplus and capital required by the Florida 

Insurance Code at the time the Contractor submits its Work Order for City approval. 

 

(d) The Surety Company shall have at least the ratings of A-/Class V in the latest issue of Best’s Key 

Rating Guide. 

 

(e) The Surety Company shall not expose itself to any loss on any one risk in an amount exceeding ten 

(10) percent of its surplus to policyholders, provided: 

 

1. Any risk or portion of any risk being reinsured shall be deducted in determining 

the limitation of the risk as prescribed in this section. These minimum 

requirements shall apply to the reinsuring carrier providing authorization or 

approval by the State of Florida, Department of Insurance to do business in this 

state have been met. 

 

2. In the case of the surety insurance company, in addition to the deduction for reinsurance, 

the amount assumed by any co-surety, the value of any security deposited, pledged or 

held subject to the consent of the surety and for the protection of the surety shall be 

deducted. 

 

Article 8.       TERMINATION. 



Page 7 of 36 

 

 

8.1 TERMINATION BY CITY:  The City may terminate any work order, the Contract and/or the Contract 

Documents if the Contractor is in default as follows: 

 

(a) refuses or fails to supply enough properly skilled workers or proper materials to timely and 

competently complete the work; 

(b) fails to make payment to subcontractors for materials or labor in accordance with the respective 

agreements between the Contractor and the subcontractors; 

(c) disregards or takes action contrary to any laws, ordinances, or rules, regulations or orders of a 

public authority having jurisdiction;  

(d) takes action, short of declaring bankruptcy, evidencing insolvency;  

 (e) fails to prosecute the services or work in a timely manner and reasonably be unable to reach 

 substantial completion and/or final completion within the timeframe(s) required;  

 (e) fails or refuses to provide and/or maintain insurance or proof of insurance as required by the 

 Contract Documents; or, 

(f) otherwise is in breach of a provision of the Contract Documents. 

 

When any of the above reasons exist, the City, may without prejudice to any other rights or remedies of the City 

and after giving the Contractor and the Contractor’s surety (if applicable), written notice and five (5) days to 

cure, terminate the work order, Contract and/or Contract Documents and may: 

 

(a) take possession of the site and of all materials, equipment, tools, and construction equipment 

and machinery thereon owned by or paid for by the City; and, 

(b) finish the work by whatever reasonable method the City may deem expedient.  

 

The Contractor and its surety (if any) shall be liable for any damage to the City, including additional attorney 

and engineering/architectural fees, resulting from the Contractor’s termination under this provision by the City, 

including but not limited to, and any increased costs incurred by the City in completing the work. 

 

When the City terminates the Contract for one of the reasons stated above, the Contractor shall not be entitled 

to receive further payment, if any, until the work is finished. 

 

Should it be determined by a mediator or a court of competent jurisdiction that the City wrongfully terminated 

the Contract, then the Contractor agrees to treat such termination as a termination for convenience. 

 

8.2 TERMINATION BY THE CITY FOR CONVENIENCE 

 

The City may, at any time, terminate the Contract and Contract Documents for the City’s convenience and 

without cause. Upon receipt of written notice from the City of such termination for the City’s convenience, the 

Contractor shall: 

 

 (a) cease operations as directed by the City in the notice; 

 (b) take actions necessary, or that the City may direct, for the protection and preservation 

of the work; and 

 (c) except for work directed to be performed prior to the effective date of termination stated 

in the notice, terminate all existing subcontracts and purchase orders and enter into no 

further subcontracts and purchase orders. 



Page 8 of 36 

 

 

In case of such termination for the City’s convenience, the Contractor shall be entitled to receive payment for 

work executed, and costs incurred by reason of such termination including termination payments to 

subcontractors and demobilization costs.   

 

Article 9. TAXES AND DIRECT PURCHASES. 

 

9.1       TAXES:  The City is exempt from payment of Florida State Sales and Use Tax. The Contractor is not 

authorized to use the City’s Tax Exemption Number unless approved in writing. 

 

9.2 DIRECT PURCHASES:  For certain projects, the City may seek to make direct purchases of equipment 

or materials to be used by the Contractor. Pursuant to Section 212.08(6), Florida Statutes, and the Fla. Admin. 

Code Ann. R. 12A-1.094 and 12A-1.038, the Parties agree to the following procedure regarding the City’s direct-

purchase from vendors of certain equipment and materials to be used in specific projects: 
 

9.2.1 The City reserves the right, at the City’s option, to direct purchase equipment and materials 

involved in a specific project, including subcontracts, if any so as to save the sales tax which would 

otherwise have been due with regard to the same. The Contractor and its subcontractors shall comply 

with the City’s direct purchase procedures, including but not limited to those listed below. 
 

9.2.2 As specifically set forth in a City issued work order, within 30 days (or other time as 

specified in the work order), the Contractor will present a list of direct purchase equipment for the 

City’s consideration which will include the recommended vendors’ name; the price quotes from all 

vendors provided to the Contractor; and, any terms and conditions the Contractor has negotiated with 

the recommended vendors. The City will then inform the Contractor as to which equipment it will 

direct purchase. In the event the City fails to exercise its option to direct purchase equipment and 

identify which equipment is to be purchased by the City within thirty (30) calendar days of receipt of 

the list from the Contractor, the City shall waive its right to direct purchase any and all equipment to 

be used in completion of the work under the applicable work order. 
 

9.2.3 The Contractor is responsible for selecting each direct purchase vendor, subject to City 

approval. The Contractor is responsible for specifications, equipment receipt, inspecting shipments, 

and assuring that the equipment is in accordance with the work order and the Contractor’s 

specifications. The Contractor is also responsible for providing the City with enough advance notice 

of when the direct purchase equipment will need to be ordered and delivered. In absence of the 

Contractor’s receipt of a written notice of City’s disapproval of a vendor within thirty (30) calendar 

days of City’s receipt of the vendor/material list referenced in 9.2.2, the City shall be deemed to have 

waived any and all objections thereto. 
 

9.2.4 The Contractor shall retain all responsibility for installing all equipment relating to the work 

and for maintaining the construction schedule so long as the City timely orders and pays for the correct 

direct purchase equipment. The City’s direct purchase mechanism to effectuate tax savings in no way 

effects the obligation of the Contractor to meet all of the terms and conditions and all provisions and 

technical specifications of the Contract Documents. The Contractor shall be responsible for insuring 

all equipment once the equipment is in its care, custody and control, regardless of whether directly 

purchased by City. 
 

9.2.5 The City will issue a direct purchase order to the vendor of the direct purchase equipment at 

the price proposed in the Contractor’s or its subcontractor’s bid, less sales tax. The City will promptly 

send a copy of the issued purchaser order to the Contractor. 
 

9.2.6 It will be the Contractor’s primary responsibility to properly expedite and follow up on direct 



Page 9 of 36 

 

purchase orders, thereby assuring delivery of the equipment as ordered and at the time and place needed 

by the Contractor to complete the work in accordance with the work order and construction schedule. 

To the extent required by the Contractor, the City shall cooperate with all requests of the Contractor 

related to the expedition of and follow up on direct purchase orders. 
 

9.2.7 The Contractor shall take delivery, unload, and install the equipment purchased on the direct 

purchase order in accordance with the work order and the Contract Documents with the vendor to 

repair, replace, and make good any defect without cost to the City, until such time as the work has been 

completed and accepted by City in accordance with the Contract Documents. The City, with assistance 

from the Contractor, will be responsible for undertaking and completing any returns of direct purchase 

equipment as requested by the Contractor and working with the vendor to effectuate any credits or 

warranties for the returned equipment (if applicable). Any returns not replaced shall be credited to City 

and acknowledged by a supplement to the direct purchase order and, if applicable, amendment to the 

Contract Sum. The Contractor shall not be responsible for warranting the direct purchase equipment to 

the City; however, the Contractor shall be responsible for facilitating the vendor’s warranty of the 

direct purchase equipment and the Contractor shall be responsible for warranting the work to install 

and/or incorporate the equipment. The Contractor shall maintain records of all direct purchases 

received and incorporated into the work and provide the City with a monthly accounting until all direct 

purchase items that are received and accepted for inclusion in the specific project. 
 

9.2.8 When delivery of a direct purchase order is complete, or a payment is to be made on a partial 

shipment, the Contractor will timely submit to City the documentation supporting the equipment 

received. Invoices for direct purchase orders will be sent by the direct purchase vendor directly to 

City’s Finance Department, with all such invoices addressed to and in the name of the City. The City’s 

Finance Department will forward invoices to the City’s Contract Administrator. The City’s Contract 

Administrator will forward the invoices to the Contractor to verify delivery and sign the invoice and 

associated documentation supporting the amount of the payment. The City will make timely payment 

to all vendors in compliance with each vendor’s payment procedures. The City will take title to all 

equipment ordered through direct purchase upon or at the time of purchase. The Contractor will assist 

City in assuring prompt payment by supplying the vendor’s FEI numbers, addresses, phone numbers, 

etc. All payments will be made in accordance with the Florida Prompt Payment Act. 

 

Article 10. CONTRACTOR'S REPRESENTATIONS AND AGREEMENTS. 

 

In order to induce the City to enter into this Contract, the Contractor makes the following representations: 

 

10.1 Contractor has or will familiarize itself with the nature and extent of the Contract Documents, work, 

site, locality, and all local conditions and laws and regulations that in any manner may affect cost, progress, 

performance or furnishing of the work prior to commencing the work under an applicable Work Order. All work 

shall be performed consistent with all applicable laws and regulations. 

 

10.2 Contractor agrees to be solely responsible for compliance with all applicable environmental regulations, 

for any liability arising from non-compliance with the regulations and to reimburse the City for any loss incurred 

in connection therewith. This compliance provision specifically includes the Contractor’s compliance with all 

applicable standards, orders or regulations including, without limitation, those issued pursuant to the Clean Air 

Act (42 U.S.C. 7401-7671q) and the Federal Water Pollution Control Act as amended (33 U.S.C. 1251-1387). 

 

10.3 Contractor agrees to utilize the U.S. Department of Homeland Security’s E-Verify System to verify the 

employment eligibility of all new employees hired by the Contractor during the term of this Contract. 

 



Page 10 of 36 

 

10.4 The Contractor represents and warrants that it has and will continue to maintain all licenses and 

approvals required to conduct its business and provide the work required under the Contract Documents.  Proof 

of such licenses and approvals shall be submitted to the City upon request. 

 

Article 11. INFRINGEMENT INDEMNITY.    

 

11.1 The Contractor will defend or settle at its expense a claim or suit brought by a third party against the 

City arising out of a claim asserting that the services, work, repair, materials or other deliverables 

(“deliverables” hereafter) provided by the Contractor under the Contract Documents (if any) infringes any U.S. 

copyright or any U.S. patent or misappropriates a trade secret. The Contractor will indemnify and hold 

harmless the City against and from damages, costs, and attorneys’ fees, if any and at all levels of trial and 

appeal or mediation or arbitration, finally awarded in such suit or the amount of the settlement thereof; 

provided that (i) the Contractor is promptly notified in writing of such claim or suit, (ii) the Contractor will 

have the sole control of the defense and settlement thereof, and (iii) City furnishes the Contractor, on 

reasonable request, information available to City for such defense. The City will not admit any such claim 

without prior consent of the Contractor. 

a. In the event of a claim of infringement, the Contractor shall, at its option: 

1. procure for City the right to continue using the deliverables provided under the 

Contract Documents; or 

2. replace or modify the deliverables so that the same becomes non-infringing but 

substantially equivalent in functionality and performance. 

3. If neither of the above actions is reasonably feasible, the Contractor will refund to 

City the fee actually paid by City under the Contract Documents (as amortized on a straight-

line basis over the time in which the City was able to use the deliverables. 

b. The Contractor will have no obligation under this section for infringement if and to the extent 

that such claim arises from: 

1. modification of the deliverables other than by the Contractor or by its 

recommendation; or 

2. combination of the deliverables with products other than those supplied by the 

Contractor;  

and, 

3. the alleged infringement or misappropriation relates to such modification or 

combination. 

c. The Contractor will also not have any indemnification obligation with respect to a claim: (i) 

if it has provided City with reasonable changes that would have avoided the problem and the reasonable 

changes are not fully implemented by City within a reasonable time or (ii) arising out use of the deliverables 

not in accordance with the Contract Documents. 

d. The Contractor’s obligation to indemnify, defend and hold harmless shall remain in effect and 

shall be binding upon the Contractor whether such injury or damage shall accrue, or may be discovered, before 

or after termination or expiration of the Contract Documents. 

 

Article 12. MISCELLANEOUS. 

 



Page 11 of 36 

 

12.1 The City and Contractor each binds itself, its partners, its successors, assigns and legal representatives 

to the other party hereto, its partners, successors, assigns and legal representatives in respect of all covenants, 

agreements and obligations contained in the Contract Documents. 

 

12.2 Additional work and/or changes to a work order’s price and/or time, is subject to the City’s prior written 

approval. Only the City Manager and City Commission (based on the procurement code) have the authority to 

approve such additional work and changes.  

 

12.3 The headings contained in this Contract are inserted for convenience of reference only and shall not be 

a part or control or affect the meaning hereof.  

 

12.4 This Contract may be executed in two or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed to be an 

original, but all of which shall be deemed to be an original, but each of which together shall constitute one and 

the same instrument. 

 

12.5 This Contract (together with the other Contract Documents) supersedes any and all prior negotiations 

and oral or written agreements heretofore made relating to the subject matter hereof and, except for written 

agreements, if any, executed and delivered simultaneously with or subsequent to the date of this Contract, 

constitutes the entire agreement of the parties relating to the subject matter hereof. This Contract may not be 

altered or amended except by a writing signed by the parties hereto. No waiver of any of the terms or conditions 

of this Contract shall be effective unless in writing and executed by the party to be changed therewith. No waiver 

of any condition or of the breach of any term, covenant, representation, warranty or other provision hereof shall 

be deemed to be construed as a further or continuing waiver of any such condition or breach or a waiver of any 

other condition or of any breach of any other term, covenant, representation, warranty or other provision 

contained in this Contract. 

 

12.6   This Contract shall be binding upon, and shall inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their 

respective successors and assigns. 

 

12.7    This Contract shall be governed by and construed and interpreted in accordance with the laws of the 

State of Florida. Each of the parties hereto (a) irrevocably submit itself to the exclusive jurisdiction of the 

Fifteenth Judicial Circuit Court in and for Palm Beach County, Florida for state actions and jurisdiction of the 

United States District Court for the Southern District of Florida, Palm Beach Division, for the purposes of any 

suit, action or other proceeding arising out of, or relating to, this Contract; (b) waives and agrees not to assert 

against any party hereto, by way of motion, as a defense of otherwise, in any suit, action or other proceeding, 

any claim that it is not personally subject to the jurisdiction of the above-named courts for any reason 

whatsoever; and (c) to the extent permitted by applicable law, any claim that such suit, action or proceeding by 

any part hereto is brought in an inconvenient forum or that the venue of such suit, action or proceeding is 

improper or that this Contract or the subject matter hereof may not be enforced in or by such courts. 

 

12.8   This Contract shall create no rights or claims whatsoever in any third party. 

 

12.9   If any one or more of the provisions of the Contract shall be held to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable in 

any respect, the validity, legality and enforceability of the remaining provisions hereof shall not in any way be 

affected or impaired thereby.    

 

12.10   The effective date of this Contract is the date the Contract is approved by the City Commission. 

 

12.11 Public Records:  The Contractor shall comply with Florida’s Public Records Act, Chapter 119, 

 Florida Statutes, and, if determined to be acting on behalf of the City as provided under section 

 119.011(2), Florida Statutes, specifically agrees to: 



Page 12 of 36 

 

 

(a) Keep and maintain public records required by the City to perform the service. 

 

(b) Upon request from the City’s custodian of public records or designee, provide the City with a 

copy of the requested records or allow the records to be inspected or copied within a reasonable time at 

a cost that does not exceed the cost provided in Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, or as otherwise provided 

by law. 

 

(c) Ensure that public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records 

disclosure requirements are not disclosed except as authorized by law for the duration of this Contract 

and following completion of this Contract if the Contractor does not transfer the records to the City. 

 

(d) Upon completion of this Contract, transfer, at no cost, to the City all public records in possession 

of the Contractor or keep and maintain public records required by the City to perform the service. If the 

Contractor transfers all public records to the City upon completion of the Contract, the Contractor shall 

destroy any duplicate public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records 

disclosure requirements. If the Contractor keeps and maintains public records upon completion of the 

Contract, the Contractor shall meet all applicable requirements for retaining public records. All records 

stored electronically must be provided to the City, upon request from the City’s custodian of public 

records or designee, in a format that is compatible with the information technology systems of the City.  

 

IF THE CONTRACTOR HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE APPLICATION 

OF CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA STATUTES, TO THE CONTRACTOR’S DUTY 

TO PROVIDE PUBLIC RECORDS RELATING TO THIS CONTRACT, 

CONTACT THE CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC RECORDS OR DESIGNEE AT: 

ATTENTION CITY CLERK, (561) 586-1660 OR 

CITYCLERK@LAKEWORTHBEACHFL.GOV OR 7 NORTH DIXIE 

HIGHWAY, LAKE WORTH BEACH, FL  33460. 
 

12.12 This Contract shall not be construed more strongly against either party regardless of who was more 

responsible for its preparation. 

 

12.13 In accordance with Palm Beach County ordinance number 2011-009, the Contractor acknowledges that 

this Contract may be subject to investigation and/or audit by the Palm Beach County Inspector General.  The 

Contractor has reviewed Palm Beach County ordinance number 2011-009 and is aware of its rights and/or 

obligations under such ordinance. 

 

12.14 If any legal action or other proceeding is brought for the enforcement of this Contract or the Contract 

Documents, or because of an alleged dispute, breach, default or misrepresentation in connection with any 

provisions of this Contract or the Contract Documents, each party shall be responsible for their own attorney’s 

fees at all levels.  EACH PARTY ALSO AGREES AND VOLUNTARILY WAIVES ANY RIGHT TO A JURY 

TRIAL ARISING OUT OF ALLEGED DISPUTE, BREACH, DEFAULT, MISREPRESENTATION OR ANY 

OTHER CLAIM IN CONNECTION WITH OR ARISING FROM ANY PROVISION OF THIS CONTRACT 

OR THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 

 

12.15 Each of the parties agrees to perform its obligations under the Contract Documents in conformance with 

all laws, regulations and administrative instructions that relate to the parties’ performance of the work and under 

the Contract Documents. 

mailto:CITYCLERK@LAKEWORTHBEACHFL.


Page 13 of 36 

 

 

12.16 All documents, including but not limited to drawings, specifications, plans, reports, other items and data 

or programs stored in hard-copy, electronically or otherwise (collectively referred to as “Documents” hereafter), 

prepared by the Contractor or its subcontractors under this Contract shall be considered a “Work for Hire” and 

the exclusive property of the City. To the extent such Documents may not be deemed a “Work for Hire” under 

applicable law, Contractor and Contractor’s Subcontractors will assign to the City all right, title and interest in 

and to Contractor and/or Contractor’s Subcontractors’ copyright(s) for such Documents. Contractor shall 

execute and deliver to City such instruments of transfer and take such other action that City may reasonable 

request, including, without limitation, executing and filing, at City’s expense, copyright applications, 

assignments and other documents required for the protection of City’s right to such Documents.  The Contractor 

shall retain copies of the Documents for a period of three (3) years from the date of completion of the Program. 

The City grants to the Contractor and Contractor’s subcontractors the right and/or limited license to use a portion 

of the Documents prepared by the Contractor or the Contractor’s subcontractors in future projects of the 

Contractor or Contractor’s subcontractors with said right and/or limited license to use a portion at Contractor’s 

or Contractor’s subcontractor’s own risk and without any liability to City. Any modifications made by the City 

to any of the Contractor’s Documents, or any use, partial use or reuse of the Documents without written 

authorization or adaptation by the Contractor will be at the City’s sole risk and without liability to the Contractor.    

 

12.17 Any provision of this Contract which is of a continuing nature or imposes an obligation which extends 

beyond the term of this Contract shall survive its expiration or earlier termination.  

 

12.18 Any notice required to be given under the Contract Documents shall be sent by certified mail (return 

receipt requested) or by nationally recognized overnight courier as follows to the City: 

 

 City of Lake Worth Beach 

 Attn:  City Manager 

 7 N. Dixie Highway 

 Lake Worth Beach, FL  33460 

 

 and to the Contractor as follows: 

  

 Michels Power, Inc. 

 1775 E. Shady Lane 

 Neenah, WI   54956 

 Attn: Mark Harasha, President 

   

 Either party may amend this provision by written notice to the other party. 

 

12.19 The Contractor represents that it presently has no interest and shall acquire no interest, either direct or 

indirect, which would conflict in any manner with the performance of services required hereunder, as provided 

for in Section 112.311, Florida Statutes. The Contractor further represents that no person having any such 

conflicting interest shall be employed for said performance. The Contractor shall promptly notify the City’s 

representative, in writing, of all potential conflicts of interest for any prospective business association, interest 

or other circumstance which may influence or appear to influence the Contractor’s judgment or quality of 

services being provided hereunder. Such written notification shall identify the prospective business association, 

interest or circumstance, the nature of work that the Contractor may undertake and request an opinion of the City 

as to whether the association, interest or circumstance would, in the opinion of the City, constitute a conflict of 

interest if entered into by the Contractor. The City agrees to notify the Contractor of its opinion within thirty 

(30) days of receipt of notification by the Contractor. If, in the opinion of the City, the prospective business 

association, interest or circumstance would not constitute a conflict of interest by the Contractor, the City shall 



Page 14 of 36 

 

so state in the notification and the Contractor shall, at its option, enter into said association, interest or 

circumstance and it shall be deemed not in conflict of interest with respect to services provided to the City by 

the Contractor under the terms of this Contract. 

 

12.20  The Contractor warrants and represents that all of its employees are treated equally during employment 

without regard to race, color, religion, disability, sex, age, national origin, ancestry, political affiliation, marital 

status, handicap, or sexual orientation. Further, Contractor shall not discriminate or permit discrimination against 

any employee or an applicant for employment on the basis of race, color, sex, religion, political affiliation, 

natural origin, ancestry, marital status, sexual orientation or handicap.   

 

12.21  This Contract is not intended to be and shall not be construed as an exclusive agreement, and the City 

may employ additional or other contractors to perform services contemplated by this Contract without liability 

to the City. 

 

12.22 PUBLIC ENTITY CRIMES. The Contractor acknowledges and agrees that a person or affiliate who has 

been placed on the convicted vendor list following a conviction for a public entity crime may not submit a bid, 

proposal, or reply on a contract to provide any goods or services to a public entity; may not submit a bid, 

proposal, or reply on a contract with a public entity for the construction or repair of a public building or public 

work; may not submit bids, proposals, or replies on leases of real property to a public entity; may not be awarded 

or perform work as a contractor, supplier or sub-contractor under a contract with any public entity; and may not 

transact business with any public entity in excess of the threshold amount provided in Section 287.017, Florida 

Statutes, for CATEGORY TWO for a period of 36 months following the date of being placed on the convicted 

vendor list. The Contractor will promptly advise the City if it becomes aware of any violation of this statute. 

 

12.21 PURSUANT TO SECTION 558.005, FLORIDA STATUTES, ANY CLAIMS FOR 

CONSTRUCTION DEFECTS ARE NOT SUBJECT TO THE NOTICE AND CURE PROVISIONS OF 

CHAPTER 558, FLORIDA STATUTES.  

 

12.22 The Contract shall be responsible for initiating, maintaining and supervising all safety precautions and 

programs in connection with the performance of all services and work. This includes being responsible for all 

precautions for safety of, and reasonable protection to prevent damage, injury or loss to employees performing 

the services and work and other persons who may be affected thereby; the work, materials and equipment 

incorporated therein; and other property, equipment or materials at the site or adjacent thereto including, 

without limitation, trees, shrubs, lawns, sidewalks, pavements, roadways or structures and utilities not 

designated for removal, relocation or replacement in the course of the work. The Contractor shall comply with 

and give all notices required by applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, rules and regulations bearing on safety 

of persons or property, or their protection from damage, injury or loss. The Contractor shall implement, erect 

and maintain reasonable safeguards for safety and protection, including posting danger signs and other 

warnings against hazards reasonably related to the work or which could arise therefrom. The Contractor shall 

promptly remedy damage and loss (other than covered by applicable insurance) caused in whole or in part by 

the Contractor or anyone directly or indirectly employed by or utilized by the Contractor in the performance 

of the work, which is not attributable to the City’s negligence. 

 

12.23 The Contractor agrees that, in all matters relating to this Contract, it will be acting as an independent 

contractor with exclusive control of the manner and means of performing the work, its obligations and tasks in 

accordance with the requirements of this Contract and the Contract Documents. The Contractor has no 

authority to act or make any agreements or representations on behalf of the City. This Contract is not intended, 

and shall not be construed to create, between the City and the Contractor, the relationship of principal and 

agent, joint-venturers, co-partners or any other such relationship, the existence of which is hereby expressly 

denied. No employee or agent of Contractor shall be, or shall be deemed to be, an employee or agent of City. 

 



Page 15 of 36 

Article 13. SCRUTINIZED COMPANIES 

13.1 CONTRACTOR certifies that it and its subcontractors are not on the Scrutinized Companies that 

Boycott Israel List and are not engaged in the boycott of Israel.  Pursuant to section 287.135, Florida Statutes, 

the CITY may immediately terminate this Agreement at its sole option if the CONTRACTOR or any of its 

subcontractors are found to have submitted a false certification; or if the CONTRACTOR or any of its 

subcontractors, are placed on the Scrutinized Companies that Boycott Israel List or is engaged in the boycott of 

Israel during the term of this Agreement. 

13.2 If this Agreement is for one million dollars or more, the CONTRACTOR certifies that it and its 

subcontractors are also not on the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in Sudan List, Scrutinized Companies 

with Activities in the Iran Petroleum Energy Sector List, or engaged in business operations in Cuba or Syria as 

identified in Section 287.135, Florida Statutes.  Pursuant to Section 287.135, the CITY may immediately 

terminate this Agreement at its sole option if the CONTRACTOR, or any of its subcontractors are found to have 

submitted a false certification; or if the CONTRACTOR or any of its subcontractors are placed on the Scrutinized 

Companies with Activities in Sudan List, or Scrutinized Companies with Activities in the Iran Petroleum Energy 

Sector List, or are or have been engaged with business operations in Cuba or Syria during the term of this 

Agreement. 

13.3 The CONTRACTOR agrees to observe the above requirements for applicable subcontracts entered into 

for the performance of work under this Agreement. 

13.4 The CONTRACTOR agrees that the certifications in this section shall be effective and relied upon by 

the CITY for the term of this Agreement, including any and all renewals. 

13.5 The CONTRACTOR agrees that if it or any of its subcontractors’ status changes in regards to any 

certification herein, the CONTRACTOR shall immediately notify the CITY of the same. 

13.6 As provided in Subsection 287.135(8), Florida Statutes, if federal law ceases to authorize the above-

stated contracting prohibitions then they shall become inoperative. 

Article 14. E-VERIFY 

Pursuant to Section 448.095(2), Florida Statutes, the CONTRACTOR shall: 

14.1. Register with and use the E-Verify system to verify the work authorization status of all newly hired 

employees and require all subcontractors (providing services or receiving funding under this Agreement) to 

register with and use the E-Verify system to verify the work authorization status of all the subcontractors’ newly 

hired employees; 

14.2. Secure an affidavit from all subcontractors (providing services or receiving funding under this 

Agreement) stating that the subcontractor does not employ, Agreement with, or subcontract with an 

“unauthorized alien” as defined in Section 448.095(1)(k), Florida Statutes; 

14.3. Maintain copies of all subcontractor affidavits for the duration of this Agreement and provide the same 

to the CITY upon request; 

14.4 Comply fully, and ensure all of its subcontractors comply fully, with Section 448.095, Florida Statutes; 

14.5. Be aware that a violation of Section 448.09, Florida Statutes (Unauthorized aliens; employment 

prohibited) shall be grounds for termination of this Agreement; and, 

14.6. Be aware that if the CITY terminates this Agreement under Section 448.095(2)(c), Florida Statutes, 

CONTRACTOR may not be awarded a Agreement for at least 1 year after the date on which the Agreement is 

terminated and will be liable for any additional costs incurred by the CITY as a result of the termination of the 

Agreement.   

Remainder of this page intentionally left blank 

Signature page follows 





Page 17 of 36 

EXHIBIT “A” 

SAMPLE WORK ORDER 

CONTRACT FOR SYSTEM HARDENING AND RELIABILITY IMPROVEMENTS 

WORK ORDER NO._____ 

THIS WORK ORDER for System Hardening and Reliability Improvements (“Work Order” hereafter) 

is made on the ____ ___________________________, between the City of Lake Worth Beach, a Florida 

municipal corporation located at 7 North Dixie Highway, Lake Worth Beach, Florida 33460 (“City” hereafter) 

and  Michels Power, Inc., a foreign for profit corporation authorized to do business in State of Florida 

(“Contractor” hereafter). 

1.0 Project Description: 

The City desires the Contractor to provide all goods, services, materials and equipment as identified 

herein related to the System Hardening and Reliability Improvements project generally described as:  

__________________________________________________________ (the “Project”). The Project is 

more specifically described in the plans prepared by ______________________, dated ____________, 

and which are incorporated herein by reference.  

2.0 Scope 

Under this Work Order, the Contractor will provide the City of Lake Worth Beach with construction 

services for the Project as specified in the Contractor’s proposal attached hereto and incorporated 

herein as Exhibit “1”.    

3.0 Schedule and Liquidated Damages 

Substantial completion of all services and work under this Work Order shall be within ____   calendar 

days from the Effective Date of this Work Order. Final completion of all services and work (and all 

punch-list items (if any)) under this Work Order shall be within ____ calendar days from the Effective 

Date of this Work Order. The Effective Date of this Work Order is the date following the parties’ 

execution of this Work Order and the City’s delivery of a Notice to Proceed to the Contractor via e-mail, 

facsimile or other form of delivery as documented by the City. Substantial completion occurs when the 

services and work has progressed to the point where, in the opinion of the City, the work is sufficiently 

complete in accordance with the Contract Documents and this Work Order, so that the Project can be 

utilized for the purposes for which it is intended. Final completion occurs when all services and work 

(including punch-list items) has been completed and the project becomes fully operational and accepted 

by the City. 

Liquidated Damages. The City and Contractor recognize that time is of the essence under this 

Work Order and the Contract Documents, and that the City will suffer financial loss if the services 

and work described in this Work Order and the Contract Documents are not completed within 

the times specified in this Work Order. The City and Contractor recognize, agree and 

acknowledge that it would be impractical and extremely difficult to ascertain and fix the actual 

damages that the City would suffer in the event Contractor neglects, refuses, or otherwise fails to 

complete the services and work within the time specified. Accordingly, instead of requiring any 

such proof, the City and Contractor agree that as liquidated damages for delay (but not as a 

penalty) Contractor shall pay the City________ hundred dollars ($_________.00) for each day 

that expires after the time specified in this Work Order.   



Page 18 of 36 

4.0 Compensation and Direct Purchases 

This Work Order is issued for a lump sum, not to exceed amount of $______________________ 

(_____________________). The attached proposal identifies all costs and expenses included in the 

lump sum, not to exceed amount. 

The following Direct Purchases are to be made under this Work Order by the City: ________________ 

__________________________________________________________________________________

_________________________________________________________________________________. 

5.0 Project Manager 

The Project Manager for the Contractor is __________________________, 

phone:___________________; email: ____________________; and, the Project Manager for the City 

is ______________________________, phone:_________________________________; 

email:_______________________. 

6.0 Progress Meetings 

The Contractor shall schedule periodic progress review meetings with the City Project Manager as 

necessary but every 30 days as a minimum. 

7.0 Contractor’s Representations 

In order to induce the City to enter into this Work Order, the Contractor makes the following 

representations: 

7.1 Contractor has familiarized itself with the nature and extent of the Contract Documents 

including this Work Order, work, site, locality, and all local conditions and laws and regulations that in 

any manner may affect cost, progress, performance or furnishing of the work. 

7.2 Contractor has obtained at his/her own expense and carefully studied, or assumes responsibility 

for obtaining and carefully studying, soil investigations, explorations, and test reports which pertain to 

the subsurface conditions at or contiguous to the site or otherwise may affect the cost, progress, 

performance or furnishing of the work as Contractor considers necessary for the performance or 

furnishing of the work at the stated work order price within the Work Order stated time and in 

accordance with the other terms and conditions of the Contract Documents, including specifically the 

provisions of the IFB; and no additional examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, reports, studies 

or similar information or data are or is deemed necessary by Contractor for such purposes. 

7.3 Contractor has reviewed and checked all information and data shown or indicated on the 

Contract Documents with respect to existing Underground Facilities at or contiguous to the site and 

assumes responsibility for the accurate location of said Underground Facilities. No additional 

examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, reports, studies or similar information or data in respect 

of said Underground Facilities are or is deemed necessary by the Contractor in order to perform and 

furnish the work under this Work Order price, within the Work Order time and in accordance with the 

other terms and conditions of the Contract Documents. 

7.4 Contractor has correlated the results of all such observations, examinations, investigations, 



Page 19 of 36 

explorations, tests, reports and studies with the terms and conditions of the Contract Documents. 

7.5 Contractor has given the City’s Contract Administrator written notice of all conflicts, errors or 

discrepancies that he or she has discovered in the Contract Documents and the written resolution thereof 

by City or its designee is acceptable to the Contractor. 

8.0 Warranty.  The Contractor warrants and guarantees to the City that all services and work provided 

under this Work Order will be in accordance with this Work Order and the other Contract Documents. 

The Contractor warrants that (a) all materials and parts supplied under this Work Order shall be free 

from defects for one (1) year from the final completion of all work (unless a longer manufacturer 

warranty applies); (b) all services and work performed under this Work Order will be free from defects 

for one (1) year from the final completion of all work and the project shall be fully operational without 

unreasonable downtime or failures; and (c) that the services and work will conform to the requirements 

of the Contract Documents. If, at any time prior to the expiration of the one (1) year warranty period, 

the City discovers any failure or breach of the Contractor’s warranties or the Contractor discovers any 

failure or breach of the Contractor’s warranties, the Contractor will, upon written notice from City or of 

its own accord, at the Contractor’s sole cost and expense, promptly correct such failure or breach (which 

corrective action must include, without limitation, any necessary removal, disassembly, reinstallation, 

repair, replacement, reassembly, retesting, and/or re-inspection of any part or portion of the work and 

any other property damaged or affected by such failure, breach, or corrective action). The Contractor 

will remedy any such failure or breach so, to the extent possible, to avoid unnecessary disruptions to the 

operations of City or its systems. In the event the Contractor fails to initiate and diligently pursue 

corrective action within five (5) days of the Contractor’s receipt of the City’s notice or the Contractor’s 

discovery of the same, the City may undertake such corrective action at the Contractor’s expense.  

9.0 Authorization 

This Work Order is issued pursuant to the System Hardening and Reliability Improvements Contract for 

between the City of Lake Worth Beach and the Contractor, dated _____________, (“Contract” 

hereafter). If there are any conflicts between the terms and conditions of this Work Order and the 

Contract, the terms and conditions of the Contract shall prevail.  

REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS 



Page 20 of 36 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have made and executed this Work Order as of the day 

and year set forth above.   

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA 

ATTEST: 

By: __________________________    By: ____DO NOT SIGN – SAMPLE ONLY____________ 

      Melissa Ann Coyne, City Clerk       Betty Resch, Mayor 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND         APPROVED FOR FINANCIAL        

LEGAL SUFFICIENCY:        SUFFICIENCY 

By: __________________________    By: _______________________________________ 

      Glen J. Torcivia, City Attorney Yannick Ngendahayo, Financial Services Director 

CONTRACTOR:  MICHELS POWER, INC. 

By: __DO NOT SIGN – SAMPLE ONLY ___ 

[Corporate Seal] Print Name: ___________________________ 

Title: _________________________________ 

STATE OF _______________________) 

COUNTY OF _____________________) 

THE FOREGOING instrument was acknowledged before me by means of • physical presence or • 

online notarization on this ____ day of ______________ 2023, by ________________________, as the 

________________________ [title] of 

 Michels Power, Inc., a foreign profit Corporation, who is personally known to me or who has produced 

_________________________ as identification, and who did take an oath that he or she is duly authorized to 

execute the foregoing instrument and bind the CONTRACTOR to the same.   

____________________________________ 

Notary Public Signature 

Notary Seal: 



Page 21 of 36 



Page 22 of 36 

 

EXHIBIT “B” 

HOURLY BILLING RATES 

 

 

 
  



Page 23 of 36 



Page 24 of 36 



Page 25 of 36 



Page 26 of 36 

EXHIBIT “C” 

PUBLIC CONSTRUCTION BOND FORMS 

Record and Return to: 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH  

PAYMENT AND PERFORMANCE BOND 

(Pursuant to sec. 255.05, Fla. Stat.) 

Surety Bond No. __________ 

Any singular reference to Contractor, Surety, Owner or other party shall be considered plural where applicable. 

CONTRACTOR: SURETY: 

Name:  Name: 

Principal Business Address: Principal Business Address 

Telephone Number: Telephone Number: 

OWNER: 

City of Lake Worth Beach 

7 North Dixie Highway 

Lake Worth Beach, FL  33460 

(561) 586-1600

CONTRACT:  System Hardening and Reliability Improvement Program 

Contract Work Order No: 

Date: 

Amount: 

Description (Name and Location):  

General Description of Work: 

BOND 

Date (not earlier than Work Order Date): 

Amount: 

Modifications to this Bond Form: 

This Bond is issued in favor of the City of Lake Worth Beach/Owner conditioned on the full and faithful 

performance of the Contract. 

1. Contractor has entered into Project No. ___________________ with the City for the project titled

“_____________________________” (the “Contract”), with conditions and provisions as are further described

in the aforementioned Contract, which Contract, including all of its attachments, exhibits and incorporated

documents (hereinafter, collectively, the “Contract Documents”) is by reference made a part hereof for the

purposes of explaining this bond.

2. Principal and Surety are bound to the Owner in the sum of the Contract Amount set forth above for

payment of which we bind ourselves, our heirs, personal representatives, successors, and assigns, jointly and

severally.

3. THE CONDITION OF THIS BOND is that if Principal:

a. Performs the Work required of and in accordance with the Contract Documents at the times and in

the manner prescribed in the Contract Documents, which are made a part of this bond by reference; and 



Page 27 of 36 

b. In accordance with sec. 255.05 and sec. 337.18, Florida Statutes, promptly makes payment s to

all persons, defined in sec. 713.01, Florida Statutes, who furnish labor, services or materials for prosecution of 

the work set forth in the Contract Documents described above; and 

c. Pays Owner all losses, damages (including liquidated damages), expenses, costs, and

professional fees, including but not limited to attorneys’ fees, including appellate proceedings, that Owner 

sustains because of a default by Principal under the Contract Documents; and 

d. Performs the warranty and guarantee of all work and materials furnished under the Contract

Documents for the time specified in the Contract Documents, then this bond is void; otherwise it remains in full 

force. 

4. Section 255.05, Fla. Stat., as amended, together with all notice and time provisions contained therein,

is incorporated herein by reference.

5. Any action instituted by a claimant under this bond for payment must be in accordance with the notice

and time limitation provisions in secs. 255.05(2) and (10), Fla. Stat., and those of sec. 337.18, Fla. Stat.

6. Any changes in or under the Contract Documents and compliance or noncompliance with any

formalities connected with the Contract Documents or the changes does not affect Surety's obligation under this

bond, and Surety waives notice of such changes.

7. Principal and Surety expressly acknowledge that any and all provisions relating to consequential, delay

and liquidated damages contained in the contract are expressly covered by and made a part of this Performance,

Labor and Material Payment Bond.  Principal and Surety acknowledge that any such provisions lie within their

obligations and within the policy coverages and limitations of this instrument.

8. Any action brought under this instrument shall be brought in the state court of competent jurisdiction in

Palm Beach County, Florida, and not elsewhere.

Surety and Contractor, intending to be legally bound hereby, subject to the terms included herein and as required

under Florida Statutes, do each cause this Performance and Payment Bond to be duly executed on its behalf by

its authorized officer, agent, or representative.

Signed and sealed this _______ day of ______________________________, 20__. 

_________________________________ __________________________________ 

Witness  Principal 

__________________________________ 

Title 

(Corporate Seal) 

_________________________________ __________________________________ 

Witness  Surety 

__________________________________ 

Attorney-in-Fact 

(Attach Power of Attorney) 

__________________________________ 

Print Name 

(Corporate Seal) 



Page 28 of 36 

 

EXHIBIT “D” 

 

Federal Contract Provisions 

 

The Contractor hereby agrees that the following terms, at a minimum, will be incorporated into any subsequent 

contract resulting from this IFB, which is funded in whole or in part with any federal or other funding where the 

following terms are applicable: 

 

Equal Employment Opportunity. During the performance of the resulting contract, the Contractor agrees as 

follows: 

 

(1) The Contractor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 

color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, or national origin. The Contractor will take affirmative 

action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during employment without regard 

to their race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, or national origin. Such action shall include, 

but not be limited to the following: 

Employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; 

rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship. The Contractor 

agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for employment, notices to be 

provided setting forth the provisions of this nondiscrimination clause.   

(2) The Contractor will, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of the 

Contractor, state that all qualified applicants will receive consideration for employment without regard to race, 

color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, or national origin. 

(3) The Contractor will not discharge or in any other manner discriminate against any employee or applicant 

for employment because such employee or applicant has inquired about, discussed, or disclosed the 

compensation of the employee or applicant or another employee or applicant. This provision shall not apply to 

instances in which an employee who has access to the compensation information of other employees or 

applicants as a part of such employee's essential job functions discloses the compensation of such other 

employees or applicants to individuals who do not otherwise have access to such information, unless such 

disclosure is in response to a formal complaint or charge, in furtherance of an investigation, proceeding, hearing, 

or action, including an investigation conducted by the employer, or is consistent with the Contractor's legal duty 

to furnish information. 

(4) The Contractor will send to each labor union or representative of workers with which he has a collective 

bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding, a notice to be provided advising the said labor union 

or workers' representatives of the Contractor's commitments under this section, and shall post copies of the notice 

in conspicuous places available to employees and applicants for employment. 

(5) The Contractor will comply with all provisions of Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, and 

of the rules, regulations, and relevant orders of the Secretary of Labor. 

 (6) The Contractor will furnish all information and reports required by Executive Order 11246 of September 

24, 1965, and by rules, regulations, and orders of the Secretary of Labor, or pursuant thereto, and will permit 

access to his books, records, and accounts by the administering agency and the Secretary of Labor for purposes 

of investigation to ascertain compliance with such rules, regulations, and orders. 

(7) In the event of the Contractor's noncompliance with the nondiscrimination clauses of this contract or 

with any of the said rules, regulations, or orders, this contract may be canceled, terminated, or suspended in 

whole or in part and the Contractor may be declared ineligible for further Government contracts or federally 

assisted construction contracts in accordance with procedures authorized in Executive Order 11246 of September 

24, 1965, and such other sanctions may be imposed and remedies invoked as provided in Executive Order 11246 

of September 24, 1965, or by rule, regulation, or order of the Secretary of Labor, or as otherwise provided by 

law. 

(8) The Contractor will include the portion of the sentence immediately preceding paragraph (1) and the 

provisions of paragraphs (1) through (8) in every subcontract or purchase order unless exempted by rules, 



Page 29 of 36 

regulations, or orders of the Secretary of Labor issued pursuant to section 204 of Executive Order 11246 of 

September 24, 1965, so that such provisions will be binding upon each subcontractor or vendor. The Contractor 

will take such action with respect to any subcontract or purchase order as the administering agency may direct 

as a means of enforcing such provisions, including sanctions for noncompliance:  Provided, however, that in the 

event a Contractor becomes involved in, or is threatened with, litigation with a subcontractor or vendor as a 

result of such direction by the administering agency, the Contractor may request the United States to enter into 

such litigation to protect the interests of the United States.  

The applicant further agrees that it will be bound by the above equal opportunity clause with respect to its own 

employment practices when it participates in federally assisted construction work: Provided, That if the applicant 

so participating is a State or local government, the above equal opportunity clause is not applicable to any 

agency, instrumentality or subdivision of such government which does not participate in work on or under the 

contract.  The applicant agrees that it will assist and cooperate actively with the administering agency and the 

Secretary of Labor in obtaining the compliance of contractors and subcontractors with the equal opportunity 

clause and the rules, regulations, and relevant orders of the Secretary of Labor, that it will furnish the 

administering agency and the Secretary of Labor such information as they may require for the supervision of 

such compliance, and that it will otherwise assist the administering agency in the discharge of the agency's 

primary responsibility for securing compliance.   

The applicant further agrees that it will refrain from entering into any contract or contract modification subject 

to Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, with a Contractor debarred from, or who has not demonstrated 

eligibility for, Government contracts and federally assisted construction contracts pursuant to the Executive 

Order and will carry out such sanctions and penalties for violation of the equal opportunity clause as may be 

imposed upon contractors and subcontractors by the administering agency or the Secretary of Labor pursuant to 

Part II, Subpart D of the Executive Order. In addition, the applicant agrees that if it fails or refuses to comply 

with these undertakings, the administering agency may take any or all of the following actions: Cancel, 

terminate, or suspend in whole or in part this grant (contract, loan, insurance, guarantee); refrain from extending 

any further assistance to the applicant under the program with respect to which the failure or refund occurred 

until satisfactory assurance of future compliance has been received from such applicant; and refer the case to the 

Department of Justice for appropriate legal proceedings. 

Compliance with the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act. 

(1) Overtime requirements. No Contractor or subcontractor contracting for any part of the contract work

which may require or involve the employment of laborers or mechanics shall require or permit any such laborer

or mechanic in any workweek in which he or she is employed on such work to work in excess of forty hours in

such workweek unless such laborer or mechanic receives compensation at a rate not less than one and one-half

times the basic rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of forty hours in such workweek.

(2) Violation; liability for unpaid wages; liquidated damages. In the event of any violation of the clause set

forth in paragraph (1) of this section the Contractor and any subcontractor responsible therefor shall be liable

for the unpaid wages. In addition, such Contractor and subcontractor shall be liable to the United States (in the

case of work done under contract for the District of Columbia or a territory, to such District or to such territory),

for liquidated damages. Such liquidated damages shall be computed with respect to each individual laborer or

mechanic, including watchmen and guards, employed in violation of the clause set forth in paragraph (1) of this

section, in the sum of $27 for each calendar day on which such individual was required or permitted to work in

excess of the standard workweek of forty hours without payment of the overtime wages required by the clause

set forth in paragraph (1) of this section.

(3) Withholding for unpaid wages and liquidated damages. DOJ, the State of Florida, or the CITY  shall

upon its own action or upon written request of an authorized representative of the Department of Labor withhold

or cause to be withheld, from any moneys payable on account of work performed by the Contractor or

subcontractor under any such contract or any other Federal contract with the same prime contractor, or any other

federally-assisted contract subject to the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act, which is held by the

same prime contractor, such sums as may be determined to be necessary to satisfy any liabilities of such



Page 30 of 36 

 

Contractor or subcontractor for unpaid wages and liquidated damages as provided in the clause set forth in 

paragraph (2) of this section. 

(4) Subcontracts. The Contractor or subcontractor shall insert in any subcontracts the clauses set forth in 

paragraph (1) through (4) of this section and also a clause requiring the subcontractors to include these clauses 

in any lower tier subcontracts. The prime Contractor shall be responsible for compliance by any subcontractor 

or lower tier subcontractor with the clauses set forth in paragraphs (1) through (4) of this section. 

 

Rights to Inventions Made Under a Contract or Agreement 

If the Federal award meets the definition of “funding agreement” under 37 CFR § 401.2(a) and the recipient or 

subrecipient wishes to enter into a contract with a small business firm or nonprofit organization regarding the 

substitution of parties, assignment or performance of experimental, developmental, or research work under that 

“funding agreement,” the recipient or subrecipient must comply with the requirements of 37 CFR Part 401, 

“Rights to Inventions Made by Nonprofit Organizations and Small Business Firms Under Government Grants, 

Contracts and Cooperative Agreements,” and any implementing regulations issued by the awarding agency. 

 

Clean Air Act 

(1) The Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable standards, orders or regulations issued pursuant to the 

Clean Air Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 7401 et seq. 

(2) The Contractor agrees to report each violation to the City, and understands and agrees that the City will, in 

turn, report each violation as required to assure notification to the Federal Emergency Management Agency, and 

the appropriate Environmental Protection Agency Regional Office.  

(3) The Contractor agrees to include these requirements in each subcontract exceeding $150,000 financed in 

whole or in part with Federal assistance provided by DOJ. 

 

Federal Water Pollution Control Act  

(1) The Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable standards, orders, or regulations issued pursuant to the 

Federal Water Pollution Control Act, as amended, 33 U.S.C. 1251 et seq. 

(2) The Contractor agrees to report each violation to the CITY and understands and agrees that the CITY will, 

in turn, report each violation as required to assure notification to the Federal Emergency Management Agency, 

and the appropriate Environmental Protection Agency Regional Office. 

(3) The Contractor agrees to include these requirements in each subcontract exceeding $150,000 financed in 

whole or in part with Federal assistance provided by DOJ. 

 

Suspension and Debarment.  

(1) This contract is a covered transaction for purposes of 2 C.F.R. pt. 180 and 2 C.F.R. pt. 3000. As such, the 

Contractor is required to verify that none of the Contractor’s principals (defined at 2 C.F.R. § 180.995) or its 

affiliates (defined at 2 C.F.R. § 180.905) are excluded (defined at 2 C.F.R. § 180.940) or disqualified (defined 

at 2 C.F.R. § 180.935). 

(2) The Contractor must comply with 2 C.F.R. pt. 180, subpart C and 2 C.F.R. pt. 3000, subpart C, and must 

include a requirement to comply with these regulations in any lower tier covered transaction it enters into. 

(3) This certification, as laid out in Exhibit I, is a material representation of fact relied upon by the City. If it is 

later determined that the Contractor did not comply with 2 C.F.R. pt. 180, subpart C and 2 C.F.R. pt. 3000, 

subpart C, in addition to remedies available to the State of Florida or the City, the Federal Government may 

pursue available remedies, including but not limited to suspension and/or debarment. 

(4) The bidder or proposer agrees to comply with the requirements of 2 C.F.R. pt. 180, subpart C and 2 C.F.R. 

pt. 3000, subpart C while this offer is valid and throughout the period of any contract that may arise from this 

offer. The bidder or proposer further agrees to include a provision requiring such compliance in its lower tier 

covered transactions. 

 

Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment. 



Page 31 of 36 

 Contractors who apply or bid for an award of $100,000 or more shall file the required certification as laid out 

in Exhibit J. Each tier certifies to the tier above that it will not and has not used Federal appropriated funds to 

pay any person or organization for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, 

a Member of Congress, officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection 

with obtaining any Federal contract, grant, or any other award covered by 31 U.S.C. § 1352. Each tier shall also 

disclose any lobbying with non-Federal funds that takes place in connection with obtaining any Federal award. 

Such disclosures are forwarded from tier to tier up to the recipient who in turn will forward the certification(s) 

to the awarding agency. 

Procurement of Recovered materials. 

(i) In the performance of this contract, the Contractor shall make maximum use of products containing

recovered materials that are EPA-designated items unless the product cannot be acquired—

• Competitively within a timeframe providing for compliance with the contract performance schedule;

• Meeting contract performance requirements; or

• At a reasonable price.

(ii) Information about this requirement, along with the list of EPA-designated items, is available at EPA’s

Comprehensive Procurement Guidelines web site, https://www.epa.gov/smm/comprehensive- procurement-

guideline-cpg-program.

(iii) The Contractor also agrees to comply with all other applicable requirements of Section 6002 of the Solid

Waste Disposal Act.”

Access to Records. 

(1) The Contractor agrees to provide the State of Florida, the CITY, the DOJ Administrator, the Comptroller

General of the United States, or any of their authorized representatives access to any books, documents, papers,

and records of the Contractor which are directly pertinent to this contract for the purposes of making audits,

examinations, excerpts, and transcriptions.

(2) The Contractor agrees to permit any of the foregoing parties to reproduce by any means whatsoever or to

copy excerpts and transcriptions as reasonably needed.

(3) The Contractor agrees to provide the Federal Administrator or his authorized representatives access to

construction or other work sites pertaining to the work being completed under the contract.

(4) In compliance with the Disaster Recovery Act of 2018, the City and the Contractor acknowledge and agree

that no language in this contract is intended to prohibit audits or internal reviews by the DOJ Administrator or

the Comptroller General of the United States.

DHS Seal, Logo, and Flags.  

The Contractor shall not use the DHS seal(s), logos, crests, or reproductions of flags or likenesses of DHS agency 

officials without specific DOJ pre-approval. 

Compliance with Federal Law, Regulations, and Executive Orders. 

By signing this agreement, the Contractor acknowledges that federal financial assistance may be used to fund 

all or a portion of the contract. The Contractor will comply with all applicable Federal law, regulations, executive 

orders, federal policies, procedures, and directives.  

No Obligation by Federal Government.  

The Federal Government is not a party to this contract and is not subject to any obligations or liabilities to the 

non-Federal entity, Contractor, or any other party pertaining to any matter resulting from the contract. 

Program Fraud and False or Fraudulent Statements or Related Acts. The Contractor acknowledges that 31 

U.S.C. Chap. 38 (Administrative Remedies for False Claims and Statements) applies to the Contractor’s actions 

pertaining to this contract. 



Page 32 of 36 

Affirmative Steps.  Required Affirmative Steps 

If the Contractor intends to subcontract any portion of the work covered by this Contract, the Contractor must 

take all necessary affirmative steps to assure that small and minority businesses, women’s business enterprises 

and labor surplus area firms are solicited and used when possible.  Affirmative steps must include: 

(1) Placing qualified small and minority businesses and women's business enterprises on solicitation lists;

(2) Assuring that small and minority businesses, and women's business enterprises are solicited whenever

they are potential sources;

(3) Dividing total requirements, when economically feasible, into smaller tasks or quantities to permit

maximum participation by small and minority businesses, and women's business enterprises;

(4) Establishing delivery schedules, where the requirement permits, which encourage participation by small

and minority businesses, and women's business enterprises; and

(5) Using the services and assistance, as appropriate, of such organizations as the Small Business

Administration and the Minority Business Development Agency of the Department of Commerce.

Domestic preferences for procurements. 

(1) As appropriate and to the extent consistent with law, the Contractor should purchase, acquire, or use of goods,

products, or materials produced in the United States (including but not limited to iron, aluminum, steel, cement,

and other manufactured products).

(2) For purposes of this section:

(a) “Produced in the United States” means, for iron and steel products, that all manufacturing processes, from

the initial melting stage through the application of coatings, occurred in the United States.

(b) “Manufactured products” means items and construction materials composed in whole or in part of non-

ferrous metals such as aluminum; plastics and polymer-based products such as polyvinyl chloride pipe;

aggregates such as concrete; glass, including optical fiber; and lumber.

Prohibition on certain telecommunications and video surveillance services or equipment. 

(1) The Contractor is prohibited from obligating or expending loan or grant funds to:

(a) Procure or obtain;

(b) Extend or renew a contract to procure or obtain; or

(c) Enter into a contract (or extend or renew a contract) to procure or obtain equipment, services, or systems that

uses covered telecommunications equipment or services as a substantial or essential component of any system,

or as critical technology as part of any system. As described in Public Law 115-232, section 889, covered

telecommunications equipment is telecommunications equipment produced by Huawei Technologies Company

or ZTE Corporation (or any subsidiary or affiliate of such entities).

(i) For the purpose of public safety, security of government facilities, physical security surveillance of critical

infrastructure, and other national security purposes, video surveillance and telecommunications equipment

produced by Hytera Communications Corporation, Hangzhou Hikvision Digital Technology Company, or

Dahua Technology Company (or any subsidiary or affiliate of such entities).

(ii) Telecommunications or video surveillance services provided by such entities or using such equipment.

(iii) Telecommunications or video surveillance equipment or services produced or provided by an entity that the

Secretary of Defense, in consultation with the Director of the National Intelligence or the Director of the Federal

Bureau of Investigation, reasonably believes to be an entity owned or controlled by, or otherwise connected to,

the government of a covered foreign country.

(2) In implementing the prohibition under Public Law 115-232, section 889, subsection (f), paragraph (1), the

City shall prioritize available funding and technical support to assist affected businesses, institutions and

organizations as is reasonably necessary for those affected entities to transition from covered communications

equipment and services, to procure replacement equipment and services, and to ensure that communications

service to users and customers is sustained.

Compliance with the Davis-Bacon Act. 



Page 33 of 36 

a. All transactions regarding this contract shall be done in compliance with the Davis-Bacon Act (40 U.S.C.

3141-3144, and 3146-3148) and the requirements of 29C.F.R. pt. 5 as may be applicable. The contractor shall

comply with 40 U.S.C. 3141-3144, and 3146-3148 and the requirements of 29 C.F.R. pt. 5 as applicable.

b. Contractors are required to pay wages to laborers and mechanics at a rate not less than the prevailing wages

specified in a wage determination made by the Secretary of Labor.

c. Additionally, contractors are required to pay wages not less than once a week.

Current Davis Bacon wage determination for Heavy Construction shall be attached to each Work Order if 

Federal Funds are utilized.   



Page 34 of 36 

 

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY 

MATTERS - LOWER-TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS 

 

This document is a covered transaction for purposes of the debarment and suspension regulations implementing 

Executive Order 12549, Debarment and Suspension (1986) and Executive Order 12689, Debarment and 

Suspension (1989) at 2 C.F.R. Part 3000 (Non- procurement Debarment and Suspension).  As such, Contractor 

is required to confirm that none of the Contractor, its principals (defined at 2 C.F.R. § 180.995), or its affiliates 

(defined at 2 C.F.R. § 180.905) are excluded (defined at 2 C.F.R. § 180.940) or disqualified (defined at 2 C.F.R. 

§ 180.935).  

 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION 

 

1) By signing this Certification, the Contractor, also sometimes referred to herein as a prospective primary 

participant, is providing the certification set out below.  

 

2) The inability of a Contractor to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in 

denial of participation in the covered transaction.  The prospective participant shall submit an explanation of 

why it cannot provide the certification set out below.  The certification or explanation will be considered in 

connection with the City’s determination whether to enter into this transaction.  However, failure of the 

prospective primary participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from 

participation in this transaction. 

 

3) The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when 

the City determined to enter into this transaction.  If it is later determined that the prospective primary participant 

knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies available to the City, the City may 

terminate this transaction for cause or default. 

 

4) The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the City if at any time the 

prospective primary participant learns that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become 

erroneous by reason of changed circumstances. 

 

5) The terms covered transaction, debarred, suspended, ineligible, lower tier covered transaction, 

participant, person, primary covered transaction, principal, proposal and voluntarily excluded, as used in this 

certification, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and Coverage sections of the rules implementing 

Executive Order 12549. 

 

6) The prospective primary participant agrees by signing the Addendum that it shall not knowingly enter 

into any lower tier covered transactions with a person who is proposed for debarment under 48 CFR part 9, 

subpart 9.4, debarred, suspended, declared ineligible or voluntarily excluded from participation in this covered 

transaction.  If it is later determined that the prospective primary participant knowingly entered into such a 

transaction, in addition to other remedies available to the City, the City may terminate this transaction for cause 

or default. 

 

7) The prospective primary participant further agrees by signing this Addendum that it will include the 

clause titled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion - Lower 

Tier Covered Transaction,” as available through the United States Department of Homeland Security,  

 

 

 

 



Page 35 of 36 

Certification for Contracts, Grants, Loans, and Cooperative Agreements 



Page 36 of 36 



Page 1 of 35 

 

SYSTEM HARDENING AND RELIABILITY IMPROVEMENTS CONTRACT 

IFB # 23-116 

 

THIS CONTRACT for Electric Utility System Hardening and Reliability Improvements (“Contract”) is 

entered on ___________________, by and between the City of Lake Worth Beach, a Florida municipal 

corporation (“City”) and, Wilco Electrical, LLC., a Limited Liability Company authorized to do business in 

the State of Florida (“Contractor”) with its principal office located at 430 Business Park Way, Royal Palm Beach, 

FL   33411 .  

 

WHEREAS, the City issued Invitation for Bids # 23-116 for the construction of numerous hardening 

and reliability improvements to its electric utility transmission and distribution system (“IFB”); and  

 

WHEREAS, the Contractor submitted its bid in response to the IFB; and  

 

WHEREAS, the City desires to award the IFB to the Contractor on a non-exclusive basis for the 

construction of certain system hardening and reliability improvements and related services; and  

 

WHEREAS, this Contract may be funded, in whole or in part, by the Federal agencies and work 

performed pursuant to this Contract or Work Order funded, in whole or in part, by Federal agencies will comply 

with all applicable Federal laws, Federal regulations, executive orders, policies, procedures, directives and 

special clauses as provided for in Exhibit “D”; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City finds awarding the IFB to the Contractor as described herein serves a valid public 

purpose. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, the City hereby engages the services of the Contractor, and in consideration of the mutual 

promises herein contained, the sufficient of which is hereby acknowledged by both parties, the parties agree as 

follows: 

 

Article 1.   GENERAL INFORMATION. 

 

1.1   Scope of Services/Work.  The Contractor shall provide the services and work requested by the City and 

required under a City approved work order as described herein. The general nature of the services and work to 

be provided by the Contractor under this Contract are the construction of hardening and reliability improvements 

to the City’s electric utility transmission and distribution system. 

 

1.2   Contract Documents.  The Contract Documents are incorporated herein by reference as if set forth in 

this Contract and comprise the entire agreement between the City and Contractor. The Contract Documents 

consist of this Contract, the IFB (including, but not limited to, the documents issued with the IFB as the scope 

and specifications, the drawings, addenda, attachments and exhibits); and, any duly executed and issued work 

orders, change orders and Contract amendments relating thereto. If, during the performance of the work, the 

Contractor finds an ambiguity, error or discrepancy in the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall so notify 

the City, in writing, within five (5) business days and before proceeding shall obtain a written interpretation or 

clarification. Failure to obtain a written interpretation or clarification will be deemed a waiver of the ambiguity, 

error or discrepancy by the Contractor. The City will not be responsible for any oral instructions, clarifications, 

or other communications except those provided in writing in response to Contractor's request for clarification of 

an ambiguity, discrepancy or error. 

 

In resolving conflicts in any of the Contract Documents, the order of precedence shall be as follows: 

 

First Priority:  Fully executed Change Orders or Contract amendments 



Page 2 of 35 

 

Second Priority:  This Contract 

Third Priority:  Fully executed Work Orders 

Fourth Priority:  IFB 

 

1.3   Contract Administrator.  Whenever the term Contract Administrator is used herein, it is intended to 

mean the City Manager or designee, City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida. In the administration of this 

Contract, all parties may rely upon instructions or determinations made by the Contract Administrator except 

that all requests and/or determinations that result in an increase in change in time of completion and/or an 

increase in the contract price shall require a formal change order or contract amendment executed by the City 

Manager or the City Commission (depending on the authority set forth in the City’s Procurement Code). 

 

1.4   Work Orders.  This Contract does not guarantee that the City will utilize the Contractor in any 

capacity or for any services hereunder. When the City identifies a need for the Contractor’s services, the City 

will request a proposal from the Contractor to provide the services requested. The City will provide the 

Contractor with plans and/or specifications in order for the Contractor to develop its proposal. The Contractor’s 

proposal shall be submitted in the format of the sample work order, attached hereto and incorporated herein as 

Exhibit “A” along with a copy of the Contractor’s proposal and shall be based on the Hourly Billing Rates 

attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit “B”. Upon receipt of the Contractor’s proposed work order 

and proposal, the City shall decide in its sole discretion whether to award the work order to the Contractor. 

Depending on the lump sum amount of each work order, the work order may be awarded by the City Manager 

(if within City Manager’s purchasing authority (currently not to exceed $50,000)) or the City Commission. If 

the work order is approved by the City, the Contractor shall commence the identified services upon the City’s 

approval of the work order for the services and issuance of a notice to proceed. The City reserves the right to 

reject any and all proposals submitted by the Contractor. A City-approved work order shall include (by 

reference) the plans and/or specifications provided by the City to the Contractor. 

 

1.5 Purchase Orders. The City’s ordering mechanism for individual projects involving urgently required 

work and/or repairs in the amount of $15,000 or less under this Agreement will be by a City issued Purchase 

Order(s); however, the terms and conditions stated in a City Purchase Order(s) shall not apply; the terms and 

conditions set forth in this Agreement shall apply. CONTRACTOR shall not provide services under this 

Agreement without a City Purchase Order specifically for the stated services. CONTRACTOR shall provide 

the amount of requested services and price listed in each Purchase Order and not exceed amounts expressed on 

any Purchase Order. CONTRACTOR shall be liable for any excess services or costs not specifically stated in 

the Purchase Order(s). The City’s Fiscal Year ends on September 30th of each calendar year. The City cannot 

authorize the purchase of services beyond September 30th of each calendar year, prior to the annual budget 

being approved by the City Commission. Additionally, the City must have budgeted appropriate funds for the 

goods and services in any subsequent Fiscal Year. If the budget is approved for said goods and services, the 

City will issue a new Purchase Order(s) each Fiscal Year for required and approved services. Services provided 

pursuant to a City issued Purchase Order(s) under this Agreement shall not exceed $ 50,000 per year without 

additional City Commission approval. 

 

1.5   Term.  The term of this Contract shall be for three (3) years, with an option for two additional twelve 

(12) month renewals upon the mutual agreement of both parties.  The renewal term(s) may be approved by the 

City Manager on behalf of the CITY. Notwithstanding the foregoing, this Contract may be terminated as set 

forth in the Contract Documents.  

 

1.6   Hourly Billing Rates.  The Hourly Billing Rates set forth as Exhibit “B” shall remain fixed for the 

first three (3) years of this Contract. If due to applicable price escalations and/or reductions which impact the 

Contractor’s Hourly Billing Rates, the City and Contractor may execute a written amendment to this Contract 

to establish new Hourly Billing Rates for the renewal term(s). The City Manager may approve changes in the 

Hourly Billing Rates based on the recommendation of the City’s Electric Utility Director or designee. 



Page 3 of 35 

 

 

Article 2.   CONTRACT TIME. 

 

2.1 All services and work to be provided under a City-approved work order shall be provided in a timely 

manner as time is of the essence under this Contract.   

2.2 The Contractor shall not be considered in default by reason of a delay in timely performance if such 

delay and failure arises out of causes reasonably beyond the control of the Contractor or its subcontractors (if 

authorized) and without the Contractor’s or subcontractor’s fault or negligence. Upon the Contractor’s request, 

the City shall consider the facts and extent of any such delay and failure to timely perform the work for reason 

beyond the control of the Contractor and, if the Contractor’s delay and failure to timely perform was without it 

or its subcontractors’ fault or negligence, as reasonably determined by the City, the time of completion shall be 

extended for any reasonable time that the City may reasonably decide; subject to the City’s rights to change, 

terminate, or stop any or all of the work at any time. If the Contractor is delayed at any time in the progress of 

the work by any act or neglect of the City or its employees, by an approved written change in the scope from the 

original Contract Documents, or by any other contractor employed by the City, or by changes ordered by the 

City or in an unusual delay in transportation, unavoidable casualties, or any causes beyond the Contractor’s 

reasonable control, or by delay authorized by the City pending negotiation or by any cause which the City shall 

reasonably decide justifies the delay, then the time of completion shall be extended for any reasonable time the 

City may reasonably decide. The Contractor must provide the City with written notice of any delay claims and 

no extension of time shall be made for any delay occurring more than five (5) days before a claim therefore is 

made in writing to the City. In the case of continuing cause of delay, only one (1) claim is necessary. With the 

exception of an approved written change in the scope from the original Contract Documents, the Contractor’s 

sole remedy for a delay in completion of the work for any reason will be an extension of time to complete the 

work and Contractor specifically waives any right to seek any monetary damages or losses for a delay in 

completion of the work, including, but not limited to, waiving any right to seek monetary amounts for lost profits, 

additional overhead, salaries, lost productivity, efficiency losses, or any other alleged monetary losses which 

may be allegedly suffered by Contractor due to a delay in completion of the work. Provided, however, and 

subject to sovereign immunity under section 768.28, Florida Statutes, that this provision shall not preclude 

recovery or damages by the Contractor for hindrances or delays due solely to fraud, bad faith or active 

interference on the part of the City. Otherwise, the Contractor shall be entitled only to extensions of the Contract 

Times as the sole and exclusive remedy for such resulting delay, in accordance with and to the extent specifically 

provided above. 

Article 3.     PAYMENT PROCEDURES 

 

3.1 Generally.  The Contractor shall submit invoices on a monthly basis detailing all work accomplished in 

the prior month and all materials installed and used in the work pursuant to City approved work order. 

Contractor’s invoices shall be submitted to: 

 

  City of Lake Worth Beach 

  Attn:  Finance Department 

  7 N. Dixie Highway 

  Lake Worth Beach, FL  33460 

 

The City’s Contract Administrator or designee will review each invoice submitted by the Contractor. If 

approved, the City will make payment in accordance with the Contract Documents. If not approved, the City 

will notify the Contractor within twenty (20) business days of the City’s receipt and identify the action necessary 

to correct the invoice or a deficiency. 

 

3.2 Payment to the Contractor shall be made pursuant Florida’s Prompt Payment Act (for construction 



Page 4 of 35 

 

services), section 218.735, Florida Statutes, except as provided herein.  Specifically, the City will withhold five 

percent (5%) of each payment from a work order to the Contractor as retainage until fifty percent (95%) of the 

work order price is paid to the Contractor. Upon written request from the Contractor, the Contract Administrator 

may agree in writing with the Contractor to release a portion of the retainage upon payment of ninety-five percent 

(95%) of the work order price being paid to the Contractor (not to exceed fifty percent (50%) of the total 

retainage amount).   

 

3.3 Upon substantial completion, the Contractor and City shall establish a punch-list of items that must be 

completed by the Contractor prior to the Contractor submitting its final payment request. 

 

3.4 Final Payment.  Upon final completion and acceptance of the work in accordance with the Contract 

Documents (including all punch-list items) and final inspection by the appropriate agency with jurisdiction over 

the project (if other than the City), the Contractor shall submit a “final invoice” to the City. In order for both 

parties to close their books and records, the Contractor will clearly state “FINAL” on the Contractor’s final 

invoice. This certifies that all work under the applicable work order has been properly completed and all charges 

have been invoiced to the City.  Since this account will thereupon be closed, any and other further charges if not 

properly included in this final invoice are waived by the Contractor.  If the Contractor’s Final Invoice is approved 

as set forth above, the City shall pay the remainder of the work order price including any amount held as 

retainage.   

 

3.5 Notwithstanding the foregoing, the City shall not be required to pay or release any amount of retainage 

that is subject of a good faith dispute, the subject of a claim brought pursuant to section 255.05, Florida Statutes, 

or otherwise the subject of a claim or demand by the City. 

 

3.6 Final payment shall not become due until the Contractor and all of its subcontractors submit to the City 

releases and waivers of liens, and data establishing payment or satisfaction of obligations, such as receipts, 

claims, security interests or encumbrances arising out of the Contract Documents or otherwise related to the 

Program. 

 

3.7 Acceptance of final payment by the Contractor or a subcontractor shall constitute a waiver of 

claims by that payee except those previously made in writing and identified by that payee as unsettled at 

the time of final invoice. 

 

Article 4.   SUBCONTRACTS 

 

The Contractor represents that it has, or will secure at its own expense, all necessary personnel required to 

perform the services under this Contract. Such personnel shall not be employees of or have any contractual 

relationship with the City. All of the services required hereunder shall be performed by the Contractor or under 

its supervision, and all personnel engaged in performing the services shall be fully qualified and, if required, 

authorized or permitted under state and local law to perform such services. The Contractor shall furnish 

services in a manner consistent with industry standards and to a level of professional skill generally acceptable 

in the industry with regard to services of this kind. The Contractor shall comply with all applicable laws in the 

provision of services under this Contract. The Contractor agrees that it is fully responsible to the City for the 

acts and omissions of subcontractors and of persons either directly or indirectly employed by the Contractor. 

Nothing contained herein shall create any contractual relationship between any subcontractor and the City. All 

of the Contractor’s personnel (and all subcontractors) while on City premises, will comply with all City 

requirements governing conduct, safety, and security. The City reserves the right to request replacement of any 

of subcontractor or subcontractor’s personnel furnished by the Contractor upon written notice by City to 

Contractor of the cause for such replacement. All work performed by a subcontractor will be at cost to the City 

without any mark-up by the Contractor. All subcontractors must provide the same level and type of insurance 

as required of the Contractor under this Contract prior to commencing any services. The Contractor shall 



Page 5 of 35 

 

submit the subcontractors’ proof of insurance upon receipt of a notice to proceed. 

  

Article 5.   INDEMNITY AND INSURANCE. 

 

The Contractor agrees to assume liability for and indemnify, hold harmless, and defend the City, its 

commissioners, mayor, officers, employees, agents, and attorneys of, from, and against all liability and expense, 

including reasonable attorney’s fees, in connection with any and all claims, demands, damages, actions, causes 

of action, and suits in equity of whatever kind or nature, including claims for personal injury, property damage, 

equitable relief, or loss of use, to the extent caused by the negligence, recklessness, or intentionally wrongful 

conduct of the Contractor, its agents, officers, Contractors, subcontractors, employees, or anyone else utilized 

by the Contractor in the performance of this Contract. The Contractor’s liability hereunder shall include all 

attorney’s fees and costs incurred by the City in the enforcement of this indemnification provision. This includes 

claims made by the employees of the Contractor against the City and the Contractor hereby waives its 

entitlement, if any, to immunity under Section 440.11, Florida Statutes.  The obligations contained in this 

provision shall survive termination of this Contract and shall not be limited by the amount of any insurance 

required to be obtained or maintained under this Contract.  

 

Subject to the limitations set forth in this Section, Contractor shall assume control of the defense of any claim 

asserted by a third party against the City and, in connection with such defense, shall appoint lead counsel, in 

each case at the Contractor’s expense.  The City shall have the right, at its option, to participate in the defense 

of any third party claim, without relieving Contractor of any of its obligations hereunder. If the Contractor 

assumes control of the defense of any third party claim in accordance with this paragraph, the Contractor shall 

obtain the prior written consent of the City before entering into any settlement of such claim. Notwithstanding 

anything to the contrary in this Section, the Contractor shall not assume or maintain control of the defense of 

any third party claim, but shall pay the fees of counsel retained by the City and all expenses, including experts’ 

fees, if (i) an adverse determination with respect to the third party claim would, in the good faith judgment of 

the City, be detrimental in any material respect to the City’s reputation; (ii) the third party claim seeks an 

injunction or equitable relief against the City; or (iii) the Contractor has failed or is failing to prosecute or defend 

vigorously the third party claim.  Each party shall cooperate, and cause its agents to cooperate, in the defense or 

prosecution of any third party claim and shall furnish or cause to be furnished such records and information, and 

attend such conferences, discovery proceedings, hearings, trials, or appeals, as may be reasonably requested in 

connection therewith.   

 

It is the specific intent of the parties hereto that the foregoing indemnification complies with Section 725.06, 

Florida Statutes, as amended. The Contractor expressly agrees that it will not claim, and waives any claim, that 

this indemnification violates Section 725.06, Florida Statutes. Nothing contained in the foregoing 

indemnification or any other provision in the Contract Documents shall be construed as a waiver of any 

immunity or limitation of liability the City may have under the doctrine of sovereign immunity or Section 

768.28, Florida Statutes. 

 

INSURANCE:  Prior to commencing any work, the Contractor shall provide proof of insurance coverage as 

required in the IFB. All such insurance policies may not be modified or terminated without the express written 

authorization of the City. Failure to comply with the foregoing requirements shall not relieve the Contractor of 

its liability and obligations under this Contract. Each party will promptly notify the other of any complaint, 

claim, suit or cause of action threatened or commenced against it which arises out of or relates, in any manner, 

to the Contract Documents and/or performance of the work.  Each party agrees to cooperate with the other in 

any investigation either may conduct, the defense of any claim or suit in which either party is named, and shall 

do nothing to impair or invalidate any applicable insurance coverage.  

 

Article 6.       REIMBURSEMENT OF ENGINEER EXPENSES. 

 



Page 6 of 35 

 

Should the completion of a work order be delayed beyond the specified or adjusted time limit, Contractor shall 

reimburse the City for all expenses of engineering and inspection incurred by the City during the period between 

said specified or adjusted time and the actual date of final completion.  All such expenses for engineering and 

inspection incurred by the City will be charged to Contractor and be deducted from payments due Contractor as 

provided by this Contract. Said expenses shall be further defined as engineer charges associated with the 

construction contract administration, including resident project representative costs. All such expenses shall be 

separate from and in addition to any Liquidated Damages as provided for in an applicable Work Order. 

 

Article 7.       PUBLIC CONSTRUCTION BOND. 

 

If the City approves a work order which exceeds $200,000 in total construction cost, the Contractor must provide 

the City with a public construction bond in accordance with section 255.05, Florida Statutes. Said bond must be 

recorded in the Official Records in and for Palm Beach County and a copy of the recorded bond must be provided 

to the City prior to the Contractor providing any services under the work order. The City reserves the right to 

request a bond for any work order which is less than $200,000. The cost of the bond shall be a direct pass through 

cost to the City without any mark-up by the Contractor. 

 

The public construction bond shall be on forms attached hereto as Exhibit “C” or substantially similar as 

approved by the City. The bond shall be in an amount not less than the total Work Order price and shall 

incorporate by reference the terms of the Contract Documents in their entirety.  

 

To be acceptable to the City, a Surety Company shall comply with the following provisions: 

 

The Surety Company shall have a currently valid Certificate of Authority, issued by the State of Florida 

Department of Insurance, authorizing it to write surety bonds in the State of Florida. 

 

(a) The Surety Company shall have a currently valid Certificate of Authority issued by the United States 

Department of Treasury under Sections 9304 to 9308 of Title 31 of the United States Code. 

 

(b) The Surety Company shall be in full compliance with the provisions of the Florida Insurance Code. 

 

(c) The Surety Company shall have at least twice the minimum surplus and capital required by the Florida 

Insurance Code at the time the Contractor submits its Work Order for City approval. 

 

(d) The Surety Company shall have at least the ratings of A-/Class V in the latest issue of Best’s Key 

Rating Guide. 

 

(e) The Surety Company shall not expose itself to any loss on any one risk in an amount exceeding ten 

(10) percent of its surplus to policyholders, provided: 

 

1. Any risk or portion of any risk being reinsured shall be deducted in determining 

the limitation of the risk as prescribed in this section. These minimum 

requirements shall apply to the reinsuring carrier providing authorization or 

approval by the State of Florida, Department of Insurance to do business in this 

state have been met. 

 

2. In the case of the surety insurance company, in addition to the deduction for reinsurance, 

the amount assumed by any co-surety, the value of any security deposited, pledged or 

held subject to the consent of the surety and for the protection of the surety shall be 

deducted. 

 



Page 7 of 35 

 

 

Article 8.       TERMINATION. 

 

8.1 TERMINATION BY CITY:  The City may terminate any work order, the Contract and/or the Contract 

Documents if the Contractor is in default as follows: 

 

(a) refuses or fails to supply enough properly skilled workers or proper materials to timely and 

competently complete the work; 

(b) fails to make payment to subcontractors for materials or labor in accordance with the respective 

agreements between the Contractor and the subcontractors; 

(c) disregards or takes action contrary to any laws, ordinances, or rules, regulations or orders of a 

public authority having jurisdiction;  

(d) takes action, short of declaring bankruptcy, evidencing insolvency;  

 (e) fails to prosecute the services or work in a timely manner and reasonably be unable to reach 

 substantial completion and/or final completion within the timeframe(s) required;  

 (f) fails or refuses to provide and/or maintain insurance or proof of insurance as required by the 

 Contract Documents; or, 

(g) otherwise is in breach of a provision of the Contract Documents. 

 

When any of the above reasons exist, the City, may without prejudice to any other rights or remedies of the City 

and after giving the Contractor and the Contractor’s surety (if applicable), written notice and five (5) days to 

cure, terminate the work order, Contract and/or Contract Documents and may: 

 

(a) take possession of the site and of all materials, equipment, tools, and construction equipment 

and machinery thereon owned by or paid for by the City; and, 

(b) finish the work by whatever reasonable method the City may deem expedient.  

 

The Contractor and its surety (if any) shall be liable for any damage to the City, including additional attorney 

and engineering/architectural fees, resulting from the Contractor’s termination under this provision by the City, 

including but not limited to, and any increased costs incurred by the City in completing the work. 

 

When the City terminates the Contract for one of the reasons stated above, the Contractor shall not be entitled 

to receive further payment, if any, until the work is finished. 

 

Should it be determined by a mediator or a court of competent jurisdiction that the City wrongfully terminated 

the Contract, then the Contractor agrees to treat such termination as a termination for convenience. 

 

8.2 TERMINATION BY THE CITY FOR CONVENIENCE 

 

The City may, at any time, terminate the Contract and Contract Documents for the City’s convenience and 

without cause. Upon receipt of written notice from the City of such termination for the City’s convenience, the 

Contractor shall: 

 

 (a) cease operations as directed by the City in the notice; 

 (b) take actions necessary, or that the City may direct, for the protection and preservation 

of the work; and 

 (c) except for work directed to be performed prior to the effective date of termination stated 

in the notice, terminate all existing subcontracts and purchase orders and enter into no 

further subcontracts and purchase orders. 



Page 8 of 35 

 

 

In case of such termination for the City’s convenience, the Contractor shall be entitled to receive payment for 

work executed, and costs incurred by reason of such termination including termination payments to 

subcontractors and demobilization costs.   

 

Article 9. TAXES AND DIRECT PURCHASES. 

 

9.1       TAXES:  The City is exempt from payment of Florida State Sales and Use Tax. The Contractor is not 

authorized to use the City’s Tax Exemption Number unless approved in writing. 

 

9.2 DIRECT PURCHASES:  For certain projects, the City may seek to make direct purchases of equipment 

or materials to be used by the Contractor. Pursuant to Section 212.08(6), Florida Statutes, and the Fla. Admin. 

Code Ann. R. 12A-1.094 and 12A-1.038, the Parties agree to the following procedure regarding the City’s direct-

purchase from vendors of certain equipment and materials to be used in specific projects: 
 

9.2.1 The City reserves the right, at the City’s option, to direct purchase equipment and materials 

involved in a specific project, including subcontracts, if any so as to save the sales tax which would 

otherwise have been due with regard to the same. The Contractor and its subcontractors shall comply 

with the City’s direct purchase procedures, including but not limited to those listed below. 
 

9.2.2 As specifically set forth in a City issued work order, within 30 days (or other time as 

specified in the work order), the Contractor will present a list of direct purchase equipment for the 

City’s consideration which will include the recommended vendors’ name; the price quotes from all 

vendors provided to the Contractor; and, any terms and conditions the Contractor has negotiated with 

the recommended vendors. The City will then inform the Contractor as to which equipment it will 

direct purchase. In the event the City fails to exercise its option to direct purchase equipment and 

identify which equipment is to be purchased by the City within thirty (30) calendar days of receipt of 

the list from the Contractor, the City shall waive its right to direct purchase any and all equipment to 

be used in completion of the work under the applicable work order. 
 

9.2.3 The Contractor is responsible for selecting each direct purchase vendor, subject to City 

approval. The Contractor is responsible for specifications, equipment receipt, inspecting shipments, 

and assuring that the equipment is in accordance with the work order and the Contractor’s 

specifications. The Contractor is also responsible for providing the City with enough advance notice 

of when the direct purchase equipment will need to be ordered and delivered. In absence of the 

Contractor’s receipt of a written notice of City’s disapproval of a vendor within thirty (30) calendar 

days of City’s receipt of the vendor/material list referenced in 9.2.2, the City shall be deemed to have 

waived any and all objections thereto. 
 

9.2.4 The Contractor shall retain all responsibility for installing all equipment relating to the work 

and for maintaining the construction schedule so long as the City timely orders and pays for the correct 

direct purchase equipment. The City’s direct purchase mechanism to effectuate tax savings in no way 

effects the obligation of the Contractor to meet all of the terms and conditions and all provisions and 

technical specifications of the Contract Documents. The Contractor shall be responsible for insuring 

all equipment once the equipment is in its care, custody and control, regardless of whether directly 

purchased by City. 
 

9.2.5 The City will issue a direct purchase order to the vendor of the direct purchase equipment at 

the price proposed in the Contractor’s or its subcontractor’s bid, less sales tax. The City will promptly 

send a copy of the issued purchaser order to the Contractor. 
 

9.2.6 It will be the Contractor’s primary responsibility to properly expedite and follow up on direct 



Page 9 of 35 

 

purchase orders, thereby assuring delivery of the equipment as ordered and at the time and place needed 

by the Contractor to complete the work in accordance with the work order and construction schedule. 

To the extent required by the Contractor, the City shall cooperate with all requests of the Contractor 

related to the expedition of and follow up on direct purchase orders. 
 

9.2.7 The Contractor shall take delivery, unload, and install the equipment purchased on the direct 

purchase order in accordance with the work order and the Contract Documents with the vendor to 

repair, replace, and make good any defect without cost to the City, until such time as the work has been 

completed and accepted by City in accordance with the Contract Documents. The City, with assistance 

from the Contractor, will be responsible for undertaking and completing any returns of direct purchase 

equipment as requested by the Contractor and working with the vendor to effectuate any credits or 

warranties for the returned equipment (if applicable). Any returns not replaced shall be credited to City 

and acknowledged by a supplement to the direct purchase order and, if applicable, amendment to the 

Contract Sum. The Contractor shall not be responsible for warranting the direct purchase equipment to 

the City; however, the Contractor shall be responsible for facilitating the vendor’s warranty of the 

direct purchase equipment and the Contractor shall be responsible for warranting the work to install 

and/or incorporate the equipment. The Contractor shall maintain records of all direct purchases 

received and incorporated into the work and provide the City with a monthly accounting until all direct 

purchase items that are received and accepted for inclusion in the specific project. 
 

9.2.8 When delivery of a direct purchase order is complete, or a payment is to be made on a partial 

shipment, the Contractor will timely submit to City the documentation supporting the equipment 

received. Invoices for direct purchase orders will be sent by the direct purchase vendor directly to 

City’s Finance Department, with all such invoices addressed to and in the name of the City. The City’s 

Finance Department will forward invoices to the City’s Contract Administrator. The City’s Contract 

Administrator will forward the invoices to the Contractor to verify delivery and sign the invoice and 

associated documentation supporting the amount of the payment. The City will make timely payment 

to all vendors in compliance with each vendor’s payment procedures. The City will take title to all 

equipment ordered through direct purchase upon or at the time of purchase. The Contractor will assist 

City in assuring prompt payment by supplying the vendor’s FEI numbers, addresses, phone numbers, 

etc. All payments will be made in accordance with the Florida Prompt Payment Act. 

 

Article 10. CONTRACTOR'S REPRESENTATIONS AND AGREEMENTS. 

 

In order to induce the City to enter into this Contract, the Contractor makes the following representations: 

 

10.1 Contractor has or will familiarize itself with the nature and extent of the Contract Documents, work, 

site, locality, and all local conditions and laws and regulations that in any manner may affect cost, progress, 

performance or furnishing of the work prior to commencing the work under an applicable Work Order. All work 

shall be performed consistent with all applicable laws and regulations. 

 

10.2 Contractor agrees to be solely responsible for compliance with all applicable environmental regulations, 

for any liability arising from non-compliance with the regulations and to reimburse the City for any loss incurred 

in connection therewith. This compliance provision specifically includes the Contractor’s compliance with all 

applicable standards, orders or regulations including, without limitation, those issued pursuant to the Clean Air 

Act (42 U.S.C. 7401-7671q) and the Federal Water Pollution Control Act as amended (33 U.S.C. 1251-1387). 

 

10.3 Contractor agrees to utilize the U.S. Department of Homeland Security’s E-Verify System to verify the 

employment eligibility of all new employees hired by the Contractor during the term of this Contract. 

 



Page 10 of 35 

 

10.4 The Contractor represents and warrants that it has and will continue to maintain all licenses and 

approvals required to conduct its business and provide the work required under the Contract Documents.  Proof 

of such licenses and approvals shall be submitted to the City upon request. 

 

Article 11. INFRINGEMENT INDEMNITY.    

 

11.1 The Contractor will defend or settle at its expense a claim or suit brought by a third party against the 

City arising out of a claim asserting that the services, work, repair, materials or other deliverables 

(“deliverables” hereafter) provided by the Contractor under the Contract Documents (if any) infringes any U.S. 

copyright or any U.S. patent or misappropriates a trade secret. The Contractor will indemnify and hold 

harmless the City against and from damages, costs, and attorneys’ fees, if any and at all levels of trial and 

appeal or mediation or arbitration, finally awarded in such suit or the amount of the settlement thereof; 

provided that (i) the Contractor is promptly notified in writing of such claim or suit, (ii) the Contractor will 

have the sole control of the defense and settlement thereof, and (iii) City furnishes the Contractor, on 

reasonable request, information available to City for such defense. The City will not admit any such claim 

without prior consent of the Contractor. 

a. In the event of a claim of infringement, the Contractor shall, at its option: 

1. procure for City the right to continue using the deliverables provided under the 

Contract Documents; or 

2. replace or modify the deliverables so that the same becomes non-infringing but 

substantially equivalent in functionality and performance. 

3. If neither of the above actions is reasonably feasible, the Contractor will refund to 

City the fee actually paid by City under the Contract Documents (as amortized on a straight-

line basis over the time in which the City was able to use the deliverables. 

b. The Contractor will have no obligation under this section for infringement if and to the extent 

that such claim arises from: 

1. modification of the deliverables other than by the Contractor or by its 

recommendation; or 

2. combination of the deliverables with products other than those supplied by the 

Contractor;  

and, 

3. the alleged infringement or misappropriation relates to such modification or 

combination. 

c. The Contractor will also not have any indemnification obligation with respect to a claim: (i) 

if it has provided City with reasonable changes that would have avoided the problem and the reasonable 

changes are not fully implemented by City within a reasonable time or (ii) arising out use of the deliverables 

not in accordance with the Contract Documents. 

d. The Contractor’s obligation to indemnify, defend and hold harmless shall remain in effect and 

shall be binding upon the Contractor whether such injury or damage shall accrue, or may be discovered, before 

or after termination or expiration of the Contract Documents. 

 

 

 



Page 11 of 35 

 

Article 12. MISCELLANEOUS. 

 

12.1 The City and Contractor each binds itself, its partners, its successors, assigns and legal representatives 

to the other party hereto, its partners, successors, assigns and legal representatives in respect of all covenants, 

agreements and obligations contained in the Contract Documents. 

 

12.2 Additional work and/or changes to a work order’s price and/or time, is subject to the City’s prior written 

approval. Only the City Manager and City Commission (based on the procurement code) have the authority to 

approve such additional work and changes.  

 

12.3 The headings contained in this Contract are inserted for convenience of reference only and shall not be 

a part or control or affect the meaning hereof.  

 

12.4 This Contract may be executed in two or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed to be an 

original, but all of which shall be deemed to be an original, but each of which together shall constitute one and 

the same instrument. 

 

12.5 This Contract (together with the other Contract Documents) supersedes any and all prior negotiations 

and oral or written agreements heretofore made relating to the subject matter hereof and, except for written 

agreements, if any, executed and delivered simultaneously with or subsequent to the date of this Contract, 

constitutes the entire agreement of the parties relating to the subject matter hereof. This Contract may not be 

altered or amended except by a writing signed by the parties hereto. No waiver of any of the terms or conditions 

of this Contract shall be effective unless in writing and executed by the party to be changed therewith. No waiver 

of any condition or of the breach of any term, covenant, representation, warranty or other provision hereof shall 

be deemed to be construed as a further or continuing waiver of any such condition or breach or a waiver of any 

other condition or of any breach of any other term, covenant, representation, warranty or other provision 

contained in this Contract. 

 

12.6   This Contract shall be binding upon, and shall inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their 

respective successors and assigns. 

 

12.7    This Contract shall be governed by and construed and interpreted in accordance with the laws of the 

State of Florida. Each of the parties hereto (a) irrevocably submit itself to the exclusive jurisdiction of the 

Fifteenth Judicial Circuit Court in and for Palm Beach County, Florida for state actions and jurisdiction of the 

United States District Court for the Southern District of Florida, Palm Beach Division, for the purposes of any 

suit, action or other proceeding arising out of, or relating to, this Contract; (b) waives and agrees not to assert 

against any party hereto, by way of motion, as a defense of otherwise, in any suit, action or other proceeding, 

any claim that it is not personally subject to the jurisdiction of the above-named courts for any reason 

whatsoever; and (c) to the extent permitted by applicable law, any claim that such suit, action or proceeding by 

any part hereto is brought in an inconvenient forum or that the venue of such suit, action or proceeding is 

improper or that this Contract or the subject matter hereof may not be enforced in or by such courts. 

 

12.8   This Contract shall create no rights or claims whatsoever in any third party. 

 

12.9   If any one or more of the provisions of the Contract shall be held to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable in 

any respect, the validity, legality and enforceability of the remaining provisions hereof shall not in any way be 

affected or impaired thereby.    

 

12.10   The effective date of this Contract is the date the Contract is approved by the City Commission. 

 



Page 12 of 35 

 

12.11 Public Records:  The Contractor shall comply with Florida’s Public Records Act, Chapter 119, 

 Florida Statutes, and, if determined to be acting on behalf of the City as provided under section 

 119.011(2), Florida Statutes, specifically agrees to: 

 

(a) Keep and maintain public records required by the City to perform the service. 

 

(b) Upon request from the City’s custodian of public records or designee, provide the City with a 

copy of the requested records or allow the records to be inspected or copied within a reasonable time at 

a cost that does not exceed the cost provided in Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, or as otherwise provided 

by law. 

 

(c) Ensure that public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records 

disclosure requirements are not disclosed except as authorized by law for the duration of this Contract 

and following completion of this Contract if the Contractor does not transfer the records to the City. 

 

(d) Upon completion of this Contract, transfer, at no cost, to the City all public records in possession 

of the Contractor or keep and maintain public records required by the City to perform the service. If the 

Contractor transfers all public records to the City upon completion of the Contract, the Contractor shall 

destroy any duplicate public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records 

disclosure requirements. If the Contractor keeps and maintains public records upon completion of the 

Contract, the Contractor shall meet all applicable requirements for retaining public records. All records 

stored electronically must be provided to the City, upon request from the City’s custodian of public 

records or designee, in a format that is compatible with the information technology systems of the City.  

 

IF THE CONTRACTOR HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE APPLICATION 

OF CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA STATUTES, TO THE CONTRACTOR’S DUTY 

TO PROVIDE PUBLIC RECORDS RELATING TO THIS CONTRACT, 

CONTACT THE CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC RECORDS OR DESIGNEE AT: 

ATTENTION CITY CLERK, (561) 586-1660 OR 

CITYCLERK@LAKEWORTHBEACHFL.GOV OR 7 NORTH DIXIE 

HIGHWAY, LAKE WORTH BEACH, FL  33460. 
 

12.12 This Contract shall not be construed more strongly against either party regardless of who was more 

responsible for its preparation. 

 

12.13 In accordance with Palm Beach County ordinance number 2011-009, the Contractor acknowledges that 

this Contract may be subject to investigation and/or audit by the Palm Beach County Inspector General.  The 

Contractor has reviewed Palm Beach County ordinance number 2011-009 and is aware of its rights and/or 

obligations under such ordinance. 

 

12.14 If any legal action or other proceeding is brought for the enforcement of this Contract or the Contract 

Documents, or because of an alleged dispute, breach, default or misrepresentation in connection with any 

provisions of this Contract or the Contract Documents, each party shall be responsible for their own attorney’s 

fees at all levels.  EACH PARTY ALSO AGREES AND VOLUNTARILY WAIVES ANY RIGHT TO A JURY 

TRIAL ARISING OUT OF ALLEGED DISPUTE, BREACH, DEFAULT, MISREPRESENTATION OR ANY 

OTHER CLAIM IN CONNECTION WITH OR ARISING FROM ANY PROVISION OF THIS CONTRACT 

OR THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 

 

mailto:CITYCLERK@LAKEWORTHBEACHFL.


Page 13 of 35 

 

12.15 Each of the parties agrees to perform its obligations under the Contract Documents in conformance with 

all laws, regulations and administrative instructions that relate to the parties’ performance of the work and under 

the Contract Documents. 

 

12.16 All documents, including but not limited to drawings, specifications, plans, reports, other items and data 

or programs stored in hard-copy, electronically or otherwise (collectively referred to as “Documents” hereafter), 

prepared by the Contractor or its subcontractors under this Contract shall be considered a “Work for Hire” and 

the exclusive property of the City. To the extent such Documents may not be deemed a “Work for Hire” under 

applicable law, Contractor and Contractor’s Subcontractors will assign to the City all right, title and interest in 

and to Contractor and/or Contractor’s Subcontractors’ copyright(s) for such Documents. Contractor shall 

execute and deliver to City such instruments of transfer and take such other action that City may reasonable 

request, including, without limitation, executing and filing, at City’s expense, copyright applications, 

assignments and other documents required for the protection of City’s right to such Documents.  The Contractor 

shall retain copies of the Documents for a period of three (3) years from the date of completion of the Program. 

The City grants to the Contractor and Contractor’s subcontractors the right and/or limited license to use a portion 

of the Documents prepared by the Contractor or the Contractor’s subcontractors in future projects of the 

Contractor or Contractor’s subcontractors with said right and/or limited license to use a portion at Contractor’s 

or Contractor’s subcontractor’s own risk and without any liability to City. Any modifications made by the City 

to any of the Contractor’s Documents, or any use, partial use or reuse of the Documents without written 

authorization or adaptation by the Contractor will be at the City’s sole risk and without liability to the Contractor.    

 

12.17 Any provision of this Contract which is of a continuing nature or imposes an obligation which extends 

beyond the term of this Contract shall survive its expiration or earlier termination.  

 

12.18 Any notice required to be given under the Contract Documents shall be sent by certified mail (return 

receipt requested) or by nationally recognized overnight courier as follows to the City: 

 

 City of Lake Worth Beach 

 Attn:  City Manager 

 7 N. Dixie Highway 

 Lake Worth Beach, FL  33460 

 

 and to the Contractor as follows: 

  

 Wilco Electrical, LLC 

 430 Business Park Way 

 Royal Palm Beach, FL   33411 

 Attn: Thomas Nemic, President 

   

 

 Either party may amend this provision by written notice to the other party. 

 

12.19 The Contractor represents that it presently has no interest and shall acquire no interest, either direct or 

indirect, which would conflict in any manner with the performance of services required hereunder, as provided 

for in Section 112.311, Florida Statutes. The Contractor further represents that no person having any such 

conflicting interest shall be employed for said performance. The Contractor shall promptly notify the City’s 

representative, in writing, of all potential conflicts of interest for any prospective business association, interest 

or other circumstance which may influence or appear to influence the Contractor’s judgment or quality of 

services being provided hereunder. Such written notification shall identify the prospective business association, 

interest or circumstance, the nature of work that the Contractor may undertake and request an opinion of the City 

as to whether the association, interest or circumstance would, in the opinion of the City, constitute a conflict of 



Page 14 of 35 

 

interest if entered into by the Contractor. The City agrees to notify the Contractor of its opinion within thirty 

(30) days of receipt of notification by the Contractor. If, in the opinion of the City, the prospective business 

association, interest or circumstance would not constitute a conflict of interest by the Contractor, the City shall 

so state in the notification and the Contractor shall, at its option, enter into said association, interest or 

circumstance and it shall be deemed not in conflict of interest with respect to services provided to the City by 

the Contractor under the terms of this Contract. 

 

12.20  The Contractor warrants and represents that all of its employees are treated equally during employment 

without regard to race, color, religion, disability, sex, age, national origin, ancestry, political affiliation, marital 

status, handicap, or sexual orientation. Further, Contractor shall not discriminate or permit discrimination against 

any employee or an applicant for employment on the basis of race, color, sex, religion, political affiliation, 

natural origin, ancestry, marital status, sexual orientation or handicap.   

 

12.21  This Contract is not intended to be and shall not be construed as an exclusive agreement, and the City 

may employ additional or other contractors to perform services contemplated by this Contract without liability 

to the City. 

 

12.22 PUBLIC ENTITY CRIMES. The Contractor acknowledges and agrees that a person or affiliate who has 

been placed on the convicted vendor list following a conviction for a public entity crime may not submit a bid, 

proposal, or reply on a contract to provide any goods or services to a public entity; may not submit a bid, 

proposal, or reply on a contract with a public entity for the construction or repair of a public building or public 

work; may not submit bids, proposals, or replies on leases of real property to a public entity; may not be awarded 

or perform work as a contractor, supplier or sub-contractor under a contract with any public entity; and may not 

transact business with any public entity in excess of the threshold amount provided in Section 287.017, Florida 

Statutes, for CATEGORY TWO for a period of 36 months following the date of being placed on the convicted 

vendor list. The Contractor will promptly advise the City if it becomes aware of any violation of this statute. 

 

12.21 PURSUANT TO SECTION 558.005, FLORIDA STATUTES, ANY CLAIMS FOR 

CONSTRUCTION DEFECTS ARE NOT SUBJECT TO THE NOTICE AND CURE PROVISIONS OF 

CHAPTER 558, FLORIDA STATUTES.  

 

12.22 The Contract shall be responsible for initiating, maintaining and supervising all safety precautions and 

programs in connection with the performance of all services and work. This includes being responsible for all 

precautions for safety of, and reasonable protection to prevent damage, injury or loss to employees performing 

the services and work and other persons who may be affected thereby; the work, materials and equipment 

incorporated therein; and other property, equipment or materials at the site or adjacent thereto including, 

without limitation, trees, shrubs, lawns, sidewalks, pavements, roadways or structures and utilities not 

designated for removal, relocation or replacement in the course of the work. The Contractor shall comply with 

and give all notices required by applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, rules and regulations bearing on safety 

of persons or property, or their protection from damage, injury or loss. The Contractor shall implement, erect 

and maintain reasonable safeguards for safety and protection, including posting danger signs and other 

warnings against hazards reasonably related to the work or which could arise therefrom. The Contractor shall 

promptly remedy damage and loss (other than covered by applicable insurance) caused in whole or in part by 

the Contractor or anyone directly or indirectly employed by or utilized by the Contractor in the performance 

of the work, which is not attributable to the City’s negligence. 

 

12.23 The Contractor agrees that, in all matters relating to this Contract, it will be acting as an independent 

contractor with exclusive control of the manner and means of performing the work, its obligations and tasks in 

accordance with the requirements of this Contract and the Contract Documents. The Contractor has no 

authority to act or make any agreements or representations on behalf of the City. This Contract is not intended, 

and shall not be construed to create, between the City and the Contractor, the relationship of principal and 



Page 15 of 35 

 

agent, joint-venturers, co-partners or any other such relationship, the existence of which is hereby expressly 

denied. No employee or agent of Contractor shall be, or shall be deemed to be, an employee or agent of City. 

 

Article 13. SCRUTINIZED COMPANIES 

 

13.1 CONTRACTOR certifies that it and its subcontractors are not on the Scrutinized Companies that 

Boycott Israel List and are not engaged in the boycott of Israel.  Pursuant to section 287.135, Florida Statutes, 

the CITY may immediately terminate this Agreement at its sole option if the CONTRACTOR or any of its 

subcontractors are found to have submitted a false certification; or if the CONTRACTOR or any of its 

subcontractors, are placed on the Scrutinized Companies that Boycott Israel List or is engaged in the boycott of 

Israel during the term of this Agreement. 

13.2 If this Agreement is for one million dollars or more, the CONTRACTOR certifies that it and its 

subcontractors are also not on the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in Sudan List, Scrutinized Companies 

with Activities in the Iran Petroleum Energy Sector List, or engaged in business operations in Cuba or Syria as 

identified in Section 287.135, Florida Statutes.  Pursuant to Section 287.135, the CITY may immediately 

terminate this Agreement at its sole option if the CONTRACTOR, or any of its subcontractors are found to have 

submitted a false certification; or if the CONTRACTOR or any of its subcontractors are placed on the Scrutinized 

Companies with Activities in Sudan List, or Scrutinized Companies with Activities in the Iran Petroleum Energy 

Sector List, or are or have been engaged with business operations in Cuba or Syria during the term of this 

Agreement. 

13.3 The CONTRACTOR agrees to observe the above requirements for applicable subcontracts entered into 

for the performance of work under this Agreement. 

13.4 The CONTRACTOR agrees that the certifications in this section shall be effective and relied upon by 

the CITY for the term of this Agreement, including any and all renewals. 

13.5 The CONTRACTOR agrees that if it or any of its subcontractors’ status changes in regards to any 

certification herein, the CONTRACTOR shall immediately notify the CITY of the same. 

13.6 As provided in Subsection 287.135(8), Florida Statutes, if federal law ceases to authorize the above-

stated contracting prohibitions then they shall become inoperative. 

 

Article 14. E-VERIFY 

 

Pursuant to Section 448.095(2), Florida Statutes, the CONTRACTOR shall: 

14.1. Register with and use the E-Verify system to verify the work authorization status of all newly hired 

employees and require all subcontractors (providing services or receiving funding under this Agreement) to 

register with and use the E-Verify system to verify the work authorization status of all the subcontractors’ newly 

hired employees; 

14.2. Secure an affidavit from all subcontractors (providing services or receiving funding under this 

Agreement) stating that the subcontractor does not employ, Agreement with, or subcontract with an 

“unauthorized alien” as defined in Section 448.095(1)(k), Florida Statutes; 

14.3. Maintain copies of all subcontractor affidavits for the duration of this Agreement and provide the same 

to the CITY upon request; 

14.4 Comply fully, and ensure all of its subcontractors comply fully, with Section 448.095, Florida Statutes; 

14.5. Be aware that a violation of Section 448.09, Florida Statutes (Unauthorized aliens; employment 

prohibited) shall be grounds for termination of this Agreement; and, 

14.6. Be aware that if the CITY terminates this Agreement under Section 448.095(2)(c), Florida Statutes, 

CONTRACTOR may not be awarded a Agreement for at least 1 year after the date on which the Agreement is 

terminated and will be liable for any additional costs incurred by the CITY as a result of the termination of the 

Agreement.   

Remainder of this page intentionally left blank 

Signature page follows  





Page 17 of 35 

 

 

EXHIBIT “A” 

SAMPLE WORK ORDER 

 

CONTRACT FOR SYSTEM HARDENING AND RELIABILITY IMPROVEMENTS 

WORK ORDER NO._____ 

 

THIS WORK ORDER for System Hardening and Reliability Improvements (“Work Order” hereafter) 

is made on the ____ ___________________________, between the City of Lake Worth Beach, a Florida 

municipal corporation located at 7 North Dixie Highway, Lake Worth Beach, Florida 33460 (“City” hereafter) 

and  Wilco Electrical, LLC, a Florida Limited Liability Company authorized to do business in State of Florida 

(“Contractor” hereafter). 

 

1.0 Project Description: 

 

The City desires the Contractor to provide all goods, services, materials and equipment as identified 

herein related to the System Hardening and Reliability Improvements project generally described as:  

__________________________________________________________ (the “Project”). The Project is 

more specifically described in the plans prepared by ______________________, dated ____________, 

and which are incorporated herein by reference.  

 

2.0 Scope 

 

Under this Work Order, the Contractor will provide the City of Lake Worth Beach with construction 

services for the Project as specified in the Contractor’s proposal attached hereto and incorporated 

herein as Exhibit “1”.    

 

3.0 Schedule and Liquidated Damages 

 

Substantial completion of all services and work under this Work Order shall be within ____   calendar 

days from the Effective Date of this Work Order. Final completion of all services and work (and all 

punch-list items (if any)) under this Work Order shall be within ____ calendar days from the Effective 

Date of this Work Order. The Effective Date of this Work Order is the date following the parties’ 

execution of this Work Order and the City’s delivery of a Notice to Proceed to the Contractor via e-mail, 

facsimile or other form of delivery as documented by the City. Substantial completion occurs when the 

services and work has progressed to the point where, in the opinion of the City, the work is sufficiently 

complete in accordance with the Contract Documents and this Work Order, so that the Project can be 

utilized for the purposes for which it is intended. Final completion occurs when all services and work 

(including punch-list items) has been completed and the project becomes fully operational and accepted 

by the City. 

 

Liquidated Damages. The City and Contractor recognize that time is of the essence under this 

Work Order and the Contract Documents, and that the City will suffer financial loss if the services 

and work described in this Work Order and the Contract Documents are not completed within 

the times specified in this Work Order. The City and Contractor recognize, agree and 

acknowledge that it would be impractical and extremely difficult to ascertain and fix the actual 

damages that the City would suffer in the event Contractor neglects, refuses, or otherwise fails to 

complete the services and work within the time specified. Accordingly, instead of requiring any 

such proof, the City and Contractor agree that as liquidated damages for delay (but not as a 

penalty) Contractor shall pay the City________ hundred dollars ($_________.00) for each day 

that expires after the time specified in this Work Order.   



Page 18 of 35 

 

 

 

4.0 Compensation and Direct Purchases 

 

This Work Order is issued for a lump sum, not to exceed amount of $______________________ 

(_____________________). The attached proposal identifies all costs and expenses included in the 

lump sum, not to exceed amount. 

 

The following Direct Purchases are to be made under this Work Order by the City: ________________ 

__________________________________________________________________________________

_________________________________________________________________________________. 

 

5.0 Project Manager 

 

The Project Manager for the Contractor is __________________________, 

phone:___________________; email: ____________________; and, the Project Manager for the City 

is ______________________________, phone:_________________________________; 

email:_______________________. 

 

6.0 Progress Meetings 

 

The Contractor shall schedule periodic progress review meetings with the City Project Manager as 

necessary but every 30 days as a minimum. 

 

7.0 Contractor’s Representations 

 

In order to induce the City to enter into this Work Order, the Contractor makes the following 

representations: 

 

7.1 Contractor has familiarized itself with the nature and extent of the Contract Documents 

including this Work Order, work, site, locality, and all local conditions and laws and regulations that in 

any manner may affect cost, progress, performance or furnishing of the work. 

 

7.2 Contractor has obtained at his/her own expense and carefully studied, or assumes responsibility 

for obtaining and carefully studying, soil investigations, explorations, and test reports which pertain to 

the subsurface conditions at or contiguous to the site or otherwise may affect the cost, progress, 

performance or furnishing of the work as Contractor considers necessary for the performance or 

furnishing of the work at the stated work order price within the Work Order stated time and in 

accordance with the other terms and conditions of the Contract Documents, including specifically the 

provisions of the IFB; and no additional examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, reports, studies 

or similar information or data are or is deemed necessary by Contractor for such purposes. 

 

7.3 Contractor has reviewed and checked all information and data shown or indicated on the 

Contract Documents with respect to existing Underground Facilities at or contiguous to the site and 

assumes responsibility for the accurate location of said Underground Facilities. No additional 

examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, reports, studies or similar information or data in respect 

of said Underground Facilities are or is deemed necessary by the Contractor in order to perform and 

furnish the work under this Work Order price, within the Work Order time and in accordance with the 

other terms and conditions of the Contract Documents. 

 

7.4 Contractor has correlated the results of all such observations, examinations, investigations, 



Page 19 of 35 

 

explorations, tests, reports and studies with the terms and conditions of the Contract Documents. 

 

7.5 Contractor has given the City’s Contract Administrator written notice of all conflicts, errors or 

discrepancies that he or she has discovered in the Contract Documents and the written resolution thereof 

by City or its designee is acceptable to the Contractor. 

 

8.0 Warranty.  The Contractor warrants and guarantees to the City that all services and work provided 

under this Work Order will be in accordance with this Work Order and the other Contract Documents. 

The Contractor warrants that (a) all materials and parts supplied under this Work Order shall be free 

from defects for one (1) year from the final completion of all work (unless a longer manufacturer 

warranty applies); (b) all services and work performed under this Work Order will be free from defects 

for one (1) year from the final completion of all work and the project shall be fully operational without 

unreasonable downtime or failures; and (c) that the services and work will conform to the requirements 

of the Contract Documents. If, at any time prior to the expiration of the one (1) year warranty period, 

the City discovers any failure or breach of the Contractor’s warranties or the Contractor discovers any 

failure or breach of the Contractor’s warranties, the Contractor will, upon written notice from City or of 

its own accord, at the Contractor’s sole cost and expense, promptly correct such failure or breach (which 

corrective action must include, without limitation, any necessary removal, disassembly, reinstallation, 

repair, replacement, reassembly, retesting, and/or re-inspection of any part or portion of the work and 

any other property damaged or affected by such failure, breach, or corrective action). The Contractor 

will remedy any such failure or breach so, to the extent possible, to avoid unnecessary disruptions to the 

operations of City or its systems. In the event the Contractor fails to initiate and diligently pursue 

corrective action within five (5) days of the Contractor’s receipt of the City’s notice or the Contractor’s 

discovery of the same, the City may undertake such corrective action at the Contractor’s expense.  

 

9.0 Authorization 

 

This Work Order is issued pursuant to the System Hardening and Reliability Improvements Contract for 

between the City of Lake Worth Beach and the Contractor, dated _____________, (“Contract” 

hereafter). If there are any conflicts between the terms and conditions of this Work Order and the 

Contract, the terms and conditions of the Contract shall prevail.  

 

  

 

REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS 

 

 

 

 

  



Page 20 of 35 

 

 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have made and executed this Work Order as of the day 

and year set forth above.   

 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA 

 

ATTEST:                                                                       

             

                                              

By: __________________________                By: ____DO NOT SIGN – SAMPLE ONLY____________ 

      Melissa Ann Coyne, City Clerk                                Betty Resch, Mayor 

 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND                          APPROVED FOR FINANCIAL         

LEGAL SUFFICIENCY:                                        SUFFICIENCY 

 

 

By: __________________________                By: _______________________________________ 

      Glen J. Torcivia, City Attorney                            Yannick Ngendahayo, Financial Services Director 

 

 

 

CONTRACTOR:  WILCO ELECTRICAL, LLC 

 

      By: __DO NOT SIGN – SAMPLE ONLY ___ 

 

[Corporate Seal]    Print Name: ___________________________ 

 

      Title: _________________________________ 

 

 

STATE OF _______________________) 

COUNTY OF _____________________) 

 

THE FOREGOING instrument was acknowledged before me by means of • physical presence or • 

online notarization on this ____ day of ______________ 2023, by ________________________, as the 

________________________ [title] of  Wilco Electrical, LLC.,  a Florida Limited Liability Company , who 

is personally known to me or who has produced _________________________ as identification, and who did 

take an oath that he or she is duly authorized to execute the foregoing instrument and bind the CONTRACTOR 

to the same.   

 

 

 

____________________________________ 

Notary Public Signature 

Notary Seal:     

 

    

 

 



Page 21 of 35 

 

EXHIBIT “B” 

HOURLY BILLING RATES 

 

 

 
  



Page 22 of 35 

 

 

 
 



Page 23 of 35 

 

 
 



Page 24 of 35 

 

  



Page 25 of 35 

 

 

EXHIBIT “C” 

PUBLIC CONSTRUCTION BOND FORMS 

 

Record and Return to: 

 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH  

PAYMENT AND PERFORMANCE BOND 

(Pursuant to sec. 255.05, Fla. Stat.) 

 

Surety Bond No. __________  

   

Any singular reference to Contractor, Surety, Owner or other party shall be considered plural where applicable. 

 

CONTRACTOR:     SURETY: 

Name:       Name: 

Principal Business Address:    Principal Business Address 

 

Telephone Number:     Telephone Number: 

 

OWNER: 

City of Lake Worth Beach 

7 North Dixie Highway 

Lake Worth Beach, FL  33460 

(561) 586-1600 

 

CONTRACT:  System Hardening and Reliability Improvement Program 

Contract Work Order No: 

Date: 

Amount: 

Description (Name and Location):  

General Description of Work: 

 

BOND 

Date (not earlier than Work Order Date): 

Amount: 

Modifications to this Bond Form: 

 

This Bond is issued in favor of the City of Lake Worth Beach/Owner conditioned on the full and faithful 

performance of the Contract. 

1. Contractor has entered into Project No. ___________________ with the City for the project titled 

“_____________________________” (the “Contract”), with conditions and provisions as are further described 

in the aforementioned Contract, which Contract, including all of its attachments, exhibits and incorporated 

documents (hereinafter, collectively, the “Contract Documents”) is by reference made a part hereof for the 

purposes of explaining this bond. 

2. Principal and Surety are bound to the Owner in the sum of the Contract Amount set forth above for 

payment of which we bind ourselves, our heirs, personal representatives, successors, and assigns, jointly and 

severally. 

3. THE CONDITION OF THIS BOND is that if Principal: 

 a. Performs the Work required of and in accordance with the Contract Documents at the times and in 

the manner prescribed in the Contract Documents, which are made a part of this bond by reference; and 



Page 26 of 35 

 

 b. In accordance with sec. 255.05 and sec. 337.18, Florida Statutes, promptly makes payment s to 

all persons, defined in sec. 713.01, Florida Statutes, who furnish labor, services or materials for prosecution of 

the work set forth in the Contract Documents described above; and 

 c. Pays Owner all losses, damages (including liquidated damages), expenses, costs, and 

professional fees, including but not limited to attorneys’ fees, including appellate proceedings, that Owner 

sustains because of a default by Principal under the Contract Documents; and 

 d. Performs the warranty and guarantee of all work and materials furnished under the Contract 

Documents for the time specified in the Contract Documents, then this bond is void; otherwise it remains in full 

force. 

4.      Section 255.05, Fla. Stat., as amended, together with all notice and time provisions contained therein, 

is incorporated herein by reference. 

5. Any action instituted by a claimant under this bond for payment must be in accordance with the notice 

and time limitation provisions in secs. 255.05(2) and (10), Fla. Stat., and those of sec. 337.18, Fla. Stat. 

6.        Any changes in or under the Contract Documents and compliance or noncompliance with any 

formalities connected with the Contract Documents or the changes does not affect Surety's obligation under this 

bond, and Surety waives notice of such changes. 

7. Principal and Surety expressly acknowledge that any and all provisions relating to consequential, delay 

and liquidated damages contained in the contract are expressly covered by and made a part of this Performance, 

Labor and Material Payment Bond.  Principal and Surety acknowledge that any such provisions lie within their 

obligations and within the policy coverages and limitations of this instrument. 

8. Any action brought under this instrument shall be brought in the state court of competent jurisdiction in 

Palm Beach County, Florida, and not elsewhere. 

Surety and Contractor, intending to be legally bound hereby, subject to the terms included herein and as required 

under Florida Statutes, do each cause this Performance and Payment Bond to be duly executed on its behalf by 

its authorized officer, agent, or representative. 

 

Signed and sealed this _______ day of ______________________________, 20__. 

 

 

_________________________________  __________________________________ 

Witness      Principal 

 

       __________________________________ 

       Title 

(Corporate Seal) 

 

_________________________________  __________________________________ 

Witness      Surety 

 

       __________________________________ 

       Attorney-in-Fact 

       (Attach Power of Attorney) 

 

__________________________________ 

       Print Name 

 

       (Corporate Seal) 

 

  



Page 27 of 35 

 

EXHIBIT “D” 

 

Federal Contract Provisions 

 

The Contractor hereby agrees that the following terms, at a minimum, will be incorporated into any subsequent 

contract resulting from this IFB, which is funded in whole or in part with any federal or other funding where the 

following terms are applicable: 

 

Equal Employment Opportunity. During the performance of the resulting contract, the Contractor agrees as 

follows: 

 

(1) The Contractor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 

color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, or national origin. The Contractor will take affirmative 

action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during employment without regard 

to their race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, or national origin. Such action shall include, 

but not be limited to the following: 

Employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; 

rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship. The Contractor 

agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for employment, notices to be 

provided setting forth the provisions of this nondiscrimination clause.   

(2) The Contractor will, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of the 

Contractor, state that all qualified applicants will receive consideration for employment without regard to race, 

color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, or national origin. 

(3) The Contractor will not discharge or in any other manner discriminate against any employee or applicant 

for employment because such employee or applicant has inquired about, discussed, or disclosed the 

compensation of the employee or applicant or another employee or applicant. This provision shall not apply to 

instances in which an employee who has access to the compensation information of other employees or 

applicants as a part of such employee's essential job functions discloses the compensation of such other 

employees or applicants to individuals who do not otherwise have access to such information, unless such 

disclosure is in response to a formal complaint or charge, in furtherance of an investigation, proceeding, hearing, 

or action, including an investigation conducted by the employer, or is consistent with the Contractor's legal duty 

to furnish information. 

(4) The Contractor will send to each labor union or representative of workers with which he has a collective 

bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding, a notice to be provided advising the said labor union 

or workers' representatives of the Contractor's commitments under this section, and shall post copies of the notice 

in conspicuous places available to employees and applicants for employment. 

(5) The Contractor will comply with all provisions of Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, and 

of the rules, regulations, and relevant orders of the Secretary of Labor. 

 (6) The Contractor will furnish all information and reports required by Executive Order 11246 of September 

24, 1965, and by rules, regulations, and orders of the Secretary of Labor, or pursuant thereto, and will permit 

access to his books, records, and accounts by the administering agency and the Secretary of Labor for purposes 

of investigation to ascertain compliance with such rules, regulations, and orders. 

(7) In the event of the Contractor's noncompliance with the nondiscrimination clauses of this contract or 

with any of the said rules, regulations, or orders, this contract may be canceled, terminated, or suspended in 

whole or in part and the Contractor may be declared ineligible for further Government contracts or federally 

assisted construction contracts in accordance with procedures authorized in Executive Order 11246 of September 

24, 1965, and such other sanctions may be imposed and remedies invoked as provided in Executive Order 11246 

of September 24, 1965, or by rule, regulation, or order of the Secretary of Labor, or as otherwise provided by 

law. 

(8) The Contractor will include the portion of the sentence immediately preceding paragraph (1) and the 

provisions of paragraphs (1) through (8) in every subcontract or purchase order unless exempted by rules, 



Page 28 of 35 

 

regulations, or orders of the Secretary of Labor issued pursuant to section 204 of Executive Order 11246 of 

September 24, 1965, so that such provisions will be binding upon each subcontractor or vendor. The Contractor 

will take such action with respect to any subcontract or purchase order as the administering agency may direct 

as a means of enforcing such provisions, including sanctions for noncompliance:  Provided, however, that in the 

event a Contractor becomes involved in, or is threatened with, litigation with a subcontractor or vendor as a 

result of such direction by the administering agency, the Contractor may request the United States to enter into 

such litigation to protect the interests of the United States.  

The applicant further agrees that it will be bound by the above equal opportunity clause with respect to its own 

employment practices when it participates in federally assisted construction work: Provided, That if the applicant 

so participating is a State or local government, the above equal opportunity clause is not applicable to any 

agency, instrumentality or subdivision of such government which does not participate in work on or under the 

contract.  The applicant agrees that it will assist and cooperate actively with the administering agency and the 

Secretary of Labor in obtaining the compliance of contractors and subcontractors with the equal opportunity 

clause and the rules, regulations, and relevant orders of the Secretary of Labor, that it will furnish the 

administering agency and the Secretary of Labor such information as they may require for the supervision of 

such compliance, and that it will otherwise assist the administering agency in the discharge of the agency's 

primary responsibility for securing compliance.   

The applicant further agrees that it will refrain from entering into any contract or contract modification subject 

to Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, with a Contractor debarred from, or who has not demonstrated 

eligibility for, Government contracts and federally assisted construction contracts pursuant to the Executive 

Order and will carry out such sanctions and penalties for violation of the equal opportunity clause as may be 

imposed upon contractors and subcontractors by the administering agency or the Secretary of Labor pursuant to 

Part II, Subpart D of the Executive Order. In addition, the applicant agrees that if it fails or refuses to comply 

with these undertakings, the administering agency may take any or all of the following actions: Cancel, 

terminate, or suspend in whole or in part this grant (contract, loan, insurance, guarantee); refrain from extending 

any further assistance to the applicant under the program with respect to which the failure or refund occurred 

until satisfactory assurance of future compliance has been received from such applicant; and refer the case to the 

Department of Justice for appropriate legal proceedings. 

 

Compliance with the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act. 

(1) Overtime requirements. No Contractor or subcontractor contracting for any part of the contract work 

which may require or involve the employment of laborers or mechanics shall require or permit any such laborer 

or mechanic in any workweek in which he or she is employed on such work to work in excess of forty hours in 

such workweek unless such laborer or mechanic receives compensation at a rate not less than one and one-half 

times the basic rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of forty hours in such workweek. 

(2) Violation; liability for unpaid wages; liquidated damages. In the event of any violation of the clause set 

forth in paragraph (1) of this section the Contractor and any subcontractor responsible therefor shall be liable 

for the unpaid wages. In addition, such Contractor and subcontractor shall be liable to the United States (in the 

case of work done under contract for the District of Columbia or a territory, to such District or to such territory), 

for liquidated damages. Such liquidated damages shall be computed with respect to each individual laborer or 

mechanic, including watchmen and guards, employed in violation of the clause set forth in paragraph (1) of this 

section, in the sum of $27 for each calendar day on which such individual was required or permitted to work in 

excess of the standard workweek of forty hours without payment of the overtime wages required by the clause 

set forth in paragraph (1) of this section.   

(3) Withholding for unpaid wages and liquidated damages. DOJ, the State of Florida, or the CITY  shall 

upon its own action or upon written request of an authorized representative of the Department of Labor withhold 

or cause to be withheld, from any moneys payable on account of work performed by the Contractor or 

subcontractor under any such contract or any other Federal contract with the same prime contractor, or any other 

federally-assisted contract subject to the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act, which is held by the 

same prime contractor, such sums as may be determined to be necessary to satisfy any liabilities of such 



Page 29 of 35 

 

Contractor or subcontractor for unpaid wages and liquidated damages as provided in the clause set forth in 

paragraph (2) of this section. 

(4) Subcontracts. The Contractor or subcontractor shall insert in any subcontracts the clauses set forth in 

paragraph (1) through (4) of this section and also a clause requiring the subcontractors to include these clauses 

in any lower tier subcontracts. The prime Contractor shall be responsible for compliance by any subcontractor 

or lower tier subcontractor with the clauses set forth in paragraphs (1) through (4) of this section. 

 

Rights to Inventions Made Under a Contract or Agreement 

If the Federal award meets the definition of “funding agreement” under 37 CFR § 401.2(a) and the recipient or 

subrecipient wishes to enter into a contract with a small business firm or nonprofit organization regarding the 

substitution of parties, assignment or performance of experimental, developmental, or research work under that 

“funding agreement,” the recipient or subrecipient must comply with the requirements of 37 CFR Part 401, 

“Rights to Inventions Made by Nonprofit Organizations and Small Business Firms Under Government Grants, 

Contracts and Cooperative Agreements,” and any implementing regulations issued by the awarding agency. 

 

Clean Air Act 

(1) The Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable standards, orders or regulations issued pursuant to the 

Clean Air Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 7401 et seq. 

(2) The Contractor agrees to report each violation to the City, and understands and agrees that the City will, in 

turn, report each violation as required to assure notification to the Federal Emergency Management Agency, and 

the appropriate Environmental Protection Agency Regional Office.  

(3) The Contractor agrees to include these requirements in each subcontract exceeding $150,000 financed in 

whole or in part with Federal assistance provided by DOJ. 

 

Federal Water Pollution Control Act  

(1) The Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable standards, orders, or regulations issued pursuant to the 

Federal Water Pollution Control Act, as amended, 33 U.S.C. 1251 et seq. 

(2) The Contractor agrees to report each violation to the CITY and understands and agrees that the CITY will, 

in turn, report each violation as required to assure notification to the Federal Emergency Management Agency, 

and the appropriate Environmental Protection Agency Regional Office. 

(3) The Contractor agrees to include these requirements in each subcontract exceeding $150,000 financed in 

whole or in part with Federal assistance provided by DOJ. 

 

Suspension and Debarment.  

(1) This contract is a covered transaction for purposes of 2 C.F.R. pt. 180 and 2 C.F.R. pt. 3000. As such, the 

Contractor is required to verify that none of the Contractor’s principals (defined at 2 C.F.R. § 180.995) or its 

affiliates (defined at 2 C.F.R. § 180.905) are excluded (defined at 2 C.F.R. § 180.940) or disqualified (defined 

at 2 C.F.R. § 180.935). 

(2) The Contractor must comply with 2 C.F.R. pt. 180, subpart C and 2 C.F.R. pt. 3000, subpart C, and must 

include a requirement to comply with these regulations in any lower tier covered transaction it enters into. 

(3) This certification, as laid out in Exhibit I, is a material representation of fact relied upon by the City. If it is 

later determined that the Contractor did not comply with 2 C.F.R. pt. 180, subpart C and 2 C.F.R. pt. 3000, 

subpart C, in addition to remedies available to the State of Florida or the City, the Federal Government may 

pursue available remedies, including but not limited to suspension and/or debarment. 

(4) The bidder or proposer agrees to comply with the requirements of 2 C.F.R. pt. 180, subpart C and 2 C.F.R. 

pt. 3000, subpart C while this offer is valid and throughout the period of any contract that may arise from this 

offer. The bidder or proposer further agrees to include a provision requiring such compliance in its lower tier 

covered transactions. 

 

Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment. 



Page 30 of 35 

 

 Contractors who apply or bid for an award of $100,000 or more shall file the required certification as laid out 

in Exhibit J. Each tier certifies to the tier above that it will not and has not used Federal appropriated funds to 

pay any person or organization for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, 

a Member of Congress, officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection 

with obtaining any Federal contract, grant, or any other award covered by 31 U.S.C. § 1352. Each tier shall also 

disclose any lobbying with non-Federal funds that takes place in connection with obtaining any Federal award. 

Such disclosures are forwarded from tier to tier up to the recipient who in turn will forward the certification(s) 

to the awarding agency. 

 

Procurement of Recovered materials.  

(i) In the performance of this contract, the Contractor shall make maximum use of products containing 

recovered materials that are EPA-designated items unless the product cannot be acquired— 

• Competitively within a timeframe providing for compliance with the contract performance schedule; 

• Meeting contract performance requirements; or 

• At a reasonable price. 

(ii)  Information about this requirement, along with the list of EPA-designated items, is available at EPA’s 

Comprehensive Procurement Guidelines web site, https://www.epa.gov/smm/comprehensive- procurement-

guideline-cpg-program. 

(iii) The Contractor also agrees to comply with all other applicable requirements of Section 6002 of the Solid 

Waste Disposal Act.” 

 

Access to Records.  

(1) The Contractor agrees to provide the State of Florida, the CITY, the DOJ Administrator, the Comptroller 

General of the United States, or any of their authorized representatives access to any books, documents, papers, 

and records of the Contractor which are directly pertinent to this contract for the purposes of making audits, 

examinations, excerpts, and transcriptions.  

(2) The Contractor agrees to permit any of the foregoing parties to reproduce by any means whatsoever or to 

copy excerpts and transcriptions as reasonably needed. 

(3) The Contractor agrees to provide the Federal Administrator or his authorized representatives access to 

construction or other work sites pertaining to the work being completed under the contract. 

(4) In compliance with the Disaster Recovery Act of 2018, the City and the Contractor acknowledge and agree 

that no language in this contract is intended to prohibit audits or internal reviews by the DOJ Administrator or 

the Comptroller General of the United States. 

 

DHS Seal, Logo, and Flags.  

The Contractor shall not use the DHS seal(s), logos, crests, or reproductions of flags or likenesses of DHS agency 

officials without specific DOJ pre-approval. 

 

Compliance with Federal Law, Regulations, and Executive Orders.  

By signing this agreement, the Contractor acknowledges that federal financial assistance may be used to fund 

all or a portion of the contract. The Contractor will comply with all applicable Federal law, regulations, executive 

orders, federal policies, procedures, and directives.  

 

No Obligation by Federal Government.  

The Federal Government is not a party to this contract and is not subject to any obligations or liabilities to the 

non-Federal entity, Contractor, or any other party pertaining to any matter resulting from the contract. 

 

Program Fraud and False or Fraudulent Statements or Related Acts. The Contractor acknowledges that 31 

U.S.C. Chap. 38 (Administrative Remedies for False Claims and Statements) applies to the Contractor’s actions 

pertaining to this contract. 

 



Page 31 of 35 

 

Affirmative Steps.  Required Affirmative Steps  

If the Contractor intends to subcontract any portion of the work covered by this Contract, the Contractor must 

take all necessary affirmative steps to assure that small and minority businesses, women’s business enterprises 

and labor surplus area firms are solicited and used when possible.  Affirmative steps must include: 

(1) Placing qualified small and minority businesses and women's business enterprises on solicitation lists; 

(2) Assuring that small and minority businesses, and women's business enterprises are solicited whenever 

they are potential sources; 

(3) Dividing total requirements, when economically feasible, into smaller tasks or quantities to permit 

maximum participation by small and minority businesses, and women's business enterprises; 

(4) Establishing delivery schedules, where the requirement permits, which encourage participation by small 

and minority businesses, and women's business enterprises; and 

(5) Using the services and assistance, as appropriate, of such organizations as the Small Business 

Administration and the Minority Business Development Agency of the Department of Commerce. 

 

Domestic preferences for procurements. 

(1) As appropriate and to the extent consistent with law, the Contractor should purchase, acquire, or use of goods, 

products, or materials produced in the United States (including but not limited to iron, aluminum, steel, cement, 

and other manufactured products).  

(2) For purposes of this section:  

(a) “Produced in the United States” means, for iron and steel products, that all manufacturing processes, from 

the initial melting stage through the application of coatings, occurred in the United States.  

(b) “Manufactured products” means items and construction materials composed in whole or in part of non-

ferrous metals such as aluminum; plastics and polymer-based products such as polyvinyl chloride pipe; 

aggregates such as concrete; glass, including optical fiber; and lumber. 

 

Prohibition on certain telecommunications and video surveillance services or equipment. 

(1) The Contractor is prohibited from obligating or expending loan or grant funds to:  

(a) Procure or obtain;  

(b) Extend or renew a contract to procure or obtain; or  

(c) Enter into a contract (or extend or renew a contract) to procure or obtain equipment, services, or systems that 

uses covered telecommunications equipment or services as a substantial or essential component of any system, 

or as critical technology as part of any system. As described in Public Law 115-232, section 889, covered 

telecommunications equipment is telecommunications equipment produced by Huawei Technologies Company 

or ZTE Corporation (or any subsidiary or affiliate of such entities).  

(i) For the purpose of public safety, security of government facilities, physical security surveillance of critical 

infrastructure, and other national security purposes, video surveillance and telecommunications equipment 

produced by Hytera Communications Corporation, Hangzhou Hikvision Digital Technology Company, or 

Dahua Technology Company (or any subsidiary or affiliate of such entities).  

(ii) Telecommunications or video surveillance services provided by such entities or using such equipment.  

(iii) Telecommunications or video surveillance equipment or services produced or provided by an entity that the 

Secretary of Defense, in consultation with the Director of the National Intelligence or the Director of the Federal 

Bureau of Investigation, reasonably believes to be an entity owned or controlled by, or otherwise connected to, 

the government of a covered foreign country.  

(2) In implementing the prohibition under Public Law 115-232, section 889, subsection (f), paragraph (1), the 

City shall prioritize available funding and technical support to assist affected businesses, institutions and 

organizations as is reasonably necessary for those affected entities to transition from covered communications 

equipment and services, to procure replacement equipment and services, and to ensure that communications 

service to users and customers is sustained. 

 

Compliance with the Davis-Bacon Act. 



Page 32 of 35 

 

a. All transactions regarding this contract shall be done in compliance with the Davis-Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. 

3141-3144, and 3146-3148) and the requirements of 29C.F.R. pt. 5 as may be applicable. The contractor shall 

comply with 40 U.S.C. 3141-3144, and 3146-3148 and the requirements of 29 C.F.R. pt. 5 as applicable. 

b. Contractors are required to pay wages to laborers and mechanics at a rate not less than the prevailing wages 

specified in a wage determination made by the Secretary of Labor. 

c. Additionally, contractors are required to pay wages not less than once a week. 

 

 

 

 

Current Davis Bacon wage determination for Heavy Construction shall be attached to each Work Order if 

Federal Funds are utilized.   

  



Page 33 of 35 

 

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY 

MATTERS - LOWER-TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS 

 

This document is a covered transaction for purposes of the debarment and suspension regulations implementing 

Executive Order 12549, Debarment and Suspension (1986) and Executive Order 12689, Debarment and 

Suspension (1989) at 2 C.F.R. Part 3000 (Non- procurement Debarment and Suspension).  As such, Contractor 

is required to confirm that none of the Contractor, its principals (defined at 2 C.F.R. § 180.995), or its affiliates 

(defined at 2 C.F.R. § 180.905) are excluded (defined at 2 C.F.R. § 180.940) or disqualified (defined at 2 C.F.R. 

§ 180.935).  

 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION 

 

1) By signing this Certification, the Contractor, also sometimes referred to herein as a prospective primary 

participant, is providing the certification set out below.  

 

2) The inability of a Contractor to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in 

denial of participation in the covered transaction.  The prospective participant shall submit an explanation of 

why it cannot provide the certification set out below.  The certification or explanation will be considered in 

connection with the City’s determination whether to enter into this transaction.  However, failure of the 

prospective primary participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from 

participation in this transaction. 

 

3) The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when 

the City determined to enter into this transaction.  If it is later determined that the prospective primary participant 

knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies available to the City, the City may 

terminate this transaction for cause or default. 

 

4) The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the City if at any time the 

prospective primary participant learns that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become 

erroneous by reason of changed circumstances. 

 

5) The terms covered transaction, debarred, suspended, ineligible, lower tier covered transaction, 

participant, person, primary covered transaction, principal, proposal and voluntarily excluded, as used in this 

certification, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and Coverage sections of the rules implementing 

Executive Order 12549. 

 

6) The prospective primary participant agrees by signing the Addendum that it shall not knowingly enter 

into any lower tier covered transactions with a person who is proposed for debarment under 48 CFR part 9, 

subpart 9.4, debarred, suspended, declared ineligible or voluntarily excluded from participation in this covered 

transaction.  If it is later determined that the prospective primary participant knowingly entered into such a 

transaction, in addition to other remedies available to the City, the City may terminate this transaction for cause 

or default. 

 

7) The prospective primary participant further agrees by signing this Addendum that it will include the 

clause titled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion - Lower 

Tier Covered Transaction,” as available through the United States Department of Homeland Security,  

 

 

 

 



Page 34 of 35 

 

  



Page 35 of 35 

 

  
Certification for Contracts, Grants, Loans, and Cooperative Agreements 

 

 

 
 



Page 1 of 35 

 

SYSTEM HARDENING AND RELIABILITY IMPROVEMENTS CONTRACT 

IFB # 23-116 

 

THIS CONTRACT for Electric Utility System Hardening and Reliability Improvements (“Contract”) is 

entered on ___________________, by and between the City of Lake Worth Beach, a Florida municipal 

corporation (“City”) and Hooper Corporation, a foreign for profit corporation authorized to do business in the 

State of Florida (“Contractor”) with its principal office located at 6450 Pederson Crossing Blvd., Deforest, WI  

53532 .  

 

WHEREAS, the City issued Invitation for Bids # 23-116 for the construction of numerous hardening 

and reliability improvements to its electric utility transmission and distribution system (“IFB”); and  

 

WHEREAS, the Contractor submitted its bid in response to the IFB; and  

 

WHEREAS, the City desires to award the IFB to the Contractor on a non-exclusive basis for the 

construction of certain system hardening and reliability improvements and related services; and  

 

WHEREAS, this Contract may be funded, in whole or in part, by the Federal agencies and work 

performed pursuant to this Contract or Work Order funded, in whole or in part, by Federal agencies will comply 

with all applicable Federal laws, Federal regulations, executive orders, policies, procedures, directives and 

special clauses as provided for in Exhibit “D”; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City finds awarding the IFB to the Contractor as described herein serves a valid public 

purpose. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, the City hereby engages the services of the Contractor, and in consideration of the mutual 

promises herein contained, the sufficient of which is hereby acknowledged by both parties, the parties agree as 

follows: 

 

Article 1.   GENERAL INFORMATION. 

 

1.1   Scope of Services/Work.  The Contractor shall provide the services and work requested by the City and 

required under a City approved work order as described herein. The general nature of the services and work to 

be provided by the Contractor under this Contract are the construction of hardening and reliability improvements 

to the City’s electric utility transmission and distribution system. 

 

1.2   Contract Documents.  The Contract Documents are incorporated herein by reference as if set forth in 

this Contract and comprise the entire agreement between the City and Contractor. The Contract Documents 

consist of this Contract, the IFB (including, but not limited to, the documents issued with the IFB as the scope 

and specifications, the drawings, addenda, attachments and exhibits); and, any duly executed and issued work 

orders, change orders and Contract amendments relating thereto. If, during the performance of the work, the 

Contractor finds an ambiguity, error or discrepancy in the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall so notify 

the City, in writing, within five (5) business days and before proceeding shall obtain a written interpretation or 

clarification. Failure to obtain a written interpretation or clarification will be deemed a waiver of the ambiguity, 

error or discrepancy by the Contractor. The City will not be responsible for any oral instructions, clarifications, 

or other communications except those provided in writing in response to Contractor's request for clarification of 

an ambiguity, discrepancy or error. 

 

In resolving conflicts in any of the Contract Documents, the order of precedence shall be as follows: 

 

First Priority:  Fully executed Change Orders or Contract amendments 



Page 2 of 35 

 

Second Priority:  This Contract 

Third Priority:  Fully executed Work Orders 

Fourth Priority:  IFB 

 

1.3   Contract Administrator.  Whenever the term Contract Administrator is used herein, it is intended to 

mean the City Manager or designee, City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida. In the administration of this 

Contract, all parties may rely upon instructions or determinations made by the Contract Administrator except 

that all requests and/or determinations that result in an increase in change in time of completion and/or an 

increase in the contract price shall require a formal change order or contract amendment executed by the City 

Manager or the City Commission (depending on the authority set forth in the City’s Procurement Code). 

 

1.4   Work Orders.  This Contract does not guarantee that the City will utilize the Contractor in any 

capacity or for any services hereunder. When the City identifies a need for the Contractor’s services, the City 

will request a proposal from the Contractor to provide the services requested. The City will provide the 

Contractor with plans and/or specifications in order for the Contractor to develop its proposal. The Contractor’s 

proposal shall be submitted in the format of the sample work order, attached hereto and incorporated herein as 

Exhibit “A” along with a copy of the Contractor’s proposal and shall be based on the Hourly Billing Rates 

attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit “B”. Upon receipt of the Contractor’s proposed work order 

and proposal, the City shall decide in its sole discretion whether to award the work order to the Contractor. 

Depending on the lump sum amount of each work order, the work order may be awarded by the City Manager 

(if within City Manager’s purchasing authority (currently not to exceed $50,000)) or the City Commission. If 

the work order is approved by the City, the Contractor shall commence the identified services upon the City’s 

approval of the work order for the services and issuance of a notice to proceed. The City reserves the right to 

reject any and all proposals submitted by the Contractor. A City-approved work order shall include (by 

reference) the plans and/or specifications provided by the City to the Contractor. 

 

1.5 Purchase Orders. The City’s ordering mechanism for individual projects involving urgently required 

work and/or repairs in the amount of $15,000 or less under this Agreement will be by a City issued Purchase 

Order(s); however, the terms and conditions stated in a City Purchase Order(s) shall not apply; the terms and 

conditions set forth in this Agreement shall apply. CONTRACTOR shall not provide services under this 

Agreement without a City Purchase Order specifically for the stated services. CONTRACTOR shall provide 

the amount of requested services and price listed in each Purchase Order and not exceed amounts expressed on 

any Purchase Order. CONTRACTOR shall be liable for any excess services or costs not specifically stated in 

the Purchase Order(s). The City’s Fiscal Year ends on September 30th of each calendar year. The City cannot 

authorize the purchase of services beyond September 30th of each calendar year, prior to the annual budget 

being approved by the City Commission. Additionally, the City must have budgeted appropriate funds for the 

goods and services in any subsequent Fiscal Year. If the budget is approved for said goods and services, the 

City will issue a new Purchase Order(s) each Fiscal Year for required and approved services. Services provided 

pursuant to a City issued Purchase Order(s) under this Agreement shall not exceed $ 50,000 per year without 

additional City Commission approval. 

 

1.5   Term.  The term of this Contract shall be for three (3) years, with an option for two additional twelve 

(12) month renewals upon the mutual agreement of both parties.  The renewal term(s) may be approved by the 

City Manager on behalf of the CITY. Notwithstanding the foregoing, this Contract may be terminated as set 

forth in the Contract Documents.  

 

1.6   Hourly Billing Rates.  The Hourly Billing Rates set forth as Exhibit “B” shall remain fixed for the 

first three (3) years of this Contract. If due to applicable price escalations and/or reductions which impact the 

Contractor’s Hourly Billing Rates, the City and Contractor may execute a written amendment to this Contract 

to establish new Hourly Billing Rates for the renewal term(s). The City Manager may approve changes in the 

Hourly Billing Rates based on the recommendation of the City’s Electric Utility Director or designee. 



Page 3 of 35 

 

 

Article 2.   CONTRACT TIME. 

 

2.1 All services and work to be provided under a City-approved work order shall be provided in a timely 

manner as time is of the essence under this Contract.   

2.2 The Contractor shall not be considered in default by reason of a delay in timely performance if such 

delay and failure arises out of causes reasonably beyond the control of the Contractor or its subcontractors (if 

authorized) and without the Contractor’s or subcontractor’s fault or negligence. Upon the Contractor’s request, 

the City shall consider the facts and extent of any such delay and failure to timely perform the work for reason 

beyond the control of the Contractor and, if the Contractor’s delay and failure to timely perform was without it 

or its subcontractors’ fault or negligence, as reasonably determined by the City, the time of completion shall be 

extended for any reasonable time that the City may reasonably decide; subject to the City’s rights to change, 

terminate, or stop any or all of the work at any time. If the Contractor is delayed at any time in the progress of 

the work by any act or neglect of the City or its employees, by an approved written change in the scope from the 

original Contract Documents, or by any other contractor employed by the City, or by changes ordered by the 

City or in an unusual delay in transportation, unavoidable casualties, or any causes beyond the Contractor’s 

reasonable control, or by delay authorized by the City pending negotiation or by any cause which the City shall 

reasonably decide justifies the delay, then the time of completion shall be extended for any reasonable time the 

City may reasonably decide. The Contractor must provide the City with written notice of any delay claims and 

no extension of time shall be made for any delay occurring more than five (5) days before a claim therefore is 

made in writing to the City. In the case of continuing cause of delay, only one (1) claim is necessary. With the 

exception of an approved written change in the scope from the original Contract Documents, the Contractor’s 

sole remedy for a delay in completion of the work for any reason will be an extension of time to complete the 

work and Contractor specifically waives any right to seek any monetary damages or losses for a delay in 

completion of the work, including, but not limited to, waiving any right to seek monetary amounts for lost profits, 

additional overhead, salaries, lost productivity, efficiency losses, or any other alleged monetary losses which 

may be allegedly suffered by Contractor due to a delay in completion of the work. Provided, however, and 

subject to sovereign immunity under section 768.28, Florida Statutes, that this provision shall not preclude 

recovery or damages by the Contractor for hindrances or delays due solely to fraud, bad faith or active 

interference on the part of the City. Otherwise, the Contractor shall be entitled only to extensions of the Contract 

Times as the sole and exclusive remedy for such resulting delay, in accordance with and to the extent specifically 

provided above. 

Article 3.     PAYMENT PROCEDURES 

 

3.1 Generally.  The Contractor shall submit invoices on a monthly basis detailing all work accomplished in 

the prior month and all materials installed and used in the work pursuant to City approved work order. 

Contractor’s invoices shall be submitted to: 

 

  City of Lake Worth Beach 

  Attn:  Finance Department 

  7 N. Dixie Highway 

  Lake Worth Beach, FL  33460 

 

The City’s Contract Administrator or designee will review each invoice submitted by the Contractor. If 

approved, the City will make payment in accordance with the Contract Documents. If not approved, the City 

will notify the Contractor within twenty (20) business days of the City’s receipt and identify the action necessary 

to correct the invoice or a deficiency. 

 

3.2 Payment to the Contractor shall be made pursuant Florida’s Prompt Payment Act (for construction 



Page 4 of 35 

 

services), section 218.735, Florida Statutes, except as provided herein.  Specifically, the City will withhold five 

percent (5%) of each payment from a work order to the Contractor as retainage until fifty percent (95%) of the 

work order price is paid to the Contractor. Upon written request from the Contractor, the Contract Administrator 

may agree in writing with the Contractor to release a portion of the retainage upon payment of ninety-five percent 

(95%) of the work order price being paid to the Contractor (not to exceed fifty percent (50%) of the total 

retainage amount).   

 

3.3 Upon substantial completion, the Contractor and City shall establish a punch-list of items that must be 

completed by the Contractor prior to the Contractor submitting its final payment request. 

 

3.4 Final Payment.  Upon final completion and acceptance of the work in accordance with the Contract 

Documents (including all punch-list items) and final inspection by the appropriate agency with jurisdiction over 

the project (if other than the City), the Contractor shall submit a “final invoice” to the City. In order for both 

parties to close their books and records, the Contractor will clearly state “FINAL” on the Contractor’s final 

invoice. This certifies that all work under the applicable work order has been properly completed and all charges 

have been invoiced to the City.  Since this account will thereupon be closed, any and other further charges if not 

properly included in this final invoice are waived by the Contractor.  If the Contractor’s Final Invoice is approved 

as set forth above, the City shall pay the remainder of the work order price including any amount held as 

retainage.   

 

3.5 Notwithstanding the foregoing, the City shall not be required to pay or release any amount of retainage 

that is subject of a good faith dispute, the subject of a claim brought pursuant to section 255.05, Florida Statutes, 

or otherwise the subject of a claim or demand by the City. 

 

3.6 Final payment shall not become due until the Contractor and all of its subcontractors submit to the City 

releases and waivers of liens, and data establishing payment or satisfaction of obligations, such as receipts, 

claims, security interests or encumbrances arising out of the Contract Documents or otherwise related to the 

Program. 

 

3.7 Acceptance of final payment by the Contractor or a subcontractor shall constitute a waiver of 

claims by that payee except those previously made in writing and identified by that payee as unsettled at 

the time of final invoice. 

 

Article 4.   SUBCONTRACTS 

 

The Contractor represents that it has, or will secure at its own expense, all necessary personnel required to 

perform the services under this Contract. Such personnel shall not be employees of or have any contractual 

relationship with the City. All of the services required hereunder shall be performed by the Contractor or under 

its supervision, and all personnel engaged in performing the services shall be fully qualified and, if required, 

authorized or permitted under state and local law to perform such services. The Contractor shall furnish 

services in a manner consistent with industry standards and to a level of professional skill generally acceptable 

in the industry with regard to services of this kind. The Contractor shall comply with all applicable laws in the 

provision of services under this Contract. The Contractor agrees that it is fully responsible to the City for the 

acts and omissions of subcontractors and of persons either directly or indirectly employed by the Contractor. 

Nothing contained herein shall create any contractual relationship between any subcontractor and the City. All 

of the Contractor’s personnel (and all subcontractors) while on City premises, will comply with all City 

requirements governing conduct, safety, and security. The City reserves the right to request replacement of any 

of subcontractor or subcontractor’s personnel furnished by the Contractor upon written notice by City to 

Contractor of the cause for such replacement. All work performed by a subcontractor will be at cost to the City 

without any mark-up by the Contractor. All subcontractors must provide the same level and type of insurance 

as required of the Contractor under this Contract prior to commencing any services. The Contractor shall 



Page 5 of 35 

 

submit the subcontractors’ proof of insurance upon receipt of a notice to proceed. 

  

Article 5.   INDEMNITY AND INSURANCE. 

 

The Contractor agrees to assume liability for and indemnify, hold harmless, and defend the City, its 

commissioners, mayor, officers, employees, agents, and attorneys of, from, and against all liability and expense, 

including reasonable attorney’s fees, in connection with any and all claims, demands, damages, actions, causes 

of action, and suits in equity of whatever kind or nature, including claims for personal injury, property damage, 

equitable relief, or loss of use, to the extent caused by the negligence, recklessness, or intentionally wrongful 

conduct of the Contractor, its agents, officers, Contractors, subcontractors, employees, or anyone else utilized 

by the Contractor in the performance of this Contract. The Contractor’s liability hereunder shall include all 

attorney’s fees and costs incurred by the City in the enforcement of this indemnification provision. This includes 

claims made by the employees of the Contractor against the City and the Contractor hereby waives its 

entitlement, if any, to immunity under Section 440.11, Florida Statutes.  The obligations contained in this 

provision shall survive termination of this Contract and shall not be limited by the amount of any insurance 

required to be obtained or maintained under this Contract.  

 

Subject to the limitations set forth in this Section, Contractor shall assume control of the defense of any claim 

asserted by a third party against the City and, in connection with such defense, shall appoint lead counsel, in 

each case at the Contractor’s expense.  The City shall have the right, at its option, to participate in the defense 

of any third party claim, without relieving Contractor of any of its obligations hereunder. If the Contractor 

assumes control of the defense of any third party claim in accordance with this paragraph, the Contractor shall 

obtain the prior written consent of the City before entering into any settlement of such claim. Notwithstanding 

anything to the contrary in this Section, the Contractor shall not assume or maintain control of the defense of 

any third party claim, but shall pay the fees of counsel retained by the City and all expenses, including experts’ 

fees, if (i) an adverse determination with respect to the third party claim would, in the good faith judgment of 

the City, be detrimental in any material respect to the City’s reputation; (ii) the third party claim seeks an 

injunction or equitable relief against the City; or (iii) the Contractor has failed or is failing to prosecute or defend 

vigorously the third party claim.  Each party shall cooperate, and cause its agents to cooperate, in the defense or 

prosecution of any third party claim and shall furnish or cause to be furnished such records and information, and 

attend such conferences, discovery proceedings, hearings, trials, or appeals, as may be reasonably requested in 

connection therewith.   

 

It is the specific intent of the parties hereto that the foregoing indemnification complies with Section 725.06, 

Florida Statutes, as amended. The Contractor expressly agrees that it will not claim, and waives any claim, that 

this indemnification violates Section 725.06, Florida Statutes. Nothing contained in the foregoing 

indemnification or any other provision in the Contract Documents shall be construed as a waiver of any 

immunity or limitation of liability the City may have under the doctrine of sovereign immunity or Section 

768.28, Florida Statutes. 

 

INSURANCE:  Prior to commencing any work, the Contractor shall provide proof of insurance coverage as 

required in the IFB. All such insurance policies may not be modified or terminated without the express written 

authorization of the City. Failure to comply with the foregoing requirements shall not relieve the Contractor of 

its liability and obligations under this Contract. Each party will promptly notify the other of any complaint, 

claim, suit or cause of action threatened or commenced against it which arises out of or relates, in any manner, 

to the Contract Documents and/or performance of the work.  Each party agrees to cooperate with the other in 

any investigation either may conduct, the defense of any claim or suit in which either party is named, and shall 

do nothing to impair or invalidate any applicable insurance coverage.  

 

 



Page 6 of 35 

 

Article 6.       REIMBURSEMENT OF ENGINEER EXPENSES. 

 

Should the completion of a work order be delayed beyond the specified or adjusted time limit, Contractor shall 

reimburse the City for all expenses of engineering and inspection incurred by the City during the period between 

said specified or adjusted time and the actual date of final completion.  All such expenses for engineering and 

inspection incurred by the City will be charged to Contractor and be deducted from payments due Contractor as 

provided by this Contract. Said expenses shall be further defined as engineer charges associated with the 

construction contract administration, including resident project representative costs. All such expenses shall be 

separate from and in addition to any Liquidated Damages as provided for in an applicable Work Order. 

 

Article 7.       PUBLIC CONSTRUCTION BOND. 

 

If the City approves a work order which exceeds $200,000 in total construction cost, the Contractor must provide 

the City with a public construction bond in accordance with section 255.05, Florida Statutes. Said bond must be 

recorded in the Official Records in and for Palm Beach County and a copy of the recorded bond must be provided 

to the City prior to the Contractor providing any services under the work order. The City reserves the right to 

request a bond for any work order which is less than $200,000. The cost of the bond shall be a direct pass through 

cost to the City without any mark-up by the Contractor. 

 

The public construction bond shall be on forms attached hereto as Exhibit “C” or substantially similar as 

approved by the City. The bond shall be in an amount not less than the total Work Order price and shall 

incorporate by reference the terms of the Contract Documents in their entirety.  

 

To be acceptable to the City, a Surety Company shall comply with the following provisions: 

 

The Surety Company shall have a currently valid Certificate of Authority, issued by the State of Florida 

Department of Insurance, authorizing it to write surety bonds in the State of Florida. 

 

(a) The Surety Company shall have a currently valid Certificate of Authority issued by the United States 

Department of Treasury under Sections 9304 to 9308 of Title 31 of the United States Code. 

 

(b) The Surety Company shall be in full compliance with the provisions of the Florida Insurance Code. 

 

(c) The Surety Company shall have at least twice the minimum surplus and capital required by the Florida 

Insurance Code at the time the Contractor submits its Work Order for City approval. 

 

(d) The Surety Company shall have at least the ratings of A-/Class V in the latest issue of Best’s Key 

Rating Guide. 

 

(e) The Surety Company shall not expose itself to any loss on any one risk in an amount exceeding ten 

(10) percent of its surplus to policyholders, provided: 

 

1. Any risk or portion of any risk being reinsured shall be deducted in determining 

the limitation of the risk as prescribed in this section. These minimum 

requirements shall apply to the reinsuring carrier providing authorization or 

approval by the State of Florida, Department of Insurance to do business in this 

state have been met. 

 

2. In the case of the surety insurance company, in addition to the deduction for reinsurance, 

the amount assumed by any co-surety, the value of any security deposited, pledged or 



Page 7 of 35 

 

held subject to the consent of the surety and for the protection of the surety shall be 

deducted. 

 

Article 8.       TERMINATION. 

 

8.1 TERMINATION BY CITY:  The City may terminate any work order, the Contract and/or the Contract 

Documents if the Contractor is in default as follows: 

 

(a) refuses or fails to supply enough properly skilled workers or proper materials to timely and 

competently complete the work; 

(b) fails to make payment to subcontractors for materials or labor in accordance with the respective 

agreements between the Contractor and the subcontractors; 

(c) disregards or takes action contrary to any laws, ordinances, or rules, regulations or orders of a 

public authority having jurisdiction;  

(d) takes action, short of declaring bankruptcy, evidencing insolvency;  

 (e) fails to prosecute the services or work in a timely manner and reasonably be unable to reach 

 substantial completion and/or final completion within the timeframe(s) required;  

 (f) fails or refuses to provide and/or maintain insurance or proof of insurance as required by the 

 Contract Documents; or, 

(g) otherwise is in breach of a provision of the Contract Documents. 

 

When any of the above reasons exist, the City, may without prejudice to any other rights or remedies of the City 

and after giving the Contractor and the Contractor’s surety (if applicable), written notice and five (5) days to 

cure, terminate the work order, Contract and/or Contract Documents and may: 

 

(a) take possession of the site and of all materials, equipment, tools, and construction equipment 

and machinery thereon owned by or paid for by the City; and, 

(b) finish the work by whatever reasonable method the City may deem expedient.  

 

The Contractor and its surety (if any) shall be liable for any damage to the City, including additional attorney 

and engineering/architectural fees, resulting from the Contractor’s termination under this provision by the City, 

including but not limited to, and any increased costs incurred by the City in completing the work. 

 

When the City terminates the Contract for one of the reasons stated above, the Contractor shall not be entitled 

to receive further payment, if any, until the work is finished. 

 

Should it be determined by a mediator or a court of competent jurisdiction that the City wrongfully terminated 

the Contract, then the Contractor agrees to treat such termination as a termination for convenience. 

 

8.2 TERMINATION BY THE CITY FOR CONVENIENCE 

 

The City may, at any time, terminate the Contract and Contract Documents for the City’s convenience and 

without cause. Upon receipt of written notice from the City of such termination for the City’s convenience, the 

Contractor shall: 

 

 (a) cease operations as directed by the City in the notice; 

 (b) take actions necessary, or that the City may direct, for the protection and preservation 

of the work; and 

 (c) except for work directed to be performed prior to the effective date of termination stated 

in the notice, terminate all existing subcontracts and purchase orders and enter into no 

further subcontracts and purchase orders. 



Page 8 of 35 

 

 

In case of such termination for the City’s convenience, the Contractor shall be entitled to receive payment for 

work executed, and costs incurred by reason of such termination including termination payments to 

subcontractors and demobilization costs.   

 

Article 9. TAXES AND DIRECT PURCHASES. 

 

9.1       TAXES:  The City is exempt from payment of Florida State Sales and Use Tax. The Contractor is not 

authorized to use the City’s Tax Exemption Number unless approved in writing. 

 

9.2 DIRECT PURCHASES:  For certain projects, the City may seek to make direct purchases of equipment 

or materials to be used by the Contractor. Pursuant to Section 212.08(6), Florida Statutes, and the Fla. Admin. 

Code Ann. R. 12A-1.094 and 12A-1.038, the Parties agree to the following procedure regarding the City’s direct-

purchase from vendors of certain equipment and materials to be used in specific projects: 
 

9.2.1 The City reserves the right, at the City’s option, to direct purchase equipment and materials 

involved in a specific project, including subcontracts, if any so as to save the sales tax which would 

otherwise have been due with regard to the same. The Contractor and its subcontractors shall comply 

with the City’s direct purchase procedures, including but not limited to those listed below. 
 

9.2.2 As specifically set forth in a City issued work order, within 30 days (or other time as 

specified in the work order), the Contractor will present a list of direct purchase equipment for the 

City’s consideration which will include the recommended vendors’ name; the price quotes from all 

vendors provided to the Contractor; and, any terms and conditions the Contractor has negotiated with 

the recommended vendors. The City will then inform the Contractor as to which equipment it will 

direct purchase. In the event the City fails to exercise its option to direct purchase equipment and 

identify which equipment is to be purchased by the City within thirty (30) calendar days of receipt of 

the list from the Contractor, the City shall waive its right to direct purchase any and all equipment to 

be used in completion of the work under the applicable work order. 
 

9.2.3 The Contractor is responsible for selecting each direct purchase vendor, subject to City 

approval. The Contractor is responsible for specifications, equipment receipt, inspecting shipments, 

and assuring that the equipment is in accordance with the work order and the Contractor’s 

specifications. The Contractor is also responsible for providing the City with enough advance notice 

of when the direct purchase equipment will need to be ordered and delivered. In absence of the 

Contractor’s receipt of a written notice of City’s disapproval of a vendor within thirty (30) calendar 

days of City’s receipt of the vendor/material list referenced in 9.2.2, the City shall be deemed to have 

waived any and all objections thereto. 
 

9.2.4 The Contractor shall retain all responsibility for installing all equipment relating to the work 

and for maintaining the construction schedule so long as the City timely orders and pays for the correct 

direct purchase equipment. The City’s direct purchase mechanism to effectuate tax savings in no way 

effects the obligation of the Contractor to meet all of the terms and conditions and all provisions and 

technical specifications of the Contract Documents. The Contractor shall be responsible for insuring 

all equipment once the equipment is in its care, custody and control, regardless of whether directly 

purchased by City. 
 

9.2.5 The City will issue a direct purchase order to the vendor of the direct purchase equipment at 

the price proposed in the Contractor’s or its subcontractor’s bid, less sales tax. The City will promptly 

send a copy of the issued purchaser order to the Contractor. 
 

9.2.6 It will be the Contractor’s primary responsibility to properly expedite and follow up on direct 



Page 9 of 35 

 

purchase orders, thereby assuring delivery of the equipment as ordered and at the time and place needed 

by the Contractor to complete the work in accordance with the work order and construction schedule. 

To the extent required by the Contractor, the City shall cooperate with all requests of the Contractor 

related to the expedition of and follow up on direct purchase orders. 
 

9.2.7 The Contractor shall take delivery, unload, and install the equipment purchased on the direct 

purchase order in accordance with the work order and the Contract Documents with the vendor to 

repair, replace, and make good any defect without cost to the City, until such time as the work has been 

completed and accepted by City in accordance with the Contract Documents. The City, with assistance 

from the Contractor, will be responsible for undertaking and completing any returns of direct purchase 

equipment as requested by the Contractor and working with the vendor to effectuate any credits or 

warranties for the returned equipment (if applicable). Any returns not replaced shall be credited to City 

and acknowledged by a supplement to the direct purchase order and, if applicable, amendment to the 

Contract Sum. The Contractor shall not be responsible for warranting the direct purchase equipment to 

the City; however, the Contractor shall be responsible for facilitating the vendor’s warranty of the 

direct purchase equipment and the Contractor shall be responsible for warranting the work to install 

and/or incorporate the equipment. The Contractor shall maintain records of all direct purchases 

received and incorporated into the work and provide the City with a monthly accounting until all direct 

purchase items that are received and accepted for inclusion in the specific project. 
 

9.2.8 When delivery of a direct purchase order is complete, or a payment is to be made on a partial 

shipment, the Contractor will timely submit to City the documentation supporting the equipment 

received. Invoices for direct purchase orders will be sent by the direct purchase vendor directly to 

City’s Finance Department, with all such invoices addressed to and in the name of the City. The City’s 

Finance Department will forward invoices to the City’s Contract Administrator. The City’s Contract 

Administrator will forward the invoices to the Contractor to verify delivery and sign the invoice and 

associated documentation supporting the amount of the payment. The City will make timely payment 

to all vendors in compliance with each vendor’s payment procedures. The City will take title to all 

equipment ordered through direct purchase upon or at the time of purchase. The Contractor will assist 

City in assuring prompt payment by supplying the vendor’s FEI numbers, addresses, phone numbers, 

etc. All payments will be made in accordance with the Florida Prompt Payment Act. 

 

Article 10. CONTRACTOR'S REPRESENTATIONS AND AGREEMENTS. 

 

In order to induce the City to enter into this Contract, the Contractor makes the following representations: 

 

10.1 Contractor has or will familiarize itself with the nature and extent of the Contract Documents, work, 

site, locality, and all local conditions and laws and regulations that in any manner may affect cost, progress, 

performance or furnishing of the work prior to commencing the work under an applicable Work Order. All work 

shall be performed consistent with all applicable laws and regulations. 

 

10.2 Contractor agrees to be solely responsible for compliance with all applicable environmental regulations, 

for any liability arising from non-compliance with the regulations and to reimburse the City for any loss incurred 

in connection therewith. This compliance provision specifically includes the Contractor’s compliance with all 

applicable standards, orders or regulations including, without limitation, those issued pursuant to the Clean Air 

Act (42 U.S.C. 7401-7671q) and the Federal Water Pollution Control Act as amended (33 U.S.C. 1251-1387). 

 

10.3 Contractor agrees to utilize the U.S. Department of Homeland Security’s E-Verify System to verify the 

employment eligibility of all new employees hired by the Contractor during the term of this Contract. 

 



Page 10 of 35 

 

10.4 The Contractor represents and warrants that it has and will continue to maintain all licenses and 

approvals required to conduct its business and provide the work required under the Contract Documents.  Proof 

of such licenses and approvals shall be submitted to the City upon request. 

 

Article 11. INFRINGEMENT INDEMNITY.    

 

11.1 The Contractor will defend or settle at its expense a claim or suit brought by a third party against the 

City arising out of a claim asserting that the services, work, repair, materials or other deliverables 

(“deliverables” hereafter) provided by the Contractor under the Contract Documents (if any) infringes any U.S. 

copyright or any U.S. patent or misappropriates a trade secret. The Contractor will indemnify and hold 

harmless the City against and from damages, costs, and attorneys’ fees, if any and at all levels of trial and 

appeal or mediation or arbitration, finally awarded in such suit or the amount of the settlement thereof; 

provided that (i) the Contractor is promptly notified in writing of such claim or suit, (ii) the Contractor will 

have the sole control of the defense and settlement thereof, and (iii) City furnishes the Contractor, on 

reasonable request, information available to City for such defense. The City will not admit any such claim 

without prior consent of the Contractor. 

a. In the event of a claim of infringement, the Contractor shall, at its option: 

1. procure for City the right to continue using the deliverables provided under the 

Contract Documents; or 

2. replace or modify the deliverables so that the same becomes non-infringing but 

substantially equivalent in functionality and performance. 

3. If neither of the above actions is reasonably feasible, the Contractor will refund to 

City the fee actually paid by City under the Contract Documents (as amortized on a straight-

line basis over the time in which the City was able to use the deliverables. 

b. The Contractor will have no obligation under this section for infringement if and to the extent 

that such claim arises from: 

1. modification of the deliverables other than by the Contractor or by its 

recommendation; or 

2. combination of the deliverables with products other than those supplied by the 

Contractor;  

and, 

3. the alleged infringement or misappropriation relates to such modification or 

combination. 

c. The Contractor will also not have any indemnification obligation with respect to a claim: (i) 

if it has provided City with reasonable changes that would have avoided the problem and the reasonable 

changes are not fully implemented by City within a reasonable time or (ii) arising out use of the deliverables 

not in accordance with the Contract Documents. 

d. The Contractor’s obligation to indemnify, defend and hold harmless shall remain in effect and 

shall be binding upon the Contractor whether such injury or damage shall accrue, or may be discovered, before 

or after termination or expiration of the Contract Documents. 

 

 

 



Page 11 of 35 

 

Article 12. MISCELLANEOUS. 

 

12.1 The City and Contractor each binds itself, its partners, its successors, assigns and legal representatives 

to the other party hereto, its partners, successors, assigns and legal representatives in respect of all covenants, 

agreements and obligations contained in the Contract Documents. 

 

12.2 Additional work and/or changes to a work order’s price and/or time, is subject to the City’s prior written 

approval. Only the City Manager and City Commission (based on the procurement code) have the authority to 

approve such additional work and changes.  

 

12.3 The headings contained in this Contract are inserted for convenience of reference only and shall not be 

a part or control or affect the meaning hereof.  

 

12.4 This Contract may be executed in two or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed to be an 

original, but all of which shall be deemed to be an original, but each of which together shall constitute one and 

the same instrument. 

 

12.5 This Contract (together with the other Contract Documents) supersedes any and all prior negotiations 

and oral or written agreements heretofore made relating to the subject matter hereof and, except for written 

agreements, if any, executed and delivered simultaneously with or subsequent to the date of this Contract, 

constitutes the entire agreement of the parties relating to the subject matter hereof. This Contract may not be 

altered or amended except by a writing signed by the parties hereto. No waiver of any of the terms or conditions 

of this Contract shall be effective unless in writing and executed by the party to be changed therewith. No waiver 

of any condition or of the breach of any term, covenant, representation, warranty or other provision hereof shall 

be deemed to be construed as a further or continuing waiver of any such condition or breach or a waiver of any 

other condition or of any breach of any other term, covenant, representation, warranty or other provision 

contained in this Contract. 

 

12.6   This Contract shall be binding upon, and shall inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their 

respective successors and assigns. 

 

12.7    This Contract shall be governed by and construed and interpreted in accordance with the laws of the 

State of Florida. Each of the parties hereto (a) irrevocably submit itself to the exclusive jurisdiction of the 

Fifteenth Judicial Circuit Court in and for Palm Beach County, Florida for state actions and jurisdiction of the 

United States District Court for the Southern District of Florida, Palm Beach Division, for the purposes of any 

suit, action or other proceeding arising out of, or relating to, this Contract; (b) waives and agrees not to assert 

against any party hereto, by way of motion, as a defense of otherwise, in any suit, action or other proceeding, 

any claim that it is not personally subject to the jurisdiction of the above-named courts for any reason 

whatsoever; and (c) to the extent permitted by applicable law, any claim that such suit, action or proceeding by 

any part hereto is brought in an inconvenient forum or that the venue of such suit, action or proceeding is 

improper or that this Contract or the subject matter hereof may not be enforced in or by such courts. 

 

12.8   This Contract shall create no rights or claims whatsoever in any third party. 

 

12.9   If any one or more of the provisions of the Contract shall be held to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable in 

any respect, the validity, legality and enforceability of the remaining provisions hereof shall not in any way be 

affected or impaired thereby.    

 

12.10   The effective date of this Contract is the date the Contract is approved by the City Commission. 

 



Page 12 of 35 

 

12.11 Public Records:  The Contractor shall comply with Florida’s Public Records Act, Chapter 119, 

 Florida Statutes, and, if determined to be acting on behalf of the City as provided under section 

 119.011(2), Florida Statutes, specifically agrees to: 

 

(a) Keep and maintain public records required by the City to perform the service. 

 

(b) Upon request from the City’s custodian of public records or designee, provide the City with a 

copy of the requested records or allow the records to be inspected or copied within a reasonable time at 

a cost that does not exceed the cost provided in Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, or as otherwise provided 

by law. 

 

(c) Ensure that public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records 

disclosure requirements are not disclosed except as authorized by law for the duration of this Contract 

and following completion of this Contract if the Contractor does not transfer the records to the City. 

 

(d) Upon completion of this Contract, transfer, at no cost, to the City all public records in possession 

of the Contractor or keep and maintain public records required by the City to perform the service. If the 

Contractor transfers all public records to the City upon completion of the Contract, the Contractor shall 

destroy any duplicate public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records 

disclosure requirements. If the Contractor keeps and maintains public records upon completion of the 

Contract, the Contractor shall meet all applicable requirements for retaining public records. All records 

stored electronically must be provided to the City, upon request from the City’s custodian of public 

records or designee, in a format that is compatible with the information technology systems of the City.  

 

IF THE CONTRACTOR HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE APPLICATION 

OF CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA STATUTES, TO THE CONTRACTOR’S DUTY 

TO PROVIDE PUBLIC RECORDS RELATING TO THIS CONTRACT, 

CONTACT THE CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC RECORDS OR DESIGNEE AT: 

ATTENTION CITY CLERK, (561) 586-1660 OR 

CITYCLERK@LAKEWORTHBEACHFL.GOV OR 7 NORTH DIXIE 

HIGHWAY, LAKE WORTH BEACH, FL  33460. 
 

12.12 This Contract shall not be construed more strongly against either party regardless of who was more 

responsible for its preparation. 

 

12.13 In accordance with Palm Beach County ordinance number 2011-009, the Contractor acknowledges that 

this Contract may be subject to investigation and/or audit by the Palm Beach County Inspector General.  The 

Contractor has reviewed Palm Beach County ordinance number 2011-009 and is aware of its rights and/or 

obligations under such ordinance. 

 

12.14 If any legal action or other proceeding is brought for the enforcement of this Contract or the Contract 

Documents, or because of an alleged dispute, breach, default or misrepresentation in connection with any 

provisions of this Contract or the Contract Documents, each party shall be responsible for their own attorney’s 

fees at all levels.  EACH PARTY ALSO AGREES AND VOLUNTARILY WAIVES ANY RIGHT TO A JURY 

TRIAL ARISING OUT OF ALLEGED DISPUTE, BREACH, DEFAULT, MISREPRESENTATION OR ANY 

OTHER CLAIM IN CONNECTION WITH OR ARISING FROM ANY PROVISION OF THIS CONTRACT 

OR THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 

 

mailto:CITYCLERK@LAKEWORTHBEACHFL.


Page 13 of 35 

 

12.15 Each of the parties agrees to perform its obligations under the Contract Documents in conformance with 

all laws, regulations and administrative instructions that relate to the parties’ performance of the work and under 

the Contract Documents. 

 

12.16 All documents, including but not limited to drawings, specifications, plans, reports, other items and data 

or programs stored in hard-copy, electronically or otherwise (collectively referred to as “Documents” hereafter), 

prepared by the Contractor or its subcontractors under this Contract shall be considered a “Work for Hire” and 

the exclusive property of the City. To the extent such Documents may not be deemed a “Work for Hire” under 

applicable law, Contractor and Contractor’s Subcontractors will assign to the City all right, title and interest in 

and to Contractor and/or Contractor’s Subcontractors’ copyright(s) for such Documents. Contractor shall 

execute and deliver to City such instruments of transfer and take such other action that City may reasonable 

request, including, without limitation, executing and filing, at City’s expense, copyright applications, 

assignments and other documents required for the protection of City’s right to such Documents.  The Contractor 

shall retain copies of the Documents for a period of three (3) years from the date of completion of the Program. 

The City grants to the Contractor and Contractor’s subcontractors the right and/or limited license to use a portion 

of the Documents prepared by the Contractor or the Contractor’s subcontractors in future projects of the 

Contractor or Contractor’s subcontractors with said right and/or limited license to use a portion at Contractor’s 

or Contractor’s subcontractor’s own risk and without any liability to City. Any modifications made by the City 

to any of the Contractor’s Documents, or any use, partial use or reuse of the Documents without written 

authorization or adaptation by the Contractor will be at the City’s sole risk and without liability to the Contractor.    

 

12.17 Any provision of this Contract which is of a continuing nature or imposes an obligation which extends 

beyond the term of this Contract shall survive its expiration or earlier termination.  

 

12.18 Any notice required to be given under the Contract Documents shall be sent by certified mail (return 

receipt requested) or by nationally recognized overnight courier as follows to the City: 

 

 City of Lake Worth Beach 

 Attn:  City Manager 

 7 N. Dixie Highway 

 Lake Worth Beach, FL  33460 

 

 and to the Contractor as follows: 

  

 Hooper Corporation 

 6450 Pederson Crossing Blvd. 

 Deforest, WI   53532 

 Attn: Bruce Cram, Vice President 

   

 Either party may amend this provision by written notice to the other party. 

 

12.19 The Contractor represents that it presently has no interest and shall acquire no interest, either direct or 

indirect, which would conflict in any manner with the performance of services required hereunder, as provided 

for in Section 112.311, Florida Statutes. The Contractor further represents that no person having any such 

conflicting interest shall be employed for said performance. The Contractor shall promptly notify the City’s 

representative, in writing, of all potential conflicts of interest for any prospective business association, interest 

or other circumstance which may influence or appear to influence the Contractor’s judgment or quality of 

services being provided hereunder. Such written notification shall identify the prospective business association, 

interest or circumstance, the nature of work that the Contractor may undertake and request an opinion of the City 

as to whether the association, interest or circumstance would, in the opinion of the City, constitute a conflict of 



Page 14 of 35 

 

interest if entered into by the Contractor. The City agrees to notify the Contractor of its opinion within thirty 

(30) days of receipt of notification by the Contractor. If, in the opinion of the City, the prospective business 

association, interest or circumstance would not constitute a conflict of interest by the Contractor, the City shall 

so state in the notification and the Contractor shall, at its option, enter into said association, interest or 

circumstance and it shall be deemed not in conflict of interest with respect to services provided to the City by 

the Contractor under the terms of this Contract. 

 

12.20  The Contractor warrants and represents that all of its employees are treated equally during employment 

without regard to race, color, religion, disability, sex, age, national origin, ancestry, political affiliation, marital 

status, handicap, or sexual orientation. Further, Contractor shall not discriminate or permit discrimination against 

any employee or an applicant for employment on the basis of race, color, sex, religion, political affiliation, 

natural origin, ancestry, marital status, sexual orientation or handicap.   

 

12.21  This Contract is not intended to be and shall not be construed as an exclusive agreement, and the City 

may employ additional or other contractors to perform services contemplated by this Contract without liability 

to the City. 

 

12.22 PUBLIC ENTITY CRIMES. The Contractor acknowledges and agrees that a person or affiliate who has 

been placed on the convicted vendor list following a conviction for a public entity crime may not submit a bid, 

proposal, or reply on a contract to provide any goods or services to a public entity; may not submit a bid, 

proposal, or reply on a contract with a public entity for the construction or repair of a public building or public 

work; may not submit bids, proposals, or replies on leases of real property to a public entity; may not be awarded 

or perform work as a contractor, supplier or sub-contractor under a contract with any public entity; and may not 

transact business with any public entity in excess of the threshold amount provided in Section 287.017, Florida 

Statutes, for CATEGORY TWO for a period of 36 months following the date of being placed on the convicted 

vendor list. The Contractor will promptly advise the City if it becomes aware of any violation of this statute. 

 

12.21 PURSUANT TO SECTION 558.005, FLORIDA STATUTES, ANY CLAIMS FOR 

CONSTRUCTION DEFECTS ARE NOT SUBJECT TO THE NOTICE AND CURE PROVISIONS OF 

CHAPTER 558, FLORIDA STATUTES.  

 

12.22 The Contract shall be responsible for initiating, maintaining and supervising all safety precautions and 

programs in connection with the performance of all services and work. This includes being responsible for all 

precautions for safety of, and reasonable protection to prevent damage, injury or loss to employees performing 

the services and work and other persons who may be affected thereby; the work, materials and equipment 

incorporated therein; and other property, equipment or materials at the site or adjacent thereto including, 

without limitation, trees, shrubs, lawns, sidewalks, pavements, roadways or structures and utilities not 

designated for removal, relocation or replacement in the course of the work. The Contractor shall comply with 

and give all notices required by applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, rules and regulations bearing on safety 

of persons or property, or their protection from damage, injury or loss. The Contractor shall implement, erect 

and maintain reasonable safeguards for safety and protection, including posting danger signs and other 

warnings against hazards reasonably related to the work or which could arise therefrom. The Contractor shall 

promptly remedy damage and loss (other than covered by applicable insurance) caused in whole or in part by 

the Contractor or anyone directly or indirectly employed by or utilized by the Contractor in the performance 

of the work, which is not attributable to the City’s negligence. 

 

12.23 The Contractor agrees that, in all matters relating to this Contract, it will be acting as an independent 

contractor with exclusive control of the manner and means of performing the work, its obligations and tasks in 

accordance with the requirements of this Contract and the Contract Documents. The Contractor has no 

authority to act or make any agreements or representations on behalf of the City. This Contract is not intended, 

and shall not be construed to create, between the City and the Contractor, the relationship of principal and 



Page 15 of 35 

 

agent, joint-venturers, co-partners or any other such relationship, the existence of which is hereby expressly 

denied. No employee or agent of Contractor shall be, or shall be deemed to be, an employee or agent of City. 

 

Article 13. SCRUTINIZED COMPANIES 

 

13.1 CONTRACTOR certifies that it and its subcontractors are not on the Scrutinized Companies that 

Boycott Israel List and are not engaged in the boycott of Israel.  Pursuant to section 287.135, Florida Statutes, 

the CITY may immediately terminate this Agreement at its sole option if the CONTRACTOR or any of its 

subcontractors are found to have submitted a false certification; or if the CONTRACTOR or any of its 

subcontractors, are placed on the Scrutinized Companies that Boycott Israel List or is engaged in the boycott of 

Israel during the term of this Agreement. 

13.2 If this Agreement is for one million dollars or more, the CONTRACTOR certifies that it and its 

subcontractors are also not on the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in Sudan List, Scrutinized Companies 

with Activities in the Iran Petroleum Energy Sector List, or engaged in business operations in Cuba or Syria as 

identified in Section 287.135, Florida Statutes.  Pursuant to Section 287.135, the CITY may immediately 

terminate this Agreement at its sole option if the CONTRACTOR, or any of its subcontractors are found to have 

submitted a false certification; or if the CONTRACTOR or any of its subcontractors are placed on the Scrutinized 

Companies with Activities in Sudan List, or Scrutinized Companies with Activities in the Iran Petroleum Energy 

Sector List, or are or have been engaged with business operations in Cuba or Syria during the term of this 

Agreement. 

13.3 The CONTRACTOR agrees to observe the above requirements for applicable subcontracts entered into 

for the performance of work under this Agreement. 

13.4 The CONTRACTOR agrees that the certifications in this section shall be effective and relied upon by 

the CITY for the term of this Agreement, including any and all renewals. 

13.5 The CONTRACTOR agrees that if it or any of its subcontractors’ status changes in regards to any 

certification herein, the CONTRACTOR shall immediately notify the CITY of the same. 

13.6 As provided in Subsection 287.135(8), Florida Statutes, if federal law ceases to authorize the above-

stated contracting prohibitions then they shall become inoperative. 

 

Article 14. E-VERIFY 

 

Pursuant to Section 448.095(2), Florida Statutes, the CONTRACTOR shall: 

14.1. Register with and use the E-Verify system to verify the work authorization status of all newly hired 

employees and require all subcontractors (providing services or receiving funding under this Agreement) to 

register with and use the E-Verify system to verify the work authorization status of all the subcontractors’ newly 

hired employees; 

14.2. Secure an affidavit from all subcontractors (providing services or receiving funding under this 

Agreement) stating that the subcontractor does not employ, Agreement with, or subcontract with an 

“unauthorized alien” as defined in Section 448.095(1)(k), Florida Statutes; 

14.3. Maintain copies of all subcontractor affidavits for the duration of this Agreement and provide the same 

to the CITY upon request; 

14.4 Comply fully, and ensure all of its subcontractors comply fully, with Section 448.095, Florida Statutes; 

14.5. Be aware that a violation of Section 448.09, Florida Statutes (Unauthorized aliens; employment 

prohibited) shall be grounds for termination of this Agreement; and, 

14.6. Be aware that if the CITY terminates this Agreement under Section 448.095(2)(c), Florida Statutes, 

CONTRACTOR may not be awarded a Agreement for at least 1 year after the date on which the Agreement is 

terminated and will be liable for any additional costs incurred by the CITY as a result of the termination of the 

Agreement.   

 

Remainder of this page intentionally left blank 

Signature page follows  





Page 17 of 35 

 

 

EXHIBIT “A” 

SAMPLE WORK ORDER 

 

CONTRACT FOR SYSTEM HARDENING AND RELIABILITY IMPROVEMENTS 

WORK ORDER NO._____ 

 

THIS WORK ORDER for System Hardening and Reliability Improvements (“Work Order” hereafter) 

is made on the ____ ___________________________, between the City of Lake Worth Beach, a Florida 

municipal corporation located at 7 North Dixie Highway, Lake Worth Beach, Florida 33460 (“City” hereafter) 

and Hooper Corporation , a foreign for profit corporation authorized to do business in State of Florida 

(“Contractor” hereafter). 

 

1.0 Project Description: 

 

The City desires the Contractor to provide all goods, services, materials and equipment as identified 

herein related to the System Hardening and Reliability Improvements project generally described as:  

__________________________________________________________ (the “Project”). The Project is 

more specifically described in the plans prepared by ______________________, dated ____________, 

and which are incorporated herein by reference.  

 

2.0 Scope 

 

Under this Work Order, the Contractor will provide the City of Lake Worth Beach with construction 

services for the Project as specified in the Contractor’s proposal attached hereto and incorporated 

herein as Exhibit “1”.    

 

3.0 Schedule and Liquidated Damages 

 

Substantial completion of all services and work under this Work Order shall be within ____   calendar 

days from the Effective Date of this Work Order. Final completion of all services and work (and all 

punch-list items (if any)) under this Work Order shall be within ____ calendar days from the Effective 

Date of this Work Order. The Effective Date of this Work Order is the date following the parties’ 

execution of this Work Order and the City’s delivery of a Notice to Proceed to the Contractor via e-mail, 

facsimile or other form of delivery as documented by the City. Substantial completion occurs when the 

services and work has progressed to the point where, in the opinion of the City, the work is sufficiently 

complete in accordance with the Contract Documents and this Work Order, so that the Project can be 

utilized for the purposes for which it is intended. Final completion occurs when all services and work 

(including punch-list items) has been completed and the project becomes fully operational and accepted 

by the City. 

 

Liquidated Damages. The City and Contractor recognize that time is of the essence under this 

Work Order and the Contract Documents, and that the City will suffer financial loss if the services 

and work described in this Work Order and the Contract Documents are not completed within 

the times specified in this Work Order. The City and Contractor recognize, agree and 

acknowledge that it would be impractical and extremely difficult to ascertain and fix the actual 

damages that the City would suffer in the event Contractor neglects, refuses, or otherwise fails to 

complete the services and work within the time specified. Accordingly, instead of requiring any 

such proof, the City and Contractor agree that as liquidated damages for delay (but not as a 

penalty) Contractor shall pay the City________ hundred dollars ($_________.00) for each day 

that expires after the time specified in this Work Order.   



Page 18 of 35 

 

 

 

4.0 Compensation and Direct Purchases 

 

This Work Order is issued for a lump sum, not to exceed amount of $______________________ 

(_____________________). The attached proposal identifies all costs and expenses included in the 

lump sum, not to exceed amount. 

 

The following Direct Purchases are to be made under this Work Order by the City: ________________ 

__________________________________________________________________________________

_________________________________________________________________________________. 

 

5.0 Project Manager 

 

The Project Manager for the Contractor is __________________________, 

phone:___________________; email: ____________________; and, the Project Manager for the City 

is ______________________________, phone:_________________________________; 

email:_______________________. 

 

6.0 Progress Meetings 

 

The Contractor shall schedule periodic progress review meetings with the City Project Manager as 

necessary but every 30 days as a minimum. 

 

7.0 Contractor’s Representations 

 

In order to induce the City to enter into this Work Order, the Contractor makes the following 

representations: 

 

7.1 Contractor has familiarized itself with the nature and extent of the Contract Documents 

including this Work Order, work, site, locality, and all local conditions and laws and regulations that in 

any manner may affect cost, progress, performance or furnishing of the work. 

 

7.2 Contractor has obtained at his/her own expense and carefully studied, or assumes responsibility 

for obtaining and carefully studying, soil investigations, explorations, and test reports which pertain to 

the subsurface conditions at or contiguous to the site or otherwise may affect the cost, progress, 

performance or furnishing of the work as Contractor considers necessary for the performance or 

furnishing of the work at the stated work order price within the Work Order stated time and in 

accordance with the other terms and conditions of the Contract Documents, including specifically the 

provisions of the IFB; and no additional examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, reports, studies 

or similar information or data are or is deemed necessary by Contractor for such purposes. 

 

7.3 Contractor has reviewed and checked all information and data shown or indicated on the 

Contract Documents with respect to existing Underground Facilities at or contiguous to the site and 

assumes responsibility for the accurate location of said Underground Facilities. No additional 

examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, reports, studies or similar information or data in respect 

of said Underground Facilities are or is deemed necessary by the Contractor in order to perform and 

furnish the work under this Work Order price, within the Work Order time and in accordance with the 

other terms and conditions of the Contract Documents. 

 

7.4 Contractor has correlated the results of all such observations, examinations, investigations, 



Page 19 of 35 

 

explorations, tests, reports and studies with the terms and conditions of the Contract Documents. 

 

7.5 Contractor has given the City’s Contract Administrator written notice of all conflicts, errors or 

discrepancies that he or she has discovered in the Contract Documents and the written resolution thereof 

by City or its designee is acceptable to the Contractor. 

 

8.0 Warranty.  The Contractor warrants and guarantees to the City that all services and work provided 

under this Work Order will be in accordance with this Work Order and the other Contract Documents. 

The Contractor warrants that (a) all materials and parts supplied under this Work Order shall be free 

from defects for one (1) year from the final completion of all work (unless a longer manufacturer 

warranty applies); (b) all services and work performed under this Work Order will be free from defects 

for one (1) year from the final completion of all work and the project shall be fully operational without 

unreasonable downtime or failures; and (c) that the services and work will conform to the requirements 

of the Contract Documents. If, at any time prior to the expiration of the one (1) year warranty period, 

the City discovers any failure or breach of the Contractor’s warranties or the Contractor discovers any 

failure or breach of the Contractor’s warranties, the Contractor will, upon written notice from City or of 

its own accord, at the Contractor’s sole cost and expense, promptly correct such failure or breach (which 

corrective action must include, without limitation, any necessary removal, disassembly, reinstallation, 

repair, replacement, reassembly, retesting, and/or re-inspection of any part or portion of the work and 

any other property damaged or affected by such failure, breach, or corrective action). The Contractor 

will remedy any such failure or breach so, to the extent possible, to avoid unnecessary disruptions to the 

operations of City or its systems. In the event the Contractor fails to initiate and diligently pursue 

corrective action within five (5) days of the Contractor’s receipt of the City’s notice or the Contractor’s 

discovery of the same, the City may undertake such corrective action at the Contractor’s expense.  

 

9.0 Authorization 

 

This Work Order is issued pursuant to the System Hardening and Reliability Improvements Contract for 

between the City of Lake Worth Beach and the Contractor, dated _____________, (“Contract” 

hereafter). If there are any conflicts between the terms and conditions of this Work Order and the 

Contract, the terms and conditions of the Contract shall prevail.  

 

  

 

REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS 

 

 

 

 

  



Page 20 of 35 

 

 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have made and executed this Work Order as of the day 

and year set forth above.   

 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA 

 

ATTEST:                                                                       

             

                                              

By: __________________________                By: ____DO NOT SIGN – SAMPLE ONLY____________ 

      Melissa Ann Coyne, City Clerk                                Betty Resch, Mayor 

 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND                          APPROVED FOR FINANCIAL         

LEGAL SUFFICIENCY:                                        SUFFICIENCY 

 

 

By: __________________________                By: _______________________________________ 

      Glen J. Torcivia, City Attorney                            Yannick Ngendahayo, Financial Services Director 

 

 

 

CONTRACTOR: HOOPER CORPORATION 

 

      By: __DO NOT SIGN – SAMPLE ONLY ___ 

 

[Corporate Seal]    Print Name: ___________________________ 

 

      Title: _________________________________ 

 

 

STATE OF _______________________) 

COUNTY OF _____________________) 

 

THE FOREGOING instrument was acknowledged before me by means of • physical presence or • 

online notarization on this ____ day of ______________ 2023, by ________________________, as the 

________________________ [title] of Hooper Corporation,  a foreign profit Corporation, who is personally 

known to me or who has produced _________________________ as identification, and who did take an oath 

that he or she is duly authorized to execute the foregoing instrument and bind the CONTRACTOR to the same.   

 

 

 

____________________________________ 

Notary Public Signature 

Notary Seal:     

 

    

 

 

  



Page 21 of 35 

 

EXHIBIT “B” 

HOURLY BILLING RATES 

 

 
 

  



Page 22 of 35 

 

 



Page 23 of 35 

 

 
 

 



Page 24 of 35 

 

  



Page 25 of 35 

 

 

EXHIBIT “C” 

PUBLIC CONSTRUCTION BOND FORMS 

 

Record and Return to: 

 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH  

PAYMENT AND PERFORMANCE BOND 

(Pursuant to sec. 255.05, Fla. Stat.) 

 

Surety Bond No. __________  

   

Any singular reference to Contractor, Surety, Owner or other party shall be considered plural where applicable. 

 

CONTRACTOR:     SURETY: 

Name:       Name: 

Principal Business Address:    Principal Business Address 

 

Telephone Number:     Telephone Number: 

 

OWNER: 

City of Lake Worth Beach 

7 North Dixie Highway 

Lake Worth Beach, FL  33460 

(561) 586-1600 

 

CONTRACT:  System Hardening and Reliability Improvement Program 

Contract Work Order No: 

Date: 

Amount: 

Description (Name and Location):  

General Description of Work: 

 

BOND 

Date (not earlier than Work Order Date): 

Amount: 

Modifications to this Bond Form: 

 

This Bond is issued in favor of the City of Lake Worth Beach/Owner conditioned on the full and faithful 

performance of the Contract. 

1. Contractor has entered into Project No. ___________________ with the City for the project titled 

“_____________________________” (the “Contract”), with conditions and provisions as are further described 

in the aforementioned Contract, which Contract, including all of its attachments, exhibits and incorporated 

documents (hereinafter, collectively, the “Contract Documents”) is by reference made a part hereof for the 

purposes of explaining this bond. 

2. Principal and Surety are bound to the Owner in the sum of the Contract Amount set forth above for 

payment of which we bind ourselves, our heirs, personal representatives, successors, and assigns, jointly and 

severally. 

3. THE CONDITION OF THIS BOND is that if Principal: 

 a. Performs the Work required of and in accordance with the Contract Documents at the times and in 

the manner prescribed in the Contract Documents, which are made a part of this bond by reference; and 



Page 26 of 35 

 

 b. In accordance with sec. 255.05 and sec. 337.18, Florida Statutes, promptly makes payment s to 

all persons, defined in sec. 713.01, Florida Statutes, who furnish labor, services or materials for prosecution of 

the work set forth in the Contract Documents described above; and 

 c. Pays Owner all losses, damages (including liquidated damages), expenses, costs, and 

professional fees, including but not limited to attorneys’ fees, including appellate proceedings, that Owner 

sustains because of a default by Principal under the Contract Documents; and 

 d. Performs the warranty and guarantee of all work and materials furnished under the Contract 

Documents for the time specified in the Contract Documents, then this bond is void; otherwise it remains in full 

force. 

4.      Section 255.05, Fla. Stat., as amended, together with all notice and time provisions contained therein, 

is incorporated herein by reference. 

5. Any action instituted by a claimant under this bond for payment must be in accordance with the notice 

and time limitation provisions in secs. 255.05(2) and (10), Fla. Stat., and those of sec. 337.18, Fla. Stat. 

6.        Any changes in or under the Contract Documents and compliance or noncompliance with any 

formalities connected with the Contract Documents or the changes does not affect Surety's obligation under this 

bond, and Surety waives notice of such changes. 

7. Principal and Surety expressly acknowledge that any and all provisions relating to consequential, delay 

and liquidated damages contained in the contract are expressly covered by and made a part of this Performance, 

Labor and Material Payment Bond.  Principal and Surety acknowledge that any such provisions lie within their 

obligations and within the policy coverages and limitations of this instrument. 

8. Any action brought under this instrument shall be brought in the state court of competent jurisdiction in 

Palm Beach County, Florida, and not elsewhere. 

Surety and Contractor, intending to be legally bound hereby, subject to the terms included herein and as required 

under Florida Statutes, do each cause this Performance and Payment Bond to be duly executed on its behalf by 

its authorized officer, agent, or representative. 

 

Signed and sealed this _______ day of ______________________________, 20__. 

 

 

_________________________________  __________________________________ 

Witness      Principal 

 

       __________________________________ 

       Title 

(Corporate Seal) 

 

_________________________________  __________________________________ 

Witness      Surety 

 

       __________________________________ 

       Attorney-in-Fact 

       (Attach Power of Attorney) 

 

__________________________________ 

       Print Name 

 

       (Corporate Seal) 

 

  



Page 27 of 35 

 

EXHIBIT “D” 

 

Federal Contract Provisions 

 

The Contractor hereby agrees that the following terms, at a minimum, will be incorporated into any subsequent 

contract resulting from this IFB, which is funded in whole or in part with any federal or other funding where the 

following terms are applicable: 

 

Equal Employment Opportunity. During the performance of the resulting contract, the Contractor agrees as 

follows: 

 

(1) The Contractor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 

color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, or national origin. The Contractor will take affirmative 

action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during employment without regard 

to their race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, or national origin. Such action shall include, 

but not be limited to the following: 

Employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; 

rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship. The Contractor 

agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for employment, notices to be 

provided setting forth the provisions of this nondiscrimination clause.   

(2) The Contractor will, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of the 

Contractor, state that all qualified applicants will receive consideration for employment without regard to race, 

color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, or national origin. 

(3) The Contractor will not discharge or in any other manner discriminate against any employee or applicant 

for employment because such employee or applicant has inquired about, discussed, or disclosed the 

compensation of the employee or applicant or another employee or applicant. This provision shall not apply to 

instances in which an employee who has access to the compensation information of other employees or 

applicants as a part of such employee's essential job functions discloses the compensation of such other 

employees or applicants to individuals who do not otherwise have access to such information, unless such 

disclosure is in response to a formal complaint or charge, in furtherance of an investigation, proceeding, hearing, 

or action, including an investigation conducted by the employer, or is consistent with the Contractor's legal duty 

to furnish information. 

(4) The Contractor will send to each labor union or representative of workers with which he has a collective 

bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding, a notice to be provided advising the said labor union 

or workers' representatives of the Contractor's commitments under this section, and shall post copies of the notice 

in conspicuous places available to employees and applicants for employment. 

(5) The Contractor will comply with all provisions of Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, and 

of the rules, regulations, and relevant orders of the Secretary of Labor. 

 (6) The Contractor will furnish all information and reports required by Executive Order 11246 of September 

24, 1965, and by rules, regulations, and orders of the Secretary of Labor, or pursuant thereto, and will permit 

access to his books, records, and accounts by the administering agency and the Secretary of Labor for purposes 

of investigation to ascertain compliance with such rules, regulations, and orders. 

(7) In the event of the Contractor's noncompliance with the nondiscrimination clauses of this contract or 

with any of the said rules, regulations, or orders, this contract may be canceled, terminated, or suspended in 

whole or in part and the Contractor may be declared ineligible for further Government contracts or federally 

assisted construction contracts in accordance with procedures authorized in Executive Order 11246 of September 

24, 1965, and such other sanctions may be imposed and remedies invoked as provided in Executive Order 11246 

of September 24, 1965, or by rule, regulation, or order of the Secretary of Labor, or as otherwise provided by 

law. 

(8) The Contractor will include the portion of the sentence immediately preceding paragraph (1) and the 

provisions of paragraphs (1) through (8) in every subcontract or purchase order unless exempted by rules, 



Page 28 of 35 

 

regulations, or orders of the Secretary of Labor issued pursuant to section 204 of Executive Order 11246 of 

September 24, 1965, so that such provisions will be binding upon each subcontractor or vendor. The Contractor 

will take such action with respect to any subcontract or purchase order as the administering agency may direct 

as a means of enforcing such provisions, including sanctions for noncompliance:  Provided, however, that in the 

event a Contractor becomes involved in, or is threatened with, litigation with a subcontractor or vendor as a 

result of such direction by the administering agency, the Contractor may request the United States to enter into 

such litigation to protect the interests of the United States.  

The applicant further agrees that it will be bound by the above equal opportunity clause with respect to its own 

employment practices when it participates in federally assisted construction work: Provided, That if the applicant 

so participating is a State or local government, the above equal opportunity clause is not applicable to any 

agency, instrumentality or subdivision of such government which does not participate in work on or under the 

contract.  The applicant agrees that it will assist and cooperate actively with the administering agency and the 

Secretary of Labor in obtaining the compliance of contractors and subcontractors with the equal opportunity 

clause and the rules, regulations, and relevant orders of the Secretary of Labor, that it will furnish the 

administering agency and the Secretary of Labor such information as they may require for the supervision of 

such compliance, and that it will otherwise assist the administering agency in the discharge of the agency's 

primary responsibility for securing compliance.   

The applicant further agrees that it will refrain from entering into any contract or contract modification subject 

to Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, with a Contractor debarred from, or who has not demonstrated 

eligibility for, Government contracts and federally assisted construction contracts pursuant to the Executive 

Order and will carry out such sanctions and penalties for violation of the equal opportunity clause as may be 

imposed upon contractors and subcontractors by the administering agency or the Secretary of Labor pursuant to 

Part II, Subpart D of the Executive Order. In addition, the applicant agrees that if it fails or refuses to comply 

with these undertakings, the administering agency may take any or all of the following actions: Cancel, 

terminate, or suspend in whole or in part this grant (contract, loan, insurance, guarantee); refrain from extending 

any further assistance to the applicant under the program with respect to which the failure or refund occurred 

until satisfactory assurance of future compliance has been received from such applicant; and refer the case to the 

Department of Justice for appropriate legal proceedings. 

 

Compliance with the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act. 

(1) Overtime requirements. No Contractor or subcontractor contracting for any part of the contract work 

which may require or involve the employment of laborers or mechanics shall require or permit any such laborer 

or mechanic in any workweek in which he or she is employed on such work to work in excess of forty hours in 

such workweek unless such laborer or mechanic receives compensation at a rate not less than one and one-half 

times the basic rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of forty hours in such workweek. 

(2) Violation; liability for unpaid wages; liquidated damages. In the event of any violation of the clause set 

forth in paragraph (1) of this section the Contractor and any subcontractor responsible therefor shall be liable 

for the unpaid wages. In addition, such Contractor and subcontractor shall be liable to the United States (in the 

case of work done under contract for the District of Columbia or a territory, to such District or to such territory), 

for liquidated damages. Such liquidated damages shall be computed with respect to each individual laborer or 

mechanic, including watchmen and guards, employed in violation of the clause set forth in paragraph (1) of this 

section, in the sum of $27 for each calendar day on which such individual was required or permitted to work in 

excess of the standard workweek of forty hours without payment of the overtime wages required by the clause 

set forth in paragraph (1) of this section.   

(3) Withholding for unpaid wages and liquidated damages. DOJ, the State of Florida, or the CITY  shall 

upon its own action or upon written request of an authorized representative of the Department of Labor withhold 

or cause to be withheld, from any moneys payable on account of work performed by the Contractor or 

subcontractor under any such contract or any other Federal contract with the same prime contractor, or any other 

federally-assisted contract subject to the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act, which is held by the 

same prime contractor, such sums as may be determined to be necessary to satisfy any liabilities of such 



Page 29 of 35 

 

Contractor or subcontractor for unpaid wages and liquidated damages as provided in the clause set forth in 

paragraph (2) of this section. 

(4) Subcontracts. The Contractor or subcontractor shall insert in any subcontracts the clauses set forth in 

paragraph (1) through (4) of this section and also a clause requiring the subcontractors to include these clauses 

in any lower tier subcontracts. The prime Contractor shall be responsible for compliance by any subcontractor 

or lower tier subcontractor with the clauses set forth in paragraphs (1) through (4) of this section. 

 

Rights to Inventions Made Under a Contract or Agreement 

If the Federal award meets the definition of “funding agreement” under 37 CFR § 401.2(a) and the recipient or 

subrecipient wishes to enter into a contract with a small business firm or nonprofit organization regarding the 

substitution of parties, assignment or performance of experimental, developmental, or research work under that 

“funding agreement,” the recipient or subrecipient must comply with the requirements of 37 CFR Part 401, 

“Rights to Inventions Made by Nonprofit Organizations and Small Business Firms Under Government Grants, 

Contracts and Cooperative Agreements,” and any implementing regulations issued by the awarding agency. 

 

Clean Air Act 

(1) The Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable standards, orders or regulations issued pursuant to the 

Clean Air Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 7401 et seq. 

(2) The Contractor agrees to report each violation to the City, and understands and agrees that the City will, in 

turn, report each violation as required to assure notification to the Federal Emergency Management Agency, and 

the appropriate Environmental Protection Agency Regional Office.  

(3) The Contractor agrees to include these requirements in each subcontract exceeding $150,000 financed in 

whole or in part with Federal assistance provided by DOJ. 

 

Federal Water Pollution Control Act  

(1) The Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable standards, orders, or regulations issued pursuant to the 

Federal Water Pollution Control Act, as amended, 33 U.S.C. 1251 et seq. 

(2) The Contractor agrees to report each violation to the CITY and understands and agrees that the CITY will, 

in turn, report each violation as required to assure notification to the Federal Emergency Management Agency, 

and the appropriate Environmental Protection Agency Regional Office. 

(3) The Contractor agrees to include these requirements in each subcontract exceeding $150,000 financed in 

whole or in part with Federal assistance provided by DOJ. 

 

Suspension and Debarment.  

(1) This contract is a covered transaction for purposes of 2 C.F.R. pt. 180 and 2 C.F.R. pt. 3000. As such, the 

Contractor is required to verify that none of the Contractor’s principals (defined at 2 C.F.R. § 180.995) or its 

affiliates (defined at 2 C.F.R. § 180.905) are excluded (defined at 2 C.F.R. § 180.940) or disqualified (defined 

at 2 C.F.R. § 180.935). 

(2) The Contractor must comply with 2 C.F.R. pt. 180, subpart C and 2 C.F.R. pt. 3000, subpart C, and must 

include a requirement to comply with these regulations in any lower tier covered transaction it enters into. 

(3) This certification, as laid out in Exhibit I, is a material representation of fact relied upon by the City. If it is 

later determined that the Contractor did not comply with 2 C.F.R. pt. 180, subpart C and 2 C.F.R. pt. 3000, 

subpart C, in addition to remedies available to the State of Florida or the City, the Federal Government may 

pursue available remedies, including but not limited to suspension and/or debarment. 

(4) The bidder or proposer agrees to comply with the requirements of 2 C.F.R. pt. 180, subpart C and 2 C.F.R. 

pt. 3000, subpart C while this offer is valid and throughout the period of any contract that may arise from this 

offer. The bidder or proposer further agrees to include a provision requiring such compliance in its lower tier 

covered transactions. 

 

Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment. 



Page 30 of 35 

 

 Contractors who apply or bid for an award of $100,000 or more shall file the required certification as laid out 

in Exhibit J. Each tier certifies to the tier above that it will not and has not used Federal appropriated funds to 

pay any person or organization for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, 

a Member of Congress, officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection 

with obtaining any Federal contract, grant, or any other award covered by 31 U.S.C. § 1352. Each tier shall also 

disclose any lobbying with non-Federal funds that takes place in connection with obtaining any Federal award. 

Such disclosures are forwarded from tier to tier up to the recipient who in turn will forward the certification(s) 

to the awarding agency. 

 

Procurement of Recovered materials.  

(i) In the performance of this contract, the Contractor shall make maximum use of products containing 

recovered materials that are EPA-designated items unless the product cannot be acquired— 

• Competitively within a timeframe providing for compliance with the contract performance schedule; 

• Meeting contract performance requirements; or 

• At a reasonable price. 

(ii)  Information about this requirement, along with the list of EPA-designated items, is available at EPA’s 

Comprehensive Procurement Guidelines web site, https://www.epa.gov/smm/comprehensive- procurement-

guideline-cpg-program. 

(iii) The Contractor also agrees to comply with all other applicable requirements of Section 6002 of the Solid 

Waste Disposal Act.” 

 

Access to Records.  

(1) The Contractor agrees to provide the State of Florida, the CITY, the DOJ Administrator, the Comptroller 

General of the United States, or any of their authorized representatives access to any books, documents, papers, 

and records of the Contractor which are directly pertinent to this contract for the purposes of making audits, 

examinations, excerpts, and transcriptions.  

(2) The Contractor agrees to permit any of the foregoing parties to reproduce by any means whatsoever or to 

copy excerpts and transcriptions as reasonably needed. 

(3) The Contractor agrees to provide the Federal Administrator or his authorized representatives access to 

construction or other work sites pertaining to the work being completed under the contract. 

(4) In compliance with the Disaster Recovery Act of 2018, the City and the Contractor acknowledge and agree 

that no language in this contract is intended to prohibit audits or internal reviews by the DOJ Administrator or 

the Comptroller General of the United States. 

 

DHS Seal, Logo, and Flags.  

The Contractor shall not use the DHS seal(s), logos, crests, or reproductions of flags or likenesses of DHS agency 

officials without specific DOJ pre-approval. 

 

Compliance with Federal Law, Regulations, and Executive Orders.  

By signing this agreement, the Contractor acknowledges that federal financial assistance may be used to fund 

all or a portion of the contract. The Contractor will comply with all applicable Federal law, regulations, executive 

orders, federal policies, procedures, and directives.  

 

No Obligation by Federal Government.  

The Federal Government is not a party to this contract and is not subject to any obligations or liabilities to the 

non-Federal entity, Contractor, or any other party pertaining to any matter resulting from the contract. 

 

Program Fraud and False or Fraudulent Statements or Related Acts. The Contractor acknowledges that 31 

U.S.C. Chap. 38 (Administrative Remedies for False Claims and Statements) applies to the Contractor’s actions 

pertaining to this contract. 

 



Page 31 of 35 

 

Affirmative Steps.  Required Affirmative Steps  

If the Contractor intends to subcontract any portion of the work covered by this Contract, the Contractor must 

take all necessary affirmative steps to assure that small and minority businesses, women’s business enterprises 

and labor surplus area firms are solicited and used when possible.  Affirmative steps must include: 

(1) Placing qualified small and minority businesses and women's business enterprises on solicitation lists; 

(2) Assuring that small and minority businesses, and women's business enterprises are solicited whenever 

they are potential sources; 

(3) Dividing total requirements, when economically feasible, into smaller tasks or quantities to permit 

maximum participation by small and minority businesses, and women's business enterprises; 

(4) Establishing delivery schedules, where the requirement permits, which encourage participation by small 

and minority businesses, and women's business enterprises; and 

(5) Using the services and assistance, as appropriate, of such organizations as the Small Business 

Administration and the Minority Business Development Agency of the Department of Commerce. 

 

Domestic preferences for procurements. 

(1) As appropriate and to the extent consistent with law, the Contractor should purchase, acquire, or use of goods, 

products, or materials produced in the United States (including but not limited to iron, aluminum, steel, cement, 

and other manufactured products).  

(2) For purposes of this section:  

(a) “Produced in the United States” means, for iron and steel products, that all manufacturing processes, from 

the initial melting stage through the application of coatings, occurred in the United States.  

(b) “Manufactured products” means items and construction materials composed in whole or in part of non-

ferrous metals such as aluminum; plastics and polymer-based products such as polyvinyl chloride pipe; 

aggregates such as concrete; glass, including optical fiber; and lumber. 

 

Prohibition on certain telecommunications and video surveillance services or equipment. 

(1) The Contractor is prohibited from obligating or expending loan or grant funds to:  

(a) Procure or obtain;  

(b) Extend or renew a contract to procure or obtain; or  

(c) Enter into a contract (or extend or renew a contract) to procure or obtain equipment, services, or systems that 

uses covered telecommunications equipment or services as a substantial or essential component of any system, 

or as critical technology as part of any system. As described in Public Law 115-232, section 889, covered 

telecommunications equipment is telecommunications equipment produced by Huawei Technologies Company 

or ZTE Corporation (or any subsidiary or affiliate of such entities).  

(i) For the purpose of public safety, security of government facilities, physical security surveillance of critical 

infrastructure, and other national security purposes, video surveillance and telecommunications equipment 

produced by Hytera Communications Corporation, Hangzhou Hikvision Digital Technology Company, or 

Dahua Technology Company (or any subsidiary or affiliate of such entities).  

(ii) Telecommunications or video surveillance services provided by such entities or using such equipment.  

(iii) Telecommunications or video surveillance equipment or services produced or provided by an entity that the 

Secretary of Defense, in consultation with the Director of the National Intelligence or the Director of the Federal 

Bureau of Investigation, reasonably believes to be an entity owned or controlled by, or otherwise connected to, 

the government of a covered foreign country.  

(2) In implementing the prohibition under Public Law 115-232, section 889, subsection (f), paragraph (1), the 

City shall prioritize available funding and technical support to assist affected businesses, institutions and 

organizations as is reasonably necessary for those affected entities to transition from covered communications 

equipment and services, to procure replacement equipment and services, and to ensure that communications 

service to users and customers is sustained. 

 

Compliance with the Davis-Bacon Act. 



Page 32 of 35 

 

a. All transactions regarding this contract shall be done in compliance with the Davis-Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. 

3141-3144, and 3146-3148) and the requirements of 29C.F.R. pt. 5 as may be applicable. The contractor shall 

comply with 40 U.S.C. 3141-3144, and 3146-3148 and the requirements of 29 C.F.R. pt. 5 as applicable. 

b. Contractors are required to pay wages to laborers and mechanics at a rate not less than the prevailing wages 

specified in a wage determination made by the Secretary of Labor. 

c. Additionally, contractors are required to pay wages not less than once a week. 

 

 

 

 

Current Davis Bacon wage determination for Heavy Construction shall be attached to each Work Order if 

Federal Funds are utilized.   

  



Page 33 of 35 

 

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY 

MATTERS - LOWER-TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS 

 

This document is a covered transaction for purposes of the debarment and suspension regulations implementing 

Executive Order 12549, Debarment and Suspension (1986) and Executive Order 12689, Debarment and 

Suspension (1989) at 2 C.F.R. Part 3000 (Non- procurement Debarment and Suspension).  As such, Contractor 

is required to confirm that none of the Contractor, its principals (defined at 2 C.F.R. § 180.995), or its affiliates 

(defined at 2 C.F.R. § 180.905) are excluded (defined at 2 C.F.R. § 180.940) or disqualified (defined at 2 C.F.R. 

§ 180.935).  

 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION 

 

1) By signing this Certification, the Contractor, also sometimes referred to herein as a prospective primary 

participant, is providing the certification set out below.  

 

2) The inability of a Contractor to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in 

denial of participation in the covered transaction.  The prospective participant shall submit an explanation of 

why it cannot provide the certification set out below.  The certification or explanation will be considered in 

connection with the City’s determination whether to enter into this transaction.  However, failure of the 

prospective primary participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from 

participation in this transaction. 

 

3) The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when 

the City determined to enter into this transaction.  If it is later determined that the prospective primary participant 

knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies available to the City, the City may 

terminate this transaction for cause or default. 

 

4) The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the City if at any time the 

prospective primary participant learns that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become 

erroneous by reason of changed circumstances. 

 

5) The terms covered transaction, debarred, suspended, ineligible, lower tier covered transaction, 

participant, person, primary covered transaction, principal, proposal and voluntarily excluded, as used in this 

certification, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and Coverage sections of the rules implementing 

Executive Order 12549. 

 

6) The prospective primary participant agrees by signing the Addendum that it shall not knowingly enter 

into any lower tier covered transactions with a person who is proposed for debarment under 48 CFR part 9, 

subpart 9.4, debarred, suspended, declared ineligible or voluntarily excluded from participation in this covered 

transaction.  If it is later determined that the prospective primary participant knowingly entered into such a 

transaction, in addition to other remedies available to the City, the City may terminate this transaction for cause 

or default. 

 

7) The prospective primary participant further agrees by signing this Addendum that it will include the 

clause titled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion - Lower 

Tier Covered Transaction,” as available through the United States Department of Homeland Security, without 

modification, in all lower tier covered transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions. 

 

8) A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a 

lower tier covered transaction that it is not proposed for debarment under 48 CFR part 9, subpart 9.4, debarred, 

suspended, ineligible or voluntarily excluded from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification 



Page 34 of 35 

 

is erroneous.  A participant may decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its 

principals.  Each participant may, but is not required to, check the List of Parties Excluded from Federal 

Procurement and Non-procurement Programs. 

 

9) Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records in 

order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause.  The knowledge and information of a 

participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary course 

of business dealings. 

 

 

 

__________________________________________ 

Signature of Contractor’s Authorized Official 

 

__________________________________________ 

Name and Title of Contractor’s Authorized Official 

 

________________ 

Date 

  



Page 35 of 35 

 

  
Certification for Contracts, Grants, Loans, and Cooperative Agreements 

 

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that: 

 

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any 

person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of an agency, a Member of Congress, 

an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding 

of any Federal contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into of 

any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal 

contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement. 

 

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for 

influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer 

or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this Federal contract, 

grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, 

“Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying,” in accordance with its instructions. 

 

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award documents 

for all subawards at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and contracts under grants, loans, and 

cooperative agreements) and that all subrecipients shall certify and disclose accordingly. 

 

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was 

made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction 

imposed by section 1352, title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be 

subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure.   

 

The Contractor ____________________________ certifies or affirms the truthfulness and accuracy of each 

statement of its certification and disclosure, if any. In addition, the Contractor understands and agrees that the 

provisions of 31 U.S.C. Chap. 38, Administrative Remedies for False Claims and Statements, apply to this 

certification and disclosure, if any. 

 

_________________________________________ 

Signature of Contractor’s Authorized Official 

 

__________________________________________ 

Name and Title of Contractor’s Authorized Official 

 

________________ 

Date 

 

 



submitted submitted submitted submitted submitted submitted

submitted
submitted submitted submitted submitted submitted

submitted submitted submitted submitted submitted submitted
submitted submitted submitted submitted submitted submitted
submitted submitted submitted not submitted submitted submitted
submitted submitted submitted submitted submitted submitted
submitted submitted submitted submitted submitted submitted
submitted submitted submitted submitted submitted submitted
submitted submitted submitted submitted submitted submitted
submitted submitted submitted submitted submitted submitted
submitted submitted submitted submitted submitted submitted
submitted submitted submitted submitted submitted submitted
submitted submitted submitted submitted submitted submitted

n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

submitted submitted submitted submitted submitted submitted

submitted submitted submitted submitted submitted submitted
submitted submitted submitted submitted submitted submitted

`
Conditional bid pricing valid only 

90 days/adjusted annually. 

Compliant Compliant Compliant 
Not Compliant (conditional 

pricing) Compliant Compliant 

City of Lake Worth Beach 
Compliance Checklist & Bid Tab

IFB#23-116 System Hardening Reliability Improvement Program

Schedule of Subcontractors (B6)

Hooper Corporation Michels Power, Inc

Comments:

Compliance : 

Substitution Sheet (B5)

Schedule of Unit Prices (B4)
Bid (B3)

Minimum Qualifications Bidder’s Minimum Qualifications 
with Qualification Questionnaire and Appendix 1 (B2)

Bid Package Cover Sheet (B1)

Contractor Verification Form (B7)
Reference List (B8)

Non-Collusion Affidavit (B9)
Drug Free Certification (B10)

Campaing Contribution Statement (B11)
Scrutinized Companies Certification (B12)

Veteran Owned Enterprise, and Small Business Preference 
Form (B13)

Certification regarding Debarments, Suspension and Other 
Responsibility Matters (B14)

Power Standard, LLC Primoris T&D Services, LLC The L.E. Myers Co. Wilco Electrical, LLC

Bid Bond

Schedule of Unit Prices in Excel USB Drive (B4A)

, , , p
Agreements (B15)



STAFF REPORT 
UTILITY MEETING 

 

 
  

AGENDA DATE: September 26, 2023 DEPARTMENT: Electric Utility 

TITLE: 

Approval of contracts with NuCAT Corp., TeamWorknet, Inc and Powerserve Technologies, Inc for 
professional services to perform electrical equipment inspection, testing, repair and maintenance for the 
City’s Electric Utility   

 
SUMMARY: 

The Contracts have been negotiated with NuCAT Corp., TeamWorknet, Inc and Powerserve 
Technologies, Inc to provide professional services to perform inspections, testing, repair and 
preventative maintenance for various electrical components located at the City’s substations and Power 
Plant on an “as-needed” basis to improve electric system reliability for a term of 3 years with possibility 
of extension for additional two (2), one (I) year renewal terms. 

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

The City issued a Request for Proposals (RFP 23-206) to provide Letters of Interest and Proposals from 
professional companies/firms to perform inspections, testing, repair and preventative maintenance for 
various electrical components located at the City’s substations and Power Plant on an “as-needed” basis. 
Having the expertise of NuCAT Corp., TeamWorknet, Inc. and Powerserve Technologies, Inc. available 
to the City’s Electric Utility will expedite the process to complete equipment inspection, testing, repair 
and preventative maintenance in a timely manner as well as making recommendations on repair or 
replacement of aged equipment. NuCAT Corp, TeamWorknet, Inc and Powerserve Technologies, Inc 
were selected under RFP 23-206 for Electrical Equipment Inspection, Testing, Repair and Maintenance 
Contracts and will be issued work orders, as needed, for the professional services under this Contract, 
in accordance with the City’s procurement Code and policy. 

 
MOTION: 

Move to approve/disapprove the Contracts with NuCAT Corp., TeamWorknet, Inc. and Powerserve 
Technologies, Inc. for professional services to perform electrical equipment inspection, testing, repair 
and maintenance for the City’s Electric Utility systems and facilities. 

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Fiscal Impact Analysis 
NuCAT Corp. Contract 
TeamWorknet, Inc. Contract 
Powerserve Technologies, Inc. Contract 
Bid tab 



 

FISCAL IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Five Year Summary of Fiscal Impact: 
 

Fiscal Years 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 

Inflows 
 Current Appropriation 0 0 0 0 0 
 Program Income 0 0 0 0 0 
 Grants 0 0 0 0 0 
 In Kind 0 0 0 0 0 
 

Outflows 
 Current Appropriation 0 0 0 0 0 
 Operating  0 0 0 0 0 
 Capital 0 0 0 0 0 
 

Net Fiscal Impact 0 0 0 0 0 
 

No. of Addn’l Full-Time 
Employee Positions 0 0 0 0 0 
 

 

Contract Award - Existing Appropriation 

  Expenditure 

Department  Electric Utility  

Division Transmission and Distribution  

GL Description Improve Other than Build / Infrastructure  

GL Account Number 421-6034-531-63.15 and 421-6034-531-46.71 

Project Number   

Requested Funds   

 



Page 1 of 21 

 

ELECTRICAL EQUIPMENT INSPECTION, TESTING,  

REPAIR, AND MAINTENANCE CONTRACT 

RFP #23-206 

 

THIS CONTRACT for Electrical Equipment Inspection, Testing, Repair, and Maintenance(“Contract”) 

is entered on ___________________, by and between the City of Lake Worth Beach, a Florida municipal 

corporation (“City”) and Nucat Corporation, a corporation authorized to do business in the State of Florida 

(“Contractor”) with its principal office located at 657 Rambling Dr. Cir., Wellington, FL  33414 .  

 

WHEREAS, the City issued Request for Proposals #23-206 for the Electrical Equipment Inspection, 

Testing, Repair, and Maintenance (“RFP”); and  

 

WHEREAS, the Contractor submitted its proposal in response to the RFP; and  

 

WHEREAS, the City desires to award the RFP to the Contractor on a non-exclusive basis for the 

Electrical Equipment Inspection, Testing, Repair, and Maintenance; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the City finds awarding the RFP to the Contractor as described herein serves a valid public 

purpose. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, the City hereby engages the services of the Contractor, and in consideration of the mutual 

promises herein contained, the sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged by both parties, the parties agree 

as follows: 

 

Article 1.  GENERAL INFORMATION. 

 

1.1 Scope of Services/Work.  The Contractor shall provide the services and work requested by the City and 

required under a City approved work order or purchase order as described herein. The general nature of the 

services and work to be provided by the Contractor under this Contract are the electrical Equipment Inspection, 

Testing, Repair, and Maintenance.  

 

1.2 Contract Documents.  The Contract Documents are incorporated herein by reference as if set forth in 

this Contract and comprise the entire agreement between the City and Contractor. The Contract Documents 

consist of this Contract, the RFP (including, but not limited to, the documents issued with the RFP as the scope 

and specifications, the drawings, addenda, attachments and exhibits); and, any duly executed and City issued 

work orders, purchase orders, and change orders, and any Contract amendments signed by the parties. If, during 

the performance of the work, the Contractor finds an ambiguity, error or discrepancy in the Contract Documents, 

the Contractor shall so notify the City, in writing, within five (5) business days and before proceeding shall 

obtain a written interpretation or clarification. Failure to obtain a written interpretation or clarification will be 

deemed a waiver of the ambiguity, error or discrepancy by the Contractor. The City will not be responsible for 

any oral instructions, clarifications, or other communications except those provided in writing in response to 

Contractor's request for clarification of an ambiguity, discrepancy or error. 

 

In resolving conflicts in any of the Contract Documents, the order of precedence shall be as follows: 

 

First Priority:  Fully executed Change Orders or Contract amendments 

Second Priority:  This Contract 

Third Priority:  Fully executed and City issued Work Orders or Purchase Orders 

Fourth Priority:  RFP 

 

1.3 Contract Administrator.  Whenever the term Contract Administrator is used herein, it is intended to 

mean the City Manager or designee, City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida. In the administration of this 



Page 2 of 21 

 

Contract, all parties may rely upon instructions or determinations made by the Contract Administrator except 

that all requests and/or determinations that result in an increase in change in time of completion and/or an 

increase in the contract price shall require a formal change order or contract amendment executed by the City 

Manager or the City Commission (depending on the authority set forth in the City’s Procurement Code). 

 

1.4 Work Orders.  This Contract does not guarantee that the City will utilize the Contractor in any 

capacity or for any services hereunder. When the City identifies a need for the Contractor’s services, the City 

will request a proposal from the Contractor to provide the services requested. The City will provide the 

Contractor with plans and/or specifications in order for the Contractor to develop its proposal. The Contractor’s 

proposal shall be submitted in the format of the sample work order, attached hereto and incorporated herein as 

Exhibit “A” along with a copy of the Contractor’s proposal and shall be based on the Hourly Billing Rates 

attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit “B”. Upon receipt of the Contractor’s proposed work order 

and proposal, the City shall decide in its sole discretion whether to award the work order to the Contractor. 

Depending on the lump sum amount of each work order, the work order may be awarded by the City Manager 

(if within City Manager’s purchasing authority (currently not to exceed $50,000)) or the City Commission. If 

the work order is approved by the City, the Contractor shall commence the identified services upon the City’s 

approval of the work order for the services and issuance of a notice to proceed. The City reserves the right to 

reject any and all proposals submitted by the Contractor. A City-approved work order shall include (by 

reference) the plans and/or specifications provided by the City to the Contractor. The Contractor shall not 

provide services under this Contract without a City issued Work Order (or Purchase Order as discussed below) 

specifically for the stated services. 

 

1.5 Purchase Order(s).   The City’s ordering mechanism for individual projects involving urgently required 

work and/or repairs in the amount of $15,000 or less under this Contract will be by a City issued Purchase 

Order(s); however, the terms and conditions stated in a City Purchase Order(s) shall not apply; the terms and 

conditions set forth in this Contract shall apply. The Contractor shall not provide services under this Contract 

without a City Purchase Order specifically for the stated services. The Contractor shall provide the amount of 

requested services and price listed in each Purchase Order and not exceed amounts expressed on any Purchase 

Order. CONTRACTOR shall be liable for any excess services or costs not specifically stated in the Purchase 

Order(s). Services provided pursuant to a City issued Purchase Order(s) under this Contract shall not exceed 

$50,000 per year without additional City Commission approval. 

 

1.6 FISCAL YEAR. The City’s Fiscal Year ends on September 30th of each calendar year. The City cannot 

authorize the purchase of services beyond September 30th of each calendar year, prior to the annual budget 

being approved by the City Commission. Additionally, the City must have budgeted appropriate funds for the 

goods and services in any subsequent Fiscal Year. If the budget is approved for said goods and services, the City 

will issue a new Work Order(s) or Purchase Order(s) each Fiscal Year for required and approved services.  

 

1.7 Term.  The term of this Contract shall be for three (3) consecutive years, with possibility of extension 

for additional two (2), one (1) year renewal terms upon the mutual agreement of both parties.  The renewal 

term(s) may be approved by the City Manager on behalf of the CITY. Notwithstanding the foregoing, this 

Contract may be terminated as set forth in the Contract Documents.  

 

1.8 Hourly Billing Rates.  The Hourly Billing Rates set forth as Exhibit “B” shall remain fixed for the 

first three (3) years of this Contract. If due to applicable price escalations and/or reductions which impact the 

Contractor’s Hourly Billing Rates, the City and Contractor may execute a written amendment to this Contract 

to establish new Hourly Billing Rates for the renewal term(s). The City Manager may approve changes in the 

Hourly Billing Rates based on the recommendation of the City’s Electric Utility Director or designee. 

 

Article 2.  CONTRACT TIME. 

 

2.1 All services and work to be provided under a City-approved work order shall be provided in a timely 



Page 3 of 21 

 

manner as time is of the essence under this Contract.   

2.2 The Contractor shall not be considered in default by reason of a delay in timely performance if such 

delay and failure arise out of causes reasonably beyond the control of the Contractor or its subcontractors (if 

authorized) and without the Contractor’s or subcontractor’s fault or negligence. Upon the Contractor’s request, 

the City shall consider the facts and extent of any such delay and failure to timely perform the work for reason 

beyond the control of the Contractor and, if the Contractor’s delay and failure to timely perform was without it 

or its subcontractors’ fault or negligence, as reasonably determined by the City, the time of completion shall be 

extended for any reasonable time that the City may reasonably decide; subject to the City’s rights to change, 

terminate, or stop any or all of the work at any time. If the Contractor is delayed at any time in the progress of 

the work by any act or neglect of the City or its employees, by an approved written change in the scope from the 

original Contract Documents, or by any other contractor employed by the City, or by changes ordered by the 

City or in an unusual delay in transportation, unavoidable casualties, or any causes beyond the Contractor’s 

reasonable control, or by delay authorized by the City pending negotiation or by any cause which the City shall 

reasonably decide justifies the delay, then the time of completion shall be extended for any reasonable time the 

City may reasonably decide. The Contractor must provide the City with written notice of any delay claims and 

no extension of time shall be made for any delay occurring more than five (5) days before a claim therefore is 

made in writing to the City. In the case of continuing cause of delay, only one (1) claim is necessary. With the 

exception of an approved written change in the scope from the original Contract Documents, the Contractor’s 

sole remedy for a delay in completion of the work for any reason will be an extension of time to complete the 

work and Contractor specifically waives any right to seek any monetary damages or losses for a delay in 

completion of the work, including, but not limited to, waiving any right to seek monetary amounts for lost profits, 

additional overhead, salaries, lost productivity, efficiency losses, or any other alleged monetary losses which 

may be allegedly suffered by Contractor due to a delay in completion of the work. Provided, however, and 

subject to sovereign immunity under section 768.28, Florida Statutes, that this provision shall not preclude 

recovery or damages by the Contractor for hindrances or delays due solely to fraud, bad faith or active 

interference on the part of the City. Otherwise, the Contractor shall be entitled only to extensions of the Contract 

Times as the sole and exclusive remedy for such resulting delay, in accordance with and to the extent specifically 

provided above. 

Article 3.  PAYMENT PROCEDURES 

 

3.1 Generally.  The Contractor shall submit invoices on a monthly basis detailing all work accomplished in 

the prior month and all materials installed and used in the work pursuant to City approved work order or. 

Contractor’s invoices shall be submitted to: 

 

  City of Lake Worth Beach 

  Attn:  Finance Department 

  7 N. Dixie Highway 

  Lake Worth Beach, FL  33460 

 

The City’s Contract Administrator or designee will review each invoice submitted by the Contractor. If 

approved, the City will make payment in accordance with the Contract Documents. If not approved, the City 

will notify the Contractor within twenty (20) business days of the City’s receipt and identify the action necessary 

to correct the invoice or a deficiency. 

 

3.2 Payment to the Contractor shall be made pursuant Florida’s Prompt Payment Act (for construction 

services), section 218.735, Florida Statutes (2023), except as provided herein. Specifically, the City will 

withhold five percent (5%) of each payment from a City issued work order to the Contractor as retainage until 

fifty percent (50%) of the work is completed by the Contractor. After fifty percent (50%) of the work is 

completed, upon written request from the Contractor, the Contract Administrator may agree in writing with the 

Contractor to release a portion of the retainage not to exceed fifty percent (50%) of the total retainage amount. 



Page 4 of 21 

 

Within twenty (20) business days of the finalization of the punch-list described below and upon receipt of a 

payment request from the Contractor, the City will pay the Contractor all retainage held less an amount equal to 

150% of the estimated cost to complete the items on the list. Upon completion of all items on the finalized 

punch-list, the Contractor may submit a request for release of all retainage. 

 

3.3 In accordance with section 218.735(7), Florida Statutes (2023), at least five (5) days prior to reaching 

substantial completion, the Contractor shall create a proposed punch-list of items that must be completed by the 

Contractor prior to the Contractor submitting its final payment request. The Contractor’s proposed punch-list 

must include all items of work which remain to be completed and the estimated cost to complete each work item 

on the list. Upon receipt of the Contractor’s proposed punch-list, the City will have ten (10) days to review, 

make modifications, or agree to the proposed punch-list. If the City does not make any modifications to the 

Contractor’s proposed punch-list within ten (10) days of receipt, the proposed punch-list will be deemed 

accepted by the City. The City’s Contract Administrator or designee will resolve any disputes in the punch-list 

and determine the final punch-list for the parties within 30-days of the Contractor reaching substantial 

completion. Once the punch-list is accepted by the City and finalized by the City’s Contract Administrator or 

designee, the Contractor shall have five (5) days to complete all items on the finalized punch-list. The failure of 

either party to include any corrective work or pending items on the finalized punch-list does not alter the 

responsibility of the Contractor to complete all construction services purchased under the applicable work order. 

The Contractor’s proposed punch-list and modifications by the City may be by informal written notice (e.g., 

email, fax, or hand-delivery); however, proof of delivery shall be kept by the party providing the informal written 

notice to the other party. 

 

3.4 Final Payment.  Upon final completion and acceptance of the work in accordance with the Contract 

Documents (including all punch-list items) and final inspection by the appropriate agency with jurisdiction over 

the project (if other than the City), the Contractor shall submit a “final invoice” to the City. In order for both 

parties to close their books and records, the Contractor will clearly state “FINAL” on the Contractor’s final 

invoice. This certifies that all work under the applicable work order has been properly completed and all charges 

have been invoiced to the City.  Since this account will thereupon be closed, any and other further charges if not 

properly included in this final invoice are waived by the Contractor.  If the Contractor’s Final Invoice is approved 

as set forth above, the City shall pay the remainder of the work order price including any amount held as 

retainage.   

 

3.5 Notwithstanding the foregoing, the City shall not be required to pay or release any amount of retainage 

that is subject of a good faith dispute made in writing, the subject of a claim brought pursuant to section 255.05, 

Florida Statutes, or otherwise the subject of a written claim or demand by the City. 

 

3.6 Final payment shall not become due until the Contractor and all of its subcontractors submit to the City 

releases and waivers of liens, and data establishing payment or satisfaction of obligations, such as receipts, 

claims, security interests or encumbrances arising out of the Contract Documents or otherwise related to the 

Program. 

 

3.7 Acceptance of final payment by the Contractor or a subcontractor shall constitute a waiver of 

claims by that payee except those previously made in writing and identified by that payee as unsettled at 

the time of final invoice. 

 

Article 4.  SUBCONTRACTS 

 

The Contractor represents that it has, or will secure at its own expense, all necessary personnel required to 

perform the services under this Contract. Such personnel shall not be employees of or have any contractual 

relationship with the City. All of the services required hereunder shall be performed by the Contractor or under 

its supervision, and all personnel engaged in performing the services shall be fully qualified and, if required, 

authorized or permitted under state and local law to perform such services. The Contractor shall furnish 



Page 5 of 21 

 

services in a manner consistent with industry standards and to a level of professional skill generally acceptable 

in the industry with regard to services of this kind. The Contractor shall comply with all applicable laws in the 

provision of services under this Contract. The Contractor agrees that it is fully responsible to the City for the 

acts and omissions of subcontractors and of persons either directly or indirectly employed by the Contractor. 

Nothing contained herein shall create any contractual relationship between any subcontractor and the City. All 

of the Contractor’s personnel (and all subcontractors) while on City premises, will comply with all City 

requirements governing conduct, safety, and security. The City reserves the right to request replacement of any 

of subcontractor or subcontractor’s personnel furnished by the Contractor upon written notice by City to 

Contractor of the cause for such replacement. All work performed by a subcontractor will be at cost to the City 

without any mark-up by the Contractor. All subcontractors must provide the same level and type of insurance 

as required of the Contractor under this Contract prior to commencing any services. The Contractor shall 

submit the subcontractors’ proof of insurance upon receipt of a notice to proceed. 

 

Article 5. INDEMNITY AND INSURANCE. 

 

5.1 The Contractor agrees to assume liability for and indemnify, hold harmless, and defend the City, its 

commissioners, mayor, officers, employees, agents, and attorneys of, from, and against all liability and expense, 

including reasonable attorney’s fees, in connection with any and all claims, demands, damages, actions, causes 

of action, and suits in equity of whatever kind or nature, including claims for personal injury, property damage, 

equitable relief, or loss of use, to the extent caused by the negligence, recklessness, or intentionally wrongful 

conduct of the Contractor, its agents, officers, Contractors, subcontractors, employees, or anyone else utilized 

by the Contractor in the performance of this Contract. The Contractor’s liability hereunder shall include all 

attorney’s fees and costs incurred by the City in the enforcement of this indemnification provision. This includes 

claims made by the employees of the Contractor against the City and the Contractor hereby waives its 

entitlement, if any, to immunity under Section 440.11, Florida Statutes. The obligations contained in this 

provision shall survive termination of this Contract and shall not be limited by the amount of any insurance 

required to be obtained or maintained under this Contract.  

 

Subject to the limitations set forth in this Section, Contractor shall assume control of the defense of any claim 

asserted by a third party against the City and, in connection with such defense, shall appoint lead counsel, in 

each case at the Contractor’s expense.  The City shall have the right, at its option, to participate in the defense 

of any third-party claim, without relieving Contractor of any of its obligations hereunder. If the Contractor 

assumes control of the defense of any third party claim in accordance with this paragraph, the Contractor shall 

obtain the prior written consent of the City before entering into any settlement of such claim. Notwithstanding 

anything to the contrary in this Section, the Contractor shall not assume or maintain control of the defense of 

any third party claim, but shall pay the fees of counsel retained by the City and all expenses, including experts’ 

fees, if (i) an adverse determination with respect to the third party claim would, in the good faith judgment of 

the City, be detrimental in any material respect to the City’s reputation; (ii) the third party claim seeks an 

injunction or equitable relief against the City; or (iii) the Contractor has failed or is failing to prosecute or defend 

vigorously the third party claim.  Each party shall cooperate, and cause its agents to cooperate, in the defense or 

prosecution of any third party claim and shall furnish or cause to be furnished such records and information, and 

attend such conferences, discovery proceedings, hearings, trials, or appeals, as may be reasonably requested in 

connection therewith.   

 

It is the specific intent of the parties hereto that the foregoing indemnification complies with Section 725.06, 

Florida Statutes, as amended. The Contractor expressly agrees that it will not claim, and waives any claim, that 

this indemnification violates Section 725.06, Florida Statutes. Nothing contained in the foregoing 

indemnification or any other provision in the Contract Documents shall be construed as a waiver of any 

immunity or limitation of liability the City may have under the doctrine of sovereign immunity or Section 

768.28, Florida Statutes. 

 

5.2 INSURANCE:  Prior to commencing any work, the Contractor shall provide proof of insurance coverage 



Page 6 of 21 

 

as required in the RFP. All such insurance policies may not be modified or terminated without the express written 

authorization of the City. Failure to comply with the foregoing requirements shall not relieve the Contractor of 

its liability and obligations under this Contract. Each party will promptly notify the other of any complaint, 

claim, suit or cause of action threatened or commenced against it which arises out of or relates, in any manner, 

to the Contract Documents and/or performance of the work.  Each party agrees to cooperate with the other in 

any investigation either may conduct, the defense of any claim or suit in which either party is named, and shall 

do nothing to impair or invalidate any applicable insurance coverage.  

 

Article 6.  REIMBURSEMENT OF ENGINEER EXPENSES. 

 

Should the completion of a work order be delayed beyond the specified or adjusted time limit, Contractor shall 

reimburse the City for all expenses of engineering and inspection incurred by the City during the period between 

said specified or adjusted time and the actual date of final completion.  All such expenses for engineering and 

inspection incurred by the City will be charged to Contractor and be deducted from payments due Contractor as 

provided by this Contract. Said expenses shall be further defined as engineer charges associated with the 

construction contract administration, including resident project representative costs. All such expenses shall be 

separate from and in addition to any Liquidated Damages as provided for in an applicable Work Order. 

 

Article 7.  TERMINATION. 

 

7.1 TERMINATION BY CITY:  The City may terminate any work order, the Contract and/or the Contract 

Documents if the Contractor is in default as follows: 

 

(a) refuses or fails to supply enough properly skilled workers or proper materials to timely and 

competently complete the work; 

(b) fails to make payment to subcontractors for materials or labor in accordance with the respective 

agreements between the Contractor and the subcontractors; 

(c) disregards or takes action contrary to any laws, ordinances, or rules, regulations or orders of a 

public authority having jurisdiction;  

(d) takes action, short of declaring bankruptcy, evidencing insolvency;  

 (e) fails to prosecute the services or work in a timely manner and reasonably be unable to reach 

 substantial completion and/or final completion within the timeframe(s) required;  

 (f) fails or refuses to provide and/or maintain insurance or proof of insurance as required by the 

 Contract Documents; or, 

(g) otherwise is in breach of a provision of the Contract Documents. 

 

When any of the above reasons exist, the City, may without prejudice to any other rights or remedies of the City 

and after giving the Contractor and the Contractor’s surety (if applicable), written notice and five (5) days to 

cure, terminate the work order, Contract and/or Contract Documents and may: 

 

(a) take possession of the site and of all materials, equipment, tools, and construction equipment 

and machinery thereon owned by or paid for by the City; and, 

(b) finish the work by whatever reasonable method the City may deem expedient.  

 

The Contractor and its surety (if any) shall be liable for any damage to the City, including additional attorney 

and engineering/architectural fees, resulting from the Contractor’s termination under this provision by the City, 

including but not limited to, and any increased costs incurred by the City in completing the work. 

 

When the City terminates the Contract for one of the reasons stated above, the Contractor shall not be entitled 

to receive further payment, if any, until the work is finished. 

 



Page 7 of 21 

 

Should it be determined by a mediator or a court of competent jurisdiction that the City wrongfully terminated 

the Contract, then the Contractor agrees to treat such termination as a termination for convenience. 

 

7.2 TERMINATION BY THE CITY FOR CONVENIENCE 

 

The City may, at any time, terminate the Contract and Contract Documents for the City’s convenience and 

without cause. Upon receipt of written notice from the City of such termination for the City’s convenience, the 

Contractor shall: 

 

 (a) cease operations as directed by the City in the notice; 

 (b) take actions necessary, or that the City may direct, for the protection and preservation 

of the work; and 

 (c) except for work directed to be performed prior to the effective date of termination stated 

in the notice, terminate all existing subcontracts and purchase orders and enter into no 

further subcontracts and purchase orders. 

 

In case of such termination for the City’s convenience, the Contractor shall be entitled to receive payment for 

work executed, and costs incurred by reason of such termination including termination payments to 

subcontractors and demobilization costs.   

 

Article 8. TAXES AND DIRECT PURCHASES. 

 

8.1       TAXES:  The City is exempt from payment of Florida State Sales and Use Tax. The Contractor is not 

authorized to use the City’s Tax Exemption Number unless approved in writing. 

 

8.2 DIRECT PURCHASES:  For certain projects, the City may seek to make direct purchases of equipment 

or materials to be used by the Contractor. Pursuant to Section 212.08(6), Florida Statutes, and the Fla. Admin. 

Code Ann. R. 12A-1.094 and 12A-1.038, the Parties agree to the following procedure regarding the City’s direct-

purchase from vendors of certain equipment and materials to be used in specific projects: 
 

8.2.1 The City reserves the right, at the City’s option, to direct purchase equipment and materials 

involved in a specific project, including subcontracts, if any so as to save the sales tax which would 

otherwise have been due with regard to the same. The Contractor and its subcontractors shall comply 

with the City’s direct purchase procedures, including but not limited to those listed below. 
 

8.2.2 As specifically set forth in a City issued work order, within 30 days (or other time as 

specified in the work order), the Contractor will present a list of direct purchase equipment for the 

City’s consideration which will include the recommended vendors’ name; the price quotes from all 

vendors provided to the Contractor; and, any terms and conditions the Contractor has negotiated with 

the recommended vendors. The City will then inform the Contractor as to which equipment it will 

direct purchase. In the event the City fails to exercise its option to direct purchase equipment and 

identify which equipment is to be purchased by the City within thirty (30) calendar days of receipt of 

the list from the Contractor, the City shall waive its right to direct purchase any and all equipment to 

be used in completion of the work under the applicable work order. 
 

8.2.3 The Contractor is responsible for selecting each direct purchase vendor, subject to City 

approval. The Contractor is responsible for specifications, equipment receipt, inspecting shipments, 

and assuring that the equipment is in accordance with the work order and the Contractor’s 

specifications. The Contractor is also responsible for providing the City with enough advance notice 

of when the direct purchase equipment will need to be ordered and delivered. In absence of the 

Contractor’s receipt of a written notice of City’s disapproval of a vendor within thirty (30) calendar 

days of City’s receipt of the vendor/material list referenced in 9.2.2, the City shall be deemed to have 



Page 8 of 21 

 

waived any and all objections thereto. 
 

8.2.4 The Contractor shall retain all responsibility for installing all equipment relating to the work 

and for maintaining the construction schedule so long as the City timely orders and pays for the correct 

direct purchase equipment. The City’s direct purchase mechanism to effectuate tax savings in no way 

effects the obligation of the Contractor to meet all of the terms and conditions and all provisions and 

technical specifications of the Contract Documents. The Contractor shall be responsible for insuring 

all equipment once the equipment is in its care, custody and control, regardless of whether directly 

purchased by City. 
 

8.2.5 The City will issue a direct purchase order to the vendor of the direct purchase equipment at 

the price proposed in the Contractor’s or its subcontractor’s bid, less sales tax. The City will promptly 

send a copy of the issued purchaser order to the Contractor. 
 

8.2.6 It will be the Contractor’s primary responsibility to properly expedite and follow up on direct 

purchase orders, thereby assuring delivery of the equipment as ordered and at the time and place needed 

by the Contractor to complete the work in accordance with the work order and construction schedule. 

To the extent required by the Contractor, the City shall cooperate with all requests of the Contractor 

related to the expedition of and follow up on direct purchase orders. 
 

8.2.7 The Contractor shall take delivery, unload, and install the equipment purchased on the direct 

purchase order in accordance with the work order and the Contract Documents with the vendor to 

repair, replace, and make good any defect without cost to the City, until such time as the work has been 

completed and accepted by City in accordance with the Contract Documents. The City, with assistance 

from the Contractor, will be responsible for undertaking and completing any returns of direct purchase 

equipment as requested by the Contractor and working with the vendor to effectuate any credits or 

warranties for the returned equipment (if applicable). Any returns not replaced shall be credited to City 

and acknowledged by a supplement to the direct purchase order and, if applicable, amendment to the 

Contract Sum. The Contractor shall not be responsible for warranting the direct purchase equipment to 

the City; however, the Contractor shall be responsible for facilitating the vendor’s warranty of the 

direct purchase equipment and the Contractor shall be responsible for warranting the work to install 

and/or incorporate the equipment. The Contractor shall maintain records of all direct purchases 

received and incorporated into the work and provide the City with a monthly accounting until all direct 

purchase items that are received and accepted for inclusion in the specific project. 
 

8.2.8 When delivery of a direct purchase order is complete, or a payment is to be made on a partial 

shipment, the Contractor will timely submit to City the documentation supporting the equipment 

received. Invoices for direct purchase orders will be sent by the direct purchase vendor directly to 

City’s Finance Department, with all such invoices addressed to and in the name of the City. The City’s 

Finance Department will forward invoices to the City’s Contract Administrator. The City’s Contract 

Administrator will forward the invoices to the Contractor to verify delivery and sign the invoice and 

associated documentation supporting the amount of the payment. The City will make timely payment 

to all vendors in compliance with each vendor’s payment procedures. The City will take title to all 

equipment ordered through direct purchase upon or at the time of purchase. The Contractor will assist 

City in assuring prompt payment by supplying the vendor’s FEI numbers, addresses, phone numbers, 

etc. All payments will be made in accordance with the Florida Prompt Payment Act. 

 

Article 9. CONTRACTOR'S REPRESENTATIONS AND AGREEMENTS. 

 

In order to induce the City to enter into this Contract, the Contractor makes the following representations: 

 

9.1 Contractor has or will familiarize itself with the nature and extent of the Contract Documents, work, 



Page 9 of 21 

 

site, locality, and all local conditions and laws and regulations that in any manner may affect cost, progress, 

performance or furnishing of the work prior to commencing the work under an applicable Work Order. All work 

shall be performed consistent with all applicable laws and regulations. 

 

9.2 Contractor agrees to be solely responsible for compliance with all applicable environmental regulations, 

for any liability arising from non-compliance with the regulations and to reimburse the City for any loss incurred 

in connection therewith. This compliance provision specifically includes the Contractor’s compliance with all 

applicable standards, orders or regulations including, without limitation, those issued pursuant to the Clean Air 

Act (42 U.S.C. 7401-7671q) and the Federal Water Pollution Control Act as amended (33 U.S.C. 1251-1387). 

 

9.3 Contractor agrees to utilize the U.S. Department of Homeland Security’s E-Verify System to verify the 

employment eligibility of all new employees hired by the Contractor during the term of this Contract. 

 

9.4 The Contractor represents and warrants that it has and will continue to maintain all licenses and 

approvals required to conduct its business and provide the work required under the Contract Documents.  Proof 

of such licenses and approvals shall be submitted to the City upon request. 

 

Article 10. INFRINGEMENT INDEMNITY.    

 

10.1 The Contractor will defend or settle at its expense a claim or suit brought by a third party against the 

City arising out of a claim asserting that the services, work, repair, materials or other deliverables 

(“deliverables” hereafter) provided by the Contractor under the Contract Documents (if any) infringes any U.S. 

copyright or any U.S. patent or misappropriates a trade secret. The Contractor will indemnify and hold 

harmless the City against and from damages, costs, and attorneys’ fees, if any and at all levels of trial and 

appeal or mediation or arbitration, finally awarded in such suit or the amount of the settlement thereof; 

provided that (i) the Contractor is promptly notified in writing of such claim or suit, (ii) the Contractor will 

have the sole control of the defense and settlement thereof, and (iii) City furnishes the Contractor, on 

reasonable request, information available to City for such defense. The City will not admit any such claim 

without prior consent of the Contractor. 

a. In the event of a claim of infringement, the Contractor shall, at its option: 

1. procure for City the right to continue using the deliverables provided under the 

Contract Documents; or 

2. replace or modify the deliverables so that the same becomes non-infringing but 

substantially equivalent in functionality and performance. 

3. If neither of the above actions is reasonably feasible, the Contractor will refund to 

City the fee actually paid by City under the Contract Documents (as amortized on a straight-

line basis over the time in which the City was able to use the deliverables. 

b. The Contractor will have no obligation under this section for infringement if and to the extent 

that such claim arises from: 

1. modification of the deliverables other than by the Contractor or by its 

recommendation; or 

2. combination of the deliverables with products other than those supplied by the 

Contractor;  

and, 

3. the alleged infringement or misappropriation relates to such modification or 



Page 10 of 21 

 

combination. 

c. The Contractor will also not have any indemnification obligation with respect to a claim: (i) 

if it has provided City with reasonable changes that would have avoided the problem and the reasonable 

changes are not fully implemented by City within a reasonable time or (ii) arising out use of the deliverables 

not in accordance with the Contract Documents. 

d. The Contractor’s obligation to indemnify, defend and hold harmless shall remain in effect and 

shall be binding upon the Contractor whether such injury or damage shall accrue, or may be discovered, before 

or after termination or expiration of the Contract Documents. 

 

Article 11. MISCELLANEOUS. 

 

11.1 The City and Contractor each binds itself, its partners, its successors, assigns and legal representatives 

to the other party hereto, its partners, successors, assigns and legal representatives in respect of all covenants, 

agreements and obligations contained in the Contract Documents. 

 

11.2 Additional work and/or changes to a work order’s price and/or time, is subject to the City’s prior written 

approval. Only the City Manager and City Commission (based on the procurement code) have the authority to 

approve such additional work and changes.  

 

11.3 The headings contained in this Contract are inserted for convenience of reference only and shall not be 

a part or control or affect the meaning hereof.  

 

11.4 This Contract may be executed in two or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed to be an 

original, but all of which shall be deemed to be an original, but each of which together shall constitute one and 

the same instrument. 

 

11.5 This Contract (together with the other Contract Documents) supersedes any and all prior negotiations 

and oral or written agreements heretofore made relating to the subject matter hereof and, except for written 

agreements, if any, executed and delivered simultaneously with or subsequent to the date of this Contract, 

constitutes the entire agreement of the parties relating to the subject matter hereof. This Contract may not be 

altered or amended except by a writing signed by the parties hereto. No waiver of any of the terms or conditions 

of this Contract shall be effective unless in writing and executed by the party to be changed therewith. No waiver 

of any condition or of the breach of any term, covenant, representation, warranty or other provision hereof shall 

be deemed to be construed as a further or continuing waiver of any such condition or breach or a waiver of any 

other condition or of any breach of any other term, covenant, representation, warranty or other provision 

contained in this Contract. 

 

11.6 This Contract shall be binding upon, and shall inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their 

respective successors and assigns. 

 

11.7 This Contract shall be governed by and construed and interpreted in accordance with the laws of the 

State of Florida. Each of the parties hereto (a) irrevocably submit itself to the exclusive jurisdiction of the 

Fifteenth Judicial Circuit Court in and for Palm Beach County, Florida for state actions and jurisdiction of the 

United States District Court for the Southern District of Florida, Palm Beach Division, for the purposes of any 

suit, action or other proceeding arising out of, or relating to, this Contract; (b) waives and agrees not to assert 

against any party hereto, by way of motion, as a defense of otherwise, in any suit, action or other proceeding, 

any claim that it is not personally subject to the jurisdiction of the above-named courts for any reason 

whatsoever; and (c) to the extent permitted by applicable law, any claim that such suit, action or proceeding by 

any part hereto is brought in an inconvenient forum or that the venue of such suit, action or proceeding is 

improper or that this Contract or the subject matter hereof may not be enforced in or by such courts. 



Page 11 of 21 

 

 

11.8   This Contract shall create no rights or claims whatsoever in any third party. 

 

11.9   If any one or more of the provisions of the Contract shall be held to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable in 

any respect, the validity, legality and enforceability of the remaining provisions hereof shall not in any way be 

affected or impaired thereby.    

 

11.10   The effective date of this Contract is the date the Contract is approved by the City Commission. 

 

11.11 Public Records:  The Contractor shall comply with Florida’s Public Records Act, Chapter 119, 

 Florida Statutes, and, if determined to be acting on behalf of the City as provided under section 

 119.011(2), Florida Statutes, specifically agrees to: 

 

(a) Keep and maintain public records required by the City to perform the service. 

 

(b) Upon request from the City’s custodian of public records or designee, provide the City with a 

copy of the requested records or allow the records to be inspected or copied within a reasonable time at 

a cost that does not exceed the cost provided in Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, or as otherwise provided 

by law. 

 

(c) Ensure that public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records 

disclosure requirements are not disclosed except as authorized by law for the duration of this Contract 

and following completion of this Contract if the Contractor does not transfer the records to the City. 

 

(d) Upon completion of this Contract, transfer, at no cost, to the City all public records in possession 

of the Contractor or keep and maintain public records required by the City to perform the service. If the 

Contractor transfers all public records to the City upon completion of the Contract, the Contractor shall 

destroy any duplicate public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records 

disclosure requirements. If the Contractor keeps and maintains public records upon completion of the 

Contract, the Contractor shall meet all applicable requirements for retaining public records. All records 

stored electronically must be provided to the City, upon request from the City’s custodian of public 

records or designee, in a format that is compatible with the information technology systems of the City.  

 

IF THE CONTRACTOR HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE APPLICATION 

OF CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA STATUTES, TO THE CONTRACTOR’S DUTY 

TO PROVIDE PUBLIC RECORDS RELATING TO THIS CONTRACT, 

CONTACT THE CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC RECORDS OR DESIGNEE AT: 

ATTENTION CITY CLERK, (561) 586-1660 OR 

CITYCLERK@LAKEWORTHBEACHFL.GOV OR 7 NORTH DIXIE 

HIGHWAY, LAKE WORTH BEACH, FL  33460. 
 

11.12 This Contract shall not be construed more strongly against either party regardless of who was more 

responsible for its preparation. 

 

11.13 In accordance with Palm Beach County ordinance number 2011-009, the Contractor acknowledges that 

this Contract may be subject to investigation and/or audit by the Palm Beach County Inspector General.  The 

Contractor has reviewed Palm Beach County ordinance number 2011-009 and is aware of its rights and/or 

obligations under such ordinance. 

 

mailto:CITYCLERK@LAKEWORTHBEACHFL.


Page 12 of 21 

 

11.14 If any legal action or other proceeding is brought for the enforcement of this Contract or the Contract 

Documents, or because of an alleged dispute, breach, default or misrepresentation in connection with any 

provisions of this Contract or the Contract Documents, each party shall be responsible for their own attorney’s 

fees at all levels.  EACH PARTY ALSO AGREES AND VOLUNTARILY WAIVES ANY RIGHT TO A JURY 

TRIAL ARISING OUT OF ALLEGED DISPUTE, BREACH, DEFAULT, MISREPRESENTATION OR ANY 

OTHER CLAIM IN CONNECTION WITH OR ARISING FROM ANY PROVISION OF THIS CONTRACT 

OR THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 

 

11.15 Each of the parties agrees to perform its obligations under the Contract Documents in conformance with 

all laws, regulations and administrative instructions that relate to the parties’ performance of the work and under 

the Contract Documents. 

 

11.16 All documents, including but not limited to drawings, specifications, plans, reports, other items and data 

or programs stored in hard-copy, electronically or otherwise (collectively referred to as “Documents” hereafter), 

prepared by the Contractor or its subcontractors under this Contract shall be considered a “Work for Hire” and 

the exclusive property of the City. To the extent such Documents may not be deemed a “Work for Hire” under 

applicable law, Contractor and Contractor’s Subcontractors will assign to the City all right, title and interest in 

and to Contractor and/or Contractor’s Subcontractors’ copyright(s) for such Documents. Contractor shall 

execute and deliver to City such instruments of transfer and take such other action that City may reasonable 

request, including, without limitation, executing and filing, at City’s expense, copyright applications, 

assignments and other documents required for the protection of City’s right to such Documents.  The Contractor 

shall retain copies of the Documents for a period of three (3) years from the date of completion of the Program. 

The City grants to the Contractor and Contractor’s subcontractors the right and/or limited license to use a portion 

of the Documents prepared by the Contractor or the Contractor’s subcontractors in future projects of the 

Contractor or Contractor’s subcontractors with said right and/or limited license to use a portion at Contractor’s 

or Contractor’s subcontractor’s own risk and without any liability to City. Any modifications made by the City 

to any of the Contractor’s Documents, or any use, partial use or reuse of the Documents without written 

authorization or adaptation by the Contractor will be at the City’s sole risk and without liability to the Contractor.    

 

11.17 Any provision of this Contract which is of a continuing nature or imposes an obligation which extends 

beyond the term of this Contract shall survive its expiration or earlier termination.  

 

11.18 Any notice required to be given under the Contract Documents shall be sent by certified mail (return 

receipt requested) or by nationally recognized overnight courier as follows to the City: 

 

 City of Lake Worth Beach 

 Attn:  City Manager 

 7 N. Dixie Highway 

 Lake Worth Beach, FL  33460 

 

 and to the Contractor as follows: 

  

 Nucat Corporation 

 657 Rambling Dr. Cir. 

 Wellington, FL   33414 

 Attn: David A. Bernier, President 

  

 Either party may amend this provision by written notice to the other party. 

 

11.19 The Contractor represents that it presently has no interest and shall acquire no interest, either direct or 

indirect, which would conflict in any manner with the performance of services required hereunder, as provided 



Page 13 of 21 

 

for in Section 112.311, Florida Statutes. The Contractor further represents that no person having any such 

conflicting interest shall be employed for said performance. The Contractor shall promptly notify the City’s 

representative, in writing, of all potential conflicts of interest for any prospective business association, interest 

or other circumstance which may influence or appear to influence the Contractor’s judgment or quality of 

services being provided hereunder. Such written notification shall identify the prospective business association, 

interest or circumstance, the nature of work that the Contractor may undertake and request an opinion of the City 

as to whether the association, interest or circumstance would, in the opinion of the City, constitute a conflict of 

interest if entered into by the Contractor. The City agrees to notify the Contractor of its opinion within thirty 

(30) days of receipt of notification by the Contractor. If, in the opinion of the City, the prospective business 

association, interest or circumstance would not constitute a conflict of interest by the Contractor, the City shall 

so state in the notification and the Contractor shall, at its option, enter into said association, interest or 

circumstance and it shall be deemed not in conflict of interest with respect to services provided to the City by 

the Contractor under the terms of this Contract. 

 

11.20  The Contractor warrants and represents that all of its employees are treated equally during employment 

without regard to race, color, religion, disability, sex, age, national origin, ancestry, political affiliation, marital 

status, handicap, or sexual orientation. Further, Contractor shall not discriminate or permit discrimination against 

any employee or an applicant for employment on the basis of race, color, sex, religion, political affiliation, 

natural origin, ancestry, marital status, sexual orientation or handicap.   

 

11.21  This Contract is not intended to be and shall not be construed as an exclusive agreement, and the City 

may employ additional or other contractors to perform services contemplated by this Contract without liability 

to the City. 

 

11.22 PUBLIC ENTITY CRIMES. The Contractor acknowledges and agrees that a person or affiliate who has 

been placed on the convicted vendor list following a conviction for a public entity crime may not submit a bid, 

proposal, or reply on a contract to provide any goods or services to a public entity; may not submit a bid, 

proposal, or reply on a contract with a public entity for the construction or repair of a public building or public 

work; may not submit bids, proposals, or replies on leases of real property to a public entity; may not be awarded 

or perform work as a contractor, supplier or sub-contractor under a contract with any public entity; and may not 

transact business with any public entity in excess of the threshold amount provided in Section 287.017, Florida 

Statutes, for CATEGORY TWO for a period of 36 months following the date of being placed on the convicted 

vendor list. The Contractor will promptly advise the City if it becomes aware of any violation of this statute. 

 

11.23 PURSUANT TO SECTION 558.005, FLORIDA STATUTES, ANY CLAIMS FOR 

CONSTRUCTION DEFECTS ARE NOT SUBJECT TO THE NOTICE AND CURE PROVISIONS OF 

CHAPTER 558, FLORIDA STATUTES.  

 

11.24 The Contract shall be responsible for initiating, maintaining and supervising all safety precautions and 

programs in connection with the performance of all services and work. This includes being responsible for all 

precautions for safety of, and reasonable protection to prevent damage, injury or loss to employees performing 

the services and work and other persons who may be affected thereby; the work, materials and equipment 

incorporated therein; and other property, equipment or materials at the site or adjacent thereto including, 

without limitation, trees, shrubs, lawns, sidewalks, pavements, roadways or structures and utilities not 

designated for removal, relocation or replacement in the course of the work. The Contractor shall comply with 

and give all notices required by applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, rules and regulations bearing on safety 

of persons or property, or their protection from damage, injury or loss. The Contractor shall implement, erect 

and maintain reasonable safeguards for safety and protection, including posting danger signs and other 

warnings against hazards reasonably related to the work or which could arise therefrom. The Contractor shall 

promptly remedy damage and loss (other than covered by applicable insurance) caused in whole or in part by 

the Contractor or anyone directly or indirectly employed by or utilized by the Contractor in the performance 



Page 14 of 21 

 

of the work, which is not attributable to the City’s negligence. 

 

11.25 The Contractor agrees that, in all matters relating to this Contract, it will be acting as an independent 

contractor with exclusive control of the manner and means of performing the work, its obligations and tasks in 

accordance with the requirements of this Contract and the Contract Documents. The Contractor has no 

authority to act or make any agreements or representations on behalf of the City. This Contract is not intended, 

and shall not be construed to create, between the City and the Contractor, the relationship of principal and 

agent, joint-venturers, co-partners or any other such relationship, the existence of which is hereby expressly 

denied. No employee or agent of Contractor shall be, or shall be deemed to be, an employee or agent of City. 

 

Article 12. SCRUTINIZED COMPANIES 

 

12.1 CONTRACTOR certifies that it and its subcontractors are not on the Scrutinized Companies that 

Boycott Israel List and are not engaged in the boycott of Israel.  Pursuant to section 287.135, Florida Statutes, 

the CITY may immediately terminate this Contract at its sole option if the CONTRACTOR or any of its 

subcontractors are found to have submitted a false certification; or if the CONTRACTOR or any of its 

subcontractors, are placed on the Scrutinized Companies that Boycott Israel List or is engaged in the boycott of 

Israel during the term of this Contract. 

12.2 If this Contract is for one million dollars or more, the CONTRACTOR certifies that it and its 

subcontractors are also not on the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in Sudan List, Scrutinized Companies 

with Activities in the Iran Petroleum Energy Sector List, or engaged in business operations in Cuba or Syria as 

identified in Section 287.135, Florida Statutes.  Pursuant to Section 287.135, the CITY may immediately 

terminate this Contract at its sole option if the CONTRACTOR, or any of its subcontractors are found to have 

submitted a false certification; or if the CONTRACTOR or any of its subcontractors are placed on the Scrutinized 

Companies with Activities in Sudan List, or Scrutinized Companies with Activities in the Iran Petroleum Energy 

Sector List, or are or have been engaged with business operations in Cuba or Syria during the term of this 

Contract. 

12.3 The CONTRACTOR agrees to observe the above requirements for applicable subcontracts entered into 

for the performance of work under this Contract. 

12.4 The CONTRACTOR agrees that the certifications in this section shall be effective and relied upon by 

the CITY for the term of this Contract, including any and all renewals. 

12.5 The CONTRACTOR agrees that if it or any of its subcontractors’ status changes in regards to any 

certification herein, the CONTRACTOR shall immediately notify the CITY of the same. 

12.6 As provided in Subsection 287.135(8), Florida Statutes, if federal law ceases to authorize the above-

stated contracting prohibitions then they shall become inoperative. 

Article 13. E-VERIFY 

 

Pursuant to Section 448.095(2), Florida Statutes, the CONTRACTOR shall: 

13.1. Register with and use the E-Verify system to verify the work authorization status of all newly hired 

employees and require all subcontractors (providing services or receiving funding under this Contract) to register 

with and use the E-Verify system to verify the work authorization status of all the subcontractors’ newly hired 

employees; 

13.2. Secure an affidavit from all subcontractors (providing services or receiving funding under this Contract) 

stating that the subcontractor does not employ, Contract with, or subcontract with an “unauthorized alien” as defined 

in Section 448.095(1)(k), Florida Statutes; 



Page 15 of 21 

 

13.3. Maintain copies of all subcontractor affidavits for the duration of this Contract and provide the same to the 

CITY upon request; 

13.4 Comply fully, and ensure all of its subcontractors comply fully, with Section 448.095, Florida Statutes; 

13.5. Be aware that a violation of Section 448.09, Florida Statutes (Unauthorized aliens; employment prohibited) 

shall be grounds for termination of this Contract; and, 

13.6. Be aware that if the CITY terminates this Contract under Section 448.095(2)(c), Florida Statutes, 

CONTRACTOR may not be awarded a contract for at least 1 year after the date on which the Contract is terminated 

and will be liable for any additional costs incurred by the CITY as a result of the termination of the Contract.   

 

 

 

 

 

Remainder of this page intentionally left blank 

Signature page follows  





Page 17 of 21 

 

 

EXHIBIT “A” 

SAMPLE WORK ORDER 

 

CONTRACT FOR ELECTRICAL EQUIPMENT INSPECTION,  

TESTING, REPAIR, AND MAINTENANCE  

WORK ORDER NO._____ 

 

THIS WORK ORDER for System Electrical Equipment Inspection, Testing, Repair and Maintenance 

(“Work Order” hereafter) is made on the ____ ___________________________, between the City of Lake 

Worth Beach, a Florida municipal corporation located at 7 North Dixie Highway, Lake Worth Beach, Florida 

33460 (“City” hereafter) and Nucat Corporation, a corporation authorized to do business in State of Florida 

(“Contractor” hereafter). 

 

1.0 Project Description: 

 

The City desires the Contractor to provide all goods, services, materials and equipment as identified 

herein related to the Electrical Equipment Inspection, Testing, Repair and Maintenance described as:  

__________________________________________________________ (the “Project”). The Project is 

more specifically described in the plans prepared by ______________________, dated ____________, 

and which are incorporated herein by reference.  

 

2.0 Scope 

 

Under this Work Order, the Contractor will provide the City of Lake Worth Beach with construction 

services for the Project as specified in the Contractor’s proposal attached hereto and incorporated 

herein as Exhibit “1”.    

 

3.0 Schedule and Liquidated Damages 

 

Substantial completion of all services and work under this Work Order shall be within ____   calendar 

days from the Effective Date of this Work Order. Final completion of all services and work (and all 

punch-list items (if any)) under this Work Order shall be within ____ calendar days from the Effective 

Date of this Work Order. The Effective Date of this Work Order is the date following the parties’ 

execution of this Work Order and the City’s delivery of a Notice to Proceed to the Contractor via e-mail, 

facsimile or other form of delivery as documented by the City. Substantial completion occurs when the 

services and work has progressed to the point where, in the opinion of the City, the work is sufficiently 

complete in accordance with the Contract Documents and this Work Order, so that the Project can be 

utilized for the purposes for which it is intended. Final completion occurs when all services and work 

(including punch-list items) has been completed and the project becomes fully operational and accepted 

by the City. 

 

Liquidated Damages. The City and Contractor recognize that time is of the essence under this 

Work Order and the Contract Documents, and that the City will suffer financial loss if the services 

and work described in this Work Order and the Contract Documents are not completed within 

the times specified in this Work Order. The City and Contractor recognize, agree and 

acknowledge that it would be impractical and extremely difficult to ascertain and fix the actual 

damages that the City would suffer in the event Contractor neglects, refuses, or otherwise fails to 

complete the services and work within the time specified. Accordingly, instead of requiring any 

such proof, the City and Contractor agree that as liquidated damages for delay (but not as a 

penalty) Contractor shall pay the City________ hundred dollars ($_________.00) for each day 

that expires after the time specified in this Work Order.   



Page 18 of 21 

 

4.0 Compensation and Direct Purchases 

 

This Work Order is issued for a lump sum, not to exceed amount of $______________________ 

(_____________________). The attached proposal identifies all costs and expenses included in the 

lump sum, not to exceed amount. 

 

The following Direct Purchases are to be made under this Work Order by the City: ________________ 

__________________________________________________________________________________

_________________________________________________________________________________. 

 

5.0 Project Manager 

 

The Project Manager for the Contractor is __________________________, 

phone:___________________; email: ____________________; and, the Project Manager for the City 

is ______________________________, phone:_________________________________; 

email:_______________________. 

 

6.0 Progress Meetings 

 

The Contractor shall schedule periodic progress review meetings with the City Project Manager as 

necessary but every 30 days as a minimum. 

 

7.0 Contractor’s Representations 

 

In order to induce the City to enter into this Work Order, the Contractor makes the following 

representations: 

 

7.1 Contractor has familiarized itself with the nature and extent of the Contract Documents 

including this Work Order, work, site, locality, and all local conditions and laws and regulations that in 

any manner may affect cost, progress, performance or furnishing of the work. 

 

7.2 Contractor has obtained at his/her own expense and carefully studied, or assumes responsibility 

for obtaining and carefully studying, soil investigations, explorations, and test reports which pertain to 

the subsurface conditions at or contiguous to the site or otherwise may affect the cost, progress, 

performance or furnishing of the work as Contractor considers necessary for the performance or 

furnishing of the work at the stated work order price within the Work Order stated time and in 

accordance with the other terms and conditions of the Contract Documents, including specifically the 

provisions of the IFB; and no additional examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, reports, studies 

or similar information or data are or is deemed necessary by Contractor for such purposes. 

 

7.3 Contractor has reviewed and checked all information and data shown or indicated on the 

Contract Documents with respect to existing Underground Facilities at or contiguous to the site and 

assumes responsibility for the accurate location of said Underground Facilities. No additional 

examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, reports, studies or similar information or data in respect 

of said Underground Facilities are or is deemed necessary by the Contractor in order to perform and 

furnish the work under this Work Order price, within the Work Order time and in accordance with the 

other terms and conditions of the Contract Documents. 

 

7.4 Contractor has correlated the results of all such observations, examinations, investigations, 

explorations, tests, reports and studies with the terms and conditions of the Contract Documents. 

 

7.5 Contractor has given the City’s Contract Administrator written notice of all conflicts, errors or 



Page 19 of 21 

 

discrepancies that he or she has discovered in the Contract Documents and the written resolution thereof 

by City or its designee is acceptable to the Contractor. 

 

8.0 Warranty.  The Contractor warrants and guarantees to the City that all services and work provided 

under this Work Order will be in accordance with this Work Order and the other Contract Documents. 

The Contractor warrants that (a) all materials and parts supplied under this Work Order shall be free 

from defects for one (1) year from the final completion of all work (unless a longer manufacturer 

warranty applies); (b) all services and work performed under this Work Order will be free from defects 

for one (1) year from the final completion of all work and the project shall be fully operational without 

unreasonable downtime or failures; and (c) that the services and work will conform to the requirements 

of the Contract Documents. If, at any time prior to the expiration of the one (1) year warranty period, 

the City discovers any failure or breach of the Contractor’s warranties or the Contractor discovers any 

failure or breach of the Contractor’s warranties, the Contractor will, upon written notice from City or of 

its own accord, at the Contractor’s sole cost and expense, promptly correct such failure or breach (which 

corrective action must include, without limitation, any necessary removal, disassembly, reinstallation, 

repair, replacement, reassembly, retesting, and/or re-inspection of any part or portion of the work and 

any other property damaged or affected by such failure, breach, or corrective action). The Contractor 

will remedy any such failure or breach so, to the extent possible, to avoid unnecessary disruptions to the 

operations of City or its systems. In the event the Contractor fails to initiate and diligently pursue 

corrective action within five (5) days of the Contractor’s receipt of the City’s notice or the Contractor’s 

discovery of the same, the City may undertake such corrective action at the Contractor’s expense.  

 

9.0 Authorization 

 

This Work Order is issued pursuant to the Electrical Equipment Inspection, Testing, Repair and 

Maintenance Contract for between the City of Lake Worth Beach and the Contractor, dated 

_____________, (“Contract” hereafter). If there are any conflicts between the terms and conditions of 

this Work Order and the Contract, the terms and conditions of the Contract shall prevail.  

 

 

 

  

 

REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS 

 

 

 

 

  



Page 20 of 21 

 

 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have made and executed this Work Order No. __ as of 

the day and year set forth above.   

 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA 

 

ATTEST:                                                                       

             

                                              

By: __________________________                By: ____DO NOT SIGN – SAMPLE ONLY____________ 

      Melissa Ann Coyne, City Clerk                                Betty Resch, Mayor 

 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND                          APPROVED FOR FINANCIAL         

LEGAL SUFFICIENCY:                                        SUFFICIENCY 

 

 

By: __________________________                By: _______________________________________ 

      Glen J. Torcivia, City Attorney                            Yannick Ngendahayo, Financial Services Director 

 

 

 

CONTRACTOR: NUCAT CORPORATION 

 

      By: __DO NOT SIGN – SAMPLE ONLY ___ 

 

[Corporate Seal]    Print Name: ___________________________ 

 

      Title: _________________________________ 

 

 

STATE OF _______________________) 

COUNTY OF _____________________) 

 

THE FOREGOING instrument was acknowledged before me by means of • physical presence or • 

online notarization on this ____ day of ______________ 2023, by ________________________, as the 

________________________ [title] of Nucat Corporation a Corporation, who is personally known to me or 

who has produced _________________________ as identification, and who did take an oath that he or she is 

duly authorized to execute the foregoing instrument and bind the CONTRACTOR to the same.   

 

 

 

____________________________________ 

Notary Public Signature 

Notary Seal:     

 

    

 

 

  



Page 21 of 21 

 

EXHIBIT “B” 

HOURLY BILLING RATES 

 

 

























































































RANKED: 5 2 4 1 3

Weight ABB Inc. Powerserve 
Technologies, Inc. HVA P&C NuCAT

Corporation
TEAMWORKnet,

Inc.

1

Responsiveness & Methodology                                    

15 38 59 46 48 53

2

Cost Effectiveness
   30 72 107 88 108 78

3
Successful Experience and Qualification of Firm & Staff

30 85 100 87 118 110

4
Similar Projects and References

15 41 54 51 60 52

5

Veteran Business Enterprise, Small Business and Local 
Business Preference 
     

5 0 0 0 20 20

6

Default, Termination, Litigation, Debarment, etc. 
5 0 20 20 20 20

236 340 292 374 333

submitted submitted submitted submitted submitted
not included submitted submitted submitted submitted

submitted submitted submitted submitted submitted
submitted submitted submitted submitted submitted
submitted submitted submitted submitted submitted

Exhibit "G" - Scrutinized Companies Certification submitted submitted submitted submitted submitted
Exhibit "H" -  Veteran Bus. Enterprise, Small Bus. Local Bus. Preference  N/A N/A N/A Veteran Business Small Business
default, termination, litigation statement not included submitted submitted submitted submitted
 

Exhibit "F" - Drug Free Workplace Form
Exhibit "E" - References

Exhibit "B" - City's Campaign Contribution Statement

Exhibit "D" - Similar Projects

         City of Lake Worth Beach 
                 Evaluation Matrix

Evaluation Criteria Score Sheet:

Total Points Received:  

RFP 23-206 Electrical Equipment Inspection, Testing, Repair and Maintenance

Exhibit "C" - Respondant Information Form



STAFF REPORT 
UTILITY MEETING 

 

 

AGENDA DATE: September 26, 2023 DEPARTMENT: Electric Utility 

TITLE: 

Agreement with Bermex, Inc. for the reading of electric and water utility meters during emergency 
situations 

 
SUMMARY: 

Agreement with Bermex, Inc. for the reading of electric and water utility meters associated with potential 
future emergency situations including disaster recovery, electric utility restoration situations and/or 
Advanced Metering Infrastructure (AMI) hardware or software failure. 

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

The City issued a Request for Proposals (23-203R) seeking bids from qualified vendors for emergency, 
as-needed, electric and water utility meter reading services.  Bermex, Inc. was the sole vendor to submit 
a proposal, was found to be a responsive and responsible bidder and was recommended for the award. 

The City currently utilizes an AMI system for its electric and water utility meter reading, which allows 
internal staff to focus on other tasks on a daily basis.  In the unlikely event that the said AMI systems 
were to become inoperable or fail, the City would need to rely on the services described within this 
document to revert to manual meter reads on an as-needed basis. These services would be utilized until 
the AMI System was back online and operational.  The duration of the Agreement is three (3) years, with 
the option to renew for two (2) additional one (1) year periods. 

 
MOTION: 

Move to approve/disapprove Agreement with Bermex, Inc. for the reading of electric and water utility 
meters on an as-needed basis. 

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Agreement 



August 29, 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 4F418333-E380-42DA-A375-024DBE9D90E5



DocuSign Envelope ID: 4F418333-E380-42DA-A375-024DBE9D90E5



DocuSign Envelope ID: 4F418333-E380-42DA-A375-024DBE9D90E5



DocuSign Envelope ID: 4F418333-E380-42DA-A375-024DBE9D90E5



DocuSign Envelope ID: 4F418333-E380-42DA-A375-024DBE9D90E5



DocuSign Envelope ID: 4F418333-E380-42DA-A375-024DBE9D90E5



DocuSign Envelope ID: 4F418333-E380-42DA-A375-024DBE9D90E5



DocuSign Envelope ID: 4F418333-E380-42DA-A375-024DBE9D90E5



DocuSign Envelope ID: 4F418333-E380-42DA-A375-024DBE9D90E5



DocuSign Envelope ID: 4F418333-E380-42DA-A375-024DBE9D90E5



DocuSign Envelope ID: 4F418333-E380-42DA-A375-024DBE9D90E5



DocuSign Envelope ID: 4F418333-E380-42DA-A375-024DBE9D90E5



Kenny Murphy

President 

Ohio
Summit

29 August
Kenny Murphy President

(personally known by me)

DocuSign Envelope ID: 4F418333-E380-42DA-A375-024DBE9D90E5



DocuSign Envelope ID: 4F418333-E380-42DA-A375-024DBE9D90E5



DocuSign Envelope ID: 4F418333-E380-42DA-A375-024DBE9D90E5



DocuSign Envelope ID: 4F418333-E380-42DA-A375-024DBE9D90E5



DocuSign Envelope ID: 4F418333-E380-42DA-A375-024DBE9D90E5



STAFF REPORT 
UTILITY MEETING 

 

AGENDA DATE: September 26, 2023 DEPARTMENT: Electric Utility 

TITLE: 

Waiver of Procurement Process and Agreement with Gresco Utility Supply, Inc., for the purchase and 
delivery of 27 kV Capacitor Banks 

 
SUMMARY: 

This item seeks authorization to waive the competitive procurement process and enter into an agreement 
with Gresco Utility Supply, Inc., to provide and deliver 27 kV, 4 MVAR 2-STEP Shunt Capacitor Banks 
to the City at a cost not to exceed $581,523.  

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

Capacitor Banks are a component in substations to stabilize voltage variations and improve power 
delivery efficiency. Currently, the City has a need for new 27 kV capacitor banks at the City’s electrical 
distribution substations and the new Canal 8-Bay Distribution Substation. The City issued an Invitation 
for Bid (IFB) (IFB#22-113) for the purchase and delivery of the capacitor banks, which the City canceled 
due to a lack of responsive bids. The City then issued a second IFB (IFB #23-114) for the purchase and 
delivery of capacitor banks. After the bid deadline, due to materials price volatility and supply chain 
issues, the City requested and accepted bid revisions from the bidders. Two (2) bidders responded with 
bid revisions with Gresco Utility Supply recommended for the award. The initial Term of the Agreement 
is for one (1) year with four (4) additional one (1) year extensions. The total cost of the capacitor banks 
under this initial agreement is in the amount not to exceed $581,524.  

Since the bid process for IFB#22-113 did not strictly adhere to the technical competitive procurement 
process, the City’s Electric Utility Department is seeking a procurement waiver. Pursuant to section 2-
112(g) of the City’s Procurement Code, the City Commission may authorize the waiver of the competitive 
solicitation process upon the recommendation of the procurement division that it is not practicable or 
advantageous for the City to acquire the goods through the normal competitive selection process. In this 
case, the revised bids were necessary due to the current price volatility and supply chain issues. 
Accordingly, the City’s procurement division recommends the procurement waiver.  

The City’s Electrical Engineering team is preparing for the construction of the new Canal 8-Bay 
Distribution Substation. The 27 kV capacitor banks are an essential component of the new substation 
builds. This project has been identified as an element of the City’s electric utility System Hardening and 
Reliability Improvement Project (SHRIP) and for which bonds were sold in November 2020 and May of 
2022.  

 
MOTION: 

Move to approve/disapprove the waiver of procurement and agreement with Gresco Utility Supply, Inc., 
to provide and deliver 27 kV, 4 MVAR 2-STEP Shunt Capacitor Banks to the City at a cost not to exceed 
$581,523. 

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Fiscal Impact Analysis 
Agreement 
Bid Tab 



 

FISCAL IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Five Year Summary of Fiscal Impact: 
 

Fiscal Years 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 
Inflows 
 Current Appropriation 0 0 0 0 0 
 Program Income 0 0 0 0 0 
 Grants 0 0 0 0 0 
 In Kind 0 0 0 0 0 
 

Outflows 
 Current Appropriation $581,523 0 0 0 0  
 Operating  0 0 0 0 0 
 Capital 0 0 0 0 0 
 

Net Fiscal Impact 0 0 0 0 0 
 

No. of Addn’l Full-Time 
Employee Positions 0 0 0 0 0 
 

   

Contract Award - Existing Appropriation 

  Expenditure 

Department   Electric  

Division  T & D  

GL Description  Improve Other than Build/Infrastructure  

GL Account Number  421-6034-531.63-15 

Project Number  SH2113 

Requested Funds  $581,523 

 







































ITEM # QTY Unit Price TOTAL Unit Price TOTAL

1 2 232,608.00$                      $465,216.00 474,660.00$                               $949,320.00

submitted
submitted

Substitution Sheet (B5)

submitted
submitted

Bid Form (B1)
Bidder’s Minimum Qualifications (B2)

Schedule of Unit Prices & Delivery Details (B4)
Bid (B3)

submitted

submitted

submitted
submitted

submitted

submitted
submitted
submitted

Compliant

not submitted
n/a

submitted
submitted
submitted

submitted
submitted
submitted

submitted

BID COMPLIANCE

Manufacturer Data Sheet/Technical Specifications/Technical Drawings

Compliant

Campaing Contribution Statement (B10) submitted
Scrutinized Companies Certification (B11) submitted

Veteran Business Enterprise, Small Business and/or Local Business Preference Claimed (B12) n/a

Drug Free Certification (B9)
Affidavit Non-Collusion (B8)

Reference List (B7)
Manufacturer Verfication Form (B6)

submitted
submitted

City of Lake Worth Beach

IFB#23-114 27 KV, 4 MVAR 2-STEP SHUNT CAPACITOR BANK

Bid Tab

Gresco 

27 KV, 4 MVAR 2-STEP SHUNT CAPACITOR BANK delivered 
f.o.b. destination

Rank: 

Hitachi Energy USA Inc

DESCRIPTION



STAFF REPORT 
UTILITY MEETING 

 

 
 

AGENDA DATE: September 29, 2023 DEPARTMENT: Water Utilities 

TITLE: 

Resolution No. 47-2023 - Designate Vaughn Hayduk as the City’s Board Member for the East Central 
Regional Water Reclamation Facility (ECR) as Sam Heady’s alternate member representing Lake Worth 
Beach 

 
SUMMARY: 

Designate Vaughn Hayduk, the new Assistant Water Utilities Director, as the Alternate Board Member 
representing the City of Lake Worth Beach at the ECR board, replacing Julie Parham.  

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

The City of Lake Worth Beach and its seven sub-regional partners send their wastewater to the ECR 
facility, which is operated and maintained by the City of West Palm Beach through an Interlocal 
Agreement. The City of Lake Worth Beach has appointed Vaughn Hayduk as the Assistant Water Utilities 
Director, as the alternate member representing the City for the ECR Board. 

 
MOTION: 

Approve/disapprove Resolution No. 47-2023 designating Vaughn Hayduk as an Alternate Board Member 
for ECR representing Lake Worth Beach. 

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Fiscal Impact Analysis – N/A 
Resolution 47-2023 



47-2023 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 47-2023 OF THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, 
FLORIDA, APPOINTS VAUGHN HAYDUK AS THE EAST CENTRAL 
REGIONAL WATER RECLAMATION FACILITY ALTERNATE BOARD 
MEMBER REPRESENTING THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH AS 
CURRENT ALTERNATE BOARD MEMBER JULIE PARHAM HAS 
RESIGNED FROM THE CITY; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE 
 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Lake Worth Beach (“CITY”) is a partner of the East Central 

Regional Water Reclamation Facility (“ECR”) and has been sending its wastewater to the 
facility for over 30 years now as part of an Interlocal Agreement with the City of West 
Palm Beach, who owns and maintains the facility; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Lake Worth Beach is one of five partners that have 
members on the board represented by each entity with an alternate member as well that 
attends monthly board meetings and other special meetings to approve budgets, 
procurements and keep abreast of projects and operating and maintenance work; and 

 
WHEREAS, Sam Heady is the current City of Lake Worth Beach board member, 

and Vaughn Hayduk serves as Assistant Water Utility Director and Alternate Board 
Member at ECR. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF LAKE 
WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, that: 
 
SECTION 1: Sam Heady will be the ECR Board Member representing the City of Lake 
Worth Beach and Vaughn Hayduk will be the Alternate Member. 
 
SECTION 2: This resolution shall become effective upon adoption. 
 

The passage of this resolution was moved by Commissioner ______________, 

seconded by Commissioner ______________, and upon being put to a vote, the vote 

was as follows: 

Mayor Betty Resch  
Vice Mayor Christopher McVoy  
Commissioner Sarah Malega  
Commissioner Kimberly Stokes 
Commissioner Reinaldo Diaz  
 



Pg. 2, Reso. 47-2023 

The Mayor thereupon declared this resolution duly passed and adopted on the 

_____ day of ____________, 2023.  

LAKE WORTH BEACH CITY COMMISSION 
 
 
By: __________________________ 

Betty Resch, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Melissa Ann Coyne, City Clerk 



STAFF REPORT 
UTILITY MEETING 

 

 Agreement 

  

AGENDA DATE: September 26, 2023 DEPARTMENT: Water Utilities 

TITLE: 

Piggyback agreement with Tripp Electric, Inc. for pump, motor, and equipment services 

 
SUMMARY: 

Tripp Electric Motor, Inc. has a contract with Palm Beach County (IFB #23-011/MB) for pump, motor, 
and equipment service. The City of Lake Worth Beach Water Utilities will piggyback this contract for the 
same services. 

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

The Water Treatment Plant and Master Pump Station in the City of Lake Worth Beach have a variety of 
pumps and motors that require periodic repairs to maintain the Water Utility. To fulfill these specialized 
equipment needs, the City of Lake Worth Beach has entered into a piggyback contract with Tripp Electric 
Motor, Inc. This agreement permits the City to access the unit pricing and terms of the Palm Beach 
County contract. Tripp Electric Motor, Inc. has agreed to extend its specifications and pricing to the City 
of Lake Worth Beach, which goes beyond the capabilities of the City's staff. 

 
MOTION: 

Move to approve/disapprove the piggyback agreement with Tripp Electric Motor, Inc. for motor and pump 
repairs for an amount not to exceed $150,000.00. 

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Fiscal Impact Analysis 



FISCAL IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Five-Year Summary of Fiscal Impact: 
 

Fiscal Years 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 
Inflows 
 Current Appropriation 0 0 0 0 0  
 Program Income 0 0 0 0 0 
 Grants 0 0 0 0 0 
 In-Kind 0 0 0 0 0 
 

Outflows 
 Current Appropriation $150,000.00 0 0 0 0 
 Operating  0 0 0 0 0 
 Capital 0 0 0 0 0 
 

Net Fiscal Impact 0 0 0 0 0 
 

No. of Addn’l Full-Time 
Employee Positions 0 0 0 0 0 
 

   

Contract Award - Existing Appropriation 

  Expenditure Expenditure 

Department   Water Utility  Water Utility 

Division  Water Production  Water Production 

GL Description  Repair/Maintenance Wells  Repair and Maintenance 

GL Account Number  402-7021-533-4646  402-7022-533-4621 

Project Number  N/A  N/A 

Requested Funds $50,000.00 $25,000.00 

   

Contract Award - Existing Appropriation 

  Expenditure 

Department  Sewer  

Division Pumping  

GL Description Repair/Maintenance 

GL Account Number 405-7421-535-46-21  

Project Number N/A  

Requested Funds $75,000.00 

 















STAFF REPORT 
UTILITY MEETING 

 

3rd Amendment 

  

AGENDA DATE: September 26, 2023 DEPARTMENT: Water Utilities 

TITLE: 

Third Amendment to Agreement with Allied Universal Corporation to purchase Sodium Hypochlorite 
(Bleach) for water treatment and odor control 

 
SUMMARY: 

This Third Amendment authorizes the purchase of bulk Sodium Hypochlorite for the City of Lake Worth 
Beach Water Utilities for Fiscal Year 2024 from Allied Universal Corporation. 

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

Sodium Hypochlorite is a necessary chemical which is added to the finished water supply and is used 
for the disinfection of drinking water, killing germs, micro-organisms, algae, etc.  Sodium Hypochlorite is 
also necessary for odor control at the Reverse Osmosis Water Treatment Plant and Master Pump 
Station. 

On October 20, 2020, the City awarded the contract under the IFB # 20-107 for the purchase of bulk 
Sodium Hypochlorite needed for the Water Treatment Plant and Master Pump Station.   This agreement 
was issued for the initial term of one (1) year with an option for three (3) additional one (1) year renewals. 
Third Amendment to the Agreement allows for the new pricing and renews the Agreement for the period 
of one year. 

 
MOTION: 

Move to approve/disapprove the Third Amendment to Agreement for purchasing bulk Sodium 
Hypochlorite from Allied Universal Corporation for an amount not to exceed $250,000.00 for Fiscal Year 
2024. 

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Fiscal Impact Analysis 



FISCAL IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Five Year Summary of Fiscal Impact: 
 

Fiscal Years 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 
Inflows 
 Current appropriation 0 0 0 0 0 
 Program Income 0 0 0 0 0 
 Grants 0 0 0 0 0 
 In Kind 0 0 0 0 0 
 

Outflows 
 Current appropriation $250,000.00 0 0 0 0  
 Operating  0 0 0 0 0 
 Capital 0 0 0 0 0 
 

Net Fiscal Impact 0 0 0 0 0 
 

No. of Addn’l Full-Time 
Employee Positions 0 0 0 0 0 
 

   

Contract Award - Existing Appropriation 

  Expenditure Expenditure 

Department   Sewer  Regional Sewer 

Division  Sewer Collection Pumping 

GL Description  Operating Supplies / Chemicals  Operating Supplies / Chemicals 

GL Account Number  403-7231-535-52-30  405-7421-535-52-30 

Project Number  N/A  N/A 

Requested Funds  $20,000.00  $20,000.00 

   

Contract Award - Existing Appropriation 

  Expenditure 

Department  Water Utility  

Division Water Utility  

GL Description Operating Supplies / Chemicals  

GL Account Number 402-7022-533-52-30  

Project Number N/A  

Requested Funds $210,000.00  

 







IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have made and executed this Third Amendment to the Contractor Agreement (Liquid Sodium Hypochlorite) on the day and year first above written. 

ATTEST: 
By: __________ _ Melissa Ann Coyne, City Clerk 
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGAL SUFFICIENCY: 
By: __________ _ Glen J. Torcivia, City Attorney 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA 

By: Betty Resch, Mayor 

APPROVED FOR FINANCIAL SUFFICIENCY 
By:-------------Yannick Ngendahayo, Financial Services Director 

CONTRACTOR: Allied · _e sal Corp. 

[Corporate Seal] 

STATE OF cy-� )COUNTY OF _h � ) 

By: ___ --'-d_-____ _ 
Print N �� �� 
Title: :;:f=he ..... � / C £u

THE FOREGOING instrument was acknowledged before me by means of• or• online notariza ·on_on this 1.._ day of...ynh./� 2023, by_..:jl=-L.::.c. '--'------4-'=-.IL....:..:.....:-'-'C...:-----" as the SI . Ct:. 0 [title] of Allied Universal Corp. authorized o do business in the State o Florida, w o is Qersonally known to me or who has produced __________ _ as identification, and who did take an oath that he or she is duly authorized to execute the foregoing instrument and bind the CONTRACTOR to the same. 

Notary Seal: 
. ,, ........ �..a----. ................. ., 
i /J-':J:"�'<;-.. ATABEIRA PIEDRA 
;, f��C:\ Notary Publlc • State of Flortda 
'\J,�;/J,i . .// Commission It HH 045013 ·· .. • .. o• '":-,.�/ My Comm, Expires Sep 21, 202• 

Eon�eo' throu1h National Notary Assn. 
,,r-..._, ___ .,. ___ .,...;""' 

• .lie Signature

3 





STAFF REPORT 
UTILITY MEETING 

 

 

  

AGENDA DATE: September 26, 2023 DEPARTMENT: Water Utilities 

TITLE: 

Piggyback Agreement with Miller Pipeline, LLC for the provision of Wastewater Collection System 
Rehabilitation Services 

 
SUMMARY: 

Miller Pipeline, LLC has a contract with Lee County Solicitation No. B230154DWJ to provide services for 
rehabilitating the wastewater collection system. Lake Worth Beach will piggyback this contract for the 
same services.  

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

The city is responsible for maintaining 150 miles of wastewater lines that carry wastewater to lift stations 
in Lake Worth Beach and unincorporated areas. However, these lines become fragile over time, leading 
to infiltration and joint issues. Miller Pipeline can provide professional services to address these problems 
and prevent the release of untreated sewage, which poses significant risks to public health and the 
environment. The term of this Agreement is consistent with the term of the Lee County Contract and valid 
until June 19, 2026 with renewal option not to exceed three (3) years. City’s Procurement Code and 
Policy authorizes the purchases of goods and services through “piggybacking” other governmental 
competitively procured Agreements. 

 
MOTION: 

Move to approve/disapprove the piggyback agreement with Miller Pipeline, LLC pipeline contractor 
services.  

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Fiscal Impact Analysis 
Agreement 



FISCAL IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Five-Year Summary of Fiscal Impact: 

 
Fiscal Years 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 
Inflows 
 Current Appropriation 0 0 0 0 0 
 Program Income 0 0 0 0 0 
 Grants 0 0 0 0 0 
 In-Kind 0 0 0 0 0 
 
Outflows  
 Current Appropriation          150,000 150,000 150,000 0 0 
 Operating  0 0 0 0 0 
 Capital 0 0 0 0 0 
 
Net Fiscal Impact 0 0 0 0 0 

 
No. of Addn’l Full-Time 
Employee Positions 0 0 0 0 0 

Contract Award - Existing Appropriation 

  Expenditure 

Department  Sewer 

Division  Collection 

GL Description  Other Contractual Services 

GL Account Number 423-7231-535.63-15  

Project Number LS2106 

Requested Funds $150,000 

 



Page 1 of 15 

 

AGREEMENT FOR WASTEWATER COLLECTION SYSTEM REHABILITATION SERVICES  

(Utilizing the Lee County Contract No. B230154DWJ) 

 

THIS AGREEMENT FOR WASTEWATER COLLECTION SYSTEM REHABILITATION  

(“Agreement”) is made as of the  ______________________, by and between the CITY OF LAKE WORTH 

BEACH, 7 N. Dixie Highway, Lake Worth Beach, FL  33460, a municipal corporation organized and existing 

under the laws of the State of Florida, (“CITY”), and  Miller Pipeline, LLC, an Indiana Limited Liability 

Company authorized to do business in the State of Florida, located at 8850 Crawfordsville Road, Indianapolis, 

IN 46234 (“CONTRACTOR”). 

 

RECITALS 

 

 WHEREAS, the CITY’s Water Utility Department is in need of a company to provide Wastewater 

Collection System Rehabilitation Services; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the CITY’s Procurement Policy and Code authorizes the purchases of goods and services 

through “piggybacking” other governmental competitively procured Agreements; and  

 

 WHEREAS, on June 20, 2023, Lee County, a political subdivision of the State of Florida, competitively 

awarded the Agreement for Wastewater Collection System Rehabilitation Services (Contract # B230154DWJ) 

based on the Lee County Solicitation No. B230154DWJ to the CONTRACTOR (“County Lee Contract”), 

which is valid until June 19, 2026; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Lee County Contract authorizes the CONTRACTOR to extend the terms and conditions 

of the Lee County Contract to other government entities at the discretion of the CONTRACTOR; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the CITY has requested and the CONTRACTOR has agreed to extend the terms and 

conditions of the Lee County Contract to the CITY; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the CITY has reviewed the unit prices from the Lee County Contract, which unit prices are 

set forth as Exhibit “A” attached hereto, and determined that the unit prices are competitive and will result in 

the best value to the CITY; and, 

 

 WHEREAS, the CITY finds entering this Agreement with the CONTRACTOR serves a valid public 

purpose. 

 

 NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises set forth herein, the receipt and 

sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto agree as follows: 

 

1. Recitals.  The parties agree that the recitals set forth above are true and correct and are fully incorporated 

herein by reference. 

 

2. Contract.  The Lee County Contract is hereby incorporated by reference into and expressly made a part of 

this Agreement as is set forth at length herein. The CITY shall have all rights and obligations of Lee County 

under the Lee County Contract except as specifically modified herein. The term of this Agreement shall be 

consistent with the term of the Lee County Contract and valid until June 19, 2026 with renewal option not to 

exceed three (3) years unless earlier terminated in accordance with the Agreement terms.  

 

3.   Not to Exceed Amount. While the CONTRACTOR is not guaranteed that the CITY will utilize this 

Agreement for any services, if the CITY utilizes this Agreement for services, the not to exceed amount for 

this Agreement shall be $750,000 each fiscal year.  



Page 2 of 15 

 

 

4.   Work Orders. When the CITY identifies a need for the CONTRACTOR’s services, the CITY will 

request a proposal from the CONTRACTOR to provide the services requested at the unit prices set forth in 

Exhibit “A”. The CITY will provide the CONTRACTOR with plans and/or specifications in order for the 

CONTRACTOR to develop its proposal. The CONTRACTOR’s proposal shall be submitted in the format 

of the sample work order, attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit “B” along with a copy of the 

CONTRACTOR’s proposal. Upon receipt of the CONTRACTOR’s proposed work order and proposal, the 

CITY shall decide in its sole discretion whether to award the work order to the CONTRACTOR. Depending 

on the lump sum amount of each work order, the work order may be awarded by the City Manager, if within 

their purchasing authority (currently not to exceed $50,000), or the City Commission. If the work order is 

approved by the CITY, the CONTRACTOR shall commence the identified services upon the CITY’s 

approval of the work order for the services and issuance of a notice to proceed. The CITY reserves the right 

to reject any and all proposals submitted by the CONTRACTOR. A CITY-approved work order shall 

include (by reference) the plans and/or specifications provided by the CITY to the CONTRACTOR. 

 

5. Conflict of Terms and Conditions.  Conflicts between documents that make up this Agreement shall be 

resolved in the following order of precedence: 

 a. This Agreement (including its exhibits);  

 b. The Lee County Contract; and, 

 c. The CITY issued Work Order. 

 

6. Compensation to CONTRACTOR.  CONTRACTOR shall submit invoices to the CITY for review and 

approval by the CITY’s representative, indicating that all goods and services have been provided and rendered 

in conformity with this Agreement and then will be sent to the Finance Department for payment.  Invoices will 

normally be paid within thirty (30) days following the CITY representative’s approval. CONTRACTOR waives 

consequential or incidental damages for claims, disputes or other matters in question arising out of or relating 

to this Agreement.  In order for both parties herein to close their books and records, CONTRACTOR will 

clearly state “final invoice” on the CONTRACTOR’s final/last billing to the CITY. This certifies that all 

services have been properly performed and all charges have been invoiced to the CITY.  Since this account will 

thereupon be closed, any and other further charges if not properly included in this final invoice are waived by 

the CONTRACTOR. The CITY will not be liable for any invoice from the CONTRACTOR submitted thirty 

(30) days after the provision of all services. 

 

7.     Miscellaneous Provisions.   

 

A. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Florida.  Any and all legal action necessary 

to enforce this Agreement will be held exclusively in Palm Beach County, Florida.  No remedy herein 

conferred upon any party is intended to be exclusive of any other remedy, and each and every such remedy 

shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to every other remedy given hereunder or now or hereafter 

existing at law or in equity or by statute or otherwise.  No single or partial exercise by any party of any 

right, power, or remedy hereunder shall preclude any other or further exercise thereof.   

 

B. Except for any obligation of the CONTRACTOR to indemnify the CITY, if any legal action or other 

proceeding is brought for the enforcement of this Agreement, or because of an alleged dispute, breach, 

default or misrepresentation in connection with any provisions of this Agreement, each party shall be liable 

and responsible for their own attorney’s fees incurred in that enforcement action, dispute, breach, default 

or misrepresentation. FURTHER, TO ENCOURAGE PROMPT AND EQUITABLE RESOLUTION OF 

ANY LITIGATION, EACH PARTY HEREBY WAIVES ITS RIGHTS TO A TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY 

LITIGATION RELATED TO THIS AGREEMENT. 

 



Page 3 of 15 

 

C. If any term or provision of this Agreement, or the application thereof to any person or circumstances shall, 

to any extent, be held invalid or unenforceable, to remainder of this Agreement, or the application of such 

terms or provision, to persons or circumstances other than those as to which it is held invalid or 

unenforceable, shall not be affected, and every other term and provision of this Agreement shall be deemed 

valid and enforceable to the extent permitted by law.   

 

D. All notices required in this Agreement shall be sent by certified mail, return receipt requested or by 

nationally recognized overnight courier, and sent to the addresses appearing on the first page of this 

Agreement.   

 

E. The CITY and the CONTRACTOR agree that this Agreement (and the other documents described herein) 

sets forth the entire Agreement between the parties, and that there are no promises or understandings other 

than those stated herein.  None of the provisions, terms and conditions contained in this Agreement may be 

added to, modified, superseded or otherwise altered, except by written instrument executed by the parties 

hereto.  Any provision of this Agreement which is of a continuing nature or imposes an obligation which 

extends beyond the term of this Agreement shall survive its expiration or earlier termination.  

 

F. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an 

original, and will become effective and binding upon the parties as of the effective date at such time as 

all the signatories hereto have signed a counterpart of this Agreement. This Agreement may be executed 

electronically.  

 

G. This Agreement shall not be construed more strongly against either party regardless of who was more 

responsible for its preparation. 

 

H. In accordance with the Palm Beach County ordinance number 2011-009, the CONTRACTOR 

acknowledges that this Agreement may be subject to investigation and/or audit by the Palm Beach 

County Inspector General.  The CONTRACTOR has reviewed the Palm Beach County ordinance 

number 2011-009 and is aware of its rights and/or obligations under such ordinance. 

 

I. PUBLIC RECORDS.  The CONTRACTOR shall comply with Florida’s Public Records Act, Chapter 

119, Florida Statutes, and, if determined to be acting on behalf of the CITY as provided under section 

119.011(2), Florida Statutes, specifically agrees to: 

 

1. Keep and maintain public records required by the CITY to perform the service. 

 

2. Upon request from the CITY’s custodian of public records or designee, provide the CITY with 

a copy of the requested records or allow the records to be inspected or copied within a reasonable time 

at a cost that does not exceed the cost provided in Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, or as otherwise 

provided by law. 

 

3. Ensure that public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records 

disclosure requirements are not disclosed except as authorized by law for the duration of this Agreement 

and following completion of this Agreement if the CONTRACTOR does not transfer the records to the 

CITY. 

 

4. Upon completion of this Agreement, transfer, at no cost, to the CITY all public records in 

possession of the CONTRACTOR or keep and maintain public records required by the CITY to 

perform the service. If the CONTRACTOR transfers all public records to the CITY upon completion 

of the Agreement, the CONTRACTOR shall destroy any duplicate public records that are exempt or 

confidential and exempt from public records disclosure requirements. If the CONTRACTOR keeps and 



Page 4 of 15 

 

maintains public records upon completion of the Agreement, the CONTRACTOR shall meet all 

applicable requirements for retaining public records. All records stored electronically must be provided 

to the CITY, upon request from the CITY’s custodian of public records or designee, in a format that is 

compatible with the information technology systems of the CITY.  

 

IF THE CONTRACTOR HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE 

APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA STATUTES, TO THE 

CONTRACTOR'S DUTY TO PROVIDE PUBLIC RECORDS RELATING 

TO THIS AGREEMENT, PLEASE CONTACT THE CUSTODIAN OF 

PUBLIC RECORDS OR DESIGNEE AT THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH 

BEACH, ATTN:  CITY CLERK, AT (561) 586-1662, CITY 

CLERK@LAKEWORTHBEACHFL.GOV, 7 N. DIXIE HIGHWAY, 

LAKE WORTH BEACH, FL 33460. 

 
J. SCRUTINIZED COMPANIES.   

1. CONTRACTOR certifies that it and its subcontractors are not on the Scrutinized Companies 

that Boycott Israel List and are not engaged in the boycott of Israel.  Pursuant to section 287.135, 

Florida Statutes, the CITY may immediately terminate this Agreement at its sole option if the 

CONTRACTOR or any of its subcontractors are found to have submitted a false certification; or if the 

CONTRACTOR or any of its subcontractors, are placed on the Scrutinized Companies that Boycott 

Israel List or is engaged in the boycott of Israel during the term of this Agreement. 

2. If this Agreement is for one million dollars or more, the CONTRACTOR certifies that it and 

its subcontractors are also not on the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in Sudan List, Scrutinized 

Companies with Activities in the Iran Petroleum Energy Sector List, or engaged in business operations 

in Cuba or Syria as identified in Section 287.135, Florida Statutes.  Pursuant to Section 287.135, the 

CITY may immediately terminate this Agreement at its sole option if the CONTRACTOR, or any of 

its subcontractors are found to have submitted a false certification; or if the CONTRACTOR or any of 

its subcontractors are placed on the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in Sudan List, or Scrutinized 

Companies with Activities in the Iran Petroleum Energy Sector List, or are or have been engaged with 

business operations in Cuba or Syria during the term of this Agreement. 

3. The CONTRACTOR agrees to observe the above requirements for applicable subcontracts 

entered into for the performance of work under this Agreement. 

4. The CONTRACTOR agrees that the certifications in this section shall be effective and relied 

upon by the CITY for the term of this Agreement, including any and all renewals. 

5. The CONTRACTOR agrees that if it or any of its subcontractors’ status changes in regards to 

any certification herein, the CONTRACTOR shall immediately notify the CITY of the same. 

6. As provided in Subsection 287.135(8), Florida Statutes, if federal law ceases to authorize the 

above-stated contracting prohibitions then they shall become inoperative. 

L. E-VERIFY.   

Pursuant to Section 448.095(2), Florida Statutes, the CONTRACTOR shall: 



Page 5 of 15 

 

1. Register with and use the E-Verify system to verify the work authorization status of all newly hired 

employees and require all subcontractors (providing services or receiving funding under this Agreement) 

to register with and use the E-Verify system to verify the work authorization status of all the subcontractors’ 

newly hired employees; 

2. Secure an affidavit from all subcontractors (providing services or receiving funding under this 

Agreement) stating that the subcontractor does not employ, Agreement with, or subcontract with an 

“unauthorized alien” as defined in Section 448.095(1)(k), Florida Statutes; 

3. Maintain copies of all subcontractor affidavits for the duration of this Agreement and provide the 

same to the CITY upon request; 

4. Comply fully, and ensure all of its subcontractors comply fully, with Section 448.095, Florida 

Statutes; 

5. Be aware that a violation of Section 448.09, Florida Statutes (Unauthorized aliens; employment 

prohibited) shall be grounds for termination of this Agreement; and, 

6. Be aware that if the CITY terminates this Agreement under Section 448.095(2)(c), Florida Statutes, 

CONTRACTOR may not be awarded an Agreement for at least 1 year after the date on which the 

Agreement is terminated and will be liable for any additional costs incurred by the CITY as a result of the 

termination of the Agreement.   

 

 

 

REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS 

 

  



Page 6 of 15 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the CITY and CONTRACTOR hereto have made and executed this 

Agreement for Wastewater Collection System Rehabilitation Services (utilizing the Lee County Contract) as of 

the day and year first above written. 

 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA 

 

 

      By:  ________________________________ 

               Betty Resch, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

By: ______________________________ 

       Melissa Ann Coyne, City Clerk 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND APPROVED FOR FINANCIAL SUFFICIENCY: 

LEGAL SUFFICIENCY:  

 

 

By: _______________________________            By: ________________________________________ 

       Glen J. Torcivia, City Attorney                Yannick Ngendahayo, Financial Services Director 

 

 

CONTRACTOR:  MILLER PIPELINE, LLC 

 

      By:  __________________________________ 

[Corporate Seal]       

      Print Name:  ___________________________ 

 

      Title:  _____________________________________ 

 

STATE OF _____________________ 

CITY OF _______________________ 

 

THE FOREGOING instrument was acknowledged before me by means of •physical presence or •online 

notarization on this ____ day of ______________ 2023, by ________________________, as the 

________________________ [title] of Miller Pipeline, LLC., A Florida Limited Liability Company, who is 

personally known to me or who has produced_________________________ as identification, and who did take 

an oath that he or she is duly authorized to execute the foregoing instrument and bind the CONTRACTOR to 

the same.   

 

 

____________________________________ 

Notary Public Signature 

Notary Seal:     

 

  

 

 

  

Shelley Rardon
Typewriter
Chris Schuler

Shelley Rardon
Typewriter
Vice President

Shelley Rardon
Typewriter
Indiana

Shelley Rardon
Typewriter
Indianapolis

Shelley Rardon
Typewriter
8th

Shelley Rardon
Typewriter
September

Shelley Rardon
Typewriter
Chris Schuler

Shelley Rardon
Typewriter
Vice President

Shelley Rardon
Typewriter
personally known

Shelley Rardon
Typewriter
Shelley L. Rardon

Shelley Rardon
Signature

Shelley Rardon
Wet Seal - Notary



Page 7 of 15 

 

EXHIBIT “A” 

Unit Price Schedule from Lee County Contract 

 

 



Page 8 of 15 

 

 
 



Page 9 of 15 

 

 
 

 

 



Page 10 of 15 

 

 
 

 

 

 



Page 11 of 15 

 

  



Page 12 of 15 

 

 

EXHIBIT “B” 

SAMPLE WORK ORDER 

AGREEMENT FOR WASTEWATER COLLECTION SYSTEM REHABILITATION 

SERVICES 

 

 

THIS WORK ORDER for Wastewater Collection System Rehabilitation Services (“Work 

Order” hereafter) is made on the ___________________, between the City of Lake Worth Beach, a 

Florida municipal corporation located at 7 North Dixie Highway, Lake Worth, Florida 33460 (“City” 

hereafter) and Miller Pipeline, LLC., an Indiana Limited Liability Company (“Contractor” hereafter). 

 

1.0 Project Description: 

The City desires the Contractor to provide all goods, services, materials and equipment as identified 

herein related to the Wastewater Collection System Rehabilitation Services project generally 

described as: ____________________________________________________  (the “Project”). The 

Project is more specifically described in the plans prepared by ______________________, dated 

____________, and which are incorporated herein by reference.  

 

2.0 Scope 

Under this Work Order, the Contractor will provide the City of Lake Worth Beach with construction 

services for the Project as specified in the Contractor’s proposal attached hereto and incorporated 

herein as Exhibit “1”.    

 

3.0 Schedule and Liquidated Damages 

Substantial completion of all services and work under this Work Order shall be within ____ calendar 

days from the Effective Date of this Work Order. Final completion of all services and work (and all 

punch-list items (if any)) under this Work Order shall be within ___  calendar days from the Effective 

Date of this Work Order. The Effective Date of this Work Order is the date following the parties’ 

execution of this Work Order and the City’s delivery of a Notice to Proceed to the Contractor via e-

mail, facsimile or other form of delivery as documented by the City. Substantial completion occurs 

when the services and work has progressed to the point where, in the opinion of the City, the work is 

sufficiently complete in accordance with the Contract Documents and this Work Order, so that the 

Project can be utilized for the purposes for which it is intended. Final completion occurs when all 

services and work (including punch-list items) has been completed and the project becomes fully 

operational and accepted by the City. 

 

Liquidated Damages. The City and Contractor recognize that time is of the essence under this 

Work Order and the Contract Documents, and that the City will suffer financial loss if the 

services and work described in this Work Order and the Contract Documents are not completed 

within the times specified in this Work Order. The City and Contractor recognize, agree and 

acknowledge that it would be impractical and extremely difficult to ascertain and fix the actual 

damages that the City would suffer in the event Contractor neglects, refuses, or otherwise fails to 

complete the services and work within the time specified. Accordingly, instead of requiring any 

such proof, the City and Contractor agree that as liquidated damages for delay (but not as a 

penalty) Contractor shall pay the City ____ hundred dollars ($_________.00) for each day that 

expires after the time specified in this Work Order.   



Page 13 of 15 

 

 

 

4.0 Compensation and Direct Purchases 

This Work Order is issued for a lump sum, not to exceed amount of $______________________ 

(_____________________). The attached proposal identifies all costs and expenses included in the 

lump sum, not to exceed amount. 

 

The following Direct Purchases are to be made under this Work Order by the City: 

_________________________________________________________________________________

_________________________________________________________________________________

_______________. 

 

5.0 Project Manager 

The Project Manager for the Contractor is __________________________, 

phone:___________________; email: ____________________; and, the Project Manager for the City 

is ______________________________, phone:_________________________________; 

email:_______________________. 

 

6.0 Progress Meetings 

The Contractor shall schedule periodic progress review meetings with the City Project Manager as 

necessary but every 30 days as a minimum. 

 

7.0 Public Construction Bond 

 

If the total cost of this Work Order is anticipated to exceed $200,000, the Contractor shall provide a 

public construction bond for the total cost, which bond shall be in a standard City format and issued by 

a company authorized to do business in the State of Florida. The bond must be recorded in the official 

records in and for Palm Beach County, Florida, and a copy of the recorded bond provided to the City 

prior to any work commencing.  

 

8.0 Contractor’s Representations 

 

In order to induce the City to enter into this Work Order, the Contractor makes the following 

representations: 

 

8.1 Contractor has familiarized itself with the nature and extent of the Contract Documents 

including this Work Order, work, site, locality, and all local conditions and laws and regulations that 

in any manner may affect cost, progress, performance or furnishing of the work. 

 

8.2 Contractor has obtained at his/her own expense and carefully studied, or assumes responsibility 

for obtaining and carefully studying, soil investigations, explorations, and test reports which pertain to 

the subsurface conditions at or contiguous to the site or otherwise may affect the cost, progress, 

performance or furnishing of the work as Contractor considers necessary for the performance or 

furnishing of the work at the stated work order price within the Work Order stated time and in 

accordance with the other terms and conditions of the Contract Documents, including specifically the 

provisions of the RFP; and no additional examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, reports, 

studies or similar information or data are or is deemed necessary by Contractor for such purposes. 

 



Page 14 of 15 

 

8.3 Contractor has reviewed and checked all information and data shown or indicated on the 

Contract Documents with respect to existing Underground Facilities at or contiguous to the site and 

assumes responsibility for the accurate location of said Underground Facilities. No additional 

examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, reports, studies or similar information or data in 

respect of said Underground Facilities are or is deemed necessary by the Contractor in order to perform 

and furnish the work under this Work Order price, within the Work Order time and in accordance with 

the other terms and conditions of the Contract Documents. 

 

8.4 Contractor has correlated the results of all such observations, examinations, investigations, 

explorations, tests, reports and studies with the terms and conditions of the Contract Documents. 

 

8.5 Contractor has given the City’s Contract Administrator written notice of all conflicts, errors or 

discrepancies that he or she has discovered in the Contract Documents and the written resolution thereof 

by City or its designee is acceptable to the Contractor. 

 

9.0 Warranty.  The Contractor warrants and guarantees to the City that all services and work 

provided under this Work Order will be in accordance with this Work Order and the other Contract 

Documents. The Contractor warrants that (a) all materials and parts supplied under this Work Order 

shall be free from defects for one (1) year from the final completion of all work (unless a longer 

manufacturer warranty applies); (b) all services and work performed under this Work Order will be free 

from defects for one (1) year from the final completion of all work and the project shall be fully 

operational without unreasonable downtime or failures; and (c) that the services and work will conform 

to the requirements of the Contract Documents. If, at any time prior to the expiration of the one (1) year 

warranty period, the City discovers any failure or breach of the Contractor’s warranties or the 

Contractor discovers any failure or breach of the Contractor’s warranties, the Contractor will, upon 

written notice from City or of its own accord, at the Contractor’s sole cost and expense, promptly 

correct such failure or breach (which corrective action must include, without limitation, any necessary 

removal, disassembly, reinstallation, repair, replacement, reassembly, retesting, and/or re-inspection of 

any part or portion of the work and any other property damaged or affected by such failure, breach, or 

corrective action). The Contractor will remedy any such failure or breach so, to the extent possible, to 

avoid unnecessary disruptions to the operations of City or its systems. In the event the Contractor fails 

to initiate and diligently pursue corrective action within five (5) days of the Contractor’s receipt of the 

City’s notice or the Contractor’s discovery of the same, the City may undertake such corrective action 

at the Contractor’s expense.  

 

10.0        Authorization 

This Work Order is issued pursuant to the Wastewater Collection System Rehabilitation Agreement for 

between the City of Lake Worth Beach and the Contractor, dated _____________, (“Contract” 

hereafter). If there are any conflicts between the terms and conditions of this Work Order and the 

Contract, the terms and conditions of the Contract shall prevail.  

 

  

 

REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

Signature Page Follows  

 

  



Page 15 of 15 

 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have made and executed this Work Order No. 

XXX as of the day and year set forth above.   

 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA 

 

 

      By:  ________________________________ 

      Betty Resch, Mayor or Carmen Y. Davis, City Manager 

ATTEST: 

 

 

By: ______________________________ 

       Melissa Ann Coyne, City Clerk 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND APPROVED FOR FINANCIAL SUFFICIENCY: 

LEGAL SUFFICIENCY:  

 

 

By: _______________________________            By:  ________________________________________ 

       Glen J. Torcivia, City Attorney                Yannick Ngendahayo, Financial Services Director 

 

       

 

    CONTRACTOR:   MILLER PIPELINE, LLC. 

 

 

  

      By:  __DO NOT SIGN – SAMPLE ONLY___ 

[Corporate Seal]       

      Print Name:  ___________________________ 

       

      Title:  _________________________________ 

      

   

 

 

STATE OF ________________) 

COUNTY OF _______________) 

 

 

THE FOREGOING instrument was acknowledged before me by means of •physical presence 

or •online notarization on this ____ day of ______________ 2023, by ________________________, 

as the ________________________ Miller Pipeline, LLC an Indiana Limited Liability Company, who 

is personally known to me or who has produced_________________________ as identification, and 

who did take an oath that he or she is duly authorized to execute the foregoing instrument and bind the 

CONTRACTOR to the same.   

  

____________________________________ 

Notary Public Signature 

Notary Seal: 



STAFF REPORT 
UTILITY MEETING 

 

 

AGENDA DATE: September 26, 2023 DEPARTMENT: Water Utilities 

TITLE: 

Agreement for On-Call Large Pipeline Contractor Services with Amici Engineering Contractors, 
LLC 

 
SUMMARY: 

Amici Engineering Contractors, LLC has a contract with Tampa Bay Water, Contract #2021-
046, to provide on-call services for large pipeline repair. Lake Worth Beach will piggyback this 
contract for the same services.  

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

The city is responsible for the sub-regional partners' 14 miles of large-diameter pipe. This pipe 
carries 8-10 million gallons of sewage daily to the East Central Waste Water Facility (ECR).  The 
absence of an on-call contractor in the event of a large sewage pipe rupture in town can lead to 
dire consequences. Without a readily available professional to address the issue, the release of 
untreated sewage poses significant health and environmental risks. Additionally, the longer the 
pipe remains unrepaired, the greater the potential for property damage and disruptions to daily 
life. An on-call contractor equipped with the expertise and resources to manage such 
emergencies swiftly is essential to mitigate the immediate hazards and prevent long-term harm 
to public health and the environment.  City’s Procurement Policy and Code authorizes the 
purchases of goods and services through “piggybacking” other governmental competitively 
procured Agreements.  The term of this Agreement is consistent with the term of the Tampa Bay 
Water Contract and valid until September 30, 2025. The City will be issuing Work Orders under 
this Agreement on as needed basis.  Depending on the lump sum amount of each work order, 
the work order may be awarded by the City Manager or City Commission in accordance with 
the City’s approval thresholds.   

 
MOTION: 

Move to approve/disapprove the piggyback agreement with Amici Engineering Contractor, LLC 
for on-call large pipeline contractor services.  

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Agreement 



Page 1 of 11

AGREEMENT FOR ON-CALL LARGE PIPELINE CONTRACTOR SERVICES
(Utilizing the Tampa Bay Water Contract No. 2021-046)

THIS AGREEMENT FOR ON-CALL LARGE PIPELINE CONTRACTOR SERVICES (“Agreement”) 
is made as of the  ______________________, by and between the CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, 7 N. 
Dixie Highway, Lake Worth Beach, FL  33460, a municipal corporation organized and existing under the laws 
of the State of Florida, (“CITY”), and AMICI Engineering Contractors, LLC, a Florida Limited Liability 
Company authorized to do business in the State of Florida, located at 28947 SR 54, Wesley Chapel, Florida   
33543 (“CONTRACTOR”).

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the CITY’s Water Utility Department is in need of a company to provide on-call large pipeline 
contractor services; and,

WHEREAS, the CITY’s Procurement Policy and Code authorizes the purchases of goods and services 
through “piggybacking” other governmental competitively procured Agreements; and 

WHEREAS, on August 16, 2021, Tampa Bay Water, a Regional Water Supply Authority competitively 
awarded the Agreement for On-Call Large Pipeline Contractor Services, Contract # 2021-046 based on Tampa 
Bay Water’s Invitation To Bid (ITB #2021-004, 2021-045, 2021-046 & 2021-047) to the CONTRACTOR 
(“Tampa Bay Water Contract”) valid until September 30, 2025; and

WHEREAS, the Tampa Bay Water Contract authorizes the CONTRACTOR to extend the terms and 
conditions of the Tampa Bay Water Contract to other government entities at the discretion of the 
CONTRACTOR; and

WHEREAS, the CITY has requested and the CONTRACTOR has agreed to extend the terms and 
conditions of the Tampa Bay Water Contract to the CITY; and

WHEREAS, the CITY has reviewed the unit prices from the Tampa Bay Water Contract, which unit prices 
are set forth as Exhibit “A” attached hereto, and determined that the unit prices are competitive and will result 
in the best value to the CITY; and

WHEREAS, the CITY finds entering this Agreement with the CONTRACTOR serves a valid public 
purpose.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises set forth herein, the receipt and 
sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto agree as follows:

1. Recitals. The parties agree that the recitals set forth above are true and correct and are fully incorporated 
herein by reference.

2. Contract.  The Tampa Bay Water Contract is hereby incorporated by reference into and expressly made a 
part of this Agreement as is set forth at length herein. The CITY shall have all rights and obligations of Tampa 
Bay Water under the Tampa Bay Water Contract except as specifically modified herein. The term of this 
Agreement shall be consistent with the term of the Tampa Bay Water Contract and valid until September 30, 
2025 unless earlier terminated in accordance with the Agreement terms. 



Page 2 of 11 
 

3.   Not to Exceed Amount. While the CONTRACTOR is not guaranteed that the CITY will utilize this 
Agreement for any services, if the CITY utilizes this Agreement for services, the not to exceed amount for 
this Agreement shall be $500,000 each fiscal year.  
 
4.   Work Orders. When the CITY identifies a need for the CONTRACTOR’s services, the CITY will 
request a proposal from the CONTRACTOR to provide the services requested at the unit prices set forth in 
Exhibit “A”. The CITY will provide the CONTRACTOR with plans and/or specifications in order for the 
CONTRACTOR to develop its proposal. The CONTRACTOR’s proposal shall be submitted in the format 
of the sample work order, attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit “B” along with a copy of the 
CONTRACTOR’s proposal. Upon receipt of the CONTRACTOR’s proposed work order and proposal, the 
CITY shall decide in its sole discretion whether to award the work order to the CONTRACTOR. Depending 
on the lump sum amount of each work order, the work order may be awarded by the City Manager, if within 
their purchasing authority (currently not to exceed $50,000), or the City Commission. If the work order is 
approved by the CITY, the CONTRACTOR shall commence the identified services upon the CITY’s 
approval of the work order for the services and issuance of a notice to proceed. The CITY reserves the right 
to reject any and all proposals submitted by the CONTRACTOR. A CITY-approved work order shall 
include (by reference) the plans and/or specifications provided by the CITY to the CONTRACTOR. 
 
5. Conflict of Terms and Conditions.  Conflicts between documents that make up this Agreement shall be 
resolved in the following order of precedence: 

 a. This Agreement (including its exhibits);  
 b. The Tampa Bay Water Contract; and, 
 c. The CITY issued Work Order. 
 

6. Compensation to CONTRACTOR.  CONTRACTOR shall submit invoices to the CITY for review and 
approval by the CITY’s representative, indicating that all goods and services have been provided and rendered 
in conformity with this Agreement and then will be sent to the Finance Department for payment.  Invoices will 
normally be paid within thirty (30) days following the CITY representative’s approval. CONTRACTOR waives 
consequential or incidental damages for claims, disputes or other matters in question arising out of or relating 
to this Agreement.  In order for both parties herein to close their books and records, CONTRACTOR will 
clearly state “final invoice” on the CONTRACTOR’s final/last billing to the CITY. This certifies that all 
services have been properly performed and all charges have been invoiced to the CITY.  Since this account will 
thereupon be closed, any and other further charges if not properly included in this final invoice are waived by 
the CONTRACTOR. The CITY will not be liable for any invoice from the CONTRACTOR submitted thirty 
(30) days after the provision of all services. 
 
7.     Miscellaneous Provisions.   
 
A. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Florida.  Any and all legal action necessary 

to enforce this Agreement will be held exclusively in Palm Beach County, Florida.  No remedy herein 
conferred upon any party is intended to be exclusive of any other remedy, and each and every such remedy 
shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to every other remedy given hereunder or now or hereafter 
existing at law or in equity or by statute or otherwise.  No single or partial exercise by any party of any 
right, power, or remedy hereunder shall preclude any other or further exercise thereof.   
 

B. Except for any obligation of the CONTRACTOR to indemnify the CITY, if any legal action or other 
proceeding is brought for the enforcement of this Agreement, or because of an alleged dispute, breach, 
default or misrepresentation in connection with any provisions of this Agreement, each party shall be liable 
and responsible for their own attorney’s fees incurred in that enforcement action, dispute, breach, default 
or misrepresentation. FURTHER, TO ENCOURAGE PROMPT AND EQUITABLE RESOLUTION OF 



Page 3 of 11 
 

ANY LITIGATION, EACH PARTY HEREBY WAIVES ITS RIGHTS TO A TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY 
LITIGATION RELATED TO THIS AGREEMENT. 
 

C. If any term or provision of this Agreement, or the application thereof to any person or circumstances shall, 
to any extent, be held invalid or unenforceable, to remainder of this Agreement, or the application of such 
terms or provision, to persons or circumstances other than those as to which it is held invalid or 
unenforceable, shall not be affected, and every other term and provision of this Agreement shall be deemed 
valid and enforceable to the extent permitted by law.   
 

D. All notices required in this Agreement shall be sent by certified mail, return receipt requested or by 
nationally recognized overnight courier, and sent to the addresses appearing on the first page of this 
Agreement.   
 

E. The CITY and the CONTRACTOR agree that this Agreement (and the other documents described herein) 
sets forth the entire Agreement between the parties, and that there are no promises or understandings other 
than those stated herein.  None of the provisions, terms and conditions contained in this Agreement may be 
added to, modified, superseded or otherwise altered, except by written instrument executed by the parties 
hereto.  Any provision of this Agreement which is of a continuing nature or imposes an obligation which 
extends beyond the term of this Agreement shall survive its expiration or earlier termination.  

 
F. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an 

original, and will become effective and binding upon the parties as of the effective date at such time as 
all the signatories hereto have signed a counterpart of this Agreement. This Agreement may be executed 
electronically.  
 

G. This Agreement shall not be construed more strongly against either party regardless of who was more 
responsible for its preparation. 
 

H. In accordance with Palm Beach County ordinance number 2011-009, the CONTRACTOR 
acknowledges that this Agreement may be subject to investigation and/or audit by the Palm Beach 
County Inspector General.  The CONTRACTOR has reviewed Palm Beach County ordinance number 
2011-009 and is aware of its rights and/or obligations under such ordinance. 

 
I. PUBLIC RECORDS.  The CONTRACTOR shall comply with Florida’s Public Records Act, Chapter 

119, Florida Statutes, and, if determined to be acting on behalf of the CITY as provided under section 
119.011(2), Florida Statutes, specifically agrees to: 
 
1. Keep and maintain public records required by the CITY to perform the service. 
 

2. Upon request from the CITY’s custodian of public records or designee, provide the CITY with 
a copy of the requested records or allow the records to be inspected or copied within a reasonable time 
at a cost that does not exceed the cost provided in Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, or as otherwise 
provided by law. 

 
3. Ensure that public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records 
disclosure requirements are not disclosed except as authorized by law for the duration of this Agreement 
and following completion of this Agreement if the CONTRACTOR does not transfer the records to the 
CITY. 

 



Page 4 of 11 
 

4. Upon completion of this Agreement, transfer, at no cost, to the CITY all public records in 
possession of the CONTRACTOR or keep and maintain public records required by the CITY to 
perform the service. If the CONTRACTOR transfers all public records to the CITY upon completion 
of the Agreement, the CONTRACTOR shall destroy any duplicate public records that are exempt or 
confidential and exempt from public records disclosure requirements. If the CONTRACTOR keeps and 
maintains public records upon completion of the Agreement, the CONTRACTOR shall meet all 
applicable requirements for retaining public records. All records stored electronically must be provided 
to the CITY, upon request from the CITY’s custodian of public records or designee, in a format that is 
compatible with the information technology systems of the CITY.  
 
IF THE CONTRACTOR HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE 
APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA STATUTES, TO THE 
CONTRACTOR'S DUTY TO PROVIDE PUBLIC RECORDS RELATING 
TO THIS AGREEMENT, PLEASE CONTACT THE CUSTODIAN OF 
PUBLIC RECORDS OR DESIGNEE AT THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH 
BEACH, ATTN:  CITY CLERK, AT (561) 586-1662, CITY 
CLERK@LAKEWORTHBEACHFL.GOV, 7 N. DIXIE HIGHWAY, 
LAKE WORTH BEACH, FL 33460. 

J. SCRUTINIZED COMPANIES.   

1. CONTRACTOR certifies that it and its subcontractors are not on the Scrutinized Companies 
that Boycott Israel List and are not engaged in the boycott of Israel.  Pursuant to section 287.135, 
Florida Statutes, the CITY may immediately terminate this Agreement at its sole option if the 
CONTRACTOR or any of its subcontractors are found to have submitted a false certification; or if the 
CONTRACTOR or any of its subcontractors, are placed on the Scrutinized Companies that Boycott 
Israel List or is engaged in the boycott of Israel during the term of this Agreement. 

2. If this Agreement is for one million dollars or more, the CONTRACTOR certifies that it and 
its subcontractors are also not on the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in Sudan List, Scrutinized 
Companies with Activities in the Iran Petroleum Energy Sector List, or engaged in business operations 
in Cuba or Syria as identified in Section 287.135, Florida Statutes.  Pursuant to Section 287.135, the 
CITY may immediately terminate this Agreement at its sole option if the CONTRACTOR, or any of 
its subcontractors are found to have submitted a false certification; or if the CONTRACTOR or any of 
its subcontractors are placed on the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in Sudan List, or Scrutinized 
Companies with Activities in the Iran Petroleum Energy Sector List, or are or have been engaged with 
business operations in Cuba or Syria during the term of this Agreement. 

3. The CONTRACTOR agrees to observe the above requirements for applicable subcontracts 
entered into for the performance of work under this Agreement. 

4. The CONTRACTOR agrees that the certifications in this section shall be effective and relied 
upon by the CITY for the term of this Agreement, including any and all renewals. 

5. The CONTRACTOR agrees that if it or any of its subcontractors’ status changes in regards to 
any certification herein, the CONTRACTOR shall immediately notify the CITY of the same. 

6. As provided in Subsection 287.135(8), Florida Statutes, if federal law ceases to authorize the 
above-stated contracting prohibitions then they shall become inoperative. 



Page 5 of 11 
 

L. E-VERIFY.   

Pursuant to Section 448.095(2), Florida Statutes, the CONTRACTOR shall: 

1. Register with and use the E-Verify system to verify the work authorization status of all newly hired 
employees and require all subcontractors (providing services or receiving funding under this Agreement) 
to register with and use the E-Verify system to verify the work authorization status of all the subcontractors’ 
newly hired employees; 
2. Secure an affidavit from all subcontractors (providing services or receiving funding under this 
Agreement) stating that the subcontractor does not employ, Agreement with, or subcontract with an 
“unauthorized alien” as defined in Section 448.095(1)(k), Florida Statutes; 
3. Maintain copies of all subcontractor affidavits for the duration of this Agreement and provide the 
same to the CITY upon request; 
4. Comply fully, and ensure all of its subcontractors comply fully, with Section 448.095, Florida 
Statutes; 
5. Be aware that a violation of Section 448.09, Florida Statutes (Unauthorized aliens; employment 
prohibited) shall be grounds for termination of this Agreement; and, 
6. Be aware that if the CITY terminates this Agreement under Section 448.095(2)(c), Florida Statutes, 
CONTRACTOR may not be awarded a Agreement for at least 1 year after the date on which the Agreement 
is terminated and will be liable for any additional costs incurred by the CITY as a result of the termination 
of the Agreement.   
 
 
 

REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS 

 
  



Page 6 of 11

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the CITY and CONTRACTOR hereto have made and executed this
Agreement for On Call Large Pipeline Contractor Services as of the day and year first above written.

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA

By:  ________________________________
Betty Resch, Mayor

ATTEST:

By: ______________________________
Melissa Ann Coyne, City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND APPROVED FOR FINANCIAL SUFFICIENCY:
LEGAL SUFFICIENCY:

By: _______________________________            By: ________________________________________
Glen J. Torcivia, City Attorney Yannick Ngendahayo, Financial Services Director

CONTRACTOR: AMICI ENGINEERING CONTRACTORS, LLC.

By:  __________________________________
[Corporate Seal]

Print Name:  ___________________________

Title:  _____________________________________

STATE OF _____________________
CITY OF _______________________

THE FOREGOING instrument was acknowledged before me by means of • physical presence or • online 
notarization on this ____ day of ______________ 2023, by ________________________, as the 
________________________ [title] of Amici Engineering Contractors, LLC., A Florida Limited Liability 
Company, who is personally known to me or who has produced_________________________ as 
identification, and who did take an oath that he or she is duly authorized to execute the foregoing instrument 
and bind the CONTRACTOR to the same.  

____________________________________
Notary Public Signature
Notary Seal:

NGINEERING CONTRAC

_______________________________ _____________

Juan Barreneche

Managing Member

Florida
Miami

17th August Juan Barreneche
Managing Member

Personally Known



Page 7 of 11 
 

EXHIBIT A 
Unit Price Schedule from Tampa Bay Water Contract 

 
 

 
 
  



Page 8 of 11 
 

                                                              EXHIBIT “B” 

SAMPLE WORK ORDER 
AGREEMENT FOR ON CALL LARGE PIPELINE CONTRACTOR SERVICES 

 
 

THIS WORK ORDER for On Call Large Pipeline Contractor Services (“Work Order” 
hereafter) is made on the ___________________, between the City of Lake Worth Beach, a Florida 
municipal corporation located at 7 North Dixie Highway, Lake Worth, Florida 33460 (“City” hereafter) 
and AMICI Engineering Contractor, LLC., a Florida limited liability company (“Contractor” 
hereafter). 

 
1.0 Project Description: 

The City desires the Contractor to provide all goods, services, materials and equipment as identified 
herein related to the On Call Large Pipeline Contractor Services project generally described as: 
____________________________________________________  (the “Project”). The Project is more 
specifically described in the plans prepared by ______________________, dated ____________, and 
which are incorporated herein by reference.  

 
2.0 Scope 

Under this Work Order, the Contractor will provide the City of Lake Worth Beach with construction 
services for the Project as specified in the Contractor’s proposal attached hereto and incorporated 
herein as Exhibit “1”.    
 
3.0 Schedule and Liquidated Damages 

Substantial completion of all services and work under this Work Order shall be within ____ calendar 
days from the Effective Date of this Work Order. Final completion of all services and work (and all 
punch-list items (if any)) under this Work Order shall be within ___  calendar days from the Effective 
Date of this Work Order. The Effective Date of this Work Order is the date following the parties’ 
execution of this Work Order and the City’s delivery of a Notice to Proceed to the Contractor via e-
mail, facsimile or other form of delivery as documented by the City. Substantial completion occurs 
when the services and work has progressed to the point where, in the opinion of the City, the work is 
sufficiently complete in accordance with the Contract Documents and this Work Order, so that the 
Project can be utilized for the purposes for which it is intended. Final completion occurs when all 
services and work (including punch-list items) has been completed and the project becomes fully 
operational and accepted by the City. 

 
Liquidated Damages. The City and Contractor recognize that time is of the essence under this 
Work Order and the Contract Documents, and that the City will suffer financial loss if the 
services and work described in this Work Order and the Contract Documents are not completed 
within the times specified in this Work Order. The City and Contractor recognize, agree and 
acknowledge that it would be impractical and extremely difficult to ascertain and fix the actual 
damages that the City would suffer in the event Contractor neglects, refuses, or otherwise fails to 
complete the services and work within the time specified. Accordingly, instead of requiring any 
such proof, the City and Contractor agree that as liquidated damages for delay (but not as a 
penalty) Contractor shall pay the City ____ hundred dollars ($_________.00) for each day that 
expires after the time specified in this Work Order.   

 



Page 9 of 11

4.0 Compensation and Direct Purchases

This Work Order is issued for a lump sum, not to exceed amount of $______________________ 
(_____________________). The attached proposal identifies all costs and expenses included in the 
lump sum, not to exceed amount.

The following Direct Purchases are to be made under this Work Order by the City: 
_________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________
_______________.

5.0 Project Manager

The Project Manager for the Contractor is __________________________, 
phone:___________________; email: ____________________; and, the Project Manager for the City 
is ______________________________, phone:_________________________________; 
email:_______________________.

6.0 Progress Meetings

The Contractor shall schedule periodic progress review meetings with the City Project Manager as 
necessary but every 30 days as a minimum.

7.0 Contractor’s Representations

In order to induce the City to enter into this Work Order, the Contractor makes the following 
representations:

7.1 Contractor has familiarized itself with the nature and extent of the Contract Documents 
including this Work Order, work, site, locality, and all local conditions and laws and regulations that 
in any manner may affect cost, progress, performance or furnishing of the work.

7.2 Contractor has obtained at his/her own expense and carefully studied, or assumes responsibility 
for obtaining and carefully studying, soil investigations, explorations, and test reports which pertain to 
the subsurface conditions at or contiguous to the site or otherwise may affect the cost, progress, 
performance or furnishing of the work as Contractor considers necessary for the performance or 
furnishing of the work at the stated work order price within the Work Order stated time and in 
accordance with the other terms and conditions of the Contract Documents, including specifically the 
provisions of the RFP; and no additional examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, reports, 
studies or similar information or data are or is deemed necessary by Contractor for such purposes.

7.3 Contractor has reviewed and checked all information and data shown or indicated on the 
Contract Documents with respect to existing Underground Facilities at or contiguous to the site and 
assumes responsibility for the accurate location of said Underground Facilities. No additional 
examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, reports, studies or similar information or data in 
respect of said Underground Facilities are or is deemed necessary by the Contractor in order to perform 
and furnish the work under this Work Order price, within the Work Order time and in accordance with 
the other terms and conditions of the Contract Documents.

7.4 Contractor has correlated the results of all such observations, examinations, investigations, 

Juan Barreneche
954-650-4699 juanb@amiciec.com



Page 10 of 11 
 

explorations, tests, reports and studies with the terms and conditions of the Contract Documents. 
 
7.5 Contractor has given the City’s Contract Administrator written notice of all conflicts, errors or 
discrepancies that he or she has discovered in the Contract Documents and the written resolution thereof 
by City or its designee is acceptable to the Contractor. 
 
8.0 Warranty.  The Contractor warrants and guarantees to the City that all services and work 
provided under this Work Order will be in accordance with this Work Order and the other Contract 
Documents. The Contractor warrants that (a) all materials and parts supplied under this Work Order 
shall be free from defects for one (1) year from the final completion of all work (unless a longer 
manufacturer warranty applies); (b) all services and work performed under this Work Order will be free 
from defects for one (1) year from the final completion of all work and the project shall be fully 
operational without unreasonable downtime or failures; and (c) that the services and work will conform 
to the requirements of the Contract Documents. If, at any time prior to the expiration of the one (1) year 
warranty period, the City discovers any failure or breach of the Contractor’s warranties or the 
Contractor discovers any failure or breach of the Contractor’s warranties, the Contractor will, upon 
written notice from City or of its own accord, at the Contractor’s sole cost and expense, promptly 
correct such failure or breach (which corrective action must include, without limitation, any necessary 
removal, disassembly, reinstallation, repair, replacement, reassembly, retesting, and/or re-inspection of 
any part or portion of the work and any other property damaged or affected by such failure, breach, or 
corrective action). The Contractor will remedy any such failure or breach so, to the extent possible, to 
avoid unnecessary disruptions to the operations of City or its systems. In the event the Contractor fails 
to initiate and diligently pursue corrective action within five (5) days of the Contractor’s receipt of the 
City’s notice or the Contractor’s discovery of the same, the City may undertake such corrective action 
at the Contractor’s expense.  

 
9.0 Authorization 
This Work Order is issued pursuant to the On Call Large Pipeline Contractor Services Contract for 
between the City of Lake Worth Beach and the Contractor, dated _____________, (“Contract” 
hereafter). If there are any conflicts between the terms and conditions of this Work Order and the 
Contract, the terms and conditions of the Contract shall prevail.  
 
  
 

REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 

Signature Page Follows  
 

  



Page 11 of 11 
 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have made and executed this Work Order No. 
XX as of the day and year set forth above.   

 
CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA 

 
 
      By:  ________________________________ 
               Betty Resch, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
By: ______________________________ 
       Melissa Ann Coyne, City Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND APPROVED FOR FINANCIAL SUFFICIENCY: 
LEGAL SUFFICIENCY:  
 
 
By: _______________________________            By:  ________________________________________ 
       Glen J. Torcivia, City Attorney                Yannick Ngendahayo, Financial Services Director 
 
       
 
    Contractor:   AMICI Engineering Contractors, LLC 
 
      By: ____[Do Not Sign – Sample]__________ 
      Name:  
[Corporate Seal]   Title: 
 
 
STATE OF ________________) 
COUNTY OF _______________) 
 
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ________ day of ________, 20__, 
by___________________, as ___________________ of Amici Engineering Contractors, LLC.,, a 
Florida company, and who is personally known to me or who has produced the following 
_______________________________ as identification. 
 
 
__________________________ 
Notary Public 
 



















































































































































STAFF REPORT 
UTILITY MEETING 

 

 
  

AGENDA DATE: September 26, 2023 DEPARTMENT: Water Utilities 

TITLE: 

Purchase Order with PSI Technologies, Inc. for a Wilo Sewage Pump for the Regional Master Pump 
Station  

 
SUMMARY: 

The Purchase Order with PSI Technologies Inc. authorizes purchasing a Wilo Sewage Pump for the 
Water Utilities Department at a cost not exceeding $251,100.00. 

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

The Sewer Pumping Division of the Water Utilities Department has the important responsibility of 
maintaining and supervising the Regional Master Lift Station. This lift station is critical in ensuring the 
proper functioning of the Regional Sewer Infrastructure by moving untreated sewage through a 14-mile 
force main to the East Central Wastewater Facility, managing a daily volume of approximately 8 million 
gallons of sewage. 

To ensure the lift station's continued reliability, the Sewer Pumping Division has decided to purchase a 
new sewage pump from PSI Technologies Inc., the sole supplier of the pumps needed for the original 
design of the Master Pump Station. The City’s Procurement Code, section 2-112 (e) and City 
Procurement Policy authorize a single source procurement without competition if the single source is the 
only practical source or in the best interest of the City. The acquisition is subject to a procurement limit 
of $251,100.00. 

 
MOTION: 

Move to approve/disapprove Purchase Order with PSI Technologies Inc. for a Wilo Sewage Pump for 
the Water Utilities Department for a cost not to exceed $251,100.00. 

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Fiscal Impact Analysis 
Quote 
Sole Source Documentation  
 



FISCAL IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Five-Year Summary of Fiscal Impact: 

 
Fiscal Years 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 
Inflows 
 Current Appropriation 0 0 0 0 0 
 Program Income 0 0 0 0 0 
 Grants 0 0 0 0 0 
 In-Kind 0 0 0 0 0 
 
Outflows 
 Current Appropriation $251,100.00 0 0 0 0  
 Operating  0 0 0 0 0 
 Capital 0 0 0 0 0 

 
Net Fiscal Impact 0 0 0 0 0 

 
No. of Addn’l Full-Time 
Employee Positions 0 0 0 0 0 
 
 

Contract Award - Existing Appropriation 

  Expenditure 

Department  Sewer  

Division Pumping Regional 

GL Description Capital Improvement  

GL Account Number 426-7490-535.63-15  

Project Number RS2301 

Requested Funds  $250,000.00 

 

Contract Award - Existing Appropriation 

  Expenditure 

Department  Sewer  

Division Pumping Regional 

GL Description Capital Improvement  

GL Account Number 426-7490-535.63-15  

Project Number RS2202 

Requested Funds  $1,100.00 

 



‘Quality Products, Professionally Applied, Exceptional Service and Support’ 

 

PSI Technologies Inc 
3520 Investment Lane Unit #3 
Riviera Beach, Florida 33404 

Phone: 561-660-0022   Email: tom@psi-techinc.com 
 

 Master Lift Station Pump (SS Impeller)  
Quotation 

Company: City of Lake Worth Date: 08-18-2023 
Contact: Judy Love Quote#: TK0815-2023 
Street: 1820 2nd Ave. North Quote Valid: 30 Days 
CSZ: Lake Worth Beach, FL 33460 Terms: 30 Days 
Phone: (561) 586-1719 Shipping: Included 
Email: jlove@lakeworthbeachfl.gov Prepared By: Thomas Kalinski 

 

Quantity Description Unit Price Total Price 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1 

WILO pump model # FA30.78D-740/FKT 57-8/76GEx-E3. 
• Impeller diameter: 740.00 mm – 12” discharge  
• duty point - volume flow Q: 5000 - head H: 176 
• discharge connection pump: DN300 PN10 
• material hydraulic casing: GGG 50 (0.7050) 
• material impeller: 1.4517 
• material casing wear ring: 1.4462/1.4470 
• material impeller ring: 1.4308 
• motor description: FKT 57-8/76GEx-E3 
• efficiency class: IE3 based on IEC 60034-30 - approval: FM 
• voltage V: 460 ~3 - rated current: 475.00 a - starting current: 2,710.00 a  
• rated power: 280.00 KW - frequency: 60 Hz 
• full load speed: 894 RPM 
• type of starting: direct - parallel 
• service factor: 1.15 
• max. power input: 300.0 KW 
• monitoring windings internal: 3 BI-130°+3 BI-140°C 
• mon.motor/sealing chamber int.: motor chamber 
• monitoring terminal chamber: terminal chamber 
• monitoring leakage chamber: float switch for leakage chamb 
• material motor casing parts: GG 25 (0.6025) material sealing casing: GG 

25 (0.6025) 
• material motor shaft: 1.7225 
• cable length: 15.0 m protection hose length: 0.0 m 
• cable 1: number: 2 
• power supply 1: NSSHÖU-J RU 3x95/50 
• cable4: number:  
• 1 control cable: NSSHÖU-J RU 7x1,5 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

$251,100.00 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

$251,100.00 

 Lead Time = 36 - 40 Weeks    
  Delivery Included   
 Total Cost   $251,100.00 

 

Accepted By / Date: _________________________________________________ 



PSI TECHNOLOGIES INC - STANDARD TERMS OF SALE - PARTS & SERVICE 
 
 

I. Applicable Terms. These terms govern the purchase and sale of the equipment and related services, if any (collectively, "Equipment"), referred 
to in Seller's purchase order, quotation, proposal or acknowledgment, as the case may be ("Seller's Documentation"). Whether these terms are 
included in an offer or an acceptance by Seller, such offer or acceptance is conditioned on Buyer's assent to these terms. Seller rejects all 
additional or different terms in any of Buyer's forms or documents. 

 
2. Payment. Buyer shall pay Seller the full purchase price as set forth in Seller's Documentation. Unless Seller' s Documentation provides 

otherwise, freight, storage, insurance and all taxes, duties or other governmental charges relating to the Equipment shall be paid by Buyer. If 
Seller is required to pay any such charges, Buyer shall immediately reimburse Seller. All payments are due within 30 days after receipt of 
invoice, unless other terms are agreed upon by both parties. Buyer shall be charged the lower of 1 ½% interest per month or the maximum 
legal rate on all amounts not received by the due date and shall pay all of Seller's reasonable costs (including attorneys ' fees) of collecting 
amounts due but unpaid. All orders are subject to credit approval. 

 
3. Delivery. Delivery of the Equipment shall be in material compliance with the schedule in Seller's Documentation. Unless Seller' s 

Documentation provides otherwise, Delivery terms are F.O.B. Prepaid and Add Destination. 
 

4. Ownership of Materials. All devices, designs (including drawings, plans and specifications), estimates, prices, notes, electronic data and 
other documents or information prepared or disclosed by Seller, and all related intellectual property rights, shall remain Seller’s property. 
Seller grants Buyer a non-exclusive, non-transferable license to use any such material solely for Buyer' s use of the Equipment. Buyer shall 
not disclose any such material to third parties without Seller's prior written consent. 

 
5. Changes. Seller shall not implement any changes in the scope of work described in Seller's Documentation unless Buyer and Seller agree in 

writing to the details of the change and any resulting price, schedule or other contractual modifications. This includes any changes necessitated 
by a change in applicable law occurring after the effective date of any contract including these terms. 

 
6. Warranty. Subject to the following sentence, "Supplier warrants to Purchaser that the Equipment shall materially conform to the description in 

Supplier's RFP and shall be free from defects in material and workmanship. Supplier shall have no other liability to Purchaser under warranty, 
tort or any other legal theory. If Purchaser gives Supplier prompt written notice of breach of this warranty within ninety days (90) on electrical 
supplies, one (1) year on mechanical supplies from delivery, (the "Warranty Period"). Supplier shall, at its sole option and as Purchaser's sole 
remedy, repair or replace the subject parts or refund the purchase price thereof If Supplier determines that any claimed breach is not, in fact, 
covered by this warranty, Purchaser shall pay Supplier its then customary charges for any repair or replacement made by Supplier and there 
shall be a thirty-five percent (35%) re-stocking charge. Supplier's warranty is conditioned on Purchaser's (a) operating and maintaining the 
Equipment in accordance with Supplier's instructions, (b) not making any unauthorized repairs or alterations, and (c) not being in default of any 
payment obligation to Supplier. Supplier's warranty does not cover damage caused by chemical action or abrasive material, misuse or improper 
installation.  THEWARRANTIES SET FORTH IN THIS SECTION ARE SUPPLIER'S SOLE AND EXCLUSIVE WARRANTIES AND 
ARE SUBJECT TO THE LIMITATION OF LIABILITY BELOW. SUPPLIER MAKES NO OTHER WARRANTIES OF ANY KIND, 
EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION, ANY WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR 
PURPOSE." 

 
7. Indemnity. Seller shall indemnify, defend and hold Buyer harmless from any claim, cause of action or liability incurred by Buyer as a result of 

third party claims for personal injury, death or damage to tangible property, to the extent caused by Seller's negligence. Seller shall have the 
sole authority to direct the defense of and settle any indemnified claim. Seller ' s indemnification is conditioned on Buyer (a) promptly, within 
the Warranty Period, notifying Seller of any claim, and (b) providing reasonable cooperation in the defense of any claim. 

 
8. Force Majeure. Neither Seller nor Buyer shall have any liability for any breach (except for breach of payment obligations) caused by 

extreme weather or other act of God, strike or other labor shortage or disturbance, fire, accident, war or civil disturbance, delay of carriers, 
failure of normal sources of supply, act of government or any other cause beyond such party's reasonable control. 

 
9. Cancellation. If Buyer cancels or suspends its order for any reason other than Seller's breach, Buyer shall promptly pay Seller for work 

performed prior to cancellation or suspension and any other direct costs incurred by Seller as a result of such cancellation or suspension. 
Certain Products and Materials are “Made to Order” therefore cancellation will not be allowed, and Buyer takes full responsibility of total 
costs of such items if cancelled 

 
10. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY. NOTWITHSTANDING ANYTHING ELSE TO THE CONTRARY, SELLER SHALL NOT BE 

LIABLE FOR ANY CONSEQUENTIAL, INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL, PUNITIVE OR OTHER INDIRECT DAMAGES, AND SELLER'S 
TOTAL LIABILITY ARISING AT ANY TIME FROM THE SALE OR USE OF THE EQUIPMENT SHALL NOT EXCEED THE PURCHASE 
PRICE PAID FOR THE EQUIPMENT. THESE LIMITATIONS APPLY WHETHER THE LIABILITY IS BASED ON CONTRACT, TORT, 
STRICT LIABILITY OR ANY OTHER THEORY. 

 
11. Miscellaneous. If these terms are issued in connection with a government contract, they shall be deemed to include those federal acquisition 

regulations that are required by law to be included. These terms, together with any quotation, purchase order or acknowledgement issued or 
signed by the Seller, comprise the complete and exclusive statement of the agreement between the parties (the "Agreement") and supersede any 
terms contained in Buyer's documents, unless separately signed by Seller. No part of the Agreement may be changed or cancelled except by a 
written document signed by Seller and Buyer. No course of dealing or performance, usage of trade or failure to enforce any term shall be used 
to modify the Agreement. If any of these terms is unenforceable, such term shall be limited only to the extent necessary to make it enforceable, 
and all other terms shall remain in full force and effect. Buyer may not assign or permit any other transfer of the Agreement without Seller's 
prior written consent. The Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Florida without regard to its conflict of law provisions. 

 
 

PSI Technologies Inc - 3520 Investment Lane Unit #3 Riviera Beach Florida 33404  (305) 998-1371 



WILO USA LLC T + 888-945-6872 
9550 W. Higgins Rd. #300 F + 888-945-6873 

Rosemont, IL  60018 www.wilo-usa.com 

WILO USA LLC, 9550 W. Higgins Rd. #300, Rosemont, IL 60018 

Wilo USA LLC, 86 Genesis Parkway, Thomasville, GA 31792 

06/21/2023

June 21, 2023

Judy Love - City of Lake Worth Beach

1820 2nd Ave North

Lake Worth Beach, Fl 33460

561-586-1716

Attn: Judy Love

Subject:  Exclusive Distributor 

Dear Mrs Love:

Wilo USA LLC, a subsidiary of Wilo SE, is the sole provider in the United States of pumps and mixers 
manufactured under the Wilo brand.   

This letter confirms that PSI Technologies, Inc. is our exclusive sales distributor for Wilo USA LLC. 
[Previously known as EMU until purchased by Wilo AG in 2003] water & wastewater pump and mixer 
sales for your served area as of October 1, 2018. This responsibility includes purchase of new 
products, OEM repair parts, repairs and maintenance. 

No other distributor is authorized to sell products, repair/replacement parts, maintenance, 
repair/replacement services, field services and technical support for Wilo-USA in your served area. 

Your contact is: 

PSI Technologies, Inc. 

Address 3520 Investment Lane, Unit #3 

Phone 305-998-1371 

Email eric@psi-tech.ccom  

If you have questions regarding this issue, please contact Harold Adams at Harold.adams@wilo-
usa.com or the writer below. 

Sincerely, 
Joseph Jackson 

Water Management 

Director of Sales 

Wilo USA LLC 

CC: Harold Adams, SE Sales Manager 
Stacy Curti 

mailto:eric@psi-tech.ccom
mailto:Harold.adams@wilo-usa.com
mailto:Harold.adams@wilo-usa.com

	Top
	A.	08/29 U minutes
	DRAFT 082923 U minutes

	A.	Amendment 1 to Agreement with FDEP
	FDEP Amendment Staff Report
	Amendment 1

	B.	Fiscal Year 2024 Resilient Florida Additional Funding Request for the Eden Place Sea Level Rise Mitigation Request
	FY 2024 Resilient Florida Grant - Eden Place Staff Report
	Funding Request
	Cost Estimate

	C.	Fiscal Year 2024 Resilient Florida Grant Program Application for the 9th Avenue South Pump Station Project
	FY 2024 Resilient Florida Grant - 9th Avenue South Pump Station Project Staff Report
	Application

	D.	Fiscal Year 2024 Resilient Florida Grant Program Application for the Parrot Cove Stormwater Improvements Project
	FY 2024 Resilient Florida Grant - Parrot Cove Stormwater Improvements Project Staff Report
	Application

	A.	Purchased Power Cost Adjustment Update (PCA)
	PCA Staff Report
	Resolution 92-2021
	Dec 1 PCA Option 1
	Dec 1 PCA Option 2
	Dec 1 PCA Option 3
	PCA revenues vs. expenses
	PCA Update 12.21 through 7.23

	B.	Resolution No. 31-2023 – Establishment of Rate Stabilization Fund
	Rate Stabilization Fund Staff Report
	Resolution 31-2023

	A.	Resolution No. 43-2023 - Establish the Electric Utility Rates for FY 2024
	Electric Utility Rates Staff Report
	Resolution 43-2023
	Rate Schedule 6-23
	Rate Schedule 10-23
	Comparison of Exisiting to Proposed Rates

	B.	Resolution No. 44-2023  - Establish the rates for the Water System for Fiscal Year 2024
	Water Rates Staff Report
	Resolution 44-2023

	C.	Resolution No. 45-2023 - Establish the Sub-regional Sewer Rate for FY 2024
	Subregional Sewer Rate Staff Report
	Resolution 45-2023

	D.	Resolution No. 46-2023 - Establish Local Sewer Rates for FY 2024
	Local Sewer Rate Staff Report
	Resolution 46-2023

	E.	Agreement with Encop, Inc. for renovations at the 1900 2nd Avenue North Building
	Encop Staff Report
	Agreement
	Bid Tab

	F.	Ratification of Purchases from NuCAT Corporation under Work Orders #61 thru #73.
	NuCAT Staff Report
	NuCAT Work Orders #61-73
	Exception to Procurement Work Orders #61-73

	G.	Transmission Operator Alliance Agreement
	Alliance Agreement Staff Report
	Agreement

	H.	Approval of contracts for the Electric Utility System Hardening and Reliability Improvement Program
	SHRIP Staff Report
	LE Myers Contract
	Michels Power Contract
	Wilco Contract
	Hooper Corporation Contract
	IFB#23-116 Bid Tab

	I.	Approval of contracts to perform electrical equipment inspection, testing, repair and maintenance
	Electrical Equipment Staff Report
	NuCAT Agreement
	Teamwork Net Agreement
	Powerserve Technologies Agreement
	Bid Tab

	J.	Agreement with Bermex, Inc. for the reading of electric and water utility meters during emergency situations
	Bermex Staff Report
	Agreement

	K.	Agreement with Gresco Utility Supply, Inc., for the purchase and delivery of 27 kV Capacitor Banks
	Gresco Staff Report
	Agreement
	Bid Tab

	L.	Resolution No. 47-2023 - Designate Vaughn Hayduk to ECR
	ECR Designee Staff Report
	Resolution 47-2023

	M.	Agreement with Tripp Electric, Inc.
	Tripp Electric Staff Report
	Agreement

	N.	Agreement with Allied Universal Corporation
	Allied Universal Staff Report
	Third Amendment

	O.	Agreement with Miller Pipeline for Wastewater Rehabilitation
	Miller Pipeline Staff Report
	Agreement

	P.	Agreement with Amici Engineering Contractors, LLC for On-Call Large Pipe Contractor
	Amici Engineering Staff Report
	Agreement
	Piggyback Contract - Tampa Bay Water

	Q.	Purchase Order with PSI Technologies
	PSI Technologies Staff Report
	Quote
	PSI New Sole Source Form

	Bottom

